

## U. S. TREASURY DEPARTMENT BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE

# STATISTICS OF INCOME FOR 1940

#### PART 1

COMPILED FROM INDIVIDUAL INCOME AND DEFENSE TAX RETURNS, TAXABLE FIDUCIARY INCOME AND DEFENSE TAX RETURNS, ESTATE TAX RETURNS, AND GIFT TAX RETURNS

PREPARED UNDER DIRECTION OF THE
COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE
BY THE
STATISTICAL SECTION, INCOME TAX UNIT



UNITED STATES
GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE
WASHINGTON: 1943

For sale by the Superintendent of Documents, Washington, D. C. . . . .

Price 30 cents (paper)

## CONTENTS

	Page
Official transmittal	1
INDIVIDUAL INCOME AND DEFENSE TAX RETURNS AND TAXABLE FIDUCIARY INCOME AND DEFENSE TAX RETURNS	
Summary data	2
Summary dataChanges in provisions of the Internal Revenue Code	2 3
Returns included	3
Data tabulated	
Selection of samples	4-5
Estimated data	_ 5
Description of summary items	5-7
Net income exempt from normal tax	7-8
Classification of returnsSimple and cumulative distribution by net income classes	8-9
Individual returns with no net income	9-11
Family relationship—individual returns	19-12
Sources of income and deductions	14-24
Sole proprietorships	
Amount distributable to beneficiaries	25-26
Frequency distribution of selected sources of income and loss by net in-	
come classes and by size of the selected source	26-40
Government obligations and interest	41-42
Number of individual returns by counties, cities, and towns	42-43
Comparability of statistics	43–44
HISTORICAL DATA	
Capital gains, 1922-1940; capital losses, 1924-1940	44-46
Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, 1913–1940:	
Number of returns, net income, tax before tax credits, tax credits, and	
tax for returns with net income, 1913-1940, and number of returns	
and deficit for individual returns with no net income, 1928-1940	47-48
Number of returns, net income, tax, and effective tax rate; also aggre-	•
gate for individual returns with no net income:	40 50
Number of returns, 1914–1940	48-50
Tax, 1916–1940	50 52
Effective tax rate (percent), 1916–1940	52-54
Sources of income, deductions, and net income, 1916–1940; deficit,	00-0±
1928–1940:	
All returns	54-60
Returns with net income of \$5,000 and over	61-67
Partnership returns of income, 1917–1940	68
Source book data	68-69

BASIC TABLES	Page
Description of basic tables.  Taxable and nontaxable individual income and defense tax returns with net income and with no net income, and taxable fiduciary income and defense tax returns with net income:  United States in aggregates.	69
United States in aggregate:  Number of returns, net income or deficit, personal exemption, credit for dependents and tax, by States and Territories:  1. Individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns, with	70 79
net income, and individual returns with no net income  1-A. Individual returns with net income and with no net income	72-73 74-75
Number of returns, net income, personal exemption, credit for dependents, earned income credit, taxes, average tax, and effective tax rate, by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes for returns with net income, and in aggregate for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income:  2. Individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns, with net income, and individual returns with no net income:	
All returns	8081
All returns	94–95 96–103
All returns1( Returns with normal tax and surtax1	06-107
Returns with alternative tax	
income, and individual returns with no net income 13  3-A. Individual returns with net income and with no net income	
Individual returns with net income, by sex and family relationship: 4. Number of returns and net income by States and Terri-	
tories1  5. Number of returns, net income, personal exemption, and credit for dependents, by taxable and nontaxable re-	
6. Sources of income, deductions, net income and deficit, by States and Territories, individual returns with net income	
and with no net income	66–132
7. Individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns with net income, and individual returns with no net income 13 7-A. Individual returns with net income and with no net income 14 7-B. Taxable fiduciary returns with net income 15 States and Territories separately:	4-153
8. Number of returns. net income, and total tax, by net income classes for individual returns with net income, also aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income, and taxable fiduciary returns with net income; and historical summary for aggregate of individual and taxable fiduciary returns, with net income, 1940–1930.	sn_185
(	100

Government obligations, and wholly and partially tax-exempt interest, b	y	Page
type of obligation, and by net income classes: 9. Individual returns with net income of \$5,000 and over	186_	197
10. Taxable fiduciary returns with net income, showing balance incom	1e	
of \$5,000 and overESTATE TAX RETURNS		
Summary data	-	195
Filing requirements	195-	196
Data tabulated		196
Description of items	196-	
Classification of returns	· <b>-</b>	198
Description of tables Estate tax returns filed in 1941 for estates of citizens and resident aliens	-	199
Estate tax returns filed in 1941 for estates of citizens and resident aliens	:	
Items of gross estate, deductions, net (or no net) estate, and tax:	000	
1. Taxable and nontaxable, by revenue acts	200-	-203
2. Taxable, by net estate classes.	204-	-211
3. Taxable, by gross estate classes	212-	215
4. Nontaxable, by gross estate classes	210-	-219
By States and Territories:	000	001
5. Taxable and nontaxable, selected items	220-	221
Historical—Table 6. Returns for citizens and aliens, 1916–1941	222-	223
GIFT TAX RETURNS		00=
Summary data		227
Filing requirements		227
Data tabulated Description of items	007	227
Classification of returns		229
GiftsIdentical donors		
Description of tables		230
Gift tax returns, 1940:		200
Number of returns, total gifts before exclusions, exclusions, total gif	t.s	
after exclusions, deductions, net gifts, and tax:	US	
after exclusions, deductions, net gifts, and tax:  1. By net gift classes  2. Taxable by total gift plus tax classes; nontaxable by total gift plus tax classes.	230-	-231
2. Taxable by total gift plus tax classes: nontaxable by total gi	ft	
classes	232-	-234
3 Value of gifts transferred in trust or otherwise		
		235
Identical donors:		235
Identical donors: 4. Number of returns, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, n	et	235
Identical donors: 4. Number of returns, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, n	et	235
Identical donors:  4. Number of returns, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, n gifts, and tax, by taxable status for current year and for prior years.	et or	<ul><li>235</li><li>235</li></ul>
Identical donors:  4. Number of returns, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, n gifts, and tax, by taxable status for current year and for prior years  5. Number of taxable returns, by size of net gifts for current years	et or 	235
Identical donors:  4. Number of returns, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, n gifts, and tax, by taxable status for current year and for prior years  5. Number of taxable returns, by size of net gifts for current years	et or 	
Identical donors:  4. Number of returns, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, ngifts, and tax, by taxable status for current year and for prior years.  5. Number of taxable returns, by size of net gifts for current year and by size of net gifts for prior years.  Historical—Table 6. Number of returns, total gifts, net gifts, and ta	et or  ar  x,	235 236
Identical donors:  4. Number of returns, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, n gifts, and tax, by taxable status for current year and for prior years.	et or  ar  x,	235
Identical donors:  4. Number of returns, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, ngifts, and tax, by taxable status for current year and for prior years.  5. Number of taxable returns, by size of net gifts for current year and by size of net gifts for prior years.  Historical—Table 6. Number of returns, total gifts, net gifts, and ta	et or ar x,	235 236
Identical donors:  4. Number of returns, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, negifts, and tax, by taxable status for current year and for prior years.  5. Number of taxable returns, by size of net gifts for current year and by size of net gifts for prior years.  Historical—Table 6. Number of returns, total gifts, net gifts, and ta 1932-1940.	et or ar x,	235 236
Identical donors:  4. Number of returns, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, n gifts, and tax, by taxable status for current year and for prior years.  5. Number of taxable returns, by size of net gifts for current year and by size of net gifts for prior years.  Historical—Table 6. Number of returns, total gifts, net gifts, and ta 1932-1940.  SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL TAX LAWS AFFECTING THE COMPARABILITY O	et or ar x,	235 236
Identical donors:  4. Number of returns, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, n gifts, and tax, by taxable status for current year and for prior years.  5. Number of taxable returns, by size of net gifts for current year and by size of net gifts for prior years.  Historical—Table 6. Number of returns, total gifts, net gifts, and ta 1932-1940.  SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL TAX LAWS AFFECTING THE COMPARABILITY O HISTORICAL DATA IN STATISTICS OF INCOME	et or ar  x, 	235 236
Identical donors:  4. Number of returns, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, n gifts, and tax, by taxable status for current year and for prior years.  5. Number of taxable returns, by size of net gifts for current year and by size of net gifts for prior years.  Historical—Table 6. Number of returns, total gifts, net gifts, and ta 1932–1940.  SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL TAX LAWS AFFECTING THE COMPARABILITY O HISTORICAL DATA IN STATISTICS OF INCOME  Individuals and fiduciaries:  A. Requirements for filing income tax returns, personal exemption credit for dependents, and normal tax rates, under the Federal	et or  ar  x,  F	235 236 237
Identical donors:  4. Number of returns, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, n gifts, and tax, by taxable status for current year and for prior years.  5. Number of taxable returns, by size of net gifts for current year and by size of net gifts for prior years.  Historical—Table 6. Number of returns, total gifts, net gifts, and ta 1932-1940.  SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL TAX LAWS AFFECTING THE COMPARABILITY O HISTORICAL DATA IN STATISTICS OF INCOME  Individuals and fiduciaries:  A. Requirements for filing income tax returns, personal exemption credit for dependents, and normal tax rates, under the Federatax laws for the income years 1913 through 1940.	et or  ar  x,  F n, al 242–	235 236 237
Identical donors:  4. Number of returns, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, n gifts, and tax, by taxable status for current year and for prior years	et or  ar  x,  F n, al 242-	235 236 237
Identical donors:  4. Number of returns, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, n gifts, and tax, by taxable status for current year and for prior years	et or  ar  x,  F n, al 242- ne 246-	235 236 237
Identical donors:  4. Number of returns, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, ngifts, and tax, by taxable status for current year and for prior years.  5. Number of taxable returns, by size of net gifts for current year and by size of net gifts for prior years.  Historical—Table 6. Number of returns, total gifts, net gifts, and ta 1932-1940.  SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL TAX LAWS AFFECTING THE COMPARABILITY OF HISTORICAL DATA IN STATISTICS OF INCOME  Individuals and fiduciaries:  A. Requirements for filing income tax returns, personal exemption credit for dependents, and normal tax rates, under the Federatax laws for the income years 1913 through 1940.  B. Surtax rates and total surtax, under the Federal tax laws for the income years 1913 through 1940.  C. Supplemental income and profits tax rates and credits, under the	et or  ar  x,  F n, al 242- ne 246- ne	235 236 237 245 247
Identical donors:  4. Number of returns, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, n gifts, and tax, by taxable status for current year and for prior years.  5. Number of taxable returns, by size of net gifts for current year and by size of net gifts for prior years.  Historical—Table 6. Number of returns, total gifts, net gifts, and ta 1932-1940.  SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL TAX LAWS AFFECTING THE COMPARABILITY O HISTORICAL DATA IN STATISTICS OF INCOME  Individuals and fiduciaries:  A. Requirements for filing income tax returns, personal exemption credit for dependents, and normal tax rates, under the Federatax laws for the income years 1913 through 1940.  B. Surtax rates and total surtax, under the Federal tax laws for the income and profits tax rates and credits, under the Federal tax laws for the income years 1917 through 1940.	et or  ar  x,  F n, al 242- ne 246- ne	235 236 237 245 247
Identical donors:  4. Number of returns, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, n gifts, and tax, by taxable status for current year and for prior years	et or  ar  x,  F n, al 242- ne 246- ne 248-	235 236 237 245 247
Identical donors:  4. Number of returns, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, ngifts, and tax, by taxable status for current year and for prior years.  5. Number of taxable returns, by size of net gifts for current year and by size of net gifts for prior years.  Historical—Table 6. Number of returns, total gifts, net gifts, and ta 1932–1940.  SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL TAX LAWS AFFECTING THE COMPARABILITY OF HISTORICAL DATA IN STATISTICS OF INCOME  Individuals and fiduciaries:  A. Requirements for filing income tax returns, personal exemption credit for dependents, and normal tax rates, under the Federatax laws for the income years 1913 through 1940.  B. Surtax rates and total surtax, under the Federal tax laws for the income years 1913 through 1940.  C. Supplemental income and profits tax rates and credits, under the Federal tax laws for the income years 1917 through 1940.  Estates:  D. Tax rates, total estate tax, specific exemptions, and credits again.	et or  ar  x,  F n, al 242- 1e 246- 1e 248 st	235 236 237 245 247
Identical donors:  4. Number of returns, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, ngifts, and tax, by taxable status for current year and for prior years.  5. Number of taxable returns, by size of net gifts for current year and by size of net gifts for prior years.  Historical—Table 6. Number of returns, total gifts, net gifts, and ta 1932-1940.  SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL TAX LAWS AFFECTING THE COMPARABILITY OF HISTORICAL DATA IN STATISTICS OF INCOME  Individuals and fiduciaries:  A. Requirements for filing income tax returns, personal exemption credit for dependents, and normal tax rates, under the Federatax laws for the income years 1913 through 1940.  B. Surtax rates and total surtax, under the Federal tax laws for the income years 1913 through 1940.  C. Supplemental income and profits tax rates and credits, under the Federal tax laws for the income years 1917 through 1940.  Estates:  D. Tax rates, total estate tax, specific exemptions, and credits again estate tax, under the Federal tax laws applicable to estates of the company of the federal tax laws applicable to estates of the company of the federal tax laws applicable to estates of the company of the federal tax laws applicable to estates of the federal tax laws applicable to estate the federal tax laws applicable to estate the federal tax laws applicable to estate tax and the federal tax laws applicable to estate the federal tax laws applicable to estates the federal tax laws applicable to estate tax and the federal	et or  ar  x,  F 10 242- 10 246- 10 248- 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	235 236 237 245 247
Identical donors:  4. Number of returns, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, ngifts, and tax, by taxable status for current year and for prior years.  5. Number of taxable returns, by size of net gifts for current year and by size of net gifts for prior years.  Historical—Table 6. Number of returns, total gifts, net gifts, and ta 1932-1940.  SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL TAX LAWS AFFECTING THE COMPARABILITY OF HISTORICAL DATA IN STATISTICS OF INCOME  Individuals and fiduciaries:  A. Requirements for filing income tax returns, personal exemption credit for dependents, and normal tax rates, under the Federatax laws for the income years 1913 through 1940.  B. Surtax rates and total surtax, under the Federal tax laws for the income years 1917 through 1940.  C. Supplemental income and profits tax rates and credits, under the Federal tax laws for the income years 1917 through 1940.  Estates:  D. Tax rates, total estate tax, specific exemptions, and credits again estate tax, under the Federal tax laws applicable to estates citizens and aliens who died in the period September 9, 191 through December 31, 1941	et or  xx,  F 242- ee 246- ee 248- st	235 236 237 245 247 2251
Identical donors:  4. Number of returns, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, ngifts, and tax, by taxable status for current year and for prior years.  5. Number of taxable returns, by size of net gifts for current year and by size of net gifts for prior years.  Historical—Table 6. Number of returns, total gifts, net gifts, and ta 1932-1940.  SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL TAX LAWS AFFECTING THE COMPARABILITY ON HISTORICAL DATA IN STATISTICS OF INCOME  Individuals and fiduciaries:  A. Requirements for filing income tax returns, personal exemption credit for dependents, and normal tax rates, under the Federatax laws for the income years 1913 through 1940.  B. Surtax rates and total surtax, under the Federal tax laws for the income years 1913 through 1940.  C. Supplemental income and profits tax rates and credits, under the Federal tax laws for the income years 1917 through 1940.  Estates:  D. Tax rates, total estate tax, specific exemptions, and credits again estate tax, under the Federal tax laws applicable to estates citizens and aliens who died in the period September 9, 191 through December 31, 1941.	et 	235 236 237 245 247 2251
Identical donors:  4. Number of returns, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, ngifts, and tax, by taxable status for current year and for prior years.  5. Number of taxable returns, by size of net gifts for current year and by size of net gifts for prior years.  6. Number of taxable returns, total gifts, net gifts, and tax 1932-1940.  SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL TAX LAWS AFFECTING THE COMPARABILITY OF HISTORICAL DATA IN STATISTICS OF INCOME  Individuals and fiduciaries:  A. Requirements for filing income tax returns, personal exemption credit for dependents, and normal tax rates, under the Federatax laws for the income years 1913 through 1940.  B. Surtax rates and total surtax, under the Federal tax laws for the income years 1913 through 1940.  C. Supplemental income and profits tax rates and credits, under the Federal tax laws for the income years 1917 through 1940.  Estates:  D. Tax rates, total estate tax, specific exemptions, and credits again estate tax, under the Federal tax laws applicable to estates citizens and aliens who died in the period September 9, 191 through December 31, 1941.  E. Tax rates, total gift tax, specific exemptions, exclusions and diense total gift tax, specific exemptions, exclusions and diense tax total gift tax, specific exemptions, exclusions and diense tax total gift tax, specific exemptions, exclusions and diense tax total gift tax, specific exemptions, exclusions and diense tax total gift tax, specific exemptions, exclusions and diense tax total gift tax, specific exemptions, exclusions and diense tax total gift tax, specific exemptions, exclusions and diense tax total gift tax, specific exemptions, exclusions and diense tax total gift tax, specific exemptions, exclusions and diense tax total gift tax.	et or 	235 236 237 245 247 2251
Identical donors:  4. Number of returns, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, ngifts, and tax, by taxable status for current year and for prior years.  5. Number of taxable returns, by size of net gifts for current year and by size of net gifts for prior years.  Historical—Table 6. Number of returns, total gifts, net gifts, and ta 1932-1940.  SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL TAX LAWS AFFECTING THE COMPARABILITY OF HISTORICAL DATA IN STATISTICS OF INCOME  Individuals and fiduciaries:  A. Requirements for filing income tax returns, personal exemption credit for dependents, and normal tax rates, under the Federatax laws for the income years 1913 through 1940.  B. Surtax rates and total surtax, under the Federal tax laws for the income years 1913 through 1940.  C. Supplemental income and profits tax rates and credits, under the Federal tax laws for the income years 1917 through 1940.  Estates:  D. Tax rates, total estate tax, specific exemptions, and credits again estate tax, under the Federal tax laws applicable to estates citizens and aliens who died in the period September 9, 191 through December 31, 1941.  Gifts:  E. Tax rates, total gift tax, specific exemptions, exclusions and ductions, under the Federal tax laws affecting gifts made during the state tax and the period september 9, 191 through December 31, 1941.	et toor	235 236 237 245 247 251
Identical donors:  4. Number of returns, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, n gifts, and tax, by taxable status for current year and for prior years.  5. Number of taxable returns, by size of net gifts for current year and by size of net gifts for prior years.  Historical—Table 6. Number of returns, total gifts, net gifts, and ta 1932-1940.  SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL TAX LAWS AFFECTING THE COMPARABILITY OF HISTORICAL DATA IN STATISTICS OF INCOME  Individuals and fiduciaries:  A. Requirements for filing income tax returns, personal exemption credit for dependents, and normal tax rates, under the Federatax laws for the income years 1913 through 1940.  B. Surtax rates and total surtax, under the Federal tax laws for the income years 1913 through 1940.  C. Supplemental income and profits tax rates and credits, under the Federal tax laws for the income years 1917 through 1940.  Estates:  D. Tax rates, total estate tax, specific exemptions, and credits again estate tax, under the Federal tax laws applicable to estates citizens and aliens who died in the period September 9, 191 through December 31, 1941.  Gifts:  E. Tax rates, total gift tax, specific exemptions, exclusions and ductions, under the Federal tax laws affecting gifts made during the calendar years 1924 through 1940.	et toor	235 236 237 245 247 251
Identical donors:  4. Number of returns, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, ngifts, and tax, by taxable status for current year and for prior years.  5. Number of taxable returns, by size of net gifts for current year and by size of net gifts for prior years.  Historical—Table 6. Number of returns, total gifts, net gifts, and ta 1932-1940.  SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL TAX LAWS AFFECTING THE COMPARABILITY OF HISTORICAL DATA IN STATISTICS OF INCOME  Individuals and fiduciaries:  A. Requirements for filing income tax returns, personal exemption credit for dependents, and normal tax rates, under the Federat tax laws for the income years 1913 through 1940.  B. Surtax rates and total surtax, under the Federal tax laws for the income years 1913 through 1940.  C. Supplemental income and profits tax rates and credits, under the Federal tax laws for the income years 1917 through 1940.  Estates:  D. Tax rates, total estate tax, specific exemptions, and credits again estate tax, under the Federal tax laws applicable to estates a citizens and aliens who died in the period September 9, 191 through December 31, 1941.  E. Tax rates, total gift tax, specific exemptions, exclusions and ductions, under the Federal tax laws affecting gifts made during the calendar years 1924 through 1940.  INCOME TAX FORMS	et to retain the state of the s	235 236 237 245 247 251 255
Identical donors:  4. Number of returns, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, n gifts, and tax, by taxable status for current year and for prior years.  5. Number of taxable returns, by size of net gifts for current year and by size of net gifts for prior years.  Historical—Table 6. Number of returns, total gifts, net gifts, and ta 1932-1940.  SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL TAX LAWS AFFECTING THE COMPARABILITY OF HISTORICAL DATA IN STATISTICS OF INCOME  Individuals and fiduciaries:  A. Requirements for filing income tax returns, personal exemption credit for dependents, and normal tax rates, under the Federatax laws for the income years 1913 through 1940.  B. Surtax rates and total surtax, under the Federal tax laws for the income years 1913 through 1940.  C. Supplemental income and profits tax rates and credits, under the Federal tax laws for the income years 1917 through 1940.  Estates:  D. Tax rates, total estate tax, specific exemptions, and credits again estate tax, under the Federal tax laws applicable to estates citizens and aliens who died in the period September 9, 191 through December 31, 1941.  Gifts:  E. Tax rates, total gift tax, specific exemptions, exclusions and ductions, under the Federal tax laws affecting gifts made during the calendar years 1924 through 1940.	et to retain the state of the s	235 236 237 245 247 251 255

#### STATISTICS OF INCOME FOR 1940

#### PART 1

# INDIVIDUAL INCOME AND DEFENSE TAX RETURNS, TAXABLE FIDUCIARY INCOME AND DEFENSE TAX RETURNS, ESTATE TAX RETURNS, AND GIFT TAX RETURNS

TREASURY DEPARTMENT,
OFFICE OF COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Washington, D. C., April 26, 1943.

Sir: In accordance with the provisions of the Revenue Act of 1916 and subsequent Federal tax laws requiring the publication annually of statistics with respect to the operation of the income, war-profits, and excess-profits tax laws, I have the honor to transmit herewith a report entitled "Statistics of Income for 1940, Part 1," prepared from individual income and defense tax returns and taxable fiduciary income and defense tax returns for 1940 filed during 1941, with a historical presentation of the income data and of the tax liability reported on income tax returns since the inception of the present period of income taxation under the sixteenth amendment to the Constitution. The report also contains tabulations of data from estate tax returns, filed during 1941, for the estates of individuals irrespective of the date of death, and tabulations of data from gift tax returns for 1940 filed during 1941, with a brief historical summary for each. On pages 242-257 there is presented a synopsis of the Federal tax laws relating to rates, credits, and exemptions for individual income and profits taxes, fiduciary income tax, estate tax, and gift tax, which affect the comparability of historical data in Statistics of Income.

Respectfully,

GUY T. HELVERING, Commissioner of Internal Revenue.

Hon. Henry Morgenthau, Jr., Secretary of the Treasury.

## INDIVIDUAL INCOME AND DEFENSE TAX RETURNS AND TAXABLE FIDUCIARY INCOME AND DEFENSE TAX RETURNS

#### SUMMARY DATA

The number of individual and taxable fiduciary returns filed for 1940 is 14,778,159—an increase of 91.5 percent as compared with those filed the previous year. The total net income is \$36,588,545,894, and the total tax liability is \$1,496,403,386, an increase of 57.8 percent and 61.1 percent, respectively.

There are 7,504,695 taxable returns, of which 7,437,261 are individual returns with \$23,279,203,093 net income and \$1,440,967,144 tax liability; 67,388 are fiduciary returns with \$278,827,290 net income and \$54,963,289 tax liability; and 46 are individual returns with no net income, showing a deficit of \$2,550,665, but with alternative tax of \$472,953.

Of the 7,273,464 nontaxable returns, 7,160,813 are individual returns with net income of \$13,030,515,511—nontaxable because exemptions and credits exceed net income; and 112,651 are individual returns with no net income showing a deficit of \$308,833,907—returns on which deductions equal or exceed total income.

The normal tax and surtax liability of \$824,280,936 is reported on 7,478,649 individual and fiduciary returns with net income. The alternative tax of \$543,772,173 is reported on 26,000 returns with net income, of which 25,240 are individual returns and 760 are fiduciary returns, and on 46 individual returns with no net income owing to net long-term capital loss. The defense tax of \$128,350,277 is reported on individual and fiduciary returns with net income.

The average tax for all returns with net income is \$102 and the effective tax rate 4.1 percent; the average tax for taxable returns with net income is \$199 and the effective tax rate 6.4 percent.

The increase in number of returns, amounts of net income, deficit, and tax, for 1940 over 1939, and percent of increase, is as follows:

Individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns, 1940 and 1939: Number of returns, net income, deficit, and taxes

#### [Money figures in thousands of dollars]

			Increase 194	0 over 1939
<i>e.</i>	1940	1939	Number or amount	Percent
Total individual and taxable fiduciary returns:  Number of returns.  Net income 1  Deficit.  Tax.  Taxable individual and fiduciary returns:  With net income:	36, 588, 546 311, 385 1, 496, 403	7, 715, 660 23, 191, 871 284, 327 928, 694	7, 062, 499 13, 396, 675 27, 058 567, 709	91. 53 57. 76 9. 52 61. 13
Number of returns. Net income '	1, 495, 930 388, 950 435, 331 543, 299	3, 959, 297 15, 803, 945 928, 394 286, 345 313, 518 328, 532	3, 545, 352 7, 754, 085 567, 537 102, 606 121, 813 214, 768 128, 350	89. 54 49. 06 61. 13 35. 83 38. 85 65. 37
Number of returns. Deficit	2, 551 473	17 1, 128 300	1, 423 173	170, 59 126, 11 57, 58
Number of returns Net income With no net income:	' '	3, 673, 902 7, 387, 926	3, 486, 911 5, 642, 590	94. 91 76. 38
Number of returns <sup>8</sup>	112, 651 308, 834	82, 444 283, 199	30, 207 25, 635	36. 64 9. 05

For footnotes, see page 40.

The major changes in the Internal Revenue Code as amended by the Revenue Act of 1940, affecting individual and fiduciary income data for 1940, are: The amount of gross income for which a return is required to be filed is reduced (a) from \$5,000 to \$2,000 in the case of a married person living with husband or wife for the entire taxable year, and (b) from \$5,000 to \$800 in the case of a single person, a married person not living with husband or wife, an estate, and a trust; the personal exemption is reduced (a) from \$2,500 to \$2,000 for the head of a family, and a married person living with husband or wife for the entire taxable year, and (b) from \$1,000 to \$800 for a single person, a married person not living with husband or wife, and an estate; the surtax rates are increased on surtax net income in excess of \$6,000 and not in excess of \$100,000; and a defense tax is added, which is 10 percent of the total income tax, but not in excess of 10 percent of the amount by which the net income exceeds the income tax computed without regard to the defense tax.

The provisions of the Internal Revenue Code as amended by the Revenue Act of 1940 do not apply to the returns for a fiscal year or part year beginning in 1939.

The returns for 1940 are the first on which the net operating loss deduction is reported. Provision for this deduction, section 23(s), was added to the Code by the Revenue Act of 1939.

#### RETURNS INCLUDED

Each volume of Statistics of Income contains data from returns for the calendar year indicated, a certain number of returns for a fiscal year ending within the period July of the calendar year through June of the succeeding year, and returns for a part year with the greater number of months of the accounting period falling in the calendar year.

The returns covered by this report are, in general, for the calendar year ending December 31, 1940. Data also include returns for a fiscal year, other than the calendar year, ending within the period July 1940 through June 1941, and for a part year with the greater part of the accounting period in 1940.

The returns used for this report are individual returns, Forms 1040, 1040A, 1040B, and taxable fiduciary returns, Form 1041, filed for the income of estates and trusts. Unlike 1939, nontaxable fiduciary returns with net income and fiduciary returns with no net income, Form 1041, are not available for 1940 statistics. The composite data, for individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns with net income for 1940, in basic tables 1, 2, 3, and 7, are comparable with composite data shown in similar tables in Statistics of Income for 1939, Part 1.

Returns included in this report are as filed by the taxpayer, prior to revisions that may be made as a result of audit by the Bureau of Internal Revenue. Amended returns and tentative returns are excluded.

Facsimiles of individual income and defense tax returns, Forms 1040 and 1040A, and of fiduciary income and defense tax return, Form 1041, are on pages 261-279.

Returns with net income of less than \$1,000 or with no net income are included in Statistics of Income because of (1) the requirement that a return be filed for (a) a married person living with husband or wife for the entire taxable year, if the gross income of either husband or

wife or the combined gross income of both husband and wife is \$2,000 or over, regardless of the amount of net income, (b) a single person, a married person not living with husband or wife, an estate, or a trust if the gross income is \$800 or over, regardless of the amount of net income; and (c) a trust with net income of \$100 or over, or with a nonresident alien beneficiary regardless of the amount of net income. (2) separate returns which married persons may elect to file, either one or both of which may show net income under \$1,000, or no net income, and (3) part year returns filed (a) for a deceased person covering the income period prior to death and (b) by a taxpaver changing his accounting period.

#### DATA TABULATED

The 16 basic tables, pages 72-189, present detailed information from individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns. All text tables in this report contain summary data from individual returns exclusively. In both basic tables and text tables, the data for individual returns with no net income are in aggregate, except the text table on page 12, which shows an analysis of individual returns with no net income by deficit classes.

The data from taxable fiduciary returns, completely tabulated from each such return, are presented in basic tables 2-B, 7-B, and 10. Each table also includes data from taxable returns for estates and trusts incorrectly filed on Form 1040. In tabulating the data from these incorrectly filed returns, an adjustment was made whereby "Amount distributable to beneficiaries" (if any) was removed from "Other deductions" and "Total deductions," and tabulated under its proper caption.

The data from individual returns, in part completely tabulated from each such return and in part estimated on the basis of samples, are presented in basic tables 1-A, 2-A, 3-A, 4, 5, 6, 7-A, 8, and 9.

Composite data for individual and taxable fiduciary returns, with

net income, are tabulated in basic tables 1, 2, 3, and 7.

The data from individual returns are completely tabulated from each return with (1) net income of \$5,000 and over. Forms 1040 and 1040A, (2) net income under \$5,000, Form 1040, showing income characteristics similar to those usually found on returns with net income of \$5,000 and over, such as unusual sources of income or large total income (approximately 338,000 returns), and (3) no net income. Form 1040. The data pertaining to individual returns with net income under \$5,000. Form 1040A, and data from Form 1040 not included in (2) above, are estimated data—based on samples of such returns.

Selection of samples.—The samples, which provide the basis for estimating the 1940 data for individual returns with net income under \$5,000, are selected from returns filed in each of the 64 collection districts as follows: The minimum number of returns, Form 1040, is 2,000 taxable and 2,000 nontaxable; and the minimum number of returns, Form 1040A, is 1,000 taxable and 1,000 nontaxable, or 5 percent of the total taxable returns and 5 percent of the total nontaxable returns, Form 1040A, with net income under \$5,000, whichever is larger. If less than the minimum number of returns is filed in a collection district for any one of the four catagories, data are tabulated from the entire number of returns filed and no estimate is necessary.

Fer 1940 and 1939, the samples of returns, Form 1040, for each collection district are the same as that stated above; but for returns, Form 1040A, the samples for 1939 consist of a minimum number of 1,000 taxable and 1,000 nontaxable returns, or 10 percent of the total taxable returns and 10 percent of the total nontaxable returns. Form 1040A, with net income under \$5,000, whichever is larger.

The samples of 1940 individual returns with net income under \$5,000 total (1) approximately 276,000 returns, Form 1040, representing 9.0 percent of all taxable and nontaxable returns. Form 1040, with net income under \$5,000, after deducting those from which data are completely tabulated (described above), and (2) approximately 532,000 returns, Form 1040A, representing 5.1 percent of all taxable and nontaxable returns, Form 1040A, with net income under \$5,000.

Estimated data.—The estimated data for individual returns with net income under \$5,000 (except that for business of sole proprietors tabulated on page 25) are computed separately, by States, for each net income class in each of four categories of returns: Form 1040, taxable and nontaxable, and Form 1040A, taxable and nontaxable. The total number of returns filed in each of the four categories in each State is obtained from records of the Bureau of Internal Revenue. From the total number of returns filed for each category there is subtracted the number of returns from which data are completely tabulated. The remainder in each category is the number of returns with net income under \$5,000 for which estimated data are to be computed. For each State, and for each net income class of the four categories of returns, estimated data are secured by applying to the various data in each net income class of the sample the appropriate ratio of the number of returns in the sample to the number of returns for which estimated data are to be computed. The estimated data tabulated for income classes under \$5,000, in this report, are a combination of these estimated data for Forms 1040 and 1040A, and the completely tabulated data from approximately 338.000 returns. Form 1040, and in composite data, 56,297 returns, Form 1041. The number of returns, Forms 1040 and 1041, for which data are completely tabulated and the number of returns, Form 1040, in the sample, total 670,785, representing 19.3 percent of the total number of returns, Forms 1040 and 1041, with net income under \$5,000.

The estimated number of individual returns with net income under \$5,000 on which specific sources of income are reported is available only for two sources: "Salaries and other Compensation" and "Dividends from domestic and foreign corporations."

#### DESCRIPTION OF SUMMARY ITEMS

Total income in this report is the sum of the positive amounts of income reported on the returns. Net short-term gain and net longterm gain from sales or exchanges of capital assets are included in

total income to the extent provided by law.

Total deductions is the sum of the deductions reported on the returns and the negative amounts reported under income. Net long-term loss from sales or exchanges of capital assets is included in total deductions to the extent provided by law. Deductions do not include personal exemption or credit of \$100 allowed a trust in lieu thereof, credit for dependents, earned income credit allowed individuals, or the amount distributable to beneficiaries reported by fiduciaries.

Net income, for individual returns, means the amount of total income in excess of total deductions. "Net income;" for fiduciary returns, means the net income taxable to the fiduciary and is the excess of total income over the sum of total deductions and amount distributable to beneficiaries.

STATISTICS OF INCOME FOR 1940-PART 1

Deficit, for individual returns, means the excess of total deductions over total income.

Ordinary net income, for individual returns, means net income exclusive of net long-term capital gain or loss, and for fiduciary returns means net income taxable to the fiduciary exclusive of net

long-term capital gain or loss.

Net income subject to surtax, for individual returns with normal tax and surtax, is the excess of net income over the sum of personal exemption and credit for dependents: for returns with alternative tax liability it is the excess of ordinary net income over personal exemption and credit for dependents. "Net income subject to surtax," for fiduciary returns with normal tax and surtax, is the excess of net income taxable to the fiduciary over personal exemption allowed an estate or the credit allowed a trust in lieu thereof; for fiduciary returns with alternative tax liability, it is the excess of ordinary net income over personal exemption allowed an estate or the credit allowed a trust in lieu thereof.

Net income subject to normal tax, for individual returns, is the surtax net income less (a) interest on partially tax-exempt Government obligations, (b) dividends on share accounts in Federal savings and loan associations, and (c) earned income credit. "Net income subject to normal tax," for fiduciary returns, is the surtax net income less the fiduciary's balance of (a) interest on partially tax-exempt Government obligations and (b) dividends on share accounts in

Federal savings and loan associations.

Normal tax and surtax liability is based on net income as previously defined, and is reported on (1) returns without net long-term capital gain or loss, (2) returns with net long-term capital gain when the combined normal tax and surtax is less than the alternative tax based on ordinary net income, and (3) returns with net long-term capital loss when the combined normal tax and surtax is greater than alternative tax based on ordinary net income. The normal tax is imposed. on the net income subject to normal tax, at a flat rate of 4 percent. The surtax is imposed on the net income subject to surtax at graduated rates ranging from 4 percent on surtax net income over \$4,000 to 75 percent on surtax net income over \$5,000,000. The first \$4,000 of surtax net income is exempt from surtax.

Alternative tax liability is based on ordinary net income as previously defined, and is reported on (1) returns with net long-term capital gain, if the alternative tax is less than the sum of normal tax and surtax based on net income, and (2) returns with net longterm capital loss, if the alternative tax is greater than the sum of normal tax and surtax based on net income. The alternative tax on returns with net long-term capital gains, is the normal tax and surtax on ordinary net income plus 30 percent of the net long-term capital gain; on returns with net long-term capital loss, it is the normal tax and surtax on ordinary net income minus 30 percent of the net long-term capital loss. The normal tax and surtax rates are the same as stated in the preceding paragraph.

Defense tax liability is 10 percent of the total income tax before deducting any credit, but not in excess of 10 percent of the amount by which the net income exceeds such income tax computed without regard to the defense tax. The limitation on the amount of defense tax operates only in case the total tax (computed without regard to the defense tax) is in excess of 50 percent of the net income.

Total tax as tabulated in this report is the aggregate of normal tax, surtax, alternative tax, and defense tax. The credits, for income taxes paid at source, income taxes paid to a foreign country or any

possession of the United States, have not been deducted.

#### NET INCOME EXEMPT FROM NORMAL TAX

Net income, to the extent of the amounts reported on returns under the following items, is exempt from normal tax: personal exemption, credit for dependents, earned income credit, interest on partially tax-exempt Government obligations, dividends on share accounts in Federal savings and loan associations, and net long-term capital gain

on returns with alternative tax.

For 1940, the personal exemption allowed the head of a family, or a married person living with husband or wife for the entire taxable year, is \$2,000; that for a single person, a married person not living with husband or wife, or an estate, is \$800; and a trust is allowed, in lieu of personal exemption, a credit of \$100 against net income. The credit for each dependent is \$400. If the taxpaver's status with respect to personal exemption and credit for dependents changed during the taxable year, such exemption and credit are apportioned according to the number of months each status existed. Earned income credit is 10 percent of the earned net income which cannot exceed \$14,000, or 10 percent of the net income, whichever is smaller. There is neither credit for dependents nor earned income credit on returns of estates and trusts. The interest on Government obligations exempt from normal tax is that received from issues specifically exempt from all income taxes except Federal surtax. Other details concerning interest on Government obligations will be found on pages 41 and 42. Dividends on share accounts in Federal savings and loan associations are exempt from normal tax.

In determining the aggregate amount of net income exempt from normal tax on returns with alternative tax, the amount of net longterm capital loss must be added to the net income tabulated, since such loss is not deductible from the ordinary net income in computing the alternative tax. The net long-term capital gain on returns with alternative tax, while included in the net income tabulated, is not subject to normal tax in the computation of the alternative tax.

The following table for all individual returns with net income for 1940 shows that \$25,471,307,034, or 69.9 percent of the net income, is exempt from normal tax on account of exemption and credits. The remaining net income, subject to normal tax, is \$10,945,001,200, of which \$9,531,930,400 is net income on returns with normal tax and surtax liability and \$1,413.070.800 is ordinary net income on returns with alternative tax liability. Of the latter amount, \$923,-424,250 is ordinary net income on returns with net long-term capital loss and \$489,646,550 is ordinary net income on returns with net long-term capital gain.

Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940: Net income exempt from and amount subject to normal tax

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-7,8-9]

#### [Money figures in thousands of dollars]

	Amount	Percent of income
Net income	36, 309, 719 106, 590	
	36, 416, 308	100.00
Income exempt from normal tax: Nontaxable returns—net income	13, 030, 516	35. 78
Taxable returns: Personal exemption	9, 463, 548 916, 107	25. 99 2. 51
Earned income credit	1, 898, 980 58, 483	5. 21 . 16
Other exemptions 7 (estimated)  Net long-term capital gain on returns with alternative tax		.01
Net income exempt from normal tax	25, 471, 307	69, 94
Net income subject to normal tax	10, 945, 001	30.06

For footnote, see p. 40.

#### CLASSIFICATION OF RETURNS

Individual and fiduciary returns are segregated according to the following classifications: Individual returns are classified (1) as taxable or nontaxable, (2) as returns with net income or returns with no net income, (3) by geographic divisions, and (4) by family relationship. Taxable returns are further classified by type of tax liability. Returns with net income are further classified by net income classes; returns with no net income are classified by deficit classes. Taxable fiduciary returns with net income are classified (1) by type of tax liability. (2) by net income classes, and (3) by geographic divisions. Data in the tables of this report are presented by such classifications but not all tabulated items are available for every classification.

Taxable or nontaxable.—This classification is based on the existence or nonexistence of a tax liability, regardless of the amount of net

income or deficit.

Type of tax liability.—Returns showing either normal tax or surtax or both are classified as returns with normal tax and surtax, while returns showing alternative tax are classified as returns with alternative tax. In Statistics of Income for 1939, "Returns with normal tax and surtax" are designated as "Returns with no alternative tax."

Net income or no net income.—Returns are classified as returns with net income when total income exceeds total deductions, and as returns with no net income when total deductions equal or exceed total income. This classification is based on the existence of a net income or a deficit, regardless of the ordinary net income or the tax liability.

Net income classes.—Returns with net income are segregated into 40 net income classes based on the amount of net income, e. g., basic table 2.

Deficit classes.—Individual returns with no net income are segregated into 10 deficit classes based on the amount of deficit. See table.

Geographic divisions.—This classification consists of 48 States, Alaska, Hawaii, and District of Columbia. The segregation of returns by States and Territories is determined by the location of the collection district in which the return is filed, except for the two divisions, Alaska and District of Columbia, the segregation of which is determined by the address of the taxpayer. The distribution does not represent what may be called the geographic distribution of income. Income tax returns may be filed either in the collection district in which the individual or fiduciary resides or that in which his principal place of business is located. There is no way of ascertaining from income tax returns the amount of income originating in the respective

States or the amount of tax paid on that basis.

Family relationship.—The five classifications for family relationship, applicable only to individual returns with net income, are based on the taxpaver's status as of the last day of the taxable year. The taxpaver's status is determined from answers to questions 4 and 5, page 4, Form 1040, and on page 1, Form 1040A, and from information concerning personal exemption and credit for dependents. When the taxpayer's status has changed during the year, the personal exemption and credit for dependents are prorated according to the number of months for which each status is maintained. Returns in each classification, except joint returns, are classified also as returns of men or returns of women. The first table in which the five classifications are shown is the text table, page 13.

Two classifications of returns shown in Statistics of Income for 1939, Part 1, namely, industrial classification for business activity on returns of sole proprietors, and balance income classification for fiduciary returns, are not used for returns included in this report.

#### SIMPLE AND CUMULATIVE DISTRIBUTION BY NET INCOME CLASSES

The following table presents, for individual returns with net income, the simple and cumulative distribution of number of returns, net income, and total tax with corresponding percentages, by a limited number of net income classes. Only aggregate data are shown for individual returns with no net income. Due to the provision for computation of alternative tax in case of a net long-term capital loss, there is a tax liability on 46 returns classified as returns with no net income (for further explanation see page 11)...

Similar data for individual returns are tabulated by detailed net income classes in basic table 3-A. Composite data for individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns, with net income, also by detailed net income classes, are contained in basic table 3.

Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by net income classes: Simple and cumulative distribution of number of returns, net income, and total tax, with corresponding percentage distribution; also aggregate for individual returns with no net income

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-7, 8-9]

#### [Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

<u>.</u>							
	Number of returns						
Net income classes	Simple distribution		Cumulative distribu- tion from highest income class		Cumulative distribu tion from lowest income class		
	Number	Percent of total	Number	Percent of total	Number	Percent of total	
Individual returns with net income:  Under 1 (estimated)	1, 911, 457 5, 012, 669 5, 258, 565 1, 646, 595 533, 345 185, 687 36, 176 10, 285 1, 866 252 212 112	13. 09 34. 34 36. 02 11. 28 3. 66 1. 27 . 25 . 07 . 01 (8) (8) (8)	14, 598, 074 12, 686, 617 7, 673, 998 2, 415, 433 768, 838 235, 493 49, 806 13, 630 3, 340 41, 479 413 161 49	100. 00 86. 91 52. 57 16. 55 5. 27 1. 61 . 34 . 09 . 02 . 01 (8)	1, 911, 457 6, 924, 076 12, 182, 641 13, 829, 236 14, 362, 581 14, 584, 268 14, 584, 444 14, 594, 729 14, 596, 595 14, 597, 661 14, 597, 913 14, 598, 025 14, 598, 025	13. 09 47. 43 83. 45 94. 73 98. 39 99. 66 99. 91 99. 99 99. 99 90. 99 90. 99	
Total, individual returns with net income	14, 598, 074 112, 697	100.00					
Grand total	14, 710, 771	(°)					
			Net i	ncome			
Net income classes	Simple dis	tribution	Cumulative tion from income cl	n highest	Cumulative tion from income cl	n lowest	
·	Amount	Percent of total	Amount	Percent of total	Amount	Percent of total	
Individual returns with net income:     Under 1 (estimated)     1 under 2 (estimated)     2 under 3 (estimated)     3 under 5 (estimated)     5 under 10     10 under 25     25 under 50     50 under 100     100 under 150     150 under 300     300 under 500     500 under 1,000     1,000 and over	1, 512, 563 7, 341, 533 12, 567, 963 5, 990, 765 3, 564, 378 2, 730, 926 1, 219, 853 686, 313 223, 988 213, 764 95, 757 74, 170 87, 746	4. 17 20. 22 34. 61 16. 50 9. 82 7. 52 3. 35 1. 89 . 62 . 59 . 26 . 21	36, 309, 719 34, 797, 155 27, 455, 623 14, 887, 660 8, 896, 895 5, 332, 516 2, 601, 590 1, 381, 737 605, 424 471, 436 257, 672 161, 915 87, 746	100. 00 95. 83 75. 61 41. 00 24. 50 14. 68 7. 16 3. 81 1. 92 1. 30 . 71 . 45 . 24	1, 512, 563 8, 584, 096 21, 422, 059 27, 412, 824 30, 977, 202 33, 708, 128 34, 927, 982 35, 614, 294 36, 538, 282 36, 052, 047 36, 147, 803 36, 221, 973 36, 309, 719	4. 17 24. 39 59. 00 75. 50 85. 32 92. 84 96. 19 98. 08 98. 70 99. 29 99. 55 99. 76	
Total, individual returns with net income	36, 309, 719 10 311, 385	100.00					

For footnotes, see p. 40.

Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by net income classes: Simple and cumulative distribution of number of returns, net income, and total tax, with corresponding percentage distribution; also aggregate for individual returns with no net income—Continued

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-7, 8-9]

#### [Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

			Total	tax 11		
Net income classes	Simple dis	Simple distribution Cumulative disting from hincome class		n highest	Cumulative tion from income cl	n lowest
	Amount	Percent of total	Amount	Percent of total	Amount	Percent of total
Individual returns with net income:	116, 538	0. 12 3. 97 3. 42 5. 41 8. 13 17. 13 18. 20 16. 79 7. 31 8. 09 4. 01 3. 20 4. 22	1, 440, 967 1, 439, 967 1, 382, 940 1, 332, 765 1, 254, 878 1, 137, 734 890, 897 628, 663 386, 597 281, 260 164, 722 106, 943 60, 805	100. 00 99. 88 95. 91 92. 49 87. 08 78. 95 61. 82 43. 62 20. 83 19. 52 11. 43 7. 42 4. 22	1, 771 58, 927 108, 202 186, 089 303, 233 550, 070 812, 304 1, 054, 370 1, 159, 708 1, 276, 245 1, 334, 024 1, 380, 162 1, 440, 967	0. 12 4. 09 7. 51 12. 92 21. 05 38. 18 56, 38 73. 17 80. 48 88. 57 92. 58 95. 78 100. 00
Total, individual returns with net income Individual returns with no net income (taxable) 4	1, 440, 967 473	100.00				
Grand total	1, 441, 440	. (9)				

For footnotes, see p. 40.

#### INDIVIDUAL RETURNS WITH NO NET INCOME

The 112,697 individual returns with no net income are tabulated below by taxable and nontaxable returns and by deficit classes. In all other text tables and in the basic tables showing data for returns with no net income, only aggregates for taxable and nontaxable data are tabulated.

Forty-six returns, with deficit due to net long-term capital loss, show an alternative tax liability because the partial tax computed on ordinary net income exceeds 30 percent of the net long-term capital loss.

Individual returns with no net income, 1940, by taxable and nentaxable returns, and by deficit classes: Number of returns, total income, net long-term capital loss, total deductions, deficit and alternative tax

[For description of items and classifications, and method of tabulating data, see pp. 4 and 5-6]

#### [Deficit classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

Deficit classes	Number of returns	Total in- income	Net long- term cap- ital loss	Total de- duction	Deficit	Alterna- tive tax
Taxable individual returns with no net income: 4 Under 5	12 10 3	1, 192 433 1, 992 1, 901 633	1, 060 424 1, 707 1, 815 665	1, 222 462 2, 175 2, 258 832	30 29 183 357 199	63 31 128 126 23
150 under 300. 300 under 500. 500 under 1,000. 1,000 and over.	2 1	592 1, 333 686	865 1, 753 1, 184	908 2, 188 1, 267	316 855 581	44 25 32
Total taxable	46	8, 761	9, 475	11, 312	2, 551	473
Nontaxable individual returns with no net income:	3, 575 912 358 89 69 14 10	133, 461 28, 961 30, 500 15, 872 9, 786 4, 189 3, 948 892 1, 020 2, 194 230, 822	52, 442 21, 936 29, 417 17, 805 14, 447 8, 078 6, 280 2, 648 3, 134 9, 885	241, 969 74, 035 84, 254 46, 909 34, 459 14, 923 18, 059 6, 461 7, 762 10, 826	108, 508 45, 073 53, 754 31, 037 24, 073 10, 734 14, 111 5, 569 6, 742 8, 632 308, 834	
Grand total	112, 697	239, 583	175, 547	550, 968	311, 385	473

For footnote, see p. 40.

#### FAMILY RELATIONSHIP-INDIVIDUAL RETURNS

The summary table below, for individual returns with net income, shows the number of returns and amount of net income classified by the family relationship of the taxpayer on the last day of the taxable year. Returns in each classification, except joint returns of husbands and wives, are classified also as returns of men or returns of women. Similar data are distributed by States and Territories in basic table 4, pages 118–120. The number of returns, net income, personal exemption, and credit for dependents, classified by family relationship and by net income classes, are tabulated in basic table 5. The family relationship classification is not applied to individual returns with no net income, owing to the lack of sufficient data on which to base the classification.

The community property classification of returns is applied to returns showing community property income, filed in the States of Arizona, California, Idaho, Louisiana, Nevada, New Mexico, Oklahoma, Texas, and Washington. In this report all returns showing community property income, regardless of amount of net income, are classified as community property returns. For 1939, this classification excluded separate returns of husbands and wives showing community property net income under \$5,000 and joint returns with

community property net income under \$10,000, which were classified as separate returns of husbands and wives and as joint returns, respectively. Community property returns are classified as returns of men or returns of women for the first time in this report.

The net income classes for separate community property returns filed by husband and wife are based on the respective amounts of net income. In tabulating data from a joint return showing community property net income with the tax liability apportioned equally between husband and wife, the items of income, deductions, and tax are divided to represent two returns, which are classified as separate community property returns, and the net income class for each is based on one-half the combined community property net income. The return of a married person, not reporting community property income filed in the States listed above, is classified either as a joint return of husband and wife or as a separate return of husband or wife, according to the status on the last day of the taxable year.

The unequal number of returns for men and women in the two classifications, separate returns of husbands and wives, and community property returns results from (1) use of samples of returns as the basis for estimating data for returns in net income classes under \$5,000, when the net income of one spouse is under \$5,000 and that of the other spouse is \$5,000 or over, and (2) certain cases in which incomplete or inaccurate answers to questions 4 and 5 on page 4, Form 1040, and on page 1, Form 1040A, make it impossible to identify the returns as separate returns.

Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by sex and family relationship: Number of returns, net income, and percentages

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-7, 8-9]

	Retur	ns Net income		
Family relationship	Number	Percent of total	Amount (thousands of dollars)	Percent of total
Joint returns of husbands and wives, or of either hus-	# 4FC 49D	£1.60	01 010 040	, to 40
band or wife when no other return is filed	7, 456, 432	51.08	21, 213, 046	58. 42
Mon 18	184, 983	1.27	2, 118, 585	5, 83
Men <sup>13</sup> Women <sup>13</sup>	170,070	1.16	795, 394	2. 19
Community property returns: 12	•			1
Men 13	77, 593	. 53	497, 889	1.37
Women 13	77, 841	. 53	469, 072	1.29
Heads of families:	770 007	5. 30	1 790 000	4.79
Single men and married men not living with wives Single women and married women not living with	773, 207	0.30	1, 738, 209	4.78
husbands	491, 273	3, 37	942, 366	2, 60
Not heads of families:	,		# <b>12</b> , 000	
Single men and married men not living with wives	3, 131, 177	21.45	5, 053, 307	13. 92
Single women and married women not living with		1		1
husbands	2, 235, 498	15.31	3, 481, 851	9. 50
Total, individual returns with net income	14, 598, 074	100.00	36, 309, 719	100.00

For footnotes, see p. 40.

#### SOURCES OF INCOME AND DEDUCTIONS

Income from the various sources, tabulated in this report, is the net amount, that is, the excess of gross receipts over the deductions as reported in the schedules on the returns, and the aggregate tabulated for each source is the sum of the net amounts of income from that source. Negative amounts reported under "Income" are transferred in tabulation to deductions, and are included in the amount tabulated for a specified deduction or "Other deductions." Two information items, "Net short-term capital loss of preceding taxable year deducted," and "Current year net short-term capital gain," both of which are used by the taxpayer in computing net short-term capital gain, are tabulated in addition to the items comprising total income. Both information items tabulated for 1940 are equivalent to those tabulated in Statistics of Income for 1939; the captions, however, have been revised. In the 1939 volume "Net short-term capital loss of preceding taxable year deducted" is designated as "Prior year net short-term capital gain" is designated as "Net short-term capital gain before deducting prior year net short-term capital loss."

Sources of income and deductions, for individual returns, are tabulated by States and Territories and by returns with net income and with no net income in basic table 6. Composite data pertaining to sources of income and deductions for individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns, with net income, are classified by net income classes in basic table 7, which also presents in aggregate the sources of income and deductions for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income. In addition there is tabulated in basic table 7, for returns with net income of \$5,000 and over, by net income classes, the number of returns for each specified source of income and deduction and for the information item "Net short-term capital loss of preceding taxable year deducted." The number of returns for two sources of income, "Salaries and other compensation" and "Dividends from domestic and foreign corporations," is estimated for individual returns with net income under \$5,000. Data, identical to those in basic table 7, are tabulated separately for individual returns and for taxable fiduciary returns in basic tables 7-A and 7-B, respectively.

It should be observed that a portion of the amount distributable to beneficiaries, as reported on fiduciary returns and tabulated in basic tables 7 and 7-B, is also reported on the income tax returns of the beneficiaries and is therefore included in the following sources: "Income from fiduciaries"; "Interest on partially tax-exempt Government obligations"; "Net short-term capital gain"; "Net long-term capital gain or loss" when distributable by a common trust fund; and in "Total income" and "Net income." Thus, in basic tables of composite data for individual and fiduciary returns, there is a duplication of income which, however, is a negligible percent of total income. A discussion of the "Amount distributable to beneficiaries" appears on pages 25-26.

The following table shows each source of income and deduction, and two information items "Net short-term capital loss of preceding taxable year deducted" and "Current year net short-term capital gain" reported on individual returns with net income and with no net income:

Individual returns with net income and with no net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940: Number of returns, sources of income and deductions, net income, and deficit

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-7, 8-9]

#### [Money figures in thousands of dollars]

	In	dividual retur	ns
Sources of income and deductions	Total	With net income	With no net in- come 6
Number of returns	14, 710, 771	14, 598, 074	112, 697
Sources of income: Salaries and other compensation Dividends from domestic and foreign corporations 4	27, 707, 261 2, 998, 642	27, 653, 985 2, 930, 105	53, 276 68, 537
Interest: Bank deposits, notes, mortgages, corporation bonds <sup>18</sup> Partially tax-exempt Government obligations <sup>16</sup>	931, 958 71, 304	910, 803 70, 044	21, 155 1, 260
Partnership profit 17	1, 558, 929 769, 933 1, 182, 297	1, 548, 670 756, 369 1, 146, 484	10, 259 13, 564 35, 813
Rents and royalties	4, 161, 913	4, 145, 171	16, 742
Short-term: 21 Net short-term capital gain included in total income and net income	109, 732	105, 193	4, 54(
Net short-term capital loss of preceding taxable	5, 204	4, 864	339 4, 879
Current year net short-term capital gain <sup>2</sup>	114, 936 228, 262 42, 048	110, 057 223, 619 39, 675	4, 642 4, 642 2, 373
Other income  Total income	754, 949 40, 517, 228	747, 526 40, 277, 645	7, 423 239, 583
Deductions:			
Partnership loss 17. Business loss 10	54, 264 259, 033	28, 801 131, 454	25, 463 127, 579 175, 543
Net long-term capital loss <sup>20</sup> <sup>24</sup> . Net loss from sales of property other than capital assets <sup>25</sup> Contributions <sup>26</sup> .	554, 861 70, 800 739, 992	379, 314 37, 713 734, 645	33, 087 5, 347
Interest paid 27	741, 586 1, 268, 848	710, 687 1, 235, 611	30, 899 33, 237 9, 008
Losses from fire, storm, etc. 27 28 (Form 1040) Bad dobts 27 (Form 1040) Other deductions 22	39, 521 138, 043 651, 947	30, 516 92, 457 586, 728	45, 588 65, 219
Total deductions 29	4, 518, 894	3, 967, 926	550, 968
Net income	30 35, 998, 334	36, 309, 719	10 311, 38

For footnotes, see pp. 40-41.

Salaries and other compensation reported on individual returns include compensation of officers and employees of State and local governments or any agency or instrumentality thereof. The compensation tabulated in this report for individuals and partners who received during the taxable year compensation for personal services covering five or more calendar years is the proportionate amount which would have been reported on the return for 1940 if the compensation had been received in equal portions in each of the years for which the personal service was rendered. According to section 107 of the Internal Revenue Code, the tax attributable to such compensation shall not exceed the aggregate of taxes which would have been due had the compensation been received in equal portions in each of the years for which the personal service was rendered. The compensation tabulated for 1940 is that portion used for computing the tax for 1940, and the compensation and tax allocated to prior years are not included in this report nor in Statistics of Income, Part 1, for prior years.

Dividends from domestic and foreign corporations exclude dividends received through partnerships and fiduciaries and dividends received

on share accounts in Federal savings and loan associations.

Interest on partially tax-exempt Government obligations is interest received on United States savings bonds and Treasury bonds, owned in excess of \$5,000, and on obligations of instrumentalities of the United States other than those issued under the Federal Farm Loan Act, or such Act as amended. This interest is subject to surtax only. There is included each partner's or beneficiary's share of interest received on such obligations owned by partnerships, estates, or trusts. In this report, for the first time, the amount of partially tax-exempt interest is shown for net income classes under \$5,000. In prior years, such interest for the net income classes under \$5,000 is included in "Interest from bank deposits, notes, mortgages, corporation bonds." For other information concerning interest on partially tax-exempt Government obligations, see the section of this report entitled "Government obligations and interest" on pages 41-42.

Partnership profit or partnership loss for the current year excludes (1) interest on partially tax-exempt Government obligations, and (2) net gain or loss from the sales or exchanges of capital assets. Charitable contributions and the net operating loss deduction are not allowable deductions in computing partnership profit or loss. The items of interest on partially tax-exempt Government obligations, net gain or loss from sales or exchanges of capital assets, and charitable contributions are reported on the individual income tax returns filed by each partner, under their respective sources, and the net operating

loss deduction is reported in "Other deductions."

Income from fiduciaries excludes (1) interest on partially tax-exempt Government obligations and (2) net gain or loss from the sales or exchanges of capital assets received from "Common trust funds." Each item excluded from income from fiduciaries is reported under its respective source on the return of the beneficiary. The net operating loss deduction, which is allowed estates and trusts (but not "Common trust funds"), has been deducted from income from fiduciaries.

Rents and royalties are the net profits after deducting depreciation, repairs, interest, taxes, and other expenses from gross rent received, and after deducting depletion from the gross royalties received.

Business profit or business loss is the current year net profit or loss after deducting business expenses as reported in the business schedule. The net operating loss deduction due to a net operating loss from business for the preceding taxable year is not a business deduction. It is reported on the return in "Other deductions" and is not tabulated separately. The text table on page 25 shows, in aggregate, a few items tabulated from the schedules for business or profession.

Capital gain or loss from sales or exchanges of capital assets, both short-term and long-term, and the two information items, "Net short-term capital loss of preceding taxable year deducted" and "Current year net short-term capital gain," are described in the section of this report entitled "Capital gains and losses," pages 45-46.

Net gain or loss from sales of property other than capital assets is the net gain or loss from sales or exchanges of property used in trade or business of a character which is subject to the allowance for depreciation.

Other income includes dividends on share accounts in Federal savings and loan associations, taxable annuities, earnings of minor children, and all other items of taxable income or profit for which

an entry is not provided on the return.

Contributions are those made by individuals to religious, charitable, scientific, literary, or educational domestic organizations, and include each partner's share of such contributions made by partnerships of which they are a member. Contributions are not an allowable deduction from fiduciary income. The total charitable contributions allowed as a deduction is limited, in general, to 15 percent of the individual's net income before deducting the contributions.

Interest paid is that paid on personal indebtedness and excludes amounts deducted in schedule for rents and royalties or in schedule

for business profit.

Taxes paid exclude (1) taxes assessed against local benefits, (2) Federal income taxes, (3) Federal estate, inheritance, legacy, succession, and gift taxes, (4) taxes, imposed upon the taxpayer's interest as shareholder of a corporation, which are paid by the corporation without reimbursement from the taxpayer, (5) income taxes paid to a foreign country or possession of United States if any portion thereof is claimed as a tax credit, (6) taxes deducted in schedule for rents and royalties or in schedule for business profits, and (7) Federal social security and employment taxes paid by or for an employee.

Losses from fire, storm, etc., and bad debts, tabulated from individual returns, Form 1040, exclude amounts reported in schedules for business and for rents and royalties. Losses from fire, storm, shipwreck, or other casualty, or from theft, are those not compensated

for by insurance or otherwise.

Other deductions include the net operating loss deduction due to an operating loss from business or partnership for the preceding taxable year.

Amount distributable to beneficiaries reported on fiduciary returns, tabulated in basic tables 7 and 7-B, is described in a section by

that name on pages 25-26 of this report.

The following table shows, for a limited number of net income classes, the sources of income, deductions, net income, and two information items from individual returns. In net income classes \$5,000 and over, the number of returns is tabulated for each source of income and deduction. For net income classes under \$5,000, the number of returns on which specific sources of income and deductions are reported is available only for two sources, "Salaries and other compensation" and "Dividends from domestic and foreign corporations." On pages 22-24, the percentage distribution of sources of income, deductions, and net income is tabulated for the limited number of net income classes.

Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by net income classes, also aggregate for individual returns with no net income. Total number of returns, number of returns 31 and amount for each specific source of income and deduction, net income, and deficit

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-7, 8-9]

#### [Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

		Sources of income					
Net income classes	Total number of returns		and other ensation	Dividen domestic a corpora	nd foreign		
		Number of returns	Amount	Number of returns	Amount		
(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)		
Returns with net income:  Under 5 (estimated)	533, 345 185, 687 36, 176 10, 285 1, 866 1, 066 252	11, 541, 910 358, 970 117, 361 22, 967 6, 765 1, 238 705 145 73 30	23, 390, 710 2, 130, 072 1, 318, 322 480, 487 219, 920 58, 522 40, 915 10, 428 3, 110 1, 499	2, 375, 810 277, 941 131, 221 30, 384 9, 369 1, 774 1, 021 239 106 47	895, 042 396, 824 553, 759 385, 578 289, 562 116, 010 125, 738 61, 849 45, 187 60, 561		
TotalReturns with no net income 6	14, 598, 074 112, 697	12, 050, 164 21, 776	27, 653, 985 53, 276	2, 827, 912 28, 976	2, 930, 105 68, 537		
Grand total, individual returns	14, 710, 771	12, 071, 940	27, 707, 261	2, 856, 888	2, 998, 642		

	Sources of income—Continued							
		Int						
Net income classes	mortgages,	sits, notes, corporation ads		ax-exempt t obligations surtax only)	Partnership	o profit 17		
	Number of returns 32	Amount 15	Number of returns 32	Amount 16	Number of returns 32	Amount		
(1)	(7)	(8)	(9)	(10)	(11)	(12)		
Returns with net income:  Under 5 (estimated) 5 under 10 10 under 25 25 under 50 50 under 100 100 under 150 150 under 300 300 under 500 500 under 1,000 1,000 and over	215, 604 97, 928 23, 688 7, 656 1, 547 885 218	576, 235 128, 223 117, 971 49, 437 22, 590 6, 714 5, 072 1, 532 1, 748 1, 282	26, 282 19, 406 6, 296 2, 350 473 271 51 30 7	22, 549 13, 317 17, 428 9, 752 4, 101 1, 415 1, 095 134 246 8	71, 694 35, 614 7, 681 2, 263 330 168 30 14	525, 809 353, 288 365, 942 169, 055 91, 020 20, 282 16, 025 5, 027 921 1, 301		
Total Returns with no net income 6	82 347, 671 26, 218	15 910, 803 21, 155	<sup>82</sup> 55, 166 2, 228	16 70, 044 1, 260	<sup>82</sup> 117, 796 4, 105	1, 548, 670 10, 259		
Grand total, individual returns.	<sup>32</sup> 373, 889	15 931, 958	32 57, 394	16 71, 304	<sup>32</sup> 121, 901	1, 558, 929		

For footnotes, see pp. 40-41.

Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by net income classes, also aggregate for individual returns with no net income: Total number of returns, number of returns 31 and amount for each specific source of income and deduction, net income, and deficit—Continued

#### [Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

	Sources of income—Continued								
Net income classes	Income from	fiduciaries 18	Rents and	l royalties	Business profit 19				
	Number of returns 32	Amount	Number of returns 32	Amount	Number of returns 32	Amount			
(1)	(13)	(14)	(15)	(16)	(17)	(18)			
Returns with net income:  Under 5 (estimated) 5 under 10 10 under 25 25 under 50 50 under 100 100 under 150 150 under 300 300 under 500 500 under 1,000 1,000 and over	37, 786 23, 816 7, 405 2, 703 617 400	123, 980 120, 934 170, 912 119, 926 81, 734 33, 203 38, 910 19, 754 20, 291 27, 624	121, 919 48, 797 10, 322 3, 051 563 345 87 38	805, 060 151, 443 112, 568 45, 855 20, 171 5, 287 3, 455 1, 242 1, 286 115	121, 325 36, 305 5, 028 1, 057 138 66 11 7	2, 862, 548 685, 712 412, 818 120, 301 44, 663 10, 363 4, 677 2, 130 1, 958			
Total	82 72, 941 4, 151	756, 369 13, 564	<sup>82</sup> 185, 137 29, 870	1, 146, 484 35, 813	<sup>32</sup> 163, 938 10, 201	4, 145, 171 16, 742			
Grand total, individual returns	82 77, 092	769, 933	<sup>32</sup> 215, 007	1, 182, 297	82 174, 139	4, 161, 913			

	Sources of income—Continued  Capital gain 19								
	Short-term 21								
Net income classes	gain inclu	erm capital aded in total and net in-	Net short-t loss of pre able year	Current year net short-term capital					
•	Number of returns 32	Amount (col. 23-22)	Number of returns 82	Amount	gain 13 (col. 20+22)				
(1)	(19)	(20)	(21)	(22)	(23)				
Returns with net income:  Under 5 (estimated)	32, 277 21, 303 5, 945 1, 901 384 220 64 32	36, 107 23, 047 25, 483 10, 920 5, 222 1, 770 1, 570 891 151 32	1, 356 1, 314 515 208 55 49 10 6	1, 333 874 1, 288 800 348 73 98 26 20 6	37, 440 23, 920 26, 770 11, 720 5, 570 1, 843 1, 668 917 171				
Total Returns with no net income 6	<sup>82</sup> 62, 136 3, 831	105, 193 4, 540	<sup>82</sup> 3, 515 138	4, 864 339	110, 057 4, 879				
Grand total, individual returns	<sup>32</sup> 65, 967	109, 732	32 3, 653	5, 204	114, 936				

For footnotes, see pp. 40-41.

Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by net income classes, also aggregate for individual returns with no net income: Total number of returns, number of returns 31 and amount for each specific source of income and deduction, net income, and deficit—Continued

#### [Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

		Sources of income—Continued								
		l gain <sup>20</sup> inued)		from sales erty other	Othor	income				
Net income classes	Net long-term capital gain 24		than co	apital as-	Other	Total income				
	Number of re- turns 32	Amount	Number of re- turns 32	Amount	Number of re- turns 32	Amount				
(1)	(24)	(25)	(26)	(27)	(28)	(29)	(30)			
Returns with net income:  Under 5 (estimated)  5 under 10  10 under 25  25 under 50  50 under 160  100 under 150  150 under 300  300 under 500  500 under 1,000  1,000 and over	37, 683 23, 794 6, 906 2, 498 555 419 96 53 27	40, 490 29, 888 38, 389 24, 556 22, 509 12, 413 17, 675 11, 155 13, 580 12, 964	7, 259 3, 357 674 173 42 20 4 3 1	23, 263 8, 300 5, 918 1, 274 596 48 271 4 1	47, 117 22, 602 6, 189 2, 109 462 300 74 43 18	654, 580 39, 037 29, 047 12, 201 6, 583 1, 984 2, 198 1, 192 407 297	29, 956, 372 4, 080, 085 3, 168, 556 1, 428, 442 808, 672 268, 013 257, 599 115, 337 88, 885 105, 684			
TotalReturns with no net income •	82 72, 031 2, 970	223, 619 4, 642	<sup>82</sup> 11, 533 1, 507	39, 675 2, 373	<sup>32</sup> 78, 914 9, 178	747, 526 7, 423	40, 277, 645 239, 583			
Grand total, individual returns.	32 75, 001	228, 262	<sup>32</sup> 13, 040	42, 048	32 88, 092	754, 949	40, 517, 228			

	Deductions							
Net income classes	Partnersh	ip loss 17	Business	s loss 18	Net long-term capital loss 20 24			
	Number of returns 32	Amount	Number of returns 32	Amount	Number of returns 32	Amount		
(1)	(31)	(32)	(33)	(34)	(35)	(36)		
Returns with net income:  Under 5 (estimated) 5 under 10 10 under 25 25 under 50 50 under 100 100 under 150 150 under 300 300 under 500 500 under 1,000 1,000 and over	2, 903 874 369 93 64 18	14, 137 4, 779 4, 419 2, 057 1, 552 460 1, 196 11 4	10, 347 6, 011 1, 931 787 198 132 31 29	76, 115 14, 927 16, 176 9, 007 6, 018 2, 976 1, 839 943 1, 242 2, 211	49, 871 35, 023 10, 685 3, 627 753 409 110 37 16	142, 945 68, 466 84, 422 44, 074 22, 612 6, 215 5, 880 2, 662 1, 161 877		
Total Returns with no net income 6	<sup>32</sup> 8, 880 6, 102	28, 801 25, 463	<sup>22</sup> 19, 483 68, 550	131, 454 127, 579	<sup>32</sup> 100, 531 20, 036	379, 314 175, 547		
Grand total, individual returns	32 14, 982	54, 264	32 88, 033	259, 033	32 120, 567	554, 861		

For footnotes, see pp. 40-41.

Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by net income classes, also aggregate for individual returns with no net income: Total number of returns, number of returns 31 and amount for each specific source of income and deduction, net income, and deficit—Continued

#### (Not income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars)

[Net income cl	asses and me	oney figures	in thousand	s of dollar	s]				
	Deductions-Continued								
Net income classes	Net loss fr property c capital		Contribu	tions 26	Interest paid 27				
	Number of returns 82	Amount	Number of returns 32	Amount	Number of returns 32	Amount			
(1)	(37)	(38)	(39)	(40)	(41)	(42)			
Returns with net income:  Under 5 (estimated).  5 under 10  10 under 25  25 under 50  50 under 100  100 under 150  150 under 300  300 under 500  500 under 1,000  1,000 and over	6,067 3,335 913 301 64 34 14	5, 025 2, 149 865 260 178 239 174	453, 318 163, 383 32, 968 9, 605 1, 782 1, 027 244 110 48	493, 486 78, 655 63, 554 33, 881 24, 267 10, 251 11, 745 5, 899 6, 060 6, 847	280, 417 100, 222 20, 432 6, 318 1, 239 737 191 89 41	490, 591 102, 999 67, 393 24, 992 12, 387 4, 854 4, 099 1, 551 622 1, 196			
TotalReturns with no net income 6			32 662, 485 32, 042	734, 645 5, 347	<sup>32</sup> 409, 686 28, 903	710, 687 30, 899			
Grand total, individual returns	82 17, 255	70, 800	82 694, 527	739, 992	<sup>82</sup> 438, 589	741, 586			
	Deductions—Continued								
Net income classes	Taxes	paid <sup>27</sup>	Losses fr storm, e (Form	tc.27 28	Bad debts 27 (Form 1040)				
	Number of returns 22	Amount	Number of returns 32	Amount	Number of returns 32	Amount			
(1)	(43)	(44)	(45)	(46)	(47)	(48)			
Returns with net income:  Under 5 (estimated).  5 under 10.  10 under 25.  25 under 50.  50 under 100.  100 under 150.  150 under 300.  300 under 500.  500 under 1,000.  1,000 and over.	469, 678 170, 451 34, 148 9, 924 1, 826 1, 051 245 110 49	821, 206 152, 166 128, 810 61, 963 35, 901 12, 118 11, 461 4, 380 3, 678 3, 928	18, 648 7, 820 1, 974 772 202 137 34 21	16, 194 4, 675 4, 342 2, 170 1, 386 626 463 210 257 193	24, 562 12, 616 3, 673 1, 422 312 205 46 26 17	40, 327 15, 760 16, 884 7, 912 5, 510 1, 765 2, 130 1, 077 306 787			

<sup>32</sup> 687, 482 45, 401

32 732, 883

<sup>82</sup> 29, 622 2, 583

32 32, 205

30, 516 9, 005

39, 521

32 48, 041

138,043

1, 235, 611 33, 237

For footnotes, see pp. 40-41.

turns\_\_\_\_\_

Grand total, individual reIndividual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by net income classes, also aggregate for individual returns with no net income: Total number of returns, number of returns 31 and amount for each specific source of income and deduction, net income, and deficit—Continued

[Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

	Dedu				
Net income classes	Other dec	luctions 29	m	Net income	
	Number of returns 32	Amount	Total de- ductions **		
(1)	(49)	(50)	(51)	(52)	
Returns with net income:  Under 5 (estimated)	129, 683 55, 738 14, 006 4, 870 1, 040 681 177 90	425, 385 67, 624 46, 604 20, 383 11, 862 4, 499 4, 844 2, 433 1, 204 1, 889	2, 543, 548 515, 707 437, 630 208, 588 122, 359 44, 025 43, 835 19, 580 14, 716 17, 938	27, 412, 824 3, 564, 378 2, 730, 926- 1, 219, 853 686, 313 223, 988 213, 764 95, 757 74, 170- 87, 746	
Total Returns with no net income *	32 206, 324 24, 872	586, 728 65, 219	3, 967, 926 550, 968	36, 309, 719 10 311, 385	
Grand total, individual returns	<sup>32</sup> 231, 196	651, 947	4, 518, 894	20 35, 998, 334	

Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by net income classes, also aggregate for individual returns with no net income: Percentage distribution of sources of income, total income, deductions, and net income

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-7, 8-9]

	Sources of income								
			Inte	erest					
Net income classes (Thousands of dollars)	Salaries and other compen- sation	Dividends from do- mestic and foreign corpora- tions 14	Bank deposits, notes, mortgages, corporation bonds 18	Partially tax-exempt Govern- ment obli- gations (subject to surtax only) 16	Partner- ship profit 17	Income from fi- duci- aries 18			
. (1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)			
Returns with net income:  Under 5 (estimated) 5 under 10. 10 under 25. 25 under 50. 50 under 100. 100 under 150. 150 under 300. 300 under 500. 500 under 500. 1,000 and over.  Total	41. 61 33. 64 27. 20 21. 83 15. 88 9. 04	2. 99 9. 73 17. 48 26. 99 35. 81 43. 28 48. 81 53. 62 50. 84 57. 30	1. 92 3. 14 3. 72 3. 46 2. 79 2. 51 1. 97 1. 33 1. 96 1. 21	0. 08 . 33 . 55 . 68 . 51 . 53 . 43 . 12 . 28 . 01	1. 74 8. 66 11. 55 11. 84 11. 26 7. 57 6. 22 4. 36 1. 03 1. 23	0. 41 2. 96 5. 39 8. 33 10. 11 12. 39 15. 10 17. 13 22. 83 26. 14			
Returns with no net income 6	22, 24	28. 61	2, 20 8, 83	. 52	4. 28	5. 66			
Grand total, individual returns	68. 38	7.40	2. 30	. 18	3. 85	1.90			

For footnotes, see pp. 40-41.

Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by net income classes, also aggregate for individual returns with no net income: Percentage distribution of sources of income, total income, deductions, and net income—Con.

	Sources of income—Continued									
				Capital gain 20						
Net income classes (Thousands of dollars)	•			Short-term 21		Net gain				
	Rents and royalties	Business profit 19	Net short- term capital gain in- cluded in total in- come and net income (col. 12—11)	term capital loss of preceding year de- ducted 22	Current year net short-term capital gain 23 (col. 10+11)	Net long- term capital gain 24	from sales of prop- erty other than capital assets 15			
(1)	(8)	(9)	(10)	(11)	(12)	(13)	(14)			
Returns with net income: Under 5 (estimated) 5 under 10 10 under 25 25 under 50 50 under 100 100 under 150 150 under 300 300 under 500 500 under 1,000 1,000 and over	2. 69 3. 71 3. 55 3. 21 2. 49 1. 97 1. 34 1. 08 1. 45	9, 55 16, 81 13, 03 8, 42 5, 52 3, 87 1, 82 1, 85 2, 20 (8)	0. 12 . 56 . 80 . 76 . 65 . 66 . 61 . 77 . 17 . 03	(8) 0.02 .04 .06 .04 .03 .04 .02 .02	0. 12 . 58 . 84 . 82 . 69 . 65 . 79 . 19	0. 14 . 73 1. 21 1. 72 2. 78 4. 63 6. 86 9. 67 15. 28 12. 27	0. 08 . 20 . 19 . 09 . 07 . 02 . 11 (\$) (\$)			
Total Returns with no net in-	2. 85	10. 29	. 26	, 01	. 27	. 56	. 10			
come 6	14. 95	6. 99	1.89	. 14	2. 03	1.94	. 99			
Grand total, indi- vidual returns	2. 92	10. 27	. 27	. 01	. 28	. 56	.11			

	Sources of Cont	f income— inued	Deductions					
Net income classes (Thousands of dollars)	Other income	Total income	Partner- ship loss 17	Business loss 19	Net long- term capital loss 20 24	Net loss from sales of prop- erty other than capital assets 28	Contribu- tions 26	
(1)	(15)	(16)	(17)	(18)	(19)	(20)	(21)	
Returns with net income:     Under 5 (estimated)     5 under 10     10 under 25     25 under 50     50 under 100     100 under 150     150 under 300     300 under 500     500 under 1,000     1,000 and over	. 92 . 86 . 81 . 74 . 85 1. 03	100. 00 100. 00 100. 00 100. 00 100. 00 100. 00 100. 00 100. 00 100. 00	0.04 .12 .14 .14 .19 .17 .47 .16 .01	0. 26 . 36 . 51 . 63 . 74 1. 11 . 71 . 82 1. 40 2. 09	0. 48 1. 68 2. 66 3. 09 2. 80 2. 32 2. 28 2. 31 1. 31	0.08 .14 .16 .15 .11 .10 .07 .21 .20	1. 65 1. 93 2. 00 2. 37 3. 00 3. 83 4. 56 5. 12 6. 82 6. 48	
Total Returns with no net income 6	1.86 3.10	100.00 100.00	. 07 10. 63	. 33 53. 25	. 94 73. 27	. 09 13. 81	1.82 2.23	
Grand total, individual	1.86	100.00	. 13	. 64	1.37	. 17	1.83	

For footnotes, see pp. 40-41.

Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by net income classes, also aggregate for individual returns with no net income: Percentage distribution of sources of income, total income, deductions, and net income—Con.

	Deductions—Continued								
Net income classes (Thousands of dollars)	Interest paid <sup>27</sup>	Taxes paid <sup>27</sup>	Losses from fire, storm, etc. <sup>27</sup> <sup>28</sup> (Form 1040)	Bad debts <sup>27</sup> (Form 1040)	Other deduc- tions 29	Total deduc- tions 29	Net income		
	(22)	(23)	(24)	(25)	(26)	(27)	(28)		
Returns with net income:     Under 5 (estimated)	1. 64 2. 52 2. 13 1. 75 1. 53 1. 81 1. 59 1. 34 . 70 1. 13	2. 74 3. 73 4. 07 4. 34 4. 44 4. 52 4. 45 3. 80 4. 14 3. 72	0. 05 .11 .14 .15 .17 .23 .18 .18 .29 .18	0.13 .39 .53 .55 .68 .66 .83 .93 .34 .75	1. 42 1. 66 1. 47 1. 43 1. 47 1. 68 1. 88 2. 11 1. 35 1. 79	8. 49 12. 64 13. 81 14. 60 15. 13 16. 43 17. 02 16. 98 16. 56 16. 97	91. 51 87. 36 86. 19 85. 40 84. 87 83. 57 82. 98 83. 02 83. 04 83. 03		
Total	1.76 12.90	3. 07 13. 87	. 08 3. 76	. 23 19. 03	1.46 27.22	9.85 229.97	90. 15 (9)		
Grand total, individual returns	1.83	3.13	. 10	.34	1.61	11.15	84 88. 85		

For footnotes, see pp. 40-41.

#### SOLE PROPRIETORSHIPS

The business profit or business loss of sole proprietors reported as a source of income or as a deduction, respectively, on all individual returns, Form 1040, are tabulated below. These data are from schedule D, Form 1040, and from the schedule of farm income and expenses, Form 1040F, when submitted with the return. When schedules are not submitted the data are tabulated from the face of the return. Data for businesses with net profit are shown separately from those with net loss, and the information from complete schedules is separate from that of incomplete or fragmentary schedules. Fragmentary schedule D data include that from schedules showing fewer items than "Total receipts," "Total deductions," and "Net profit or loss," and business data from the face of the return when schedules are not submitted.

These data are in part completely tabulated and in part estimated on the basis of the business data on returns in the sample, Form 1040, used for estimating other statistics in this report. Data are completely tabulated from a total of 427,586 sole proprietorships reported on (1) returns with net income of \$5,000 and over, (2) returns with no net income, and (3) returns with net income under \$5,000 showing income characteristics usually found on returns with net income of \$5,000 and over. Data from 138,548 sole proprietorships in the sample of returns, Form 1040, constitute the basis for estimating business data on the remaining returns with net income under \$5,000. The estimated portion of the data is secured separately for each State by applying to the business data in the sample for each State the ratio of the number of returns in the sample to the number of returns for which estimated data are to be computed.

The net amounts of business profit and business loss are tabulated (1) by net income classes, for individual returns with net income in basic table 7-A; for taxable fiduciary returns in basic table 7-B; and for composite data of individual and fiduciary returns in basic table 7; and (2) by States and Territories, for individual returns, in basic table 6.

The number of returns showing net profit and net loss from business, on individual returns with net income of \$5,000 and over, by net income classes and by size of the business profit and business loss, is shown in the frequency distribution of selected sources of income or loss on pages 33-35.

There is no industrial classification for the business of sole proprietors for 1940, and there are no tables corresponding to basic tables 8 and 8-A, pages 140-175, Statistics of Income for 1939, Part 1.

Sole proprietorships reported on individual returns with net income and with no net income, Form 1040, for 1940 and 1939, by business with net profit or business with net loss, and by complete or fragmentary schedule D: Number of businesses, net profit or loss, and in addition for business with complete schedule D: Total receipts and total deductions

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

		1940	1939
1	Total number of sole proprietorships <sup>25</sup> (2 plus 10)	2, 017, 711	1, 052, 002
2	Number of businesses 35 (4 plus 8)	1, 815, 101	921, 091
3	Net profit 36 (7 plus 9)		
٥	Schedule D <sup>37</sup> showing not fewer than the following items: total receipts.	4, 177, 045	2, 710, 528
	total deductions, and net profit:	* ****	000 000
4 5	Number of businesses 35	1, 770, 663	900, 096
	Total receipts	28, 815, 892	21, 342, 472
6	Total deductions **	24, 746, 168	18, 683, 745
7	Net profit <sup>36</sup>	4, 069, 725	2, 658, 728
_	Schedule D 3 ragmentary: 36		
8	Number of businesses 35		20, 995
9	Net profit 86	107, 320	51, 800
	Business with net loss:		
10	Number of businesses <sup>35</sup> (12 plus 16)	202, 610	130, 911
11	Net loss 35 (15 plus 17)	270, 331	232, 572
	Schedule D 37 showing not fewer than the following items; total receipts,		•
	total deductions, and net loss:	1	
12	Number of businesses 35	189, 989	123, 191
13	Total receipts	2, 297, 499	2, 162, 697
14	Total deductions 36	2, 549, 941	2, 377, 107
15	Net loss 86	252, 442	214, 410
	Schedule D 37 fragmentary: 38		-12, 110
16	Number of businesses 35	12, 621	7, 720
17	Net loss 36	17, 889	18, 162

For footnotes, see p. 41.

#### AMOUNT DISTRIBUTABLE TO BENEFICIARIES

On taxable fiduciary returns the amount distributable to beneficiaries (item 16, page 1, Form 1041) is the amount paid to or permanently set aside for all beneficiaries, including charitable contributions. The amount distributable to beneficiaries, tabulated in basic tables 7 and 7-B, is a deduction from fiduciary income and is not taxable to the fiduciary. Each beneficiary who files an income tax return must report his share of the amount distributable to beneficiaries on his income tax return. Consequently, a portion of the amount distributable to beneficiaries, deducted from the fiduciary income,

is reported in sources of income on (1) the individual returns of the beneficiaries, and (2) the fiduciary returns filed for estates and trusts

which are recipients of an amount distributable.

Duplication of data may occur as follows: On the income tax return of each beneficiary (individual or fiduciary), his share of the amount distributable from an estate or trust is reported as "Income from fiduciaries," except that "Interest on partially tax-exempt Government obligations" and "Net gain or loss from sales or exchanges of capital assets" received from common trust funds are reported in their respective source of income. Therefore, the above-mentioned sources as well as "Total income" and "Net income" tabulated from the returns of the beneficiaries may include all or a portion of the fiduciary income distributable to beneficiaries, depending upon whether or not every beneficiary is required to file a return. It is impossible to determine the amount of duplication, for the following reasons: (1) Every beneficiary may not be required to file an income tax return; (2) certain returns are not included in this report, namely, those of (a) nonresident aliens not engaged in trade or business within the United States, (b) charitable organizations, and (c) nontaxable fiduciary returns which show income from fiduciaries, as well as those which show an amount distributable to beneficiaries whose income tax returns are included in this report: and (3) the data for returns, Form 1040, with net income under \$5.000 are estimated on basis of samples.

FREQUENCY DISTRIBUTION OF SELECTED SOURCES OF INCOME AND LOSS BY NET INCOME CLASSES AND BY SIZE OF THE SELECTED SOURCE

For individual returns with net income of \$5,000 and over, there is shown in the following table the frequency distribution of five sources of income and three losses, by net income classes and by size of the source of income or loss.

Partnership profit or loss and business profit or loss relate to the current year. The net operating loss deduction allowed partners and sole proprietors is reported on the income tax return of the partner in "Other deductions," and does not affect the net profit

or the net loss tabulated in this table.

Net short-term capital gain, net long-term capital gain, and net long-term capital loss are amounts used in computing net income and are reported as items 10 (a) and (b), page 1, Form 1040. Similar to 1939, the net short-term capital gain is after the deduction of the net short-term capital loss of preceding taxable year. Current year net short-term capital loss, which is not a deductible loss in computing net income, is not included in this table. (See section of this report entitled "Capital Gains and Losses," pages 45-46.)

Individual returns with net income of \$5,000 and over, not including fiduciary returns, 1940: Frequency distribution of selected sources of income and loss by net income classes and by size of the selected source

[For description of items and classifications, and method of tabulating data, see pp. 4.8-9, and 15]

SALARIES AND OTHER COMPENSATION

[Net income classes and salary and other compensation classes in thousands of dollars]

	Salary and other compensation classes								
Net income classes	Aggre- gate	Under 0.1	0.1 under 0.2	0.2 under 0.3	0.3 under 0.4	0.4 under 0.5	0.5 under	1 under	
5 under 6. 6 under 7. 7 under 8. 8 under 9. 9 under 10. 10 under 15. 15 under 20. 20 under 25. 25 under 30. 30 under 40. 40 under 50. 60 under 60. 60 under 70. 70 under 80. 80 under 90. 90 under 100. 100 under 150. 250 under 250. 250 under 300. 300 under 50. 50 under 500. 500 under 500. 500 under 500. 500 under 750.	152, 540 86, 165 54, 360 37, 350 28, 555 72, 162 29, 843 15, 356 8, 824 9, 331 4, 812 2, 729 1, 680 1, 080 757 529 1, 238 415 180 100 45 55 56 56 56 56 56 56 57 57 57 57 57 57 57 57 57 57 57 57 57	1, 469 938 685 486 428 1, 143 511 275 169 201 94 52 31 11 18 15 24 12 2 5 5 1 1 4	1, 111 766 4490 420 2889 8447 417 219 120 1222 838 222 15 14 13 - 16 6 4 5 3	810 550 370 278 204 6300 242 164 93 3 105 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45 45	756 469 331 204 488 498 210 123 77 55 355 23 115 77 6 6 6 2	593 411 250 1966 1588 3555 174 93 47 43 18 21 16 6 6 6 3 3 9 2 2	2.840 1,674 1,010 8099 597 1,574 661 318 245 240 104 468 33 32 66 19 15 543 11 8	5, 935 3, 205 2, 011 1, 407 1, 033 2, 627 280 280 280 151 88 61 46 22 12 46 3 3 2	
Total	508, 254	6, 582	5, 029	3, 612	3, 081	2. 401	10, 335	18, 707	

		Salary and other compensation classes—Continued								
Net income classes	2 under	3 under	4 under 5	5 under 10	10 under 15	15 under 20	20 under 25	25 under 30		
under 6	6, 266	8, 768	15, 644	107, 681	549	72	28			
under 6under 7	3, 356	3, 961	4, 932	64, 949	797	105	29	1		
under 8	1,906	2, 156	2, 402	41, 145	1, 370	110	34			
under 9	1, 271	1, 361	1, 344	25, 831	3, 500	139	26	,		
under 10	904	977	934	13, 386	9, 205	196	25	i		
0 under 15	2, 134	2, 184	1,949	14, 787	37, 155	5.745	368	(		
5 under 20	822	795	642	3,672	5, 981	11, 768	2, 605	20		
0 under 25	428	408	318	1,526	2, 449	2, 259	4, 554	1, 47		
5 under 30	228	194	155	752	869	1, 110	1, 465	2, 0		
0 under 40	213	197	145	785	845	868	1,013	1, 10		
0 under 50	115	99	70	383	357	383	378	4		
0 under 60	66	52	36	191	192	190	216	1		
0 under 70	37	39	25	135	104	115	112	10		
under 80	22	17	19	80	60	75	71			
under 90	11	10	11	51	45	51	48	١ :		
0 under 100	10	10	.4	31	30	25	32	8		
00 under 150	25	17	17	73	71	51	68	. (		
50 under 200	9	7	10	26	24	21	24	1		
00 under 250	6	2	5	14	10	12	10	1		
50 under 300 00 under 400	2	1	2	6	6 7	7 ]	5 )			
00 under 500		1	1	4		3 [	3 (	1		
00 under 750	3	1	1 1	+ 1	3 6		3			
50 under 1,000		1	1	1 }	9 }	3	2			
000 and over	1	3	1	4	2	1				
Total	17, 838	21, 262	28, 668	275, 514	63, 638	23, 310	11, 120	5, 98		

44 Gr

Individual returns with net income of \$5,000 and over, not including fiduciary returns, 1940: Frequency distribution of selected sources of income and loss by net income classes and by size of the selected source—Continued

#### SALARIES AND OTHER COMPENSATION-Continued

#### [Net income classes and salary and other compensation classes in thousands of dollars]

Net income classes		Sala	ary and oth	er compen	sation clas	ses—Conti	nued	
Net income classes	30 under 40	40 under 50	50 under 75	75 under 100	100 under 250	250 under 500	500 under 1,000	1,000 and over
5 under 6 6 under 7 7 under 8 8 under 9 9 under 10 10 under 15 15 under 20 20 under 25 25 under 30 30 under 40 40 under 50 60 under 70 70 under 80 80 under 90 90 under 150 150 under 100 100 under 150 150 under 260 250 under 260 250 under 300 300 under 400 400 under 500 500 under 750 750 under 750 750 under 750 750 under 750	8 9 9 4 4 8 8 46 6 86 215.7 346 187 7111 90 48 108 316 11 7 5 4 4 4 4 2 2 2	3 5 1 1 1 1 1 5 20 22 84 419 940 367 146 29 96 22 96 25 5 2 5 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	2 6 6 16 17 66 304 188 188 51 13 5 5 8 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	1 1 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 15 12 123 609 115 13 110 12 2 3 2 2 1	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	1 4 4 3 8 8 7 7 4 1 1		
Total	5, 673	2, 350	2, 095	615	407	28		

#### DIVIDENDS 14

#### [Net income classes and dividend classes in thousands of dollars]

				Dividen	d classes			
Net income classes	Aggre- gate	Under 0.1	0.1 under 0.2	0.2 under 0.3	0.3 under 0.4	0.4 under 0.5	0.5 under 1	1 under
5 under '6	102, 502 66, 958 46, 588 34, 538 27, 363 76, 888 35, 230 19, 103 11, 443 12, 464 6, 477 3, 738 2, 346 1, 764 1, 774 1, 77	27, 618 14, 899 9, 103 5, 972 4, 316 9, 348 3, 033 1, 221 577 220 89 51 27 23 155 4	13, 515 8, 134 4, 939 3, 370 2, 539 5, 794 1, 970 822 380 377 135 59 40 14 11 11 10	8, 549 5, 362 3, 523 2, 328 1, 779 4, 173 1, 410 638 304 4238 90 61 33 9 10 5 5 12 2 1	6, 257 3, 971 2, 614 1, 917 1, 341 3, 429 1, 159 92 220 92 249 28 20 6 2 7 6	4, 902 3, 080 2, 052 1, 491 1, 124 2, 764 1, 005 421 244 181 91 27 7 7 11 7 7	14, 118 9, 465 6, 527 4, 833 3, 744 9, 809 3, 669 1, 650 819 731 292 139 84 42 22 18 39 3 5	11, 512 8, 454 6, 311 4, 768 3, 873 10, 738 4, 419 2, 077 1, 051 926 422 208 115 66 63 29 48 16 4 4 4 4 2
Total	452, 102	77, 070	42, 125	28, 531	21, 901	17, 443	56, 014	55, 103

For footnote see pp. 40.

Individual returns with net income of \$5,000 and over, not including fiduciary returns, 1940: Frequency distribution of selected sources of income and loss by net income classes and by size of the selected source—Continued

#### DIVIDENDS 14-Continued

#### [Net income classes and dividend classes in thousands of dollars]

		Dividend classes—Continued							
Net income classes	2 under 3	3 under 4	4 under 5	5 under 10	10 under 15	15 under 20	20 under 25	25 under 30	
5 under 6	32 5 2 3 1	3. 457 2. 680 2. 078 1. 691 1. 436 4. 428 2. 168 1, 153 579 594 251 117 6 6 6 6 6 7. 7 3 2 6 7. 7 3 1 1	2. 538 1. 885 1. 481 1. 127 1. 036 3. 400 524 475 211 98 49 49 40 20 12 26 4 6 3 3	4, 259 4, 458 4, 151 3, 086 9, 620 5, 577 3, 178 1, 919 1, 909 425 241 114 72 2 40 90 30 15 5 5 5 5 7	229 308 336 489 798 5.318 2.871 1.910 1.288 1.343 61 322 95 54 37 78 29 6 5 5 3	47 61 98 81 106 1.052 2.152 1.323 206 115 74 63 34 65 117 5 5 4 1 1 1	35 25 36 28 44 277 671 1, 124 767 829 534 238 156 68 444 29 60 22 22 4 3 5	7 10 112 14 16 145 189 425 633 647 413 213 112 72 42 26 61 11 4 2	
Total	30, 522	20, 844	15, 578	43, 840	16, 301	8, 036	4, 942	3, 056	

			Div	idend class	ses—Conti	nued		
Net income classes	30 under 40	40 under 50	50 under 75	75 under 100	100 under 250	250 under 500	500 under 1,000	1,000 and over
5 under 6 6 under 7 7 under 8 8 under 9 9 under 10 15 under 20 25 under 30 30 under 40 40 under 50 60 under 60 60 under 70 70 under 80 80 under 90 90 under 100 160 under 50 50 under 300 50 under 300 500 under 500 500 under 500 500 under 500 500 under 500 575 under 500 575 under 1,000	589 399 244	8 4 4 7 7 6 5 5 2 48 57 7 74 349 509 129 77 77 26 8 8 7 7 3 2 2	7 6 7 7 5 3 3 6 26 32 2 5 4 138 27 184 138 27 5 6 6 6 6 1 2 2 1	1 2 2 3 3 7 8 8 16 6 11 29 9 36 51 153 169 9 122 214 49 15 7 6 6 1 4 4 4 4 4 2 2	1 2 4 9 7 7 4 4 123 18 8 29 82 486 6285 113 43 12 12 1 4	1 2 2 7 14 33 3 59 9 73 27 7 11 5 7 7	4 6 22 30 30 4 7	3 3 20
Total	3, 688	1, 955	2, 541	994	1, 268	243	84	23

For footnote, see p. 40.

Individual returns with net income of \$1.,000 and over not including fiduciary returns, 1940: Frequency distribution of selected sources of income and loss by net income classes and by size of the selected source—Continued

#### PARTNERSHIP PROFIT "

#### [Net income classes and partnership profit classes in thousands of dollars]

		Partnership profit classes								
Net income classes	Aggregate	Under 0.1	0.1 under 0.2	0.2 under 0.3	0.3 under 0.4	0.4 under 0.5	0.5 under 1	i under 2		
5 under 6.  6 under 7.  7 under 8.  8 under 9.  9 under 10.  10 under 15.  15 under 20.  20 under 25.  25 under 30.  30 under 40.  40 under 50.  50 under 60.  60 under 70.  70 under 80.  80 under 90.  90 under 100.  150 under 250.  250 under 250.  250 under 300.  30 under 400.  40 under 500.  50 under 500.  50 under 500.  50 under 500.  50 under 500.  500 under 500.	25, 409 17, 370 12, 252 9, 302 7, 361 20, 924 9, 594 5, 996 3, 107 1, 668 7, 67 329 253 100 330 108 337 23 21 2 2 2	1,601 899 581 371 329 847 201 150 101 188 599 32 17 7 7 5 3 3 10 2 1 1 1	643 417 296 213 144 442 204 61 60 36 61 10 1 1 4 3 3 17 1 1	510 351 216 1500 105 340 156 91 355 40 27 711 5 7 2 2 1	463 290 189 124 95 270 119 66 29 34 16 13 3 2 4 4 1 5 2	369 269 183 1383 97 240 83 55 31 36 6 2 2 1 1	1. 483 892 654 4199 371 944 385 190 100 109 53 327 14 10 6 6 4 4 16 2 2 2	2,080 1,291 873 6123 4777 1,187 4898 2322 1333 600 311 17 13 15 8 8 4 4 2 2 1		
Total	117, 796	5, 406			1,726		5, 685	7, 60		

			Partners	hip profit	classes—C	ontinued		
Net income classes	2 under 3	3 under 4	4 under 5	5 under 10	10 under 15	15 under 20	20 under 25	25 under 30
5 under 6	49 32 27 6 4 5 7 2 2	1, 827 986 590 393 284 722 270 144 80 70 40 28 12 5 6 1 1 1 0 3	2, 488 1, 162 668 353 280 565 232 101 60 48 30 12 14 6 6 5 5 5 9 2 12 11	12. 104 9, 625 7. 106 5, 436 3. 175 3. 848 1, 044 421 227 242 2107 555 32 20 11 13 16 55 2	105 128 249 587 1, 602 9, 270 1, 389 447 177 161 79 42 29 18 9 4 40 10 1	8 21 29 28 44 1,312 3,654 666 202 153 36 36 36 31 1 1 2 2 1 1	8 5 5 5 5 5 12 11 79 734 1,728 323 201 55 26 14 4 4	3 4 1 2 1 24 67 445 929 287 74 31 17 13 5 2 4 3
Total	5, 872	5, 473	6, 044	43, 493	14, 261	6, 274	3, 225	1, 913

For footnote, see p. 40.

Individual returns with net income of \$5,000 and over, not including fiduciary returns, 1940: Frequency distribution of selected sources of income and loss by net income classes and by size of the selected source—Continued

#### PARTNERSHIP PROFIT "-Continued

#### [Net income classes and partnership profit classes in thousands of dollars]

			Partners	hip profit	classes—C	ontinued		
Net income classes	30 under 40	40 under 50	50 under 75	75 under 100	100 under 250	250 under 500	500 under 1,000	1,000 and over
5 under 6. 6 under 7. 7 under 8. 8 under 9. 9 under 10. 10 under 15. 15 under 20. 20 under 25. 25 under 30. 30 under 40. 40 under 50. 50 under 60. 60 under 70. 70 under 80. 80 under 90. 90 under 100. 100 under 150. 210 under 250. 220 under 300. 300 under 250. 220 under 300. 300 under 400. 400 under 500. 500 under 500.	19 14 8 7 4 6 2 1	1 1 1 2 6 6 7 7 211 554 40 24 9 5 13 2 2 1 1 1 1	2 3 3 3 8 26 144 326 2665 68 27 14 15 4	3 1 7 2 82 107 54 31 11 2 1	1 2 3 7 12 18 8 119 50 15 5 7 1	3 9 2		
1,000 and over		999	909	322	239	14	2	1

#### PARTNERSHIP LOSS 17

#### [Net income classes and partnership loss classes in thousands of dollars]

			1	Partnership	loss classo	es		
	Aggregate	Under 0.1	0.1 under 0.2	0.2 under 0.3	0.3 under 0.4	0.4 under 0.5	0.5 under 1	1 under 2
s under 6 5 under 7 7 under 8 5 under 9 9 under 10 0 under 15 5 under 20 25 under 30 30 under 25 25 under 30 30 under 40 30 under 60 30 under 60 30 under 60 30 under 70 30 under 80 30 under 90 30 under 100 30 under 150 50 under 250 50 under 300	1, 537 1, 082 793 547 1, 599 782 522 310 361 203 142 74 62 47 44 49 33 32 222 10	321 246 160 114 91 244 138 68 48 45 16 6 3 3 5 3 8 4 4 4	249 155 112 81 88 194 81 47 32 23 25 7 6 6 5 8 8 4 7	155 111 89 68 44 149 62 20 27 22 15 5 5 2 2 5 2 2	104 84 62 45 30 95 63 26 20 18 16 6 8 1 1 5	91 48 45 39 33 72 48 29 14 20 11 11 2 2 2	279 179 135 90 88 291 124 94 47 67 24 23 11 7 5 3	1776 134 1188 66 77 2555 1006 88 84 44 44 64 33 221 17
00 under 500 00 under 750 50 under 1,000 ,000 and over	7 3 2 3	1				1	1	
Total	8, 880	1, 539	1, 125	808	586	476	1, 481	1, 24

For footnote, sec p. 40.

Individual returns with net income of \$5,000 and over, not including fiduciary returns, 1940: Frequency distribution of selected sources of income and loss by net income classes and by size of the selected source—Continued

PARTNERSHIP LOSS 17-Continued

[Net income classes and partnership loss classes in thousands of dollars]

Partnership loss classes—Continued

					······································			
Net income classes	2 under 3	3 under 4	4 under 5	5 under 10	10 under 15	15 under 20	20 under 25	25 under 30
6 under 6	78 49 30 44 40 109 60 43 25 5 5 6 11 2 12 1 2 1	36 22 14 14 18 69 35 28 16 17 13 4 4 4 3 3 1 1	13 20 10 11 11 14 7 7 10 3 3 2 2	26 17 18 16 24 59 35 43 15 17 18 11 7 8 2 3 3 5 4	4 8 7 5 2 2 18 11 10 9 12 6 6 8 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 4 1	2 1 1 1 6 6 2 1 4 7 7 4 4 4 2 2 3 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	4 4 2 1 1 3 3 3 3 1 1	2 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 3 1
Total	560	311	173	337	115	50	20	16
Net income classes	30 under 40	40 under 50	Partner 50 under 75	rship loss c 75 under 100	lasses—Con 100 under 250	1	500 under 1,000	1,000 and over
5 under 6	1	1 1 1 1	50 under	75 under	100 under	250 under	500 tinder 1,000	1,000 and over
5 under 6	1 1 2 2 3 3 1 1	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	50 under 75	75 under 100	100 under 250	250 under 500	500 tinder 1,000	1,000 and over

Total.... For footnote, see p. 40. Individual returns with net income of \$5,000 and over, not including fiduciary returns, 1940: Frequency distribution of selected sources of income and loss by net income classes and by size of the selected source—Continued

#### BUSINESS PROFIT 39

[Net income classes and business profit classes in thousands of dollars]

			Busi	iness profit	classes			
Net income classes	Aggre- gate	Under 0.1	0.1 under 0.2	0.2 under 0.3	0.3 under 0.4	0.4 under 0.5	0.5 under 1	1 under 2
5 under 6. 6 under 7. 7 under 8. 8 under 9. 9 under 10. 10 under 15. 15 under 20. 20 under 25. 25 under 30. 30 under 40. 40 under 50. 60 under 60. C0 under 77. 70 under 80. 80 under 90. 100 under 100. 100 under 100. 200 under 250. 250 under 300. 300 under 250. 250 under 300. 300 under 500. 500 under 500.		608 320 223 174 108 250 95 444 225 29 112 3 1 1 1 2 4	509 267 179 146 98 231 17 10 1 1 1 2 2 3 3 2 1 1 1 2 2 1	431 233 163 92 77 197 63 30 17 12 11 11 8 8 8 2 2 3 3 1 1 4 1	402 209 136 81 67 146 62 23 13 19 8 8 4 1	401 210 120 86 54 139 68 10 5 13 10 5 11 1 2	1, 650 827 487 318 254 609 202 97 43 60 37 13 3 4 4 3 2 1	2, 728 1, 508 823 474 376 8191 278 120 70 73 36 111 100 4 4 1 1 8
Total	163, 938	1, 911	1, 627	1,354	1, 174	1, 137	4, 611	7, 34
			Busine	ess profit c	lasses—Co	ntinued		
Net income classes	2 moder 2	3 under 4	4 under 5	5 under	10 under	15 under	20 under	25 under

			Busine	ss profit cl	asses—Con	tinued		
Net income classes	2 under 3	3 under 4	4 under 5	5 under 10	10 under 15	15 under 20	20 under 25	25 under 30
5 under 6	492	3, 659 1, 673 824 493 307 626 175 80 32	6. 058 2, 137 983 530 350 640 157 77 27 27	28, 798 21, 095 14, 168 9, 769 5, 675 4, 865 964 299 152 104	173 230 326 661 2, 221 12, 964 1, 505 342 136	20 37 35 36 44 1, 200 4, 211 702 154 98	6 2 6 9 12 100 572 1, 705 327 133	5 2 4 1 1 20 46 324 807 230
40 under 50	10 9 14 2 4	12 9 8 3	22 7 4 3	47 25 13 7	38 19 10 6 8	27 13 12 3 4	31 19 4 4 3	36 14 4 1 1
90 under 100 100 under 150 150 under 200 200 under 250 250 under 300 300 under 400	2	1	6 2	5 1 1 2	3 5	1 2	8 2	
400 under 500 500 under 750 750 under 1,000 1,000 and over	1	1				i		
Total	7, 253	7, 957	11,040	85, 990	18, 768	6, 607	2, 947	1,499

For footnote, see p. 40.

Individual returns with net income of \$5,000 and over, not including fiduciary returns, 1940: Frequency distribution of selected sources of income and loss by net income classes and by size of the selected source—Continued

#### BUSINESS PROFIT 39-Continued

#### [Net income classes and business profit classes in thousands of dollars]

			Busine	ess profit cl	asses—Cor	itinued		
Net income classes	30 under 40	40 under 50	50 under 75	75 under 100	100 under 250	250 under 500	500 under 1,000	1,000 and over
5 under 6 6 under 7. 7 under 8 8 under 9. 9 under 10 10 under 15 15 under 20 20 under 25 25 under 30 30 under 40 40 under 50 50 under 60 60 under 70 70 under 80 80 under 80 80 under 150 150 under 200 200 under 150 150 under 30 300 under 40 400 under 550 550 under 550 550 under 360 550 under 360 550 under 360 550 under 360 550 under 550				3 2 4 11 13 33 40 21 19 3	1 2 1 1 5 6 59 14 4	6	3	
Total	1,374	598	498	138	99	6	3	

#### BUSINESS LOSS 39

#### [Net income classes and business loss classes in thousands of dollars]

				Business l	oss classes			
Net income classes	Aggre- gate	Under 0.1	0.1 under 0.2	0.2 under 0.3	0.3 under 0.4	0.4 under 0.5	0.5 under 1	1 under 2
5 under 6. 6 under 7. 7 under 8. 8 under 9. 9 under 10. 10 under 15. 15 under 20. 20 under 25. 25 under 30. 30 under 40. 40 under 50. 50 under 60. 60 under 70. 70 under 80. 80 under 90. 90 under 100. 100 under 150. 150 under 250. 250 under 300. 300 under 400. 400 under 300. 300 under 500. 500 under 500. 500 under 500.	3, 763 2, 485 1, 746 1, 280 1, 073 3, 310 1, 709 992 632 791 508 276 205 110 73 110 72 36 24 24 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21	485 281 162 99 87 224 97 52 27 28 15 4 8 8 4 2 2 5	393 213 144 112 286 220 76 42 255 24 113 5 8 8 2 1	329 217 125 81 91 163 70 30 17 24 14 9 4 2 2 4 1 1 3	282 169 113 91 75 185 87 34 16 16 14 4 8 8 2 1 1 2 2	261 146 92 68 51 159 69 42 24 16 10 8 5 3 1	795 503 358 255 204 575 299 135 89 107 60 26 18 5 6 4 4 12 6 3 3	641 477 369 2355 202 7202 7202 111 142 78 8 56 27 17 11 11 12 29 5 2 4
1,000 and over	19, 483	1, 583	1, 369	1, 184	1, 102	955	3, 461	3, 675

For footnote, see p. 41.

Individual returns with net income of \$5,000 and over, not including fiduciary returns, 1940: Frequency distribution of selected sources of income and loss by net income classes and by size of the selected source—Continued

#### BUSINESS LOSS 30-Continued

#### [Net income classes and business loss classes in thousands of dollars]

			Busin	ess loss cla	sses—Cont	inued		
Net income classes	2 under	3 under 4	4 under 5	5 under 10	10 under 15	15 under 20	20 under 25	25 under 30
5 under 6	258 199 158 133 96 358 203 123 82 105 61 12 12 12 13 4 4 13 3 3 11 12	126 97 88 72 59 218 124 100 56 62 45 19 25 7 11 7	56 50 39 54 30 147 90 51 42 53 20 14 18 5 12 2 7	106 96 63 62 242 190 115 86 128 90 60 39 34 24 48 16 6 6 3 3 4	17 24 22 9 14 566 28 30 90 28 40 28 14 8 4 21 11 1 5 5 22	6 9 6 5 3 21 15 14 14 14 4 4 7 7 2 2 2 2 2	. 4 2 2 3 3 2 4 4 122 7 7 6 6 111 9 4 4 6 7 7 7 7 7 7 3 3 1	2 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 4 3 3 6 6 3 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
750 under 1,000 1,000 and over	i	1		i		1	2	
Total	1, 883	1, 146	726	1, 511	397	178	105	4:

			Busin	ess loss cla	sses—Cont	inued		
Net income classes	30 under 40	40 under 50	50 under 75	75 under 100	100 under 250	250 under . 500	500 under 1,000	1,000 and over
5 under 6. 6 under 7. 7 under 8. 8 under 9. 9 under 10. 10 under 15. 15 under 20. 20 under 25. 25 under 30. 30 under 40. 40 under 50. 50 under 60. 60 under 70. 70 under 80. 80 under 90. 90 under 100. 100 under 150. 150 under 250. 250 under 300. 300 under 50. 500 under 70. 70 under 50. 500 under 70. 70 under 50. 500 under 700. 70 under 500. 500 under 1.000. 1,000 and over	2 1 1 1 4 8 2 5 5 5 1 1 3 2 2 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	1 2 1 1 2 2 1 1 2 2 1 1 2 2 1 1 2 2 1 3 3 3 3	1 3 2 4 1 1 2 2 1 1 1 2 4 4 1 1 4 4	2 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 3 3 3 2 2 1 2 2	1 1 1 2 2 1 4 4 1 1 1 2 3 3 3		1	
Total	60	24	34	23	20		1	

For footnote, see p. 41.

Individual returns with net income of \$5.000 and over, not including fiduciary returns, 1940: Frequency distribution of selected sources of income and loss by net income classes and by size of the selected source—Continued

#### NET SHORT-TERM CAPITAL GAIN 20 21 40

#### [Net income classes and net short-term capital gain classes in thousands of dollars]

			Net sh	ort-term ce	pital gain	classes		
Net income classes	Aggre- gate	Under 0.1	0.1 under 0.2	0.2 under 0.3	0.3 under 0.4	0.4 under 0 5	0.5 under 1	1 under 2
under 6	10. 575	3, 056	1,662	1, 145	766 589	588 451	1. 593 1. 147	1,000 670
under 7	7. 513	2,086	1, 188 910	771 569	389 461	312	860	631
under 8	5, 819 4, 543	1, 563 1, 206	694	443	288	250	723	46
3 under 9	3, 827	967	524	386	264	203	616	43
0 under 15	11.723	2, 853	1.578	1,160	853	655	1,793	1.34
5 under 20	6.063	1, 453	776	517	396	316	924	69
20 under 25	3.517	751	447	281	223	188	572	48
25 under 30.	2, 201	430	257	180	154	132	345	28
30 upder 40	2,453	463	296	198	147	117	427	32
10 under 50	1, 291	248	130	116	72	57	215	17
50 under 60	751	152	74	65	43	32	107	10 6
30 under 70	501	106	49	48	21	29	66 35	3
70 under 80	284	58	31	24	20 8	8 12	29	2
30 under 90	232	57	26 17	13	5	3	17	1
90 under 100	133 384	30 100	34	15	15	15	52	4
100 under 150	125	29	6	7	10	4	19	. i
200 under 250	64	8	7	5	4	ŝ	7	
250 under 300	31	3	4	1	î	ĩ	4	
300 under 400	40	7	2	1	li	2	9	
400 under 500	24	8	3	i	2		2	
500 under 750	18	7	l î	1	1	3	2	
750 under 1.000	34	j	1	3			2	
1,000 and over	10	2	1				3	
Total	62, 136	15, 644	8.718	5, 960	4, 343	3, 381	9, 569	6, 83

		Ne	et short-ter	m capital g	min classes	Continu	ed	
Net income classes	2 under 3	3 under 4	4 under 5	5 under 10	10 under 15	15 under 20	20 under 25	25 under 30
5 under 6. 6 under 7. 7 under 8. 8 under 9. 9 under 10. 10 under 15. 15 under 20. 20 under 25. 25 under 30. 30 under 40. 40 under 50. 60 under 60. 80 under 60. 90 under 100. 1100 under 100. 1200 under 200. 200 under 200. 200 under 300. 300 under 500. 500 under 1,000.	362 259 197 178 151 484 317 175 113 137 88 51 34 21 1 9 6 6 6 25 12 4 2 2	165 125 100 1005 83 2899 185 102 74 93 47 25 21 12 8 6 10 6 11 1	108 87 755 62 1822 123 72 51 41 34 416 5 9 9 9 2 2 2 3 3 4	117 120 124 126 116 366 6 210 126 103 114 64 18 8 24 14 18 8 8 27 7 8 3 3 3 3	77 11 100 199 125 74 46 36 35 44 16 15 11 9 1 1	6 2 5 1 1 25 5 58 227 21 19 6 10 7 7 5 5 2 2 3 3 2 2	1 6 13 11 11 12 12 10 5 4 4 12 13 3 3 3 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	1 4 4 1 4 8 8 5 8 8 3 3 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 1 1
Total	2, 634	1, 469	940	1,741	453	206	78	45

For footnotes, see p. 41.

Individual returns with net income of \$5,000 and over, not including fiduciary returns, 1940: Frequency distribution of selected sources of income and loss by net income classes and by size of the selected source—Continued

#### NET SHORT-TERM CAPITAL GAIN 20 21 40 -Continued

#### [Net income classes and net short-term capital gain classes in thousands of dollars]

		Ne	t short-ter	m capital (	gain classes	-Continu	ed	
Net income classes	30 under 40	40 under 50	50 under 75	75 under 100	100 under 250	250 under 500	500 under 1,000	1,000 and over
5 under 6	1 1 4 5 5 2 12 6 3 3 3 1 1 2 5 5 2 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 1		2 1 2 2 2 4 1 1 2 3 3 2 1 1 1	1	2 1 1 1 2 2			
756 under 1,000 1,000 and over								
Total	57	23	25	4	12	1		

#### NET LONG-TERM CAPITAL GAIN 20 14

#### [Net income classes and net long-term capital gain classes in thousands of dollars]

		Net long-term capital gain classes								
Net income classes	Aggregate	Under 0.1	0.1 under 0.2.	0.2 under 0.3	0.3 under 0.4	0.4 under 0.5	0.5 under 1	1 under 2		
5 under 6	2, 782 1, 578 898 643 407 328 222 555 237 111 71 01 35 40	4, 014 2, 712 1, 951 1, 361 1, 182 3, 162 2, 162 421 1, 424 475 481 235 5 118 811 56 36 35 42 21 21 21 22 3 42 21 21 22 3 42 42 42 42 42 42 42 42 42 42 42 42 42	1, 946 1, 392 1, 041 738 615 1, 703 741 403 244 237 119 59 59 51 11 29 24 111 29 6 6 1 2 2 1	1, 249 806 633 443 417 1, 130 577 305 181 184 89 89 52 255 15 19 12 17 7 7 3 3	836 604 409 359 302 791 409 225 136 163 71 35 20 20 4 8 8 13 6 6 4 11 1	602 447 303 232 189 616 616 318 170 127 108 61 31 23 3 16 5 12 12 12 12 12	1, 602 1, 223 854 718 594 1, 860 970 542 337 381 185 5 36 42 20 54 23 4 2 2 2 2 4 2 2	1, 133 894 674 555 477 1, 528 491 288 35; 200 12: 77 74 44 111 6 6		
Total	1— <del>—</del>	18, 181	9, 393	6, 168	4, 479	3, 275	9, 618	7, 78		

For footnotes, see p. 41.

Individual returns with net income of \$5,000 and over not including fiduciary returns, 1940: Frequency distribution of selected sources of income and ioss by net income classes and by size of the selected source—Continued

STATISTICS OF INCOME FOR 1940-PART 1

#### NET LONG-TERM CAPITAL GAIN 20 24 -- Continued

[Net income classes and net long-term capital gain classes in thousands of dollars]

		N	et long-terr	n capital g	ain classes-	-Continue	:d	
Net income classes	2 under	3 under 4	4 under 5	5 under 10	10 under 15	15 under 20	20 under 25	25 under 30
under 6	446	274	153	153	9	1		1
under 7	332	205	118	188	9	4	1	
under 8	320	168	108	200	10	2	2	
under 9	271	158	98	202	13	3		
under 10	213	130	102	200	15	7 24	1 5	
0 under 15	747	396	270 150	709   414	229 224	24 96	2	
5 under 20	302 222	231 150	118	240	117	71	37	
0 under 25 5 under 30	158	107	73	204	85	57	44	1
o under 40	159	128	88	219	104	75	35	3
0 under 50	122	64	38	153	78	37	33	2
0 under 60	56	41	31	87	39	23	25	2
0 under 70	39	22	16	63	25	27	17	1
0 under 80	25	18	10	43	25	14	5	
0 under 90	20	11	9	22	10	9	2 10	
0 under 100	10	4	6	18	13	4 22	10	
00 under 150	25	26	20	49 18	23	1L	. 6	
50 under 200	14	10	3 4	9	8	4	41	
200 under 250 250 under 300	6 5	1	5	13	2		4	
300 under 400	3	$\hat{2}$	3	5	ĩ	2	l il	
00 under 500	3	ĩ	· ·	ĭ	i	1		
600 under 750				2	1	1	1	
'50 under 1.000								
,000 and over			1	3			2	
Total	3, 588	2, 151	1, 424	3, 215	1,047	495	249	16
		N	et long-ter	m capital g	ain classes	—Continu	ed	
Net income classes	30 under 40	40 under 50	50 under 75	75 under 100	100 under 250	250 under 500	500 under 1,000	1,000 and over
						l		
			1					
under 7			1					
i under 7								
i under 7 7 under 8 3 under 9	<u>i</u>	1	1					
i under 7 7 under 8 3 under 9 ) under 10	1 2		1					
i under 7	1 2 1 2	1	1					
1 under 7 7 under 8 8 under 9 0 under 10 10 under 15 15 under 20 20 under 25	1 2 1 2 2 4	1	1 1 2					
3 under 7. 7 under 8. 7 under 9. 8 under 10. 10 under 15. 15 under 20. 20 under 25. 25 under 30.	1 2 1 2 4 7	1 	1 1 2	1				
i under 7 7 under 8 3 under 9 0 under 10 10 under 15 5 under 20 20 under 25 25 under 30	1 2 1 2 4 7 26	1 2 2 2 5	1 2 1 1 1	1				
i under 7 7 under 8 8 under 9 9 under 10 10 under 15 15 under 20 20 under 25 25 under 30 80 under 50	1 2 1 2 4 7 26	1 2 2 5 19	1 1 2 2	1				
i under 7 / ' under 8 . . under 9 . . under 10 . . under 15 . . if under 25 . . 20 under 25 . . 55 under 30 . . 30 under 40 . . 0 under 50 . . 50 under 60 .	1 2 1 2 4 7 26 41 33	1 2 2 5 19 25	1 1 2 					
under 7 under 8 under 9 under 10 0 under 15 5 under 25 20 under 25 25 under 30 0 under 40 0 under 55 30 under 60	1 2 1 2 4 7 26 41 33 29	1 2 2 5 19 25 20 25 20 25	1 2 2 1 1 4 4 13 11 11	2	2			
under 7 under 8 under 9 under 10 0 under 15. 5 under 20 20 under 25 25 under 30 30 under 40 0 under 50 50 under 60	1 2 1 2 4 7 26 41 33 29	2 2 2 5 19 25 20 15	1 2 2 1 1 4 13 11 15 15 15	2 2	2			
under 7 under 8 under 9 under 10 0 under 15 .5 under 25 .5 under 25 .5 under 30 .0 under 40 .0 under 50 .0 under 60 .0 under 60 .0 under 60 .0 under 70 .0 under 80	1 2 1 2 4 7 26 41 33 29 17	1 2 2 5 19 25 20 15 15	1 2 2 1 1 4 4 13 11 11	2				
under 7. 'under 8. 'under 8. 'under 9. 'under 10. 'under 15. '5 under 25. '5 under 25. '25 under 30. '30 under 40. '30 under 40. '50 under 60. '50 under 70. '70 under 70. '70 under 70. '70 under 90.	1 2 1 2 4 7 26 41 33 29 17 11	2 2 2 5 19 25 20 15	1 1 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	2 2 2 6 2 31	3 1 30			
under 7 / under 8	1 2 1 2 4 7 26 41 33 29 17 11 8	2 2 5 19 25 20 15 15 15 15 8 155	1 1 1 4 13 11 15 22 15 40 17	2 2 6 2 31 13	3 1 30 30			
i under 7.7 7 under 8. 8 under 9 9 under 10 10 under 15. 15 under 20 20 under 25. 25 under 30. 30 under 40. 40 under 50. 50 under 60. 50 under 70. 70 under 80. 80 under 90. 90 under 100. 100 under 100.	1 2 1 2 4 7 26 41 33 29 17 11 18 19 8	2 2 2 5 5 19 25 25 20 15 15 15 15 7 7 3 3	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	2 2 2 6 2 31	3 1 30 30 25			
i under 7 7 7 under 8 8 8 1 under 9 1 under 10 1 under 10 1 15 1 15 under 20 1 15 1 16 1 16 1 17 1 17 1 17 1 17 1 17	1 2 1 2 4 7 26 41 33 29 17 11 8 19 8	2 2 2 5 5 19 25 20 15 15 15 5 8 15 7 7 3 1 1 1	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	2 2 6 2 31 13 4	3 1 30 30 25 15			
under 7.7 7 under 8. 8 under 9 9 under 10 10 under 15. 15 under 20. 20 under 25. 25 under 30. 30 under 40. 30 under 40. 30 under 50. 50 under 60. 50 under 70. 70 under 70. 70 under 80. 80 under 90. 90 under 100. 100 under 150 100 under 150 200 under 200. 200 under 30.	1 2 1 2 4 7 26 41 33 29 17 11 8 19 8 5 4	2 2 2 5 5 19 25 200 15 15 15 15 7 7 7 3 1 1 1 1 1	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	2 2 6 2 31 13 4	3 1 30 30 25	11		
under 7 under 8 under 9 under 10 under 10 under 15 5 under 25 5 under 25 5 under 25 5 under 30 0 under 40 0 under 40 0 under 60 0 under 70 0 under 80 0 under 10 0 under 30 0 under 30 0 under 30 0 under 30 0 under 50	1 2 1 2 4 4 7 7 26 41 33 3 29 117 11 8 8 5 4 4 1 2 2	2 2 2 5 19 25 5 20 15 15 8 8 15 5 7 7 3 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	2 2 6 2 31 13 4	3 1 30 30 25 15 8	11 15		
i under 7.7 7 under 8. 8 under 9 9 under 10 10 under 15. 15 under 20. 20 under 25. 25 under 30. 30 under 40. 40 under 50. 50 under 60. 50 under 60. 50 under 70. 70 under 80. 80 under 90. 90 under 100. 100 under 100. 200 under 200. 200 under 30. 300 under 300. 300 under 300.	1 2 1 2 4 4 7 7 26 4 4 1 3 3 3 2 9 9 1 7 1 1 8 8 5 4 1 1 2	2 2 2 5 5 19 25 200 15 15 15 15 7 7 7 3 1 1 1 1 1	1 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	2 2 6 2 31 13 4	3 1 30 30 25 15 8	11 15 10		
5 under 6. 6 under 7. 7 under 8. 8 under 9. 0 under 10. 10 under 15. 5 under 20. 20 under 25. 20 under 30. 30 under 40. 40 under 60. 60 under 60. 60 under 70. 70 under 80. 80 under 100. 100 under 150. 200 under 200. 200 under 300. 300 under 400. 400 under 500. 500 under 500.	1 2 1 2 4 4 7 7 26 4 4 1 3 3 29 11 8 8 19 8 5 4 4 1 1 2	2 2 2 5 19 25 5 200 15 15 8 8 15 5 7 7 3 3 1 1 1 3 3	1 1 4 4 13 3 11 15 5 22 2 15 2 2 2 1 1 1 1	2 2 6 2 31 13 4	3 1 30 30 25 15 8	11 15 10 4	6	
6 under 7. 7 under 8. 8 under 9. 0 under 10. 10 under 15. 15 under 20. 20 under 25. 25 under 30. 30 under 40. 40 under 50. 50 under 60. 50 under 50. 500 under 50.	1 2 1 2 4 4 7 7 26 4 4 1 3 3 29 11 8 8 19 8 5 4 4 1 1 2	2 2 2 5 19 25 5 20 15 15 8 8 15 5 7 7 3 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	1 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	2 2 6 2 31 13 4	3 1 30 30 25 15 8	11 15 10		

127

Total.... For footnotes, see p. 41. 145

170

Individual returns with net income of \$5,000 and over, not including fiduciary returns, 1940: Frequency distribution of selected sources of income and loss by net income classes and by size of the selected source—Continued

#### NET LONG-TERM CAPITAL LOSS 20 24

[Net income classes and net long-term capital loss classes in thousands of dollars]

			Net le	ng-term ca	pital loss c	lasses		
Net income classes	Aggregate	Under 0.1	0.1 under 0.2	0.2 under 0.3	0.3 under 0.4	0.4 under 0.5	0.5 under	1 under 2
5 under 6	64 71 39 25 12	2,865 2,012 1,485 1,075 856 2,437 1,152 553 346 420 181 102 7,75 39 35 18 48 22 2 2 2 2 1	2.047 1.411 948 742 586 1.735 822 419 215 235 140 78 37 7 9 28 10 0	1, 572 1, 038 797 619 476 1, 415 678 350 205 216 117 58 41 17 22 26 6 2 1 1 1	1, 215 799 606 477 373 1, 137 532 296 167 158 95 95 55 4 4 22 2 1	936 682 486 387 324 962 438 244 152 181 88 8 50 311 12 14 8 8 20 6 6 4 4 4	2, 941 2, 129 1, 564 1, 312 1, 049 3, 250 1, 522 883 567 605 327 173 88 45 40 25 86 67 7 3 1	2, 154 1, 684 1, 397 1, 180 1, 030 3, 206 1, 153 1, 1028 0077 662 3099 309 234 124 86 55 50 84 222 7 5 9
Total	100, 531	13, 738	9, 523	7, 677	6, 019	5, 031	16, 652	15, 650

		N	let long-ter	m capital l	oss classes-	-Continuo	ed	
Net income classes	2 under 3	3 under 4	4 under 5	5 under 10	10 under 15	15 under 20	20 under 25	25 under 30
5 under 6	902	430	258	412	101	48	10	8
under 7	734	382	224	395	102	39	18	15
under 8	609	339	189	409	89	33	12	! (
3 under 9	494	301	174	348	68	38	15	13
under 10	394	271	173	332	86	27	17	7
10 under 15	1,591	846	581	1,140	368	160	65	41
15 under 20	923	565	381	824	287	108	60	22
20 under 25	573	365	251	617	193	73	55	25
25 under 30	374	225	163	396	159	60	55	20
30 under 40	451	285	172	544	227	97	49	33
10 under 50	233	173 86	115 86	324 207	168	58	32	27
50 under 60	120 85	54	59	1207 120	85 66	38	17	14
30 under 70	50 54	34	28	94	41	29 23	14	1
70 under 80 30 under 90	38	24	25	57	28	19	14	
30 under 90	25	25	20	44	20	19	8	(
100 under 150	61	62	35	116	50 50	37	22	
150 under 200	13	20	6	46	14	12	9	14
200 under 250	10	10	7 7	6	2	4	2	į
250 under 300	107	l i	5	10	ā	4	2	
300 under 400	6	5	0	7	6	1 1	5	
100 under 500	1 2	1 4	2	8	2	2	3	
500 under 750	l î	1 1		4		ร์	9	
750 under 1.000	l î	l î	1	i		1	1 1	
1,000 and over	î			4	1	1		:
Total	7,702	4, 509	2, 958	6, 465	2, 169	926	495	28

For footnotes, see p. 41.

Individual returns with net income of \$5,000 and over, not including fiduciary returns, 1940: Frequency distribution of selected sources of income and loss by net income classes and by size of the selected source—Continued

#### NET LONG-TERM CAPITAL LOSS 10 14-Continued

#### [Net income classes and net long-term capital loss classes in thousands of dollars]

		N	et long-ter	m capital l	oss classes-	Continue	d	
Net income classes	30 under 40	40 under 50	50 under 75	75 under 100	100 under 250	250 under 500	500 under 1,000	1,000 and over
5 under 6	10 4 4 4 9 47 7 31 24 25 41 18 8 20 14 5 14 12 4 1 1 1 1 1 2	10 4 2 7 3 14 16 15 9 11 10 0 7 7 7 7 3 8 8 8 3 6 6 7	5 5 2 7 7 3 4 4 200 18 9 9 7 15 177 13 9 6 8 8 2 2 7 11 10 0 3 2 2 5 5 2 2 2	2 1 1 1 1 2 4 4 4 1 3 7 7 2 2 3 2 2 1 1 2 2 1 1 1 1 2 2 1 1 1 1 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 1	1 1 3 2 5 5 5 5 5 4 4 1 1 1 4 2 2 2 2 1 1	1 1		
Total	303	148	180	44	51	4	- 1	

#### Footnotes for text tables

(Facsimiles of Forms 1040, 1040A, and 1041, to which references are made, appear on pages 261-279)

- <sup>1</sup> For taxable fiduciary returns, the net income used for classification and tabulation is the net income taxable to the fiduciary after distribution to beneficiaries (item 17, page 1, Form 1041).
- <sup>2</sup>The alternative tax is reported on (1) returns with net long-term capital gain if such alternative tax is less than the sum of the normal tax and surtax computed on net income including net long-term capital gain, and (2) returns with net long-term capital loss if such alternative tax is greater than the sum of the normal tax and surtax computed on net income after deducting net long-term capital loss.
- <sup>3</sup> Defense tax is 10 percent of the total income tax before deducting any credit, but not in excess of 10 percent of the amount by which the net income exceeds such income tax.
- 4 Returns with no net income due to net longterm capital loss, on which the partial tax computed on net income before the deduction of net longterm capital loss exceeds 30 percent of the net longterm capital loss.
- <sup>5</sup> Exemptions and credits exceed net income. A negligible number of nontaxable individual returns in net income classes of \$6,000 and over are tabulated with taxable returns.
- o Total deductions equal or exceed total income.
- <sup>7</sup> Dividends on share accounts in Federal savings and loan associations and additional contributions on returns with alternative tax due to net longterm capital loss.
- 8 Less than one-hundredth of 1 percent.
- Not computed.
- 10 Deficit.
- 11 Aggregate of normal tax, surtax, alternative tax, and defense tax.
- 13 See text, pages 12-13.

- <sup>13</sup> An unequal number of separate returns is the result of (1) use of the sample as the basis for estimating data for returns in net income classes under \$5,000, when the net income of one spouse is under \$5,000 and that of the other spouse is \$5.000 or over (see pages 12-13), and (2) certain cases in which incomplete or inaccurate answers to questions 4 and 5 on page 4, Form 1040, and on page 1, Form 1040A, make it impossible to identify the returns as separate returns.
- 44 Excludes dividends received through partnerships and fiduciaties and dividends received on share accounts in Federal savings and loan associations.
- is Unlike previous years, "Interest on bank deposits, notes, mortgages, and corporation bonds" excludes interest on partially tax-exempt Government obligations reported on returns with net income under \$5,000.
- 16 Interest on partially tax-exempt Government obligations received from United States savings bonds and Treasury bonds owned in excess of \$5,000, and obligations of instrumentalities of the United States other than those issued under the Federal Farm Loan Act or such Act as amended, including amounts received through partnerships and fiduciaries. For the first time, such interest reported on cturns with net income under \$5,000, is included in the amounts shown.
- 11 Partnership profit or loss, as reported on the income tax return of the partner, excludes (1) interest on partially tax-exempt Government obligations, (2) net gain or loss from sales or exchanges of capital assets, each of which is reported in its respective source of income, and (3) dividends on share accounts in Federal savings and loan associations which are reported in "Other income." Charitable contributions and not operating loss deduction, not being deductible in computing partnership profit or

#### GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS AND INTEREST

In the basic tables 9 and 10, Government obligations are classified as wholly tax-exempt or partially tax-exempt depending on the taxability of the interest thereon. Wholly tax-exempt Government obligations are securities the interest on which is wholly exempt from the normal tax and surtax of the Federal income tax. Partially tax-exempt Government obligations are securities the interest on which is exempt from the normal tax of the Federal income tax but is subject to surtax. In case of partially tax-exempt Treasury bonds and United States savings bonds, interest derived from \$5,000 aggregate principal amount owned by any one holder is exempt from the surtax

#### Footnotes for text tables-Continued

loss, are reported on the partner's income tax return in "Contributions" and "Other deductions," respectively.

18 Income from fiduciaries, as reported on the return of the beneficiary, excludes (1) interest on partially tax-exempt Government obligations, (2) net gain or loss from sales or exchanges of capitial assets received from common trust funds, each of which is reported in its respective source of income, and (3) dividends on share accounts in Federal savings and loan associations which are reported in "Other income." The net operating loss deduction, not being deductible in computing income from common trust funds, is reported on the beneficiary's return in "Other deductions"; however, the net operating loss deduction is deducted from all other fiduciary income reported on the beneficiary's return.

- 19 Current year business profit or loss. The net operating loss deduction is reported in "Other deductions."
- nº The tabulated amounts of "Net short-term capital gain," "Net long-term capital gain," and "Net long-term capital loss "include each participant's share of net capital gain or loss to be taken into account from partnerships and common trust funds. The term "Capital assets" means property held by the taxpayer (whether or not connected with his trade or business), but not (1) stock in trade or other property which would properly be included in inventory if on hand at the close of the taxable year, (2) property held primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of trade or business, and (3) property used in trade or business of a character which is subject to the allowance for depreciation.
- <sup>21</sup> "Short-term" applies to capital assets held 18 months or less.
- 22 Not short-term capital loss of preceding taxable year deducted is the amount allowed under the net short-term loss carry-over provision of the Internal Revenue Code. The amount carried over cannot exceed the net income for the year in which the loss is sustained, and can be deducted only to the extent of the net short-term capital gain of the current year.
- 22 Current year net short-term capital gain before deducting net short-term capital loss of preceding taxable year. This amount would have been reported for computation of net income if the net short-term capital loss of preceding taxable year had not been deductible.
- ""Long-term" applies to capital assets held over 18 months. Losses, from worthless stocks and bonds which are capital assets, are deducted in computing "Net long-term capital gain" and "Net long-term capital loss."
- 25 Net gain or loss from sales of property used in trade or business of a character which is subject to the allowance for depreciation.
- 26 Include each partner's share of charitable contributions of partnerships.
- <sup>27</sup> Excludes amounts reported in schedule for (1) income from rents and royalties, and (2) profit or loss from business.

- 28 Losses from fire, storm, shipwreck, or other casualty, or from theft, not compensated for by insurance or otherwise.
- <sup>29</sup> Include net operating loss deduction reported on Form 1040, and losses from fire, storm, etc., and bad debts, reported on Form 1040A.
- 20 Net income less deficit.
- <sup>31</sup> For returns with net income under \$5,000, the number of returns on which specific sources of income and deductions are reported is available only for "Salaries and other compensation." and "Dividends from domestic and foreign corporations." For returns with net income of \$5,000 and over, the number of returns is available for each specific source of income and deduction and for the information item. "Net short-term capital loss of preceding taxable year deducted."
- 37 The number of returns with net income under \$5,000 is not available, and, therefore, is not included in the total of this column. For "Business profit" and "Business loss" these figures represent the number of returns on which a net business profit or less was reported for the computation of net income or deflett. Consequently, because of returns on which data for two or more businesses are reported, these figures do not reflect the number of businesses in which sole proprietors are engaged.
- 33 Less than \$500
- 34 Percent which net income less deficit is of total income.
- <sup>28</sup> If two or more businesses in different industrial activities are reported on one return, each business is counted sonarately, with the result that the number of businesses exceeds the number of returns showing business profit or loss for the computation of net income or deficit. However, if two or more businesses in the same industrial activity are reported on one return, the financial data are combined and counted as one business.
- 36 The compensation of the proprietor and the net operating loss deduction are not allowable deductions in computing current year business profit or loss (see item 11, schedule D, and instruction 18, Form 1040).
- 37 Data are included from schedule of farm income and expenses, Form 1040F, if submitted with the return.
- <sup>38</sup> Data from (1) incomplete or fragmentary schedules showing fewer than the following items: "'Total receipts," ''Total deductions," and "Net profit or loss"; and (2) businesses for which no schedules are submitted.
- \*For "Business profit" and "Business loss" these figures represent the number of returns on which a net profit or loss from business was reported for the computation of net income or deficit. Consequently, because of returns on which data for two or more businesses are reported, these figures do not reflect the number of businesses in which sole proprietors are engaged.
- 40 Net short-term capital gain reported on Form 1040, item 10(a), included in total income and net income.

as well as the normal tax. For the taxable year 1940, the wholly tax-exempt obligations to be reported on the returns are (1) obligations of a State, Territory, or political subdivision thereof, the District of Columbia, and United States possessions, (2) obligations issued under the Federal Farm Loan Act, or such act as amended, and (3) obligations of the United States issued on or before September 1, 1917, Treasury bills, Treasury certificates of indebtedness, and Treasury notes. Partially tax-exempt obligations to be reported are (1) United States savings bonds and Treasury bonds, and (2) obligations of instrumentalities of the United States other than those issued under the Federal Farm Loan Act, or such act as amended.

Basic table 9 presents data for the interest received from both wholly and partially tax-exempt obligations and the amount of such obligations owned, as reported in schedule B on individual returns, Form 1040, with net income of \$5,000 and over. Basic table 10 presents similar information reported in schedule B on taxable fiduciary returns with balance income of \$5,000 and over. Both tables show the amount of wholly and partially tax-exempt obligations owned on the last day of the taxable year, and of interest received or accrued during the year, segregated by nature of obligation, tabulated by net income classes. The interest received includes that received through partnerships and fiduciaries, and the bond holdings include the beneficiary's and partner's pro rata share of bonds held by those entities. The amounts tabulated under partially tax-exempt interest on United States savings bonds and Treasury bonds, in basic tables 9 and 10. include the tax-exempt interest received on a principal amount not in excess of \$5,000, which is exempt from surtax as well as normal tax.

Basic tables 9 and 10 do not present a complete summary of the Government obligations owned by individuals or of the interest therefrom in view of the fact that (a) no information is included from individual returns with net income under \$5,000, fiduciary returns with balance income under \$5,000, or partnership returns; and (b) schedule B from which the data are taken being in large part an information schedule, the data reported therein are undoubtedly incomplete. Occasionally neither the principal amount owned nor the interest received is reported. Interest for which no corresponding principal amount is shown may be reported in the schedule; or the principal amount may be reported for which no corresponding interest is shown. Bond holdings vary during the year, and the amount of bonds reported as of the end of the year may, therefore, include bonds on which no interest was received, and similarly the interest reported may include interest on bonds which were sold prior to the end of the year.

The interest on partially tax-exempt securities owned in excess of \$5,000, subject to surtax, as reported by individuals on line 5, Form 1040, is shown in basic table 7-A, and such interest reported by tax-able fiduciaries on line 4, Form 1041, is shown in basic table 7-B. It is not possible to reconcile the partially tax-exempt interest tabulated in basic tables 7-A and 7-B with that in basic tables 9 and 10, respectively, because each is secured from a different source on the return.

#### NUMBER OF INDIVIDUAL RETURNS BY COUNTIES, CITIES, AND TOWNS

A mimeograph bulletin showing the number of individual income tax returns for 1940, by counties, cities, and towns having a population of 1,000 and over, entitled "Number of Individual Income Tax Returns for 1940 by States, Counties, Cities, and Towns," was issued

in June, 1942. Copies may be secured from the Bureau of Internal Revenue, Washington, D. C., upon request. Information concerning net income and tax liability on individual income tax returns is not tabulated for smaller civil divisions than States and Territories.

#### COMPARABILITY OF STATISTICS

Previous reports.—Changes in the provisions of the revenue acts and the Internal Revenue Code as amended, under which returns for given years are filed, interfere with the comparability of the statistical data over a period of years. The major provisions of the Federal tax laws from 1913 to 1940 are summarized on pages 245-251. The changes in law with regard to 1940 income are set forth briefly on page 3.

Revisions of the income tax return forms to incorporate changes in the law may eliminate, combine, or introduce items which make it impracticable or impossible to present comparable data from year to year. When such a change occurs in a tabulated item, a statement regarding the comparability with previous reports, including any available information by which to appraise the change, is given in the text relating to that item and in a footnote attached to the amount affected. Administrative changes may affect the returns available for statistics. The returns from which data are tabulated are described in the section of this report entitled "Returns included." Revisions in the method of tabulating are indicated in connection with the data affected.

Tax collections.—The total income tax liability reported on individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns differs from the amount of Federal income tax collected from these sources for any given period. Several factors are responsible for the difference, among which are the following:

1. Audit of the returns may change the amount of income tax

liability.

2. Income and profits taxes paid to foreign countries or possessions of the United States may be included in deductions from gross income or applied with certain limitations as a credit against the Federal income tax. The amount of such taxes reported by the taxpaver as a credit against the Federal income tax is not deducted from the income tax liability shown in this report. (Aggregate amounts of this credit, available only for individual returns for the years 1925 through 1930, appear on page 9 of Statistics of Income for 1930.)

3. The credit for income taxes paid at source on tax-free covenant bonds is not deducted from the income tax liability of individual

returns and taxable fiduciary returns shown herein.

4. For a fiscal year return on which the tax is paid in four equal installments, the total tax may not be collected during the year in which the return is filed.

5. Delays in tax payment due to financial embarrassment, death, liquidation of business, or any other cause, result in the classification of such taxes as "back taxes," the collection of which is made after the close of the year in which such taxes are due. For similar reasons, certain amounts are uncollectible.

6. Collections in any given period include such interest and penalty items as are received in connection with delinquent payments of taxes.

7. Tabulations in this report exclude data reported on individual income tax returns, Forms 1040C, 1040D, 1040NB, and 1040NB-a,

whereas collections include taxes on these returns. Forms 1040C and 1040D are used for departing aliens. Forms 1040NB and 1040NB-a are for nonresident aliens not engaged in trade or business within the United States and not having an office or place of business

STATISTICS OF INCOME FOR 1940-PART 1

Mimeograph bulletin.—The number of individual returns by States. counties, cities, and towns is a count made from records maintained in the offices of the collectors of internal revenue, while the number tabulated in Statistics of Income is obtained from records of the Income Tax Unit, Bureau of Internal Revenue.

#### HISTORICAL DATA

CAPITAL GAINS, 1922-1940; CAPITAL LOSSES, 1924-1940

The revenue acts in effect from January 1, 1922, through December 31, 1933, provide for the special taxation of the net gain resulting from sales or exchanges of capital assets. The term "Capital assets" means property held by the taxpayer more than two years (whether or not connected with his trade or business), but not (1) property held for personal use, (2) stock in trade or other property which would properly be included in the inventory of the taxpaver if on hand at the close of the taxable year, or (3) property held primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of trade or business. The revenue acts in effect from January 1, 1924, through December 31. 1933, provide for a tax credit on account of the net loss resulting from sales or exchanges of such capital assets.

In presenting these data in Statistics of Income, "Capital net gain" is tabulated as such and included in "Total income" and "Net income" for returns with net income for the years 1922 through 1933, and for returns with no net income, is tabulated and included in "Total

income" and "Deficit" for years 1928 through 1933.

"Capital net loss," for which a tax credit of 12½ percent is taken, is not tabulated and is not taken into account in computing "Total deductions" or "Net income" for 1924 through 1933. "Capital net loss" when reported by the taxpayer as a deduction (a) in computing "Net income" is included in "Other deductions" for 1924 through 1928, and in "Net loss from sales of real estate, stocks, bonds, etc.," for 1929 through 1933, and (b) in computing "Deficit" is included in "Other deductions" for 1928 and in "Net loss from sales of real estate, stocks, bonds, etc.," for 1929 through 1933. "Capital net loss," not taken into account by the taxpayer as a deduction in computing "Net income," and for which no credit of 12½ percent is taken, is not included in "Total deductions" for 1924 through 1933. Such "Capital net loss" not taken into account in computing "Deficit" is not included in "Total deductions" for 1928 through 1931, but for 1932 and 1933 is included in "Net loss from sales of real estate, stocks, bonds, etc.," and both "Total deductions" and "Deficit" are adjusted to correspond.

Under the provisions of the Revenue Acts of 1934 and 1936 (in effect January 1, 1934, through December 31, 1937), the definition of capital assets is expanded to include assets of the taxpayer, regardless of time held, instead of assets held over two years. Certain percentages of gain or loss recognized upon such sales or exchanges are taken into account in computing net income. These percentages, which vary according to the period for which the assets have been held, are as follows: 100 percent for capital assets held not over 1 year, 80 percent

for capital assets held over 1 year but not over 2 years, 60 percent for capital assets held over 2 years but not over 5 years. 40 percent for capital assets held over 5 years but not over 10 years, and 30 per cent for capital assets held over 10 years. The deduction for net capital loss, after the percentages are applied and after subtracting the percentage of capital gains to be recognized in computing net income. is limited to \$2,000, or the amount of the net capital loss, whichever is

The net income tabulated as reported on individual returns for the taxable years 1934 through 1937 includes net capital gain and loss computed in accordance with the limitations stated in the preceding paragraph. It is not possible, by using the net capital gain and net capital loss on the returns for these years, to adjust the "Total income," "Total deductions," and "Net income" so that they will be comparable with these items as tabulated for prior years. Moreover. net capital gain or loss reported on individual returns for 1934 through 1937 is not comparable with "Profit or loss from sale of real estate, stocks, and bonds, etc.," "Capital net gain," or "Capital net loss" reported on returns for prior years. The net capital gain and loss reported on fiduciary income tax returns, Form 1041, for 1937 and subsequent years are computed according to the limitations which apply to the individual returns.

Under the provisions of the Revenue Act of 1938 and of the Internal Revenue Code, the definition of capital assets is the same as that under the provisions of the Revenue Acts of 1934 and 1936, except that there is excluded property used in trade or business of a character which is subject to the allowance for depreciation. The net gain (or loss) from the sales or exchanges of property subject to the allowance for depreciation is tabulated as "Net gain (or loss) from sales of prop-

erty other than capital assets."

The percentages of the gain or loss recognized upon the sales or exchanges of capital assets taken into account in computing net income for 1938 through 1940 differ from the percentages of gain or loss recognized on such sales for 1934 through 1937, and the periods of time for which the assets were held are reduced from five to three. The percentages, varying according to the time the assets were held, are: 100 percent for capital assets held 18 months or less, 66% percent for capital assets held over 18 months but not over 24 months, 50 percent for capital assets held over 24 months. The net capital gain or loss is divided into short-term and long-term. Net short-term gain or loss is that from the sales or exchanges of capital assets held 18 months or less, and net long-term gain or loss is that from the sales or exchanges of capital assets held over 18 months. Net short-term gain, net long-term gain, and net long-term loss may be taken into account in computing current year net income. Net short-term loss. however, may not be taken into account in computing current year net income.

Net short-term capital loss, sustained in any taxable year beginning on and after January 1, 1938, may not be deducted from income in the year in which the loss is sustained, but may be carried to the next succeeding taxable year and treated as a short-term capital loss (section 117(e) of the Internal Revenue Code as amended). The amount carried over cannot exceed net income for the year in which the loss is sustained, and can be deducted only to the extent of the net shortterm capital gain of the year in which the deduction is permitted. The amount of net short-term capital loss deducted under this provision is first reported on returns for 1939 and tabulated in Statistics of Income for 1939. In the 1940 report, the deduction on account of the net short-term capital loss carry-over provision is tabulated as "Net short-term capital loss of preceding taxable year deducted" and is presented in all tables showing sources of income and deductions.

In comparing the net short-term capital gain included in total income and net income on returns for 1939 and 1940 with that on returns for 1938, it should be noted that the amounts for 1939 and 1940 are after the deduction for net short-term capital loss of preceding taxable year, whereas, for 1938, such a deduction was not allowed. The information item "Current year net short-term capital gain" for 1940 is comparable with "Net short-term capital gain before deducting prior year net short-term capital loss," as published in Statistics of Income for 1939, and "Net short-term capital gain" as published for 1938. The information item "Net short-term capital loss of preceding taxable year deducted" for 1940 is comparable with "Prior year net short-term capital loss deducted," published for the first time in 1939. Net long-term capital gain and loss for 1938 through 1940 are comparable.

The amounts of net short-term capital gain and net long-term capital gain and loss shown on the returns and tabulated for 1938 through 1940 are not comparable with those for net capital gain and loss for the income years 1934 through 1937. For income years 1938 through 1940, the net short-term capital gain and net long-term capital gain or loss include amounts received from "Common trust funds" and partnerships, whereas, for years 1934 through 1937, net capital gain or loss excludes amounts from such sales received through fiduciaries and partnerships. It is not possible, by using the net short-term capital gain and the net long-term capital gain or loss, to adjust "Total income," "Total deductions," and "Net income" for 1938 through 1940 so that they will be comparable with these items tabulated for the income years 1934 through 1937.

A summary of the provisions of the Revenue Act of 1921 and subsequent acts, affecting the tax on capital gains, and the provisions of the Revenue Act of 1924 and subsequent acts, affecting the tax credit

on capital losses, is found on pages 248-249.

#### INDIVIDUAL RETURNS AND RETURNS OF FIDUCIARIES, 1913-1940

A résumé of the individual income tax returns with net income, including returns of fiduciaries, for each year since the inception of the present period of income taxation, showing number of returns, not income, and tax, by net income classes, and sources of income and deductions, is presented in the following tables. Available data for individual returns with no net income for 1928 through 1940 are also shown in the tables.

For 1913 through 1915, the number of returns, net income, and tax are secured from annual reports of the Commissioner of Internal Revenue. The net income for each of these years is estimated from the number of returns and the average net income for each net income class. Information for 1916 through 1936 is from returns, Forms 1040 and 1040A, filed by individuals and fiduciaries. Information for 1937 through 1940 is from returns, Forms 1040 and 1040A, filed by individuals: taxable returns, Forms 1041, filed by fiduciaries for

estates and trusts; and returns, Forms 1040, incorrectly filed for estates and trusts (except that for 1938 through 1940 there is excluded information on nontaxable returns with net income, Form 1040, incorrectly filed for estates and trusts).

The number of returns, net income, and tax for individual income tax returns with net income, including returns of fiduciaries for 1930 through 1940 by States and Territories, are tabulated in basic table 8, pages 160–185.

Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income, 1913-1940: Number of returns, net income, tax before tax credits, tax credits, and tax; and individual returns with no net income, 1928-1940: Number of returns, and deficit 1

#### [Money figures in thousands of dollars]

		Individus	ıl returns an	d return	s of fiduc	ciaries, with no	et income?	
Year		Numb	er of returns	3			Tax before	tax credits
104			Non-	Percent	of total	Net income		}
	Total	Taxable	taxable	Tax- able	Non- taxable		Normal tax	Surtax
1913 8 1914	357, 598 357, 515 336, 652 437, 036 3, 472, 890 4, 425, 114 5, 332, 760 7, 289, 944 6, 662, 176 6, 787, 481 7, 698, 321 4, 171, 051 4, 171, 051 5, 255, 924 3, 273, 592 4, 173, 450 3, 273, 592 4, 173, 450 3, 173, 550 1, 134, 149 6, 350, 148 6, 203, 657 7, 633, 199 7, 633, 199	362, 970 2, 707, 234 3, 392, 803 4, 231, 181 5, 518, 310 3, 589, 985 3, 681, 249 4, 270, 121 4, 489, 698 2, 470, 990 2, 440, 941 2, 523, 603 2, 458, 049 2, 037, 645 1, 525, 546 1, 936, 095 2, 110, 890 2, 110, 890 3, 371, 443 3, 048, 545 3, 959, 297	74, 066 765, 656 1, 032, 251 1, 101, 579 1, 741, 634 3, 072, 191 3, 106, 232 3, 423, 200 2, 880, 090 1, 660, 895 1, 667, 102 1, 660, 606 1, 517, 788 1, 586, 278 1, 669, 864 1, 700, 378 1, 904, 335 1, 975, 818 2, 298, 500 2, 464, 122 2, 552, 301 2, 978, 705 3, 155, 112 3, 673, 902	83 78 77 70 76 54 55 60 60 60 60 60 59 61 55 47 44 44 46 53 53 53 49 49	53 56 54 47 47 51 48	3, 900, 000 4, 000, 000 4, 000, 000 6, 298, 578 13, 652, 383 15, 924, 639 19, 859, 491 23, 735, 629 19, 577, 213 21, 336, 213 10, 24, 777, 496 25, 666, 153 21, 894, 576 22, 545, 091 25, 226, 327 24, 800, 736 18, 118, 635 13, 004, 999 11, 1655, 909 11, 1655, 909 11, 1655, 909 11, 178, 635 12, 198, 802 14, 909, 812 14, 909, 812 14, 909, 812 14, 909, 812 14, 909, 812 14, 909, 812 14, 909, 812 14, 909, 812 14, 909, 812 15, 748, 802 14, 909, 812 14, 909, 812 16, 802 16, 802 17, 803, 804 18, 803, 804 18, 804 18, 805 19, 805 11	12, 729 16, 559 23, 996 51, 441 156, 897 476, 433 468, 105 478, 250 308, 059 355, 410 10 11 378, 388 257, 795 216, 360 200, 599 215, 817 281, 895 82, 302 156, 606 164, 277 123, 261 152, 814 330, 197 334, 556 228, 102 228, 345	15, 525 24, 487 43, 948 121, 946 433, 346 651, 289 601, 525 596, 804 411, 327 474, 581 10 1464, 918 437, 541 432, 853 448, 330 511, 731 688, 825 582, 393 316, 816 239, 232 244, 317 388, 139 504, 625 883, 820 807, 019 258, 209 313, 518
1940	7, 633, 199 14, 665, 462	3, 959, 297 7, 504, 649	3, 673, 902 7, 160, 813	52 51	48 49	23, 191, 871 36, 588, 546	286, 345 388, 950	313, 518 435, 331

Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income, 1913-1940: Number of returns, net income, tax before tax credits, tax credits, and tax; and individual returns with no net income, 1928-1940: Number of returns, and deficit —Continued [Money figures in thousands of dollars]

	Indiv	idual retu	rns and retu	rns of fid Continue	uciaries, w d	ith net inc	ome ²—	with	nal returns no net ome 3
	Tax befo	re tax cred	lits—Con.		Tax credit	s			
Year	Alterna- tive tax <sup>6</sup>	Tax on capital net gain, 12½ percent	Total 5	25 percent of tax on earned net income 7	percent on capital net loss from sale of assets held more than 2 years	Total	Tax *	Number of re- turns	Deficit
1926 1927 1928 1929 1930 1931 1932 1933 1934 1934		31,066 13,8,916 48,603 117,571 112,510 134,034 233,451 284,654 65,422 19,423 6,039 16,435	41,046 67,944 173,387 795,381 1,127,722 1,209,630 1,075,054 719,387 861,057 10 11 882,222 743,939 766,784 761,440 861,582 1,204,170 1,029,379 511,713 287,803 401,877 425,019 511,400 667,439	30, 637 24, 570 24, 670 24, 915 34, 790 22, 062 24, 886 17, 491		18 220, 555 39, 673 32, 229 28, 969 30, 943 39, 916 27, 441 34, 998 41, 676 71, 915 50, 899	67, 944 173, 387 7795, 381 1, 127, 722 1, 259, 630 1, 075, 054 719, 387 861, 057 784, 255 732, 475 839, 639 1, 164, 254 1, 001, 938 476, 715 246, 127 329, 962 374, 120 511, 490 657, 439 1, 214, 017	72, 829 92, 84, 867 184, 867 184, 583 206, 293 168, 449 104, 170 94, 609 73, 272 83, 904	499, 213 1, 025, 130 1, 539, 452 1, 936, 878 1, 480, 922 1, 141, 331 412, 859 381, 353 286, 632 308, 518
	14 279, 522 14 328, 832 14 543, 772		14 765, 833 14 928, 694				14 765, 833 14 928, 694 14 1, 496, 403	82, 461	354, 156 284, 327 311, 385

Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income, 1914-1940, by net income classes: Number of returns, net income, tax. and effective tax rate; also aggregate for individual returns with no net income, 1928-1940

#### NUMBER OF RETURNS 1 15

Net income classes (Thousands of dollars)	1914	1915	1916 16	1917	1918	1919	1920
Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income:   **Under 1** 1 under 2** 2 under 3** 3 under 5** 6 under 10* 10 under 25* 25 under 50* 50 under 100* 100 under 150* 150 under 300 300 under 500* 500 under 500* 500 under 500* 1,000 and over*	149, 279 127, 448 58, 603 14, 676 5, 161 1, 189 769 216 114	127, 994 120, 402 60, 284 17, 301 6, 847 1, 793 1, 326 209 120	157, 149 150, 553 80, 880 23, 734 10, 452 2, 900 2, 437 714 376 206	1, 640, 758 838, 707 560, 763 270, 666 112, 502 30, 391 12, 439 3, 302 2, 347 559 315	1. 516, 938 1. 496, 878 932, 336 319, 256 116, 569 28, 542 9, 996 2, 358 1, 514 382 178 67	1, 924, 872 1, 569, 741 1, 180, 488 438, 851 162, 485 37, 477 13, 320 2, 983 1, 864 425 189 65	2, 671, 950 2, 569, 316 1, 337, 116 455, 416 171, 830 38, 548 12, 093 2, 191 1, 063 239 123 33
Total individual re- turns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income	357, 515	336, 652	429, 401	3, 472, 890	4, 425, 114	5, 332, 760	7, 259, 944
Grand total	357, 515	336, 652	429, 401	3, 472, 890	4, 425, 114	5, 332, 760	7, 259, 944

Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income, 1914–1940, by net income classes: Number of returns, net income, tax, and effective tax rate; also aggregate for individual returns with no net income, 1928–1940—Continued

#### NUMBER OF RETURNS : 15-Continued

et income classes (Thousands of dollars)	1921	1922	1923	1924	1925	1926	1927
Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income: 2 Under 1	401, 849 2, 440, 544 2, 222, 031 1, 072, 146 353, 247 132, 344 28, 946 8, 717 1, 367 739 162 63 63	402,076 2,471,181 2,129,898 1,190,115 301,373 151,329 35,478 12,000 2,171 1,323 309 161 67	368, 502 2, 523, 150 2, 472, 641 1, 719, 625 387, 842 170, 095 39, 832 12, 452 2, 330 1, 301 327 141	344, 876 2, 413, 881 2, 112, 993 1, 800, 900 437, 330 191, 216 47, 061 15, 816 3, 065 1, 876 457 242 75	98, 178 1, 071, 992 842, 528 1, 327, 683 503, 652 236, 771 20, 958 4, 759 3, 223 892 479 207	119, 513 1, 045, 519 837, 712 1, 240, 400 500, 549 240, 730 57, 487 20, 520 4, 724 3, 267 802 468 231	126, 745 996, 098 855, 762 1, 209, 345 567, 700 252, 079 60, 123 22, 573 5, 261 3, 873 1, 141 557
Total individual returns and re- turns of fiduci- aries, with net income	6, 662, 176	6, 787, 481	7, 698, 321	7, 369, 788	4, 171, 051	4, 138, 092	4, 101, 547
Grand total	6, 662, 176	6, 787, 481	7, 698, 321	7, 369, 788	4, 171, 051	4, 138, 092	4, 101, 547
Net income classes (Thousands of dollars)	1928	1929	1930	1931	1932	1933	1934
Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income: 2 Under 1. 1 under 2. 2 under 3. 3 under 6. 5 under 10 10 under 25. 25 under 50. 50 under 100 100 under 150 150 under 150 150 under 500 500 under 500 100 under 500 100 under 100 100 under 1000 1000 and over 1000 1000 under 1000 1000 under 1000 1000 and over 1000 1000 under 1000 1000 1000 1000 under 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 10	111, 123 918, 447 837, 781 1, 192, 613 628, 766 270, 889 68, 048 27, 207 7, 049 5, 678 1, 756 983	126, 172 903, 082 810, 347 1, 172, 655 658, 039 271, 454 63, 689 24, 073 6, 376 5, 310 1, 041 976 513	150, 000 909, 155 767, 684 1, 070, 239 550, 977 198, 762 40, 845 13, 645 3, 111 2, 071 552 318 150	185, 391 862, 153 675, 019 912, 630 417, 655 137, 754 24, 308 7, 830 1, 634 1, 056 268 149 77	359, 688 1, 489, 589 967, 956 703, 755 251, 014 79, 210 18, 480 5, 902 995 596 140 86 20	397, 676 1, 480, 717 914, 198 599, 075 229, 754 75, 643 18, 423 6, 021 1, 084 605 141 81 81	320, 460 1, 608, 095 980, 682 762, 586 290, 824 102, 892 20, 931 6, 093 982 690 116 86 33
Total individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income.  Individual returns with no net income 3	4, 070, 851 72, 829 4, 143, 680	4, 044, 327 92, 545 4, 136, 872	3, 707, 509 144, 867 3, 852, 376	3, 225, 924 184, 583 3, 410, 507	3, 877, 430 205, 293 4, 083, 723	3, 723, 558 168, 449 3, 892, 007	4, 094, 420 104, 170 4, 198, 590

Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income, 1914–1940, by net income classes: Number of returns, net income, tax, and effective tax rate; also aggregate for individual returns with no net income, 1928–1940—Continued

NITTATOTO	ΛF	RETURNS 1 15-Continued

Net income classes (Thousands of dollars)	1935	1936	1937	1938	1939	1940
Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income;? Under 1. 1 under 2. 2 under 3. 3 under 5. 5 under 10. 10 under 25. 25 under 50. 50 under 100. 100 under 150. 150 under 300. 200 under 500. 500 under 500.	1, 395 896 206	277, 803 2, 111, 789 1, 317, 752 1, 029, 144 440, 886 176, 649 41, 137 13, 620 2, 606 1, 544 330 178 61	297, 143 2, 524, 763 1, 571, 996 1, 251, 213 471, 171 178, 446 38, 948 12, 318 2, 269 1, 358 312 162 49	389, 871 2, 433, 949 1, 614, 982 1, 172, 409 415, 596 140, 781 26, 336 7, 259 1, 326 766 207 118 57	374, 223 3, 0°6, 444 2, 060, 540 1, 468, 402 484, 698 164, 707 31, 992 9, 272 1, 618 935 2112 111 45	1, 941, 122 5, 026, 595 5, 261, 991 1, 652, 825 539, 159 180, 291 37, 264 10, 673 1, 964 1, 131 267 128
Total individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income.  Individual returns with no net income 3	4, 575, 012 94, 609 4, 669, 621	5, 413, 499 73, 272 5, 486, 771	6, 350, 148 83, 904 6, 434, 052	6, 203, 657 100, 233 6, 303, 890	7, 633, 199 82, 461 7, 715, 660	14, 665, 462 112, 697 14, 778, 159

NET INCOME OR DEFICIT 1 16

#### [Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

Net income classes	1916	1917	1918	1919	1920	1921
Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income: 2 Under 1. 1 under 2. 2 under 3. 3 under 5. 5 under 10. 10 under 25. 25 under 50. 50 under 100. 100 under 150. 150 under 150. 150 under 300. 300 under 500.		2, 461, 137 2, 064, 977 2, 115, 865 1, 827, 568 1, 687, 166 1, 042, 320 846, 894 400, 492 474, 652 209, 905 214, 631 306, 836	2, 232, 355 3, 626, 825 3, 535, 219 2, 145, 690 1, 736, 548 978, 043 679, 721 284, 107 305, 025 144, 545 119, 076 137, 487	2. 829, 113 3. 807, 286 4. 513, 264 2. 954, 137 2. 412, 276 1, 277, 365 896, 497 358, 393 371, 149 159, 071 128, 290 152, 650	4, 050, 067 6, 184, 543 5, 039, 607 3, 068, 331 2, 547, 905 1, 307, 785 810, 386 265, 512 215, 139 89, 314 79, 963 77, 078	213, 850 3, 620, 762 5, 620, 762 5, 255, 931 4, 054, 891 2, 378, 759 1, 958, 156 979, 629 582, 230 163, 521 145, 948 61, 343 42, 780 49, 411
Total individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income	6, 298, 578	13, 652, 383 1923	15, 924, 639	19, 859, 491 1925	23, 735, 629 1926	19, 577, 21 <b>3</b>
Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income: 1 Under 1	116, 672	252, 513 10 3, 693, 642 10 6, 673, 444 10 6, 469, 195 10 2, 653, 026 10 2, 538, 079 1, 350, 680 833, 898 280, 656 260, 584 124, 569 95, 107 152, 072	235, 452 3, 564, 474 5, 277, 147 6, 827, 924 2, 991, 188 2, 855, 397 1, 599, 848 1, 066, 784 377, 645 374, 609 171, 249 158, 462 155, 974	58, 306 1, 774, 602 2, 047, 970 5, 236, 003 3, 463, 852 3, 544, 898 52, 032, 239 1, 418, 948 572, 860 655, 300 339, 774 327, 368 422, 457	67, 238 1, 747, 917 2, 042, 903 4, 872, 789 3, 860, 622 1, 954, 653 1, 389, 339 570, 190 661, 412 340, 214 317, 881 494, 394	72, 231 1, 645, 576 2, 062, 275 4, 700, 816 3, 895, 759 3, 748, 058 2, 051, 771 1, 535, 387 636, 019 787, 270 431, 122 378, 167 600, 641
Total individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income	21, 336, 213	10 24, 777, 466	25, 656, 153	21, 894, 576	21, 958, 506	22, 545, 091

For footnotes, see p. 66.

Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income. 1914–1940, by net income classes: Number of returns, net income, tax, and effective tax rate; also aggregate for individual returns with no net income, 1928–1940—Continued

#### NET INCOME OR DEFICIT 113-Continued

#### [Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

Net income classes		928	19	29		1930		1931	1932	1933
Individual returns and ret of fiduciaries, with net come: 7 fiduciaries, with net come: 1 under 2. 2 under 3. 3 under 5. 5 under 10. 10 under 25. 25 under 50. 50 under 100. 100 under 150. 150 under 300. 300 under 500. 500 under 500. 500 under 500. 500 under 500. 500 under 500. 1,000 and over. Total individual ret and returns of fidaries, with net come. Individual returns with net income 3.	t in-  1, 52 2, 03 4, 64 4, 03 4, 03 1, 87 8, 85 1, 10 07 1, 10 07 07 07 07 07 07 07 07 07 07 07 07 07		1, 49 1, 95 4, 57 4, 48 4, 02 2, 17 1, 64 77 1, 08 62 66 1, 21	3, 742 9, 908 8, 595 72, 596 11, 576 55, 233 4, 458 6, 476 0, 536 77, 410 9, 878 2, 099 0, 736 5, 130	18,	86, 892 494, 526 864, 162 151, 967 723, 763 922, 763 922, 763 934, 171 419, 016 207, 131 211, 693 359, 905	13	106, 622 1, 309, 430 .641, 594 3, 515, 716 2, 807, 001 2, 807, 001 820, 648 528, 049 196, 598 212, C59 102, 186 102, 311 166, 660 .604, 996 .936, 878	231, 140 2, 145, 834 2, 437, 251 102, 597, 915 1, 160, 398 629, 639 393, 206 119, 896 118, 008 52, 460 57, 874 35, 240	264, 78- 2, 093, 292, 295, 586 2, 297, 456 1, 537, 877 1, 112, 086 630, 002 401, 048 129, 156 139, 216 54, 577 56, 707 86, 857
Net income classes	1934	1935		1936	}	1937		1938	1939	1940
Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income: 2 Under 1 1 under 2 2 under 3 3 under 5 5 under 10 10 under 25 5 under 10 10 under 25 50 under 100 100 under 150 150 under 300 under 300 300 under 300 1,000 1,000 and over	2, 839, 348 1, 952, 891 1, 513, 592 708, 530 405, 976 117, 744 140, 960	198, 2, 534, 2, 831, 3, 249, 2, 283, 1, 822, 882, 535, 166, 179, 77, 73, 73,	828 583 107 402 271 309 772 379 911 907 811	3. 011, 3. 325, 3. 821, 2. 977, 2. 628, 1, 400, 913, 311, 307, 124, 122, 107,	409 252 708 790 692 493 518 279 930 523 762	202, 4 3, 592, 3, 980, 8 4, 646, 5 3, 170, 1, 2, 639, 1 1, 319, 4 824, 2 272, 2 272, 1 114, 3 85, 4	283 364 965 571 518 131 261 264 277 109	259, 85 3, 430, 14 4, 091, 55 4, 317, 70 2, 783, 89 2, 059, 77 886, 39 484, 76 158, 41 154, 99 78, 44 81, 39 110, 10	13	7, 361, 338 9, 12, 583, 632 8, 6, 014, 768 3, 604, 433 3, 2, 785, 641 2, 1, 257, 086 7, 12, 495 2, 235, 754 2, 226, 596 101, 756 84, 224
Total individual re- turns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income. Individual returns with no net income 3	12, 796, 802 17 412, 859	14, 909, 1 17 381, 3	- 1	19, 240, 17 286,		21, 238, 5		18, 897, 37 7 354, 15	1 ' '	

Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income, 1914–1940, by net income classes. Number of returns, net income, tax, and effective tax rate; also aggregate for individual returns with no net income, 1928–1940—Continued

 $${\rm TAX}\ {\mbox{\sc i}}\ {\mbox{\sc is}}$$  [Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

[Net income cla	sses and n	none	y figur	es in t	housai	nas c	o dollar	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Net income classes	1916	1	917	19	18		1919	1920	1921
Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income: <sup>2</sup> Under 1 1 under 2 2 under 3 3 under 5 5 under 10 10 under 25 50 under 100 10 under 50 50 under 100 100 under 150 150 under 300 300 under 500 500 under 1,000 1,000 and over  Total individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income	776 6, 301 11, 637 11, 603 16, 299 12, 423 24, 007 17, 951 20, 902 51, 487	1 4 8 7 8 5 8 5 5 10	6, 244 9, 097 8, 283 6, 695 6, 593 5, 726 6, 718 0, 228 9, 349 9, 425	997 35, 82, 1966 93, 1942, 1930 1442, 1931 145, 1666 95, 118, 136, 128 136, 149, 195, 195, 195, 195, 195, 195, 195, 19		, 429 180, 3 , 680 118, 7 , 156 163, 0 , 165 86, 0 , 834 76, 2 , 885 99, 0		36, 860 45, 508 83, 466 97, 886 172, 259 154, 265 163, 718 86, 588 92, 604 47, 043 45, 641 49, 185	174 29, 161 20, 712 42, 744 68, 871 126, 186 112, 010 115, 712 52, 330 61, 496 31, 860 25, 112 31, 420
Net income classes	192	22	19	23	192	4	1925	1926	1927
Individual returns and returns of fide aries, with net income: 3 Under 1 1 under 2 2 under 3 3 under 5 5 under 10 10 under 25 25 under 50 50 under 100 100 under 150 50 under 100 100 under 150 150 under 300 150 under 300 100 under 500 500 under 100 100 under 500 500 under 100 500 Under 500 500 500 under 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 50	27. 20. 47. 70. 123, 125. 144. 71. 98, 43, 38, 49,	697 093 337 810 488 559 518	10 1 10 4 10 5 10 10 10 10 10 5 6 3 2 2	317 8, 253 6, 606 6, 004 4, 075 3, 109 3, 601 1, 669 5, 719 2, 104 1, 669 5, 788	10. 10. 26, 28, 78. 109. 136, 75, 92. 45, 42, 47,	207 865 828 069 360 636 678 481 771 585 207	66 1, 70 3, 80 8, 32 19, 14 74, 17 120, 68 147, 84 79, 47 103, 05 55, 72 55, 67 66, 86	4 1, 761 4 217 6 7, 245 8 20, 272 2 72, 465 2 112, 797 3 140, 947 77, 900 2 70, 907 2 55, 256 53, 665 81, 893	40 1. 234 3. 970 6. 568 20. 665 74, 226 119, 475 156, 675 156, 675 173, 750 64, 265 98, 657
Net income classes	1928	3	19	29	193	0	1931	1932	1933
Individual returns and returns of f ductaries, with net income: 2 Under 1. 1 under 2. 2 under 3. 3 under 5. 5 under 10. 10 under 25. 25 under 50. 50 under 100. 100 under 150. 150 under 300. 300 under 500. 500 under 1,000.	1. 4. 7. 22. 82. 136. 194. 116. 182. 113.	60 550 317 475 8 6 758 568 447 855 514 250 424 140	11 16 9 15	17 553 1, 404 2, 413 9, 551 9, 589 3, 904 50, 814 19, 560 69, 221 97, 336 16, 219 11, 054	3, 5, 17. 49, 72, 87, 48, 62, 33, 34,	37 269 310 352 448 561 708 379 749 463 053 289 098	2 94 2, 46 3, 83 12, 40 31, 89 40, 09 44, 78 23, 13 28, 79 15, 41 15, 45 26, 88	3	97 10, 345 7, 710 18, 397 35, 077 54, 977 52, 355 57, 491 30, 369 40, 412 17, 910 21, 221 27, 759
Total individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with no income	et	, 254	1,00	01, 938	476,	715	246, 12	7 329, 962	374, 120

For footnotes, see p. 66,

Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income, 1914-1940, by net income classes: Number of returns, net income, tax, and effective tax rate: also aggregate for individual returns with no net income, 1928-1940—Continued

[Net inc		TA	X 1 16.	-Continue y figures in	ď	•		OHU	mue	1
Net income classes	1934	19	35	1936	1937	19	38	19	39	1940
Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income: 2 Under 1 1 under 2. 2 under 3. 3 under 5. 5 under 10. 10 under 25. 25 under 50. 50 under 100. 100 under 150. 150 under 500. 500 under 500. 500 under 1000. 1,000 and over.  Total individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income.  Individual returns with no net income 18.  Grand total.	8. 62 7, 56 18, 33, 43, 06 83, 96 84, 77 38, 11 57, 96 20, 87 32, 21	\$9   10   10   10   10   10   10   10   1	125 1,058 1,311 1,738 1,738 1,754 1,670 1,132 1,132 1,132 1,132 1,132 1,132 1,132 1,132 1,439 1,439	331 14,010 13,988 32,232 79,369 175,613 191,339 216,045 116,156 147,381 71,470 78,945 77,138	46 17, 22 15, 62 38, 85 83, 52 175, 70 179, 39 102, 66 67, 48 74, 15 61, 45	2	719 , 202 , 789 , 920 , 654 , 594 , 989 , 224 , 744 , 832 , 235 , 218 , 218 , 615	21 47 83 158 146 71 88 44 44 53	744 , 422 , 374 , 424 , 430 , 037 , 686 , 037 , 234 , 237 , 598 , 181	2, 115 57, 727 49, 826 78, 830 119, 541 253, 227 270, 956 251, 444 110, 629 122, 832 61, 641 1, 495, 930 473 1, 496, 403
	EFFEC'	rive 1	XAT	RATE (PI	ERCENT	r) 1 15				
Net income classes (Thousands of dollars)	1916	1917	1918	8 1919	1920	1921	192	22	1923	1924
Under 1. 1 under 2. 2 under 3. 3 under 5. 5 under 10. 10 under 25. 25 under 50. 50 under 100. 100 under 150. 150 under 150. 150 under 300. 300 under 500. 500 under 500.		0. 66 44 .86 2. 41 4. 78 7. 34 10. 04 13. 92 18. 27 23. 93 27. 63 35. 65	1. (2.3) 4. (8.3) 13. (21.6) 33. (44.6) 54. (54.6)	9874 1. 68 34 3. 10 6. 83 12. 13 20. 79 33. 12 13. 12 143. 94 143. 94 154. 08 159. 42	0. 91 .74 1. 66 3. 19 6. 76 11. 80 20. 20 32. 61 43. 04 52. 67 57. 08	0. 08 . 81 . 39 1. 05 2. 90 6. 48 11. 53 19. 87 32. 00 42. 14 51. 94 58. 70	1. 2.	89 42 03 27 81	0. 13 49 27 71 2. 04 4. 06 7. 67 13. 06 19. 85 23. 83 25. 42 26. 81	. 29 . 19 . 39 . 96 . 2. 73 . 6. 84 . 12. 81 . 20. 04 . 24. 69 . 26. 73 . 26. 87

Total individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income	2. 75	5. 06	7. 08	6. 39	4, 53	3. 67	4. 04	2. 67	2.74
Net income classes (Thousands of dollars)	1925	1926	1927	1928	1929	1930	1931	1932	1933
Under 1 1 under 2 2 under 3 3 under 5 5 under 5 5 under 10 10 under 25 55 under 50 50 under 100 100 under 100 100 under 100 150 under 300 150 under 500 500 under 1,000 1,000 and over  Total individual returns of	. 19 . 16 . 55 2. 09 5. 94 10. 42 13. 87 15. 73 16. 40	0.08 .10 .21 .52 1.98 5.77 10.14 13.66 15.72 16.24 16.88 16.56	0.06 .07 .19 .14 .53 1.98 5.82 10.20 13.74 15.72 17.11 16.99 16.42	0.09 .10 .21 .16 .53 2.05 5.87 10.47 13.74 15.77 17.06 17.35	0. 02 .04 .07 .05 .21 1. 49 5. 24 9. 77 12. 92 14. 64 15. 86 15. 76	0. 04 . 08 . 18 . 13 . 47 1. 70 5. 25 9. 51 13. 03 14. 91 15. 96 16. 20	0. 02 . 07 . 15 . 11 . 44 1. 59 4. 89 8. 48 11. 77 13. 58 15. 08 15. 11	0. 04 . 57 . 40 . 80 2. 12 4. 32 6. 92 11. 99 20. 41 27. 04 35. 36 32. 86 46. 75	0. 04 . 49 . 34 . 83 2. 28 4. 94 8. 31 14. 34 23. 51 29. 03 32. 82 37. 43 31. 96
fiduciaries, with	3. 35	3. 33	3. 68	4. 62	4. 04	2.63	1.81	2.83	3. 40

Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income, 1914–1940, by net income classes: Number of returns, net income, tax, and effective tax rate; also aggregate for individual returns with no net income, 1928–1940—Continued

EFFECTIVE TAX RATE (PERCENT)1 18—Continued

Net income classes (Thousands of dollars)	1934	1935	1936	1937	1938	1939	1940
Under 1 1 under 2 2 under 3 3 under 5 5 under 10 10 under 25 5 under 10 10 under 25 50 under 10 10 under 10 100 under 100 100 under 150 150 under 300 300 under 300 300 under 400 1,000 and over	31 .65 2.21 5,55 11.98 20.89 32.41 41.14 47.58	0. 06 . 40 . 33 . 64 2. 13 5. 69 12. 09 21. 06 32. 54 41. 15 47. 81 51. 92 56. 36	0. 18 . 47 . 42 . 84 2. 67 6. 68 13. 66 23. 65 37. 32 47. 86 57. 40 64. 31 71. 66	0. 23 . 48 . 39 . 84 2. 63 6. 66 13. 60 23. 60 23. 60 37. 49 48. 06 57. 45 64. 82 71. 95	0. 28 . 44 . 34 . 79 2. 57 6. 51 13. 60 24. 13 36. 75 45. 00 50. 78 52. 03 43. 63	0. 29 . 49 . 41 . 87 2. 57 6. 54 13. 61 23. 74 37. 11 47. 06 . 54. 35 60. 19 65. 36	0. 14 . 78 . 40 1. 31 3. 32 9. 09 21. 55 35. 29 46. 93 54. 21 59. 99 60. 76
Total individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income	4.00	4.41	6. 31	5. 37	4.05	4.00	4.09

Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income, 1916-1940, and individual returns with no net income, 1928-1940: Sources of income, deductions, and net income or deficit 1 2 15

[Thousands of dollars]

Distribution	1916·	1917 19	1918	1919	1920	1921
Income: 20 Salaries, wages, commis-						
sions, etc.21	1, 851, 277	3, 648, 438	8, 267, 392	10, 755, 693	10 15,322, 873	13, 813, 169
Business profit	34 2, 637, 475	2, 865. 413	3, 124, 355	3, 877, 550 1, 831, 430	10 3, 215, 555 10 1, 706, 229	2, 366, 319 1, 341, 186
Partnership profit 22 Profit from sales of real	(35)	775, 087	1, 214, 914	1, 801, 400	1, 100, 220	. 1, 011, 100
estate, stocks, bonds,						462, 859
etc	(35)	318, 171 684, 343	291, 186 975, 680	999, 364 1, 019, 094	1, 020, 543 1, 047, 424	1, 177, 958
Rents and royalties Dividends received 23	643, 803 2, 136, 469	2, 848, 842	2, 468, 749	2, 453, 775	2, 735, 846	2, 476, 952
Income from fiduciaries 24.	379, 795	(36)	(37)	(37)	(37)	(37)
Interest on partially tax-		i				
exempt Government ob-	(38)	(56)	(35)	63, 377	61, 550	46, 994
Interest and other in-	1	` '		. 40= 400	10 . 500 050	1, 643, 344
come 25	701, 084	936, 715	1, 403, 486	1, 437, 402	10 1, 580, 250	1, 040, 044
Total income	8, 349, 902	12, 077, 009	17, 745, 761	22, 437, 686	26, 690, 270	23, 328, 782
Deductions: 20						i
Net loss from sales of real	}				ļ	
estate, stocks, bonds,	(39)	(39)	(39)	(39)	(39)	(39)
Net loss from business	39)	(39)	(39)	(39)	(39)	(39)
Net loss from partnership.	(60)	(-)	(-)		í ' í	` '
Interest paid	(39)	(39)	(39)	(39)	(39)	(39)
Contributions 27	(39)	245, 080	(39)	(39)	387, 290	(39)
Other deductions 28	2, 051, 324	640, 683	1, 821, 122	2, 578, 194	2, 567, 351	3, 751, 569
Total deductions 28	2, 051, 324	885, 763	1, 821, 122	2, 578, 194	2, 954, 641	3, 751, 569
Net income	6, 298, 578	11, 191, 246	15, 924, 639	19, 859, 491	23, 735, 629	19, 577, 213

For footnotes, see p. 66-67.

Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income, 1916–1940, and individual returns with no net income, 1928–1940: Sources of income, deductions, and net income or deficit <sup>1 2 15</sup>—Continued

#### [Thousands of dollars]

Distribution	1922	1923 10	1924	1925	1926	1927
Income: 20						
Salaries, wages, commis-						
_ sions, etc.21	13, 693, 993	14, 195, 356	13, 617, 663	9, 742, 160	9, 994, 315	10, 218, 450
Business profit	2, 839, 771	4, 722, 766	4, 755, 483	3, 688, 804	3, 572, 895	3, 287, 421
Partnership profit 22	1, 427, 127	1, 676, 409	1, 810, 014	1, 827, 025	1, 732, 581	1, 755, 145
Profit from sales of real			1		, , , ==	
estate, stocks, bonds,						
etc., other than taxed as						ļ
capital net gain from sales			}	Į.	ļ	1
of assets held more than	m40 404		i			
2 years	742, 104	863, 107	1, 124, 566	1, 991, 659	1, 465, 625	1, 813, 396
Capital net gain from sales of assets held more than					ł	
2 years 29	249, 248	005 004	000			
Rents and royalties		305, 394	389. 148	940, 569	912, 917	1, 081, 186
Dividends received 23	1, 224, 929	1, 814, 126	2, 009, 716	1, 471, 332	1, 450, 760	1, 302, 276
Income from fiduciaries 24	2, 664, 219 257, 928	3, 119, 829	3, 250, 914	3, 464, 625	4, 011, 590	4, 254, 829
Interest on partially tax-	201, 820	329, 124	310, 144	305, 806	333, 365	421, 48)
exempt Government ob-			•	i		
ligations 25	33, 989	43, 711	00 645	05.05.		
Other taxable interest		,	29, 645	25, 651	36. 782	47, 479
Other income 26	1, 738, 601	2, 177, 771	2, 281, 703	1, 814, 402	1, 936, 604	£ 1, 675, 916
Other meeting	,				-,,	350,981
Total income	24, 871, 908	29, 247, 593	29, 578, 997	25, 272, 035	25, 447, 436	26, 208, 561
Deductions: 20					====	
Net loss from sales of real				j		İ
estate, stocks, bonds,			1	1		1
etc	(39)	(39)	(39)	(39)	178, 216	007 070
Capital net loss	` '	( )	(39)	(89)	(39)	227, 879
Net loss from business	) (00)	(40)				(39)
Net loss from partnership	} (39)	(39)	(39)	(39)	(39)	(39)
Interest paid	39)	(88)	/an\			
Taxes paid	J ` '	(39)	(39)	(30)	(39)	(39)
Contributions 27	425, 218	534, 797	533, 168	441, 590	484, 205	507, 705
Other deductions 28	3, 110, 478	3, 935, 330	3, 389, 675	2, 935, 868	2, 826, 509	2, 927, 886
Total deductions 28	3, 535, 696	4, 470, 127	3, 922, 843	3, 377, 458	3, 488, 930	3, 663, 470
Net income	21, 336, 213	24, 777, 466	25, 656, 153	21, 894, 576	21, 958, 506	22, 545, 091

56

Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income, 1916–1940, and individual returns with no net income, 1928–1940: Sources of income, deductions, and net income or deficit  $^{1\ 2\ 15}$ —Continued

[Thousands of dollars]

	195	28	19	29	1930		
Distribution	Individual returns and re- turns of fiduciaries, with net income	Individual returns with no net income	Individual returns and re- turns of fiduciaries, with net income <sup>10</sup>	Individual returns with no net income	Individual returns and re- turns of fiduciaries, with net income	Individual returns with no net income	
Income: <sup>10</sup> Salaries, wages, commissions, etc. <sup>1</sup> Business profit Partnership profit <sup>12</sup> Profit from sales of real estate, stocks, bonds, etc., other than taxed as capital net gain from	10, 862, 331 3, 243, 955 1, 929, 520	82, 193 32, 811 16, 631	11, 173, 068 3, 327, 989 1, 846, 431	199, 654 58, 413 49, 533	9, 921, 952 2, 628, 057 1, 089, 646	283, 727 69, 697 57, 260	
sales of assets held more than 2 years Capital net gain from sales	2, 928, 142	53, 584	2, 335, 898	85, 265	636, 738	68, 135	
of assets held more than 2 years <sup>19</sup> Rents and royalties Dividends received <sup>28</sup> Income from fiduciaries <sup>24</sup> Interest on partially tax-	1, 879, 780 1, 164, 518 4, 350, 979 443, 998	274 67, 071 88, 984 17, 577	2, 346, 704 1, 278, 757 4, 783, 240 508, 221	1, 426 79, 984 297, 726 12, 209	556, 392 974, 325 4, 197, 304 429, 459	103, 460 434, 988 19, 843	
exempt Government ob- ligations 25 Other taxable interest Other income 26	40, 553 1, 841, 818 302, 040	1, 763 59, 760	40, 184 1, 908, 030 296, 235	2, 864 } 115, 177	38, 134 { 1, 608, 434 10 239, 004	5, 738 } 161. 536	
Total income	28, 987, 634	420, 649	29, 844, 758	902, 251	22,319,446	1, 204, 383	
Deductions 10  Net loss from sales of real estate, stocks, bonds, etc	171, 743	144, 561	} 994, 665	838, 984	1, 232, 776	1, 307, 143	
Capital net loss  Net loss from business  Net loss from partner-	(39)	(39) (89) .	(39)	(29)	172, 538	570, 023	
ship <sup>27</sup> Interest paid Taxes paid <sup>30</sup> Contributions <sup>27</sup> Other deductions <sup>18</sup>	(39)	(39) 125, 990 8, 465 640, 847	(39)	(39) 156, 054 13, 016 919, 327	39) 10 417, 771 10 2, 377, 726	(39) 31, 536 16, 630 818, 503	
Total deductions 28	3, 761, 308	919, 862	5, 044, 023	1, 927 381	10 4, 200, 811	2, 743, 835	
Net income or deficit	25. 226, 327	17 499, 213	24, 800, 736	17 1, 025, 130	18, 118, 635	17 1, 539, 452	

For footnotes, see pp. 66-67.

Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income, 1916–1940, and individual returns with no net income, 1928–1940: Sources of income, deductions, and net income or deficit 1 2 15—Continued

[Thousands of dollars]

	1931		1932		1933	
Distribution	Individual returns and returns of fiduci- aries, with net income	Individual	Individual returns and returns of fiduci- aries, with net income	Individual returns with no net income	and returns of fiduci-	Individual returns with no net income
Income: ** Salaries, wages, commissions, etc.** Business profit Partnership profit ** Profit from sales of real estate, stocks, bonds, etc., other than taxed as capital net gain from sales of assets held more than	8, 325, 162 1, 889, 759 729, 523	305, 684 73, 186 47, 754	8, 136, 717 1, 294, 952 482, 863	219, 716 54, 880 28, 612	7, 390, 356 1, 402, 923 603, 725	174, 581 51, 137 31, 000
2 years. Capital net gain from sales of assets held more than 2 years <sup>29</sup> Rents and royalties. Dividends received <sup>22</sup> Income from fiduciaries <sup>24</sup> Interest on partially tax	301, 664 169, 949 770, 764 3, 113, 861 369, 140	29, 573 117, 059 485, 616 29, 438	{ 112, 814   50, 074   529, 989   1, 972, 133   310, 949	20, 602 105, 609 216, 544 18, 843	419, 591 133, 616 447, 883 1, 559, 016 276, 067	83, 675 152, 361 19, 846
exempt Government ob- ligations 23 Other taxable interest Other income 25	25, 325 1, 337, 606 235, 696	5, 138 206, 302	29, 188 1, 141, 799 330, 602	4, 235 131, 993 30, 559	31, 689 961, 732 167, 197	4, 420 107, 904 33, 423
Total income	17, 268, 451	1, 299, 750	14, 392, 080	831, 592	13, 393, 825	725, 817
Deductions: 20  Net loss from sales of real estate, stocks, bonds, etc	1, 160, 765	1, 818, 724	375, 445	835, 280	365, 782	773, 899
Net loss from business. Net loss from partinership <sup>22</sup> Interest paid <sup>36</sup> Taxes paid <sup>39</sup> Contributions <sup>27</sup> Other deductions <sup>28</sup>	} 134, 685   } (39)   328, 300   2, 039, 705	590, 123 (29) 197, 133 25, 629 605, 019	112, 659 (39) 304, 009 10 1, 944, 057	519, 340 (39) 177, 758 12, 651 767, 486	{ 61, 985 30, 435 507, 520 506, 258 252, 251 660, 956	181, 099 68, 850 135, 232 171, 387 29, 664 507, 017
Total deductions 28	3, 663, 455	3, 236, 628	10 2, 736, 171	2, 312, 514	2, 385, 187	1, 867, 148
Net income or deficit	13, 604, 996	17 1, 936, 878	10 11,655,909	17 1,480,922	11, 008, 638	17 1, 141, 331

Individual xeturns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income, 1916–1940, and individual returns with no net income, 1928–1940: Sources of income, deductions, and net income or deficit 12 15—Continued

#### [Thousands of dollars]

	19	34	19	35	1936		
Distribution	Individual returns and returns of fiduci- aries, with net income	Individual returns with no net income	Individual returns and returns of fiduci- arics, with net income	Individual returns with no net income	and returns of fiduci-	Individual returns with no net income	
Income: 20						,	
Salaries, wages, commissions, etc. 11  Business profit. Partnership profit 12  Net capital gain 11  Rents and royalties Dividends received 12  Income from fiduciaries 14 Interest on partially tax	8, 600, 455 1, 716, 842 631, 915 211, 319 509, 844 1, 965, 670 288, 730	80, 415 30, 808 12, 137 17, 746 59, 225 75, 078 8, 552	9, 900, 578 1, 855, 019 739, 822 509, 714 572, 060 2, 234, 727 328, 978	71, 670 25, 688 9, 514 20, 409 51, 121 53, 608 6, 874	11, 661, 274 2, 374, 258 1, 022, 288 973, 796 685, 063 3, 173, 844 826, 184	57, 036 22, 729 9, 450 22, 497 42, 091 54, 156 8, 738	
exempt Government ob- ligations 25. Other taxable interest Other income 26.	38, 044 909, 231 220, 910	2, 224 45, 235 12, 635	43, 820 900, 501 231, 286	2, 319 32, 985 14, 465	43, 627 887, 684 240, 357	1, 322 22, 017 8, 493	
Total income	15, 092, 960	344, 055	17, 316, 505	288, 653	21, 888, 373	248, 530	
Deductions: 29  Net loss from business Net loss from partnership 22 Net capital loss 31 Interest paid 30 Taxes paid 30 Contributions 21 Other deductions 25	183, 762 517, 217 541, 191 272, 822 688, 277	130, 522 42, 913 27, 274 88, 538 64, 143 6, 994 396, 499	67, 453 23, 876 145, 728 503, 730 596, 559 305, 155 764, 191	116, 068 35, 601 21, 616 67, 924 48, 415 4, 998 375, 384	79, 520 21, 307 129, 704 544, 869 698, 609 385, 838 788, 416	90, 070 28, 190 14, 845 48, 189 38, 850 3, 753 311, 263	
Total deductions 28	2, 296, 158	756, 914		670,006	2, 648, 263	535, 161	
Net income or deficit	12, 796, 802	17 412, 859	14, 909, 812	17 381, 353	19, 240. 110	17 286, 632	

For footnotes, see pp. 66-67.

Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income, 1916–1940, and individual returns with no net income, 1928–1940: Sources of income, deductions, and net income or deficit  $^{1\ 2\ 15}$ —Continued

#### [Thousands of dollars]

	19	937	1938		
Distribution	Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income	Individual returns with no net income	Individual returns and roturns of fiduciaries, with net income	Individual returns with no net income	
Income: <sup>20</sup> Salaries, wages, commissions, etc. <sup>21</sup> Business profit Partnership profit <sup>22</sup> Net capital gain: <sup>31</sup>	14, 148, 510 2, 493, 426 1, 139, 301	57, 386 23, 421 10, 885	13, 240, 991 2, 349, 344 1, 053, 673	65, 825 25, 954 13, 533	
Short-term Long-term Net gain from sales of property other than capital	34, 114	16, 947	152, 108 324, 795	7, 781 6, 443	
assets <sup>32</sup> .  Rents and royalties Dividends received <sup>32</sup> .  Income from fiduciaries <sup>34</sup> Intorest on partially tax-exempt Government obli-	758, 444 3, 514, 293 830, 772	40, 146 60, 440 10, 295	22, 607 769, 687 2, 372, 459 646, 258	1, 526 41, 601 89, 424 19, 291	
gations 25 Other taxable interest Other income 26	47, 955 862, 349 224, 935	1, 563 21, 343 7, 968	46, 065 844, 443 233, 019	2, 373 32, 034 12, 983	
Total income	24, 454, 099	250, 394	22, 055, 449	318, 769	
Deductions: 20  Net loss from business  Net loss from partnership 22  Net capital loss 31  Net long-term capital loss 31  Net loss from sales of property other than capital	264, 192	, 124, 159 40, 034 28, 695	99, 263 30, 662 395, 779	142, 717 37, 800 192, 220	
assets <sup>32</sup> Interest paid <sup>30</sup> Taxes paid <sup>30</sup> Contributions <sup>27</sup> Other deductions <sup>18</sup>	837, 272 440, 010	44, 601 37, 618 4, 919 278, 886	21, 805 509, 093 816, 381 407, 419 877, 674	21, 427 48, 049 44, 779 6, 560 179, 374	
Total deductions 28	3, 215, 525	558, 912	3, 158, 076	672, 925	
Net income or deficit	21, 238, 574	17 308, 518	18, 897, 374	<sup>17</sup> 354, 156	

Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income, 1916–1940, and individual returns with no net income, 1928–1940: Sources of income, deductions, and net income or deficit 12 15—Continued

[Thousands of dollars]

·	-				
	19	39	1940		
Distribution	Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income	Individual returns with no net income	Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income	Individual returns with no net income	
Income: 20 Salaries, wages, commissions, etc. 21 Business profit Partnership profit 22 Not capital gain: 31	16, 440, 923 2, 698, 217 1, 246, 633	49, 677 13, 693 10, 385	27, 653, 985 4, 156, 570 1, 557, 741	53, 276 16, 742 10, 259	
Short-term: Current year net short-term capital gain	189,628	G, 5 <b>22</b>	127, 408	4, 87	
Net short-term capital loss of preceding tax- able year deducted	21,231	. 371	5,036	333	
Net short-term capital gain included in total income	168, 397 229, 458	6, 152 6, 301	122, 372 271, 380	4, 54 4, 64	
Not gain from sales of property other than capital assets <sup>37</sup> Rents and royalties  Dividends received <sup>32</sup> Income from fiduciaries <sup>34</sup> Interest on partially tax-exempt Government obli-	28, 504 812, 447 2, 801, 988 710, 462	1, 607 34, 218 63, 093 12, 985	41, 450 1, 194, 134 3, 268, 441 768, 037	2, 37 35, 81 68, 53 13, 56	
Interest on partially tax-exempt Government obli- gations <sup>25</sup> .  Other taxable interest.  Other income <sup>26</sup> .	51, 740 864, 095 337, 785	1, 698 22, 148 6, 733	80, 459 992, 492 754, 511	1, 20 21, 15 7, 42	
Total income	26, 390, 649	228, 690	40, 861, 570	239, 58	
Deductions: <sup>20</sup> Not loss from business. Net loss from partnership <sup>22</sup> Net long-term capital loss <sup>31</sup>	28, 385 316, 915	122, 076 28, 396 151, 049	132, 165 29, 050 386, 181	127, 57 25, 46 175, 54	
Net loss from sales of property other than capital assets <sup>37</sup> Interest paid <sup>30</sup> Taxes paid <sup>30</sup> Contributions <sup>37</sup> Losses from fire, storm, etc. <sup>33</sup>	27, 349 548, 877 882, 390 494, 789 18, 635	27, 755 33, 804 34, 196 4, 112 7, 593	38, 118 720, 073 1, 255, 834 734, 645 30, 516 92, 457	33, 08 30, 89 33, 23 5, 34 9, 00 45, 58	
Bad debts 33 Other deductions 28	81, 887 698, 657	45, 107 58, 927	853, 986	65, 2	
Total deductions 28		513, 016	4, 273, 025	550, 9	
Net income or deficit	23, 191, 871	17 284, 327	36, 588, 546	17 311, 3	

For footnotes, see pp. 66-67.

Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income of \$5,000 and over, 1916-1940: Sources of income, deductions, and net income 12

#### [Money figures in thousands of dollars]

Distribution	1916	1917	1918	1919	1920	1921
Number of returns	40 272, 252	432, 662	478, 962	657, 659	681, 562	525, 606
Income: 20						
Salaries, wages, commis- sions, etc. <sup>21</sup>	1, 398, 329	1,794,790	2, 103, 819	2, 948, 006	3, 367, 516	2, 831, 520
	34 2, 386, 905	1, 062, 772	1, 148, 297	1, 743, 800	1, 398, 069	816, 040
Partnership profit 22	(35)	581,708	913, 853	1, 426, 072	1, 261, 899	903, 571
Profit from sales of real						•
estate, stocks, bonds,	(35)	217, 929	187, 406	677, 284	623, 993	254, 450
Rents and royalties	516, 742	340, 868	386, 474	445, 701	451, 878	420, 932
Dividends received 23	2, 098, 428	2, 648, 155	2, 133, 209	2, 128, 291	2, 363, 880	1, 915, 138
Income from fiduciaries 24.	365, 326	(35)	(37)	(37)	(37)	(37)
Interest on partially tax-					1	
exempt Government ob-	(35)	(36)	(36)	62, 571	60, 432	40, 281
Interest and other income 26	627, 943	822, 480	799, 186	876, 687	847, 894	732, 697
Title (Stand other meonie	027, 010		100,100		011, 051	
Total income	7, 393, 672	7, 468, 702	7, 672, 243	10, 308, 411	10, 375, 561	7, 914, 635
Deductions: 20						
Net loss from sales of real						
estate, stocks, bonds,	(39)	(39)	(80)	(39)	(39)	(39)
Net loss from business	(39)	(39)	(89) (89)	39	(89)	(39)
Net loss from partnership.	(39)	(39)	(39) .	. (39)	(30)	(39)
Interest paid	(39)	(39)	(39)	(39)	(39)	(39)
Taxes paid	(39)	(39)	(39)	(39)	(39)	(29)
Contributions 27 Other deductions 28	(39) 1, 719, 764	186, 907 271, 391	(39) 1, 142, 003	(3V) 1, 598, 583	(41) 1, 914, 150	(39)
Other deductions **	1,719,704	211, 391	1,142,000	1, 596, 565	1, 914, 150	1, 552, 857
Total deductions 28	1, 719, 764	458, 297	1, 142, 003	1, 598, 583	1, 914, 150	1, 552, 857
Net income	5, 673, 909	7, 010, 404	6, 530, 241	8, 709, 828	8, 461, 412	6, 361, 778

Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income of \$5,000 and over, 1916-1940: Sources of income, deductions, and net income 1 2—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

Distribution	1922	1923 10	1924	1925	1926	1927
Number of returns	594, 211	625, 897	697, 138	830, 670	894, 868	913, 597
Incomo: 26 Salaries, wages, commissions, etc. 27 Business profit. Partnership profit 27 Profit from sales of real estate, stocks, bonds, etc., other than taxed as capital net gain from	2, 933, 454 1, 012, 440 918, 183	3, 114, 006 1, 057, 731 921, 851	3, 490, 916 1, 290, 722 1, 112, 710	4, 033, 811 1, 623, 638 1, 422, 799	4, 363, 395 1, 738, 523 1, 329, 786	4, 524, 276 1, 704, 175 1, 354, 422
sales of assets held more than 2 years	490, 794	458, 184	770, 026	1, 723, 438	1, 224, 278	1, 511, 859
2 years <sup>29</sup> Rents and royalties Dividends received <sup>23</sup> Income from fiduciaries <sup>24</sup> Interest on partially tax-	249, 248 482, 189 2, 173, 499 197, 189	305, 394 497, 624 2, 435, 137 233, 982	389, 148 570, 427 2, 617, 871 206, 972	940, 569 679, 569 3, 045, 368 248, 163	912, 918 689, 981 3, 581, 362 273, 252	1, 081, 186 644, 302 3, 761, 910 329, 351
exempt Government ob- ligations 25 Other taxable interest Other income 26	30, 962 } 850, 935	30, 465 864, 514	29, 645 932, 324	25, 651 1, 084, 120	36, 782 1, 217, 681	47, 479 1, 115, 925 185, 099
Total income	9, 338, 893	9, 918, 886	11, 410, 761	14, 827, 127	15, 367, 957	16, 259, 984
Deductions: 20 Net loss from sales of real estate, stocks, bonds, etc	(39)	(39)	(39) (29)	(39) (39)	122, 409 ( <sup>39</sup> )	136, 482 ( <sup>39</sup> )
Net loss from business Net loss from partnership. Interest paid	} (39) } (39)	(39)	(39) (39)	(39) (39)	(39) (39)	(39) (39)
Taxes paid <sup>80</sup> Contributions <sup>27</sup> Other deductions <sup>28</sup>	211, 863 1, 323, 007	238, 378 1, 391, 835	254, 072 1, 405, 532	293, 401 1, 756, 030	326, 511 1, 691, 377	353, 188 1, 265, 148
Total deductions 28	1, 534, 871	1, 630, 214	1, 659, 605	2, 049, 431	2, 140, 298	2, 195, 792
Net income	7, 804, 022	8, 288, 672	9, 751, 156	12, 777, 696	13, 227, 659	14, 064, 193

For footnotes, see pp. 66-67.

Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income of \$5,000 and over, 1916-1940: Sources of income, deductions, and net income 12—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

Distribution	1928	1929	1930	1931	1932	1933
Number of returns	1, 010, 887	1, 032, 071	810, 431	590, 731	356, 442	331, 892
Income: 20						
Salaries, wages, commis- sions, etc. <sup>21</sup>	5, 008, 286	5, 179, 041	4, 407, 606	3, 320, 028	2, 057, 254	1, 838, 646
Business profit	1, 772, 255	1, 836, 329	1, 215, 452	766, 730	354, 488	393, 815
Partnership profit 22 Profit from sales of real es-	1, 583, 322	1, 497, 922	786, 931	492, 147	284, 624	401, 931
tate, stocks, bonds, etc.,						
other than taxed as capi-						
tal net gain from sales of assets held more than 2						
years	2, 700, 557	2, 044, 058	527, 653	196, 574	71, 643	308, 711
Capital net gain from sales						
of assets held more than 2 years 29	1, 879, 780	2, 346, 704	556, 392	169, 949	50, 074	133, 616
Rents and royalties.	637, 371	649, 124	479, 401	306, 336	160, 244	124, 144
Dividends received 23 Income from fiduciaries 24_	4, 009, 915 364, 889	4, 247, 031 422, 076	3, 708, 656 338, 400	2, 583, 674	1, 540, 625	1, 199, 867
Interest on partially tax-	302, 569	422,010	555, 400	280, 627	217, 610	182, 735
exempt Government ob-						
ligations 25. Other taxable interest	40, 553 1, 230, 178	40, 184 1, 257, 590	38, 134 1, 018, 001	25, 325 749, 345	29, 188 536, 541	31, 689 422, 731
Other income 26	196, 111	190, 110	130, 191	120, 845	67, 353	69, 656
Total income		19, 710, 168	13, 206, 817	9, 011, 581	5, 369, 646	5, 107, 539
	10, 120, 210	10, 710, 100	10, 200, 011		0,000,040	0, 107, 002
Deductions: 20 Net loss from sales of real		١,				
estate, stocks, bonds, etc.	129, 865	632, 693	947, 121	813, 503	174, 627	152, 959
Capital net loss	(39)	]]	01,, 1-1	1 010,000	11.2, 02.	
Net loss from business Net loss from partnership 22	39)	(39)	105, 219	72, 125°	46, 972	26, 792
Interest paid 30	866, 058	886. 187	574, 630	373, 603	250, 844	208, 311
Taxes paid 30	475, 422	479, 100	407, 996	294, 165	230, 543	200, 078
Contributions 27 Other deductions 28	390, 923 604, 987	384, 458 631, 836	286, 218 364, 544	202, 979 313, 573	139, 846 283, 046	111, 219 245, 068
					200, 010	
Total deductions 28	2, 467, 255	3, 014, 274	2, 685, 728	2, 069, 948	1, 125, 878	960, 022
Net income	16, 955, 961	16, 695, 895	10, 521, 088	6, 941, 633	4, 243, 768	4, 147, 517
· •	1 ' '	1	, ,,	/,	, ,	, = -, -2.

Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income of \$5,000 and over, 1916-1940: Sources of income, deductions, and net income 12—Continued

### [Money figures in thousands of dollars]

Distribution	1934	1935	1936	1937
Number of returns	422, 647	500, 115	677, 011	705, 033
Income: 10 Salaries, wages, commissions, etc. 11 Business profit Partnership profit 12 Net capital gain 31 Rents and royalties Dividends received 23 Income from fiduciaries 24 Interest on partially tax-exempt Government obligations 23 Other taxable interest. Other income 38	160, 218 165, 786 1, 585, 042 203, 854 38, 044 453, 480	2, 708, 879 687, 467 531, 620 399, 918 198, 210 1, 814, 184 232, 324 43, 820 448, 022 123, 234	3, 493, 623 1, 021, 608 791, 010 806, 916 271, 556 2, 583, 888 691, 024 43, 627 445, 355 108, 784	3, 819, 979 1, 062, 875 827, 058 325, 270 324, 869 2, 780, 529 703, 920 47, 955 431, 923 91, 931
Total income	6, 012, 662	7, 187, 678	10, 257, 390	10, 416, 309
Deductions: <sup>10</sup> Net loss from business. Net loss from partnership <sup>21</sup> Net capital loss <sup>31</sup> Interest paid <sup>30</sup> Taxes paid <sup>30</sup> Contributions <sup>37</sup> Other deductions <sup>35</sup>	15, 178 90, 968 231, 267 232, 490	33, 713 13, 113 68, 981 240, 731 267, 571 148, 180 319, 993	45, 125 12, 551 62, 828 285, 260 353, 986 202, 147 400, 864	54, 680 16, 535 139, 832 265, 243 431, 620 218, 614 473, 724
Total deductions <sup>18</sup> Net income		1, 092, 283 6, 095, 394	1, 362, 762 8, 894, 628	1, 600, 248 8, 816, 061

For footnotes, see pp. 66-67.

Individual returns and returns of fiduciaries, with net income of \$5,000 and over, 1916-1940: Sources of income, deductions, and net income 12—Continued

### [Money figures in thousands of dollars]

Distribution	1938	1939	1940
Number of returns	592, 446	693, 590	770, 929
Income: 20	[ <del></del>		
Salaries, wages, commissions, etc. 21	3, 309, 286	3, 714, 025	4, 263, 278
Business profit	856, 740	1,071,024	1, 289, 159
Partnership profit 22	702, 317	860, 453	1, 030, 008
Net capital gain: 31		, , ,	, ,
Short-term:			
Current year net short-term capital gain		132, 971	84, 69
Net short-term capital loss of preceding taxable year de-	į	,	.,
ducted		17, 687	3, 61
Net short-term capital gain included in total income	101, 822	115, 284	81.08
Long-term capital gain	282, 712	180, 434	217, 91
Net gain from sales of property other than capital assets 32	9, 953	13, 421	17. 30
Rents and royalties	298, 349	323, 491	361, 41
Dividends received 23	1, 662, 511	2, 030, 020	2, 242, 94
Income from fiduciaries 24	503, 905	591, 112	639.99
Interest on partially tax-exempt Government obligations 25	46,065	51, 740	51, 69
Other taxable interest	350, 031	367, 806	357, 87
Other income 26	80, 427	76, 672	96, 40
Total income	8, 204, 120	9, 395, 482	10, 649, 07
Deductions: 20			
Net loss from business	48, 185	49, 816	55, 82
Net loss from business.  Net loss from partnership 22	15, 377	16, 203	14, 80
Net long-term capital loss 31	246, 213	195, 107	240, 91
Net loss from sales of property other than capital assets 32	9, 503	11, 858	14, 73
Interest paid 30	209, 986	222, 578	225, 62
Taxes paid 30		392, 102	423, 71
Contributions 27	177, 207	210, 003	241, 15
Losses from fire, storm, etc. 33	(39)	8, 797	14, 32
Bad debts 33	(39)	51, 380	52, 13
Bad debts <sup>33</sup> Other deductions <sup>28</sup>	318, 057	263, 446	262, 29
Total deductions 28	1, 405, 932	1, 421, 289	1, 545, 52
Net income	6, 798, 188	7, 974, 192	9, 103, 54

For footnotes, see pp. 66-67.

(Facsimiles of Forms 1040, 1040A, and 1041 for 1940, to which references are made, appear on pages 262-279)

- 1 Changes in the provisions of the Federal tax laws ( affecting the comparability of statistical data from income tax returns of individuals and fiduciaries are summarized on pages 242-252.
- 2 Data for years prior to 1916 in tables on pages 47-48 secured from annual reports of the Commissioner of Internal Revenue. Information for 1916 through 1936 tabulated from Forms 1040 and 1040A filed for individuals and for estates and trusts. Information for 1937 through 1940 tabulated from Forms 1040 and 1040A filed for individuals, taxable Forms 1041 filed for estates and trusts, and Forms 1040 incorrectly filed for estates and trusts (except that 1938-1940 exclude information on nontaxable Forms 1040 with net income, incorrectly filed for estates and trusts).
- 3 Data are not available prior to 1928. For 1937-1940 includes returns with total deductions equal
- 4 For 1913-1915 net income is estimated from the number of returns filed and the average net income for each net income class. On returns for estates and trusts net income is after deduction of amount distributable to beneficiaries.
- 5 Taxes for 1913-1915 are receipts for fiscal year ended June 30, immediately following, as shown in annual reports of the Commissioner of Internal Revenue, which receipts include fines, penalties, additional assessments, etc. In those years surtax was called "additional tax." Taxes for 1916 and subsequent years tabulated from returns. For 1940, includes defense tax.
- 6 The alternative tax is reported on 1938-1940 returns (1) with not long-term capital gain if such alternative tax is less than the sum of the normal tax and surtax computed on net income including net long-term capital gain, and (2) with net long-term capital loss if such alternative tax is greater than the sum of the normal tax and surtax computed on net income after deducting net long-term capital loss.
- 7 For limit of credit, see page 250.
- 8 Returns for 1913 pertain to last 10 months of that
- Includes war excess-profits taxes of \$101,249,781 on individuals and \$103,887,984 on partnerships.
- 10 Revised.

1920: For revised amounts of certain sources of income for returns with net income under \$5,000, see Statistics of Income for 1935, Part 1, page 42, note 4.

1923: For revised amount of net income and tax, see Statistics of Income for 1925, pages 28-29. 1929: For revised amounts of sources of income and deductions for returns with net income

under \$5,000, see Statistics of Income for 1934, Part 1, page 31, note 18.

1930: For revised amounts of other income, total income, contributions, other deductions. and total deductions for returns with net income under \$5,000, see Statistics of Income for 1937,

Part 1, page 47, note 25. 1932: For revised amounts of other deductions, total deductions, and net income for returns with net income under \$5,000, see Statistics of Income for 1935, Part 1, page 31, note 6.

- 11 Amounts are before 25 percent reduction provided by section 1200(a), Revenue Act of 1924,
- 12 The 25 percent reduction provided by section 1200(a), Revenue Act of 1924.
- 18 Amount after deduction of 25 percent reduction provided by section 1200(a), Revenue Act of 1924.
- 14 For 1938-1940 includes alternative tax on individnal returns with no net income.

- 15 For returns with net income under \$5,000, the distribution of the number of returns by net income classes (pages 48-50), the amount and distribution of net income and tax by net income classes (pages 50-53), and of sources of income and deductions (pages 54-60) are estimated on basis of samples for 1918 through 1927 and for 1929; and partly estimated and partly tabulated for 1917, 1928, 1930, and subsequent years. In the table on page 48, the number of returns for 1913 is omitted, as it pertains to the last 10 months of the year only.
- 16 Excludes 7,635 returns of married women making separate returns from husbands. For 1916 the net income on returns filed separately by husband and wife is combined and the total appears as one return. For all other years the returns of married women filed separately are included in their respective income classes regardless of the husband's income.
- 17 Deficit.
- 18 Returns with no net income due to net long-term capital loss, on which the tax computed on net income before the deduction of net long-term capital loss, exceeds 30 percent of the net long-term capital
- 19 Excludes data for 1,610,758 returns with net income under \$2,000 showing a net income of \$2,461,137,000.
- 20 For 1916, income from the various sources represents gross receipts, the deductions not having been allocated to the various sources but included in aggregate under "Deductions." Beginning with 1917, income from the various sources is the net amount by which the gross receipts exceed deductions as reported in the schedules on the return. Net losses reported under "Income" items on the face of the return are transferred in tabulation to deductions, and are included in the amounts tabulated under specified or other deductions
- 21 Reported on returns for individuals. Beginning 1924, excludes wages and salaries of the individual, his wife, or dependent minors derived from business conducted as a sole proprietor. Prior to 1924 such wages and salaries were reported as income under "Wages and salaries." For 1916 through 1926, includes taxpayer's carned income from partnership. For 1916, includes "Professions and vocations.
- 22 Certain income from partnerships is reported in other sources (see notes 23, 25, and 29). Beginning 1936, amount includes all dividends received by partnerships. Prior to 1936, partnership profit excludes dividends on stock of domestic corporations subject to Federal income taxation, and for 1932 and 1933 excludes dividends on stock of corporations not subject to Foderal income taxation. For 1934 through 1937, amount includes not capital gain or loss from sales or exchanges of capital assets by partnerships (see note 31). For 1918 through 1921, amount includes income from fiduciaries, and income from personal service corporations as defined in the Revenue Acts of 1918 and 1921 (except certain amounts reported in other sources, see notes 23 and 25). Partnership profit for 1916 was tabulated with business profit.
- 23 Beginning 1936, dividends include those on stock of domestic and foreign corporations, except divi-dends received through partnerships and fiduciaries. Prior to 1936, amount includes dividends on stock of domestic corporations subject to taxation under Title I of the effective revenue law, and until 1934. the dividends received on stock of foreign corporations deriving more than half their gross income from sources within the United States, including those received through partnerships and fiduciaries; dividends received through personal service corporations, 1918 through 1921; and stock dividends, 1916 through

Footnotes for historical tables, pages 47-65 .- Continued.

- <sup>24</sup> Certain income from fiduciaries is reported in torical summary of taxes paid for the years 1927 other sources (see notes 23, 25, and 29). Beginning through 1932 and of interest paid for the years 1928 1936, amount includes all dividends received by through 1932, for returns with net income of \$5,000 fiduciaries. Prior to 1936, dividends received by iduciaries on stock of domestic corporations subject to taxation under Title I of the effective revenue laws were tabulated under "Dividends received," while dividends on stock of foreign corporations (other than those deriving more than half their gross income from sources in the United States) and, except for 1932 and 1933, dividends on stock of domestic corporations not subject to taxation under Title I of the effective revenue laws, were left in income from fiduciaries. For 1934 through 1937, amount includes net capital gain or loss from sales or exchanges of capital assets received from an estate or trust (see note 31). For 1917, income from fiduciaries; is included in "Interest and other income"; for 1918 through 1921, in "Partnership profit."
- 25 Interest on partially tax-exempt Government obligations received from United States savings bonds and Treasury bonds owned in excess of \$5,000 and obligations of certain instrumentalities of the United States, including such interest received through partnerships and fiduciaries, and for 1919 through 1921, such interest received through personal service corporations. For 1917 and 1918, this interest is tabulated in "Interest and other income."
- <sup>26</sup> Beginning 1936, amount excludes dividends received on (1) stock of domestic corporations not subject to Federal income taxation, and (2) stock of foreign corporations. For years prior to 1936, includes dividends received from these two types of corporations, except when reported in partnership and fiduciary income, and until 1934, excluded dividends received from foreign corporations deriving more than half their gross income from sources within the United States. For 1917, includes income from fiduciaries. For 1917 and 1918, includes in-terest on partially tax-exempt Government obliga-
- 27 Reported on individual returns.
- 28 For returns with net income, includes amount distributable to beneficiaries on returns for estates and trusts, Forms 1040, 1040A, and 1041. For 1924 through 1928, includes loss from capital assets held over 2 years.
- 29 Capital net gain received by individuals, estates, or trusts including that received through partnerships or fiduciaries was taxed at special rate, 1922
- 80 Excludes amounts reported in schedules for business profits, and rents and royalties. A his-

- and over, showing separately the amount reported in general deductions from total income and that reported in business deductions, is found in Statistics of Income for 1932, table 8-A, page 80.
- 31 Net capital gain or loss from sales or exchanges of capital assets (regardless of time held) by indi-viduals, estates, and trusts, after certain limitations are applied. For 1934 through 1937, excludes not capital gain or loss received through partnerships or fiduciaries, which amounts are included in partnership profits and in income from fiduciaries, respectively. For 1938 through 1940, net short-term capital gain on capital assets held 18 months or less, net long-term capital gain or loss on capital assets held over 18 months. Not short-term capital loss is not deductible in the current year but is carried forward to the succeeding year in an amount not in excess of net income for the year in which the loss is sustained and can be deducted only to the extent of the net short-term capital gain in such succeeding year. Consequently, the first such deduction appears in 1939.
- 32 For 1938 through 1940, gain or loss from sales of property used in trade or business of a character which is subject to the allowance for depreciation.
- 33 Reported on individual returns, Form 1040, and excludes amounts reported in schedules for business profit, and rents and royalties. Losses from fire, storm, shipwreck, or other casualty, or from theft, are those not compensated for by insurance or otherwise.
- <sup>34</sup> For 1916, includes partnership profit and profit from sales of all stocks, bonds, etc., but excludes income from "Professions and vocations."
- 35 Profit from sales of real estate, stocks, bonds, etc. and partnership profit included in business profit
- 36 Included in "Interest and other income."
- 37 Included in "Partnership profit."
- 35 Such obligations were issued after September 1,
- 30 Included in "Other deductions."
- 40 Exclusive of returns of married women making separate returns from husbands.
- 41 Contributions for 1920 not available for returns with net income of \$5,000 and over. Included in "Other deductions."

#### PARTNERSHIP RETURNS OF INCOME, 1917-1940

Partnership returns of income, except for the war excess-profits tax of 1917, are not subject to direct assessments of Federal income tax. However, every domestic partnership and every foreign partnership doing business in the United States or having an office or place of business therein is required to file a return of income on Form 1065 (facsimile on pages 280–287). "The term 'partnership' includes a syndicate, group, pool, joint venture, or other unincorporated organization, through or by means of which any business, financial operation, or venture is carried on, and which is not, within the meaning of this title, a trust or estate or a corporation \* \* \*'' (section 3797(a)(2), Internal Revenue Code). The net profit, or the net loss, of the partnership, whether distributed or not, is reported on the individual income tax returns of the copartners according to their proportionate share.

The number of partnership returns, Form 1065, filed for the income years 1917 through 1940, as reported by the collectors of internal revenue, include calendar year returns, fiscal and part year returns filed during the succeeding calendar year regardless of month in which the income year ended, and delinquent returns.

Income year:	Number of partnership returns	Number of partnership returns
1917	31 701	1929 263, 519
1918		
1919		
1920	240, 767	1932 216, 712
1921	259, 359	1933 214, 881
1922		
1923	304, 996	1935 222, 293
1924		1936 237, 367
1925		1937 261, 470
1926		1938 273, 361
1927		1939 290, 876
1928		1940 372, 796

#### SOURCE BOOK DATA

The Source Book is a comprehensive compilation of data tabulated from individual income tax returns for 1927–1939, inclusive, and from corporation income tax returns for 1926–1939, inclusive. These data are supplementary to the published volumes, "Statistics of Income." It is planned to add to the Source Book the information from the 1940 returns.

The following data in the Source Book for individual income tax returns are classified by States and Territories, by taxable and non-taxable returns, and by net income classes: The sources of income and deductions (as published for each year in the Statistics of Income), total income, total deductions, net income, personal exemption and credit for dependents (combined for 1927–1932 and shown separately for 1933–1938), earned income credit for 1934–1938, net loss for prior year for 1927–1932, normal tax, surtax, 12½ percent tax on capital net gain for 1927–1933, 12½ percent tax credit for capital net loss for 1927–1933, tax credit for earned income for 1927–1931, alternative tax for 1938 and 1939, and total tax. The number of returns with net income and the amount of net income for 1927–1939, personal exemption for 1937–1939, and credit for dependents for 1937–1939 are

classified by States and Territories, by taxable and nontaxable returns, by net income classes, and by sex and family relationship. The items "Amount owned" and "Interest received" which are reported for each type of wholly and partially tax-exempt Government obligations on returns with net income of \$5,000 and over for 1932–1939, inclusive, are classified by States and Territories and by net income classes.

The Source Book is maintained in the Statistical Section, Income Tax Unit, Bureau of Internal Revenue, and is available for research purposes to officials of the Federal and State Governments and to qualified students representing accredited organizations. To obtain data from the Source Book, written permission must be secured from the Commissioner of Internal Revenue.

### BASIC TABLES

Tables showing information from individual and taxable fiduciary returns in detail are set forth in the following pages. Four tables, numbers 1, 2, 3, and 7, present composite data for individual and taxable fiduciary returns. One table, number 8, shows details for individual returns but only the aggregate for taxable fiduciary returns. Eight tables, numbers 1-A, 2-A, 3-A, 4, 5, 6, 7-A, and 9, contain data for individual returns exclusively, and three tables, numbers 2-B, 7-B, and 10, contain data for taxable fiduciary returns exclusively.

# BASIC TABLES 1-10

TAXABLE AND NONTAXABLE INDIVIDUAL INCOME AND DEFENSE TAX RETURNS WITH NET INCOME AND WITH NO NET INCOME, AND TAXABLE FIDUCIARY INCOME AND DEFENSE TAX RETURNS WITH NET INCOME

Table 1.—Individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns, with net income, and individual returns with no net income, 1940, by States and Territories: Population, percent of population filing returns, total number of returns, and total tax; for returns with net income, number of returns, net income, personal exemption, credit for dependents, and tax; for returns with no net income, number of returns, deficit, and alternative tax

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-7 and 8-9]

	Population April 1,	Percent	Total num- ber of indi-		Individu	al returns and to	axable fiduciary	returns 3 with	net income		ual returns v net income 4	
States and Territories	1940 (Sixteenth Census) (in thou- sands)	of popu- lation filing returns	vidual and taxable fiduciary returns (col. 6+11)	Total tax <sup>2</sup> (col. 10+13)	Number of returns	Net income 3	Persona! exemption <sup>8</sup>	Credit for dependents (individual returns)	Tax 1	Number of returns	Deficit	Alterna tive tax
(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	′ (6)	(7)	(8)	(9)	(10)	(11)	(12)	(13)
Alabama Alaska Arizona Arkansas California Oonado Oonado Oonectient Delaware District of Columbia Florida Georgia Hawaii daho Illinois Indiana Oowa Kansas Kentucky Louisiana Maine Maryland Massechusetts Michigan Mississippi Mississuri Montana Nebraska New Hampshire New Jersey New Mexico	73 499 1, 949 6, 907 1, 123 1, 709 267 863 1, 897 3, 124 423 625 7, 897 3, 428 2, 338 1, 801 2, 846 2, 364 2, 364 2, 37 3, 124 4, 317 5, 256 2, 792 2, 184 3, 785 5, 599 1, 316	7, 32 4, 67 5, 48 8, 45 15, 76 16, 62 14, 57 10, 97 1, 93 11, 91 18, 93 11, 02 17, 75	738, 635	\$7, 774, 296 552, 792 2, 206, 813 3, 502, 322 95, 024, 023 9, 066, 207 45, 538, 914 33, 002, 197 16, 139, 827 27, 896, 353 14, 632, 879 4, 534, 185 24, 227, 069 8, 500, 826 5, 266, 453 9, 174, 993 11, 161, 532 5, 688, 616 28, 303, 560 68, 825, 510 78, 541, 690 17, 743, 488 2, 843, 973 31, 845, 990 17, 743, 488 2, 843, 973 31, 845, 990 2, 474, 469 4, 866, 92 2, 474, 469 4, 866, 92 3, 193, 649 3, 764, 102 74, 753, 669 2, 025, 510	99, 990 13, 956 42, 932 49, 603 1, 205, 853 109, 226 331, 727 38, 422 162, 095 139, 786 129, 411 42, 952 43, 430 1, 272, 565 352, 182 252, 638 129, 473 131, 909 128, 202 70, 776 285, 629 670, 697 762, 766 303, 364 47, 732 329, 338 65, 985 106, 211 20, 716 53, 634 734, 292 29, 168	\$248, 275, 665 31, 382, 493 101, 476, 402 124, 786, 767 2, 911, 717, 553 266, 288, 094 835, 451, 570 156, 873, 599 428, 901, 292 400, 773, 198 3360, 653, 957 110, 279, 004 83, 678, 316 3, 315, 370, 138 813, 411, 986 477, 609, 036 266, 463, 951 321, 065, 255 324, 675, 957 723, 501, 295 1, 711, 246, 877 1, 953, 151, 128 647, 399, 887 117, 402, 660 801, 640, 942 145, 148, 291 227, 057, 232 53, 299, 834 117, 784, 805 1, 850, 604, 062 71, 150, 098	\$158, 098, 955 20, 417, 609 64, 340, 716 81, 174, 667 1, 778, 168, 201 167, 521, 249 473, 845, 519 56, 696, 790 226, 472, 784 213, 890, 468 201, 765, 573 60, 582, 240 64, 412, 279 1, 944, 022, 454 539, 663, 861 389, 531, 942 202, 2943, 732 192, 401, 354 421, 680, 589, 546 421, 680, 589, 546 421, 680, 589, 546 421, 680, 589, 546 421, 680, 567 6, 314, 823 505, 043, 898 465, 470, 539 76, 314, 823 505, 043, 898 101, 093, 446 14, 577, 550 29, 618, 303 77, 917, 719 1, 119, 400, 647 44, 323, 196	\$30, 230, 996 \$3, 862, 891 12, 556, 603 15, 994, 644 264, 670, 931 27, 478, 247 73, 501, 444 9, 016, 413 32, 198, 692 36, 447, 601 37, 697, 999 16, 046, 863 13, 214, 135 331, 568, 214 86, 637, 700 69, 808, 214 33, 909, 953 36, 526, 685 37, 064, 844 16, 859, 223 70, 279, 341 171, 227, 297 221, 386, 989 14, 791, 253 80, 418, 872 18, 021, 631 29, 854, 338 4, 753, 297 12, 457, 896 193, 302, 608 9, 182, 607	\$7, 774, 296 552, 792 2, 206 552, 792 2, 206 5024, 023 9, 066, 024 16, 132, 990 27, 896, 944 16, 132, 990 27, 896, 343 14, 632, 879 4, 534, 185 1, 138, 436 134, 253, 501 24, 227, 069 8, 500, 826 5, 266, 456 5, 266, 456 5, 266, 456 5, 266, 486 5, 268, 686 76, 805 174, 993 11, 161, 532 2, 89, 655 68, 768, 051 78, 566, 057 77, 743, 488 2, 843, 973 3, 104 4, 859, 798 3, 193, 649 3, 764, 102 74, 721, 669 2, 025, 510	865 110 678 677 13, 392 1, 359 1, 677 185 512 2, 225 713 8, 234 2, 279 3, 359 1, 047 1, 289 2, 392 2, 392 1, 1, 356 2, 892 2, 361 1, 1002 2, 892 2, 361 1, 002 2, 659 1, 702 2, 659 1, 702 2, 689 1, 702 2, 894 2, 894 3, 343 4, 343 4, 343	\$2, 487, 123 280, 709 1, 719, 315 1, 174, 461 34, 553, 528 2, 551, 193 5, 624, 319 7, 240, 607 1, 344, 520 7, 109, 587 3, 122, 967 424, 422 424, 422 3, 608, 433 3, 608, 755 3, 769, 271 3, 269, 608, 433 3, 609, 755 3, 769, 271 3, 226, 601 3, 226, 601 3, 226, 601 3, 226, 601 3, 226, 601 3, 536, 465 1, 981, 833 7, 024, 434 959, 288 2, 223, 588 2, 223, 588 2, 223, 588 2, 223, 588 2, 224, 588 2, 233, 37 910, 606 12, 601, 591 1, 237, 446	\$15, 22 7, 43 19, 9- 13, 94 57, 4- 25, 61

13, 479	10 20 1	0 10= 100									
10, 210	16. 30	2, 197, 406	323, 349, 489	2, 180, 949	5, 864, 379, 657	3, 330, 859, 886	597, 986, 711	323, 154, 620	16, 457	67, 261, 596	194, 869
3, 572	3. 62	129, 464	14, 021, 956	128, 582							
642	6. 24	40, 034	754, 261	39, 235	75, 195, 319						
6, 908	13. 16	909, 137	86, 720, 121	905, 162	2, 277, 910, 584	1, 390, 368, 596					68, 970
2, 336	4.89	114, 226	8, 811, 931	112, 417	278, 140, 347	184, 351, 226					
1,090	11.46	124, 846	6, 845, 081	123, 635	275, 685, 850	182, 280, 200	26, 764, 386				
9, 900	12.46	1, 233, 984	137, 973, 148	1, 227, 243	3, 057, 110, 484	1, 892, 634, 724	308, 191, 808				15, 294
713	14. 56	103, 830	12, 687, 863	103, 271	250, 893, 802						
1, 900	3.38	64, 148	3, 711, 028	63, 585	142, 394, 934			3, 711, 028			
643	6, 04	38, 851	816, 372	38, 018	67, 425, 174	59, 182, 431					
2, 916	4. 78	139, 451	14, 290, 918	138, 602	357, 764, 786	216, 802, 165					
6, 415	7. 22	462, 872	41, 051, 226	457, 136	1, 162, 277, 793	697, 828, 445			5, 736		
550	7, 21	39, 696	2, 012, 409	39, 460	94, 234, 638						
359	9.69	34, 818	2, 281, 256	34, 454	74, 476, 230	52, 230, 065					
2, 678	6, 89	184, 370	20, 704, 365	183, 289	477, 918, 446	278, 293, 675	48, 785, 651	20, 704, 365			
				247, 134	545, 693, 694	352, 384, 435	51, 520, 692	12, 821, 445			
			7, 578, 609	125, 077	303, 720, 764	191, 693, 204	38, 655, 373				
			19, 853, 932	332, 382	727, 472, 132	502, 766, 843	82, 422, 111	19, 838, 907			15, 025
251	11. 57	~ 29,016	1, 584, 096	28, 596	66, 439, 781	44, 882, 762	8, 675, 759	1, 584, 096	420	690, 480	
				! <i>-</i>							I———
132, 165	11. 18	14, 778, 159	1, 496, 403, 386	14, 665, 462	36, 588, 545, 894	22, 227, 130, 297	3, 835, 338, 104	1, 495, 930, 433	112, 697	311, 384, 572	472, 953
	3, 572 642 6, 908 2, 336 1, 090 9, 900 713 1, 900 643 2, 916 6, 415 550 359 2, 678 1, 736 1, 902 3, 138 2, 251	3, 572 3. 62 6. 24 6. 908 13. 16 2. 336 4. S9 9.00 11. 46 9.900 12. 46 6. 47 13. 14. 56 14. 56 15. 550 7. 21 359 9. 69 2. 678 6. S9 1. 736 14. 35 1. 902 3. 138 10. 67 251 11. 57	3, 572 3, 62 40, 034 6, 908 13.16 909, 137 1, 909 11.46 124, 846 0, 900 12.46 1, 233, 984 713 14, 56 103, 830 1, 900 3, 38 64, 148 643 6, 04 38, 851 6, 415 7, 22 462, 872 550 7, 21 39, 696 3, 39 9, 69 34, 818 2, 916 4, 78 139, 451 6, 415 7, 22 462, 872 550 7, 21 39, 696 3, 99, 696 3, 184, 187 2, 678 6, 89 184, 370 1, 736 14, 35 249, 156 1, 902 6, 61 125, 763 3, 138 10, 67 334, 887 251 11, 57 29, 016	3, 572 3, 62 129, 464 14, 021, 956 6, 908 13, 16 909, 137 86, 720, 121 1, 090 11, 46 124, 846 6, 845, 081 14, 226 84, 50 81, 231 984 16, 845, 081 1, 090 12, 46 1, 233, 984 137, 973, 148 713 14, 56 103, 830 12, 687, 863 1, 900 3, 33 64, 148 3, 711, 028 643 6, 04 38, 851 2, 91, 14, 290, 918 6, 415 7, 22 462, 872 41, 051, 22 550 7, 21 39, 696 2, 012, 409 359 9, 69 34, 818 2, 281, 249, 156 1, 730 14, 35 249, 156 12, 821, 445 1, 902 6, 61 125, 763 7, 578, 696 2, 138, 106 7 334, 887 19, 853, 932 251 11, 57 29, 016	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	3         5.72         3. 62         1.29. 464         14, 021, 956         128, 582         312, 865, 287         189, 102, 029           6, 908         13. 16         909, 137         86, 720, 121         905, 162         2, 277, 910, 584         1, 380, 388, 596           1, 909         11. 46         124, 846         6, 845, 081         112, 417         278, 140, 347         184, 351, 226           9, 900         12. 46         1, 233, 984         137, 973, 148         1, 227, 243         3, 057, 110, 484         1, 843, 51, 226           1, 900         3. 38         64, 148         3, 711, 028         63, 585         142, 394, 934         96, 767, 151           1, 900         3. 38         64, 148         3, 711, 028         63, 585         142, 394, 934         96, 767, 151           1, 901         4. 78         139, 461         14, 290, 918         138, 602         357, 764, 786         216, 802, 802           2, 916         4. 78         139, 461         14, 290, 918         138, 602         357, 764, 786         216, 802, 165           550         7, 21         39, 666         2, 012, 409         39, 460         4, 747, 93         94, 234, 638         64, 588, 421           359         9, 69         34, 818         2, 281, 256 <td><math display="block">\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc</math></td> <td><math display="block">\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc</math></td> <td>3 572         3. 62         129,464         14,021,956         128,582         312,865,287         189,102,029         36,644,638         14,021,956         882           6,908         13. 16         909,137         86,720,121         905,162         2,277,910,584         1,390,388,596         234,186,965         86,651,151         3,975           2,336         4.89         114,226         8,811,931         112,417         278,140,347         184,351,226         36,671,743         8,811,931         1,890,388,596           9,900         12,46         1,233,984         137,973,148         1,227,243         3,057,110,484         1,890,388,596         234,186,965         86,651,151         3,975           1,900         3,38         64,148         3,711,028         63,585         182,280,200         26,764,386         6,845,081         1,291,687,685         6,741           1,900         3,38         64,148         3,711,028         63,585         142,394,934         96,767,151         19,754,536         3,795,584         6,741           1,900         3,38         64,148         3,711,028         63,585         142,394,934         96,767,151         19,754,536         3,711,028         863,585         142,394,934         96,767,151         19,754,536</td> <td>3 572 3 62 129, 464 14, 021, 956 128, 582 312, 865, 287 189, 102, 029 36, 644, 688 14, 021, 956 882 2, 028, 531 6, 908 13. 16 909, 137 86, 720, 121 905, 162 2, 277, 910, 584 1, 390, 368, 596 234, 186, 965 86, 661, 151 3, 975 12, 520, 161 2, 336 4, 89 114, 224 848 6, 845, 081 123, 635 276, 585, 501 832, 280, 220 26, 764, 386 6, 845, 081 1, 211 2, 586, 287 6, 885, 501 832, 280, 220 26, 764, 386 6, 845, 081 1, 211 2, 586, 287 6, 885, 501 832, 280, 220 26, 764, 386 6, 845, 081 1, 211 2, 586, 287 6, 885, 501 832, 280, 280 26, 764, 386 6, 845, 081 1, 211 2, 586, 227 6, 885, 501 832, 280, 280 26, 764, 386 6, 845, 081 1, 211 2, 586, 227 6, 885, 501 832, 280, 280 26, 764, 386 6, 845, 081 1, 211 2, 586, 227 6, 885, 501 832, 280, 280 26, 764, 386 6, 845, 081 1, 211 2, 586, 227 6, 885, 501 832, 280, 280 26, 764, 386 6, 845, 081 1, 211 2, 586, 227 6, 885, 501 832, 280, 280 26, 764, 386 6, 845, 081 1, 211 2, 586, 227 6, 885, 501 832, 280, 280, 281, 281, 281, 281, 281, 281, 281, 281</td>	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	3 572         3. 62         129,464         14,021,956         128,582         312,865,287         189,102,029         36,644,638         14,021,956         882           6,908         13. 16         909,137         86,720,121         905,162         2,277,910,584         1,390,388,596         234,186,965         86,651,151         3,975           2,336         4.89         114,226         8,811,931         112,417         278,140,347         184,351,226         36,671,743         8,811,931         1,890,388,596           9,900         12,46         1,233,984         137,973,148         1,227,243         3,057,110,484         1,890,388,596         234,186,965         86,651,151         3,975           1,900         3,38         64,148         3,711,028         63,585         182,280,200         26,764,386         6,845,081         1,291,687,685         6,741           1,900         3,38         64,148         3,711,028         63,585         142,394,934         96,767,151         19,754,536         3,795,584         6,741           1,900         3,38         64,148         3,711,028         63,585         142,394,934         96,767,151         19,754,536         3,711,028         863,585         142,394,934         96,767,151         19,754,536	3 572 3 62 129, 464 14, 021, 956 128, 582 312, 865, 287 189, 102, 029 36, 644, 688 14, 021, 956 882 2, 028, 531 6, 908 13. 16 909, 137 86, 720, 121 905, 162 2, 277, 910, 584 1, 390, 368, 596 234, 186, 965 86, 661, 151 3, 975 12, 520, 161 2, 336 4, 89 114, 224 848 6, 845, 081 123, 635 276, 585, 501 832, 280, 220 26, 764, 386 6, 845, 081 1, 211 2, 586, 287 6, 885, 501 832, 280, 220 26, 764, 386 6, 845, 081 1, 211 2, 586, 287 6, 885, 501 832, 280, 220 26, 764, 386 6, 845, 081 1, 211 2, 586, 287 6, 885, 501 832, 280, 280 26, 764, 386 6, 845, 081 1, 211 2, 586, 227 6, 885, 501 832, 280, 280 26, 764, 386 6, 845, 081 1, 211 2, 586, 227 6, 885, 501 832, 280, 280 26, 764, 386 6, 845, 081 1, 211 2, 586, 227 6, 885, 501 832, 280, 280 26, 764, 386 6, 845, 081 1, 211 2, 586, 227 6, 885, 501 832, 280, 280 26, 764, 386 6, 845, 081 1, 211 2, 586, 227 6, 885, 501 832, 280, 280 26, 764, 386 6, 845, 081 1, 211 2, 586, 227 6, 885, 501 832, 280, 280, 281, 281, 281, 281, 281, 281, 281, 281

Table 1-A.—Individual returns with net income and with no net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by States and Territories: Total number of returns and total tax; for returns with net income, number of returns, net income, personal exemption, credit for dependents, and tax; for returns with no net income, number of returns, deficit, and alternative tax

	Total			Ret	turns with net in	come		Returns	with no net	income 4
States and Territories	number of returns (col. 4+9)	Total tax <sup>1</sup> (col. 8+11)	Number of returns	Net income	Personal exemption 5	Credit for dependents	Tax 2	Number of returns	Deficit	Alterna- tive tax 6
(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)	(8)	(9)	(10)	(11)
Alabama	100, 479	\$7, 588, 518	99, 614	\$246, 836, 197	\$157, 964, 788	\$30, 230, 996	\$7, 588, 518	865 110	\$2, 487, 123 280, 709	
Alaska	14, 059	551, 576	13, 949	31, 354, 585	20, 412, 009	3, 862, 891	551, 576 2, 1S1, 860	678	1. 719. 315	
Arizona	.1 43, 498	2, 181, 860	42,820	101, 124, 419	64, 277, 065	12, 556, 603 15, 994, 644	3, 475, 810	677	1, 719, 313	
Arkansas	50, 122	3, 475, 810	49, 445	124, 301, 483	81, 105, 033 1, 776, 370, 133	264, 670, 931	92, 055, 405	13. 392	34, 553, 528	
California		92, 055, 405	1, 201, 624	2, 894, 463, 138 264, 903, 406	167. 287, 082	27, 478, 247	8, 731, 077	1. 359	2, 531, 193	
Colorado	110, 060	8, 731, 077	10S, 701 329, 592	846, 772, 757	473, 148, 217	73, 501, 444	43 000 742	1, 677	5, 624, 319	
Connecticut	331. 269	43, 990, 742	37, 775	149, 401, 731	56, 594, 257	9, 016, 413	43, 990, 742 30, 283, 957	185	7, 240, 607	\$15, 253
Delaware District of Columbia	37, 960	30, 299, 210		426, 907, 992	226, 288, 884	32, 198, 692	15, 834, 785	512	1, 344, 520	7, 437
District of Columbia	162, 952	15, 842, 222	161, 540 138, 998	396, 139, 913	213, 525, 088	36, 447, 601	27, 064, 531	2, 225	7, 109, 587	1, 25.
Florida		27, 064, 531	138, 998	358, 131, 542	201, 580, 474	37, 697, 999	14, 121, 563	1, 176	3, 122, 967	
Georgia	130, 097	14, 121, 563	42,752	109, 253, 833	60, 514, 640	16, 046, 863	4, 336, 972	252	424, 422	
Hawaii		4, 336, 972 1, 122, 287	43, 361	83, 427, 921	64, 368, 779	13, 214, 135	1, 122, 287	713	857, 170	
Idaho	44, 074	130, 474, 612	1, 266, 390	3, 291, 836, 615	1, 942, 472, 190	331, 568, 214	130, 454, 668	8, 234	19, 608, 433	19, 944
Illinois	1, 274, 624	23, 676, 128	351, 410	809, 925, 905	539, 342, 338	86, 637, 700	23, 676, 128	2, 279	3, 696, 755	
Indiana	353, 689 254, 910	8, 184, 599	251, 551	474, 431, 117	388, 960, 858	69, 808, 214	8, 184, 599	3, 359	3, 769, 271	
Iowa		5, 152, 044		265, 045, 507	202, 680, 865	33, 909, 953	5, 152, 044	2, 339	3, 619, 345	
Kansas		8, 969, 489	131, 428	319, 545, 403	202, 747, 566	36, 526, 685	8, 969, 489	1, 047	2, 362, 191	
Kentucky Louisiana		11, 096, 893	128, 052	324, 034, 969	192, 333, 787	37, 064, 844	11, 096, 893	1, 289	3, 226, 691	
Maine		5, 518, 035	70, 296	156, 064, 743	101, 433, 879	16, 859, 223	5, 518, 035	819	1, 630, 234	
Mande		27, 802, 457	284, 457	719, 764, 666	421, 372, 325	70, 279, 341	27, 788, 552	1, 356,	4, 115, 087	13, 905
Maryland Massachusetts	668, 373	66, 135, 787	665, 007	1, 692, 141, 410	989, 324, 146	171, 227, 297	66, 078, 328	3, 366	8, 576, 826	57, 459
Michigan	763, 355	76, 679, 696		1, 941, 823, 782	1, 150, 605, 238	221, 386, 989	76, 654, 093	2, 892	10, 321, 002	25, 603
Minnesota		16, 854, 037	302, 368	641, 752, 253	465, 064, 439	94, 032, 169	16, 854, 037	2, 361	3, 536, 465	
Mississippi		2, 827, 537	47, 647	117, 120, 022	76, 268, 123	14, 791, 253	2, 827, 537	1,002	1, 931, 833	
Missouri		30, 865, 649		795, 442, 643	504, 546, 077	80, 418, 872	30, 865, 649	2, 827	7, 024, 434	
Montana		2, 436, 640		144, 738, 814	101, 023, 846	18, 021, 631	2, 436, 640	659	959, 268	
Nebraska		4, 744, 698	105, 873	226, 120, 300	164, 413, 414	29, 854, 333	4, 737, 504	1, 702	2, 223, 638	7, 194
Nevada		3, 079, 444	20,672	52, 826, 419	29, 596, 403	4, 753, 297	3, 079, 444	208	453, 137	
NewHampshire	53, 897	3, 703, 278		117, 129, 583	77, 808, 761	12, 457, 896	3, 703, 278	518	910, 606	
New Jersey	736, 351	69, 301, 507		1, 836, 480, 607	1, 118, 654, 871	193, 302, 608	69, 269, 507	4, 343	12, 601, 591	32, 000
New Mexico	29, 667	2, 018, 476		71, 017, 761	44, 291, 696	9, 182, 607	2, 018, 476	548	1, 237, 446	
New York		310, 251, 121		5, 806, 383, 367	3, 327, 238, 822	597, 986, 711	310, 056, 252	16, 457	67, 261, 596	
North Carolina	129, 031	13, 706, 265		310, 799, 714	188, 970, 941	36, 644. 638	13, 706, 265	882	2, 028, 531	
North Dakota		747, 718	39, 164	75, 031, 600	63, 432, 001	14, 577, 207	747, 718	799	1 831, 931	1

Ohio	905, 760	82, 721, 466	901, 785	2, 259, 569, 710	1, 389, 320, 269	234, 186, 965	82, 652, 496 1	3.975	1 12, 520, 161	68,970
Oklahoma	113, 833	8, 261, 558	112, 024	275, 488, 763	184, 195, 326	36, 671, 743	8, 261, 558	1,809	4, 549, 228	
Oregon	124, 532	6, 775, 119	123, 321	274, 809, 802	182, 140, 833	26, 764, 386	6, 775, 119	1, 211	2, 596, 227	
Pennsylvania		133, 541, 028	1, 221, 442	3, 034, 845, 942	1, 890, 984, 959	308, 191, 803	133, 525, 734	6, 741	21, 684, 906	
Rhode Island	102, 914	12, 254, 305	102, 355	248, 019, 545	148, 211, 273	24, 068, 070	12, 254, 305	559	2, 625, 866	
South Carolina	63, 996	3, 625, 017	63, 433	141, 694, 923	96, 686, 351	19, 754, 536	3, 625, 017	563	1, 257, 550	
South Dakota	38, 760	806, 920	37, 927	67, 215, 133	59, 121, 531	11, 493, 460	806, 920	833	979, 701	
Tennessee	139, 021	13, 174, 462	138, 172	354, 767, 051	216, 637, 832	39, 773, 050	13, 174, 462	849	2, 022, 300	
Texas.	461.083	39, 695, 308	455, 347	1, 153, 712, 786	697, 259, 612	124, 386, 686	39, 695, 308	5, 736	18, 075, 305	
Utah	39, 546	1, 914, 712	39, 310	93, 651, 446	64, 532, 821	16, 005, 835	1, 914, 712	236	489, 353	
Vermont	34, 655	2, 120, 454	34, 291	73, 875, 013	52, 149, 307	9, 772, 783	2, 120, 454	364		
Virginia	183, 603	20, 508, 019	182, 522	475, 990, 148	278, 027, 370	48, 785, 651	20, 508, 019	1, 081	2, 563, 807	
Washington	248, 348	12, 319, 355	246, 326	542, 672, 500	352, 090, 382	51, 520, 692	12, 319, 355	2, 022	4, 079, 579	
West Virginia	125, 404	7, 292, 559	124, 718	302, 033, 984	191, 535, 626	38, 655, 373	7, 292, 559	686	1, 909, 035	
Wisconsin	333, 497	19, 274, 669	330, 992	722, 720, 037	502, 214, 810	82, 422, 111	19, 259, 644	2, 505	4, 217, 516	15, 025
Wyoming	28, 936	1, 567, 263	28, 516	66, 170, 704	44, 834, 162	8, 675, 759	1, 567, 263	420	690, 480	
Total	14, 710, 771	1, 441, 440, 097	14, 598, 074	36, 309, 718, 604	22, 205, 961, 499	3, 835, 338, 104	1, 440, 967, 144	112, 697	311, 084, 572	472, 953
			· !			1			1	i

Table 2.—Individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns, with net income, 1940,1 by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income; and taxable returns by type of tax liability—Part I, all returns; Part II, returns with normal tax and surtax; and Part III, returns with alternative tax by returns with net long-term capital gain and returns with net long-term capital loss, showing the tax computation: Number of returns, net income, deficit, personal exemption, credit for dependents, earned income credit, taxes, average tax, and effective tax rate

### PART I-ALL RETURNS

Net income ³ classes (Thousands of dollars)	Number of returns	Net income 3	Personal exemption 5	Credit for dependents (individual returns)	Earned income credit (individual returns)
(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)
Taxable individual and fiduciary returns; 3 With net income: Under 1 (est.) 1 under 2 (est.) 2 under 2.5 (est.) 2.5 under 3 (est.) 3 under 4 (est.) 4 under 5 (est.) 5 under 6. 6 under 7. 7 under 8. 8 under 9. 9 under 10. 10 under 11. 11 under 12. 12 under 13. 13 under 14. 14 under 15. 15 inder 20. 20 under 25. 25 under 30. 30 under 40. 40 under 60. 60 under 70. 70 under 60. 60 under 70. 70 under 60. 60 under 70. 70 under 80. 80 under 90. 90 under 100.	558, 449 2, 910, 062 911, 823 914, 827 1, 018, 349 396, 348 219, 676 130, 302 84, 424 59, 328 45, 291 34, 205 21, 669 17, 870 21, 669 17, 270 21, 669 14, 309 15, 227 7, 728 4, 311 2, 639 1, 637 1, 221 8, 255 1, 964 665 291	\$495, 296, 524 4, 114, 601, 591 2, 092, 287, 082 2, 511, 444, 446 3, 487, 700, 157 1, 753, 855, 837 1, 199, 762, 992 841, 519, 083 630, 495, 113 502, 684, 799 429, 238, 872 339, 093, 521 313, 176, 474 3210, 456, 543 2210, 456, 543 2240, 890, 027 219, 024, 817 829, 985, 540 553, 013, 792 390, 323, 306 5523, 105, 646 343, 656, 918 225, 359, 727 170, 543, 258 125, 211, 734 103, 248, 614 78, 131, 235 235, 753, 575 113, 931, 604 64, 923, 269 64, 923, 269	\$398, 672, 044 2, 337, 494, 651 1, 290, 652, 623 1, 594, 792, 864 1, 833, 503, 587 704, 180, 584 385, 119, 599 225, 320, 408 144, 001, 857 100, 160, 626 76, 360, 711 57, 218, 363 45, 448, 131 35, 770, 005 29, 558, 742 24, 978, 618 79, 133, 033 40, 411, 482 23, 054, 619 24, 369, 371 12, 232, 606 6, 861, 0552 4, 153, 872 2, 659, 667 1, 898, 000 1, 272, 685 2, 976, 342 1, 029, 500 434, 034 444, 484 1, 434, 034	\$375, 943 53, 831, 797 26, 594, 283 98, 843, 910 273, 229, 923 144, 755, 856 89, 191, 025 55, 182, 997 35, 223, 310 24, 420, 582 18, 635, 142 14, 012, 882 11, 070, 571 8, 615, 369 7, 261, 348 6, 119, 660 19, 412, 892 9, 895, 794 5, 533, 870 5, 848, 954 2, 873, 357 1, 063, 545 006, 376 420, 258 313, 208 642, 920 219, 915 96, 874	

30         250 under 300         175         47,741,115         284,600         58,834           31         300 under 400         176         60,496,665         277,467         61,916           32         400 under 500         91         41,259,509         145,700         26,167           33         500 under 750         93         55,039,998         124,567         20,467           34         750 under 1,909         35         29,184,334         50,500         14,400           35         1,990 under 1,500         9         15,6779         44,483         7,884           36         1,500 under 2,000         9         15,475,199         13,300         2,000           37         2,000 under 3,000         6         14,078,874         8,100         400           38         3,000 under 4,000         4         13,412,879         7,000         2,167           39         4,000 under 2,000         4         13,412,879         7,000         2,167	153, 219 153, 868 68, 863 67, 742	
31     300 under 400.     176     60, 496, 665     277, 467     01, 910       32     400 under 500.     91     41, 259, 509     145, 700     26, 167       33     500 under 750.     93     55, 039, 98     124, 567     20, 467       34     750 under 1,000.     35     29, 184, 334     50, 500     14, 400       35     1,900 under 1,500.     29     34, 756, 779     44, 483     7, 884       36     1,500 under 2,000.     9     15, 475, 199     13, 300     2,000       37     2,000 under 3,000.     6     14, 078, 874     8, 100     400       38     3,000 under 4,000.     4     13, 402, 970     7, 600     9, 167	153, 868 68, 868	
32     4.00 under 500     91     41, 259, 509     145, 700     26, 167       33     500 under 750     93     55, 039, 98     124, 567     20, 467       34     7.50 under 1,000     35     29, 184, 334     50, 550     14, 400       35     1,900 under 1,500     29     34, 756, 779     44, 483     7, 884       36     1,500 under 2,000     9     15, 475, 199     13, 300     2,000       37     2,000 under 3,000     6     14, 078, 874     8, 100     400       38     3,000 under 4,000     4     13, 402, 970     7, 000     9, 187	68, 863	31
33     500 under 750     93     55, 039, 998     124, 567     20, 467       34     750 under 1,000     35     29, 184, 334     50, 500     14, 400       35     1,000 under 1,500     29     34, 756, 779     44, 483     7, 884       36     1,500 under 2,000     9     15, 475, 199     13, 300     2,000       37     2,000 under 3,000     9     15, 475, 199     13, 300     2,000       38     3,000 under 4,000     4     13, 442, 879     7, 600     9, 167		
36 1,590 under 2,000. 29 34, 756, 779 44, 483 7, 884 36 1,500 under 2,000. 9 15, 475, 199 13, 300 2, 000 37 2,000 under 3,000. 6 14, 078, 874 8, 100 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 400		
36 1,590 under 2,000. 29 34, 756, 779 44, 483 7, 884 36 1,500 under 2,000. 9 15, 475, 199 13, 300 2, 000 37 2,000 under 3,000. 6 14, 078, 874 8, 100 400 38 3,000 under 4,000. 4 12, 42, 979 7 (00) 387	27, 332	34
37 2,000 under 3,000 6 14,078,874 8,100 400 38 3,000 under 4,000 4 13,442,970 7,000 9,167	18, 097	35
38 3,000 under 4,000 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 400 4	6, 271	36
	5, 100	37
09 1 4 687 111(19) 5 180	3, 400	38
5 12, 100, 500 4, 100 1, 400	1, 700	39
	1, 400	40
41 Total 7, 504, 649 23, 558, 030, 383 9, 484, 716, 408 916, 106, 566 1, 101 101 101 101 101 101 101 101 101	898, 979, 568	41
42 Individual returns with no net income •	33. 702	
	33, 702	. 42
43 Total, taxable returns	899, 013, 270	43
Nontaxable individual returns:		1
With net income: 10		i
44 Under I (est.) 1, 382, 673 1, 029, 963, 914 1, 481, 341, 324 126, 387, 697	81, 329, 965	44
40 1 ander 2 (est.) 1 2 107 533 1 3 246 736 426 1 2 027 274 1 619 610 769 1	221, 394, 515	
46] 2 under 2.5 (est.) 155 212 (20)	486, 014, 660	
37   2.5 under 3 (est.)   887 004   2 375 650 710   1 773 691 095   710 216 215	273, 541, 366	
45   5 Under 4 (est.)	65, 139, 769	
49 4 Under 5 (est.) 19 520 542 14 997 957 1	2, 064, 382	
50 5 under 6 138 731, 915 273, 300 340, 127	47, 035	50
7 160 912 12 020 515 511 10 710 410 000 0 010 001 700 11		1
59 Individual setume with ment in 12, 142, 413, 889   2, 919, 231, 538   1,	129, 531, 742	51
112, 651 11 308, 833, 907 (13) (13)	(13)	52
53 Total, nontaxable returns. 7, 273, 464 12 12, 721, 681, 604 (13) (13)	(13)	53
		30
54 Grand total (43 plus 53, or 55 plus 56)	(13)	54
55 Individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns with net income (41 plus 51)	028, 511, 310	==
56 Individual returns with no net income (42 plus 52) 112,697 1131,384,572 (13) (13) 3,853,333,104 3,6	/13\	55 56
1	(-)	100

Table 2.—Individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns, with net income, 1940,1 by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income; and taxable returns by type of tax liability—Part I, all returns; Part II, returns with normal tax and surtax; and Part III, returns with alternative tax by returns with net long-term capital gain and returns with net long-term capital loss, showing the tax computation: Number of returns, net income, deficit, personal exemption, credit for dependents, earned income credit, taxes, average tax, and effective tax rate—Continued

### PART I-ALL RETURNS-Continued

				Тах						Effective tax rate	
Net income 3 classes		Retur	ns with norm	al tax and sur	tax 7	Returns	with alternati	ve tax <sup>8</sup>	Average total tax (col. 7÷2)	percent (returns with net	
(Thousands of dollars)	Total tax (col. 8+12)	Total (col. 9+10+	Normal tax	Surtax	Defense tax 9	Total (col. 13+14)	Alternative tax	Defense tax 9	(001.11.2)	income) (col. 7÷3)	
(1)	(7)	(8)	(9)	(10)	(11)	(12)	(13)	(14)	(15)	(16)	
Taxable individual and fiduciary returns: \$  With net income:  1	43, 839, 75, 533 23, 506, 634 24, 541, 330 23, 025, 512 21, 893, 796 21, 573, 264 20, 476, 820 19, 793, 992 18, 835, 655 18, 202, 679 17, 885, 177 83, 055, 137 74, 977, 386 67, 163, 910 112, 823, 534	33, 119, 034 24, 445, 255	\$1, 905, 895 52, 469, 802 22, 625, 762 22, 640, 410 41, 681, 211 29, 760, 649 24, 837, 617 13, 560, 750 12, 055, 941 10, 446, 985 9, 354, 143 8, 265, 435 7, 476, 244 6, 903, 617 7, 121, 200 17, 250, 745 9, 105, 543 11, 066, 953 6, 515, 55 4, 135, 055 2, 745, 177 2, 042, 629	\$133, 372 1, 046, 673 2, 668, 788 4, 866, 928 6, 323, 105 7, 526, 436 8, 035, 929 8, 630, 624 9, 221, 539 9, 221, 539 9, 221, 557, 964 9, 24, 557, 964 10, 432, 534 47, 512, 020 48, 07, 172 25, 985, 014 10, 432, 584 15, 881, 468	\$190, 654 \$, 246, 523 2, 262, 290 2, 203, 773 4, 167, 548 2, 988, 977 2, 582, 529 2, 224, 092 2, 080, 982 1, 982, 568 1, 952, 514 1, 703, 003 1, 702, 776 1, 646, 108 1, 613, 936 7, 453, 031 6, 004, 906 3, 938, 604 5, 826, 022 4, 104, 131 2, 998, 985 2, 217, 494 1, 786, 875	\$18, 909 10, 580 3, 335 30, 819 11, 029 87, 535 39, 815 12, 372 54, 945 27, 313 38, 373 96, 712 16, 222 54, 102 57, 104 86, 115 900, 587 8, 103, 771 23, 698, 910 48, 418, 559 45, 541, 884 39, 035, 840 33, 879, 707 27, 059, 237	\$18, 909 10, 518 3, 169 30, 819 10, 710 87, 535 36, 196 11, 247 49, 950 26, 053 34, 884 89, 135 14, 747 49, 184 51, 914 78, 286 821, 627 7, 368, 425 21, 547, 319 44, 017, 208 41, 404, 277 35, 497, 583 30, 809, 074 24, 609, 886	\$62 166 319 3, 619 1, 125 4, 995 1, 260 3, 489 7, 577 1, 475 4, 918 5, 190 78, 930 735, 346 2, 151, 591 4, 401, 331 4, 401, 331 4, 137, 887 3, 537, 982 3, 537, 982 3, 670, 633 2, 449, 351	\$4 20 27 45 83 130 188 273 369 476 598 726 869 1,019 1,183 1,721 3,019 4,634 7,409 11,771 16,737 22,101 27,839	0. 43 1. 40 1. 19 9 . 99 1. 31 1. 88 2. 92 2. 38 2. 92 3. 65 5. 03 5. 70 6. 32 6. 90 7. 56 8. 17 10. 01 13. 56 17. 21 21. 57 26. 47 30. 66 34. 20 37. 35	18 19 20 21 22 23

80 under 90 90 under 100.	41 004 004 1										
100 under 150. 150 under 200. 200 under 250. 250 under 300. 300 under 400. 400 under 500. 500 under 750. 750 under 1,000. 1,000 under 1,500. 1,500 under 2,000. 2,000 under 3,000. 3,000 under 4,000. 4,000 under 5,000. 5,000 and over	3, 093, 783						22, 636, 975 19, 115, 375 69, 654, 928 41, 919, 772 23, 538, 259 20, 357, S31 26, 715, 589 20, 038, 631 24, 818, 497 12, 887, 591 17, 043, 204 7, 846, 187 7, 931, 072 10, 059, 864 2, 873, 667	2, 258, 025 1, 897, 372 2, 152, 499 3, 987, 832 2, 122, 499 41, 950, 831 1, 358, 057 1, 663, 723 790, 081 1, 057, 409 387, 574 237, 115 200, 937 220, 116	33, 657 40, 084 56, 328 90, 159 121, 942 156, 519 205, 908 272, 545 349, 721 532, 822 746, 553 1, 221, 249 1, 671, 415 2, 648, 382 3, 420, 267 3, 093, 783	39. 80 42. 33 46. 93 52. 62 54. 66 57. 37 59. 90 60. 11 59. 09 63. 90 71. 02 71. 23 78. 80 80. 57 60. 96	25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40
Individual returns with no net income.	472, 953					472, 953			10, 282	0. 55	42
Total, taxable returns	1, 496, 403, 386	905, 006, 149	388, 950, 406	435, 330, 530	80, 725, 213	591, 397, 237	543, 772, 173	47, 625, 064	199		43
2 under 2.5 (est.) 2.5 under 3 (est.) 3 under 4 (est.) 4 under 5 (est.) 5 under 6.											44 45 46 47 48 49 50
income.4		<del></del>		_ <b></b> _							52
·											53
Grand total (43 plus 53, or 55 plus 56).	1, 496, 403, 386	905, 006, 149	388, 950, 406	435, 330, 530	80, 725, 213	591, 397, 237	543, 772, 173	47, 625, 064	(14)		54
Individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns with net income (41 plus 5!). Individual returns with no net income (42 plus 52).					· ·	590, 924, 284 472, 953	- ', ' '	47, 625, 064	102 ( <sup>14</sup> )	4. 09	55 56
	100 under 150.  150 under 200.  200 under 250.  200 under 300.  300 under 400.  400 under 500.  500 under 750.  750 under 1,000.  1,000 under 1,000.  1,000 under 2,000.  2,000 under 3,000.  3,000 under 4,000.  4,000 under 5,000.  5,000 and over.  Total.  Individual returns with no net income.  **Total, taxable returns:  With net incorne: 10  Under 1 (est.)  1 under 2 (est.)  2 under 2.5 (est.)  2.5 under 3 (est.)  3 under 4 (est.)  4 under 5 (est.)  5 under 6.  Total  Individual returns with no net income.  **Total (43 plus 53, or 55 plus 56).  Individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns with no net income (41 plus 51).  Individual returns with no net income (41 plus 51).	100 under 150.	100 under 150.	100 under 150.	100 under 150	100 under 150.	100 under 150.	100 under 160.	100 under 150	100 under 150.   110,629,063   34,120,275   2,788,309   28,245,13   3,088,090   76,508,788   69,654,928   6,858,860   55,328   150 under 250.   35,455,172   9,824,414   671,532   8,346,277   806,067   20,600,760   41,919,772   3,978,852   9,103,938   30,000   326,442   4,577,347   806,007   32,338,259   2,122,499   121,945   300 under 400.   36,237,749   7,573,279   479,948   6,677,327   80,607   32,338,259   2,122,499   121,945   300 under 400.   36,237,749   7,573,279   479,948   6,677,327   3,988,608   300,300 under 500.   32,245,038   30,000 under 500.   32,245,038   32,245,038   30,000 under 500.   32,245,038   32,2	100 under 150.

TABLE 2.—Individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns, with net income, 1940,¹ and nontaxable individual returns with no net income; and taxable returns by type Part III, returns with alternative tax by returns with net long-term capital gain returns, net income, deficit, personal exemption, credit for dependents, earned

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of

### PART II-RETURNS WITH

	Net income <sup>3</sup> classes (Thousands of dollars)	Number of re- turns	Net income <sup>3</sup>	Personal exemption 5	Credit for dependents (individual returns)	Earned in- come credit (individual returns)
	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)
1 2 3 4 4 5 6 7 7 8 9 10 11 12 3 14 15 6 17 7 18 9 20 22 22 24 22 5 6 27 28 9 30 1 31 2 23 33 33 35 36 37 38 38 38 40 41	Taxable individual and fiduciary returns with net income:  Under 1 (ost.). 1 under 2 (est.). 2 under 2 5 (est.). 2.5 under 3 (est.). 3 under 4 (est.). 4 under 5 (est.). 5 under 6. 6 under 7. 7 under 8. 8 under 9. 9 under 10. 10 under 11. 11 under 12. 12 under 13. 13 under 14. 14 under 15. 15 under 20. 20 under 20. 20 under 30. 30 under 40. 40 under 60. 60 under 70. 70 under 80. 80 under 90. 200 under 50. 500 under 50. 250 under 250. 250 under 30. 30 under 40. 400 under 50. 500 under 70. 70 under 80. 80 under 40. 400 under 500. 500 under 750. 500 under 5,000. 1,000 under 1,000. 1,000 under 5,000. 5,000 under 5,000.	558, 446 2, 919, 058 917, 821 1, 018, 345 291, 824 1, 018, 347 219, 668 84, 415, 59, 318 45, 284 34, 254 27, 266 21, 650 15, 038 48, 024 22, 739 9, 477 8, 923 3, 960 2, 019 1, 122 718 303 359 766 33 359 766 33 359 767 33 369 369 369 369 369 369 369 369 369			\$375, 143 53, 830, 997 26, 594, 283 88, 843, 910 273, 229, 123 89, 184, 910 89, 188, 625 55, 182, 507 14, 010, 515 11, 070, 517 14, 010, 516 11, 070, 517 13, 767, 613 11, 070, 577 33, 767, 613 811, 270 4055, 517 3, 767, 613 811, 270 4055, 517 3, 767, 613 811, 270 405, 517 3, 767, 613 811, 270 408, 698 48, 667 32, 734 14, 867	
	duciary returns with normal tax and surtax	7, 478, 649	22, 004, 336, 565	9, 445, 425, 387	908, 004, 486	1, 876, 091, 211

For footnotes, see p. 190.

by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; aggregates for taxable of tax hiability—Part I, all returns; Part II, returns with normal tax and surtax; and and returns with net long-term capital loss, showing the tax computation: Number of income credit, taxes, average tax, and effective tax rate—Continued

tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-7 and 8-9]

NORMAL TAX AND SURTAX 7

				Effective				
Total tax	Nori	nal tax	s	Burtax		Average total tax	tax rate, percent (returns	
(col. 9+11+ 12)	Number of returns	Amount	Number of re- turns	Amount	Defense tax <sup>p</sup>	(col. 7÷2)	with net income) (col. 7÷3)	
(7)	(8)	(9)	(1.0)	(11)	(12)	(13)	(14)	
\$2, 006, 549 57, 716, 330 24, 888, 052 24, 904, 183 45, 848, 759 28, 522, 998 28, 466, 819 24, 528, 938 29, 970, 567 21, 866, 483 10, 777, 770 18, 781, 553 18, 145, 575 47, 999, 662 82, 154, 550 66, 873, 615 43, 465, 000 64, 404, 995 46, 878 33, 119, 084 24, 444, 245 19, 716, 972 41, 2056, 473 34, 120, 275 41, 048, 282 9, 824, 414 1, 2056, 473 34, 120, 275 41, 048, 282 9, 824, 414 1, 344, 901 7, 573, 279 3, 404, 942 2, 6041, 818 5, 471, 086 2, 757, 401	558, 446 2, 919, 058 917, 821 1014, 824 1, 018, 345 395, 019 219, 627 130, 251 134, 377 59, 288 45, 264 21, 643 15, 093 48, 016 22, 728 9, 474 8, 916 22, 728 9, 474 8, 916 23, 957 27, 153 36, 3957 27, 153 36, 3957 376 383 365 12 15 9 4 4 2	\$1, 905, 895 52, 469, 802, 22, 640, 410 41, 681, 211 29, 760, 649 24, 837, 617 19, 636, 078 11, 560, 750 12, 055, 94 10, 446, 985 11, 044, 143 11, 060, 953 11, 255, 455 11, 255, 475 11, 255, 475 11, 255, 475 11, 255, 475 11, 255, 475 11, 255, 285 110, 275 1125, 489		\$133, 372 1, 046, 673 2, 668, 788 4, 866, 928 6, 323, 165 7, 526, 436 8, 085, 929 8, 630, 624 8, 813, 342 9, 023, 223 47, 580, 319 43, 557, 964 30, 420, 853 47, 512, 020 34, 807, 172 25, 985, 014 19, 482, 584 15, 167, 061 9, 861, 676 28, 245, 157 1, 755, 892 8, 346, 277 4, 577, 347 6, 571, 591 2, 983, 195 5, 366, 593 4, 886, 980 3, 211, 171 2, 509, 832 2, 220, 375	\$100. 654 5, 246, 528 2, 262, 290 2, 263, 773 4, 107, 548 2, 988, 252 2, 224, 092 2, 288, 252 2, 284, 092 2, 980, 982 1, 982, 564 1, 973, 564 1, 973, 674 1, 643, 936 7, 463, 031 6, 094, 906 6, 826, 022 4, 104, 131 2, 998, 985 2, 217, 494 1, 786, 875 1, 463, 785 1, 463, 785 1, 463, 785 1, 560, 522 1, 141, 313 2, 918, 985 1, 269, 754 3, 086, 809 1, 269, 754 3, 086, 809 1, 277, 382 1, 323 320, 002 277, 382 145, 260 101, 090	\$4 20 27 45 83 180 188 272 360 476 595 725 868 1, 017 1, 711 2, 941 4, 586 7, 218 11, 471 16, 404 21, 787 27, 453 33, 401 139, 790 57, 153 39, 790 57, 163 39, 790 57, 163 887, 745 402, 788 607, 898 887, 574 1, 378, 701	0. 42 1. 40 1. 19 9 1. 31 1. 87 2. 37 2. 91 3. 64 4. 35 5. 02 5. 68 6. 32 6. 95 7. 54 8. 14 9. 95 13. 28 16. 84 21. 06 25. 84 30. 08 33. 76 36. 31 39. 56 42. 10 47. 61 53. 93 57. 47 59. 85 64. 96 67. 72 71. 103 73. 99 75. 20	1 2 3 4 4 5 6 7 7 8 9 9 0 111 122 133 14 155 166 17 188 199 221 224 225 245 27 28 30 31 34 35 5 36 37 38 34 40
905, 006, 149	7, 477, 065	388, 950, 406	522, 191	435, 830, 530	80, 725, 213	121	4. 11	41

Table 2.—Individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns, with net income, 1940,1 by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income; and taxable returns by type of tax liability—Part I, all returns; Part II, returns with normal tax and surtax; and Part III, returns with alternative tax by returns with net long-term capital gain and returns with net long-term capital loss, showing the tax computation: Number of returns, net income, deficit, personal exemption, credit for dependents, earned income credit, taxes, average tax, and effective tax rate—Continued

### PART III—RETURNS WITH ALTERNATIVE TAX 8

						Comp	outation of altern	ative tax	
}						Returns v	vith net long-terr	n capital gain	
	Net income <sup>3</sup> classes (Thousands of dollars)	Number of returns (col. 5+19)	Net income 3 (col. 6+20)	Total alter- native and defense taxes (col. 16+30)	Number of re- turns	Net income <sup>3</sup>	Net long-term capital gain (item 10(b), p. 1, Form 1040; item 7(b), p. 1, Form 1041)	Ordinary net income (col. 6-7) (item 3, Sch. F, Form 1040; item 3, Sch. E, Form 1041)	Personal exemp- tion <sup>5</sup>
	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)	(8)	(9)
Tax  1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	kable individual and fiduciary returns:  With net income:  Under 1 (est.)	4 2 2 3 4 4 1 8 8 4 4 9 10 7 7 11 4 19 20 25 234 2,097 4,832	\$1, 550 5, 551 4, 832 8, 305 13, 808 4, 628 42, 893 26, 818 67, 093 83, 563 66, 060 116, 148 46, 578 236, 240 270, 253 361, 999 4, 240, 095 49, 324, 493 132, 237, 639 217, 317, 504	10, 580 3, 335 30, 819 11, 029 87, 535 39, 815 12, 372 54, 945 27, 313 38, 373 96, 712 16, 222 54, 102 57, 104 86, 115 900, 587 8, 103, 711 23, 693, 910	343	\$8, 279, 398 45, 369, 301	1, 816, 254	\$\$, 119, 941 43, 553, 037	\$315,967

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39	40 under 50. 50 under 60. 60 under 70. 70 under 80. 80 under 90. 90 under 100. 100 under 150 150 ander 200. 200 under 250. 250 under 300. 300 under 400. 400 under 500. 500 under 750. 750 under 1,000. 1,000 under 1,500. 1,500 under 3,000. 3,000 under 4,000. 4,000 under 5,000. 5,000 and over	1, 367 512 215 142 141 79 78 26 25	167, 860, 446 125, 250, 603 98, 141, 243 71, 667, 223 62, 297, 721 49, 491, 53 164, 082, 974 87, 880, 524 47, 827, 228 38, 811, 739 48, 390, 394 48, 118, 165 21, 481, 712 29, 899, 126 11, 808, 121 14, 078, 874 10, 302, 237 12, 735, 353 5, 074, 832	45, 541, 864 39, 035, 840 33, 879, 707 27, 059, 237 24, 895, 000 21, 012, 747 76, 508, 788 45, 907, 604 25, 660, 758 22, 046, 965 28, 666, 470 21, 396, 668 26, 482, 220 31, 177, 672 18, 100, 613 8, 233, 761 10, 025, 492 8, 168, 187 10, 266, 801 3, 093, 783	1, 430 891 632 398 337 231 254 254 121 76 67 40 53 14 18 4 3	63, 746, 065 48, 645, 060 40, 908, 412 29, 731, 635 28, 542, 945 21, 897, 107 71, 551, 235 43, 920, 421 26, 810, 444 20, 678, 350 22, 970, 761 18, 252, 312 31, 115, 723 11, 823, 072 21, 682, 581 6, 704, 593 6, 271, 080	6. 116. 207 6. 003, 360 5. 626, 696 3, 987, 313 4, 361, 676 3, 063, 117 15, 096, 737 9, 150, 689 6, 826, 076 5, 223, 533 6, 472, 937 6, 223, 926 13, 559, 014 5, 165, 933 9, 101, 823 1, 591, 237 1, 493, 967	57, 629, 858 42, 641, 700 35, 281, 716 25, 744, 322 24, 181, 269 18, 828, 990 56, 464, 498 34, 769, 732 19, 884, 817 16, 497, 824 11, 823, 386 17, 556, 709 6, 657, 139 12, 580, 758 5, 113, 356 4, 777, 123 8, 046, 302 3, 032, 012	2, 153, 299 1, 364, 666 935, 004 587, 217 497, 100 346, 542 875, 033 881, 500 124, 300 105, 767 59, 300 62, 167 20, 900 4, 300 4, 300 4, 000 2, 000	22 23 24 25
41 42	TotalIndividual returns with no net income 6	26, 000 46	1, 553, 693, 818 11 2, 550, 665	590, 924, 284 472, 953	9, 462	661, 552, 973	118, 890, 595	542, 662, 378	13, 855, 116	41 42
43	Total, individual and fiduciary returns with alternative tax.	26, 046	12 1, 551, 143, 153	591, 397, 237	9, 462	661, 552, 973	118, 890, 595	542, 662, 378	13, 855, 116	43

Table 2.— Individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns, with net income, 1940,1 by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income; and taxable returns by type of tax liability—Part I, all returns; Part II, returns with normal tax and surtax; and Part III, returns with alternative tax by returns with net long-term capital gain and returns with net long-term capital loss, showing the tax computation: Number of returns, net income, deficit, personal exemption, credit for dependents earned income credit, taxes, average tax, and effective tax rate—Continued

## PART III-RETURNS WITH ALTERNATIVE TAX 5-Continued

				Computation o	f alternative tax-	-Continued			
			Retu	rns with net lo	ng-term capital g	ain—Contin	ued		
						Tax			Effective
Net income <sup>3</sup> classes (Thousands of dollars)	Credit for dependents (individual returns)	(individual	Normal tax (item 10, Sch. F, Form 1040; item 8, Sch. E, Form 1041)	Form 1040; item 9, Sch.	Alternative tax (col. 12+13+ 30% of col. 7) (item 14, Sch. F, Form 1040; item 12, Sch. E, Form 1041)	Defense tax 9	Total (col. 14+15)	A verage alternative and de- fense taxes (col. 16÷5)	tax rate, percent (returns with net income) (col.16÷6)
. (1)	(10)	(11)	(12)	(13)	(14)	(15)	(16)	(17)	(18)
Taxable individual and fiduciary returns:3 With net income: Under 1 (est.)									-
With net income: Under 1 (est.)									
2.5 under 3 (est.)									
4 under 5 (est.)									
6 under 7 7 under 8			-						
9 under 10								-	
11 under 12								-	
12 under 13 13 under 14 14 under 15 15 under 20									

18   19   20   21   22   23   24   25   26   27   28   29   30   31   32   33   35   36   37   38	20 under 25. 25 under 30. 30 under 40. 40 under 50. 50 under 60. 60 under 77. 70 under 80. 80 under 90. 90 under 100. 100 under 150. 150 under 200. 200 under 250. 250 under 300. 300 under 400. 400 under 50. 500 under 50.	466, 046 737, 297 441, 632 306, 952 227, 684 135, 055 111, 326 78, 143 180, 980 21, 316 14, 601 9, 734 4, 400 400	\$216, 028 1, 355, 091 1, 933, 348 1, 259, 832 793, 534 576, 144 360, 158 306, 272 208, 200 520, 048 232, 72 4107, 509 68, 430 57, 582 28, 983 34, 332 12, 700 12, 183 2, 871 2, 000	\$296, 016 1, 552, 401 2, 681, 890 2, 123, 554 1, 592, 490 1, 330, 262 979, 836 920, 059 723, 079 2, 177, 813 1, 361, 123 778, 592 600, 637 651, 489 468, 191 695, 433 258, 338 501, 265 204, 146 190, 817	\$872, 876 5, 111, 948 11, 040, 785 10, 805, 347 9, 421, 417 8, 902, 551 7, 236, 596 7, 381, 403 6, 150, 666 20, 958, 465 15, 004, 405 9, 251, 029 7, 587, 087 8, 555, 524 6, 450, 599 10, 097, 577 3, 947, 122 8, 033, 505 3, 402, 691 3, 237, 248	\$1, 216, 729 7, 209, 228 15, 361, 780 14, 763, 763 12, 814, 915 11, 920, 822 9, 412, 626 9, 609, 662, 209 19, 110, 735 12, 077, 444 9, 784, 783 11, 148, 894 8, 847, 468 14, 860, 714 5, 755, 260 11, 255, 317 4, 084, 208 3, 876, 252	\$122, 051 719, 352 1, 535, 897 1, 476, 406 1, 276, 800 1, 187, 804 939, 528 960, 967 779, 357 2, 751, 155 1, 875, 900 1, 132, 927 887, 918 904, 728 660, 040 1, 146, 063 1, 16,	\$1, 338, 780 7, 928, 580 16, 897, 677 16, 240, 169 14, 091, 715 13, 108, 62, 154 10, 570, 352, 154 10, 570, 352, 154 20, 986, 635 13, 210, 371 10, 672, 70, 10, 672, 70, 503 12, 053, 622 9, 507, 503 16, 006, 777 6, 212, 498 12, 038, 407 4, 335, 330 4, 021, 776	\$3, 903 4, 796 7, 347 11, 357 15, 816 20, 741 26, 010 31, 368 37, 115 51, 201 82, 625 109, 177 140, 430 179, 905 237, 688 302, 015 443, 750 668, 800 1, 083, 833 1, 340, 592	16. 17 17. 48 21. 26 25. 48 28. 97 32. 04 34. 82 37. 04 42. 51 42. 51 47. 75 51. 61 52. 47 55. 55 55, 55 64. 66 64. 13	19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38
39 40	4,000 under 5,000 5,000 and over	1, 400 400	1, 700 1, 400	321, 568 121, 129	5, 745, 825 2, 139, 692	6, 080, 635 2, 873, 667	200, 937 220, 116	6, 281, 572 3, 093, 783	3, 140, 786 3, 093, 783	77. 64 60. 96	
41 42	Total Individual returns with no net income 6	2, 922, 089	8, 091, 069	20, 530, 148	171, 334, 358	227, 531, 684	20, 404, 920	247, 936, 604	26, 203	37. 48	41 42
43	Total, individual and fiduciary returns with alternative tax.	2, 922, 089	8, 091, 069	20, 530, 148	171, 3 <b>3</b> 4, 358	227, 531, 684	20, 404, 920	247, 936, 604	26, 203		43

Table 2.—Individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns, with net income, 1940,1 by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income; and taxable returns by type of tax liability—Part I, all returns; Part II, returns with normal tax and surtax; and Part III, returns with alternative tax by returns with net long-term capital gain and returns with net long-term capital loss, showing the tax computation: Number of returns, net income, deficit, personal exemption, credit for dependents, earned income credit, taxes, average tax, and effective tax rate—Continued

### PART III-RETURNS WITH ALTERNATIVE TAX 8-Continued

	-		Computation of	alternative tax—Co	ontinued		
			Returns with	net long-term capi	tal loss		
Net income <sup>3</sup> classes (Thousands of dollars)	Number of returns	Net income 3	Net long-term capital loss (item 10(b), p. 1, Form 1040; item 7(b), p. 1, Form 1041)	Ordinary net income (col. 20+21) (item 3, Sch. F, Form 1040; item 3, Sch. E, Form 1041)	Personal exemption 6	Credit for de- pendents (individual returns)	Earned in- come credit (individual returns)
(1)	(19)	(20)	(21)	(22)	(23)	(24)	(25)
Taxable individual and fiduciary returns:   With net income:  Under 1 (est.)  1 under 2 (est.)  2 under 2.5 (est.)  2.5 under 3 (est.)  3 under 4 (est.)  4 under 5 (est.)  5 under 6  6 under 7  7 under 8  8 under 9  9 under 10  10 under 11  11 under 12  12 under 13  13 under 14  14 under 15  15 under 20  20 under 25  25 under 30  30 under 40  40 under 60	3 4 4 1 8 4 9 10 7 7 11 4 19 20 25 23 1 7 7 5 4	\$1, 550 5, 551 4, 8S2 8, 305 13, 803 4, 628 42, 893 26, 818 67, 093 83, 563 66, 060 116, 148 46, 578 236, 240 270, 253 361, 999 4, 210, 095 41, 045, 095 86, 868, 338 137, 830, 300 104, 114, 381 76, 605, 543	\$259, 097 280, 753 161, 897 323, 013 259, 427 312, 360 577, 857 224, 960 625, 663 514, 600 423, 333 740, 654 185, 210 777, 623 826, 680 988, 296 6, 295, 606 12, 499, 106 17, 941, 730 - 7, 822, 103 - 7, 822, 103	\$260, 647 286, 304 166, 779 331, 318 273, 235 316, 988 620, 750 251, 778 602, 756 508, 163 459, 393 856, 802 231, 788 1, 013, 863 1, 966, 933 1, 350, 295 10, 535, 701 53, 125, 601 99, 367, 444 155, 772, 030 116, 405, 390 84, 427, 646	\$3,000 6,800 4,000 4,050 6,000 2,000 11,600 9,850 17,500 15,400 28,600 283,867 2,309,016 4,997,028 6,215,405 3,699,723	\$800 800 2, 400 400 2, 800 1, 200 1, 167 2, 367 2, 267 4, 400 5, 200 32, 199 302, 397 1, 012, 307 1, 344, 044 796, 555 503, 155	\$154 4,500 1,125 5,339 1,300 2,643 1,566 6,465 4,496 3,309 8,970 2,748 8,773 13,956 17,385 143,514 2,835,993 3,597,572 2,173,174 1,325,683

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39	60 under 70. 70 under 80. 80 under 90. 90 under 100. 100 under 150. 150 under 250. 250 under 300. 300 under 400. 400 under 500. 500 under 500. 750 under 1,000. 1,500 under 1,500. 2,000 under 3,000. 3,000 under 4,000.	561 399 291 773 258 94 66 74 39 25 12 7 3 3	57, 232, 831 41, 935, 588 33, 754, 776 27, 594, 444 92, 531, 739 43, 960, 103 21, 016, 784 18, 133, 389 25, 419, 633 17, 765, 249 15, 002, 442 9, 658, 640 8, 216, 545 5, 103, 619 7, 807, 794 10, 302, 237 4, 644, 911	5, 385, 804 4, 099, 193 2, 990, 740 2, 302, 603 6, 406, 356 3, 647, 953 972, 343 1, 314, 310 1, 955, 317 730, 600 775, 610 385, 827 76, 283 183, 557 64, 717 562, 330 956, 793	62, 618, 635 46, 034, 781 36, 745, 516 29, 897, 047 98, 938, 095 47, 603, 056 21, 989, 127 19, 447, 699 27, 374, 950 18, 495, 849 15, 778, 052 10, 044, 467 8, 292, 828 5, 287, 176 7, 862, 511 10, 864, 567 5, 601, 704	1, 412, 592 886, 600 639, 283 440, 867 1, 216, 583 414, 600 139, 600 109, 700 117, 700 66, 800 39, 600 19, 600 19, 600 10, 400 4, 900 3, 800 5, 000	305, 554 183, 300 135, 000 106, 000 260, 282 88, 665 22, 267 15, 000 25, 733 9, 566 4, 399 5, 200 1, 200 400	856, 066 546, 771 392, 393 272, 644 762, 760 236, 052 79, 462 53, 579 62, 933 31, 885 21, 510 8, 012 3, 200 2, 000 3, 100 2, 000	23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40
41 42	Total	16, 538 46	892, 140, 845 11 2, 550, 665	109, 211, 819 9, 474, 716	1, 001, 352, 664 6, 924, 051	25, 435, 905 66, 800	5, 179, 991 5, 200	14, 797, 288 33, 702	41 42
43	Total individual and fiduciary returns with alternative tax.	16, 584	12 889, 590, 180	118, 686, 535	1, 008, 276, 715	25, 502, 705	5, 185, 191	14, 830, 990	43

Table 2.—Individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns, with net income, 1940,1 by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income; and taxable returns by type of tax liability—Part I, all returns; Part II, returns with normal tax and surtax; and Part III, returns with alternative tax by returns with net long-term capital gain and returns with net long-term capital loss, showing the tax computation: Number of returns, net income, deficit, personal exemption, credit for dependents, earned income credit, taxes, average tax, and effective tax rate—Continued

### PART III—RETURNS WITH ALTERNATIVE TAX 8—Continued

			Computation of	alternative ta	x—Continued					
		Re	turns with net lo	ng-term capita	l loss—Continu	1ed				
Net income 3 classes				Tax				Average al- ternative and	Effective tax rate, percent (returns with	
(Thousands of dollars)	Normal tax (item 10, Sch. F, Form 1040; item 8, Sch. E, Form 1041)	Surtax (item 11, Sch. F, Form 1040; item 9, Sch. E, Form 1041)	Alternative tax (col. 26+ 27-30% of col. 21) (item 14, Sch. F, Form 1040; item 12, Sch E., Form	Defense tax 9	Total (col. 28+29)	Average alternative and defense taxes (col. 30÷19)	Effective tax rate, percent (returns with net income) (col. 30÷20)	defense taxes (col. 4÷2)	net income) (col. 4÷3)	
(1)	(26)	(27)	(28)	(29)	(30)	(31)	(32)	(33)	(34)	_
Taxable individual and flduciary returns:  With net income:  Under 1 (est.)  1 under 2 (est.)  3 2 under 2.5 (est.)  4 2.5 under 3 (est.)  5 3 under 4 (est.)  6 4 under 5 (est.)  7 5 under 6  8 6 under 7  9 7 under 8  8 0 under 7  1 9 10 under 10  1 1 9 under 10  1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	9, 539 26, 102 22, 753 18, 767 32, 649 8, 996 38, 131 40, 021 50, 907	\$86, 766 83, 778 46, 046 115, 512 77, 964 168, 673 186, 144 69, 176 211, 547 157, 680 143, 117 278, 682 61, 314 244, 340 259, 897 323, 868 2, 316, 315	\$18, 909 10, 518 3, 169 30, 819 10, 710 87, 535 36, 196 11, 247 49, 950 26, 953 34, 884 89, 135 14, 747 49, 184 51, 194 78, 286 821, 627	\$62 166 319 1, 125 4, 995 1, 260 3, 489 7, 577 1, 475 4, 918 5, 190 7, 829 78, 960	\$18, 909 10, 580 3, 335 30, 819 11, 029 87, 535 39, 815 12, 372 54, 945 27, 313 38, 373 96, 712 16, 222 54, 102 57, 104 86, 115 900, 587	\$6, 303 2, 645 1, 668 10, 273 2, 757 87, 535 4, 977 3, 093 6, 105 2, 731 5, 482 8, 792 4, 056 2, 847 2, 855 3, 445 3, 849		2, 731 5, 482 8, 792 4, 056 2, 847 2, 855 3, 445	58. 09 83. 27 34. 83 22. 90 21. 13 23. 79	2

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 30 31 32 23 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42	20 under 25. 25 under 30. 30 under 40. 40 under 50. 50 under 60. 60 under 70. 70 under 80. 80 under 100. 100 under 100. 100 under 200. 200 under 250. 250 under 300. 300 under 400. 400 under 50. 500 under 750. 750 under 750. 750 under 750. 750 under 1,000. 1,000 under 1,500. 1,500 under 2,000. 2,000 under 3,000. 3,000 under 4,000. 4,000 under 5,000. 5,000 and over.  Total Individual returns with no net income. 5	3, 577, 604 5, 708, 376 4, 335, 211 3, 181, 577 2, 382, 336 1, 766, 614 1, 412, 528 1, 155, 159 3, 834, 290 1, 866, 043 865, 078 768, 690 1, 082, 894 626, 711 400, 096 331, 017 211, 013 314, 224 431, 023 224, 064	7, 837, 010 14, 510, 219 28, 329, 571 25, 992, 606 21, 847, 997 18, 121, 657 14, 660, 404 12, 511, 704 10, 856, 817 40, 080, 246 22, 037, 380 10, 887, 440 10, 198, 651 15, 070, 396 10, 675, 899 9, 563, 755 6, 347, 983 6, 469, 755 3, 606, 036 5, 508, 787 7, 668, 748 4, 042, 203	6, 151, 696 14, 338, 091 28, 655, 428 26, 649, 514 22, 682, 943 18, 888, 252 15, 197, 260 13, 027, 010 11, 321, 195 41, 992, 629 22, 809, 037 11, 460, 815 10, 573, 048 15, 566, 695 11, 191, 163 9, 957, 788 6, 632, 331 5, 777, 887 7, 931, 072 3, 979, 229	613, 295 1, 432, 239 2, 865, 434 2, 661, 181 2, 261, 182 1, 892, 829 1, 509, 823 1, 297, 058 1, 118, 015 4, 102, 705 2, 111, 932 2, 111, 9	6, 764, 991 15, 770, 330 31, 520, 862 29, 301, 695 24, 944, 125 20, 771, 081 16, 707, 083 14, 324, 068 12, 439, 210 46, 095, 334 24, 920, 960 12, 450, 337 11, 374, 264 16, 612, 848 11, 889, 180 10, 475, 443 6, 965, 174 6, 062, 206 3, 898, 431 6, 006, 716 8, 168, 187 3, 979, 229	3, 857 4, 961 7, 872 12, 533 17, 805 23, 470 29, 781 35, 900 42, 746 59, 632 96, 593 132, 451 172, 337 224, 498 304, 851 419, 018 580, 431 866, 029 1, 299, 477 2, 002, 239 2, 722, 729 3, 979, 229 20, 739 10, 282	16. 48 18. 15 22. 87 28. 14 32. 56 36. 29 39. 84 42. 44 45. 08 49. 82 56. 69 59. 24 62. 73 65. 35 66. 92 69. 82 72. 11 73. 78 76. 39 76. 93 79. 29 85. 67	3, 864 4, 905 7, 681 12, 086 17, 031 22, 333 28, 216 33, 825 40, 254 55, 968 89, 663 119, 352 155, 260 203, 308 270, 844 339, 516 506, 834 724, 025 1, 176, 252 1, 671, 415 2, 722, 729 3, 420, 267 3, 093, 783	16. 43 17. 92 22. 28 27. 13 31. 17 34. 52 37. 76 39. 96 42. 46 46. 63 52. 24 53. 65 56. 80 59. 24 59. 41 60. 54 60. 54 60. 57 71. 23 70. 29 80. 57 60. 96	19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38
43	Total individual and fiduciary returns with alternative tax.	38, 141, 940	313, 704, 511	316, 240, 489	27, 220, 144	343, 460, 633	20, 710		22, 706		43

Table 2-A.—Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income; and taxable returns by type of tax liability—Part I, all returns; Part II, returns with normal tax and surtax; and Part III, returns with alternative tax by returns with net long-term capital gain and returns with net long-term capital loss, showing the tax computation: Number of returns, net income, deficit, personal exemption, credit for dependents, earned income credit, taxes, average tax and effective tax rate

### PART I-ALL RETURNS

		NT		Personal	Credit for	Earned income	Tax	¢
	Net income classes (Thousands of dollars)	Number of returns	Net income	exemption 3	dependents	credit	Total tax (col. 8+12)	
	(Thousands of domais)						(0011 0   122)	
	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)	
1 2 3 3 4 5 6 6 7 7 8 9 100 11 12 13 14 15 16 16 17 18 11 22 23 24 25 26 27	Taxable individual returns:  With net income:  Under 1 (est.)  1 under 2 (est.)  2 under 2.5 (est.)  2.5 under 3 (est.)  3 under 4 (est.)  4 under 5 (est.)  5 under 6  6 under 7  7 under 8  8 under 9  9 under 10  10 under 11  11 under 12  12 under 13  13 under 14  14 under 15  15 under 20  20 under 25  25 under 30  30 under 40  40 under 60  50 under 60  60 under 70  70 under 80  80 under 90  90 under 100  100 under 100  100 under 150	393,814 123,902 83,395 58,473 44,636 33,701 26,843 21,217 17,548 14,831 47,239 24,238 13,202 14,792 7,464 4,155 2,548 1,176 2,548 1,176 1,176	1 3, 474, 787, 007 1, 742, 795, 726 21, 1, 189, 297, 181 832, 566, 697 622, 840, 522 495, 428, 727 423, 513, 218 353, 173, 845 308, 272, 734 204, 817, 735 236, 548, 200 214, 793, 829 813, 234, 513 540, 035, 178 508, 220, 870 331, 895, 097 225, 909, 172 164, 711, 731 121, 329, 059 99, 497, 791 73, 955, 875	\$393, 893, 232 2, 330, 981, 079 1, 288, 998, 172 1, 593, 631, 610 1, 831, 912, 218 703, 116, 216 384, 341, 862 224, 732, 773 143, 595, 812 99, 806, 793 76, 132, 690 57, 000, 638 45, 261, 293 35, 601, 275 29, 430, 943 24, 877, 485 78, 762, 470 40, 220, 932 22, 898, 919 24, 198, 333 12, 123, 106 6, 801, 952 4, 117, 772 2, 649, 967 1, 832, 300 1, 259, 635 2, 939, 042	\$375, 943 53, 831, 797 26, 594, 283 98, 843, 910 273, 229, 923 144, 755, 856 89, 191, 025 55, 182, 997 35, 223, 310 24, 420, 582 18, 693, 142 14, 012, 892 11, 070, 571 8, 615, 369 7, 261, 348 6, 119, 650 19, 412, 892 9, 895, 794 5, 533, 870 5, 848, 954 2, 873, 950 1, 621, 377 1, 003, 545 606, 376 426, 253 313, 208 642, 920	\$48, 259, 926 409, 479, 636 203, 385, 784 250, 420, 412 335, 628, 463 157, 156, 223 99, 728, 441 66, 823, 876 47, 799, 830 36, 454, 449 30, 386, 462 24, 549, 837 20, 585, 636 17, 518, 651 15, 345, 211 13, 625, 930 44, 092, 760 23, 125, 834 13, 416, 576 14, 497, 397 7, 533, 446 4, 263, 960 2, 651, 215 1, 704, 443 1, 218, 006 802, 346 1, 380, 418	21, 145, 810 19, 908, 302 19, 374, 764 18, 316, 742 17, 777, 612 17, 444, 074 80, 994, 892 72, 930, 996 65, 135, 262 109, 369, 462 87, 729, 604 87, 729, 604 46, 518, 022 56, 327, 428 45, 315, 138 39, 577, 590 31, 327, 833	1 2 3 4 4 5 6 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 1 22 22 23 12 25 26 27

28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39	150 under 200 200 under 250 250 under 300 300 under 400 400 under 500 500 under 750 750 under 1,000 1,000 under 1,500 1,500 under 2,000 2,000 under 3,000 3,000 under 4,000 4,000 under 5,000	273 167 166 86 79 33 28 8 6	107, 300, 296 60, 838, 659 45, 625, 321 56, 863, 361 38, 893, 402 46, 695, 883 27, 473, 712 33, 445, 081 13, 613, 596 14, 078, 874 13, 442, 879 8, 990, 442	1, 014, 700 425, 734 282, 400 272, 767 143, 600 121, 767 49, 600 44, 383 12, 500 8, 100	96, 874 58, 834 61, 916 26, 167 20, 467 14, 400 7, 884 2, 000 400 2, 167	609. 977 257, 415 153. 219 153. 868 68. 868 67, 742 27, 332 18, 097 6, 271 5, 100	56, 648, 630 33, 484, 103 26, 405, 110 34, 316, 709 23, 461, 612 28, 555, 882 17, 582, 012 21, 218, 678 9, 589, 441 10, 028, 492 10, 593, 529	29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38
40	5,000 and over	1	5, 074, 832	4, 000 2, 000	1, 400 400	1, 700 1, 400	6. 281, 572 3, 093, 783	39 40
41 42	Total. With no net income \$	7, 437, 261 46	23, 279, 203, 093 11 2, 550, 665	9, 463, 547, 610 66, 800	916, 106, 566 5, 200	1, 898, 979, 568 33, 702	1, 440, 967, 144 472, 953	
43	Total, taxable returns	7, 437, 307	12 23, 276, 652, 428	9, 463, 614, 410	916, 111, 766	1, 899, 013, 270	1, 441, 440, 097	43
44 45 46 47 48 49 50	Nontaxable individual returns:  With net income: 10  Under 1 (est.).  1 under 2 (est.).  2 under 2.5 (est.).  2.5 under 3 (est.).  3 under 4 (est.).  4 under 5 (est.).  5 under 6.:	1, 382, 673 2, 107, 533 2, 545, 537 887, 004 231, 883 6, 245 138	1, 029, 963, 914 3, 246, 736, 426 5, 604, 240, 944 2, 375, 659, 719 746, 267, 152 26, 915, 441 731, 915	1, 481, 341, 324 3, 927, 371, 274 5, 083, 387, 712 1, 773, 621, 085 463, 888, 651 12, 530, 543 273, 300	126, 387, 697 618, 840, 762 1, 155, 213, 930 719, 319, 215 284, 901, 950 14, 227, 857 340, 127	221, 394, 515 486, 014, 660		45 46 47 48 49
51 52	Total. With no net income 4.	7, 160, 813 112, 651	13, 030, 515, 511 11 308, 833, 907	12, 742, 413, 889 ( <sup>13</sup> )	2, 919, 231, 538 ( <sup>13</sup> )	1, 129, 531, 742		51 52
53	Total, nontaxable returns	7, 273, 464	12 12, 721, 681, 604	(13)	(13)	(13)		53
54	Grand total (43 plus 53, or 55 plus 56)	14, 710, 771	12 35, 998, 334, 032	(13)	(13)	(13)	1, 441, 440, 097	54
55 56	Individual returns with net income (41 plus 51) Individual returns with no net income (42 plus 52)	14, 598, 074 112, 697	36, 309, 718, 604 11 311, 384, 572	22, 205, 961, 499 ( <sup>13</sup> )	3, 835, 338, 104 ( <sup>13</sup> )	3, 028, 511, 310 ( <sup>13</sup> )	1, 440, 967, 144 472, 953	55 56

Table 2-A.—Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income; and taxable returns by type of tax liability—Part I, all returns; Part II, returns with normal tax and surtax; and Part III, returns with alternative tax by returns with net long-term capital gain and returns with net long-term capital loss, showing the tax computation: Number of returns, net income, deficit, personal exemption, credit for dependents, earned income credit, taxes, average tax and effective tax rate—Continued

### PART I-ALL RETURNS-Continued

-				,	Fax-Continue	đ				Effective tax	
	Net income classes	Retu	ırns with norm	al tax and sur	tax 7	Returns	with alternat	ive tax <sup>8</sup>	Average total tax (col. 7 ÷ 2)	rate, percent (returns with net income)	
	(Thousands of dollars)	Total (col.9+10+11)	Normal tax	Surtax	Defense tax •	Total (col. 13+14)	Alternative tax	Defense tax 9	(0011 7 1 = 7	(col. 7÷3)	
	(1)	(8)	(9)	(10)	(11)	(12)	(13)	(14)	(15)	(16)	
1 22 3 3 4 4 5 5 6 6 7 7 8 8 9 9 100 111 122 133 144 15 166 177 188 199 20 212 223 24	12 under 13.  13 under 14.  14 under 15.  15 under 20.  20 under 25.  25 under 30.  30 under 40.  40 under 50.  60 under 60.	57, 145, 439 24, 597, 793 24, 642, 621 45, 360, 888 32, 427, 827 27, 958, 518 24, 936, 210 22, 498, 683 21, 374, 177 21, 107, 437 19, 901, 680 17, 720, 508 17, 737, 959 80, 119, 954 65, 119, 822 42, 931, 404 62, 252, 482 43, 386, 333 31, 616, 516	\$1, 593, 106 51, 950, 399 22, 361, 630 22, 402, 383 41, 237, 171 29, 366, 807 24, 456, 577 19, 306, 679 13, 290, 546 11, 840, 712 10, 221, 478 9, 170, 142 8, 051, 492 7, 310, 679 6, 741, 560 26, 484, 723 16, 817, 331 8, 811, 915 10, 699, 551 10, 699, 551 6, 220, 799 3, 947, 329 3, 947, 329 2, 622, 763 1, 968, 719	\$113, 036 964, 875 2, 549, 395 4, 719, 542 6, 145, 263 7, 352, 616 7, 876, 101 8, 432, 872 8, 554, 689 8, 801, 831 9, 041, 909 46, 364, 476 42, 393, 458 29, 407, 327 45, 919, 427 33, 243, 491 24, 804, 562 18, 623, 076	2, 236, 163 2, 240, 238 4, 123, 717 2, 947, 984 2, 637, 066 2, 180, 138 2, 038, 952 1, 938, 368 1, 914, 109 1, 765, 528 1, 656, 459 1, 607, 990 1, 574, 490 7, 270, 755 5, 909, 033 3, 812, 162 5, 633, 504 3, 922, 043 2, 864, 625 2, 119, 306	\$18, 909 10, 580 3, 335 30, 819 11, 029 87, 535 39, 815 12, 372 54, 945 23, 714 38, 373 96, 712 16, 222 54, 102 57, 104 86, 115 874, 933 7, 810, 274 23, 103, 858 47, 116, 980 44, 343, 271 37, 901, 506 32, 962, 281 26, 316, 047	\$18, 909 10, 518 3, 169 30, 819 10, 710 87, 535 36, 196 11, 247 49, 950 24, 950 24, 834 89, 135 14, 747 49, 184 51, 914 78, 286 798, 311 7, 101, 615 21, 006, 325 42, 833, 949 40, 314, 643, 344 34, 464, 900 29, 972, 384 23, 932, 502	\$62 166 319 1, 125 4, 995 933 3, 489 7, 577 1, 475 4, 918 5, 190 7, 829 76, 627 708, 659 2, 097, 496 4, 228, 031 4, 028, 628 3, 436, 606 2, 989, 897	4, 679 7, 394 11, 754 16, 731 22, 107	6, 92 7, 52 8, 12 9, 96 13, 50 17, 15 21, 52 26, 43 30, 64 34, 20	21 22 23

25 26 27 28 29 30 31	80 under 90 90 under 100 100 under 150 150 under 200 200 under 250 250 under 300 300 under 400 400 under 500	11, 250, 493 31, 820, 205 12, 682, 393 8, 777, 035 5, 189, 436 7, 329, 708	1, 501, 457 1, 029, 302 2, 602, 507 922, 687 600, 223 342, 280 464, 672 208, 424	12, 607, 416 9, 201, 073 26, 339, 987 10, 613, 133 7, 458, 742 4, 444, 919 6, 358, 755 2, 983, 195	1, 403, 487 1, 020, 118 2, 877, 711 1, 146, 573 718, 070 402, 228 506, 281 213, 323	24, 065, 230 20, 077, 390 73, 516, 991 43, 966, 237 24, 707, 068 21, 215, 674 26, 987, 001 20, 056, 670	18, 265, 042 66, 922, 629 40, 140, 579 22, 663, 439 19, 597, 037 25, 154, 302	6, 594, 362 3, 825, 658 2, 043, 629 1, 618, 637 1, 832, 699	40, 113 56, 451 90, 493 122, 652 158, 114 206, 727	42. 36 47. 03 52. 79 55. 04 57. 87 60. 35	26 27 28 29 30 31
33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40	500 under 750. 750 under 1,000. 1,000 under 1,500. 1,500 under 2,000. 2,000 under 3,000. 3,000 under 4,000. 4,000 under 5,000. 5,000 and over.	5, 536, 335 4, \$83, 485 3, 550, 296 1, 355, 680 2, 425, 342	326, 142 273, 432 193, 865 72, 047	4, 914, 896 4, 359, 949 3, 211, 171 1, 233, 666 2, 220, 375	295, 297 250, 104 145, 260 49, 967 79, 478	23, 019, 547 12, 698, 527 17, 668, 382 8, 233, 761	21, 619, 670 11, 952, 004 16, 650, 267 7, 846, 187	1, 288, 412 1, 399, 877 746, 523 1, 018, 115 387, 574 345, 644 237, 115 200, 937 220, 116	272, 809 361, 467 532, 788 757, 810 1, 198, 680 1, 671, 415 2, 648, 382 3, 140, 786 3, 093, 783	60. 32 61. 15 64. 00 63. 44 71. 23 78. 80 77. 64 60. 96	33 34 35 36 37 38 39
41 42 43	Total With no net income 5 Total, taxable returns	i———				472, 953	519, 054, 925 472, 953		194 10, 282		42
44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52	Nontaxable individual returns:  With net income: 10  Under 1 (est.)  1 under 2 (est.)  2 under 2.5 (est.)  2.5 under 3 (est.)  3 under 4 (est.)  4 under 5 (est.)  5 under 6										47 48 49 50
53	With no net income 4  Total, nontaxable returns										52 53
54	Grand total (43 plus 53, or 55 plus 56)	876, 111, 796	381, 277, 216	416, 563, 346	78, 271, 234	565, 328, 301	519, 527, 878	45, 800, 423	(14)		54
55 56	Individual returns with net income (41 plus 51) Individual returns with no net income (42 plus 52)	876, 111, 796	381, 277, 216	416, 563, 346	. 78, 271, 234	564, 855, 348 472, 953	519, 054, 925 472, 953	45, 800, 423	(14) 99	3. 97	55 56

Table 2-A.—Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income; and taxable returns surtax; and Part III, returns with alternative tax by returns with net long-term Number of returns, net income, deficit, personal exemption, credit for dependents,

STATISTICS OF INCOME FOR 1940-PART 1

[For description of items and classifications, and methods PART II—RETURNS WITH

Net income classes (Thousands of dollars)							
net incoline:		(Thousands of dollars)	of returns		emption 5	depend- ents	income credit
	23 45678910112314456171891202122324526278293033333344040	net income:     Under 1 (est.)	2, 905, 082 914, 048 912, 171 1, 014, 619 393, 843 217, 743 128, 898 83, 386 58, 464 44, 679 33, 690 26, 839 21, 198 17, 528 14, 806 47, 064 22, 233 9, 197 8, 647 3, 791 1, 930 1, 930 693 558 138 688 32 128 138 148 148 148 158 158 158 158 158 158 158 158 158 15	4, 094, 790, 813, 2, 083, 852, 957, 2, 504, 195, 812, 3, 474, 773, 199, 1, 742, 791, 098, 832, 538, 879, 622, 773, 429, 495, 353, 207, 697, 214, 431, 830, 899, 157, 244, 492, 460, 690, 250, 477, 111, 269, 352, 011, 168, 322, 194, 105, 298, 336, 51, 681, 119, 61, 298, 336, 210, 210, 210, 210, 210, 210, 210, 210	2, 330, 974, 279 1, 288, 994, 172 1, 593, 627, 560 1, 831, 906, 248 703, 114, 216 384, 330, 262 224, 729, 773 143, 581, 812 99, 789, 893 76, 122, 240 56, 983, 138 45, 259, 698 35, 585, 875 29, 400, 776 24, 848, 885 78, 480, 903 37, 612, 999 15, 567, 807 14, 581, 963 6, 306, 084 3, 229, 812 1, 784, 576 1, 174, 956 1, 174, 976 1, 174, 576 1, 174, 576 1, 174, 976 865, 426 225, 600 115, 834 49, 800 53, 200 19, 600 22, 000 9, 200 5, 983 2, 000	53, 830, 907, 226, 594, 283, 988, 843, 910, 273, 229, 123, 144, 755, 856, 89, 188, 625, 55, 182, 597, 35, 220, 510, 24, 419, 382, 24, 419, 382, 26, 114, 070, 571, 8, 613, 102, 7, 256, 948, 6, 114, 460, 19, 380, 693, 707, 730, 4, 655, 517, 36, 767, 613, 11, 635, 763, 311, 270, 470, 307, 288, 021, 299, 932, 2129, 065, 201, 658, 041, 48, 667, 32, 734, 114, 867, 32, 734, 114, 867, 32, 734, 124, 867, 32, 734, 22, 000, 6, 334, 2, 400, 2, 284, 800	409, 475, 136 208, 384, 659 250, 419, 573 335, 627, 161 157, 155, 923 99, 725, 798 66, 822, 310 47, 793, 365 36, 449, 953 30, 383, 153 24, 540, 857 20, 852, 858 17, 509, 878 15, 331, 255 13, 608, 545 43, 949, 246 21, 401, 361 9, 225, 49, 246 21, 444, 749 1, 219, 006 797, 519 519, 341 321, 502 597, 610 141, 201 70, 444 31, 210 33, 353 8, 000 61, 900 6, 620 6, 714 1, 400

For footnotes, see p. 190.

1940, by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; aggregates for by type of tax liability—Part I, all returns; Part II, returns with normal tax and capital gain and returns with net long-term capital loss, showing the tax computation: earned income credit, taxes, average tax and effective tax rate—Continued

of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-7 and 8-9]

### NORMAL TAX AND SURTAX ?

		Ta	X				Effective		
		mal tax		Surtax		Average total tax	tax rate, percent (returns		
Fotal tax (col. 9+11+12)	Number of returns	Amount	Number of re- turns	Amount	Defense tax 9	(col. 7÷2)	with net income) (col. 7÷3)		
(7)	(8)	(9)	(10)	(11)	(12)	(13)	(14)		
\$1, 752, 417 57, 145, 439 24, 597, 793 24, 642, 621 45, 360, 888 24, 672, 827 27, 958, 518 24, 036, 210 22, 448, 683 21, 374, 177 20, 508 80, 119, 954 80, 119, 954 81, 365, 361 81, 365, 361 81, 365, 361 81, 365, 361 81, 366, 516 82, 482, 482 833, 333 31, 616, 516 82, 393 83, 77, 293 88, 777, 035 88, 112, 260 899, 991 11, 260, 493 31, 820, 205 55, 189, 436 7, 329, 708 8, 777, 035 5, 189, 436 7, 329, 708 8, 777, 035 5, 189, 436 7, 329, 708 8, 777, 035 5, 189, 436 7, 329, 708 8, 775, 355 8, 484, 942 5, 536, 335 4, 883, 485 4, 550, 296 1, 355, 680 2, 425, 342	528, 781 2, 905, 082 914, 048 912, 171 1, 014, 619 393, 843 217, 705 128, 854 44, 659 33, 673 26, 827 21, 191 17, 521 14, 801 47, 057 42, 225 9, 195 8, 640 3, 788 1, 930 1, 073 603 608 68 68 68 68 68 68 68 68 68 68 68 68 68	\$1, 593, 106 51, 950, 399 22, 361, 630 22, 402, 383 41, 237, 171 29, 366, 807 24, 456, 577 19, 306, 679 15, 740, 189 13, 290, 546 11, 840, 712 10, 221, 478 9, 170, 142 8, 051, 492 7, 310, 679 6, 741, 560 26, 484, 723 16, 817, 331 8, 811, 915 10, 699, 551 6, 220, 799 3, 947, 329 2, 622, 763 1, 968, 719 1, 501, 457 1, 029, 302 2, 622, 763 342, 289 464, 672 208, 424 326, 142 273, 482 1103, 865 72, 047		\$113, 036 904, 875 2, 549, 395 4, 719, 542 6, 145, 263 7, 352, 616 7, 876, 010 8, 432, 872 8, 654, 689 8, 801, 831 9, 041, 909 46, 364, 476 42, 393, 458 29, 407, 327 45, 919, 427 33, 243, 491 24, 804, 562 18, 623, 076 15, 308, 214 12, 607, 416 9, 201, 073 26, 339, 987 10, 013, 133 7, 458, 745 10, 013, 133 7, 458, 755 2, 983, 195 4, 914, 896 4, 359, 944 3, 211, 171 1, 233, 666 2, 220, 375	2 236, 128 2 240, 238 2 240, 238 4 123, 717 2, 947, 984 2, 537, 096 2, 180, 136 2, 180, 136 2, 038, 368 1, 914, 1092 1, 755, 528 1, 607, 998 1, 604, 459 1, 607, 998 1, 574, 490 7, 270, 755 5, 909, 033 8, 12, 162 5, 633, 504 1, 722, 158 1, 403, 487 1, 722, 158 1, 403, 487 1, 020, 118 2, 877, 711 1, 146, 573 1, 020, 118 2, 877, 711 1, 146, 573 1, 020, 118 2, 877, 111 1, 146, 573 2, 506 2, 219 2, 208	\$3 20 27 45 82 128 186 270 366 472 591 721 1, 011 1, 172 2, 929 4, 570 7, 199 11, 445 16, 382 21, 776 27, 416 33, 360 22, 746 37, 025 91, 901 129, 97, 98 110,	0. 36 1. 40 1. 18 9. 98 1. 81 1. 86 2. 35 2. 89 3. 61 4. 31 4. 98 5. 64 6. 28 6. 90 7. 50 9. 90 13. 22 16. 78 21. 01 25. 78 30. 03 33. 72 36. 76 39. 52 42. 05 47. 54 57. 38 59. 86 69. 57 69. 86 60. 25 67. 57 71. 09 73. 09 75. 09		

Table 2-A.—Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income; and taxable returns by type of tax liability—Part I, all returns; Part II, returns with normal tax and surtax; and Part III, returns with alternative tax by returns with net long-term capital gain and returns with net long-term capital loss, showing the tax computation: Number of returns, net income, deficit, personal exemption, credit for dependents, earned income credit, taxes, average tax and effective tax rate—Continued

### . PART III- RETURNS WITH ALTERNATIVE TAX 8

Net income classes (Thousands of dollars)					Comp	ıtation of altern	native tax	
	Number of Total alter-							
	returns (col. 5+19)	Net income (col. 6+20)	native and defense taxes (col. 16+30)	Number of re- turns	re- Net income (item 10(b), 6-7) (item		Personal ex- emption <sup>5</sup>	
(1)	(2)	(8)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)	(8) .	(9)
Taxable individual returns:  With net income:  Under 1 (est.).  1 under 2 (est.).  2 under 2.5 (est.).  2.5 under 3 (est.).  3 under 4 (est.).  4 under 5 (est.).  5 under 6.  6 under 7.  7 under 8.  8 under 9.  9 under 10.  10 under 11.  11 under 12.  12 under 13.  13 under 14.  14 under 15.  15 under 20.  20 under 25.  25 under 30.  30 under 40.  40 under 50.  50 under 60.	4 4 2 3 3 4 4 1 1 8 8 4 9 9 9 7 7 11 4 19 20 25 2 25 2 4 723 6, 145 3, 673 2, 225	\$1, 550 5, 551 4, 882 8, 305 13, 808 4, 623 42, 893 26, 818 67, 693 75, 457 66, 060 116, 148 46, 578 236, 240 270, 253 361, 999 4, 077, 269 47, 624, 488 129, 260, 360 211, 868, 859 163, 572, 903 121, 609, 409 95, 413, 395	\$18, 909 10, 580 3, 335 30, 819 11, 029 87, 535 39, 815 12, 372 54, 945 23, 714 38, 373 96, 712 16, 222 54, 102 57, 104 86, 115 874, 938 7, 810, 274 23, 103, 858 47, 116, 980 44, 343, 271 37, 901, 506 32, 962, 281			\$146, 187 1,709, 257 5, 157, 943 5, 667, 080 5, 718, 403	\$7, 369, 557 41, 875, 951 71, 607, 213 55, 645, 819 40, 845, 624 34, 069, 343	

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38	70 under 80	711 498 1, 308 205 133 132 74 65 25 24 7 6 3	69, 647, 940 60, 156, 126 47, 203, 448 157, 048, 302 83, 767, 117 45, 543, 254 36, 955, 559 45, 140, 393 33, 651, 454 38, 501, 874 20, 604, 183 28, 587, 428 11, 808, 212 14, 078, 874 10, 302, 237 8, 090, 442 5, 074, 832	26, 316, 047 24, 065, 230 20, 077, 390 73, 516, 991 43, 966, 237 24, 707, 068 21, 215, 674 26, 987, 001 20, 056, 670 23, 019, 547 12, 698, 527 17, 668, 382 8, 233, 761 10, 028, 492 8, 168, 187 6, 281, 572 3, 093, 783	381 317 215 555 237 111 71 61 35 40 13 17 4	28, 470, 458 26, 826, 276 20, 364, 562 266, 927, 479 40, 994, 056 24, 556, 470 19, 389, 854 20, 800, 142 15, 886, 205 23, 499, 432 10, 945, 543 20, 370, 883 6, 704, 593 6, 271, 080  8, 090, 442 5, 074, 832	3, 597, 270 3, 824, 926 2, 594, 654 12, 413, 377 7, 842, 983 5, 462, 883 4, 368, 876 5, 287, 947 5, 866, 693 8, 769, 607 4, 810, 273 7, 792, 310 1, 591, 237 1, 493, 957	24, 873, 188 23, 001, 350 17, 769, 906 54, 514, 102 33, 151, 073 19, 063, 587 15, 020, 978 15, 512, 195 10, 019, 512 14, 729, 825 6, 135, 270 12, 578, 573 5, 113, 356 4, 777, 123  8, 046, 302 3, 032, 012	584, 117 490, 200 343, 542 865, 333 376, 800 170, 300 123, 800 123, 800 60, 167 20, 800 28, 000 5, 600 4, 300 4, 000 2, 000	25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33
41 42	Total With no net income <sup>5</sup>	25, 240 46	1, 490, 936, 621 11 2, 550, 665	564, 855, 348 472, 953	9, 015	619, 914, 080	101, 162, 219	518, 751, 861	13, 729, 016	41 42
43	Total, individual returns with alternative tax	25, 286	12 1, 488, 385, 956	565, 328, 301 .	9, 015	619, 914, 080	101, 162, 219	518, 751, 861	13, 729, 016	43

Table 2-A.—Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income; and taxable returns by type of tax liability—Part I, all returns; Part II, returns with normal tax and surtax; and Part III, returns with alternative tax by returns with net long-term capital gain and returns with net long-term capital loss, showing the tax computation: Number of returns, net income, deficit, personal exemption, credit for dependents, earned income credit, taxes, average tax and effective tax rate—Continued

[For description of items and classification, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-7 and 8-9]

### PART III-RETURNS WITH ALTERNATIVE TAX 6-Continued

			1	Computation o	f alternative ta	x-Continue	d		
			Reti	ırns with net k	ong-term capita	l gain—Cont	inued		
Net income classes						Tax			Effective
(Thousands of dollars)	Credit for dependents	Earned in-	Normal tax (item 10, Sch. F, Form 1040)	Surtax (item 11, Sch. F, Form 1040)	Alternative tax (col. 12 +13+30% of col. 7) (item 14, Sch. F, Form 1040)	Defense tax 9	Total (col. 14+15)	Average alternative and defense taxes (col. 16÷5)	tax rate, percent (returns with net income) (col. 16÷6)
(1)	(10)	(11)	(12)	(13)	(14)	(15)	(16)	(17)	(18)
Taxable individual returns: With net income: Under 1 (est.) I under 2 (est.)	1	1							
2 under 2.5 (est.) 2.5 under 3 (est.) 3 under 4 (est.)									
4 under 6 test.) 5 under 6 6 under 7 7 tuder 8 8 under 9 9 under 10									
10 under 11 11 under 12 12 under 13 13 under 14									
14 under 15. 15 under 26. 20 under 25. 25 under 30.	\$22, 667	\$216, 028	\$266, 743	\$786, 331 4, 895, 772	\$1, 096, 930	\$110,068	\$1, 206, 998 7, 585, 055		16. 06 17. 40

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40	30 under 40 40 under 50 50 under 60 60 under 70 70 under 80 80 under 90 90 under 100 100 under 155 150 under 200 200 under 250 250 under 300 300 under 400 400 under 500 500 under 750 1,000 under 1,000 1,000 under 1,000 1,000 under 3,000 3,000 under 4,000 4,000 under 5,000 5,000 under 5,000		1, 933, 348 1, 259, 832 793, 534 576, 144 360, 148 306, 272 208, 200 520, 048 232, 724 107, 509 68, 430 57, 582 28, 983 34, 332 12, 700 12, 183 2, 871 2, 000	2, 587, 214 2, 046, 205 1, 523, 271 1, 282, 186 945, 139 875, 831 680, 684 2, 100, 794 1, 293, 625 741, 739 587, 301 611, 181 396, 134 583, 106 237, 487 501, 182 204, 146 190, 817	10, 660, 443 10, 423, 272 9, 009, 880 8, 603, 833 6, 983, 477 7, 004, 014 5, 789, 611 20, 230, 896 14, 285, 407 7, 445, 135 8, 036, 882 8, 447, 893 9, 633, 505 3, 402, 691 3, 237, 248	14, 795, 040 14, 169, 601 12, 248, 672 11, 373, 838 9, 007, 797 9, 027, 323 7, 248, 691 26, 055, 703 17, 931, 927 11, 202, 624 9, 343, 099 10, 234, 447 7, 577, 095 11, 661, 887 5, 319, 673 10, 872, 380 4, 084, 208 3, 876, 252 2, 873, 667 212, 978, 418	1, 479, 248 1, 416, 993 1, 222, 130 1, 134, 573 899, 048 902, 703 724, 808 2, 602, 532 1, 763, 464 1, 054, 057 829, 799 590, 395 882, 2145, 569 251, 122 145, 524 200, 837 220, 116 19, 111, 005	16, 274, 288 15, 586, 594 13, 470, 802 12, 508, 411 9, 906, 845 9, 930, 026 7, 973, 499 28, 685, 235 19, 695, 391 12, 256, 681 10, 188, 768 11, 064, 246 8, 167, 490 12, 544, 104 5, 733, 353 11, 606, 176 4, 335, 330 4, 021, 776  6, 281, 572 3, 093, 783	7, 327 11, 327 11, 327 15, 792 20, 744 26, 002 31, 325 37, 086 51, 636 83, 103 110, 421 143, 504 181, 381 233, 357 313, 682, 716 1, 083, 833 1, 340, 592 3, 140, 786 3, 093, 783 25, 745	21. 20 25. 42 28. 93 32. 05 34. 80 37. 02 39. 15 42. 82 48. 04 49. 97 52. 55 53. 19 51. 41 53. 38 50. 97 64. 66 64. 13	21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 40
43	Total, individual returns with alternative tax.	2, 922, 089	8, 091, 069	19, 585, 862	163, 043, 890	212, 978, 418	19, 111, 005	232, 089, 423	25, 745		43

Table 2-A.—Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income; and taxable returns by type of tax liability—Part I, all returns; Part II, returns with normal tax and surtax; and Part III, returns with alternative tax by returns with net long-term capital gain and returns with net long-term capital loss, showing the tax computation: Number of returns, net income, deficit, personal exemption, credit for dependents, earned income credit, taxes, average tax and effective tax rate—Continued

PART III-RETURNS W	TTH A	A T.T	TRNA	TIVE	TAX	8—Continued
PARI III—REIURNO II	/ LIE E	101	. 12 14 14 24		TUV.	-Continuea

			Comp	utation of alterna	tive tax—Con	tinued		
Net income classes			Ret	urns with net lon	g-term capital	loss		
(Thousands of dollars)	Number of returns	Net income	Net long-term capital loss (item 10(b), p. 1, Form 1040)	Ordinary net income (col. 20+21) (item 3, Sch. F, Form 1040)	Personal exemption 6	Credit for dependents	Earned in- come credit	Normal tax (item 10, Sch. F, Form 1040)
(1)	(19)	(20)	(21)	(22)	(23)	(24)	(25)	(26)
Taxable individual returns:  With net income:  Under 1 (est.)  1 under 2 (est.)  2 under 3.6 (est.)  3 under 3 (est.)  5 under 6.  6 under 7.  7 under 8.  8 under 9.  9 under 10.  10 under 11.  11 under 12.  12 under 13.  13 under 14.  14 under 15.  15 under 20.  20 under 20.  20 under 30.  30 under 40.  40 under 50.  50 under 60.  60 under 70.	3 4 2 3 4 4 1 1 8 4 9 9 7 11 4 19 20 25 225 1, 714 3, 135 3, 924 2, 297 1, 372 551	\$1, 550 5, 551 4, 882 8, 305 13, 808 4, 628 42, 893 26, 818 67, 093 75, 457 66, 606 116, 148 46, 578 236, 240 270, 253 361, 999 4, 077, 269 40, 108, 744 85, 675, 152 135, 103, 703 102, 260 103, 703 104, 108, 744 85, 675, 152 135, 103, 703 102, 260 103, 104, 108, 104 104, 108, 104 105, 104 106, 104 107, 269 40, 108, 104 108, 108, 108 109, 108 10	\$259, 097 280, 753 161, 897 323, 013 259, 427 312, 360 625, 663 459, 527 423, 333 740, 654 185, 210 777, 623 826, 680 988, 296 6, 136, 103 11, 962, 806 12, 272, 536 17, 570, 487 12, 132, 583 7, 716, 540 5, 297, 877 4, 047, 463	\$260, 647 286, 304 166, 779 331, 318 273, 235 316, 988 620, 750 251, 778 692, 756 534, 934 489, 393 856, 802 231, 788 1, 003, 386 1, 096, 331 1, 360, 935 10, 213, 372 52, 071, 550 97, 947, 688 152, 674, 190 114, 302, 587 82, 761, 922 61, 682, 533 45, 224, 945	\$3,000 6,800 4,000 2,000 11,600 3,000 16,900 17,500 17,500 1,600 30,167 23,600 281,567 22,997,316 4,987,028 6,193,405 3,648,523 2,218,67 1,406,892 881,900	\$800 800 2, 400 400 2, 800 1, 200 1, 167 2, 367 2, 267 4, 400 5, 200 32, 199 302, 397 1, 012, 307 1, 344, 044 1, 240 5, 503 503, 155 503, 155 503, 554 183, 300	\$154 4,600 1,125 839 1,302 2,643 1,566 6,465 4,496 3,309 8,980 2,748 8,773 13,956 17,385 143,514 1,308,445 2,835,993 3,597,572 2,173,174 1,325,683 8,56,065 546,771	\$9, 872 10, 966 5, 692 12, 211 10, 574 12, 570 23, 409 9, 559 26, 102 20, 288 18, 767 32, 649 8, 996 38, 131 40, 021 50, 907 381, 645 1, 897, 243 3, 521, 872 5, 587, 743 4, 256, 174 3, 117, 554 2, 345, 300 1, 734, 463

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38	80 under 90. 90 under 100. 100 under 150. 150 under 200. 200 under 250. 250 under 300. 300 under 400. 400 under 500. 500 under 750. 750 under 1,000. 1,000 under 2,000. 2,000 under 3,000. 3,000 under 4,000. 4 000 under 5,000.	753 251 94 64 71 39 25 12 7	33, 329, 850 26, 838, 886 90, 120, 823 42, 773, 061 21, 016, 705 24, 340, 251 17, 765, 249 15, 002, 442 9, 658, 640 8, 216, 545 5, 103, 619 7, 807, 794 10, 302, 237	2, 948, 143 2, 283, 663 6, 215, 693 3, 593, 553 972, 343 1, 313, 953 1, 931, 213 775, 610 385, 827 76, 283 183, 557 54, 717 562, 330	36, 277, 993 29, 122, 549 96, 335, 916 46, 366, 614 21, 989, 127 18, 879, 658 26, 271, 464 18, 495, 849 15, 778, 052 10, 044, 467 8, 292, 828 5, 287, 176 7, 802, 511 10, 864, 567	638. 083 440, 067 1, 208. 283 412, 300 139, 600 108, 800 116, 700 66, 800 39, 600 10, 400 4, 900 3, 800 5, 000	2, 167	392, 393 272, 644 762, 760 236, 052 79, 662 53, 579 62, 933 31, 885 21, 510 8, 012 3, 200 2, 000 3, 100 2, 000	1, 393, 875 1, 124, 239 3, 731, 259 1, 816, 504 865, 078 746, 005 1, 038, 801 400, 096 331, 017 211, 010 314, 224 431, 023	25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37
40	4,000 under 5,000. 5,000 and over.									40
41 42	Total	16, 225 46	871, 022, 541 11 2, 550, 665	106, 589, 630 9, 474, 716	977, 612, 171 6, 924, 051	25, 339, 705 66, 800	5, 179, 991 5, 200	14, 797, 288 33, 702	36, 936, 970 266, 940	41 42
43	Total, individual returns with alternative tax.	16, 271	12 868, 471, 876	116, 064, 346	984, 536, 222	25, 406, 505	5, 185, 191	14, 830, 990	37, 203, 910	43

Table 2-A.—Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income; and taxable returns by type of tax liability—Part I, all returns; Part II, returns with normal tax and surtax; and Part III, returns with alternative tax by returns with net long-term capital gain and returns with net long-term capital loss, showing the tax computation: Number of returns, net income, deficit, personal exemption, credit for dependents, earned income credit, taxes, average tax and effective tax rate—Continued

			Compute	tion of alternat	ive tax—Conti	nued				
			Returns with	net long-term	capital loss—Co	ontinued			Effective	
	Net income classes			, Tax			•	A verage alter- native and defense taxes	tax rate, percent (re- turns with	
	(Thousands of dollars)	Surtax (item 11, Sch. F, Form 1040)	Alternative tax (col. 26+27- 30% of col. 21) (item 14, Sch. F, Form 1040)	Defense tax 9	Total (col. 28+29)	A verage alter- native and defense taxes (col. 30÷19)	Effective tax rate, percent (returns with net income) (col. 30÷20)	(col. 4÷2)	net income) (col. 4÷3)	,
1	(1)	(27)	(28)	(29)	(30)	(31)	(32)	(33)	(34)	
T	Caxable individual returus:  With net income:  Under 1 (est.).  1 under 2 (est.).  2 under 2.5 (est).  3 under 4 (est.).  4 under 5 (est.).  5 under 6.  6 under 7.  7 under 8.  8 under 9.  9 under 10.  10 under 11.  11 under 12.  12 under 13.  13 under 14.  14 under 15.  15 under 5.  15 under 15.  15 under 16.  10 under 17.  11 under 18.  12 under 19.  13 under 19.  14 under 19.  15 under 20.  20 under 25.  25 under 30.  30 under 40.	\$86, 766 83, 778 46, 046 115, 512 77, 964 168, 673 186, 144 69, 176 211, 547 140, 381 143, 117 278, 682 61, 314 244, 340 259, 897 7, 696, 284 14, 269, 322 27, 722, 306	\$18, 909 10, 518 3, 169 30, S19 10, 710 87, 535 36, 196 11, 247 49, 950 22, 781 34, 884 89, 135 14, 747 49, 184 51, 914 78, 296 798, 311 6, 004, 685 14, 109, 433 28, 033, 909	\$62 166 319 3, 619 1, 125 4, 995 933 3, 489 7, 577 1, 475 4, 918 5, 190 7, 627 598, 591 1, 409, 370 2, 803, 783	\$18, 909 10, 580 3, 335 30, 819 11, 029 \$7, 535 39, 816 12, 372 54, 945 23, 714 38, 373 96, 712 16, 222 54, 102 57, 104 86, 115 874, 938 6, 603, 276 15, 518, 803 30, 842, 692	\$6, 303 2, 645 1, 668 10, 273 2, 757 87, 535 4, 977 3, 093 6, 105 2, 635 5, 482 8, 792 4, 056 2, 847 2, 845 3, 889 3, 853 4, 950 7, 860	1, 219. 94 190. 60 68. 31 371. 09 79. 87 1, 891. 42 92. 82 46. 13 81. 89 31. 43 58. 09 22. 90 21. 13 23. 79 21. 46 16. 46 18. 11 22. 83	\$6, 303 2, 645 1, 668 10, 273 2, 757 87, 535 4, 977 3, 093 6, 105 2, 635 5, 482 4, 056 2, 847 2, 855 3, 445 3, 889 3, 857 4, 892 7, 668	1, 219. 94 190. 60 68. 31 371. 09 79. 87 1, 891. 43 81. 89 31. 43 58. 09 83. 27 34. 83 22. 90 21. 13 23. 79 21. 46 16. 40	1 2 3 4 4 5 6 7 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 34 33 34 33 34 40 36 37 38 38 39 34 0	40 under 50 50 under 60 60 under 70 70 under 89 80 under 90 90 under 100 150 under 200 200 under 250 250 under 300 300 under 440 400 under 500 500 under 750 750 under 1,000 1,000 under 1,500 1,500 under 2,000 2,000 under 3,000 3,000 under 4,000 4,000 under 4,000 4,000 under 5,000 5,000 under 5,000	21, 413, 636 17, 842, 609 14, 404, 481 12, 345, 884 10, 577, 211 39, 000, 195 21, 470, 214 10, 887, 440 9, 902, 118 14, 469, 418 10, 675, 899 9, 563, 755 6, 347, 983 5, 469, 755 3, 606, 036	22, 216, 228 18, 598, 546 14, 924, 705 12, 855, 316 11, 1016, 351 40, 886, 926 22, 208, 652 11, 480, 815 10, 233, 938 14, 191, 163 9, 957, 783 5, 632, 331 5, 777, 837 5, 506, 596 7, 931, 072	1, 855, 324 1, 484, 497 1, 279, 888 1, 087, 540 3, 991, 830 2, 062, 194 989, 572 772, 968 1, 002, 900 608, 017 517, 660 332, 843 224, 319 136, 452 200, 120 237, 115	28, 756, 677 24, 430, 704 20, 453, 877 16, 409, 202 14, 135, 204 12, 103, 891 44, 858, 756 24, 270, 846 12, 450, 387 11, 026, 906 15, 922, 755 11, 889, 188 10, 475, 446 6, 965, 176 6, 662, 200 3, 898, 43 6, 006, 716 8, 168, 18	17,807 0 23,456 29,781 1 35,876 42,776 6 59,575 7 132,451 172,295 1 172,295 1 180,018 1 1	32, 55 36, 22 39, 84 42, 41 5, 49, 77 56, 7- 59, 2- 66, 94 66, 98 72, 1 76, 30 76, 99 79, 20	17,034 22,347 28,236 33,847 0,40,316 3,56,206 4,90,096 4,120,522 204,447 271,036 2,234,147 507,941 507,941 6,176,252 3,140,786 3,140,786 3,093,782	31. 17 34. 55 40. 00 42. 55 46. 48. 31 52. 46. 31 59. 77 6 59. 77 61. 61. 68 6 69. 77 6 77. 22 6 77. 25 6 77. 60. 99	222222222223333333333333333333333333333
12	Total	3, 048, 428	472, 953		332, 765, 92 472, 95	3 10, 283	2	10, 282	2	- 4
13	Total, individual returns with alterna- tive tax.	304, 164, 855	306, 549, 460	26, 689, 418	333, 238, 878	8 20, 48	1	22, 35	'	4

Table 2-B. (Table 10, Statistics of Income for 1939, Part 1.)—Taxable fiduciary returns with net income, <sup>15</sup> 1940, by net income<sup>3</sup> classes, and by type of tax liability—Part I, all returns; Part II, returns with normal tax and surtax; and Part III, returns with alternative tax by returns with net long-term capital gain and returns with net long-term capital loss, showing the tax computation: Number of returns, net income, personal exemption, taxes, average tax, and effective tax rate

### PART I-ALL RETURNS

							Tax						
Net income s classes	Number of returns	Net in- come 3	Personal exemp- tion 5	Total	Returns	with norn	nal tax and su	ırtax <sup>7</sup>	Returns w	ith alternati	ve tax <sup>8</sup>	Average total tax (col. 5÷2)	Effective tax rate, percent
(Thousands of dollars)			tion	(col. 6+10)	Total (col. 7+8+9)	Normal tax	Surtax	Defense tax 9	Total (col. 11+12)	Alternative tax	Defense tax 9	(001. 0 . 2)	(ĉol. 5÷3)
(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)	(8)	(9)	(10)	(11)	(12)	(13)	(14)
Taxable fiduciary returns with net income:   Under 1  1 under 2  2 under 2.5  2.5 under 3  3 under 4  4 under 5  5 under 6  6 under 7  7 under 8  8 under 9  9 under 10  10 under 11  11 under 12  12 under 13  13 under 4  14 under 5  5 under 6  6 under 7  7 under 8  8 under 9  9 under 10  10 under 10  10 under 10  10 under 15  15 under 20  20 under 25  25 under 30  30 under 40  40 under 50  50 under 60  60 under 70  70 under 80  80 under 90  90 under 100  100 under 150  150 under 200	13, 976 3, 773 2, 653 3, 726 2, 504 1, 925 1, 400 1, 029 855 605 564 427 452 292 969 578 389 435 264 156 91 552 445 98	\$12, 697, 263 19, 805, 227 8, 429, 243 7, 240, 329 12, 913, 150 11, 089, 461 10, 465, 811 8, 952, 386 7, 256, 072 5, 725, 654 5, 919, 676 6, 933, 808 4, 341, 827 4, 230, 988 16, 751, 027 12, 928, 614 10, 685, 835 14, 834, 776 11, 761, 821 8, 451, 527 3, 840, 823 4, 175, 360 8, 175, 360 1, 175,	\$4, 778, 812 6, 513, 572 1, 654, 451 1, 161, 254 1, 596, 339 1, 064, 368 777, 647 587, 635 406, 045 353, 833 228, 621 217, 725 186, 833 168, 730 127, 799 101, 133 370, 568 220, 500 151, 033 109, 500 59, 100 36, 100 18, 700 18, 700 11, 700 36, 100 18, 700 11, 700 37, 300 14, 800	\$344, 132 570, 891 290, 259 261, 562 487, 871 455, 171 508, 301 492, 748 471, 884 495, 905 427, 454 478, 428 419, 228 518, 913 425, 667 441, 103 2, 067, 290 2, 028, 648 3, 454, 072 3, 239, 138 4, 907, 536 1, 455, 071 1, 517, 044 1, 741, 337 5, 291, 887 5, 291, 887 5, 291, 867 3, 307, 256	\$344, 132 570, 891 290, 259 261, 562 487, 871 455, 171 508, 301 492, 748 471, 884 492, 306 427, 454 478, 428 518, 913 425, 667 441, 103 2, 034, 596 2, 152, 513 2, 040, 545 1, 563, 793 1, 433, 596 2, 152, 513 2, 040, 545 1, 500, 110 711, 881 1, 980, 110 711, 881 1, 980, 180 2, 180, 588 2, 300, 070 1, 365, 889	\$312, 789 519, 403 264, 132 238, 027 444, 040 393, 892 381, 040 329, 393 282, 468 270, 204 213, 943 165, 507 184, 001 213, 943 165, 567 636, 477 433, 414 293, 628 367, 402 294, 776 187, 756 187, 756 187, 756 187, 756 187, 759 187, 749, 949	\$20, 336 81, 798 119, 393 147, 386 177, 902 173, 820 209, 919 197, 752 239, 600 1, 215, 800 1, 115, 506 1, 101, 526 1, 592, 593 1, 563, 681 1, 180, 452 559, 508 573, 254 559, 645 660, 603 1, 905, 170 1, 142, 759	51, 488 26, 127 23, 535 43, 831 40, 993 45, 463 43, 956 42, 030 44, 200 38, 405 43, 002	\$3,599	23, 316 266, 810 540, 957 1, 183, 259 1, 032, 958 36, 690 677, 384 754, 336 850, 333 2, 732, 239 1, 779, 193	\$327	\$12 41 77 99 131 182 264 352 459 580 707 848 982 1, 148 1, 320 1, 511 2, 126 3, 542 5, 215 7, 940 12, 293 21, 951 27, 982 33, 712 39, 576 53, 99 84, 801	2. 71 2. 88 3. 44 3. 61 3. 78 4. 86 5. 56 6. 83 7. 47 8. 08 9. 20 9. 20 9. 20 9. 10. 43 115. 84 129. 121 27. 54 34. 25 37. 48 39. 50 41. 71 44. 98 49. 87

200 under 250	2	4, 084, 610 2, 115, 794 3, 632, 704 2, 366, 107 8, 344, 115 1, 710, 622 1, 311, 698 1, 861, 603	4, 700 2, 100 2, 800	2, 001, 069 985, 756 1, 923, 040 1, 340, 018 3, 968, 156 1, 066, 746 432, 231 1, 401, 721	1, 047, 379 154, 465 243, 571 505, 483 587, 601 1, 401, 721	71, 309 Tal 10, 353 15, 276 29, 081 33, 292 74, 432	887, 535 132, 428 212, 836 451, 697 527, 031 1, 276, 166	88, 535 11, 684 15, 459 24, 705 27, 278 51, 123	953, 690 831, 291 1, 679, 469 1, 340, 018 3, 462, 673 479, 145 432, 231	874, 820 760, 794 1, 561, 287 1, 270, 373 3, 198, 827 435, 587 392, 937	78, 870 70, 497 118, 182 69, 645 263, 846 43, 558 39, 294	111, 171 123, 220 192, 304 268, 004 283, 440 533, 373 432, 231 1, 401, 721	48. 99 46. 59 52. 94 56. 63 47. 56 62. 36 32. 95 75. 30
3,000 under 4,000 4,000 under 5,000 5,000 and over		4, 644, 911 278, 827, 290	21, 168, 798	3, 979, 229 54, 963, 289	28, 894, 353		18, 767, 184		3, 979, 229 26, 068, 936	3, 979, 229 24, 244, 295		3, 979, 229	85. 67

Table 2-B. (Table 10, Statistics of Income for 1939, Part 1.)—Taxable fiduciary returns with net income, 15 1940, by net income 3 classes, and by type of tax liability—Part I, all returns; Part II, returns with normal tax and surtax; and Part III, returns with alternative tax by returns with net long-term capital gain and returns with net long-term capital loss, showing the tax computation: Number of returns, net income, personal exemption, taxes, average tax, and effective tax rate—Continued

### PART II-RETURNS WITH NORMAL TAX AND SURTAX?

						T	8.X				
Net income <sup>3</sup> classes	Number of	Net income 3	Personal ex-	Total tax	Nor	mal tax	8	urtax		Average total tax	Effective tax rate, percent
(Thousands of dollars)	returns		emption 5	(col. 7+9+10)	Number of returns	Amount	Number of returns	Amount	Defense tax *	(col. 5÷2)	(col. 5+3)
(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)	(8)	(9)	(10)	(11)	(12)
Taxable fiduciary returns with net income: \$\frac{3}{4}\$ Under 1. 1 under 2. 2 under 2.5. 2.5 under 3. 3 under 4. 4 under 5. 5 under 6. 6 under 7. 7 under 8. 8 under 9. 9 under 10. 10 under 11. 11 under 12. 12 under 13. 13 under 14. 14 under 15. 15 under 16. 15 under 20. 20 under 25. 25 under 30. 30 under 40. 40 under 50. 50 under 40. 40 under 50. 50 under 60. 60 under 70. 70 under 80. 80 under 90. 90 under 90. 90 under 90. 90 under 90. 90 under 100.	452 322 292 960 506 280 276 169 89	\$12, 697, 263 19, 805, 227 8, 429, 247 8, 429, 240, 329 12, 913, 150 11, 089, 461 10, 465, 81, 81, 825 7, 654, 591 7, 247, 966 5, 725, 664 5, 919, 674 4, 903, 740 5, 638, 808 4, 341, 827 4, 230, 988 16, 588, 201 11, 228, 609 7, 608, 556 9, 436, 131 7, 474, 278 4, 810, 361 3, 103, 679 1, 863, 392 1, 699, 228 1, 887, 257	\$4, 778, 812 6, 513, 572 1, 654, 451 1, 161, 254 1, 596, 339 1, 064, 368 777, 647 587, 635 406, 045 353, 033 228, 621 217, 729 101, 133 368, 263 203, 500 123, 800 123, 800 129, 233 73, 500 21, 700 21, 700 9, 200	\$344, 132 570, 891 290, 259 261, 562 487, 871 455, 171 508, 301 492, 748 471, 884 492, 306 427, 454 478, 428 419, 228 518, 913 441, 103 2, 034, 596 1, 753, 793 1, 433, 596 2, 152, 513 2, 040, 545 1, 502, 568 1, 080, 110 887, 274 805, 980-	29, 665 13, 976 3, 773 2, 653 3, 726 1, 176 1, 922 1, 397 1, 022 851 564 427 452 292 959 503 279 276 169 89 49 25 20 20	\$312, 789 519, 403 264, 132 238, 027 444, 040 383, 842 381, 040 329, 399 282, 468 270, 204 215, 229 225, 507 184, 001 213, 943 165, 565 162, 057 433, 414 293, 628 367, 402 294, 776 187, 756 122, 414 73, 910 67, 331 74, 942		\$20, 336 81, 798 119, 393 147, 386 177, 902 173, 820 209, 919 197, 752 258, 633 221, 392 239, 600 1, 215, 843 1, 164, 506 1, 013, 526 1, 1592, 593 1, 563, 681 1, 180, 452 859, 508 573, 254 559, 645 660, 603	\$31, 343 51, 488 26, 127 23, 535 43, 831 40, 993 45, 463 42, 030 44, 200 43, 401 37, 475 46, 317 38, 110 39, 446 182, 276 155, 873 126, 442 192, 518 182, 088 184, 360 98, 188 70, 435	\$12 41 77 99 131 182 254 459 576 707 848 982 1, 148 1, 320 1, 511 2, 119 3, 466 6, 120 7, 799 12, 074 16, 883 22, 043 47, 344 34, 364 40, 299	2. 71 2. 88 3. 44 3. 61 3. 78 4. 10 4. 86 5. 50 6. 16 6. 16 8. 05 9. 79 10. 43 12. 27 15. 62 22. 81 22. 81 22. 83 40. 45 42. 71

100 under 150 150 under 200 200 under 250 250 under 300 300 under 400 400 under 500	8 1 1	4, 730, 907 2, 517, 901 1, 800, 636 259, 614 382, 703	19, 300 7, 800 5, 000 800	2, 300, 070 1, 365, 889 1, 047, 379 154, 465 243, 571	39 15 8 1	185, 802 99, 949 71, 309 10, 353 15, 276	39 15 8 1 1	1, 905, 170 1, 142, 759 887, 535 132, 428 212, 836	209, 098 123, 181 88, 535 11, 684 15, 459	58, 976 91, 059 130, 922 154, 465 243, 571	48. 62 54. 25 58. 17 59. 50 63. 64
500 under 750	1	727, 824 833, 093	800 800	505, 483 587, 601	1	29, 081 33, 292	1	451, 697 527, 031	24, 705 27, 278	505, 483 587, 601	69. 45 70. 53
1,500 under 2,000 2,000 under 3,000	1	1, 861, 603		1, 401, 721	1	74, 432	1	1, 276, 166	51, 123	1, 401, 721	75. 30
3,000 under 4,000 4,000 under 5,000									• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •		
5,000 and over											
Total	66, 628	216, 070, 093	20, 946, 498	28, 894, 353	65, 279	7, 673, 190	11, 647	18, 767, 184	2, 453, 979	434	13. 37

Table 2-B. (Table 10, Statistics of Income for 1939, Part 1.)—Taxable fiduciary Part I, all returns; Part II, returns with normal tax and surtax; and Part III, net long-term capital loss, showing the tax computation: Number of returns, net

[For description of items and classifications, and

### PART III—RETURNS WITH

				Compute	ation of alter	native tax
				Return	s with net lo capital gain	
Net income <sup>3</sup> classes (Thousands of dollars)	Number of returns (col. 5+17)	Net in- come <sup>3</sup> (col. 6+18)	Total alternative and defense taxes (col. 14+26)	Number of returns	Net income <sup>3</sup>	Net long- term capital gain (item 7(b), p. 1. Form 1041)
(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)
Caxable fiduciary returns with						
1 under 2						
2 under 2.5 2.5 under 3 3 under 4 4 under 5 5 under 6						
3 under 4						
4 under 0						
7 under 8						
8 under 9	1	\$8, 106	\$3, 599			
9 under 10						
10 mdor 17						
11 under 12						
12 under 13						
13 under 14						
15 under 20		162, 826	25, 649			
20 under 25		1, 700, 005	293, 497	32	\$763, 654	\$13, 270
25 under 30		2, 977, 279	595, 052	65	1, 784, 093	107, 007
30 under 40	159	5, 448, 645	1, 301, 559	79	2, 722, 048	305, 740
40 under 50	95	4, 287, 543	1, 198, 593	54	2, 433, 166	449, 127
50 under 60	67	3, 641, 194	1, 134, 334	38	2, 081, 033	284, 957
60 under 70		2, 727, 848	917, 426 743, 190	29 17	1,879,673	667, 300
70 under 80		2, 019, 283 2, 141, 595	829, 770	20	1, 261, 177 1, 716, 669	390, 043 536, 750
80 under 90		2, 141, 595	935, 357	16	1, 710, 609	473, 463
90 under 100 100 under 150		7, 034, 672	2, 991, 797	39	4, 623, 756	2, 673, 360
150 under 200		4, 113, 407	1, 941, 367	17	2, 926, 365	1, 307, 706
200 under 250		2, 283, 974	953, 690	10	2, 283, 974	1, 363, 193
250 under 300		1, 856, 180	953, 690 831, 291	5	2, 283, 974 1, 288, 496	954, 657
300 under 400	9	3, 250, 001	1, 679, 469	6	2, 170, 619	1, 184, 990
400 under 500	5	2, 366, 107	1, 340, 018	5	2, 366, 107	562, 233
500 under 750	13	7, 616, 291	3, 462, 673	13	7, 616, 291	4, 789, 407
750 under 1,000	1	877, 529	479, 145	1	877, 529	355, 660
1,000 under 1,500	. 1	1, 311, 698	432, 231	1	1, 311, 698	1, 309, 513
1,500 under 2,000						
2,000 under 3,000						
3,000 under 4,000		4, 644, 911	3, 979, 229			
5,000 and over		3, 033, 911	0, 010, 429			
U,UUU AHU UYEL						
	760	62, 757, 197	26, 068, 936	447	41, 638, 893	17, 728, 376

For footnotes, see p. 190.

### STATISTICS OF INCOME FOR 1940—PART 1

returns with net income, <sup>15</sup> 1940, by net income <sup>3</sup> classes, and by type of tax liability—returns with alternative tax by returns with net long-term capital gain and returns with income, personal exemption, taxes, average tax, and effective tax rate—Con.

method of tabulating data, see pp. 4 and 6-9]

### ALTERNATIVE TAX 8

		Co	mputation of	alternative	tax—Conti	nued		
		Return	s with net los	ng-term capit	al gain—C	ontinued		
	,				Tax			
Ordinary net income (col. 6-7) (item 3, Sch. E, Form 1041)	Personal exemp- tion <sup>5</sup>	Normal- tax (item 8, Sch. E, Form 1041)	Surtax (item 9, Sch. E, Form 1041)	Alterna- tive tax (col. 10+ 11+30% of col. 7) (item 12, Sch. E, Form 1041)	Defense tax 9	Total (col. 12+13)	Average alternative and defense taxes (col. 14÷5)	Effective tax rate, percent (col. 14+ 6)
(8)	(9)	(10)	(11)	(12)	(13)	(14)	(15)	(16)
			!	·	,			
\$750, 384	es 200	600 079	000 E4E	6110 700		4191 F00		
1, 677, 086	\$5, 300 21, 900	\$29, 273 64, 021	\$86, 545 216, 176	\$119, 799 312, 299	\$11, 983 31, 226	\$131, 782 343, 525	\$4, 118 5, 285	17. 2 19. 2
2, 416, 308	19, 800	94, 676	380, 342	566, 740	56, 649	893 380	7, 891	19. 2 22. 9
1, 984, 039	20, 800	77, 349	382, 075	594, 162	50 413	653, 575	12, 103	26. 8
1, 796, 076	11, 200 8, 700	69, 219	411, 537 298, 718	566, 243	54, 670 53, 231	620, 913	16, 340	29.8
1, 212, 373	8, 700	48, 076	298, 718	546, 984	53, 231	600, 215	20, 697	31.9
871, 134	3, 100	34, 697	253, 119 377, 389	404, 829	40,480	445, 309	26, 195	35. 3
1, 179, 919	6, 900	44, 228	377, 389	582, 642	58, 264	640, 906	32, 045	37. 3
1, 059, 082	3,000	42, 395	361, 055	545, 489	54, 549	600, 038	37, 502	39.1
1, 950, 396	9, 700 4, 700	77, 019	727, 569	1, 606, 596	148, 623	1, 755, 219 1, 291, 244	45, 006	37.9
1, 618, 659	4, 700 3, 300	67, 498 36, 853	718, 998 429, 009	1, 178, 808	112, 436	1, 291, 244	75, 956	44. 1
920, 781 333, 839	5, 500 500	13, 336	141, 952	874, 820	78, 870 42, 249	953, 690	95, 369	41.7
985, 629	2, 900	40, 308	518, 642	441, 684 914, 447	74, 929	483, 933 989, 376	96, 787 164, 896	37. 5 45. 5
1, 803, 874	2, 100	72, 057	1, 029, 646	1, 270, 373	69, 645	1, 340, 018	268, 004	56. 6
2, 826, 884	2,000	112, 327	1, 649, 678	3, 198, 827	263, 846	3, 462, 673	266, 359	45. 4
521, 869	100	20, 871	308, 018	435, 587	43, 558	479, 145	479, 145	54. 6
2, 185	100	83		392, 937	39, 294	479, 145 432, 231	432, 231	32. 9
23, 910, 517	126, 100	944, 286	8, 290, 468	14, 553, 266	1, 293, 915	15, 847, 181	35, 452	38.0

Table 2-B. (Table 10, Statistics of Income for 1939, Part 1.)—Taxable fiduciary Part I, all returns; Part II, returns with normal tax and surtax; and Part III, net long-term capital loss, showing the tax computation: Number of returns, net

[For description of items and classifications, and

PART III-RETURNS WITH

		Computati	ion of alterna	ative tax—Co	ontinued	
		Returns	with net lo	ng-term capi	tal loss	
Net income * classes (Thousands of dollars)	Number of returns	Net in- come <sup>3</sup>	Net long- term capital loss (item 7(b), p. 1, Form 1041)	Ordinary net income (col. 18+19) (item 3, Sch. E, Form 1041)	Personal exemp- tion s	Normal tax (item 8, Sch. E, Form 1041)
(1)	(17)	(18)	(19)	(20)	(21)	(22)
Taxable fiduciary returns with net						
!						
Under 1						
2 under 2.5						
2.5 under 3						
5 under 6						
6 under 7						
					0000	\$2,495
7 under 8 8 under 9 9 under 10	1	\$8, 106	\$55,073	\$63, 179	\$800	\$2, 490
9 under 10						
10 am don 19						
13 under 14						
14 under 15			150 502	322, 329	2 300	12, 349
15 under 20	9	162, 826	159, 503	1 054 051	2, 300 11, 700	41 505
20 under 25	40	936, 351	117, 700	1, 054, 051 1, 419, 756	10,000	41, 595 55, 732
25 under 30	44	1, 193, 186	226, 570		22, 000	120, 627
30 under 40	80	2, 726, 597	371, 243	3, 097, 840	15, 200	79, 037
40 under 50	41	1, 854, 377	158, 426	2, 012, 803 1, 665, 724	9, 200	64, 023
50 under 60	29	1, 560, 161	105, 563	936, 102	5, 700	37, 036
60 under 70	13	848, 175	87, 927 51, 730	809, 836	4, 700	32, 151
70 under 80	10	758, 106	42, 597	467, 523	1, 200	18, 653
80 under 90	5	424, 926	10,040	774, 498	800	30, 920
90 under 100	8	755, 558	18, 940 191, 263	2, 602, 179	8, 300	103, 031
100 under 150	20	2, 410, 916	54, 400	1, 241, 442	2, 300	49, 539
150 under 200	7	1, 187, 042	54,400	1, 241, 442	2,000	30,000
200 under 250			357	568, 041	900	22, 685
250 under 300	2	567, 684	24, 104	1, 103, 486	1,000	44, 093
300 under 400	3	1,079,382	24, 104	1, 100, 400		12,000
400 under 500						
500 under 750						
750 under 1,000 1,000 under 1,500					1	
1,000 under 1,500 1,500 under 2,000					1	
1 500 under 2 000	1					
2,000 under 3,000						
3,000 under 4,000	1	4, 644, 911	956, 793	5, 601, 704	100	224, 064
4,000 under 5,000		4,041,011	000, 100	3, 0.,2, .01		
5,000 and over						
Total	313	21, 118, 304	2, 622, 189	23, 740, 493	96, 200	938, 030

For footnotes, see p. 190.

returns with net income, <sup>15</sup> 1940, by net income <sup>3</sup> classes, and by type of tax liability—returns with alternative tax by returns with net long-term capital gain and returns with income personal exemption, taxes, average tax, and effective tax rate—Continued.

STATISTICS OF INCOME FOR 1940-PART 1

method of tabulating data, see pp. 4 and 6-9]

ALTERNATIVE TAX8-Continued

	Computa	tion of alte	rnative tax—C	ontinued			
	Returns with	net long-t	erm capital lo	ss—Continued	5. T		
		Tax				A verage alternative	Effective tax rate,
Surtax (item 9, Sch. E, Form 1041)	Alternative tax (col. 22+ 23-30% of col. 19) (item 12, Sch. E, Form 1041)	Defense tax 9	Total (col. 24+25)	A verage alternative and defense taxes (col. 26+17)	Effective tax rate, percent (col. 26+18)	and defense taxes (col. 4+2)	percent (4+3)
(23)	(24)	(25)	(26)	(27)	(28)	(29)	(30)
		- <i></i>					
\$17, 299	\$3, 272	\$327	\$3, 599	\$3, 599	44.40	\$3, 599	44.40
58, 818	23, 316 147, 011	2, 333 14, 704	25, 649 161, 715	2, 850	15, 75	2, 850	15. 75
58, 818 140, 726 240, 897	147, 011 228, 658	14,704 22,869	161, 715	4,043	17. 27	4, 076	17. 26
607, 265	616, 519	61, 651	251, 527 678, 170	5, 717 8, 477	21. 08 24. 87	5, 459 8, 186	19. 99 23. 89
463, 963	495, 472	49, 546	545, 018	13, 293	29. 39	12, 617	27. 96
434, 361	495, 472 466, 715	46, 706	513, 421	13, 293 17, 704	32, 91	16, 930	31. 15
279, 048 255, 923	289, 706 272, 555	27, 505 25, 326	317, 211	24, 401	37.40	21, 843	33. 63
165,,820	171, 694	25, 326 17, 170	297, 881 188, 864	29, 788 37, 773	39, 29 44, 45	27, 526 33, 191	36. 80 38. 75
279, 606	304, 844	30, 475	335, 319	37, 773 41, 915	44. 38	38, 973	40. 88
1, 080, 051	1, 125, 703	110, 875	1, 236, 578	61, 829	51, 29	50, 708	42. 53
567, 166	600, 385	49, 738	650, 123	92, 875	54.77	80, 890	47. 20 41. 76
296, 532	319, 110	28. 248	347, 358	173, 679	61. 19	95, 369 118, 756	41. 76 44. 79
609, 978	646, 840	28, 248 43, 253	690, 093	230, 031	63. 93	186, 608	51. 68
						268, 004	56. 63
						266, 359 479, 145	45. 46 54. 60
						432, 231	32, 95
4, 042, 203	3, 979, 229		3, 979, 229	3, 979, 229	85. 67	3, 979, 229	85. 67
9, 539, 656	9, 691, 029	530, 726	10, 221, 755	32, 657	48. 40	34, 301	41. 54

Table 3.—Individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns, with net income, 1940, by net income classes: Simple and cumulative distribution of number of returns, net income, and total tax, with corresponding percentage distribution; also aggregate for individual returns with no net income.

For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-7 and 8-9]

### [Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

			Number of	returns		
Net income <sup>3</sup> classes	Simple dis	tribution	Cumulative tion from income cla	highest	Cumulative tion from income cla	a lowest
į	Number	Percent of total	Number	Percent of total	Number	Percent of total:
(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)
ndividual returns and taxable fiduciary returns 3 with uet income:  Under 1 (est.)	15, 123 48, 258 24, 836 14, 309 15, 227 7, 728 4, 311 2, 639 1, 677 1, 221 1, 964 665 291 175 176 91 93 35 29 6 4 4 3 3	13. 24 34. 27 23. 61 12. 29 8. 53 2. 74 1. 50 1. 50 1. 50 1. 10	14, 665, 462 12, 724, 340 7, 697, 745 4, 234, 585 2, 432, 754 1, 182, 522 779, 929 560, 115 429, 813 345, 389 286, 061 1240, 770 206, 505 157, 566 139, 696 124, 573 76, 315 51, 479 37, 170 21, 943 14, 215 9, 904 47, 265 5, 588 4, 367 3, 542 1, 578 913 622 447 271 180 82 447 271 180 84 4 1	100. 00 86. 76 52. 49 28. 88 16. 59 8. 06 5. 32 2. 35 1. 195 1. 64 1. 41 1. 22 1. 07 95 5. 52 35 25 10 07 07 05 04 03 02 01 (10) (10) (10) (10) (10) (10) (10) (	1, 941, 122 6, 967, 717 10, 430, 877 12, 332, 708 13, 482, 940 13, 885, 240 14, 105, 347 14, 235, 649 14, 520, 073 14, 379, 401 14, 424, 692 14, 458, 957 14, 486, 227 14, 457, 896 14, 525, 766 14, 525, 766 14, 525, 766 14, 559, 147 14, 613, 983 14, 689, 147 14, 615, 247 14, 655, 558 14, 656, 191 14, 665, 191 14, 665, 191 14, 665, 481 14, 665, 481	13. 2 47. 5 71. 1 83. 4 91. 9 94. 6 96. 1 97. 0 98. 3 98. 7 99. 0 99. 1 99. 9 99. 9
Grand total	14, 778, 159	(14)		-	-	

For footnote, see p. 190.

Table 3.—Individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns, with net income, 1940, by net income classes: Simple and cumulative distribution of number of returns, net income, and total tax, with corresponding percentage distribution; also aggregate for individual returns with no net income—Continued

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-7 and 8-9]

#### [Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

			Net in	come 3		
Net income <sup>3</sup> classes	Simple dis	tribution	Cumulativ bution! 1 est incon	om high-	Cumulativ tion from come class	lowest in-
	Amount	Percent of total	Amount	Percent of total	Amount	Percent of total
(1)	(8)	(9)	(10)	(11)	(12)	(13)
Individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns 3 with net income:  Under 1 (est.).  1 under 2 (est.).  2 under 2.5 (est.).  2.5 under 3 (est.).  3 under 4 (est.).  4 under 5 (est.).  5 under 6.  6 under 7.  7 under 8.  8 under 9.  9 under 10.  10 under 11.  11 under 12.  12 under 13.  13 under 14.  14 under 15.  15 under 20.  20 under 25.  25 under 30.  30 under 40.  40 under 50.  50 under 90.  90 under 100.  100 under 150.  150 under 200.  200 under 250.  250 under 200.  200 under 250.  250 under 300.  300 under 400.  400 under 500.  500 under 500.  500 under 70.  70 under 80.  80 under 90.  90 under 150.  150 under 200.  200 under 250.  250 under 300.  300 under 400.  400 under 500.  500 under 500.  500 under 500.  500 under 400.  400 under 500.  500 under 200.  200 under 200.  200 under 200.  200 under 200.  300 under 400.  400 under 500.  500 under 750.  750 under 1,000.  1,000 under 1,500.  1,500 under 5,000.  3,000 under 5,000.  3,000 under 5,000.  5,000 and over.  Total, individual returns and	1, 525, 260 7, 361, 338 7, 696, 528 4, 887, 104 4, 233, 967 1, 780, 801 1, 200, 495 502, 685 429, 239 313, 176 270, 457 240, 890 219, 925 829, 986 553, 014 390, 323 523, 106 343, 657 235, 360 170, 5457 245, 262 103, 249 113, 932 125, 212 103, 249 18, 131 235, 754 113, 932 64, 923 47, 741 113, 932 64, 923 47, 741 116, 949 41, 260 29, 184 34, 757 15, 475 14, 079 13, 443 12, 735 5, 075	4. 17 20. 12 21. 03 13. 36 11. 57 4. 87 3. 28 2. 30 1. 72 1. 38 1. 17 . 98 . 86 . 59 2. 27 1. 51 1. 07 1. 43 . 94 . 44 . 47 . 34 . 28 . 28 . 31 . 18 . 18 . 13 . 17 . 11 . 15 . 08 . 09 . 04 . 04 . 04 . 01	36, 588, 546 32, 701, 947 20, 005, 419 115, 118, 315 10, 884, 348 9, 103, 547 7, 903, 052 7, 901, 533 5, 929, 115 5, 140, 021 4, 826, 845 4, 315, 498 4, 315, 498 4, 316, 483 1, 211, 628 1, 221, 028 1, 466, 388 1, 221, 028 1, 456, 388 1, 221, 028 1, 456, 388 1, 221, 028 1, 456, 388 1, 221, 028 1, 250, 485 1, 250, 485 1, 250, 485 1, 250, 485 1, 250, 485 1, 250, 485 1, 550, 485 1, 550, 485 1, 550, 485 1, 550, 485 1, 550, 485 1, 550, 485 1, 550, 485 1, 550, 485 1, 550, 485 1, 550, 485 1, 550, 485 1, 550, 485 1, 550, 485 1, 550, 485 1, 550, 485 1, 550, 564 1, 550, 564 1, 550, 564 1, 550, 564 1, 550, 564 1, 550, 564	100. 00 95. 83 75. 71 54. 68 41. 32 29. 75 24. 88 16. 20 19. 30 14. 05 13. 19 12. 45 11. 79 11. 20 8. 93 7. 42 2. 63 3. 98 3. 34 2. 87 2. 53 2. 25 2. 03 1. 1. 39 1. 08 90 .77 .60 .40 .40 .40 .40 .40 .50 .61 .61	1, 525, 260 8, 880, 598 16, 583, 126 21, 470, 231 25, 704, 198 27, 484, 999 28, 685, 493 29, 527, 013 30, 157, 508 30, 660, 192 31, 089, 431 31, 448, 525 31, 761, 701 32, 232, 158 32, 273, 048 32, 492, 073 33, 322, 058 33, 875, 072 33, 875, 072 34, 788, 501 35, 163, 213 35, 184, 525 36, 184, 525 36, 683, 273 35, 766, 521 36, 683, 273 36, 766, 521 36, 804, 406 36, 397, 498 36, 403, 798 36, 403, 798 36, 492, 982 36, 527, 739 36, 583, 471 36, 583, 471 36, 588, 546	4. 17 24. 29 45. 32 45. 32 58. 68 5-70. 25 -75. 12 78. 680 80. 70. 82. 42 81. 87. 85 86. 81 87. 85 88. 80 91. 07 92. 58 93. 65 95. 08 96. 66 97. 13 97. 47 97. 79 98. 61 98. 61 99. 10 99. 51 99. 91 99. 91 99. 91 99. 91 99. 91
taxable fiduciary returns with net income	36, 588, 546	100.00				
come	11 311, 385	(14)				

Table 3.—Individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns, with net income, 1940,¹ by net income classes: Simple and cumulative distribution of number of returns, net income, and total tax, with corresponding percentage distribution; also aggregate for individual returns with no net income—Continued

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data see pp. 4-7 and 8-9]

### [Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

			Total t	ax 2			
Net income <sup>3</sup> classes	Simple dis	tribution	Cumulative bution fro est incom	om high-	Cumulative bution fr est incom	from low-	
	Amount	Percent of total	Amount	Percent of total	Amount	Percent of total	
(1)	(14)	(15)	(16)	(17)	(18)	(19)	
Individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns 3 with net income:  Under 1 (est.)	2, 115 57, 727 24, 891 24, 935 45, 860 32, 971 28, 507 24, 541 23, 026 21, 894 21, 573 20, 477 19, 794 18, 836 18, 203 17, 885 83, 055 74, 977 67, 164 112, 824 90, 969 72, 155 58, 325 546, 770 41, 095 33, 069 110, 629 21, 651 10, 991 10, 991 10, 261 3, 094 11, 495, 930 473	0. 14 3. 86 1. 66 1. 67 3. 07 2. 20 1. 91 1. 64 1. 54 1. 46 1. 44 1. 37 1. 32 1. 26 1. 22 1. 20 5. 55 5. 51 1. 4. 49 7. 54 6. 08 4. 82 3. 90 3. 13 2. 75 2. 21 7. 39 4. 01 2. 38 1. 83 2. 42 1. 66 2. 17 1. 25 1. 45 1. 45 1. 68 2. 11 100. 00 (14)	1, 495, 930 1, 493, 815 1, 436, 088 1, 411, 197 1, 386, 262 1, 340, 402 1, 307, 431 1, 278, 925 1, 254, 383 1, 231, 358 1, 231, 358 1, 231, 358 1, 209, 464 1, 187, 891 1, 167, 414 1, 147, 020 1, 128, 784 1, 109, 606 1, 009, 606 1, 009, 601 1, 009, 604 1, 009	100. 00 99. 86 96. 00 94. 34 92. 67 89. 60 87. 40 85. 49 83. 85 82. 31 78. 04 73. 04 67. 49 67. 49 67. 49 67. 49 11. 95 95. 32. 52 92. 77 27. 56 20. 17 16. 16 13. 78 11. 95 9. 53 7. 87 5. 70 4. 45 3. 00 2. 27	2, 115 59, 842 84, 734 109, 669 155, 529 188, 499 217, 006 241, 547 264, 573 286, 466 308, 040 328, 516 348, 310 367, 146 385, 349 403, 234 486, 289 561, 266 628, 430 741, 254 832, 223 904, 378 832, 223 904, 378 1, 950, 567 1, 983, 637 1, 194, 266 1, 264, 222 1, 289, 707 1, 317, 098 1, 353, 337 1, 378, 139 1, 410, 663 1, 429, 312 1, 450, 963 1, 461, 954 1, 482, 576 1, 492, 837 1, 495, 930	0. 1 4. 0 5. 6 7. 3 10. 4 12. 6 14. 5 16. 1 17. 6 19. 1 20. 5 21. 9 23. 2 24. 5 25. 7 22. 5 32. 5 32. 5 32. 5 32. 5 32. 5 32. 5 32. 6 42. 0 49. 6 40. 4 40. 4 40. 4 40. 4 5 90. 4 90. 6 90. 6 90	
Grand total	1, 496, 403	(14)					

For footnote, see p. 190.

Table 3-A.—Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by net income classes: Simple and cumulative distribution of number of returns, net income, and total tax, with corresponding percentage distribution; also aggregate for individual returns with no net income

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-7 and 8-9]

### [Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

Net income classes		Number of returns									
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)  Individual returns with net income:  Under 1 (est.)	Net income classes	Simple dis	tribution	bution fr	om high-	bution f	rom lowes				
Individual returns with net income:   1,911,457   13.00   14,598,074   100.00   1,911,457   13.00   14,598,074   100.00   1,911,457   13.00   1 under 2 (est.)   5,012,619   34,34   12,886,617   86,01   6,024,076   47,42   2 under 2.5 (est.)   3,459,387   23,70   7,673,908   5,071,0383,463   71,12   2.5 under 3 (est.)   1,799,178   12,32   4,214,611   28,87   12,182,641   83,4   4 under 6 (est.)   400,089   2.74   1,188,027   8.01   13,822,236   94,7   5 under 6 (est.)   400,089   2.74   1,188,027   8.01   13,822,236   94,7   5 under 6 (est.)   400,089   2.74   1,188,027   8.00   13,822,236   94,7   5 under 6 (est.)   400,089   2.78   1,50   768,538   5.27   14,047,125   96,2   6 under 7   128,902   88   550,049   3.77   14,076,027   97,1   7 under 8   83,395   .67   422,047   2.89   14,259,422   97,6   8 under 9   58,473   41   338,652   2.32   14,259,422   97,6   8 under 9   58,473   41   338,652   2.33   44,231,7895   98,0   9 under 10   44,666   30   280,179   1.91   14,302,825   98,6   11 under 12   26,843   18   201,792   1.88   14,423,125   98,6   11 under 12   26,843   18   201,792   1.88   14,423,125   98,6   11 under 14   17,548   12   153,732   1.05   14,461,890   99,0   14 under 15   14,481   10   136,144   44,476,721   99,1   15 under 20   47,289   32   121,353   33   14,524,010   99,4   20 under 30   13,200   10   36,866   24   14,576,980   99,8   25 under 30   13,200   10   36,866   24   14,576,980   99,8   25 under 30   16,760   14,762   10   35,886   24   14,576,980   99,8   40 under 50   7,464   05   21,094   14   4,597,427   99,9   150 under 400   14,762   10   35,886   24   14,576,980   99,9   30 under 400   14,767   21   10   14,586,053   99,0   150 under 60   4,155   01   6,927   05   14,597,977   99,9   30 under 100   14,587,607   99,9   30 under 50   14,586,053   99,9   30 under 400   14,597,977   99,9   30 under 400   14,597,977   99,9   30 under 50   30 under 50   30 under 50   30 und		Number		Number		Number					
Under 1 (est.)	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)				
Grand total 14, 710, 771   (14)	Under 1 (est.)  1 under 2 (est.)  2 under 2.5 (est.)  2 under 2.5 (est.)  3 under 4 (est.)  4 under 5 (est.)  4 under 5 (est.)  4 under 6  6 under 7  7 under 8  8 under 9  9 under 10  10 under 11  11 under 12  12 under 13  13 under 14  14 under 5  15 under 20  20 under 20  20 under 25  25 under 30  30 under 40  40 under 60  60 under 70  70 under 80  80 under 10  10 under 11  11 under 15  15 under 25  25 under 30  30 under 40  40 under 50  50 under 60  80 under 70  70 under 80  80 under 100  100 under 155  150 under 200  200 under 250  250 under 30  300 under 400  400 under 500  500 under 750  750 under 300  300 under 400  400 under 500  500 under 750  750 under 1,000  1,500 under 1,000  1,500 under 2,000  2,000 under 2,000  3,000 under 4,000  4,000 under 5,000  5,000 and over  Total, individual returns with net income ndividual returns with no net	5, 012, 619 3, 459, 387 1, 799, 178 1, 246, 506 400, 089 217, 889 128, 902 83, 395 58, 473 44, 686 33, 701 26, 843 21, 217 17, 548 14, 289 24, 258 13, 920 14, 792 7, 464 4, 155 2, 548 1, 625 2, 548 1, 625 2, 548 1, 625 2, 548 1, 626 273 167 166 86 86 86 86 86 86 86 86 86 86 86 87 99 33 33 88 86 44 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21	34, 34 23, 70 12, 32 8, 54 1, 50 8, 84 1, 50 12, 32 15 12 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	12, 686, 617 7, 673, 998 4, 214, 611 2, 415, 433 1, 168, 927 768, 838 550, 049 422, 047 338, 652 280, 179 235, 493 201, 792 174, 949 153, 732 136, 184 121, 353 74, 064 49, 806 6, 927 5, 302 4, 126 6, 927 5, 302 4, 126 3, 345 1, 479 853 341 161 82 49 21 13 7 3	86, 91 52, 57 28, 87 16, 55 8, 01 5, 27 3, 77 2, 89 2, 32 1, 91 1, 61 1, 38 1, 20 1, 05 1, 05 1, 03 1, 01 1,	6, 924, 976 10, 383, 463 12, 182, 641 13, 429, 147 13, 829, 236 14, 047, 125 14, 176, 027 14, 259, 422 14, 317, 396, 282 14, 343, 125 14, 443, 442 14, 461, 890 14, 476, 721 14, 524, 010 14, 584, 444 14, 584, 576, 980 14, 584, 444 14, 585, 599 14, 591, 147 14, 592, 772 14, 597, 221 14, 597, 291 14, 597, 913 14, 598, 065 14, 598, 065 14, 598, 065 14, 598, 067 14, 598, 073	13. 04 47. 41 71. 13 83. 44 91. 97 96. 22 97. 11 97. 66 98. 06 98. 07 99. 17 99. 46 99. 07 99. 99. 99 99. 99 99. 99 99. 99 99. 99 99. 99 99. 99 99. 99 99. 99 99. 99 99. 99				

Table 3-A.—Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by net income classes: Simple and cumulative distribution of number of returns, net income, and total tax, with corresponding percentage distribution; also aggregate for individual returns with no net income—Continued

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-7 and 8-9]

[Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

			Net i	Net income					
Net income classes	Simple dis	tribution	Cumulative bution fro est incom	om high-	Cumulative tion from l come class	owest in-			
	Amount	Percent of total	Amount	Percent of total	Amount	Percent of total			
(1)	(8)	(9)	(10)	(11)	(12)	(18)			
Individual returns with net income:  Under 1 (est.)	56, 863 38, 893 46, 696 27, 474 33, 445 13, 614 14, 079 13, 443 8, 090	4. 17 20. 22 21. 17 13. 44 11. 628 4. 83 28 2. 29 1. 72 1. 36 1. 17 . 87 . 65 5 . 59 2. 24 4. 1. 49 1. 40 . 91 . 63 . 45 . 27 . 20 . 62 . 30 . 16 . 10 . 13 . 08 . 88 . 09 . 04 . 04 . 03 . 03	36, 309, 719 34, 787, 155 27, 455, 623 19, 767, 524 14, 887, 660 8, 896, 895 6, 251, 458 6, 77, 706, 866 6, 874, 299 6, 251, 458 1, 732, 518 1, 737 1, 164, 252 1, 713, 632 1, 713, 632 1, 713, 632 1, 713, 632 1, 713, 632 1, 713, 632 1, 713, 632 1, 713, 632 1, 713, 632 1, 713, 632 1, 713, 632 1, 713, 632 1, 713, 632 1, 713, 632 1, 713, 632 1, 713, 632 1, 715, 829 1,	100. 00 95. 83 75. 61 54. 44 41. 00 29. 38 24. 50 21. 22 18. 93 17. 21 15. 85 14. 68 13. 17. 12 14. 86 12. 13 11. 48 10. 89 8. 65 7. 16 6. 12 4. 72 3. 81 3. 18 2. 73 2. 39 2. 1. 22 1. 30 1. 30	1, 512, 563 8, 854, 206 16, 542, 195 21, 422, 643, 513 27, 412, 824 28, 602, 853 30, 977, 202 31, 333, 376 31, 303, 376 31, 303, 376 31, 303, 376 32, 140, 015 32, 354, 809 33, 798, 128 34, 987, 866 34, 97, 862 34, 987, 866 34, 981, 383, 383, 383, 383, 383, 383, 383, 3	4. 17 24. 39 45. 56 59. 00 70. 62 65. 20 75. 56 81. 07 82. 79 84. 16 85. 32 86. 22 87. 14 87. 87 87. 87 87. 87 87. 87 87. 87 87. 87 88. 65 92. 88 88. 65 92. 88 88. 67 97. 68 98. 99 99. 99 99. 68 99. 99 99. 99 99. 99 99. 99			
5,000 and over Total, individual returns with	5, 075	. 01	5, 075	.01	36, 309, 719	100.0			
net income	36, 309, 719	100.00							
come	11 311, 385	(14)							

For footnotes, see p. 190.

Table 3-A.—Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by net income classes: Simple and cumulative distribution of number of returns, net income, and total tax, with corresponding percentage distribution; also aggregate for individual returns with no net income—Continued

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-7 and 8-9]

[Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

			Tota!	l tax 2		
Net income classes	Simple dis	tribution		ve distribu- m highest class	Cumulation from income	
	Amount	Percent of total	Amount	Percent of total	Amount	Percent of total
(1)	(14)	(15)	(16)	(17)	(18)	(19)
Individual returns with net income:  Under I (est.).  1 under 2 (est.).  2 under 2 5 (est.).  2 under 3 (est.).  3 under 4 (est.).  4 under 5 (est.).  5 under 6.  6 under 7.  7 under 8.  8 under 9.  9 under 10.  10 under 11.  11 under 12.  12 under 13.  13 under 14.  14 under 15.  15 under 30.  20 under 25.  25 under 30.  30 under 40.  40 under 50.  50 under 60.  60 under 70.  70 under 80.  80 under 90.  90 under 100.  100 under 150.  150 under 100.  200 under 250.  250 under 200.  200 under 250.  250 under 300.  300 under 400.  400 under 500.  500 under 750.  500 under 400.  400 under 500.  500 under 400.  400 under 500.  500 under 400.  400 under 500.  500 under 500.  500 under 500.  500 under 400.  400 under 500.  500 under 400.  400 under 500.  500 under 400.  400 under 500.  500 under 4,000.  1,500 under 2,000.  2,000 under 3,000.  3,000 under 4,000.  4,000 under 5,000.  5,000 under 5,000.  5,000 under 5,000.  5,000 under 5,000.  5,000 under 5,000.  Total, individual returns with net income.  Individual returns with ne net in-	1, 771 57, 166 24, 601 24, 673 45, 372 32, 515 27, 998 24, 049 22, 554 21, 398 21, 146 19, 988 21, 146 19, 988 19, 375 18, 317 17, 778 17, 444 80, 995 72, 930 65, 135 72, 930 66, 138 56, 327 45, 331 56, 327 45, 331 328 31,	0. 12 3. 97 1. 71 1. 71 3. 15 2. 26 6. 1. 94 1. 67 1. 39 1. 34 1. 27 1. 24 1. 21 2. 6. 06 4. 52 7. 59 6. 09 4. 82 2. 33 1. 34 1. 27 1. 21 1. 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 2	1, 440, 967 1, 439, 196 1, 382, 040 1, 357, 439 1, 332, 705 1, 287, 393 1, 254, 878 1, 202, 831 1, 180, 277 1, 188, 880 1, 137, 734 1, 117, 735 1, 098, 361 1, 080, 044 1, 062, 266 1, 044, 822, 903, 827 880, 897 825, 762 716, 392 628, 663 559, 145 502, 817 457, 502 417, 925 386, 597 281, 260 224, 611 191, 127 164, 722 130, 405 106, 943 78, 388 60, 806 39, 587 29, 997 19, 969 9, 375 3, 094	100. 00 99. 88 95. 91 94. 20 92. 49 89. 34 87. 08 85. 14 83. 47 81. 91 77. 56 76. 22 74. 95 77. 72. 50 60. 88 61. 82 57. 30 49. 71 43. 62 38. 80 34. 89 31. 75 29. 00 20. 88 11. 43 19. 59 13. 26 11. 43 19. 59 13. 26 11. 43 19. 59 13. 26 11. 43 19. 55 10. 55 11. 43 19. 55 10. 55 11. 43 10. 55 11. 43 11. 43 12. 50 13. 55 14. 62 15. 50 16. 82 17. 42 18. 55 19. 55 10. 55 11. 43 19. 55 10. 55 10. 55 11. 43 11. 43 12. 50 13. 55 14. 62 15. 50 16. 82 17. 42 17. 42 18. 55 18. 55 1	1, 771 58, 927 83, 528 108, 202 163, 574 186, 089 214, 088 238, 136 260, 690 282, 088 303, 233 322, 232 342, 607 360, 923 378, 701 390, 145 477, 140 550, 070 615, 205 724, 575 812, 304 881, 822 938, 150 983, 465 1, 023, 043 1, 154, 370 1, 159, 708 1, 216, 356 1, 249, 340 1, 276, 245 1, 310, 562 1, 334, 024 1, 362, 580 1, 240, 341 1, 380, 162 1, 340, 998 1, 431, 592 1, 440, 998 1, 431, 592 1, 440, 967	0. 12 4. 06 5. 86 7. 51 10. 66 12. 92 14. 86 16. 53 18. 01 19. 58 21. 05 22. 44 23. 78 25. 05 26. 29 27. 50 33. 12 38. 18 42. 70 50. 29 56. 38 61. 20 73. 17 80. 48 84. 41 86. 74 88. 57 90. 95 92. 58 94. 56 95. 79 99. 36 99. 79 100. 00
come (taxable)	473	(14)			<del></del>	
Grand total	1, 441, 440	(14)				

Table 4.—Individual returns with met income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by States and Territories, and by sex and family relationship: Number of returns and net income

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-6, 8-9, and 12-13]

### [Money figures in thousands of dollars]

States and Territories	To	otal	Joint returns of husbands and wives, or of either husband or wife when no other return is filed		
	Number of returns	Net income	Number of returns	Net income	
(I)	(2)	(8)	(4)	(5)	
Alabama	99, 614	246, 836	55, 449	163, 358	
Alaska	13, 949	31, 355	7, 165	20, 288	
Arizona	42, 820	101, 124	20, 519	51, 661	
Arkansas	49, 445	124, 301	30, 234	86, 130	
California	1, 201, 624	2, 894, 463	578, 319	1, 498, 225	
Colorado	108, 701	264, 903	58, 271	161, 306	
Connecticut	329, 592	846, 773	144, 623	440, 229	
Delaware	37, 775 161, 540	149, 402 426, 908	19, 143 62, 785	63, 080 214, 406	
District of Columbia	138, 998	396, 140	75, 189	233, 060	
FloridaGeorgia	128, 921	358, 132	71, 520	227, 514	
Hawaii	42, 752	109, 254	18, 311	59, 182	
Idaho	43, 361	83, 428	21, 121	44, 544	
Illinois	1, 266, 390	3, 291, 837	679, 574	2, 020, 707	
Indiana	351, 410	809, 926	186, 779	510, 684	
Iowa	251, 551	474, 431	138, 919	310, 659	
Kansas	128, 950	265, 046	72, 898	175, 134	
Kentucky	131, 428	319, 545	68, 514	196, 137	
Louisiana	128, 052	324, 035	59, 690	156, 661	
Maine	70, 296	156, 065	32, 435	88, 354	
Maryland	284, 457	719, 765	138, 476	423, 376	
Massachusetts	665, 007	1, 692, 141 1, 941, 824	301, 817 403, 269	886, 939 1, 188, 360	
Michigan	760, 463 302, 368	641, 752	165, 680	401, 481	
Minnesota	47, 647	117, 120	27, 733	78, 968	
Missouri	327, 567	795, 443	165, 856	472, 078	
Montana	65, 879	144, 739	35, 116	94, 091	
Nebraska	105, 878	226, 120	59, 017	151,007	
Nevada	20, 672	52, 826	9, 698	25, 402	
New Hampshire	53, 379	117, 130	24, 656	67, 212	
New Jersey	732, 008	1, 836, 481	371, 951	1, 108, 648	
New Mexico	29, 119	71,018	15, 065	38, 460	
New York	2, 166, 607	5, 806, 388	1, 110, 209	3, 353, 816	
North Carolina	128, 209	310, 800	62, 560	186, 037	
North Dakota	39, 164	75, 032	24, 223	53, 633	
Ohio.	901, 785 112, 024	2, 259, 570 275, 489	492, 965 68, 725	1, 422, 066 180, 441	
Oklahoma	123, 321	274, 810	59, 889	167, 063	
Oregon Pennsylvania	1, 221, 442	3, 034, 846	591, 313	1, 723, 917	
Rhode Island	102, 355	248, 020	42, 145	125, 116	
South Carolina	63, 433	141, 695	33, 447	93, 063	
South Dakota	37, 927	67, 215	21, 366	45, 551	
Tennessee	138, 172	354, 767	77, 552	233, 091	
Texas	455, 347	1, 153, 713	244,004	607, 842	
Utah	39, 310	93, 651	23, 808	64, 531	
Vermont	34, 291	73, 875	17, 977	45, 670	
Virginia	182, 522	475, 990	93, 873	288, 730	
Washington	246, 326	542,673	110, 530	272, 217	
West Virginia	124, 718	302, 034	65, 706	188, 591	
Wisconsin	330, 992	722, 720	179, 768	459, 698	
Wyoming	28, 516	66, 171	16, 580	44, 632	
Total, individual returns with net income.	14, 598, 074	36, 309, 719	7, 456, 432	21, 213, 046	

For footnotes, see p. 190.

Table 4.—Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by States and Territories, and by sex and family relationship: Number of returns and net income—Continued

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-6, 8-9, and 12-13]

### [Money figures in thousands of dollars]

	Separ	ate returns wiv	of husbar es 17	ids and	Community property returns 17				
States and Territories		Ien 18	Wo	men 18	М	en 18	Won	18 nen	
	Num- ber of returns	Net in-	Num- ber of returns	Net in-	Num- ber of returns	Net in-	Num- ber of returns	Net in	
(1)	(6)	(7)	(8)	(9)	(10)	(11)	(12)	(13)	
Alahama Alaska Arizona Arizona Arizona Arkansas California Colorado Connecticut Delaware District of Columbia Florida Georgia Hawaii Idaho Illinois Indiana Iowa Kansas Kentucky Louisiana Manyland Mansachusetts Michigan Minnesota Minnesota Minnesota Minnesota Minnesota Minnesota Minnesota Minnesota Minnesota Montana Nebraska New Hampshire New Mexico New York New York New York New Tork North Dakota Ohio Oregon Pennsylvania Rhode Island South Dakota Outah South Dakota Oregon Pennsylvania Rhode Island South Dakota Othahoma Overgon Pennsylvania Rhode Island South Carolina South Dakota Othahoma Verrinia	246 229 647 8, 023 1, 478 4, 933 902 2, 996 3, 464 2, 168 17, 644 3, 342 2, 689 1, 358 1, 862	13, 516 1, 187 1, 245 6, 369 36, 237 14, 435 69, 889 33, 461 26, 292 38, 827 219, 279 39, 893 11, 710 18, 569 1, 634 48, 569 123, 512 121, 187 34, 526 6, 709 108, 704 48, 906 28, 403 1, 551 132, 110 14, 393 13, 348 183, 117 16, 672 7, 551 132, 110 14, 393 13, 348 183, 117 16, 672 7, 551 132, 139 4, 617 4, 205 3, 281 30, 461 4, 205 3, 281 30, 461	1, 074 143 159 143 159 8, 370 1, 336 1, 4042 1, 042 2, 703 3, 232 1, 823	4, 614 385 790 2, 509 30, 233 5, 690 28, 634 13, 580 9, 856 19, 014 9, 003 2, 964 4, 270 6, 73 3, 957 17, 610 44, 743 11, 102 12, 918 2, 812 20, 121 146, 281 46, 281 47, 281 48, 484 41, 579 6, 643 44, 579 6, 641 6, 68, 485 6, 684 6, 288 7, 716 6, 693 1, 642 11, 663 2, 196 2, 196	5,914	7, 436 37, 121 4, 117 6, 550	5, 972 663 1, 271	7, 41	
West Virginia Wisconsin Wyoming	1, 737 5, 355 292	13, 537 43, 125 2, 732	1, 498 4, 388 285	4, 640 13, 529 932				32,080	
Total, individual returns with net income	184, 983	2, 118. 585	170. 070	795, 394	77, 593	497, 889	77, 841	469, 072	

Table 4.—Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns,
1940, by States and Territories, and by sex and family relationship: Number of returns and net income—Continued

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-6, [8-9, and 12-13]

### [Money figures in thousands of dollars]

		Heads of	families			Not heads	of families	·	
States and Territories	Single men and married men not living with wives		married not liv	Single women and married women not living with husbauds		men end d men not with wives	marrie not li	Single women and married women not living with husbands	
	Num- ber of returns	Net in-	Num- ber of returns	Net in- come	Number of re- turns	Net in- come	Number of re- turns	Net in- come	
(1)	(14)	(15)	(16)	(17)	(18)	(19)	(20)	(21)	
Alabania Alaska Arizona Arkansas. California Colorado Connecticut Delaware District of Columbia Florida Georgia Hawaii Idaho Illinois Ildaho Illinois Ildaha Ilowa Kansas Kentucky Louisiana Maryland Massachusetts Michigan Mincesota Michigan Mincesota Mississippi Missouri Montana Nobraska Nevada Nevada New Hampshire New Hampshire New Jersey New Mexico New York North Carolina North Dakota Ohio Oklahoma Oregon Pennsylvania Rhode Island South Carolina South Dakota Tennessee Texas Utah Verniont Washington West Virginia Wasington West Virginia Wyoning	140, 945 5, 470 1, 932 40, 496 5, 431 5, 775 77, 946 7, 626 3, 068 1, 925 5, 585 12, 763 2, 307 1, 730	13, 657 848 4, 122 6, 672 103, 982 11, 395 38, 297 6, 442 18, 589 14, 787 5, 612 3, 129 140, 629 140, 629 140, 629 140, 629 140, 629 140, 629 140, 629 140, 629 150, 649 160, 649 17, 649 18, 132 18,	3, 151 1, 817 1, 187 1, 1887 1, 1887 13, 369 12, 339 1, 103 13, 169 14, 201 1, 184 10, 840 3, 731 5, 181 1, 174 35, 814 10, 840 3, 731 5, 731 7, 428 13, 961 12, 222 16, 957 28, 701 1, 163 3, 188 437 1, 196 1, 163 3, 818 24, 408 4, 379 3, 858 4, 379 1, 163 3, 818 24, 408 4, 379 3, 858 5, 577 14, 196 1, 430 6, 149 801	5, 553 459 3, 352 3, 239 117, 422 480 20, 025 9, 604 82, 650 18, 682 10, 486 5, 989 881 4, 502 14, 520 13, 481 2, 933 24, 062 13, 481 2, 933 24, 062 15, 261 152, 277 7, 485 6, 178 85, 527 9, 616 6, 178 85, 527 9, 616 6, 178 85, 527 9, 616 6, 178 85, 527 9, 616 6, 178 85, 527 9, 616 6, 178 85, 527 9, 616 6, 178 85, 527 9, 616 6, 318 11, 338 11, 338 11, 338 6, 316 6, 316 6, 316 6, 316 6, 316	18, 012 3, 867 8, 789 6, 647 239, 943 21, 180 82, 021 16, 231 20, 221 15, 231 276, 306 83, 977 50, 094 24, 339 26, 805 21, 939 15, 715 78, 571 1208, 088 68, 136 67, 149 67, 338 16, 419 17, 875 444, 008 20, 201 11, 7875 202, 611 11, 7875 203, 611 11, 7875 204, 6175 205, 6175 207, 61	26, 518 5, 804 14, 215 10, 189 361, 160 361, 160 361, 160 37, 908 22, 953 31, 12, 331 477, 683 125, 114 62, 902 32, 455 43, 905 122, 323 223, 963 34, 679 22, 0053 110, 783 126, 170 24, 100 25, 983 17, 043 246, 470 77, 1043 246, 470 77, 1043 246, 470 77, 943 246, 470 77, 943 246, 470 77, 943 246, 470 77, 943 246, 470 782, 985 28, 366 9, 695 331, 724 39, 309 48, 277 472, 341 39, 309 15, 786 8, 463 8, 463 88, 735 11, 715 9, 355 111, 370 66, 169 104, 312 51, 976 69, 99, 652	14, 115 1, 988 5, 574 6, 849 195, 425 17, 782 64, 563 5, 649 41, 087 22, 926 22, 408 3, 983 5, 118 181, 796 441, 733 218, 660 19, 424 20, 363 115, 014 36, 124 41, 907 7, 024 60, 043 82, 900 41, 907 7, 024 60, 043 82, 900 19, 32 2144 60, 932 214, 932 21, 143 316, 016 32, 938 31, 16, 016 32, 938 329, 858 30, 473 3, 815 122, 239 111, 280 111, 399 15, 984 263, 279 4, 279 4, 279 4, 289 28, 394 28, 394 28, 394 28, 394 37, 705 38, 343	10, 619 2, 3848 8, 337 9, 1922 202, 397 106, 868 11, 945 72, 995 39, 180 28, 743 62, 200 29, 189 22, 009 57, 405 57, 163 30, 614 88, 827 64, 626 663, 692 663, 692 663, 692 663, 692 663, 692 664, 682 7, 163 35, 366 673 46, 627 66, 405 673 673 673 674, 165 674 674 674 674 674 675 674 675 674 675 674 675 675 675 675 675 675 675 675 675 675	
Total, individual returns with net income	773, 207	1, 738, 209	491, 273	942, 366	3, 131, 177	5, 053, 307	2, 235, 498	3, 481, 851	

For footnotes, see p. 190.

TABLE 5.—Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by taxable and nontaxable returns, by net income classes, and by sex and family relationship: Number of returns, net income, personal exemption, and credit for dependents

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-9 and 12-13]

### [Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

		То	tal		Joint returns of husbands and wives, or of cither husband or wife when no other return is filed.				
Net income classes	Number of returns	Net income	Personal exemp- tion 5	Credit for depend- ents	Number of returns	Net income	Personal exemp- tion b	Credit for depend- ents	
(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)	(8)	(9)	
Taxable individual returns with net income:     Under 1 (est.).     1 under 2 (est.).     2 under 2.5 (est.).     2 under 2.5 (est.).     3 under 4 (est.).     3 under 4 (est.).     4 under 5 (est.).     5 under 6.     6 under 7.     7 under 8.     8 under 9.     9 under 10.     10 under 11.     11 under 12.     12 under 13.     13 under 14.     14 under 15.     15 under 20.     20 under 25.     25 under 30.     30 under 40.     40 under 50.     50 under 60.     50 under 80.     80 under 90.     90 under 100.     100 under 150.     150 under 200.     200 under 270.     250 under 30.     300 under 400.     400 under 500.     500 under 500.     500 under 270.     250 under 300.     300 under 400.     400 under 750.     500 under 750.     500 under 750.     500 under 1,500.     1,500 under 2,000.     1,000 under 4,000.     1,000 under 4,000.     1,000 under 4,000.     3,000 under 4,000.     3,000 under 4,000.     5,000 under 5,000.     5,000 under 5,000.     5,000 under 5,000.     5,000 under 5,000.	14, 831 47, 289 24, 258 , 13, 920 14, 792 7, 464 4, 155 2, 548 1, 625 1, 176 781 1, 866 626 273 167	2, 083, 858 2, 504, 204 3, 474, 787 1, 742, 796 1, 189, 297 832, 567 622, 841 495, 429 423, 513 353, 174 308, 273 264, 818 234, 794 813, 235 540, 085 540, 085 540, 221 121, 329 99, 408 73, 956 223, 988 73, 956 223, 988 107, 300	2, 330, 981 1, 288, 998 1, 593, 632 1, 831, 912 703, 116 384, 342 224, 733, 143, 596 90, 807 76, 132 57, 001 45, 201 35, 601 29, 431 24, 877 78, 762 24, 198 12, 123 6, 802 4, 118	376 53, 832 26, 594 95, 844 273, 230 144, 756 89, 191 56, 183 36, 223 24, 421 18, 685 14, 013 11, 077 8, 615 7, 261 6, 120 9, 896 5, 534 1, 621 1, 004 426 426 427 431 431 431 431 432 431 431 431 432 431 432 431 432 431 432 432 432 432 432 432 432 432	153, 968 84, 720 34, 064 25, 192 18, 1066 14, 017 10, 577 8, 5556 20, 619 9, 151 4, 527 4, 163 1, 734 4, 534 170 109 213 62 211	2899 1, 53, 793 1, 1957, 785 1, 312, 507 840, 339 546, 640 382, 341 288, 613 189, 688 160, 928 116, 313 153, 478 203, 341 123, 308 142, 317 76, 866 46, 753 29, 170 21, 883 14, 235 16, 294 4, 642 4, 687 5, 346 5, 900 2, 954	50, 242 36, 108 27, 962 21, 090 17, 048 13, 983 41, 100 18, 265 9, 015 8, 286	3 670 2,089 241,076 127,175 75,814 45,213 27,512 18,394 13,707 7,611 5,724 4,758 3,901 11,680 5,215 2,602 2,337 981 466 235 155 97 73 96	
Total, taxable in- dividual re- turns with net income	7 437 261	23, 279, 203	9, 463, 548	916 107	2 706 904	11,091,825	5, 354, 536	685, 547	
Nontaxable individual returns with net income: 10	1, 401, 201	20. 210, 203	5, 4110, 040	310, 107	2, 700, 803	11, 091, 620	0, 504, 550	000, 047	
Under 1 (est.) 1 under 2 (est.) 2 under 2.5 (est.) 2.5 under 3 (est.) 3 under 4 (est.) 4 under 5 (est.) 5 under 6	1, 382, 673 2, 107, 533 2, 545, 337 887, 004 231, 883 6, 245 138	3, 246, 736 5, 604, 241	1, 481, 341 3, 927, 371 5, 083, 388 1, 773, 621 463, 889 12, 531 273	126, 388 618, 841 1, 155, 214 719, 319 284, 902 14, 228 340	1, 136, 068 2, 336, 033	141, 320 1, 867, 366 5, 144, 864 2, 231, 244 710, 980 24, 810 636	425, 749 2, 236, 858 4, 670, 199 1, 665, 912 442, 225 11, 578 239	58, 163 291, 959 1, 063, 199 679, 974 272, 342 13, 302 320	
Total, nontaxable individual returns with net income	7, 160, 813	13, 030, 516	12, 742, 414	2 919 222	4.749.590	10, 121, 921	9, 452, 759	2, 379, 258	
Total, individual returns with net income									

The state of the s

Table 5.—Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by taxable and nontaxable returns, by net income classes, and by sex and family relationship: Number of returns, net income, personal exemption, and credit for dependents—Continued

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-9 and 12-13]

[Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

			Separate re	turns of h	usbands ar	d wives 17				
		Men 18				Women 18				
Net income classes	Number of returns	Net income	Personal exemption 5	Credit for depend- ents	Number of returns	Net income	Personal exemp- tion	Credit for depend- ents		
(1)	(10)	(11)	(12)	(13)	(14)	(15)	(16)	(17)		
Taxable individual returns with net income:  Under 1 (est.)  1 under 2 (est.)  2 under 2.5 (est.)  2.5 under 3 (est.)  3 under 4 (est.)  4 under 5 (est.)  5 under 6  6 under 7  7 under 8  8 under 9  9 under 10  10 under 11  11 under 12  12 under 13  13 under 14  14 under 15  15 under 6  60 under 7  70 under 8  80 under 9  90 under 10  10 under 11  11 under 12  12 under 13  13 under 14  14 under 15  15 under 20  20 under 25  25 under 30  30 under 40  40 under 50  50 under 60  60 under 70  70 under 80  80 under 90  90 under 100  100 under 150  150 under 200  200 under 250  250 under 300  300 under 400  400 under 500  500 under 750  750 under 1,000  1,000 under 1,500  1,500 under 1,000  1,000 under 1,500  1,000 under 1,500  1,000 under 4,000  4,000 under 4,000  4,000 under 4,000  4,000 under 4,000  4,000 under 5,000  5,000 under 3,000  3,000 under 4,000  4,000 under 5,000  5,000 under 5,000  5,000 under 5,000	3, 605 16, 738 9, 867 9, 195 14, 114 10, 288 11, 390 9, 918 8, 183 6, 726 5, 822 5, 822 1, 680 1, 681 6, 615 1, 680 1, 681 1, 68	2, 058 25, 961 22, 225 49, 011 46, 249 62, 632 64, 321 57, 065 55, 225 52, 615 48, 911 46, 131 42, 748 48, 91 116, 598 1173, 184 118, 202 91, 653 51, 127 44, 194 33, 319 104, 685 26, 602 21, 188 14, 763 21, 128 21,	446 13, 679 10, 661 11, 673 19, 234 14, 883 12, 021 10, 554 10, 554 10, 514 10, 524 11, 613 12, 612 12, 612 13, 161 14, 613 14, 613 15, 614 16, 614 17, 794 18, 181 19, 62 11, 613 11, 613 11, 613 11, 613 11, 613 12, 612 13, 613 14, 613 14, 613 15, 613 16, 613 17, 714 18,	76 770 999 1, 016 2, 825 2, 554 3, 307 3, 203 2, 159 2, 233 1, 516 1, 272 4, 591 2, 905 1, 894 2, 334 1, 123 33 303 224 161 133 112 54 131 131 121 131 131 131 131 131 141 141 141 141 14	34, 461 37, 596 11, 9178 12, 104 6, 745 6, 435 2, 150 1, 743 1, 1, 267 1, 1, 287 1, 1, 287 1, 172 1, 278 1, 172 1, 278 1,	18, 100 54, 611 26, 632 525, 180 41, 910 41, 910 30, 334 34, 967 22, 647 22, 647 20, 377 18, 281 16, 776 31, 590 32, 265 32, 072 44, 447 31, 609 23, 265 32, 17, 918 11, 813 11, 225 7, 583 25, 633 6, 610 9, 038 9, 038 7, 227 7, 1, 849 4, 811 22, 073 3, 029 4, 811	15, 023 5, 176 4, 902 7, 069 4, 573 4, 939 3, 595 2, 952 2, 373 1, 967 1, 522 1, 303 1, 172 1, 028 894 3, 024 1, 902	179 823 414 534 704 538 656 551 442 253 226 182 178 163 353 225 261 164 833 80 41 27 13 51 144 6 9 9 (19) (19) (19)		
Total, taxable in- dividual re- turns with net income	160, 376	2, 083, 061	245, 874	46, 089	147, 107	773, 172	70, 775	8. 412		
Nontaxable individual returns with net income: 10										
Under 1 (est.)  1 under 2 (est.)  2 under 2.5 (est.)  2.5 under 3 (est.)  3 under 4 (est.)  4 under 5 (est.)  5 under 6	8, 085 9, 653 4, 922 1, 326 559 62	5, 034 14, 004 10, 810 3, 581 1, 822 268 5	7, 533 13, 854 9, 297 2, 483 1, 040 122 2, 000	606 2, 033 2, 256 1, 079 663 157	13, 466 8, 337 863 152 140 3	8, 481 10, 980 1, 878 409 450 14	10, 979 10, 497 1, 567 284 253 2 4	1, 339 292 70 98 2		
Total, nontaxable individual returns with net income	24, 607	<u>35, 525</u>	34, 330	6, 793	22, 963	22, 222	23, 586	2, 473		
Total, individual returns with net income	184, 983	2, 118, 585	280, 204	52, 883	170, 070	795, 394	94, 360	10, 884		

For footnotes, see p. 190.

Table 5.—Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by taxable and nontaxable returns, by net income classes, and by sex and family relationship: Number of returns, net income, personal exemption, and credit for dependents—Continued

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-9 and 12-13]

[Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

	Community property returns 17									
		M	Ien 18				ien 15			
Net income classes	Num- ber of returns	Net in-	Personal exemp- tion <sup>5</sup>	Credit for de- pendents	Number of returns	Net in-	Personal exemp- tion	Credit for de-		
(1)	(18)	(19)	(20)	(21)	(22)	(23)	(24)	(25)		
Taxable individual returns with net income:     Under 1 (est.).     1 under 2 (est.).     2 under 2.6 (est.).     2 under 3.6 (est.).     3 under 4 (est.).     3 under 4 (est.).     4 under 5 (est.).     5 under 6.     6 under 6.     6 under 7.     7 under 8.     8 under 9.     9 under 10.     10 under 11.     11 under 12.     12 under 13.     13 under 14.     14 under 15.     15 under 20.     20 under 25.     25 under 30.     30 under 40.     40 under 50.     50 under 60.     40 under 70.     70 under 88.     80 under 99.     90 under 100.     100 under 150.     150 under 200.     200 under 250.     250 under 300.     300 under 400.     400 under 500.     500 under 200.     200 under 250.     250 under 300.     300 under 400.     500 under 750.     750 under 1,000     1,000 under 1,5000.     1,500 under 2,0000.     2,000 under 4,0000.     4,000 under 3,0000.     3,000 under 4,0000.     5,000 under 4,0000.     5,000 under 5,0000.     5,000 under 5,0000.     5,000 under 4,0000.	5, 750 9, 302 7, 377 4, 782 3, 495 2, 463 1, 890 1, 476 631 2, 117 677 679 355 112 679 355 112 51 36 20 8 7 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	112 13, 665 14, 852 15, 794 41, 360 40, 361 30, 923 26, 119 20, 865 17, 913 16, 473 11, 986 10, 520 9, 146 36, 388 24, 448 17, 115 23, 403 15, 723 10, 121 7, 224 4, 352 4, 310 3, 158 8, 039 3, 437 1, 797 1, 963 3, 437 1, 797 1, 963 4, 360 477 641 827	32 6, 914 5, 915 5, 309 12, 665 8, 454 6, 953 4, 605 3, 444 2, 464 1, 875 1, 538 1, 269 1, 015 808 421 231 1339 74 41 88 829 11 11 2	3 1, 546 2, 162 1, 797 3, 594 3, 293 2, 626 1, 760 1, 311 934 480 300 239 844 447 205 289 20 21 16 31 14 5 4	472 8. 191 7, 240 5, 579 13, 760 9, 475 7, 459 4. 785 3, 445 2, 422 1, 866 1, 403 1, 125 898 754 601 1, 940 944 136 87 752 24 47 10 5 5 10 5 10 5 10 5 10 5 10 5 10 5 1	287 13, 957 16, 190 15, 327 48, 025 42, 177 40, 790 30, 935 25, 752 20, 553 17, 589 14, 694 12, 969 11, 214 10, 159 8, 706 33, 368 22, 057 15, 252 20, 455 13, 171 7, 509 5, 522 3, 872 3, 117 2, 297 5, 721 1, 728 1, 136 5552 481	65 8, 245 7, 675 5, 924 14, 339 10, 186 8, 118 5, 280 8, 118 5, 280 1, 565 1, 248 1, 565 1, 248 1, 565 676 2, 206 673 340 171 100 66 37 36 60 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61	1 3255 5606 5311 1,'127 951 8899 578 391 303 2220 190 144 1166 96 90 377 23 177 171 6 6 6 9 9 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		
Total, taxable in- dividual re- turns with net	72.000	404 000	70.104							
Nontaxable individual returns with net in- come: 10	73, 900	494, 282	70, 134	24, 003	74, 251	465, 589	79, 137	7, 078		
Under 1 (est.)  1 under 2 (est.)  2 under 2.5 (est.)  2.5 under 3 (est.)  3 under 4 (est.)  4 under 5 (est.)  5 under 6.	2, 082 1, 472 88 49 1 1	1, 291 1, 973 195 141 3 4	1,870 1,388 93 91 2 (19)	290 665 83 42 1	2, 168 1, 217 189 13 3	1, 350 1, 654 431 37 10	2, 109 1, 457 281 24 5	123 232 118 10 3		
Total, nontaxable individual returns with net income Total, individual	3, 693	3, 607	3, 445	1, 082	3, 590	3, 483	3, 876	486		
returns with net income	77, 593	497, 889	. 73, 579	25, 085	77, 841	469, 072	83, 013	7, 564		

For footnotes, see p. 190.

498968-43-9

Table 5.—Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by taxable and nontaxable returns, by net income classes, and by sex and family relationship: Number of returns, net income, personal exemption, and credit for dependents—Continued

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-9 and 12-13]

[Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

(3.0	Heads of families											
	Cingle 7	on and ma					<b></b>	···				
	isingle it	wit	rried men 1 h wives	ymvn jot	DO DO	t living w	ith husba	ands				
Net income classes	Number of re- turns	Net in-	Personal exemp- tion 5	Credit for de- pendents	Number of re- turns	Net in-	Personal exemp- tion b	Credit for de- pendents				
(1)	(26)	(27)	(28)	(29)	(30)	(31)	(32)	(33)				
Taxable individual returns with net income: Under 1 (est.) 1 under 2 (est.) 2 under 2.5 (est.) 2.5 under 3 (est.) 3 under 4 (est.) 4 under 5 (est.) 5 under 6 6 under 7 7 under 8 8 under 9 9 under 10 10 under 11 11 under 12 12 under 13 13 under 14 14 under 15 15 under 30 20 under 25 25 under 30 30 under 40 40 under 50 50 under 60 60 under 70 70 under 80 80 under 90 90 under 100 100 under 150 150 under 207 200 under 207 200 under 207 200 under 207 200 under 500 500 under 500 500 under 70 750 under 80 80 under 90 90 under 150 150 under 207 200 under 207 200 under 207 200 under 500 500 under 1,500 1,500 under 1,600 1,500 under 1,600 1,500 under 5,000 5,000 under 5,000	35, 305 13, 789 8, 351 5, 186 3, 426 2, 482 1, 834 1, 355 1, 713 865 538 402 216 145 55 56 50 14 55 77 1 4 4 2 1	50 5, 729 41, 032 81, 661 121, 140 61, 258 45, 631 33, 525 25, 679 21, 038 17, 377 14, 198 12, 457 10, 442 9, 644 7, 927 5, 109 4, 101 3, 544 2, 434 1, 376 2, 381 1, 121 1, 376 2, 318 4, 318	39 3, 849 33, 408 58, 091 70, 006 27, 414 16, 575 10, 200 6, 834 4, 929 3, 648 2, 689 2, 155 1, 661 1, 335 1, 715 929 972 429 288 156 110 82 52 101 27 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	1 348 544 5.878 13.172 6, 181 3.719 2, 431 1, 568 1, 118 837 628 525 392 307 267 801 433 223 240 106 79 52 31 31 32 42 43 43 43 43 43 43 43 43 43 43	311 2, 3900 21, 918 12, 185 14, 898 5, 473 2, 905 11, 325 11, 325 11, 325 12, 325 12, 325 14, 325 15, 325 16, 325 17, 325 17, 325 18,	28 3, 811 48, 954 33, 858 50, 982 24, 241 16, 111 12, 944 9, 979 4, 250 4, 250 4, 250 4, 250 4, 270 3, 615 14, 359 8, 711 7, 411 9, 163 5, 619 3, 224 2, 337 2, 916 6, 183 1, 183 1, 104 1, 356 600 1, 561 1, 356 600 1, 561 1, 356 600 1, 351 1, 350 1,	21 2,677 24,820 24,047 29,384 10,796 5,840 8,2,646 1,907 1,577 1,5	1 166 1,050 2,831 5,187 2,119 1,161 770 7532 418 315 209 200 145 146 64 63 29 177 23 8 10 14 18 3 2 3 (19) (19)				
with net income	129, 661	638, 131	252, 317	39, 965	69, 023	309, 203	115, 767	16, 297				
Nontaxable individual returns with net income: 10 Under 1 (est.)	49, 129 398, 682 145, 469 41, 277 8, 718 264 7	39, 390 602, 319 319, 433 109, 925 27, 830 1, 144 37	96, 787 847, 908 290, 630 82, 530 17, 464 526 14	12, 123 112, 103 63, 865 30, 596 10, 188 609 16	53, 253 303, 759 52, 986 10, 782 1, 319 144 7	44, 052 439, 315 116, 370 28, 593 4, 202 593 38	104, 591 602, 076 105, 857 21, 579 2, 641 287 14	15, 206 86, 146 20, 742 6, 818 1, 422 157				
individual re- turns with net income	643, 546	1, 100, 078	1, 335, 859	229, 500	422, 250	633, 163	837, 045	130, 494				
Total, individual returns with net income	773, 207	1, 738, 209	1, 588, 176	269, 466	491, 273	942, 366	952, 812	146, 792				

For footnotes, see p. 190.

Table 5.—Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by taxable and nontaxable returns, by net income classes, and by sex and family relationship: Number of returns, net income, personal exemption, and credit for dependents—Continued

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-9 and 12-13]

[Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

	Not heads of families								
	Single me	n and ma with	ried men 1 wives	ot living	Single we	omen and i iving with	narried wo husbands	men not	
Net income classes	Number of returns	Net in-	Personal exemp- tion 5	Credit for de- pendents	Number of returns	Net in-	Personal exemption 5	Credit for de- pend-	
(1)	(34)	(35)	(36)	(37)	(38)	(39)	(40)	ents (41)	
Taxable individual returns with net income:									
Under 1 (cst.) 1 under 2 (cst.) 2 under 2 (sst.) 2 under 3 (cst.) 3 under 4 (cst.) 4 under 5 (cst.) 5 under 6 6 under 7 7 under 8 8 under 9 9 under 10 10 under 11 11 under 12 12 under 13 13 under 14 14 under 15 15 under 20 20 under 25 25 under 30 30 under 40 40 under 50 50 under 60	102, 326 68, 432 24, 410 11, 301 7, 478 4, 954 3, 653 2, 830 2, 258 1, 736 1, 300 1, 200 0, 309 3, 198 1, 641 977 1, 113 546 369	244, 281 2, 454, 644 563, 825 277, 578 232, 568 108, 152 61, 688 48, 336 26, 851 12, 569 16, 774 19, 960 16, 274 16, 609 16, 274 36, 609 27, 27, 27, 20 38, 229 24, 301 16, 19, 10	206, 798 1, 384, 661 207, 963 83, 574 56, 118 20, 058 9, 274 6, 110 4, 052 2, 996 2, 317 1, 445 1, 660 985 762 2, 608 1, 336 797 797 909 446	46 33, 307 14, 130 6, 541 3, 924 1, 416 7009 426 313 130 130 163 130 130 82 62 242 125 77 97	230, 740 1, 070, 244 131, 961 57, 361 47, 739 17, 306 8, 557 5, 572 3, 847 2, 918 1, 478 1, 336 1, 052 889 3, 141 1, 701 1, 701 1, 163 663 358	217, 384 1, 468, 725, 388 1, 292, 360 1, 155, 538 1, 163, 057, 76, 519 46, 773 36, 089 21, 973 16, 998 16, 598 11, 973 12, 876 14, 158 37, 852 28, 557 40, 040 20, 760	184, 259 857, 054 106, 404 46, 349 38, 706 13, 937 6, 913 4, 489 2, 411 1, 868 1, 187 719 2, 534 1, 371 842 938 487 293	57 15, 878 4, 702 1, 733 1, 622 300 210 156 122 104 88 88 62 65 58 156 100 01 07 38 24 24	
60 under 70. 70 under 80. 80 under 90. 90 under 100. 100 under 150. 150 under 200. 200 under 250. 250 under 300. 300 under 400. 400 under 400. 500 under 750. 1,000 under 1,500. 1,500 under 2,000.	170 142 104 71 181 70 33 17 16 4 4 4	11, 561 10, 602 8, 797 6, 731 21, 772 12, 153 4, 633 5, 713 1, 814 2, 274 5, 133 3, 918 1, 658	146 114 85 59 146 56 26 14 13 3 3 5	12 14 11 13 21 9 4 1 2 1	226 142 103 75 199 68 31 14 20 13 17 3 5	14, 547 10, 661 8, 670 7, 095 23, 488 11, 573 6, 947 3, 782 6, 703 5, 755 10, 076 2, 516 5, 859 3, 382	181 115 83 61 162 54 26 12 17 10 14 2	19 (17 8 35 7 3 2 2 2 2	
2,000 under 3,000 3,000 under 4,000 4,000 under 5,000	2	4, 099	2		1	2, 152	1		
5,000 and over									
Total, taxable in- dividual returns with net income_	2, 481, 935	4, 481, 656	1, 997, 009	62, 443	1, 594, 105	2, 942. 286	1, 277, 999	26, 272	
Nontaxable individual returns with net income 10:  Under 1 (est.)	503, 113 141, 554 3, 901 510 151 13	380, 617 180, 727 8, 368 1, 377 508 55	404. 254 123, 595 4, 220 607 151 10	18, 191 74, 892 4, 208 686 143 (19)	533, 447 106, 791 886 128 134 6 1	408, 429 128, 398 1, 892 353 461 27 5	427, 470 89, 738 1, 244 112 107 5	21, 014 49, 472 451 45 43	
Total, nontaxable individual returns with net income	649, 242	571, 652	532, 837	98, 120	641, 393	539, 565	518, 677	71, 024	
Total, individual returns with net income	3, 131, 177	5, 053, 307	2, 529, 846	160, 563	2, 235, 498	3, 481, 851	1, 796, 676	97, 296	

Table 6.—Individual returns with net income and with no net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by States and Territories: Amount of each specific source of income and deduction, net income, and deficit

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, scepp. 4-6, 8-9, and 14-17]

#### [Thousands of dollars]

		-							
	)			Sources of	income				
,					Interest				
States and Territories	Salaries and other compensation		Dividends from domestic and foreign corpora- tions <sup>20</sup>		Bank d notes, m corpo bor		Partially tax- exempt Govern- ment obligations (subject to sur- tax only) 22		
	Returns with net income	Returns with no net in- come	Returns with net income	Returns with no net in- come	Returns with net income 21	Returns with no net in- come	Returns with net income	Returns with no net in- come	
(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)	(8)	(9)	
Alabama Alaska Arizona Arizona Arizona Arkansas. California. Colorado Connecticut Delaware District of Columbia Florida Georgia. Hawaii Idaho. Illinois. Indiana Iowa. Kansas Kentucky Louisiana. Maryland Massashusetts. Maine. Maryland Mussaschusetts. Michigan Mininesota Michigan Minnesota Michigan Mississippi Missouri Montana Nebraska Nevada New Hampshire. New Hersey. New Mersey. New Mersey. North Carolina North Dakota. Ohio. Oklahoma Oregon. Pennsylvania Rhode Island South Carolina South Dakota Tonnessee Texas Utah Vermont Virginia Washington West Virginia Washington West Virginia Washington West Virginia Washington West Virginia Wisconsin. Wyoming.	1, 649, 823 456, 994 81, 972 607, 364 1145, 050 34, 136 81, 848 1, 507, 586 44, 445 4, 557, 006 239, 038 47, 735 1, 843, 148 198, 772 196, 502 2, 386, 429 185, 239 109, 055 43, 564 267, 651 744, 251 744, 251 744, 253 774, 253 377, 072	284 43 159 193 5, 141 341 141 1, 203 135 352 1, 113 352 1, 113 573 517 881 1, 722 336 1, 353 1, 622 336 1, 353 1, 353 12, 522 2, 519 40 122 2, 519 416 122 2, 519 417 4342 211 74 573 2, 198 91 91 93 438 694 325 960 65	11, 677 735 5, 259 6, 327 219, 234 22, 037 99, 060 38, 892 30, 918 56, 287 24, 28, 275 9, 741 2, 693 222, 626 46, 494 24, 138 14, 162 24, 726 25, 601 17, 846 59, 418 180, 799 116, 233 43, 988 174, 751 5, 825 11, 468 55, 735 13, 579 132, 948 148, 759 15, 825 11, 468 15, 735 13, 579 132, 948 148, 751 15, 825 11, 468 18, 754 18, 751 16, 518 17, 761 18, 764 18, 764 19, 776 19, 776 19, 776 19, 776 19, 776 19, 776 19, 776 19, 777 19, 778 19	157 134 113 175 6, 237 432 2, 038 2, 234 3, 356 1, 196 3, 161 481 174 218 525 444 382 1, 003 3, 715 52 1, 253 8 1, 253 8 232 1, 196 2, 954 483 232 1, 196 2, 954 487 5, 608 491 1, 358 64 1, 358 64 1, 358 64 1, 358 661 227 578 57	4, 849 355 2, 433 2, 061 76, 798 7, 1, 887 13, 801 14, 781 13, 801 15, 155 112, 370 14, 308 7, 004 14, 308 7, 004 14, 308 7, 004 14, 308 15, 479 22, 162 64, 520 15, 479 1, 520 23, 396 15, 479 1, 520 23, 122 23, 122 23, 122 24, 120 25, 697 7, 125 69, 487 9, 138 2, 546 1, 062 24, 620 20, 216 1, 71	99 5 58 288 1, 988 203 388 182 116 23 351 117 127 129 269 728 594 249 95 412 31 126 36 36 31 1, 343 121 7, 194 74 74 77 391 214 1, 395	253 2 184 337 5, 151 836 136 1326 1326 1907 1, 228 90 90 93 93 1, 502 2, 138 1057 813 402 2, 230 2, 261 1, 625 1, 101 2, 402 2, 191 11 11 12 356 6, 095 6, 095 8, 0	3  5  140  6  6  8  11  1  4  32  18  8  5  77  17  10  24  42  24  18  8  8  (19)  1  5  1  5  1  5  1  5  1  5  1  1  1	
Total, individual returns	27, 653, 985	53, 276	2, 930, 105	68, 537	910, 803	21, 155	70, 044	1, 260	

For footnotes, see p. 190.

Table 6.—Individual returns with net income and with no net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by States and Territories: Amount of each specific source of income and deduction, net income, and deficit—Continued

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-6, 8-9, and 14-17]

#### [Thousands of dollars]

		Sources of income—Continued								
States and Territories	Partne prof			ne from aries 24	Rent roya	s and lties	Business	profit 23		
	Returns with net income	Returns with no net in- come	Returns with net income	Returns with no net in- come	Returns with net income	Returns with no net in- come	Returns with net income	Returns with no net in- come		
(1)	(10)	(11)	(12)	(13)	(14)	(15)	(16)	(17)		
Alabama Alaska Arizona Arkansas California Colorado Connecticut Delaware District of Columbia Florida Georgia Hawaii Idaho Illinois Indiana Iowa Kansas Kentucky Louisiana Maine Maryland Massachusetts Michigan Minnesota Minnesota Minsissippi Missouri Montana Nebraska Nevada New Hampshire New Jersey New Mexico New York North Carolina North Dakota Ohio Oklahoma Oregon Pennsylvania Rhode Island South Carolina South Dakota Tennessee Texas South Dakota Tennessee	2, 078 6, 541 12, 294 165, 274 14, 298 19, 803 3, 064 12, 515 20, 553 21, 419 2, 651 182, 921 28, 805 33, 259 15, 404 16, 236 24, 419 4, 558 28, 158 34, 230 54, 914 24, 518 10, 548 33, 076 8, 367 13, 123 3, 629 3, 629 3, 629 4, 625 3, 629 6, 807 16, 370 16, 370 17, 598 28, 168 36, 629 37, 629 38, 629 38, 629 38, 629 48, 629 48, 629 48, 629 57, 860 69, 807 16, 370 17, 860 18, 480 18, 480	129 111 301 501 1, 144 36 88 173 74 2 18 85 173 764 85 152 174 361 25 177 237 120 104 224 224 224 225 27 277 120 277 127 277 1277 1277 1277 1	2, 965 30 1, 827 1, 071 50, 420 3, 906 28, 830 15, 584 8, 126 18, 838 5, 524 3, 194 4, 787 2, 319 4, 784 4, 784 1, 938 59, 945 17, 426 1, 476 1, 547 4, 231 1, 255 1, 476 1, 547 4, 231 1, 255 1, 476 1, 547 4, 231 1, 255 1, 476 1, 547 1, 548 1, 255 1, 450 1, 171 2, 125 1, 633 1, 712 1, 633 1, 6	9 44 862 511 479 111 54 483 55 522 3 6602 62 35 54 51 71 168 313 788 185 72 2 196 4 9 9 15 100 1, 422 109 1, 422 109 1, 193 159 1 1 66 181	9, 613 966 4, 201 7, 902 151, 755 10, 971 18, 922 2, 817 16, 360 21, 147 13, 280 20, 181 34, 660 20, 385 11, 319 20, 235 5, 005 14, 326 48, 053 14, 879 5, 109 11, 12, 734 22, 233 5, 109 11, 12, 734 24, 326 48, 053 5, 109 11, 12, 734 28, 233 5, 109 11, 12, 734 28, 233 5, 109 11, 12, 734 28, 237 5, 109 11, 109	283 115 193 255 5, 468 270 642 57 226 968 519 47 60 2, 581 166 402 22 335 1, 200 115 4, 600 112 1, 333 985 1, 225 231 1, 290 115 4, 600 115 1, 333 985 1, 335 1, 335 1, 335 1, 290 115 2, 388 1, 290 115 115 115 115 115 115 115 115 115 11	31, 200 4, 362 16, 838 24, 674 406, 290 41, 474 64, 942 9, 999 30, 698 59, 261 46, 292 12, 868 26, 217 338, 484 98, 171 137, 188 55, 295 36, 987 41, 947 24, 688 26, 217 27, 633 31, 279 54, 522 130, 612 22, 164 153, 945 15, 463 37, 363 21, 419 44, 522 46, 115 278, 453 19, 876 46, 047 217, 503 11, 277 217, 503 11, 279 246, 047 217, 503 112, 373	126 4 72 87 2,041 130 242 59 73 293 176 251 269 251 269 259 168 218 61 159 828 271 83 334 68 183 19 59 818 76 2,794 164 90 468 356 1,183 57 103 48 1,83 1,83 1,83 1,83 1,83 1,83 1,83 1,8		
Vermont Virginia Washington West Virginia Wisconsin Wyoming	2, 490 15, 472 21, 511 8, 128 22, 701 4, 508	9 38 74 41 70 8	1, 765 9, 649 3, 753 3, 000 6, 751 845	37 105 92 11 85 22	1, 866 13, 299 15, 193 10, 197 21, 499 2, 780	45 365 399 248 462 56	13, 542 49, 078 79, 593 26, 411 90, 058 15, 446	23 140 196 88 291 32		
Total, individual returns	1, 548, 670	10, 259	756, 369	13, 564	1, 146, 484		4, 145, 171	16, 742		

Table 6.—Individual returns with net income and with no net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by States and Territories: Amount of each specific source of income and deduction, net income, and deficit—Continued

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-6, 8-9, and 14-17]

#### [Thousands of dollars]

			Sou	rces of inc	omeCon	tinued .			
States and Territories	capita included income	ort-term al gain I in total and net ome	capita precedin	ort-term l loss of g taxable lucted <sup>28</sup>	short-ter	year net m capital n <sup>29</sup>	Nct long-term capital gain 30		
	Returns with net income	Returns with no net Tincome	Returns with net income	Returns with no net income	Returns with net income (col. 18+20)	Returns with no net income (col. 19+21)	Returns with net income	Returns with no net income	
(1)	(18)	₹ (19)	(20)	(21)	(22)	(23)	(24)	(25)	
AlabamaAlaska	555 29	ig 16	(19)		568 29	16	1,627 213	90 4	
Arizona Arkansas	. 200 371	15 6	6 12		215 383	15 6	487 954	22 8	
California	10, 211	510	362	35 (19)	10, 574	545 22	18, 347	549	
Colorado Connecticut	820 2,752	22 118	24 164	(")	844 2, 916	119	1, 277 5, 695	24 64	
Delaware District of Columbia	341 867	1 2	52 16	1	393 882	1 2	6, 909 1, 551	59 13	
Florida	2,601	96	102	4	2, 702	100	7, 592	155	
Georgia Hawaii	954 194	23	56 5	1	1, 010 200	24	4, 037 424	56 4	
Idaho	102	3	12		114	3	328	3	
IllinoisIndiana	8,070 1,142	213 18	270 50	29	8, 340 1, 191	242 18	17, 104 3, 174	194 61	
Iowa	821	23	13		834	23	1,320	15	
Kansas	841 535	135 18	18 13	3-	859 548	135 21	1,747 1,797	54 77	
Louisiana	1, 127	84	20	4	1, 146	88	1 3.770	100	
Maine Maryland	561 1,897	13 54	12 141	2 3	573 2, 039	15 57	1,083 4,513	6 33	
Massachusetts	4, 763	112	313	10	5, 077	122	6, 510	82	
Michigan Minnesota	3, 974 1, 189	119 31	147 28	5 2	4, 121 1, 217	.124 33	7, 536 2, 426	91 20	
Mississippi	257	4	12	1	269	4	603	35	
Montana	1, 915 185	195 4	125 3		2,040 188	196 4	3, 996 488	98 5 16	
Nebraska	421 160	5	10 14		430 174	5 11	671 526	16 12	
New Hampshire	262	• 11 8	2	3	264	10	552	9	
New Jersey New Mexico	4, 723 196	158	187 9	101	4, 911 205	259 5	10, 563 530	257 9	
New York	26, 135	1,450	1,716	82	27, 852	1,532	40,643	930	
North Carolina North Daketa	807	8 3	42	(19)	. 849 84	8	1,673 126	29 3	
Ohio	4,003	109	$17\bar{2}$	35	4, 175	.144	10, 865	113	
Oklahoma Oregon	1,184 860	155 16	26 24	(19)	1, 210 883	156 16	2, 753 2, 062	132 40	
Pennsylvania	6, 669	240	287	(19) 4	6, 955	245	17, 984	193	
Rhode IslandSouth Carolina	583 299	77	19 7	(19)	602 306	77 5	1, 100 551	10 15	
South Dakota	43 829	(19)	1		45 872	( <sup>19</sup> ) 23	141 2, 158	2 35	
Tennessee	5, 318	314	43 143	9	5, 461	323	12, 900	731	
Utah Vermont	142 147	6 7	1 6		144 153	6 7	361 238	(19)	
Virginia	1, 180	30	47		1, 227	30	4, 194	55	
Washington	1, 546 478	31 7	19 12	(19)	1, 565 490	32 7	3, 426 947	64 4	
Wisconsin Wyoming	1, 676 167	30 3	79 5	4	1,755 172	34 3	2, 764 383	51 4	
Total, individual	105, 193	4, 540	4, 864	339	110, 057	4, 879	223, 619	4, 642	

For footnotes, see pp. 190-191.

Table 6.—Individual returns with net income and with no net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by States and Territories: Amount of each specific source of income and deduction, net income, and deficit—Continued

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4.6, 8.9, and 14-17]

#### [Thousands of dollars]

	Sources of income—Continued									
States and Territories	of prop	from sales erty other apital as-	Other	income	Total income					
	Returns with net income	Returns with no net income	Returns with net income	Returns with no net income	Returns with net income	Returns with no net income				
(1)	(26)	(27)	(28)	(29)	(30)	(31)				
Alabama Alaska Arizona Arkansas Balifornia Connecticut Colaware District of Columbia Piorida Georgia Hawaii daho Hilinois Indiana Owa Cansas Centucky Ouisiana Maryland Marsachusetts Michigan Minnesota Missouri Missouri Montana Vebraska Vew Hampshire New Jersey New Hampshire New Jersey New Moxico New York North Carolina North Carolina North Carolina North Carolina North Dakota Dhoca Renusylvania Rhode Island Ootth Carolina North Carolina North Dakota Dhio Rhahoma Dregon Pennessee Pennessee Pexas Jiah Vernmont Pirginia Wassinton West Virginia Westonum West Virginia	138 737 942 5770 120 303 2, 334 1, 357 423 320 818 204 807 1, 038 1, 552 1, 551 345 863 353 365 196 164 821 215 3, 005 416 416 1, 860 731 731 731 605 1, 647 209	28 11 12 319 23 133 18 18 5 26 46 46 46 48 5 5 5 5 5 5 8 8 7 9 9 9 9 12 2 2 8 8 7 13 33 48 8 7 13 13 34 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 13	2744 2 2744 2 290 79, 881 5, 055 9, 114 2, 458 23, 167 14, 493 4, 844 1, 520 61, 126 22, 045 19, 001 12, 008 4, 520 5, 832 4, 075 17, 453 38, 218 25, 002 14, 740 2, 663 38, 218 25, 002 14, 740 2, 663 38, 218 25, 002 14, 740 2, 663 38, 218 25, 002 14, 740 2, 663 31, 527 2, 028 4, 940 2, 663 1, 520 1, 52	93 11 74 290 30 30 75 16 52 219 67 14 18 346 11 17 10 185 106 211 11 44 82 21 36 41 30 21 30 44 43 20 20 44 43 20 20 44 44 20 20 44 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21	269, 541 33, 652 1111, 174 139, 332 3, 220, 879 266, 685 935, 252 166, 181 466, 665 460, 272 307, 299 117, 984 90, 641 3, 573, 388 883, 479 539, 838 883, 479 539, 838 87, 772, 202 1, 873, 617 2, 111, 615 713, 978 132, 841 1893, 355 157, 199 248, 614 57, 205 130, 163 2, 729, 241 77, 571 6, 596, 236 357, 372 84, 258 2, 464, 473 357, 372 84, 258 2, 464, 473 357, 575, 801 160, 915 75, 784 390, 449 1, 300, 253 104, 081 578, 933 327, 774 805, 691	1322 218 76. 1, 0.5- 25, 26. 25, 26. 1, 29. 1, 93. 38. 1, 93. 38. 1, 93. 38. 1, 2, 60. 1, 78. 2, 40. 2, 45. 2, 45. 2, 45. 3, 40. 2, 9. 77, 264. 42, 2, 33. 42, 2, 45. 42, 2, 33. 42, 2, 45. 41, 61, 61, 71. 41, 65. 41, 71. 41, 65. 41, 71. 42, 77. 42, 77. 43, 77. 44, 77. 44				

Table 6.—Individual returns with net income and with no net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by States and Territories: Amount of each specific source of income and deduction, net income, and deficit—Continued

STATISTICS OF INCOME FOR 1940-PART 1

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-6, 8-9, and 14-17]

#### [Thousands of dollars]

				Dedu	ctions				
States and Territories	Partnership loss 23		Busines	s loss 25		ng-term loss <sup>25</sup> 80	Net loss from sales of property other than capital assets 31		
Diates and Territories	Returns with net income	Returns with no net	Returns with net income	Returns with no net	Returns with net income	Returns with no net	Returns with net income	Returns with no net	
(1)	(32)	income (33)	(34)	income (35)	(36)	income (37)	(38)	income (39)	
Alabama Alaska Arizona Arkansas	150 62 120 245	249 64 113 54	884 128 881 656	1,690 239 1,322 1,095	1, 113 96 635 506	622 18 386 178	222 38 204 139	158 3 140 80	
California	3, 195 192	2, 779 134	14,887 1,268	15, 975 1, 768	29, 201 2, 286	16, 481 944	3, 996 327	4, 527	
Connecticut Delaware	407 127	267 14	1, 886 851	1, 541 206	14, 699 1, 462	4, 622 8, 268	1, 061 129	240 870 106	
District of Columbia Florida Georgia	157 552 300	27 494 190	1, 331 2, 494 1, 529	440 2, 910 1, 691	2, 974 6, 415 1, 769	963 3, 738 991	452 835 341	211 927 456	
Hawaii	30	17	356	320	496	. 165	46	34	
Idalio Illinois Indiana	66 3, 035 444	100 1,148 180	355 11, 303 2, 875	773 8, 184 2, 299	187 28, 232 3, 698	74 11, 471 1, 181	3, 198 794	23 2, 525 446	
Iowa	289	196	2,515	2,888	2,404	813	418	228	
Kansas Kentucky Louisiana	411 267 530	399 162 420	2, 106 1, 489 2, 159	2, 628 1, 650 2, 144	1, 178 2, 383 1, 884	740 917 796	268 307 360	339 246 147	
Maine	105	64	802	1, 152	2, 538	813	201	192	
Maryland Massachusetts	458 497	405 945	2, 548 2, 909	1,603 3,195	7, 446 25, 468	3, 058 7, 043	892 1, 203	323 782	
Michigan	957 387	401 180	6, 454	3, 041 1, 893	11, 533	4, 946 1, 385	1, 710 733	1, 325	
Minnesota	249	223	2, 058 903	1,815	5, 239 510	145	135	488 66	
Missouri	741 81	565 67	2, 906 601	3, 193 899	7, 506 524	3, 438 139	1, 140 131	761	
Montana Nebraska	144	124	942	1, 577	1,096	579	370	57 150	
Nevada	92	46 36	343 365	304	508	203	67 143	72	
New Hampshire New Jersey	48 762	600	3, 679	566 3, 578	1, 794 20, 082	9, 158	2,027	106 1,973	
New Mexico	101	98 6, 595	459	931	368	130	95	85	
New York North Carolina	6, 019 191	151	17, 142 1, 332	14,739 1,116	108, 812 1, 543	53, 772 608	5, 575 362	6, 423 122	
North Dakota	54	30 1, 588	401 5, 742	671	215 16,340	144 8, 433	57	61	
OhioOklahoma	1, 147 680	608	1,958	3, 803 2, 526	10, 340	895	1, 666 353	1, 178 734	
Oregon	252	254	1, 157	1, 573	1,711	774 13, 579	348 2, 748	300	
Pennsylvania Rhode Island	1, 494 224	1, 532 61	7, 685 764	8, 613 571	35, 420 3, 699	1,737	343	2, 701 296	
South Carolina	63 49	27 43	741 514	911 749	556 221	419 264	119 90	161 46	
South Dakota Tennessee	351	248	1, 457	1, 191	1, 773	608	401	162	
Texas	1,829	2,876	8, 659 342	9, 495 279	5,018 542	3, 397 246	1,578 67	1,089	
Utah Vermont	102	84 42	492	436	740	341	98	27 60	
Virginia	267 216	178 159	2,486 1,929	1,644 2,214	3, 325 3, 259	1,020 1,804	379 521	297 373	
Washington West Virginia	264	47	952	912	1, 327	651	186	90	
Wisconsin	261	157	2, 251	2,130	6,610	1,826	736	798	
Wyoming	73	21	528	498	524	176	38	81	
Total, individual returns	28, 801	25, 463	131, 454	127, 579	379, 314	175, 547	37, 713	33, 087	

For footnotes, see pp. 190-191.

Table 6.—Individual returns with net income and with no net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by States and Territories: Amount of each specific source of income and deduction, net income, and deficit—Continued

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-6, 8-9, and 14-17]

#### [Thousands of dollars]

States and Territories	Contributions 32		Interest	paid 32	Taxes p	oaid 33	Losses from fire, storm, etc. 33 34 (Form 1040)		
	Returns with net income	Returns with no net income	Returns with net income	Returns with no net income	Returns with net income	Returns with no net income	Returns with net income	Returns with no net income	
(1)	(40)	(41)	(42)	(43)	(44)	(45)	(46)	(47)	
labama	4, 766	25	4, 580	263	5, 932	207	205	91	
laska	489	1	414	10	385	4	38	1	
rizona	1,269	8	1,797	107	2, 656	120	86	3	
rkansas	2,855	28	2, 426	161	3, 714	99	275	6	
California	38,319	324	67,792	3, 677 118	95, 727 11, 804	3, 736 218	2,720 231	69	
Colorado	3, 998	25 87	5, 158 17, 156	815	23, 963	684	1, 187	11	
Connecticut	18,527 $4,232$	633	3, 431	87	4, 045	106	55	î	
Delaware District of Columbia	8, 196	17	10, 021	196	11, 285	153	158	4	
Plorida	7, 472	80	10, 117	633	13, 843	865	491	19	
Peorgia	7,860	66	8,353	322	10, 559	332	536	20	
Iawaii	1, 136	4	2,646	46	3, 237	35	78		
daho	915	11	1, 206	34	1,979	33	108	2	
llinois	60, 135	265	52,659	1,641	72, 729	1,870	1,967	40	
ndiana	12, 962	94	11,989	308	24, 881	408	413		
owa	9,986	24	10, 350	261 300	24, 150 12, 648	321 413	296 203	14	
ansas	5, 350	.53 57	5, 495 7, 136	240	11, 576	274	303	10	
Centucky	6, 796 5, 479	42	6, 460	350	9, 662	351	417	20	
Jouisiana	3, 213	27	3, 103	116	6, 433	155	187	l ī	
Maryland	13, 346	44	12, 277	475	24, 222	423	452	9	
Massachusetts	36, 317	158	28, 069	897	69, 686	1, 385	649	18	
Michigan	33, 168	156	35, 050	700	49, 938	1, 086	846	45	
Minnesota	12, 844	57	10, 164	261	25, 525	435	898	14	
Mississippi	3, 018	18	2, 382	85	3, 923	132	180 582	20	
Missouri	17, 604	110	18, 709	1, 094	31, 632 3, 767	1, 017 44	130	20	
Montana	1,681	33	1,918 4,200	52 244	6, 070	194	161	ļ g	
Nebraska	3, 809 552	33	667	25	988	36	G5	] "	
Nevada New Hampshire	2, 069	17	2, 013	95	4.892	149	75	7	
New Jersey	39, 869	375	32,872	1, 151	64, 925	1, 506	1, 259	18	
New Mexico	881	7	1, 182	57	1, 497	41	100	1	
New York	158,942	1,060	110, 757	7,421	271, 186	8,864	7,314	2, 36	
North Carolina	10,741	44	9, 420	295	13, 203	335	387	14	
North Dakota	1,270	16	1, 304	28	2, 955	77	106	20	
Obio	39, 579	229	43, 385	1,270	69, 732	985	1, 044 464	) "8	
Oklahoma	5, 728	63	7, 556 5, 083	586 250	12,836 9,776	554 291	155	1 7	
Oregon Pennsylvania	3, 179 66, 689	594	57, 062	2,368	93, 772	1,984	1,375	70	
Rhode Island	5, 664	21	4, 537	175	9, 050	183	117	2	
South Carolina	4, 434	28	3, 430	130	4, 478	123	340	13	
South Dakota	1,184	12	1,232	37	3,142	68	64	1	
rennessee	7, 793	46	7, 854	263	8, 728	334	307	18	
rexas	19,679	192	28, 259	1,849	34, 424	1, 424	1,842	60	
Jtah	2,013	8	1,961	44	3, 279	45	60	1	
Vermont	1, 393	7	1, 263	60	2, 251	61	73	6	
Virginia	12, 530	50	12,933	365 246	14, 458 10, 049	263 252	376 286	14	
Washington	4,922	27 25	7,654	175	7, 544	106	180	1 1	
West Virginia	4, 465 14, 583	25 41	6, 488 17, 634	480	25, 226	432	519	ا ۋ	
Wisconsin Wyoming	742	41	1, 080	37	1, 247	22	64	ì	
Total, individual		-							
				30, 899	1, 235, 611	33, 237	30, 516	9,00	

STATISTICS OF INCOME FOR 1940-PART 1

TABLE 6.—Individual returns with net income and with no net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by States and Territories: Amount of each specific source of income and deduction, net income, and deficit—Continued

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-6, 8-9, and 14-17)

[Thousands of dollars]

Deductions—Continued

States and Territories

Bad debts 22 (Form 1040)

Other deduc-tions 35

Total deduc-tions as

Returns with no net

come net in-

Income

come

Returns with no net income

(F)(0)

(**61**)

(53)

(54)

(55)

 $\boldsymbol{\Xi}$ 

424464

Table 7.—Individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns, with net income, 1940,1 by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; also aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income: Total number of returns, number of returns <sup>36</sup> and amount
for each specific source of income and deduction; net income, and deficit

Oregon.
Pennsylvania
Rhode Island
South Carolina
South Dakota

For footnotes, see pp. 190-191

Total, individual returns.....

92, 457

585 586

728 65

, 219

3, 967,

926 550

968 36,

309,

, 719

311, 385

iew Mexico vew York North Carolina

. ಇತ್ತಿಸ್ತೆಸ್ಥೂಗುವ್ಯಾಸ್ತೆನ್ನು ಸ್ಟ್ರಿಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಾಣ್ಣಿಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ತಿಸ್ಟ್ ಸ್ಟ್ರಿಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಾಣ್ಣಿಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ತಿಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ತಿಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ತಿಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ತಿಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ತಿಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ತಿಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ತಿಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ಟಿಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ಟಿಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ಟಿಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ಟಿಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ಟಿಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ಟಿಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ಟಿಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ಟಿಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ಟಿಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ಟಿಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ಟಿಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ಟಿಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ಟಿಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ಟಿಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ಟಿಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ಟ್ ಪ್ಟ್ ಪ್ರಸ್ಟ್ ಸ್ಟ್ಟ್ ಸ್ಟ್ಟ್ ಸ್ಟ್ಟ್ ಸ್ಟ್ಟ್ ಸ್ಟ್ಟ್ ಸ್ಟ

ampshire\_\_\_

4. 067 602.167 602.167 602.167 602.167 602.167 602.167 602.167 603.167 603.167 603.167 604.17 605.167 605.1

314 131 131 131 132 132 133 1,306 1,306 1,301 1,

3, 814
5, 224
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5, 244
5,

5.856 5.

2,487
11,788
23,157
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,554
25,

achusetts\_\_\_\_

orth Carolina..... klahoma\_\_\_\_

[For description of items and classifications, and methods]of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-6, 8-9, and 14-17]

	[Net	income class	es and mone	figures in t	housands of	dollars					
T						Sources	of income				
	•						Interest				
	Net income <sup>3</sup> classes	Total number of returns	Salaries and other com- pensation (individ- ual returns)		Dividends from do- mestic and foreign corporations <sup>20</sup>				Partially tax-exemp Government oblige tions (subject to sur tax only)		
			Number of returns	Amount	Number of returns	Amount	Number of returns 37	Amount 21	Number of returns 27	Amount 22	
	(1)	(2)	. (3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)	(8)	(9)	(10)	
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19	Taxable individual and fiduciary returns: 3  With net income:  Under 1 (est.)  1 under 2 (est.)  2 under 2 (est.)  2.5 under 3 (est.)  3 under 4 (est.)  4 under 5 (est.)  5 under 6  6 under 7  7 under 8  8 under 9  9 under 10  10 under 11  11 under 12  12 under 13  13 under 14  14 under 15  15 under 20  20 under 20  20 under 30  30 under 30  30 under 40	396, 348 219, 676 130, 302 84, 424 59, 328 45, 291 34, 265 27, 270 21, 669	436, 968 2, 604, 678 799, 597 785, 529 830, 113 298, 194 152, 476 86, 165 54, 360 37, 350 28, 555 21, 328 16, 972 13, 372 11, 723 11, 723 11, 723 11, 723 12, 843 15, 356 8, 824 9, 331	424, 235 3, 774, 657 1, 830, 627 2, 152, 106 2, 789, 790 771, 347 501, 1347 501, 1347 502, 259 270, 994 229, 026 184, 137 157, 521 133, 199 116, 120 106, 557 382, 323 238, 549 159, 212	95. 644 472, 786 221. 521 238, 678 340. 090 175, 135 104, 021 68. 122 47, 456 35, 274 27. 899 22, 273 18, 029 14, 998 12, 535 10, 846 36, 098 19, 605 11, 800 12, 857	82, 905 178, 597 98, 439 108, 963 191, 180 141, 384 115, 041 97, 122 83, 454 73, 720 66, 583 66, 521 53, 853 48, 257 46, 227 193, 082 148, 560 116, 783 178, 185	83, 686 52, 630 36, 400 26, 551 16, 584 13, 445 11, 072 9, 308 8, 222 27, 120 14, 821 9, 131	124, 218	8, 419 6, 542 5, 015 4, 081 3, 533 2, 759 2, 438 2, 147 1, 870 1, 667 5, 849 3, 536 2, 258	1, 654 1, 668 3, 569 4, 032 3, 577 3, 210 2, 2868 2, 574 2, 410 1, 838 1, 877 1, 705 1, 425 5, 881 4, 147 3, 115	

Table 7.—Individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns, with net income, 1940,1 by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; also aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income: Total number of returns, number of returns 30 and amount for each specific source of income and deduction, net income, and deficit—Continued

### [Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

			Sources of income										
								Interest					
i	Net income <sup>3</sup> classes		Salaries and pensation ual return	(individ-	Dividends from do- mestic and foreign corporations 20		nd foreign Donk demosits notes		Partially tax-exempt Government obliga- tion (subject to sur- tax only)				
	•		Number of returns	Amount	Number of returns	Amount	Number of returns 87	Amount 21	Number of returns 37	Amount 22			
	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)	(8)	(9)	(10)			
21 22 23 24 25 25 27 28 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40	Taxable individual and fiduciary returns 3—Continued.  With net income—Continued.  40 under 50. 50 under 60. 60 under 70. 70 under 80. 80 under 90. 90 under 100. 100 under 150. 150 under 250. 250 under 250. 250 under 300. 300 under 400. 400 under 500. 500 under 50. 500 under 750. 780 under 1,000 1,000 under 1,500. 1,500 under 2,000. 2,000 under 2,000. 3,000 under 2,000. 4,000 under 5,000. 5,000 and over.	6 4 3 1 7, 504, 649	4, 812 2, 729 1, 660 1, 090 1, 238 415 180 110 100 45 50 23 14 6 5 3 1 1 1 6, 263, 269	123, 053 78, 831 51, 886 38, 891 29, 047 21, 266 58, 522 22, 320 11, 448 7, 147 6, 910 3, 518 2, 169 941 632 376 632 376 632 378 33 42	6, 712 3, 882 2, 435 1, 529 1, 122 7770 1, 861 281 168 168 165 88 87 35 9 6 4 4 3 1	127, 040 97, 549 73, 661 57, 517 48, 139 40, 216 128, 095 69, 281 31, 284 31, 284 31, 284 31, 216 19, 227 13, 709 14, 994 11, 030 17, 803 3, 865 3, 044, 341	5, 419 3, 118 2, 002 1, 234 931 647 1, 607 557 236 145 147 81 87 84 9 6 4 2 1	13, 613 7, 926 6, 289 4, 137 3, 304 2, 508 7, 279 2, 978 1, 544 1, 015 887 830 1, 142 644 685 215 154 113 215	1, 564 934 592 406 308 209 485 167 67 53 34 20 22 12 4 4	2, 708 1, 672 1, 016 625 754 402 1, 580 504 406 225 108 81 183 7 (11)	21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40		
42	Individual returns with no net income 6	46		778	46	6, 053	42	404	15	47	42		
43	Total, taxable returns	7, 504, 695	6, 263, 298	16, 484, 572	2, 005, 533	3, 050, 394	<sup>37</sup> 356, 176	21 814, 382	<sup>37</sup> 57, 769	22 68, 945	43		

44 45 46 47 48 49 50	Nontaxable individual returns:   With net income: 10   Under 1 (est.)   1 under 2 (est.)   2 under 2.5 (est.)   2.5 under 3 (est.)   3 under 4 (est.)   4 under 5 (est.)   5 under 6.	1, 382, 673 2, 107, 533 2, 545, 337 887, 004 231, 883 6, 245 138	892, 971 1, 560, 283 2, 328, 731 801, 063 199, 428 4, 355 64	776, 708 2, 425, 904 5, 156, 577 2, 153, 597 638, 942 18, 168 295	187, 950 260, 321 271, 949 113, 711 35, 066 2, 825 35	65, 562 76, 612 51, 185 21, 307 8, 800 563 71	44	55, 405 64, 430 40, 157 13, 463 4, 687 327 45	31	1, 968 3, 600 2, 037 1, 213 2, 161 451 132	44 .45 46 47 48 49 50
51 52	TotalIndividual returns with no net income 4	7, 160, 813 112, 651	5, 786, 895 21, 747	11, 170, 191 52, 498	871, 857 28, 930	224, 099 62, 484	37 44 26, 176	n 178, 513 20, 751	37 31 2, 213	22 11, 561 1, 213	51 52
53	Total, nontaxable returns	7, 273, 464	5, 808, 642	11, 222, 688	900, 787	286, 583	<sup>37</sup> 26, 220	21 199, 265	37 2, 244	22 12, 774	53
54	Grand total (43 plus 53, or 55 plus 56)	14, 778, 159	12, 071, 940	27, 707, 261	2, 906, 320	3, 336, 977	<sup>37</sup> 382, 396	<sup>21</sup> 1. 013, 647	<sup>87</sup> 60, 013	22 81, 719	54
55	Individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns with net income (41 plus 51).	14, 665, 462	12, 050, 164	27, 653, 985	2, 877, 344	3, 268, 441	<sup>37</sup> 356, 178	21 992, 492	37 57, 785	22 80, 459	55
56	Individual returns with no net income (42 plus 52)	112, 697	21, 776	53, 276	28, 976	68, 537	26, 218	21, 155	2, 228	1, 260	56

Table 7.—Individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns, with net income, 1940, by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; also aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income: Total number of returns, number of returns and amount for each specific source of income and deduction, net income, and deficit—Continued

[Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

			Sc	ources of inco	me—Continue	d		
Net income <sup>1</sup> classes	Partnersh	ip profit 23	Income from	fiduciaries 24	Rents and	l royalties	Business	profit 25
	Number of returns 37	Amount	Number of returns 37	Amount	Number of returns 37	Amount	Number of returns 37	Amount
(1)	(11)	(12)	(13)	(14)	(15)	(16)	(17)	(18)
Taxable individual and fiduciary returns: \$ With net income:  Under 1 (est.)  1 under 2 (est.)  2 under 2.5 (est.)  2.5 under 3 (est.)  3 under 4 (est.)  4 under 5 (est.)  5 under 6  6 under 7  7 under 8  8 under 9  9 under 10  10 under 11  11 under 12  12 under 13  13 under 14  14 under 15  15 under 20  20 under 25  25 under 30  30 under 40  40 under 50  50 under 60  60 under 70  70 under 80  80 under 100  100 under 100  100 under 100  100 under 100  100 under 60  90 under 90  90 under 100  100 under 150  150 under 200		5, 917 39, 680 34, 397 56, 445 124, 049 92, 763 100, 212 81, 489 95, 974 57, 678 49, 579 43, 785 39, 891 112, 641 77, 554 68, 830 30, 322 22, 3967 15, 002 14, 418 8, 898 20, 591 9, 774 3, 737	12. 763 9. 014 4. 426 3. 526 3. 043 2. 542 2. 235 6. 777 3. 994 2. 656 3. 123 1. 728 1. 718 1. 728 1. 016 675 450 349 243 623 239 97	3, 569 15, 689 10, 582 12, 708 28, 618 26, 566 31, 196 26, 723 21, 799	48, 098 30, 180 19, 857 14, 376 10, 834 8, 742 7, 003 5, 604 4, 712 3, 900 12, 943 6, 818 4, 011 4, 323 2, 242 1, 254 810 490 356 238 588 227 79	22, 450 74, 384 53, 614 66, 058 102, 388 63, 182 51, 091 37, 157 28, 604 22, 862 18, 625 17, 381 14, 163 12, 096 10, 610 8, 807 34, 398 22, 063 14, 078 20, 985 13, 437 7, 385 6, 108 4, 427 3, 096 1, 952 5, 884 2, 093 968	48. 529 30, 279 19, 360 13, 407 10, 010 7, 322 5, 583 4, 318 3, 525 8, 775 4, 082 2, 083 2, 083 2, 083 2, 083 149 113 53 140 41 112	21, 902 119, 640 143, 308 232, 448 438, 323 250, 526 226, 182 166, 184 121, 679 94, 835 78, 591 102, 728 51, 541 43, 201 37, 859 32, 982 117, 195 09, 474 42, 484 50, 867 28, 127 18, 273 10, 853 7, 598 3, 054 10, 622 3, 094

30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39	250 under 300. 300 under 400 400 under 500 500 under 7,00 1,000 under 1,000 1,000 under 2,000 2,000 under 3,000 3,000 under 4,000 4,000 under 5,000 5,000 and over			67 71 47 49 15 18 4 5 2 2	8, 722 11, 683 8, 971 15, 544 4, 747 13, 816 3, 438 4, 859 5, 493 4	51 60 30 25 13 9 5	426 1, 132 134 356 931 52 63	14 10 1 3 4 1	962 2, 127 3 20 1, 938 (19)	30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39
41 42	Total	<sup>37</sup> 113, 331 7	1, 383, 211 175	<sup>37</sup> 73, 724 16	737, 643 1, 151	<sup>37</sup> 187, 879 13	743, 440 41	<sup>37</sup> 164, 416 2	2, 525, 049 33	41 42
43	Total, taxable returns	<sup>37</sup> 118, 338	1, 383, 386	37 73, 740	738, 794	37 187, 892	743, 481	37 164, 418	2, 525, 081	43
44 45 46 47 48 49 50	Nontaxable individual returns:  With net income: 10  Under 1 (est.).  1 under 2 (est.).  2 under 2.5 (est.).  2.5 under 3 (est.).  3 under 4 (est.).  4 under 5 (est.).  5 under 6.		20, 360 54, 343 54, 743 30, 079 13, 661 1, 296 49		8, 318 10, 662 6, 135 3, 457 1, 501 238 83		179, 172	55	181, 647 706, 583 417, 624 217, 434 101, 049 6, 927 258	46
51 52	TotalIndividual returns with no net income '	<sup>37</sup> 14 4, 098	174, 530 10, 084	37 9 4, 135	30, 394 12, 413	37 43 29, 857	450, 694 35, 772	37 55 10, 199	1, 631, 521 16, 710	
53	Total, nontaxable returns	37 4, 112	184, 614	<sup>37</sup> 4, 144	42, 807	37 29, 900	486, 467	<sup>37</sup> 10, 254	1, 648, 231	53
54	Grand total (43 plus 53, or 55 plus 56)	<sup>37</sup> 122, 450	1, 568. 000	87 77, 884	781, 601	37 217, 792	1, 229, 948	37 174, 672	4, 173, 312	54
55	Individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns with net income (41 plus 51).	<sup>37</sup> 118, 345	1, 557, 741	37 73, 733	768, 937	<sup>37</sup> 187, 922	1, 194, 134	37 164, 474	4, 156, 570	1
56	Individual returns with no net income (42 plus 52)	4, 105	10, 259	4, 151	13, 564	29, 870	35, 813	10, 201	16, 742	56

Table 7.—Individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns, with net income, 1940,1 by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; also aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income: Total number of returns, number of returns 36 and amount for each specific source of income and deduction, net income, and deficit—Continued

[Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

						Sour	es of incon	ne-Contin	nned	<del></del>	······································		
				(	Capital gai	n 26			Net gain	from sales			
				Short-term	27		Net long- ital g	term cap- ain <sup>30</sup>	than c	apital as-	Other	income	
	Net income i classes	capital cluded	ort-term gain in- in total and net	capital precedi	ort-term loss of ng taxable ducted 23	Current year net short-term capital	Number of re-	Amount	Number of re-	Amount	Number of re-	Amount	Total in- come
		Number of re- turns 37	Amount	Number of re- turns 37	Amount	gain <sup>20</sup> (col. 20+22)	turns 37		turns 27		turns <sup>27</sup>		
	(1)	(19)	(20)	(21)	(22)	(23)	(24)	(25)	(26)	(27)	(28)	(29)	(30)
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Taxable individual and fiduciary returns: \$\footnote{1}\$ With net income:  Under 1 (est.).  1 under 2 (est.).  2 under 2.5 (est.).  2.5 under 3 (est.).  3 under 4 (est.).  4 under 5 (est.).  5 under 6.  6 under 7.  7 under 8.  8 under 9.  9 under 10.  10 under 11.  11 under 12.  12 under 13.  13 under 14.  14 under 15.	10, 937 7, 799 6, 044 4, 734 2, 057	1, 843 4, 688 3, 237 3, 814 8, 694 7, 442 7, 150 4, 823 4, 156 3, 716 3, 362 3, 013 2, 534 2, 502 2, 266	430 327 255 218 162 154 147 122 128 104	35 143 122 168 307 203 279 204 149 96 6127 117 83 120 93	1, 879 4, 831 3, 359 3, 982 9, 000 7, 645 7, 428 5, 754 4, 999 4, 306 3, 812 6, 18 3, 129 2, 618 2, 622 2, 359	12, 942 9, 324 7, 023 5, 400 4, 622 3, 636 3, 103 2, 658 2, 302 2, 072	4, 625 6, 434 4, 845 5, 680 10; 628 8, 769 9, 251 7, 657 6, 619 6, 084 5, 422 4, 916 4, 497 4, 313 3, 655 3, 339	2, 731 1, 818 1, 237 909 718 566 456 375 329 277	411 2, 068 1, 489 2, 465 4, 418 3, 657 2, 758 2, 127 1, 445 1, 235 1, 097 827 786 613 585 513	17, 827 11, 434 7, 888 6, 073 4, 647 3, 627 3, 021 2, 501 1, 840	18, 477 127, 435 50, 331 56, 664 75, 940 38, 119 13, 472 9, 626 7, 027 6, 101 4, 205 3, 867 3, 640 3, 137 2, 755 2, 565	640, 329 4, 470, 399 2, 294, 049 2, 703, 514 3, 873, 792 1, 975, 058 1, 372, 329 969, 117 728, 054 583, 037 497, 610 418, 411 363, 687 316, 016 281, 048 255, 659

177 188 20 20 212 224 245 245 245 245 247 247 247 247 247 247 247 247 247 247	15 under 20 20 under 25. 25 under 30 30 under 40. 40 under 50. 50 under 70. 70 under 80. 80 under 90. 90 under 100. 100 under 150. 150 under 200. 200 under 200. 200 under 300. 300 under 300. 300 under 400. 400 under 500. 500 under 750. 750 under 1,000. 1,000 under 1,000. 1,000 under 1,000. 1,000 under 2,000. 20 under 2,000.	2, 576 1, 346 1, 346 2787 526 299 240 145 405 135 69 32 43 24 21 14 6	10, 410 5, 588 4, 233 5, 602 3, 081 2, 455 1, 671 1, 046 824 608 2, 150 010 1, 157 009 188 1, 044 3, 104 3,	394 294 188 2122 124 79 65 36 17 13 55 32 11 1 6 6 4 5 1 2	436 359 219 4122 175 131 142 30 144 33 73 76 9 9 9 15 (19)	10, 846 6 227 4, 451 6, 014 3, 256 2, 566 2, 566 1, 813 1, 076 838 641 2, 223 1, 233 618 201 1, 070 31 539 145 29 359	7, 076 4, 060 2, 690 2, 914 1, 659 952 674 425 348 239 594 254 121 76 67 40 53 14 18 4	14, 673 9, 794 8, 831 10, 821 9, 389 7, 309 6, 262 4, 696 4, 764 3, 173 15, 234 6, 826 5, 324 6, 473 6, 473 13, 566 9, 102 1, 591 1, 494	951 496 275 275 147 76 47 29 23 9 44 12 8 8 4	1,772 1,174 540 548 293 241 61 45 5173 137 50 27 247 1 4	6, 338 3, 646 2, 291 2, 657 1, 416 810 537 362 274 175 847 175 54 52 27 30 66 55 1, 416	8, 529 5, 450 3, 645 5, 553 3, 650 2, 439 1, 708 1, 257 846 624 820 820 820 8394 271 157 19 41 174	975, 084 648, 847 457, 458 451, 355 408, 095 279, 681 202, 260 150, 078 124, 042 93, 427 77, 529 58, 653 140, 212 77, 529 51, 437 65, 744 34, 139 30, 348 21, 077 17, 949 17, 132	17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38
38 39	3,000 under 4,000 4,000 under 5,000						2	44			2	18	18, 115 6, 012	39 40
40	5,000 and over					112 000	97.55.000	258, 895	37 11, 820	31, 805	37 80, 414	463, 349	23, 665, 197	41
41 42	Total Individual returns with no net income. <sup>6</sup>	<sup>37</sup> 64, 503 10	110, 793 14	<sup>37</sup> 3, 591 2	4, 595 5	115, 388 19	37 75, 366	258, 895	1	(10)	13	67	8, 761	42
43	Total, taxable returns	<sup>37</sup> 64, 513	110, 807	a7 3, 593	4,601	115, 407	<sup>37</sup> 75, 366	258, 895	<sup>37</sup> 11, 821	31,805	37 80, 427	463, 416	26, 673, 959	43
44 45 46 47 48 49 50	Nontaxable individual returns:  With net income: 10  Under 1 (est.)		2, 638 3, 392 2, 723 1, 802 944 73 6		108 196 75 23 39	2, 747 3, 588 2, 797 1, 825 984 73 6	8	2, 910 4, 700 2, 726 1, 519 555 70 3	2	1, 685 3, 936 2, 067 1, 067 801 87	7	62, 547 110, 357 75, 895 30, 120 11, 676 542 24	1, 302, 552 3, 643, 693 5, 908, 154 2, 512, 419 798, 751 29, 785 1, 018	44 45 46 47 48 49 50
51	Total	37 5	11, 579 4, 526	136	440 334	12,019 4,860	2, 970	12, 484 4, 642	37 2 1, 506	9, 644 2, 373	9, 165	291, 161 7, 356	14, 196, 373 230, 822	51 52
52	Individual returns with no net income.4	3, 821	4, 526	130	304	. 4, 500								
53	Total, nontaxable returns	a7 3, 826	16, 105	37 136	775	16. 879	r; 2.978	17, 127	<sup>37</sup> 1.505	12.018	a7 9, 172	298. 517	14, 427, 195	53
54	Grand total (43 plus 53, or 55 plus 56).	<sup>37</sup> 68, 339	126, 911	37 3, 729	5, 375	132, 286	37 78, 344	276, 022	<sup>37</sup> 13, 329	43, 823	37 S9, 599	761, 933	41, 101, 154	54
55	Individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns with net income (41 plus 51).	37 64, 508	122, 372	37 3, 591	5, 036	127, 408	75, 374	271, 380	1 507	41, 450 2, 373	<sup>37</sup> 80, 421 9, 178	754, 511 7, 423	40, 861, 570 239, 583	55 56
56	Individual returns with no net income (42 plus 52).	3, 831	4, 540	138	339	4, 879	2, 970	4, 642	1, 507	2, 013	0, 110	,, 120	200, 000	

TABLE 7.—Individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns, with net income, 1940,¹ by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes, also aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income: Total number of returns, number of returns ³⁵ and amount for each specific source of income and deduction, net income, and deficit—Continued

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-6, 8-9, and 14-17]

[Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

							Dedu	ctions	•				
	Net income <sup>3</sup> classes	Partners	hip losš 23	Busines	ss loss 25	Net lor capital l	ng-term loss 26 80	Net loss i of prope than co sets 31	rom sales erty other apital as-	Contrib (individu	utions <sup>32</sup> al returns)	Interes	paid 33
		Number of returns 37	Amount	Number of returns 27	Amount	Number of returns 37	Amount	Number of returns 37	Amount	Number of returns 37	Amount	Number of returns 37	Amount
	(1)	(31)	(32)	(33)	(34)	(35)	(36)	(37)	(38)	(39)	(40)	(41)	(42)
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 22 23 24	Taxable individual and fiduciary returns:   With net income  Under 1 (est.)	1, 555 1, 092 798 593 551 404 412 324 260 222 790 531 312	895 802 866	3,779 2,505 1,757 1,292 1,079 882 760 659 533 494 1,719 997 635 794 512 279 205	1, 008 4, 138 3, 125 4, 283 7, 769 5, 217 4, 421 3, 606 2, 919 2, 123 1, 966 1, 676 1, 683 1, 296 3, 600 2, 464 3, 762 2, 464 3, 762 2, 778 1, 778 1, 778 1, 994	16, 108 11, 826 9, 090 7, 370 6, 096 5, 102 4, 396 3, 741 3, 200 2, 852 10, 149 6, 075 3, 811 4, 515 2, 547 1, 477 921 578	9, 348	2, 167 1, 508 901 828 633 3525 443 336 301 291 292 945 542 334 394 213 114 88	450 1, 469 999 1, 350 2, 892 2, 1, 44 1, 620 1, 488 1, 005 834 771 647 552 459 287 1, 590 954 623 912 657 287 231 168	183, 439 109, 476 71, 365 50, 304 38, 638 29, 152 23, 405 18, 473 15, 473 13, 144 41, 982 21, 754 12, 601 13, 446 6, 921 3, 833 2, 305 1, 514	13, 813 109, 865 44, 262 52, 472 72, 127 36, 802 13, 621 11, 154 9, 505 7, 969 6, 989 6, 937 5, 365 4, 873 10, 050 13, 271 9, 061 7, 061 7, 061 7, 061 7, 061 7, 061 7, 061	114, 148 68, 332 44, 088 31, 274 23, 959 18, 058 14, 531 11, 546 9, 666 8, 090 26, 008 13, 478 7, 910 8, 472 4, 511 2, 594 1, 577 1, 028	6, 130 35, 374 32, 244 48, 048 77, S83 42, 054 35, 266 24, 874 17, 615 14, 520 12, 104 9, 748 8, 210 0, 802 6, 207 5, 419 20, 004 12, 508 8, 213 10, 353 7, 235 4, 388 2, 880 2, 729

														o
25   26   27   28   29   30   31   32   33   34   35   36   37   38   39   40	80 under 90. 90 under 100. 100 under 150. 150 under 200. 200 under 250. 250 under 300. 300 under 400. 400 under 500. 750 under 1,000. 1,000 under 1,500. 1,500 under 2,000. 2,000 u.der 3,000. 3,000 under 4,000. 4,000 under 5,000.		240 179 460 221 88 887 124 62 6 5	111 73 200 72 36 24 21 11 19 10 2 3	1, 213 811 2, 985 1, 028 513 298 585 369 994 248 486 89 1, 579	419 299 773 258 94 66 74 39 25 12 7 3 3	3. 016 2. 312 6. 406 3. 648 972 1, 314 1, 955 731 776 386 76 184 55 562 957	30 32 67 20 11 4 8 7 4 2	109 101 261 100 44 34 52 187 90 84	1, 118   745   1, 782   603   268   156   160   84   777   33   27   8   6   4   2   1	4, 058 3, 003 10, 251 5, 940 3, 255 2, 549 2, 891 3, 008 3, 817 2, 243 1, 144 1, 907 1, 034 1, 325 717 719	757 527 1, 284 139 199 124 135 66 28 24 0 4 3 3 3	1, 811 1, 262 5, 229 2, 366 1, 600 637 969 724 428 252 431 94 193 87 362 41	25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 40
41 42	TotalIndividual returns with no net income 6.	87 8, 976 3	20, 960 3	<sup>37</sup> 19, 601 4	81, 348 77	37101,929 46	324, 240 9, 475	37 10,875 2	10	37 662, 388 29	570, 478 255	37 412, 939 33	467, 292 442	41 42
43	Total, taxable returns	87 8, 979	20, 964	87 19,605	81, 425	<sup>87</sup> 101, 975	333, 715	37 10, 877	24, 051	37 662, 417	570, 733	37 412,972	467, 735	43
44 45 46 47 48 49 50	Nontaxable individual returns:  With net income: 10  Under 1 (est.)  1 under 2 (est.)  2 under 2.5 (est.)  2.5 under 3 (est.)  3 under 4 (est.)  4 under 5 (est.)  5 under 6.		3, 700 2, 691 1, 036 407 243 12	4	23, 886 16, 929 6, 083 2, 648 967 286 18	7	27, 331 19, 701 8, 154 4, 231 2, 323 114 89	3	5, 264 4, 986 2, 258 1, 095 431 43	97	27, 505 50, 781 51, 701 24, 489 9, 183 486 23	62	40, 766 82, 225 76, 905 37, 490 14, 781 544 70	44 45 46 47 48 49 50
51 52	Total Individual returns with no net income 4.	37 1 6, 099	8, 090 25, 460	37 4 68, 546	50, 817 127, 502	37 7 19,990	61, 942 166, 072	37 3 6, 517	14, 077 33, 077	<sup>37</sup> 97 32, 013	164. 167 5, 092	<sup>37</sup> 62 28,870	252, 780 30, 457	51 52
. 53	Total, nontaxable returns	a7 6, 100	33, 550	a7 68, 550	178, 318	37 19,997	228, 014	<sup>37</sup> 6, 520	47, 154	37 32, 110	169, 259	ar 28, 932	283, 237	53
54	Grand total (43 plus 53, or 55 plus 56).	<sup>87</sup> 15, 079	54, 513	a7 88, 155	259, 744	87 121,972	561,728	<sup>37</sup> 17, 397		37 694, 527		87 441, 904	750, 972	54
55 56	Individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns with net income (41 plus 51). Individual returns with no net income (42 plus 52).	87 8,977 6,102	29, 050 25, 463	27 19, 605 68, 550	132, 165 127, 579	20, 036	386, 181 175, 547	37 10,878 6,519	38, 118 33, 087	37 662, 485 32, 042	734, 645 5, 347	<sup>37</sup> 413, 001 28, 903	720, 073 - 30, 899	55 56

Table 7.—Individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns, with net income, 1940,¹ by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes, also aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income: Total number of returns, number of returns so and amount for each specific source of income and deduction, net income, and deficit—Continued

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-6, 8-9, and 14-17]
[Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

					Dedu	ctions—Co	ntinued						
	Net income <sup>3</sup> classes	Taxes	paid <sup>33</sup>		te.33 34 (in-		s <sup>33</sup> (indi- returns, 040)	Other ded	uctions 38	Total deduc-	Amount distributa- ble to benefi- claries	Net income <sup>3</sup>	
		Number of returns 37	Amount	Number of returns 87	Amount	Number of returns 37	Amount	Number of returns <sup>37</sup>	Amount	tions 35	(fiduciary returns)		
	(1)	(43)	(44)	(45)	(46)	(47)	(48)	(49)	(50)	(51)	(52)	(53)	
1 2 3 3 4 5 6 6 7 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 22 23 24	Taxable individual and fiduciary returns: 3 With net income: Under 1 (est.). 1 under 2 (est.). 2 under 2.5 (est.). 2.5 under 3 (est.). 3 under 4 (est.). 4 under 5 (est.). 5 under 6. 6 under 7. 7 under 8. 8 under 9. 9 under 10. 10 under 11. 11 under 12. 12 under 13. 13 under 14. 14 under 15. 15 under 25. 25 under 30. 30 under 40. 40 under 60. 50 under 60. 60 under 70. 70 under 80.	190, 862 114, 383 74, 551 52, 793 40, 735 30, 843 24, 683 19, 677 16, 324 13, 860 44, 418 23, 065 13, 370 14, 265 7, 300	18, 925 111, 031 69, 430 88, 512 124, 199 67, 272 49, 622 36, 198 26, 902 22, 814 19, 287 11, 336 10, 262 30, 723 26, 680 18, 959 27, 050 17, 453 12, 136 8, 471 6, 413	7, 324 4, 474 2, 987 2, 169 1, 690 1, 302 1, 051 817 742 2, 092 2, 192 602 806 476 285 197 125	258 1, 088 1, 049 1, 128 2, 360 1, 707 1, 478 1, 086 864 705 539 499 416 349 565 290 0 1, 333 891 640 991 453 453 390 221	8, 684 6, 013 4, 240 3, 096 2, 522 2, 028 1, 323 1, 169 9, 474 2, 045 1, 326 1, 478 2, 474 2, 045 2, 522 2, 028 1, 123 1, 123 1, 124 1,	498 2, 573 2, 379 3, 100 5, 514 4, 553 3, 544 2, 978 2, 428 2, 447 2, 236 4, 863 3, 685 3, 682 3, 268 2, 203 2, 336 1, 145 869	51, 743 31, 947 21, 613 15, 625 12, 180 9, 470 7, 827 6, 451 5, 388 4, 642 15, 477 8, 872 5, 290 6, 127 3, 371 1, 934 1, 236 850	13, 804 45, 525 28, 739 35, 471 55, 738 31, 293 23, 599 16, 838 13, 405 9, 540 8, 018 6, 937 5, 781 4, 225 3, 915 14, 920 9, 226 6, 535 9, 417 6, 475 4, 375 3, 339 2, 942	60, 097 326, 846 192, 375 244, 845 374, 661 212, 956 166, 346 122, 540 93, 518 76, 665 56, 244 48, 632 43, 388 38, 372 91, 440 63, 969 89, 533 60, 347 41, 331 29, 330 23, 067	84, 935 28, 952 9, 387 7, 224 11, 431 8, 216 6, 221 5, 058 4, 041 3, 687 2, 526 3, 073 1, 879 2, 171 10, 326 4, 393 3, 267 5, 712 4, 091 4, 091 2, 941 1, 800	495, 297 4, 114, 602 2, 002, 287 2, 511, 444 3, 457, 700 1, 783, 885, 1, 199, 763 502, 685 429, 239 359, 094 313, 178 270, 457 240, 899 219, 025 829, 986 533, 1014 390, 323 523, 106 533, 107 533, 107 534, 657 535, 369 535, 3	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 22 23 24

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 40	80 under 90. 90 under 100. 100 under 150. 150 under 250. 250 under 300. 300 under 400. 400 under 500. 500 under 750. 750 under 1,000. 1,000 under 1,000. 2,000 under 2,000. 2,000 under 3,000. 3,000 under 4,000. 4,000 under 5,000.	1, 170 791 1, 899 647 282 170 170 88 85 34 28 9 6 4	5, 778 4, 108 12, 720 6, 169 3, 046 2, 674 2, 775 1, 837 7, 2639 1, 212 1, 699 800 556 191 66	92 73 202 79 31 27 21 13 15 6 5 4 2	223 99 626 306 73 84 152 58 129 137 2 9 36	157 128 312 126 48 31 32 14 18 8 8 8	641 519 1, 765 1, 527 426 177 764 313 227 79 138 276 32 259 76	635 464 1, 116 427 187 116 124 66 77 27 22 9 4 2 3	2, 002 1, 372 5, 037 2, 573 1, 297 1, 591 1, 457 1, 506 988 369 165 852 270 63	19, 092 13, 765 45, 741 23, 879 11, 314 10, 246 11, 725 8, 794 10, 112 4, 955 4, 508 3, 553 3, 870 3, 689 2, 597 938	1, 701 1, 531 4, 159 2, 401 1, 292 672 434 1, 384 592 83 2, 048	103, 249 78, 131 235, 754 113, 932 64, 923 47, 741 60, 496 41, 260 55, 040 29, 184 34, 757 15, 475 14, 079 13, 443 12, 735 5, 075	25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40
41 42	Total Individual returns with no net income \$	<sup>37</sup> 694, 751 46	901, 032 642	<sup>37</sup> 29, 618 7	21, 910 49	<sup>37</sup> 42, 872 7	72, 887	<sup>37</sup> 213, 373 32	386, 325 272	2, 870, 514 11, 312	236, 653	23, 558, 030 11 2, 551	41 42
43	Total, taxable returns	<sup>37</sup> 694, 797	901, 675	37 29, 625	21, 959	37 42, 879	72, 975	37 213, 405	386, 597	2, 881, 826	236, 653	23, 555, 480	43
44 45 46 47 48 49 50	Nontaxable individual returns:  With net income: <sup>10</sup> Under 1 (est.).  1 under 2 (est.).  2 under 2.5 (est.).  2.5 under 3 (est.).  3 under 4 (est.).  4 under 5 (est.).  5 under 6.		71, 866 118, 373 103, 679 44, 075 16, 144 617 46	4	2, 447 3, 647 1, 398 691 362 59 2	7	6, 417 7, 498 3, 302 1, 338 895 116 5	30	63, 407 90, 126 49, 398 20, 297 7, 157 594 30	272, 588 396, 957 303, 913 136, 760 52, 484 2, 870 286		1, 029, 964 3, 246, 736 5, 604, 241 2, 375, 660 746, 267 26, 915 732	44 45 46 47 48 49 50
51 52	Total Individual returns with no net income 4	37 97 45, 355	354, 801 32, 595	2, 576	8, 606 8, 956	87 7 5, 155	19. 570 45, 498	37 30 24, 840	231, 003 64, 947	1, 165, 858 539, 656		13, 030, 516 11 308, 834	51 52
53	Total, nontaxable returns	37 45, 452	387, 396	37 2, 580	17, 562	<sup>37</sup> 5, 162	65,068	<sup>37</sup> 24,870	295, 955	1,705,514		12 12, 721, 682	53
54	Grand total (43 plus 53, or 55 plus 56)	37 740, 249	1, 289, 071	³; 32, 205	39, 521	37 48, 041	138, 043	<sup>37</sup> 238, 275	682, 552	4, 587, 340	236, 653	12 36, 277, 161	54
55 56	Individual returns and taxable fiduciary returns with net income (41 plus 51)  Individual returns with no net income (42 plus 52)	<sup>17</sup> 694, 848 45, 401	1, 255, 834 33, 237	<sup>37</sup> 29, 622 2, 583	30, 516 9, 005	87 42, 879 5, 162	92, 457 45, 585	<sup>37</sup> 213, 403 24, 872	617, 333 65, 219	4, 036, 372 550, 968	236, 653	36, 588, 546 11 311, 385	55 56

Table 7-A.—Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by ta able and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; also aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income: Total number of returns, number of returns of and amount for each specific source of income and deduction, net income, and deficit

[Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

				Sources	of income		
	,					Inte	rest
Net income classes	Total number of returns	Salaries a comper	nd other sation	Dividends fr and foreign co		Bank deposits gages, corpor	, notes, mort- ation bonds
	,	Number of returns	Amount	Number of returns	Amount	Number of returns 37	Amount 21
(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)	(8)
Taxable individual returns:  With net income:  1	2, 905, 086 914, 050 912, 174 1, 014, 623 393, 844 217, 751 128, 902 83, 395 58, 473 44, 686 33, 701 26, 843 21, 217 17, 548 14, 831 47, 289 24, 258 13, 920 14, 792 7, 464 4, 155 2, 548	436, 968 2, 694, 678 799, 597 785, 529 830, 113 298, 194 152, 476 86, 165 37, 330 28, 555 21, 328 16, 972 11, 023 11, 023 11, 023 11, 024 15, 356 8, 224 9, 331 4, 812 2, 729 1, 660 1, 090	424, 235 3, 774, 657 1, 830, 627 2, 152, 106 2, 789, 790 1, 249, 389 771, 347 501, 151 357, 259 270, 994 229, 026, 184, 137 157, 521 133, 199 116, 120 106, 557 382, 239 238, 649 159, 221 198, 212 198, 212 198, 212 198, 215 198, 212 198, 218 188 188 188 188 188 188 188 188 188	75, 626 462, 802 218, 696 236, 630 337, 165 173, 069 102, 467 66, 958 46, 580 34, 538 21, 792 17, 652 14, 598 12, 266 10, 580 35, 230 19, 103 11, 443 12, 464 6, 477 3, 738 2, 346	26, 588 150, 938 87, 885 100, 122 176, 500 128, 980 104, 751 88, 196 67, 901 66, 857 61, 049 55, 816 52, 090 44, 172 41, 770 174, 854 133, 957 107, 058 162, 530 115, 990 88, 594 67, 733 52, 931		17, 760 112, 507 57, 801 61, 786 91, 873 56, 040 38, 140 29, 078 23, 804 19, 593 17, 563 14, 946 12, 803 11, 637 10, 220 9, 214 36, 008 23, 143 15, 697 21, 006 12, 734 7, 501 5, 916 3, 987

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40	80 under 90 90 under 100 100 under 150 150 under 200 200 under 250 250 under 300 300 under 400 400 under 500 500 under 7,000 1,000 under 1,000 1,500 under 2,000 2,000 under 3,000 3.000 under 4,000 4,000 under 5,000 5,000 and over Total With no net income 5	626 273 167 166 86 879 33 228 8 6 4 4 2 1	757 529 1, 238 415 180 110 100 45 50 23 14 6 5 3 1 1 1	29, 047 21, 266 58, 522 22, 320 11, 448 7, 147 6, 910 3, 518 2, 169 941 632 376 238 178 33 42	1, 081 726 1, 774 598 263 160 156 83 73 33 26 8 6 4 4 2 1	44, 490 35, 813 116, 010 61, 705 34, 522 29, 508 34, 950 26, 900 27, 393 17, 795 11, 387 11, 030 11, 302 9, 267 3, 805	904 608 1, 547 524 221 140 141 77 70 31 23 8 6 4 4 2 1	2, 919 2, 267 6, 714 1, 319 1, 008 826 706 1, 115 633 592 162 154 113 215	25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40
43	Total, taxable returns	7, 437, 307	6, 263, 298	778 16, 484, 572	1, 956, 101	6, 053 2, 712, 059	42	. 404	42
44 45 46 47 48 49 50	Nontaxable individual returns:  With net income 10  Under 1 (est.)  1 under 2 (est.)  2 under 2.5 (est.)  2.5 under 3 (est.)  3 under 4 (est.)  4 under 5 (est.)  5 under 6	1, 382, 673 2, 107, 533 2, 545, 337 887, 094 231, 883 6, 245 138	892, 971 1, 560, 283 2, 328, 731 801, 033 199, 428 4, 355 64	776, 708 2, 425, 904 5, 156, 577 2, 153, 597 638, 942 18, 168 295	1, 950, 101 187, 950 260, 321 271, 949 113, 711 35, 066 2, 825 35	65, 562 76, 612 51, 185 21, 307 8, 800 563 71	37 347, 669	<del></del>	44 45 46 47 48 49 50
51 52	Total With no net income 4	7, 160, 813 112, 651	5, 786, 895 21, 747	11, 170, 191 52, 498	871, 857 28, 930	224, 099 62, 484	<sup>37</sup> 44 26, 176	21 178, 513 20, 751	51 52
53	Total, nontaxable returns.	7, 273, 464	5, 808, 642	11, 222, 688	900, 787	286, 583	<sup>37</sup> 26, 220	21 199, 265	53
54	Orand total (43 plus 53, or 55 plus 56)		12, 071, 940	27, 707, 261	2, 856, 888	2, 998, 642	ar 373, 889	21 931, 958	54
55 56	Individual returns with net income (41 plus 51) Individual returns with no net income (42 plus 52)	14, 598, 074 112, 697	12, 050, 164 21, 776	27, 653, 985 53, 276	2, 827, 912 28, 976	2, 930, 105 68, 537	<sup>37</sup> 347, 671 26, 218	<sup>21</sup> 910, 803 21, 155	55 56

Table 7-A.—Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; also aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income: Total number of returns, number of returns <sup>36</sup> and amount for each specific source of income and deduction, net income, and deficit—Continued

# [Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

				Sou	rces of incom	e—Continue	d			
•	Interest—	Continued								
Net income classes	Partially t Government (subject to s	t obligations	Partnersh	ip profit 13	Income from	fiduciaries <sup>24</sup>	Rents and	l royalties	Business	profit 25 .
	Number of returns 37	Amount 22	Number of returns #	Amount	Number of returns 37	Amount	Number of returns 37	Amount	Number of returns 37	Amount
(1)	(9)	(10)	(11)	(12)	(13)	(14)	(15)	(16)	(17)	(18)
Taxable individual returns:  With net income:  1	6, 225 4, 781 3, 869 3, 371 2, 657 2, 323 2, 045 1, 799 1, 580 3, 407 2, 162 2, 623 1, 506	231 1, 632 1, 1770 1, 347 3, 087 3, 254 2, 519 2, 218 1, 951 1, 677 1, 614 1, 582 3, 931 2, 856 4, 310 2, 556 6, 362 1, 476 973 591	25, 395 17, 370 12, 252 9, 302 7, 361 5, 913 4, 880 3, 917 3, 420 2, 794 9, 554 5, 096 2, 906 3, 107 1, 663 924 924 925 927 329	5, 669 39, 144 34, 179 56, 267 123, 557 92, 518 81, 075 65, 569 57, 438 49, 376 43, 630 39, 829 33, 824 31, 773 27, 943 112, 117 76, 826 52, 667 70, 062 24, 326 29, 981 123, 907 14, 846	12, 647 8, 924 6, 575 5, 239 4, 302 3, 491 3, 009 2, 212 1, 930 6, 704 3, 961 2, 628 3, 082 1, 605 1, 005 1, 005 445	2, 127 14, 772 10, 219 12, 431 127, 930 26, 190 30, 847 26, 349 22, 757 21, 361 19, 537 17, 115 16, 431 14, 363 13, 878 41, 425 33, 961 42, 948 49, 204 49, 204 41, 948 18, 600 14, 723	47, 554 29, 817 19, 598 14, 158 10, 719 8, 620 6, 881 5, 487 4, 622 3, 840 12, 664 6, 683 3, 927 4, 225 2, 170 1, 213 786 479	12, 965 66, 276 51, 159 64, 044 99, 233 60, 740 48, 937 35, 501 17, 748 17, 748 17, 748 17, 748 11, 261 10, 060 8, 501 32, 022 20, 939 13, 359 20, 230 12, 267 6, 788 5, 000 3; 862	48, 437 30, 186 19, 296 13, 365 9, 985 7, 300 5, 571 4, 302 2, 833 8, 737 4, 053 2, 072 2, 050 996 480 206 146	21, 164 118, 112 142, 795 231, 988 437, 499 279, 728 225, 737 165, 596 121, 259 94, 535 78, 327 62, 462 51, 314 43, 037 37, 729 68, 888 42, 216 50, 453 27, 632 17, 969 7, 331

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37	80 under 90 90 under 100 100 under 150 150 under 200 200 under 260 250 under 300 300 under 400 400 under 500 500 under 750 750 under 1,000 1,000 under 1,500 1,600 under 2,000 2,000 under 3,000 3,000 under 4,000	160 61 50 33 18 18 12 4 3	674 386 1, 415 482 388 225 108 27 63 183 7	253 160 330 108 377 23 21 9 12 2 2	13, 673 8, 613 20, 282 9, 750 3, 737 2, 538 3, 615 1, 412 856 64 1, 301	346 239 617 237 97 66 71 47 49 15 18	13, 099 10, 364 33, 203 19, 064 11, 320 8, 525 11, 683 8, 071 15, 544 4, 747 13, 816 3, 438 4, 859 5, 493	344 229 563 218 76 51 59 28 25 13 9 5	2, 818 1, 703 5, 287 2, 064 965 426 1, 131 111 356 931 52 63	112 53 138 40 12 14 10 1 3 4	5, 510 3, 054 10, 363 2, 769 946 962 2, 127 3 20 1, 938	25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37
39 40	4,000 under 5,000_ 5,000 and over					2 1	0, 435 4 15					38 39 40
41 42	Total With no net income 6	37 55, 135 15	22 58, 483 47	<sup>37</sup> 117, 782 7	1, 374, 140 175	37 72, 932 16	725, 975 1, 151	<sup>37</sup> 185, 094 13	695, 789 41	<sup>37</sup> 163, 883 2	2, 513. 650 33	41 42
43	Total, taxable returns	<sup>37</sup> 55, 150	22 58, 530	<sup>37</sup> 117, 789	1, 374, 315	37 72, 948	727, 126	<sup>37</sup> 185, 107	695, 830	<sup>37</sup> 163, 885	2, 513. 683	43
44 45 46 47 48 49 50	Nontaxable individual returns:  With net income 10  Under 1 (est.).  1 under 2 (est.).  2 under 25 (est.).  2.5 under 3 (est.)  3 under 4 (est.).  4 under 5 (est.).  5 under 6		1, 968 3, 600 2, 037 1, 213 2, 161 451 132	14	20, 360 54, 343 54, 743 30, 079 13, 661 1, 296 49	9	8, 318 10, 662 6, 135 3, 457 1, 501 238 83	43	122, 806 179, 172 96, 287 37, 361 13, 974 1, 042 51	55	181, 647 706, 583 417, 624 217, 434 101, 049 6, 927 258	44 45 46 47 48 49 50
51 52	Total With no net income 4	<sup>\$7</sup> 31 2, 213	<sup>22</sup> 11, 561 1, 213	<sup>37</sup> 14 4, 098	174, 530 10, 084	37 g 4, 135	30, 394 12, 413	<sup>37</sup> 43 29, 857	450, 694 35, 772	37 55 10, 199	1, 631, 521 16, 710	51 52
53	Total, nontaxable returns	37 2, 244	22 12, 774	<sup>37</sup> 4, 112	184, 614	3 <sup>7</sup> 4, 144	42, 807	<sup>37</sup> 29, 900	486, 467	<sup>37</sup> 10, 254	1, 648, 231	53
54	Grand total (43 plus 53, or 55 plus 56)	a7 57, 394	22 71, 304	<sup>37</sup> 121, 901	1, 558, 929	37 77, 092	769, 933	37 215, 007	1, 182, 297	<sup>37</sup> 174, 139	4, 161, 913	54
55 56	Individual returns with net income (41 plus 51). Individual returns with no net income (42	<sup>37</sup> 55, 166	27 70, 044	<sup>\$7</sup> 117, 796	1, 548, 670	37 72, 941	756, 369	<sup>37</sup> 185, 137	1, 146, 484	<sup>37</sup> 163, 938	4, 145, 171	55
	plus 52)	2, 228	1, 260	4, 105	10, 259	4, 151	13, 564	29, 870	35, 813	. 10, 201	16, 742	56

Table 7-A.—Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; also aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income: Total number of returns, number of returns is and amount for each specific source of income and deduction, net income, and deficit—Continued

# [Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

			Cha		Ci		Capital gain 26	Capital gain 26	Capital gain 28	Net long-term capi-	Capital gain 28  Net gain from sales of property other than capital as-	Capital gain 28  Net gain from sales of property other than capital as-	Capital gain 28  Net gain from sales of property other than capital as-
	Net income classes		term cap- nincluded lincome	_	Net short- ital los ceding	rm <sup>2</sup> Net short-term capital loss of preceding taxable year deducted <sup>28</sup>	Net short-term capital loss of preceding taxable	Net short-term capital loss of preceding taxable year deducted 12 year lotterm capital win 12 year deducted 12 year deducted 12 year deducted 12 year	Net short-term capital loss of preceding taxable vear deducted 12 vear ded	Net short-term capital loss of preceding taxable var deducted 12 capital Number Number	Net short-term capital loss of preceding taxable capital vear deducted 2st vear dedu	Net short-term capital loss of preceding taxable capital Number Number Number Number Number	Net short-term capital loss of preceding taxable capital vear deducted 2s capital Number Number Number
		Number of returns 37	Amount	ŀ	Number of returns 37	Number of Amount	Number of returns 37 Amount	Number of returns 37 Amount	Number of returns 37 Amount 22) Amount	Number of returns 37 Amount returns 37 Amount returns 37	Number of returns 37 Amount Amount of returns 37 Amount of returns 37 Amount	Number of returns 37 Amount 22)  Amount of returns 37 Amount of returns 38 Amount of returns	Number of returns 37 Amount Preturns 37 Amount returns 37 Amount Preturns 38 Amount Preturns 38 Present
_	(1)	(19)	(20)	_	(21)	(21) (22)	(21) (22) (23)	(21) (22) (23) (24)	(21) (22) (23) (24) (25)	(21) (22) (23) (24) (25) (26)	(21) (22) (23) (24) (25) (26) (27)	(21) (22) (23) (24) (25) (26) (27) (28)	(21) (22) (23) (24) (25) (26) (27) (28) (29)
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	Taxable individual returns:  With net income:  Under 1 (est.).  1 under 2 (est.).  2 under 2.5 (est.).  2.5 under 3 (est.).  4 under 5 (est.).  5 under 6 (est.).  7 under 8  8 under 7  7 under 8  8 under 9  9 under 10  10 under 11  11 under 12  12 under 13  13 under 14  14 under 15  15 under 20  20 under 25	10, 570 7, 513 5, 819 4, 543 3, 827 702 2, 166 1, 958 1, 609 6, 063	584 3,341 2,735 3,331 7,791 6,752 6,534 5,046 4,361 3,645 3,645 3,454 2,759 2,191 2,241 1,975 8,029 5,213		414 321 252 209 160 152 145 119 125 102 385	121 111 157 290 414 265 321 203 252 165 209 144 160 96 152 17 145 119 81 125 119 102 93 385 416	121   3, 462   111   2, 846   157   3, 488   290   8, 081   199   6, 950   321   203   5, 249   252   165   4, 527   209   144   3, 789   160   96   3, 550   152   127   3, 201   145   116   2, 874   119   81   2, 272   125   119   2, 360   102   93   2, 068   3855   416   8, 445	121   3, 462      111   2, 846      157   3, 488      290   8, 081      199   6, 950      414   265   6, 800   12, 412      321   203   5, 249   8, 936      252   165   4, 527   6, 736      260   144   3, 789   5, 149      160   96   3, 550   4, 442      152   127   3, 201   3, 485      145   116   2, 874   2, 982      119   81   2, 272   2, 527      125   119   2, 360   2, 208      102   93   2, 068   1, 974      385   416   8, 445   6, 737	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40	25 under 30. 30 under 40. 40 under 50. 50 under 60. 60 under 70. 70 under 80. 80 under 90. 90 under 100. 100 under 150. 250 under 250. 250 under 300. 300 under 400. 400 under 500. 500 under 50. 750 under 1,500. 1,500 under 2,000. 2,000 under 3,000. 3,000 under 3,000.	2, 201 2, 453 1, 291 501 501 234 232 133 384 125 64 31 40 24 18 14 6	3, 756 4, 544 2, 620 2, 056 1, 153 880 633 492 1, 770 1, 787 596 187 860 31 110 141 24	135 208 122 78 64 366 177 13 555 32 11 16 6 6 4 5	218 408 174 129 141 30 30 14 33 76 9 13 26 (19)	3, 974 4, 952 2, 794 2, 195 1, 294 910 647 525 1, 843 863 605 200 886 31 26 145 29 8	2, 546   2, 782   1, 578   895   643   407   328   222   555   237   111   11   31   40   13   317   4   4   3   3   2   1	7, 385 9, 201 7, 969 6, 395 5, 451 3, 740 4, 227 2, 696 12, 413 7, 843 5, 463 4, 369 5, 887 8, 770 4, 810 7, 792 1, 591 1, 494	265   270   139   71   45   28   8   42   9   7   4   4   4   1   1   1   1   1   1   1	518   531   224   239   61   43   3   173   80   0   48   245   1   4   1   (19)   (19)	2, 227 2, 594 1, 368 356 356 356 356 462 168 75 462 168 77 77 66 54 49 25 27 77	3, 453   5, 297   3, 450   1, 658   1, 240   1, 658   1, 240   1, 781   781   781   781   2, 50   1, 50   1, 741   1, 74   1,	442, 147 595, 582 390, 713 267, 183 193, 137 143, 064 118, 075 87, 212 268, 013 130, 336 71, 537 55, 726 68, 305 47, 032 56, 546 32, 310 37, 945 17, 066 17, 949 17, 132 9, 550 6, 012	19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40
41 42	Total	<sup>87</sup> 62, 131 10	93, 614 14	<sup>37</sup> 3, 515 2	4, 424 5	98, 038 19	<sup>37</sup> 72, 023	211, 135	<sup>37</sup> 11, 531 1	30, 031 ( <sup>19</sup> )	<sup>37</sup> 78, 907 13	456, 365 67	26. 031. 272 8, 761	41 42
43	Total, taxable returns	<sup>37</sup> 62, 141	93. 628	<sup>37</sup> 3, 517	4, 429	93, 057	<sup>37</sup> 72, 023	211, 135	<sup>87</sup> 11, 532	30, 031	37 78, 920	456, 432	26, 090, 033	43
44 45 46 47 48 49 50	Nontaxable individual returns:  With net income: 10  Under 1 (est.)		2, 638 3, 392 2, 723 1, 802 944 73 6		108 196 75 23 39	2. 747 3. 588 2, 797 1, 825 984 73 6	8	2, 910 4, 700 2, 726 1, 519 555 70 3	2	1, 685 3, 936 2, 067 1, 067 801 87	7	62, 547 110, 357 75, 895 30, 120 11, 676 542 24	1, 302, 552 3, 643, 693 5, 908, 154 2, 512, 419 793, 751 29, 785 1, 018	41 45 46 47 48 49 50
51 52	Total	37 5 3, 821	11, 579 4, 526	136	440 334	12.019 4,860	37 S 2, 970	12, 484 4, 642	37 2 1, 506	9, 644 2, 373	37 7 9, 165	291, 161 7, 356	14, 196, 373 230, 822	51 52
53	Total, nontaxable returns	37 3, 826	16, 105	ar 136	775	16,879	37 2, 978	17, 127	37 1, 503	12,018	37 9, 172	293, 517	14, 427, 195	53
54	Grand total (43 plus 53, or 55 plus 56).	37 65, 967	109, 732	37 3, 653	5, 204	114, 936	37 75, 001	228, 262	<sup>37</sup> 13, 040	42.048	37 88, 092	754, 949	40, 517, 228	54
55 56	Individual returns with net income (41 plus 51). Individual returns with no net income (42 plus 52).	<sup>37</sup> 62, 136 3, 831	105,193 4, 540	<sup>87</sup> 3, 515 138	4, 864 339	110, 057 4, 879	87 72, 031 2, 970	223, 619 4, 642	<sup>87</sup> 11, 533 1, 507	39, 675 2, 373	87 78, 914 9, 178	747, 526 7, 423	40, 277, 645 239, 583	55 56

Table 7-A.—Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; also aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income: Total number of returns, number of returns <sup>36</sup> and amount for each specific source of income and deduction, net income, and deficit—Continued

[Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

						Dedu	ctions						
Net income classes	Partnersh	nip loss 23	Busines	ss loss 23	Net lon capital	g-term oss <sup>26</sup> 30	Net loss f of prope than co sets 31	rom sales erty other apital as-	Contrib	itions 32	Interest	paid 33	e
(1)	Number of returns 37 (31)	Amount	Number of returns 27	Amount	Number of returns 37 (35)	Amount	Number of returns 37 (37)	Amount (38)	Number of returns 37 (39)	Amount	Number of returns 37 (41)	Amount (42)	
Taxable individual returns:  With net income:  1	1, 536 1, 082 792 593 547 403 405 322 247 222 782 522 310 361 203 142 74 62	244 861 795 862 1, 437 1, 437 789 600 394 493 470 394 312 1, 183 1, 033 600 926 531 1, 554 332 250 238	3. 759 2. 485 1, 746 1, 280 1, 073 877 756 655 531 491 1, 709 992 992 701 508 276 205 123 110	974 4, 067 3, 097 4, 262 7, 716 5, 200 4, 379 3, 516 2, 906 2, 162 1, 667 1, 666 1, 640 1, 294 1, 190 5, 214 3, 506 2, 758 2, 768 1, 769 1, 769 1, 242 242 242 1, 242 242 1, 242 242 1, 242 242 242 1, 242 242 242 243 244 244 245 246 247 247 248 248 248 248 248 248 248 248 248 248	15, 920 11, 675 8, 984 7, 267 6, 018 5, 034 4, 342 2, 806 10, 020 5, 985 3, 753 4, 430 2, 500 2, 500 1, 448 907 567 414	4, 244 14, 294 9, 128 11, 417 22, 766 10, 242 18, 129 13, 204 11, 60 10, 61 10,	2, 140 1, 495 983 820 626 521 437 353 257 934 537 325 381 207 112 86 43 30	384 1, 403 982 1, 335 2, 115 1, 598 2, 115 1, 568 6643 583 583 548 452 282 1, 569 949 949 628 283 283 283 284 284 285 285 287 287 287 287 287 287 287 287 287 287	183, 438 109, 476 71, 365 50, 304 38, 638 29, 152 23, 405 15, 473 13, 144 41, 982 21, 754 12, 601 13, 446 6, 921 3, 833 2, 395 1, 514 1, 118	13, 813 109, 865 44, 262 52, 472 77, 127 36, 802 25, 923 13, 621 11, 154 9, 505 7, 969 6, 939 6, 939 6, 939 13, 271 9, 773 14, 092 10, 016 7, 766 10, 777 4, 368 4, 058	113.732 67, 983 43, 825 31, 028 23, 787 17, 910 14, 402 11, 401 9, 568 7, 991 25, 668 13, 232 7, 753 8, 297 4, 382 2, 528 1, 544 1, 007	5, 091 34, 206 31, 909 47, 778 77, 738 41, 516 34, 859 17, 394 14, 292 11, 921 9, 624 9, 624 19, 309 12, 204 7, 947 10, 130 6, 129 10, 130 6, 129 11, 204 12, 204 12, 204 12, 204 12, 204 13, 204 14, 224 14, 224 14, 224 17, 178 18, 171 18, 18, 18, 18, 18, 18, 18, 18, 18, 18,	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 122 13 14 15 15 17 18 19 20 21 22 3 24 25

26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40	90 under 100 100 under 150 150 under 200 200 under 250 250 under 300 300 under 400 400 under 500 500 under 750 750 under 1,000 1,000 under 1,500 1,500 under 2,000 2,000 under 3,000 3,000 under 4,000 4,000 under 5,000 5,000 and over	93 32 22 10 11 7 3 2 1	178 460 221 88 887 121, 62 6 5	73 193 72 36 24 21 10 10 10 2 3	811 2, 976 1, 028 513 293 535 358 994 218 436 89 1, 579	291 7753 251 91 64 71 39 25 12 7 3 3	2, 293 6, 215 3, 594 972 1, 314 1, 931 776 333 76 184 55 562	30 61 20 10 4 7 7 4 2	93 260 100 44 34 52 187 90 81	745 1, 732 693 233 155 160 84 777 33 227 8 6 4 2	3,003 10,251 5,940 3,255 2,549 2,891 3,003 3,817 2,243 1,144 1,907 1,034 1,325 717 719	503 1, 239 424 191 122 123 63 63 63 26 23 8 4 3 2	1, 165 4, 854 2, 213 1, 232 959 592 378 214 423 93 193 87 362 41	26 27 23 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 39 40
41 42	TotalWith no net income 6	<sup>37</sup> 8, 879	20, 711	<sup>37</sup> 19, 479 4	80, 637 77	<sup>37</sup> 103, 524 46	317, 373 9, 475	<sup>37</sup> 10, 733 2	23, 636 10	<sup>37</sup> 662, 333 29	570, 478 255	<sup>37</sup> 409, 624 33	457, 907 442	41 42
43	Total, taxable returns	37 8, 892	20, 714	37 19, 433	80, 715	<sup>37</sup> 100, 570	323, 818	<sup>37</sup> 10, 735	23, 643	<sup>37</sup> 662, 417	570, 733	<sup>37</sup> 409, 657	453, 349	43
44 45 46 47 48 49 50	Nontaxable individual returns:  With net income: "  Under 1 (est.)		3, 700 2, 691 1, 036 407 243 12 1	4	23, 856 16, 929 6, 033 2, 643 967 286 18	7	27, 331 19, 701 8, 154 4, 231 2, 323 114 89	3	5, 261 4, 936 2, 253 1, 035 431 43	97	27, 505 50, 781 51, 701 24, 489 9, 183 436 23	62	40, 766 82, 225 76, 935 37, 493 14, 781 544 70	44 45 46 47 48 49 50
51 52	Total	37 1 6,099	8, 090 25, 460	37 4 68, 546	50, 817 127, 502	37 7 19,990	61, 942 163, 072	37 3 6, 517	14, 077 33, 077	37 97 32, 013	164, 167 5, 092	<sup>37</sup> 62 28, 870	252, 780 30, 457	51 52
53	Total, nontaxable returns	<sup>87</sup> 6, 100	33, 550	<sup>17</sup> 68, 550	178, 318	37 19, 997	2?8, 014	<sup>37</sup> 6. 523	47, 154	a7 32, 110	169, 259	37 28, 932	233, 237	53
54	Grand total (43 plus 53, or 55 plus 56).	<sup>37</sup> 14, 982	54, 264	37 88, 033	259, 033	37 120, 567	554, 861	37 17, 255	70, 800	37 691, 527	739, 992	37 433, 589	741. 586	54
55	Individual returns with net income (41 plus 51).	37 8, 880	28, 801	37 19, 483	131, 454	<sup>37</sup> 100, 531	379, 314	<sup>37</sup> 10, 736	37, 713	<sup>37</sup> 662, 4S5	734, 645	<sup>37</sup> 409, 686	710, 687	55
56	Individual returns with no net income (42 plus 52).	6, 102	25, 463	63, 550	127, 579	20, 036	175, 547	6, 519	33, 037	32, 042	5, 347	23, 903	30, 899	56

Table 7-A.—Individual returns with net income, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; also aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income: Total number of returns, number of returns <sup>36</sup> and amount for each specific source of income and deduction, net income, and deficit—Continued

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-6, 8-9, and 14-17]

[Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

				Dedu	ctions-Cont	inued				
Net income classes	Taxes	paid 33	Losses from etc. <sup>33 31</sup> (F		Bad debts		Other ded	luctions 33	Total de-	Net income
	Number of returns 37	Amount	Number of returns 37	Amount	Number of returns 37	Amount	Number of returns 37	Amount	ductions 35	
(1)	(43)	(44)	(45)	(46)	(47)	(48)	(49)	(50)	(51)	(52)
Taxable individual returns:  With net income:  1	189, 643 113, 496 73, 877 52, 223 40, 342 30, 480 24, 389 19, 373 16, 119 13, 649 43, 765 22, 675 13, 087 13, 087 14, 040 2, 445 1, 576 1, 141 7, 762	14, 911 108. 048 68. 462 85, 724 122, 994 66, 313 48. 816 35, 537 26, 435 22, 330 18, 971 12, 336 11, 130 10, 078 38, 870 26, 451 16, 932 11, 732 11,	7, 324 4, 474 2, 987 2, 169 1, 690 1, 302 2, 092 1, 192 692 2, 099 1, 192 692 806 476 285 197 1125 92 73	258 1, 083 1, 040 1, 123 2, 350 1, 707 1, 478 1, 086 705 539 419 416 349 565 5290 1, 333 891 640 994 453 453 453 453 390 221 223 99	8, 684 6, 013 4, 240 3, 095 2, 522 2, 023 1, 623 1, 1623 1, 169 954 3, 474 2, 045 1, 328 1, 328 1, 478 839 564 3, 478 2, 045 1, 328 1,	498 2, 573 2, 379 3, 100 6, 699 5, 514 4, 558 3, 544 4, 558 2, 243 2, 243 1, 233 1, 203 4, 833 1, 203 2, 3, 685 2, 682 2, 1, 145 869 641 5, 765	50, 613 31, 117 21, 002 15, 118 6, 148 7, 548 6, 148 5, 187 4, 431 14, 814 14, 814 14, 814 15, 019 18, 179 18, 179 18, 170 18,	6, 650 41, 572 27, 552 31, 434 54, 052 30, 077 22, 477 15, 924 12, 671 8, 942 7, 580 6, 406 6, 255 4, 830 3, 944 3, 641 13, 267 9, 231 5, 930 8, 462 5, 961 3, 33 2, 839 2, 011 1, 841 1, 181 1, 181	47, 068 317, 978 189, 615 212, 561 370, 810 209, 944 163, 689 120, 113 91, 862 75, 071 47, 608 42, 626 37, 672 89, 633 62, 410 87, 361 58, 818 40, 275 22, 425 21, 735 18, 663 13, 255 44, 025	482, 599 4, 094, 796 2, 033, 838 2, 504, 204 3, 474, 787 1, 742, 796 1, 189, 297 832, 567 622, 841 423, 513 1 353, 174 1 308, 273 1 264, 818 1 233, 548 1 231, 749 1 813, 235 1 540, 085 1 379, 737 1 505, 22 233, 838 2 264, 712 2 299, 408 2 73, 958 2 2233, 988 2 2233, 988 2

28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40	150 under 200 290 under 250 250 under 300 300 under 400 400 under 500 500 under 759 750 under 1,000 1,000 under 1,500 1,500 under 2,000 2,000 under 3,000 3,000 under 4,000 4,000 under 5,000 5,000 and over	270 164 161 84 788 32 28 8	2, 978 2, 589 2, 632 1, 748 2, 524	79 31 27 21 13 15 6 5 4 2 2	306 73 84 152 58 128 129 137 2 9 36	126 48 31 32 14 18 8 8 · 3 2 2 2	1, 527 426 177 764 313 227 79 138 270 32 259 76	401 170 110 116 61 65 25 22 8 4 2	2, 212 1, 198 1, 534 1, 351 1, 082 911 293 396 289 165 852 127	23, 035 10, 699 10, 101 11, 442 8, 138 9, 850 4, 866 4, 500 3, 453 3, 870 3, 689 1, 489 938		29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38
41 42	TotalWith no net income 6	<del></del>	830, 810 642	37 29, 618 7	21, 910 49	<sup>37</sup> 42, 872 7	72, 887 87	<sup>37</sup> 206, 294 32	355, 720 272	2, 802, 069 11, 312	23, 279, 203 11 2, 551	41
43	Total, taxable returns	<sup>87</sup> 687, 431	881, 452	<sup>37</sup> 29, 625	21,959	37 42, 879	72, 975	37-206, 326	355, 992	2, 813, 381	12 23, 276, 652	43
44 45 46 47 48 49 50	Nontaxable individual returns:  With net income: 10  Under 1 (est.)		71, 866 118, 373 103, 679 44, 075 16, 144 617 46	4	2, 447 3, 647 1, 398 691 362 59	7	6, 417 7, 493 3, 302 1, 333 895 116	30	63, 407 90, 126 49, 398 20, 297 7, 157 594	272, 588 396, 957 303, 913 136, 760 52, 484 2, 870	1, 029, 964 3, 246, 736 5, 604, 241 2, 375, 660 746, 267 26, 915	44 45 46 47 48
51 52	Total With no net income 4	<sup>37</sup> 97 45, 355	354, 801 32, 595	37 4 2, 576	8, 606 8, 956	37 7 5, 155	19, 570 45, 498	a7 3() 24, §40	231, 008 64, 917	1, 165, 858 539, 656	13, 030, 516 11 308, 834	51 52
53	Total, nontaxable returns	<sup>37</sup> 45, 452	387, 396	<sup>37</sup> 2, 580	17, 562	<sup>37</sup> 5, 162	65, 068	37 24. 870°	295, 955	1. 705, 514	12 12, 721, 682	53
54	Grand total (43 plus 53, or 55 plus 56).	a7 732, 883	1, 268, 848	37 32, 205	39, 521	37 48, 041	138, 043	<sup>37</sup> 231, 196	651, 947	4, 518, 894	12 35, 993, 334	54
55	Individual returns with net income (41 plus 51).	87 687, 482	1, 235, 611	37 29, 622	30, 516	37 42. 879	92, 457	<sup>87</sup> 206, 324	586, 728	3, 967. 926	36, 309, 719	55
56	Individual returns with no net income (42 plus 52).	45, 401	33, 237	2, 583	9,005	5, 162	45, 585	24, 872	65, 219	550, 968	11 311, 385	56
				<u>_</u>		_ ′ '	,		. 1	1		

Table 7-B. (Table 11, Statistics of Income for 1939, Part 1.)—Taxable fiduciary number of returns 30 and amount for each specific source of income and deduction, fiduciary

[For description of items and classifications, and

Net income classes and money

	ı	I			
			Sources	of income	
Net income <sup>3</sup> classes	Total num- ber of returns		from do- and foreign ons <sup>20</sup>	Bank depo	sits, notes, s, corpora-
		Number of returns	Amount	Number of returns 37	Amount 21
(1)	(2)	(3)	. (4)	(5)	(6)
Taxable fiduciary returns with net income: 3	29, 665 13, 976 2, 653 3, 726 2, 504 1, 925 1, 400 1, 029 855 605 564 427 452 322 292 969 578 389 435 264 156 91 91 92 94 95 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96	20, 018 9, 984 2, 825 2, 048 2, 925 2, 066 1, 554 1, 164 876 6 536 481 377 400 269 266 868 8502 357 363 235 144 87 89 51 41 44 87 38 18 8 9 9 5 14 42 1	56, 316 27, 658 10, 553 8, 841 14, 680 12, 404 10, 290 8, 927 7, 553 6, 864 5, 534 4, 753 4, 085 12, 603 9, 725 15, 664 11, 050 8, 955 5, 927 4, 586 3, 648 4, 403 12, 086 3, 648 4, 403 12, 086 7, 576 4, 333 1, 775 2, 933 3, 681 3, 687	1, 573 1, 133 665 457 378 288 342 226 65 452 228 716 452 228 303 197 119 58 33 27 39 60 33 15 5 6 4 4 4 2 1 1	32, 734 11, 711 3, 726 2, 710 4, 322 3, 178 2, 911 2, 042 1, 398 1, 405 1, 083 821 823 901 624 721 2, 632 1, 230 1, 497 1, 388 425 373 150 385 240 5655 232 225 7 42 124 127 11 93 53
5,000 and over					
Total	67, 388	49, 432	338, 335	<sup>37</sup> 8, 507	21 81, 689

For footnotes, see pp. 190-191.

returns with net income, 15 1940, by net income 3 classes: Total number of returns, balance income, 39 amount distributable to beneficiaries, and net income taxable to the

method of tabulating and see pp. 4-6, 8-9, and 14-17]

## figures in thousands of dollars

				Sources o	of income—	Continued			
interest—	Continued								
Govern ligation	tax-empt. ment ob- is (subject tax only)	Partnersh	ip profit <sup>23</sup>		e from eries 24	Rents and	l royalties	Business	s profit 34
Number of returns <sup>37</sup>	Amount 22	Number of returns 37	Amount	Number of returns 37	Amount	Number of returns 37	Amount	Number of returns 37	Amoun
(7)	(8)	(9)	(10)	(11)	(12)	(13)	(14)	(15)	(16)
414 317 234 212 102 105 105 102 71 87 254 129 96 131 158 48 48 166 14 9 9 12 12 7 7	3, 270 1, 228 484 321 431 324 312 349 277 192 204 123 115 489 216 259 280 122 123 349 216 259 280 122 125 126 127 127 128 129 129 129 129 129 129 129 129 129 129	93 89 57 26 26 25 12 27 24 14 37 43 16 15 13 10 3 2 6 4	249 536 217 178 492 252 430 414 405 241 203 155 62 250 265 156 1564 729 395 492 504 341 60 0 156 745 285 309 24	116 90 77 80 34 35 33 23 23 23 23 23 11 7, 5	1, 442 918 362 276 687 376 349 374 438 172 208 220 217 772 415 412 837 1,012 837 1,012 837 1,012 837 1,012 837 1,012 837 1,012 837 1,012 837 837 837 837 837 837 837 837 837 837	514 363 2599 218 115 122 122 117 90 60 279 135 84 98 72 24 111 12 9 9 25 9 3	9, 485 8, 108 2, 455 2, 014 3, 155 2, 412 1, 156 1, 190 1, 114 832 9773 786 834 550 306 2, 376 1, 124 719 755 1, 171 597 1, 107 20 20 20 30 30 40 40 40 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50	92 93 64 41 25 22 22 21 16 13 38 29 16 13 15 5 8 3 3	73 1, 55 44 44 58 82 79 44 44 33 20 20 22 22 10 13 17 61 61 58 22 44 49 30 5 5 20 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
1 2	(19)	1	(19)	1	196	1 2	2 23		
4	17								
1	(19)								
37 2, 619	<sup>22</sup> 10, 415	37 549	9, 071	37 792	11, 668	87 2, 785	47, 650	a7 533	11, 39

498968-43-11

Table 7-B. (Table 11, Statistics of Income for 1939, Part 1.)—Taxable fiduciary number of returns 30 and amount for each specific source of income and deduction, fiduciary—Continued

[For description of items and classifications, and method

[Net income classes and money

		Sources	of income—(	Continued	
			Capital gain	26	
M			Short-term	27	
Net income <sup>3</sup> classes	gain inclu	erm capital ided in total and net in-	loss of pr	term capital eceding tax- deducted 28	Current year net short-term
	Number of returns 37	Amount	Number of returns 27	Amount	capital gain 25 (col. 18+20)
(1)	(17)	(18)	(19)	(20)	(21)
1,500 under 2,000. 2,000 under 3,000. 3,000 under 4,000. 4,000 under 5,000. 5,000 and over	367 286 225 191 130 112 83 110 71 69 215 111 84 123 55 36 25 15 10 5 11 10 5 11 10 10 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	1, 259 1, 347 502 482 903 690 615 504 462 511 262 287 254 344 261 291 1, 058 461 370 518 167 191 116 380 370 1185 513	166 3 3 9 9 2 2 2 2 3 3 3 2 2 9 8 8 3 4 2 2 1 1 1 1	19 23 11 12 17 5 13 (19) 11 1 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 2 1	1, 278 1, 369 1, 369 494 920 695 629 505 473 517 262 287 255 346 262 291 2, 401 678 477 1, 062 462 371 519 167 191 116 380 370 185 513
Total	27 2, 372	17, 179	a7 76	172	17, 351

For footnotes, see pp. 190-191.

returns with net income, 15 1940, by net, income 3 classes: Total number of returns, balance income, 37 amount distributable to beneficiaries, and net income taxable to the

of tabulating data, see pp. 4-6, 8-9, and 14-17]

figures in thousands of dollars]

	8	Sources of	income—	Continue	i	· <del>········</del>		Dedu	ctions	
Capital Con	gain 26— tinued									
Net lor capital	ng-term I gain <sup>30</sup>	sales erty of	in from of prop- ther than I assets 31	Other	income	Total income	Partners	hip loss <sup>23</sup>	Busines	ss loss 25
Number of re- turns 37	Amount	Number of re- turns 37	Amount	Number of re- turns 37	Amount		Number of re- turns 37	Amount	Number of re- turns 37	Amount
(22)	(23)	(24)	(25)	(26) (27)		(28)	(29) (30)		(31)	(32)
530 388 287 251 180 151 121 131 94 98 339 179 144 132 20 17 17 10 5 6 6 5 13 1 1	4, 021 3, 137 1, 395 1, 086 2, 024 1, 310 1, 377 1, 162 967 748 700 783 401 498 2, 382 1, 287 1, 420 1, 420 1, 420 1, 420 1, 310 811 955 1, 185 1, 363 1, 36	56 48 17 22 18 14 12 2 8 16 6 7 27 9 10 5 5 2 1 1 2 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	200 281 82 77 136 109 147 94 40 58 39 20 51 15 22 (19) (19) (19) 68 2 2 2 2 17 68 2 2 2 17 68 2 2 17 17 18 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19	242 177 139 128 72 66 52 32 32 39 84 64 63 48 26 66 8 8 11 6 6 8 8 12 7 5 5 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	947 1, 173 287 303 489 327 301 363 363 233 413 108 99 105 41 98 209 239 217 190 258 200 43 35 60 177 34 171 56 66 36 37 21	110, 662 57, 625 20, 577 16, 748 28, 195 22, 318 19, 344 16, 437 13, 351 12, 582 6, 970 30, 777 19, 070 15, 411 22, 774 17, 382 12, 124 9, 123 7, 1014 6, 215 17, 890 1, 103 1, 104 1,	19 10 0 5 4 1 1 7 7 2 13 3 4 4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	288 34 7 4 19 122 133 7 7 111 1 4 (19) 25 4 (19) 37 6 (19)	200 200 201 11 12 6 5 4 4 4 2 2 3 10 5 5 3 3 4 4 3 3 11 22 2 11 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	344 722 27 225 533 166 429 90 112 11 13 22 55 52 94 4 14 14 9

Table 7-B. (Table 11, Statistics of Income for 1939, Part 1.)—Taxable fiduciary number of returns 3 and amount for each specific source of income and deduction, fiduciary—Continued

[For description of items and classifications, and method

[Net income classes and money

		Deductions-	-Continued	
Net income <sup>3</sup> classes	Net long-te	rm capital	Net loss fro property capital as	other than
	Number of returns 37	Amount	Number of returns 37	Amount
(1)	(33)	(34)	(35)	(36)
Paxable fiduciary returns with net income: 3 Under 1 1 under 2 2 under 2.5 2.5 under 3 3 under 4 4 under 5 5 under 6 6 under 7 7 under 8 8 under 9 9 under 10 10 under 11 11 under 12 12 under 13 13 under 14 14 under 15 15 under 6 20 under 25 25 under 6 90 under 10 10 under 20 20 under 25 20 under 30 30 under 40 40 under 50 50 under 10 10 under 15 10 under 10 10 under 15 10 under 20 20 under 25 20 under 30 30 under 40 40 under 50 50 under 10 10 under 50 50 under 75 70 under 250 250 under 30 300 under 400 400 under 50 500 under 750 750 under 1,000 1,000 under 1,000 1,000 under 1,000 1,000 under 1,000 1,000 under 2,000 2,000 under 2,000 2,000 under 2,000 2,000 under 3,000 3,000 under 4,000 2,000 under 3,000 3,000 under 3,000 3,000 under 3,000 3,000 under 3,000 3,000 under 3,000	2 3	695 593 220 197 359 262 279 265 206 240 169 159 66 117 396 209 204 373 156 106 88 82 43 19 191 191 191 191 191 191 191	27 13 8 8 7 4 6 3 5 5 11 5 9 13 6 6 2 2 1	66 66 17 15 24 29 23 24 67 5 5 10 14 18 12 23 21 21 21 21 21 22 21 21 21 21 21 21 21
4,000 under 5,000 5,000 and over		907		
Total	37 1, 405	6, 867	37 142	40

For footnotes, see pp. 190-191.

returns with net income, 15 1940, by net income 3 classes: Total number of returnse balance income, 30 amount distributable to beneficiaries, and net income taxable to th,

STATISTICS OF INCOME FOR 1940-PART 1

of tabulating data, see pp. 4-6, 8-9, and 14-17]

figures in thousands of dollars]

		Deduc	tions—Con	tinued					
Interes	paid <sup>23</sup>	Taxes	paid <sup>23</sup>	Other dec	luctions 40	Total deduc-	Balance income 39	Amount distribut- able to benefici-	Net in- come tax- able to fiduciary
Number of returns 37	Amount	Number of returns 37	Amount	Number of returns 37	Amount	tions 40		aries	nauctary
(37)	(38)	(39)	(40)	(41)	(42)	(43)	(44)	(45)	(46)
416 349 263 246 172 148 98 99 340 196 157 175 129 66 33 21 21 24 45 15 8 2 7 3 3 2 1 15	1, 038 1, 169 334 270 503 538 873 415 221 258 183 124 108 8 84 695 206 695 305 206 223 321 164 122 206 93 97 375 153 347 347 347 347 347 347 347 347 347 34	1, 219 887 674 570 393 363 294 304 205 521 652 390 283 311 91 121 56 37 29 29 29 7 7 7 7 1	4, 014 2, 982 963 789 1, 205 960 806 661 466 4316 345 293 251 206 184 872 468 428 599 471 367 185 109 125 188 603 276 685 143 889 136 577	1, 130 830 611 509 375 350 201 208 663 385 271, 319 109 66 39 39 36 26 17, 6 8 5 12 2	7, 154 3, 952 1, 187 1, 987 1, 1985 1, 195 1, 192 964 437 531 521 341 274 1, 653 665 575 955 513 437 503 931 160 191 538 361 199 57 106 424 77 24 84	13, 029 8, 898 2, 760 2, 284 3, 850 3, 013 2, 657 1, 135 1, 173 1, 023 1, 135 1, 173 1, 023 1, 755 1, 559 1, 155 1, 559 1, 155 1, 529 1, 102 1, 205 1, 20	97, 632 48, 757 17, 817 14, 464 24, 345 19, 906 16, 686 14, 910 11, 696 10, 933 7, 809 6, 128 6, 302 27, 077 15, 852 21, 395 22, 17, 32 11, 395 22, 5, 563 5, 563 5, 563 5, 563 5, 563 1, 711 1, 395 8, 936 1, 711 1, 395 1, 711 1, 395 3, 910	84. 035 28. 925 9. 387 7, 224 11, 431 8, 216 6, 221 5, 608 4, 041 3, 687 2, 271 11, 786 2, 071 11, 786 2, 071 12, 4, 193 3, 207 5, 712 4, 193 1, 870 2, 491 1, 501 1, 602 1, 602 1, 701 1, 702 1, 702 1, 703 1, 703	12, 697 19, 862 18, 429 12, 913 11, 089 10, 466 8, 952 5, 76, 655 7, 253 5, 920 4, 904 4, 231 16, 751 11, 762 8, 455 11, 762 8, 452 11, 631 4, 085 2, 116 3, 633 4, 344 1, 711 1, 312 1, 862
87 3, 315	9, 386	37 7, 366	20, 223	a <sup>7</sup> 7, 079	30, 605	68, 446	515, 480	236, 653	278, 82 <b>7</b>

Table 8. (Tables 9 and 9-A, Statistics of Income for 1939, Part 1.) — Individual returns with net income, 1940, by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; also aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income and for taxable fiduciary returns with net income, by States and Territories: Number of returns, net income, deficit, and total tax; also totals for prior years 41

_			Alabama			Alaska			Arizona			Arkansas		
	Net income classes (Thousands of dollars)	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax 2	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax 2	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax <sup>2</sup>	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax 2	
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	Taxable individual returns:  With net income:  Under 1 (est.)	15, 494 5, 782 6, 499 6, 246 2, 257 1, 640 976 617 454 210 145 118 113 347 170 9 9 9 111 63	\$5, 209, 217 21, 023, 884 13, 321, 327 17, 920, 434 21, 302, 255 10, 028, 030 8, 962, 339 6, 295, 83, 859, 052 3, 198, 800 2, 561, 109 2, 413, 749 1, 811, 698 1, 586, 848 1, 639, 254 5, 980, 51 5, 980, 51 5, 762, 243 3, 823, 049 2, 333, 431 947, 640	\$16, 382 264, 926 101, 690 133, 048 243, 173 176, 300 202, 426 177, 149 161, 177 163, 098 156, 742 140, 363 147, 119 123, 934 118, 033 127, 124 1492, 114 492, 114 496, 124 806, 088 607, 088 60	1, 179 3, 032 842 1, 042 917 352- 180. 105 63 48 39 27 23 114 112 31 8 8 8 2 1	\$1, 096, 764 3, 943, 454 1, 915, 615, 2, 875, 033 3, 125, 003 1, 553, 260 982, 634 683, 384 467, 988 404, 988 404, 988 284, 920 264, 254 163, 330 187, 803 175, 367 536, 282 173, 324 80, 555 282, 182, 87, 007 57, 745	\$2, 931 46, 859 18, 548 22, 215 37, 674 28, 224 21, 635 19, 161 19, 759 15, 876 11, 782 14, 517 53, 660 61, 736 61, 930 22, 698 18, 702	1, 086 8, 971 2, 673 2, 766 3, 708 1, 449 716 331 197 121 82 69 56 52 32 23 83 40 0 28 24 11	\$1, 012, 973 13, 119, 514 6, 052, 801 7, 557, 554 12, 742, 607 6, 430, 485 3, 918, 285 2, 127, 918 1, 469, 705 1, 030, 938 726, 815 641, 900 648, 934 429, 140 318, 397 1, 427, 401 888, 793 772, 462 852, 743 481, 745	\$2, 902 188, 807 77, 064 82, 978 189, 361 137, 611 108, 732 73, 170 63, 189 55, 810 46, 602 47, 807 44, 910 51, 328 35, 270 22, 571 125, 706 136, 258 133, 436 125, 256 112, 416	1, 644 5, 750 2, 521 3, 180 3, 302 1, 352 865 548 349 223 217 76 66 66 105 105 105 105 105 105 105 105 105 105	\$1, 496, 897 7, 661, 937 5, 855, 045 8, 718, 033 11, 229, 497 5, 994, 031 4, 740, 053 3, 540, 253 2, 667, 301 1, 892, 319 2, 059, 850 1, 287, 240 1, 086, 640 1, 021, 134 9, 56, 030 3, 334, 646 2, 364, 057 1, 331, 549 1; 919, 479 841, 044 547, 966 330, 708	\$4, 242 93, 576 38, 353 61, 963 122, 467 107, 366 109, 087 93, 847 89, 937 79, 193 101, 193 102, 193 103, 193 321, 833 321, 833 3	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27	70 under 80 80 under 90 90 under 100 100 under 150	6 5 11	1, 042, 998 515, 640 462, 971 1, 348, 000	391, 966 205, 554 184, 030 604, 008				1	93, 631	25, 854 44, 470 39, 413	3 1 3	297, 298 254, 293 96, 210 326, 278	108, 502 99, 813 40, 551 145, 840	24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31	150 under 200 200 under 250	2		1 '										28 29 30 31
32 33 34 35	300 under 400 400 under 500 500 under 750 750 under 1,000 1,000 under 1,500													32 33 34 35

36 37 38 39 40	1,500 under 2,000 2,000 under 3,000 3,000 under 4,000 4,000 under 5,000 5,000 and over													36 37 38 39 40
41 42	Total. With no net income 6.		149, 954, 382		7, 942	19, 787, 369	551, 576	22, 528	64, 062, 090	2, 181, 860	20, 900	73, 468, 657	3, 475, 810	41 42
43	Total, taxable individual returns.	47, 671	149, 954, 382	7, 588, 518	7, 942	19, 787, 369	551, 576	22, 528	64, 062, 090	2, 181, 860	20, 900	73, 468, 657	3, 475, 810	43
44 45 46 47 48 49 50	Nontaxable individual returns:  With net income: <sup>10</sup> Under 1 (est.)	14, 735 19, 609 6, 880 1, 853	6, 790, 552 22, 005, 770 43, 280, 376 18, 552, 855 5, 955, 349 291, 537 5, 376		1, 184 1, 456 1, 925 1, 256 184 2	764, 196 2, 425, 222 4, 301, 029 3, 421, 753 645, 332 9, 684		3, 305 7, 114 6, 841 2, 336 672 24	2, 234, 700 11, 155, 793 15, 125, 569 6, 266, 278 2, 175, 030 104, 959		5, 713 9, 362 8, 932 3, 545 975 17	4, 127, 225 14, 278, 932 19, 691, 143 9, 517, 803 3, 138,837 73, 154 5, 732		44 45 46 47 48 49 50
51 52	Total	51, 943 865	96, 881, 815 11 2, 487, 123		6, 007 110	11, 567, 216 11 280, 709		20, 292 678	37, 062, 329 11 1, 719, 315		28, 545 677	50, 832, 826 11 1, 174, 461		51 52
. 53	Total, nontaxable individ- ual returns.	52, 808	12 94, 394, 692		6, 117	<sup>12</sup> 11, 286, 507		20, 970	12 35, 343, 014		29, 222	12 49, 658, 365		53
54	turns (43 plus 53, or 55	100, 479	12 244,349,074	7, 588, 518	14, 059	12 31, 073, 876	551, 576	43, 498	12 99, 405, 104	2, 181, 860	50, 122	12 123, 127, 022	3, 475, 810	54
55	plus 56). Individual returns with net income (41 plus 51).	99, 614	246, 836, 197	7, 588, 518	13, 949	31, 354, 585	551, 576	42, 820	101, 124, 419	2, 181, 860	49, 445	124, 301, 483	3, 475, 810	55
56	Individual returns with no net income (42 plus 52).	865	11 2, 487, 123		110	11 280, 709		678	11 1, 719, 315		677	11 1, 174, 461		56
57	Taxable fiduciary returns with net income.3	376	1, 439, 468	185, 778	7	27, 908	1, 216	112	351, 983	24, 953	163	485, 284	26, 512	57
58	Total, individual returns with net income and taxable fiduciary returns with net income (55 plus 57).	99, 990	248, 275, 665	7, 774, 296	13, 956	31, 382, 493	552, 792	42, 932	101, 476, 402	2, 206, 813	49, 608	124, 786, 767	3, 502, 322	58
59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68	Summary for prior years: 4  1939. 1938. 1937. 1936. 1935. 1931. 1933. 1932. 1931. 1930.	49, 243 39, 261 39, 959 31, 712 26, 141 23, 072 19, 962 20, 680 19, 532 22, 605	116, 163, 358 130, 127, 271	3, 788, 876 2, 715, 111 4, 155, 993 3, 434, 836 1, 701, 528 1, 407, 104 978, 404 769, 932 640, 467 1, 353, 584	6, 982 (13) (13) (13) (13) (13) (13) (13) (13)	17, 669, 165 (13) (13) (13) (13) (13) (13) (13) (13)	307, 789 (13) (13) (13) (13) (13) (13) (13) (13)	26, 073 20, 532 20, 809 16, 842 13, 941 11, 378 8, 588 8, 900 8, 035 10, 590	69, 347, 814 56, 563, 874 62, 432, 053 51, 444, 492 38, 298, 031 29, 802, 959 20, 851, 766 23, 354, 960 28, 745, 823 42, 775, 084	1, 289, 518 1, 048, 176 1, 542, 167 1, 429, 247 647, 859 391, 723 265, 635 305, 405 247, 280 584, 274	23, 203 19, 720 18, 502 16, 587 14, 085 13, 318 11, 427 10, 350 9, 873 12, 490	75, 668, 690 63, 377, 344 64, 054, 308 61, 156, 253 43, 351, 163 38, 885, 585 29, 366, 515 24, 716, 119 29, 256, 385 43, 282, 986	1, 902, 359 1, 576, 934 1, 934, 035 2, 073, 666 796, 832 677, 515 370, 043 215, 937 107, 830 241, 787	59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68

\_\_\_\_

Table 8. (Tables 9 and 9-A, Statistics of Income for 1939, Part 1.)—Individual returns with net income, 1940, by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; also aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income and for taxable fiduciary returns with net income, by States and Territories: Number of returns, net income, deficit, and total tax; also totals for prior years 41—Continued

	i	California		_	Colorado			Connecticu	· 		Delaware	
Net income classes (Thousands of dollars)	Number of re- turns	Net income	Total tax <sup>2</sup>	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax 2	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax 2	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax 2
Taxable individual returns:  With net income:  Under 1 (est.)  1 under 2 (est.)  2 under 2.5 (est.)  2.5 under 3 (est.)  3 under 4 (est.)  4 under 5 (est.)  5 under 6  6 under 7  7 under 8  8 under 9  9 under 10  10 under 11  11 under 12  12 under 13  13 under 14  14 under 15  15 under 20  20 under 25  25 under 30  30 under 40  40 under 50  50 under 10  10 under 10  10 under 10  10 under 15  15 under 25  25 under 30  30 under 40  40 under 50  50 under 60  60 under 70  70 under 80  80 under 100  100 under 150  150 under 250  250 under 250  250 under 250  250 under 300  300 under 100  100 under 150  150 under 250  500 under 750  750 under 500  500 under 750  750 under 1,000  1,000 under 1,500  1,500 under 2,000  2,000 under 2,000  2,000 under 2,000  2,000 under 3,000	88, 071 88, 210 91, 629 31, 234 22, 923 11, 848 6, 535 4, 072 3, 047 2, 303 1, 814 1, 503 1, 193 942 3, 055 1, 697 989 486 257 157 101 79 45 129 36 19	\$52, 961, 220 349, 549, 220 197, 164, 480 242, 472, 828 313, 598, 611 151, 827, 547 125, 064, 515 76, 303, 072 48, 744, 373 34, 476, 895 28, 883, 915 24, 150, 763 20, 847, 273 16, 164, 116 13, 667, 557 52, 463, 820 21, 707, 035 14, 105, 717 10, 164, 629 7, 550, 945 6, 662, 932 4, 205, 003 15, 522, 473 5, 331, 557 1, 969, 147 2, 507, 955 1, 004, 207 957, 982 641, 242	\$143, 48S 4, 540, 518 1, 879, 335 2, 131, 460 4, 209, 276 3, 099, 231 2, 543, 921 1, 674, 972 1, 762, 785 1, 674, 972 1, 7558, 018 1, 473, 610 1, 344, 593 1, 220, 248 5, 614, 240 1, 341, 593 1, 220, 248 5, 614, 240 1, 341, 593 1, 270, 248 5, 614, 240 1, 341, 593 1, 270, 248 1, 270, 248 1, 270, 248 1, 270, 248 1, 270, 248 1, 270, 248 1, 270, 248 1, 270, 248 1, 270, 248 1, 270, 248 1, 270, 248 1, 270, 248 1, 270, 248 1, 270, 248 1, 270, 248 1, 270, 248 1, 270, 248 1, 270, 248 1, 270, 270 1, 270,	981 21, 769 5, 619 6, 767 8, 151 3, 783 411 309 233 171 136 120 85 290 161 67 72 24 44 19 18 8 5 8 8 5 8 4 11 8 8 7 8 7 8 7 8 7 8 7 8 7 8 7 8 7 8	\$822, 281 31, 641, 344 12, 701, 265 18, 516, 398 27, 917, 521 16, 778, 329 8, 635, 802 6, 334, 063 4, 209, 032 2, 439, 939 1, 967, 096 1, 695, 827 1, 615, 74 1, 232, 669 5, 002, 705 3, 610, 929 1, 820, 236 2, 431, 320 1, 964, 114 1, 019, 799 1, 154, 097 820, 874 682, 730 480, 653 912, 296 716, 253 235, 839 535, 997	\$6, 817 472, 099 209, 105 231, 410 331, 222 309, 978 203, 667 182, 369 147, 873 147, 454 146, 994 133, 098 120, 525 120, 663 99, 753 402, 348 448, 528 310, 307 551, 874 322, 721 308, 137 277, 278 279, 139 206, 592 423, 653 392, 653 392, 653 392, 653 392, 653 392, 653 392, 653 392, 653 392, 653 392, 653 392, 653 392, 653	10, 684 89, 493 19, 198 22, 138 7, 856 4, 552 2, 856 1, 434 1, 110 859 651 386 1, 273 709 429 455 627 1, 86 62 45 31 31 31 31 31 31 31 31	\$9, 827, 388 127, 468, 084 45, 119, 673 52, 583, 169 75, 731, 646 34, 602, 712 24, 773, 060 18, 531, 923 14, 742, 152 12, 141, 122 9, 007, 261 7, 711, 171 6, 763, 936 6, 066, 605, 605 7, 593, 420 21, 912, 874 15, 740, 283 11, 720, 280 21, 912, 874 15, 740, 283 11, 720, 280 21, 912, 874 15, 740, 283 12, 146, 820 8, 201, 503 15, 643, 939 12, 146, 820 4, 648, 146 3, 702, 654 3, 200, 784 8, 265, 792 4, 022, 313 2, 046, 653 779, 361 4, 606, 482 1, 809, 474	\$35, 573 1, \$40, 450 662, 834 584, 470 992, 982 619, 086 6599, 172 542, 185 523, 782 522, 364 510, 537 493, 088 466, 145 453, 333 454, 506 2, 220, 717 2, 113, 305 2, 220, 717 7, 757 1, 837, 113 1, 761, 771 1, 510, 613 1, 330, 904 441, 316 2, 620, 848 41, 186, 080	1, 614 7, 449 2, 367 2, 910 3, 069 1, 140 683 392 195 150 153 123 123 123 123 141 151 161 174 88 860 41 11 11 91 13 113 114 17 87 9 3 7 7 2 1	\$1, 448, 662 10, 400, 464 5, 443, 814 8, 013, 065 10, 404, 829 5, 073, 407 3, 723, 703 2, 510, 894 2, 213, 343 1, 666, 402 1, 428, 630 1, 391, 728, 630 1, 391, 728, 630 1, 245, 810 1, 014, 744 1, 053, 947 4, 117, 460 2, 608, 874 2, 037, 451 3, 027, 540 2, 694, 822 2, 232, 317 897, 533 955, 115 933, 051 873, 848 6, 253, 290 2, 202, 817 3, 152, 705 1, 916, 320 2, 804, 518 3, 035, 440 5, 585, 440 5, 585, 440 5, 585, 5440 5, 585, 5440 5, 585, 5440 5, 585, 5440 5, 585, 592, 548 8, 108, 216 3, 507, 512 2, 014, 020	\$3, 237 143, 400 59, 790 87, 076 132, 152 94, 379 90, 128 73, 023 79, 162 71, 881 71, 642 77, 203 85, 952 77, 581 84, 397 40, 051 84, 397 40, 051 84, 397 40, 054 85, 952 75, 854 84, 397 40, 957 85, 852 860, 394 702, 770 686, 591 385, 980 385, 118 387, 980 3, 987, 591 1, 198, 775 1, 725, 104 1, 137, 393 1, 638, 389 2, 997, 591 1, 1728, 337 3, 457, 967 1, 852, 518 5, 332, 293 2, 377, 832 2, 377, 832 2, 377, 832 2, 923, 668

		•												
38 39 40	3,000 under 4,000 4,000 under 5,000 5,000 and over													38 39 40
41 42	Total	674, 418	1, 957, 450, 203	92, 055, 405	52, 380	165, 239, 813	8, 731, 077	187, 761	586, 007, 912	43, 990, 742	21, 569 1	120, 273, 737 11 22, 197	30, 283, 957 15, 253	41 42
43	Total, taxable indi- vidual returns.	674, 418	1, 957, 450, 203	92, 055; 405	52, 380	165, 239, 813	8, 731, 077	187, 761	586, 007, 912	43, 990, 742	21, 570	12 120, 251, 540	30, 299, 210	43
	Nontaxable individual returns:													
44 45 46 47 48 49 50	With net income: 10 Under 1 (est.) 1 under 2 (est.) 2 under 2.5 (est.) 2.5 under 3 (est.) 3 under 4 (est.) 4 under 5 (est.) 5 under 6	106, 449 167, 374 183, 672 56, 792 12, 639 277 3	76, 173, 451 261, 349, 449 405, 646, 102 152, 113, 576 40, 524, 677 1, 185, 011 15, 669		11, 886 17, 970 18, 183 6, 477 1, 751 54	8, 310, 286 28, 061, 947 39, 975, 661 17, 464, 545 5, 627, 220 223, 934		25, 430 39, 471 56, 303 16, 597 3, 953 74	19, 858, 976 59, 351, 745 123, 794, 020 44, 569, 527 12, 859, 812 315, 177 15, 538		3, 044 5, 142 6, 0\$4 1, 554 373 8	2, 236, 086 8, 020, 763 13, 433, 587 4, 183, 148 1, 215, 599 33, 532 5, 239		44 45 46 47 48 49 50
51 52	Total With no net income 4	527, 206 13, 392	937, 012, 935 11 34, 553, 528		56, 321 1, 359	99, C63, 593 11 2, 531, 193		141, 831 1, 677	260, 764, 845 11 5, 624, 319		16, 206 184	29, 127, 994 11 7, 218, 410		51 52
53	Total, nontaxable individual re- turns.	540, 598	12 902, 459, 407		57, 680	12 97, 132, 400		143, 508	12 255, 140, 526		16, 390	12 21, 909, 584		53
54	Grand total indi- vidual returns (43 plus 53, or 55 plus 56).	1, 215, 016	12 2, 859, 909, 610	32, 055, 405	110, 060	1 <sup>2</sup> 262, 372, 213	8, 731, 077	331, 269	<sup>12</sup> 541, 145, 438	43, 990, 742	37, 960	12 142, 161, 124	30, 299, 210	54
55	Individual returns with net	1, 201, 624	2, 894, 463, 138	)2, 055, 405	108, 701	264, 903, 406	3, 731, 077	329, 592	846, 772, 757	13, 990, 742	37, 775	149, 401, 731	30, 283, 957	55
56	income (41 plus 51). Individual returns with no net income (42 plus 52).	13, 392	11 34, 553, 528		1, 359	11 2, 531, 193		1,677	11 5, 624, 319		185	11 7, 240, 607	15, 253	56
57	Taxable fiduciary returns with net income.3	4, 229	17, 254, 415	2, 968, 618	525	1, 924, 688	335, 130	2, 135	8, 678, 813	1, 548, 172	647	7, 471, 868	2, 702, 987	57
58	Total, individual returns with net income and taxable fiduciary returns with net income (55 plus 57).	1, 205, 853	2, 911, 717, 553	∂5, 024, 023	109, 226	266, 828, 094	9, 066, 207	331, 727	855, 451, 570	15, 533, 914	38, 422	156, 873, 599	32, 986, 944	58
59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68	Summary for prior years: 4 1939	631, 218 526, 593 510, 224 436, 128 367, 757 315, 766 286, 580 295, 650 248, 722 293, 048	1, 585, 719, 800 1, 677, 450, 067 1, 494, 599, 201 1, 172, 303, 199 963, 067, 116 785, 354, 006 841, 047, 708	30, 313, 285 30, 127, 190 74, 835, 666 76, 428, 350 12, 033, 332 33, 380, 393 21, 444, 162 21, 635, 950 14, 732, 280 27, 136, 057	55, 274 42, 132 45, 371 40, 332 33, 475 31, 232 28, 725 30, 537 25, 279 28, 986	130, 642, 002 156, 162, 264 146, 498, 541 108, 379, 317 94, 502, 319	9, 010, 069 8, 934, 634 4, 057, 259 3, 281, 520 1, 710, 477 1, 815, 932 1, 378, 043	132, 395 145, 363 121, 805 100, 893 91, 352 81, 850 86, 303 65, 306	484, 984, 394 439, 105, 953 340, 303, 213	20, 903, 630 34, 890, 703 35, 932, 854 17, 227, 337 12, 325, 678 8, 691, 835 8, 155, 965 6, 067, 223	20, 65S 17, 061 16, 836 13, 739 11, 371 10, 620 9, 910 9, S22 8, 284 9, 342	113, 685, 148 85, 394, 790 104, 341, 692 96, 694, 780 64, 759, 925 55, 073, 452 45, 536, 527 46, 026, 220 51, 044, 537 64, 913, 288	28, 063, 602 14, 338, 660 25, 218, 817 25, 538, 755 11, 401, 715 9, 312, 466 5, 042, 284 4, 396, 328 2, 283, 901 3, 927, 732	59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68

Table 8. (Tables 9 and 9-A, Statistics of Income for 1939, Part 1.)—Individual returns with net income, 1940, by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; also aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income and for taxable fiduciary returns with net income, by States and Territories: Number of returns, net income, deficit, and total tax; also totals for prior years 1—Continued [For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-7 and 8-9]

	Net income classes	D	istrict of Colu	mbia		Florida			Georgia			Hawaii		
	(Thousands of dollars)	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax 2	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax 2	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax?	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax?	
1 2 3 3 4 5 5 6 7 8 8 9 10 11 12 13 11 15 116 17 18 19 20 22 1 22 23 24 29 30 31 2 33 33 34 35 36	Taxable individual returns:  With net income:  Under 1 (est.).  1 under 2 (est.).  2 under 2.5 (est.).  2.5 under 3 (est.).  3 under 4 (est.).  4 under 5 (est.).  5 under 6.  6 under 7.  7 under 8.  8 under 9.  9 under 10.  10 under 11.  11 under 12.  12 under 13.  13 under 14.  14 under 15.  15 under 20.  20 under 25.  25 under 30.  30 under 40.  40 under 50.  50 under 60.  90 under 100.  100 under 100.  100 under 100.  100 under 200.  200 under 250.  250 under 250.  250 under 200.  200 under 250.  250 under 300.  300 under 100.  100 under 150.  150 under 200.  200 under 250.  250 under 250.  250 under 250.  250 under 250.  250 under 270.  750 under 500.  500 under 750.  750 under 500.  500 under 750.  750 under 1,000.  1,000 under 1,500.  1,500 under 1,500.  1,500 under 2,000.	14, 753 14, 364 14, 364 16, 198 6, 154 3, 552 1, 956 1, 175 241 192 246 159 191 91 48 30 00 18 11 16 23 66 23 16 21 16 21 21 26 27 26 27 26 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27	\$4, 899, 768 65, 902, 354 33, 615, 306 39, 412, 645 55, 326, 481 27, 546, 585 19, 544, 664 12, 616, 022 8, 763, 569 6, 433, 804 4, 916, 354 4, 372, 618 3, 732, 863 3, 007, 804 2, 592, 837 6, 501, 740 9, 009, 495 6, 153, 343 4, 338, 637 6, 501, 740 9, 153, 343 4, 338, 637 6, 501, 740 9, 61, 554 9, 61, 556 9, 61, 740 9, 61, 740 9,	\$14, 881 951, 544 455, 929 445, 799 477, 267 556, 143 366, 523 316, 993 277, 139 244, 186 243, 558 236, 030 207, 078 194, 560 195, 246 890, 241 1, 371, 441 1, 060, 921 805, 464 640, 600 498, 348 375, 561 1, 287, 838 579, 411 325, 336 235, 872	6, 504 21, 041 7, 827 9, 373 9, 696 4, 208 2, 923 1, 785 1, 303 980 697 5417 398 235 238 233 233 233 11 5 5 4 7 7 2 1 1 2 1	\$5, 792, 601 28, 577, 162 18, 030, 931 25, 790, 612 33, 182, 445 18, 688, 284 15, 991, 327 11, 540, 130 9, 725, 663 8, 290, 839 6, 598, 290, 839 6, 742, 274 4, 575, 559 8, 220, 036 6, 462, 538 8, 001, 727 8, 220, 036 6, 462, 538 8, 001, 727 8, 220, 036 6, 462, 538 8, 001, 727 8, 220, 036 6, 462, 538 8, 001, 727 8, 220, 036 6, 462, 538 8, 001, 727 8, 220, 036 6, 462, 538 8, 001, 727 8, 220, 036 8, 231, 256 8, 359, 655 2, 748, 079 3, 061, 176 1, 914, 365 4, 041, 792 2, 265, 265 2, 340, 479 1, 405, 286 1, 355, 855 3, 119, 674 851, 741 2, 343, 741 2, 343, 741 2, 343, 785, 279	\$22, 305 \$62, 495 130, 304 209, 100 378, 799 348, 724 329, 168 349, 837 352, 004 324, 226 325, 508 288, 012 290, 484 291, 114 275, 546 1, 304, 064 1, 118, 917 1, 108, 958 1, 689, 110 1, 398, 080 1, 099, 945 906, 188 1, 129, 005 728, 071 1, 143, 454 1, 345, 967 833, 651 841, 457 1, 189, 149 1712, 301 613, 875 775, 648 1, 337, 456	1, 718 22, 785 7, 237 8, 7237 8, 1048 1, 1028	\$1, 456, 986 33, 280, 774 16, 362, 374 23, 739, 106 42, 841, 971 22, 453, 012 9, 656, 295 7, 680, 523 6, 363, 325 5, 260, 947 4, 535, 853 3, 665, 510, 863 10, 582, 760 6, 808, 564 4, 759, 395 5, 571, 750 3, 256, 051 1, 802, 533 1, 633, 097 1, 036, 689 933, 344 1, 122, 876 2, 711, 277 893, 048 540, 090 697, 460	\$9, 329 486, 251 249, 387 240, 402 507, 972 376, 825 296, 405 208, 344 268, 971 268, 233 255, 899 248, 276 227, 396 227, 396 227, 396 1, 043, 788 897, 672 806, 901 1, 160, 541 838, 416 517, 320 550, 231 580, 467 360, 994 465, 520 1, 307, 386 412, 811 461, 817 171, 954 164, 812		\$1, 782, 448 \$1, 394, 446 6, 346, 497 6, 285, 504 10, 984, 777 9, 301, 258 5, 009, 840 3, 599, 004 1, 791, 123 1, 402, 237, 160 1, 791, 123 1, 402, 247 944, 221 1, 099, 447 944, 221 921, 787 662, 200 812, 314 2, 647, 518 1, 819, 858 1, 452, 659 1, 774, 218 1, 519, 550, 469 857, 566 143, 192 685, 957 476, 168 524, 981 332, 251 242, 004	\$5, 863 182, 091 103, 887 74, 153 138, 800 161, 781 110, 889 95, 432 75, 130 76, 580 66, 579 60, 498 58, 817 64, 002 49, 864 63, 858 259, 806 236, 104 252, 512 378, 520 279, 559 165, 670 299, 139 51, 599 273, 727 200, 538 232, 193 177, 697 141, 684	1 2 3 4 4 5 6 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 21 13 14 15 6 17 8 19 20 1 22 23 24 25 6 27 8 30 31 2 33 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

		<del></del>												
												•		
37 38	2,000 under 3,000													37 38
39	4,000 under 5,000 5,000 and over													39
40	.,													40
41 42	Total	112, 987	337, 241, 137 11 11, 095	15, 834, 785 7; 437	70, 137	278, 255, 961	27, 064, 531	67, 018	243, 117, 508	14, 121, 563	24, 762	79, 177, 683	4, 336, 972	41 42
43	Total, taxable individ- ual returns.	112, 988	12 337, 230, 042	15, 842, 222	70, 137	278, 255, 961	27, 064, 531	67, 018	243, 117, 508	14, 121, 563	24, 762	79, 177, 683	4, 336, 972	43
44 45 46 47 48 49 50	Nontaxable individual returns:  With net income: <sup>10</sup> Under 1 (est.)	7, 801 18, 486 13, 659 6, 180 2, 372 55	5, 831, 680 28, 771, 756 30, 423, 145 16, 633, 411 7, 759, 741 247, 122		17, 385 21, 562 19, 784 7, 649 2, 417 61 3	12, 917, 050 32, 812, 050 43, 610, 124 20, 430, 570 7, 832, 644 264, 936 16, 578		11, 163 17, 913 21, 205 9, 085 2, 498 37 2	8, 540, 639 27, 044, 363 46, 616, 926 24, 546, 210 8, 092, 704 162, 247 10, 945		5, 466 5, 323 4, 435 1, 752 932 79 3	4, 203, 232 7, 852, 277 9, 818, 113 4, 736, 051 3, 105, 604 345, 350 15, 523		44 45 46 47 48 49 50
51 52	TotalWith no net income 4	48, 553 511	89, 666, 855 11 1, 333, 425		68, 861 2, 225	117, 883, 952 117, 109, 587		61, 903 1, 176	115, 014, 034 11 3, 122, 967		17, 990 252	30, 076, 150 11 424, 422		51 52
53	Total, nontaxable in- dividual returns.	49, 064	12 88, 333, 430		71, 086	12 110, 774, 365		63, 079	12 111, 891, 067		18, 242	12 29, 651, 728		53
54	Grand total individual returns (43 plus 53, or 55 plus 56).	162, 052	12 425, 563, 472	15, 842, 222	141, 223	12 389, 030, 326	27, 064, 531	130, 097	12 355, 008 575	14, 121, 563	43, 004	<sup>12</sup> 108, 829, 411	4, 336, 972	54
55	Individual returns with net in-	161,540	426, 907, 992	15, 834, 785	138, 998	396, 139, 913	27, 064, 531	128, 921	358, 131, 542	14, 121, 563	42, 752	109, 253, 833	4, 336, 972	55
56	come (41 plus 51). Individual returns with no net income (42 plus 52).	512	11 1, 344, 520	7, 437	2, 225	11 7, 109, 587		1, 176	11 3, 122, 967		252	11 424, 422		56
57	Taxable fiduciary returns with net income.	555	1, 993, 300	297, 605	788	4, 633, 285	831, 822	490	2, 522, 415	511, 316	200	1, 025, 171	197, 213	57
58	Total, individual returns with net income and taxable fiduci- ary returns with net income (55 plus 57).	162, 095	428, 901, 292	16, 132, 390	139, 786	400, 773, 198	27, 896, 353	129, 411	360, 653, 957	14, 632, 879	42, 952	110, 279, 004	4,534,185	58
59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68	Summary for prior years 4: 1939	110, 658 106, 863 95, 271 82, 871 69, 967	321, 127, 649 329, 915, 913	10, 655, 301 9, 696, 058 11, 629, 939 13, 290, 899 7, 175, 849 5, 663, 864 4, 625, 042 5, 115, 177 2, 974, 707 4, 200, 940	71, 514 56, 401 52, 417 44, 048 38, 021 32, 550 28, 775 29, 303 25, 340 28, 133	234, 630, 523	17, 521, 019 16, 004, 888 21, 286, 514 18, 608, 221 8, 933, 457 5, 597, 287 2, 671, 623 2, 557, 631 2, 219, 520 2, 840, 391	69, 914 58, 309 56, 768 49, 512 46, 702 38, 137 32, 229 31, 730 25, 729 28, 996	237, 106, 692 194, 543, 384 205, 053, 443 181, 626, 423 150, 963, 172 122, 612, 284 94, 892, 882 92, 882, 516 102, 907, 022 128, 081, 049	8. 580, 794 6, 903, 764 8. 370, 285 8, 478, 922 4, 149, 454 37, 104, 301 2, 062, 780 1, 692, 089 996, 756 1, 659, 244	22, 873 19, 048 17, 394 15, 214 13, 262 11, 252 10, 835 12, 192 7, 328 7, 869	64, 824, 869 58, 737, 567	2, 591, 262 2, 631, 872 3, 709, 136 4, 408, 203 2, 396, 253 1, 563, 069 1, 140, 546 1, 101, 535 815, 673 972, 216	59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68

Table 8. (Tables 9 and 9-A, Statistics of Income for 1939, Part 1.)—Individual returns with net income, 1940, by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; also aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income and for taxable fiduciary returns with net income, by States and Territories: Number of returns, net income, deficit, and total tax; also totals for prior years 1—Continued [For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-7 and 8-9]

Net income classes				Idaho			Illinois			Indiana			Iowa	
With net income:   1,850   1,742,342   \$4,133   37,202   \$33,481,731   \$13,7149   13,501   \$12,363,062   \$42,806   12,207   \$11,146,707   \$36,763   1   1   1   1   1   1   1   1   1			ber of	Net income		ber of	Net income		ber of	Net income		ber of	Net income	
38 3.000 under 4.000 3	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 33 34 35 36 37	With net income:     Under 1 (est.)     1 under 2 (est.)     2 under 2.5 (est.)     3 under 4 (est.)     3 under 4 (est.)     4 under 5 (est.)     5 under 6.     6 under 7.     7 under 8.     8 under 9.     9 under 10.     10 under 11.     11 under 12.     12 under 13.     13 under 14.     14 under 15.     15 under 20.     20 under 20.     20 under 30.     30 under 40.     40 under 50.     50 under 60.     60 under 70.     70 under 80.     80 under 90.     90 under 100.     100 under 100.     100 under 100.     100 under 200.     200 under 200.     200 under 200.     300 under 40.     40 under 50.     50 under 60.     50 under 60.     50 under 60.     300 under 200.     300 under 400.     400 under 500.     300 under 500.     300 under 500.     300 under 500.     300 under 500.	8, 656 2, 283 2, 303 2, 070 768 491 208 1122 57 63 51 128 24 22 12 39 16 9 8	11, 883, 179 5, 201, 330 6, 309, 406 7, 094, 679 7, 094, 679 3, 418, 893 2, 681, 585 1, 340, 375 1913, 591 481, 574 598, 038 535, 902 1318, 163 227, 939 224, 092 173, 509 625, 481 360, 078 241, 260 225, 803 82, 866 227, 686	145, 783 51, 775 65, 430 115, 137 75, 760 73, 031 48, 247 42, 715 25, 409 25, 439 23, 337 24, 337 25, 219 15, 793 70, 121 53, 512 44, 228 44, 228 44, 296 72, 504	249, 554 88, 457 83, 226 100, 531 39, 014 18, 814 11, 262 7, 641 11, 262 2, 545 2, 063 1, 676 1, 452 2, 362 1, 465 7, 466 7, 440 407 250 136 99 7, 75 178 68 18 19 14 4 7	359, 293, 508 201, 047, 329 228, 679, 181 344, 417, 662 172, 138, 511 102, 877, 019, 200 45, 305, 907 39, 838, 859 32, 995, 120 29, 245, 828 25, 739, 568 22, 607, 397 21, 033, 939 80, 115, 352 52, 523, 001 37, 190, 432 49, 466, 379 32, 888, 500 22, 110, 649 16, 191, 57 10, 150, 557 8, 397, 423 7, 130, 283 21, 211, 464 11, 513, 827 3, 920, 342 4, 769, 862 1, 880, 199, 862 1, 880, 199, 862 1, 880, 199, 862 1, 880, 199, 862 1, 880, 199, 862 1, 880, 199, 862 1, 880, 199, 862 1, 880, 199, 862 1, 880, 199, 862 1, 880, 199, 862 1, 880, 199, 862 1, 880, 199, 862 1, 880, 199, 862 1, 880, 199, 862 1, 880, 199, 862 1, 880, 199, 862 1, 880, 199, 862 1, 880, 199, 862 1, 880, 199, 862	5, 276, 743 2, 755, 624 2, 504, 468 4, 600, 468 4, 600, 619 1, 995, 525 1, 869, 665 1, 830, 372 1, 869, 614 1, 791, 733 1, 724, 698 1, 793, 512 1, 669, 443 1, 793, 512 6, 953, 017 6, 853, 017 6, 853, 017 6, 853, 017 6, 853, 017 6, 853, 017 6, 853, 017 6, 853, 017 6, 853, 017 6, 853, 017 6, 853, 017 6, 853, 017 6, 854, 031 6, 612, 031 6, 614, 031 6, 614, 031 6, 615, 031 6, 615, 031 6, 616, 592 3, 746, 922 3, 293, 492 3, 294, 492 3, 105, 105, 105 3, 746, 922 3, 105, 105 3, 105, 105 3, 105	71, 138 21, 483 21, 483 20, 730 18, 567 6, 708 3, 892 2, 344 1, 508 1, 086 834 665 547 401 321 290 923 402 246 133 87 41 26 17 18 18 88 89 9 1 1 1	99, 582, 181 49, 018, 065 56, 814, 593 63, 038, 347, 662 21, 237, 662 21, 237, 662 21, 237, 662 31, 261, 183 9, 201, 178 7, 916, 036 6, 999, 987 6, 281, 120 5, 011, 285 4, 320, 072 4, 193, 749 15, 885, 990 8, 977, 784 7, 265, 669 8, 492, 664 5, 948, 782 2, 667, 583 1, 924, 047 1, 413, 281 1, 678, 630 3, 021, 515 1, 540, 699 3, 70, 255	1, 370, 960 506, 494 498, 483 797, 241 480, 213 421, 617 387, 099 383, 087 380, 612 384, 453 320, 323 331, 900 1, 543, 917 1, 197, 007 1, 252, 719 1, 801, 135 1, 547, 463 1, 389, 310 914, 467 556, 570 704, 143 1, 414, 298 830, 329 390, 495 158, 698	37, 213 9, 749 8, 741 10, 034 3, 836 2, 268 1, 419 888 600 417 320 212 183 164 128 396 213 101 101 102 103 104 104 105 105 105 105 105 105 105 105	49, 713, 950 22, 411, 705 23, 963, 531 34, 213, 934 16, 900, 286 12, 375, 913 9, 167, 346 6, 626, 524 5, 991, 021 3, 950, 055 3, 350, 290 2, 427, 987 2, 281, 451 2, 216, 833 1, 855, 276 6, 791, 133 4, 720, 798 2, 753, 429 2, 969, 314 1, 203, 707 1, 184, 602 717, 424 448, 717 340, 325 180, 210 355, 026 327, 916 428, 634 294, 098	627, 306 205, 961 204, 444 404, 679 300, 989 286, 328 253, 864 231, 522 216, 570 194, 575 187, 309 151, 820 153, 549 162, 794 148, 735 660, 791 621, 420 464, 985 627, 152 297, 619 351, 995 249, 402 297, 619 168, 234 173, 253 243, 552 179, 968

39 40	4.000 under 5,000 5,000 and over													39 40
41 42	Total	19,086	45,097,081	1, 122, 287	668,010	2, 161, 675, 257 11 60, 736	130, 454, 668 19, 944	166, 217	469, 050, 268	23, 676, 128	89, 317	230, 408, 142	8, 184, 599	41 42
43	Total, taxable indi- divual returns.	19,086	45, 097, 081	1, 122, 287	668, 015	12 2, 161, 614, 521	130, 474, 612	166, 217	469, 050, 268	23, 676, 128	89, 317	230, 408, 142	8, 184, 599	43
44 45 46 47 48	Nontaxable individual returns: With net income: 10 Under 1 (rst.)	1,737 520	4, 621, 514 14, 572, 262 12, 602, 493 4, 649, 570 1, 683, 150			74, 522, 486 247, 670, 677 487, 843, 690 258, 982, 777 58, 709, 252		31, 705 54, 497 72, 895 20, 271 5, 632	23, 487, 040 84, 265, 470 159, 671, 419 54, 412, 962 18, 158, 976		49, 214 66, 790 34, 733 9, 273 2, 135	34, 159, 159 101, 674, 174 75, 906, 476 24, 992, 004 6, 926, 708		44 45 46 47 48
49 50	4 under 5 (est.) 5 under 6	27	111, 851		574 4	2, 410, 736 21, 740			869, 499 10, 271		89	364, 454		49 50
51 52	Total With no net income 4	24, 275 713	38, 330, 840 11 857, 170		598, 380 8, 229	1, 130, 161, 358 11 19, 547, 697		185, 193 2, 279	340, 875, 637 11 3, 696, 755		162, 234 3, 359	244, 022, 975 11 3, 769, 271		51 52
53	Total, nontaxable individual returns.	24, 988	12 37, 473, 670		606, 609	12 1, 110, 613, 661		187, 472	12 337, 178, 882		165, 593	12 240, 253, 704		53
54	Grand total indi- vidual returns (43 plus 53, or 55 plus 56).	44, 074	12 82, 570, 751	1, 122, 287	1, 274, 624	12 3, 272, 228, 182	130, 474, 612	353, 689	12 806, 229, 150	23, 676, 128	254, 910	12 470, 661, 846	8, 184, 599	54
55	Individual returns with net income (41 plus 51).	43, 361	83, 427, 921	1, 122, 287	1, 266, 390	3, 291, 836, 615	130, 454, 668	351, 410	809, 925, 905	23, 676, 128	251, 551	474, 431, 117	8, 184, 599	55
56	Individual returns with no net income (42 plus 52).	713	11 857, 170		8, 234	11 19, 608, 433	19, 944	2, 279	11 3, 696, 755		3, 359	11 3, 769, 271		56
57	Taxable fiduciary returns with net income.3	69	250, 395	16, 149	6, 175	23, 533, 523	3, 798, 833	772	3, 486, 081	550, 941	1,087	3, 177, 919	316, 227	57
58	Total, individual returns with net income and taxable fiduciary returns with net income (55 plus 57).	43, 430	83, 678, 316	1, 138, 436	1, 272, 565	3, 315, 370, 138	134, 253, 501	352, 182	813, 411, 986	24, 227, 069	252, 638	477, 609, 036	8, 500, 826	58
59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68	Summary for prior years: 41 1939 1938 1937 1936 1935 1934 1933 1932 1931 1930	16, 917 13, 245 15, 683 14, 201 11, 005 8, 932 6, 072 5, 788 5, 684 7, 852	41, 982, 669 34, 271, 316 43, 335, 468 41, 692, 504 29, 803, 013 23, 636, 891 14, 582, 154 13, 688, 578 18, 350, 071 27, 757, 374	623, 249 442, 079 693, 336 752, 433 351, 103 281, 770 130, 027 97, 113 46, 045 128, 290	614, 599 498, 614 £05, 050 418, 303 345, 857 310, 456 282, 360 286, 888 270, 759 327, 631	1, 988, 296, 321 1, 626, 760, 418 1, 804, 785, 237 1, 599, 035, 105 1, 171, 833, 651 1, 006, 927, 934 848, 918, 593 872, 941, 170 1, 182, 411, 350 1, 630, 447, 207	69, 736, 533	156, 404 122, 018 132, 218 103, 303 82, 436 69, 623 61, 675 63, 722 54, 534 65, 679	401, 914, 365	14, 781, 662 10, 242, 508 15, 705, 078 15, 648, 048 8, 487, 456 6, 881, 939 3, 965, 454 3, 311, 606 2, 540, 943 5, 109, 577	95, 830 75, 514 72, 359 67, 345 57, 788 47, 871 40, 329 42, 624 29, 850 39, 917	184, 118, 458 148, 525, 910 119, 454, 155 96, 835, 681 109, 841, 833	3, 497, 739 4, 886, 074 4, 840, 561 2, 790, 513 2, 005, 786 1, 441, 695 1, 403, 991 1, 137, 299	59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68

Table 8. (Tables 9 and 9-A. Statistics of Income for 1939, Part 1.)—Individual returns with net income, 1940, by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; also aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income and for taxable fiduciary returns with net income, by States and Territories: Number of returns, net income, deficit, and total tax; also totals for prior years 41—Continued [For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-7 and 8-9.]

	Net income classes		Kansas			Kentucky			Louisiana			Maine		
	(Thousands of dollars)	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax 2	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax ²	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total	
1 1 2 3 4 4 5 6 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 25 26 27 28 29 29 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20	Taxable individual returns:  With net income:  Under 1 (est.).  1 under 2 (est.).  2 under 2.5 (est.).  3 under 3 (est.).  4 under 5 (est.).  5 under 6.  6 under 7.  7 under 8.  8 under 9.  9 under 10.  10 under 11.  11 under 12.  12 under 13.  13 under 14.  14 under 15.  15 under 20.  20 under 25.  25 under 30.  30 under 40.  40 under 50.  80 under 70.  70 under 80.  80 under 90.  90 under 100.  10 under 70.  70 under 80.  80 under 20.  20 under 20.  20 under 20.  20 under 20.  30 under 100.	18. 358 6, 699 5, 556 6, 742 2, 883 1, 388 840 195 195 116 105 73 244 1133 60 60 50 150 170 170 170 170 170 170 170 170 170 17	239, 402					1 .	\$6, 076, S31 29, 291, 221 17, 079, 409 22, 278, 446 36, 226, 100 20, 147, 496 15, 941, 657 9, 832, 475 6, 384, 999 4, 688, 115 4, 035, 917 3, 080, 361 2, 901, 257 2, 292, 334 4, 635, 919 1, 463, 587 6, 979, 957 4, 110, 570 3, 502, 784 4, 735, 336 2, 960, 208 1, 676, 160 700, 349 756, 236 501, 546 951, 261 1, 644, 297 518, 590 1, 153, 800 252, 925	\$14, 061 366, 652 160, 924 190, 813 506, 206 407, 682 416, 682 417, 682 418, 404 238, 057 201, 925 206, 392 178, 393 195, 808 762, 398 195, 808 762, 148 508, 706 620, 148 1, 044, 267 778, 586 517, 886 517, 886 518, 548 83, 158	5, 091 12, 574 3, 603 3, 603 1, 633 1, 633 1, 633 416 294 214 155 111 112 56 65 56 55 65 32 117 112 9 9 9 9 124 112 112 12 12 12 12 13 14 14 15 14 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16	\$4, 666, 542 16, 789, 392 8, 240, 293 8, 054, 147 10, 977, 226 7, 229, 663 4, 983, 624 4, 177, 389 3, 108, 643 2, 032, 663 1, 618, 840 1, 271, 338 1, 196, 356 1, 078, 170 1, 082, 980 3, 644, 229 2, 491, 074 1, 530, 351 2, 184, 168 1, 432, 685 939, 360 780, 868 661, 774 166, 840 185, 846 756, 477 7464, 088 245, 964	\$13, 643 211, 039 75, 341 145, 900 145, 219 120, 846 124, 321 113, 231 113, 231 114, 935 104, 794 83, 539 86, 210 334, 996 335, 760 269, 120 459, 196 388, 038 290, 144 270, 596 62, 967 77, 361 351, 246 246, 911 145, 482	1 2 3 4 4 5 6 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 12 22 24 25 5 26 7 28 9 30 31 32
33 34 35 36 37	250 under 300 300 under 400 400 under 500 500 under 750 750 under 1,000 1,000 under 1,550 1,500 under 2,000 2,000 under 3,000										1	504, 489	359, 124	33 34 35 36 37

38 39 40	3,000 under 4,000 4,000 under 5,000 5,000 and over		1	1	1									38 39 40
41 42	Total With no net income 6	49, 970	141, 733, 310	5, 152, 044	59, 020	189, 839, 549	8, 969, 489	66, 765	214, 470, 143	11, 096, 893	32, 542	95, 028, 769	5, 518, 035	41 42
43	Total, taxable individual returns.	49, 970	141, 733, 310	5, 152, 044	59, 020	189, 839, 549	8, 969, 489	66, 765	214, 470, 143	11, 096, 893	32, 542	95, 028, 769	5, 518, 035	43
44 45 46 47 48 49 50	Nontaxable individual returns:  With net income: 10  Under 1 (est.)	21, 486 32, 020 20, 215 4, 167 1, 035 56	14, 672, 197 49, 608, 321 44, 253, 025 11, 149, 161 3, 391, 282 232, 475 5, 736		14, 216 22, 336 25, 730 7, 838 2, 215 68 5	11, 071, 810 33, 544, 784 56, 543, 784 21, 008, 957 7, 210, 478 299, 122 26, 919		12, 971 18, 023 21, 059 6, 996 2, 174 61 3	9, 899, 987 27, 130, 481 46, 451, 492 18, 752, 865 7, 645, 643 263, 672 15, 686		11, 244 12, 172 10, 369 2, 935 991 40 3	8, 458, 431 18, 515, 801 22, 762, 369 7, 962, 131 3, 204, 863 176, 641 15, 738		44 45 46 47 48 49 50
51 52	Total With no net income 4	78, 980 2, 339	123, 312, 197 11 3, 619, 345		72, 408 1, 047	129, 705, 854 11 2, 362, 191		61, 287 1, 289	109, 564, 826 11 3, 226, 691		37, 754 819	61, 035, 974 11 1,630, 284		51 52
53	Total, nontaxable indi- vidual returns.	81, 319	12 119, 692, 852		73, 455	12 127, 343, 663		62, 576	12 106, 338, 135		38, 573	12 59, 405, 690		53
54	Grand total individual returns (43 plus 53, or 55 plus 56)	131, 289	12 261, 426, 162	5, 152, 044	132, 475	12 317, 183, 212	8, 969, 489	129, 341	12 320, 808, 278	11, 096, 893	71, 115	<sup>12</sup> 154, 434, 459	5, 518, 035	54
55	Individual returns with net income (41 plus 51).	128, 950	265, 045, 507	5, 152, 044	131, 428	319, 545, 403	8, 969, 489	128, 052	324, 034, 969	11, 096, 893	70, 296	156, 064, 743	5, 518, 035	55
56	Individual returns with no net in- come (42 plus 52).	2, 339	11 3, 619, 345		1, 047	11 2, 362, 191		1, 289	11 3, 226, 691		819	11 1, 630, 284		56
57	Taxable fiduciary returns with net income. 3	523	1, 418, 444	114, 409	481	1, 519, 852	205, 504	150	640, 988	64, 639	480	1, 480, 105	170, 581	57
58	Total, individual returns with net income and taxable fiduciary returns with net income (55 plus 57).	129, 473	266, 463, 951	5, 266, 453	131, 909	321, 065, 255	9, 174, 993	128, 202	324, 675, 957	11. 161, 532	70,776	157, 544, 848	5, 688, 616	58
59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68	Summary for prior years: 4 1939. 1938. 1937. 1936. 1935. 1934. 1933. 1932. 1931.	60, 527 52, 027 53, 182 47, 374 39, 402 35, 600 30, 738 29, 643 27, 495 32, 660	133, 806, 279 154, 317, 290 145, 617, 405 111, 404, 165 91, 867, 863 71, 777, 244 73, 547, 043 91, 616, 462	2, 962, 121 2, 657, 650 4, 051, 195 3, 944, 602 2, 041, 689 1, 499, 250 1, 018, 001 1, 223, 811 880, 318 1, 480, 343	64, 748, 53, 701 51, 192 45, 189 39, 763 35, 353 32, 332 32, 454 26, 991 31, 021	185, 600, 615 159, 635, 556 168, 658, 619 157, 007, 367 125, 101, 178 107, 389, 715 90, 753, 614 89, 484, 542 103, 179, 556 135, 098, 479	4, 529, 952 5, 723, 251 6, 581, 929 3, 742, 279 2, 726, 762 2, 624, 772 1, 554, 630 1, 612, 557	70, 752 59, 127 54, 519 43, 728 40, 123 36, 871 33, 094 28, 934 32, 979	228, 245, 691 192, 257, 703 191, 658, 737 160, 054, 669 122, 582, 017 106, 168, 279 86, 809, 253 92, 164, 323 107, 673, 824 138, 836, 043	7, 304, 222 6, 512, 924 8, 172, 372 8, 394, 930 3, 065, 551 2, 296, 812 1, 497, 560 1, 423, 510 891, 912 1, 599, 639	32, 296 27, 001 28, 123 25, 057 21, 826 20, 584 19, 435 20, 867 16, 218 17, 829	95, 105, 166 88, 859, 221 69, 455, 451 63, 204, 584 55, 819, 385 62, 981, 334 74, 771, 180	3, 669, S31 8, 058, 579 5, 222, 014 5, 181, 283 2, 567, 514 2, 207, 930 1, 865, 414 1, 597, 284 1, 527, 436 1, 827, 849	59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68

Table 8. (Tables 9 and 9-A, Statistics of Income for 1939, Part 1.)—Individual returns with net income, 1940, by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; also aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income and for taxable fiduciary returns with net income, by States and Territories: Number of returns, net income, deficit, and total tax; also totals for prior years 41—Continued [For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-7 and 8-9]

Net income classes		Maryland			Massachusetts	3		Michigan			Minnesota	
(Thousands of dollars)	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax ?	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax 2	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax 2	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total ·
Taxable individual returns: With net income: 1	1, 917 1, 285 918 673 520 455 3662 288 975 507 291 304 140 86 848 47 47 22 15 38 11 7 1 4	1, 169, 255 918, 183	446. 041 500. 930 799. 459 734. 480 725, 599 576. 259 576. 259 469. 272 430. 921 393. 833 374. 081 390. 708 361, 536 361, 536 336, 759 1, 675. 653 2, 210. 186 1, 339. 208 2, 210. 186 1, 100. 392 1, 312. 099 547. 756 2, 159. 318. 848. 417 779. 489 148. 417 616, 530 797. 522 652, 618		\$14, 935, 013 199, 285, 258 115, 493, 134 114, 792, 831 161, 664, 599 81, 741, 002 47, 706, 150 35, 351, 771 28, 346, 957 23, 016, 616 20, 949, 050 17, 674, 424 15, 321, 282 13, 281, 201 12, 394, 106 10, 802, 614 41, 818, 707 27, 791, 676 20, 510, 236 27, 799, 555 18, 129, 533 11, 768, 742 9, 136, 040 6, 420, 530 1, 768, 742 9, 136, 040 6, 420, 530 5, 093, 529 3, 688, 398 7, 588, 950 5, 188, 354 2, 690, 849 3, 198, 936 929, 323		3	\$3, 944, 843 284, 075, 863 109, 067, 535 120, 085, 603 198, 770, 773 82, 889, 800 50, 464, 559 35, 428, 503 26, 708, 034 21, 223, 634 18, 371, 601 15, 162, 572 14, 188, 401 11, 448, 859 10, 166, 519 16, 503 28, 505, 5219 15, 939, 509 10, 393, 138 8, 788, 239 25, 505, 5219 15, 939, 509 10, 393, 138 8, 788, 239 5, 612, 265 4, 757, 568 4, 344, 571 14, 609, 815 5, 394, 317 4, 455, 399 2, 446, 811 4, 183, 259 1, 704, 059 1, 725, 110 1, 138, 971 1, 623, 670 2, 933, 531 3, 483, 889	\$20, 901 4, 547, 250 1, 918, 666 1, 596, 140 2, 584, 339 1, 430, 364 1, 110, 723 907, 126 878, 531 869, 916 670, 583 3, 573, 064 670, 583 3, 573, 064 4, 956, 166 670, 583 3, 189, 659 3, 166, 999 4, 956, 166 6, 125, 123 2, 669, 232 1, 911, 345 1, 790, 947 6, 859, 666 2, 821, 081 1, 414, 948 2, 570, 855 538, 683 1, 156, 026			

	164, 757 2	499, 105, 811	27, 788, 552 13, 905	349, 838	1, 104, 819, 396 11 60, 572	66, 078, 328 57, 459	395, 277 1	1, 212, 143, 028 11 166, 162	76, 654, 093 25, 603	133, 341		16, 854, 037	41 42
Total, taxable individual rereturns.	164, 759	12 499, 096, 230	27, 802, 457	349, 842	12 1, 104, 758, 824	66, 135, 787	395, 278	12 1, 211, 976, 866	76, 679, 696	133, 341	356, 332, 242	16, 854, 037	43
1 under 2 (est.)	21, 267 36, 273	56, 135, 068		52, 632 89, 225	38, 543, 694 138, 257, 000		47, 228 94, 039	35, 231, 673 147, 657, 751		38, 973 58, 252	27, 129, 101 90, 708, 963		44 45
2.5 under 3 (est.) 3 under 4 (est.) 4 under 5 (est.)	13, 885 4, 041 163	90, 948, 922 37, 504, 096 13, 163, 686 689, 274		39, 602 9, 901 319 11	270, 731, 092 106, 128, 962 32, 220, 635 1, 351, 787 58, 934		75, 898 16, 291 202 11	290, 386, 492 202, 922, 457 52, 526, 113 897, 778 58, 490		55, 129 13, 364 3, 195 110 4	120, 830, 595 35, 869, 610 10, 386, 137 474, 620 20, 985		46 47 48 49 50
	119, 700 1, 354	220, 658, 855 11 4, 105, 506		315, 169 3, 362	587, 322, 014 11 8, 516, 254		365, 186 2, 891	729, 680, 754 11 10, 154, 840		169, 027 2, 361	285, 420, 011 11 3, 536, 465		51 52
Total, nontav- able, individ- ual returns.					<sup>12</sup> 578, S05, 760			<sup>12</sup> 719, 525, 914		171, 388	12 281, 883, 546		53
Grand total in- dividual re- turns (43 plus 53, or 55 plus 56).	285, 813	12 715, 649, 579	27, 802, 457	668, 373	12 1, 683, 564, 584	66, 135, 787	763, 355	<sup>12</sup> 1, 931, 502, 780	76, 679, 696	304, 729	<sup>12</sup> 638, 215, 788	16, 854, 037	54
	284, 457	719, 764, 666	27, 788, 552	665, 007	1,692,141,410	66, 078, 328	760, 463	1, 941, 823, 782	76, 654, 093	302, 368	641, 752, 253	16, 854, 037	55
	1, 356	11 4, 115, 087	13, 905	3, 366	11 8, 576, 826	57, 459	2, 892	11 10, 321, 002	25, 603	2, 361	11 3, 536, 465		56
Taxable fiduciary returns with net income.3	1, 172	3, 736, 629	501, 103	5, 690	19, 105, 467	2, 689, 723	2, 303	11, 327, 346	1, 911, 994	1, 566	5, 617, 634	889, 451	57
Total, individual returns with net income and taxable fiduciary re- turns with net income (55 plus 57).	285, 629	723, 501, 295	28, 289, 655	670, 697	1, 711, 246, 877	68, 768, 051	762, 766	1, 953, 151, 128	78, 566, 087	303, 934	647, 369, 887	17, 743, 488	58
1938 1937 1936 1935 1934 1933 1932	135, 800 133, 183 105, 673 92, 550	423, 887, 924 457, 051, 802 391, 558, 573 316, 888, 322 282, 624, 171 244, 613, 015 265, 618, 871 277, 129, 170	15, 225, 066 21, 500, 438 21, 594, 419 12, 013, 217 11, 040, 490 8, 488, 451 7, 978, 435 5, 528, 213	302, 590 314, 390 284, 320 257, 495 242, 728 231, 960 249, 766 193, 504	868, 958, 070 1, 053, 822, 664 988, 903, 808 825, 327, 457 737, 044, 841 682, 666, 696 735, 390, 899 800, 923, 153	28, 746, 229 52, 381, 623 58, 876, 192 31, 804, 163 24, 624, 216 19, 763, 997 15, 619, 149 12, 380, 194	275, 425 308, 486 239, 363 173, 799 139, 329 112, 053 127, 515 119, 623	\$07, 129, 521 984, 735, 767 862, 577, 726 568, 269, 799 418, 569, 373 293, 131, 080 349, 800, 109 481, 017, 650	29, 511, 649 51, 434, 533 60, 302, 647 28, 319, 046 14, 866, 008 6, 660, 804 8, 380, 316 11, 028, 018	108, 506 107, 560 86, 294 72, 258 67, 297 59, 803 61, 810 52, 853	299, 901, 730 321, 717, 314 296, 978, 853 222, 817, 905 196, 345, 236 163, 750, 734 173, 772, 099 213, 530, 771	8, \$70, 398 11, 908, 597 13, 676, 938 6, 672, 968 5, 257, 595 3, \$17, 982 3, 477, \$95 2, 445, 441	59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68
	With no net income of individual returns.  Nontaxable individual returns:  With net income: 10  Under 1 (est.)  1 under 2 (est.)  2 under 2.5 (est.)  3 under 4 (est.)  5 under 6.  Total.  With no net income of other individual returns.  Grand total individual returns.  Grand total individual returns with net income (41 plus 51).  Individual returns with no net income (42 plus 52).  Taxable fiduciary returns with net income (42 plus 52).  Taxable fiduciary returns with net income (42 plus 52).  Taxable fiduciary returns with net income (42 plus 52).  Total, individual returns with net income (55 plus 57).  Summary for prior Years: 0 1939.  1938.  1937.  1938.  1937.  1938.  1937.  1938.  1939.  1931.	Total	Total	Total taxable individual returns:   With net income: 19	With no net income	Total, taxable individual returns:  With net income: 19 Under 1 (est.) 21, 267 1 under 2 (est.) 36, 273 2 under 2 (est.) 36, 273 3 under 4 (est.) 4, 071 3 under 5 (est.) 4, 071 3 under 5 (est.) 163 3 under 6 (est.) 163 3 under 6 (est.) 17 4 under 7 (est.) 188 3 under 7 (est.) 188 3 under 8 (est.) 188 3 under 1 (est.) 188 3 under 1 (est.) 188 3 under 1 (est.) 188 3 under 2 (est.) 188 3 under 3 (est.) 188 3 under 5 (est.) 188 3 under 5 (est.) 188 3 under 6 (est.) 188 4 under 5 (est.) 188 5 under 6 (est.) 188 5	Total, taxable individual returns:  Nontaxable individual returns:  With net income:  10	Total, taxable individual returns.  Nontaxable individual returns.  Nontaxable individual returns.  With net income: 19  10	Total, taxable individual recturns:  With net income: 19 Under 2 (est.). 21.267   16, 217.809   52, 632   38, 543, 694   47, 228   35, 231, 673   1 under 2 (est.). 36, 273   50, 135, 088   89, 225   138, 237, 000   94, 039   147, 637, 751   2 under 2.6 (est.). 44, 071   96, 945, 922   122.3 479   270, 731, 002   131, 517, 220, 336, 683   23, 244, 683   3 under 4 (est.). 4, 041   13, 153, 688   9, 901   32, 220, 635   16, 291   52, 256, 113   13, 153, 688   9, 901   32, 220, 635   16, 291   52, 256, 113   17, 58, 581   11   58, 490   11   58	Total, taxable individual returns with not net income (4) [11, 054] [13, 164, 579] [14, 190, 066, 230] [17, 800	Total, taxable individual returns:  Nontaxable individual returns:  Nontaxable individual returns:  Nontaxable individual returns:  Nontaxable individual returns:  Uither total.  104, 759   2499,096, 230   27, 802, 437   349, 842   21, 104, 758, 824   66, 135, 787   305, 278   22, 21, 211, 976, 806   76, 679, 696   133, 341    104, 759   24, 211, 22, 23, 23, 24, 24, 24, 24, 24, 24, 24, 24, 24, 24	Total taxable individual recurs.  Nontaxable individual recurs.  Nontaxable individual recurs.  Nontaxable individual recurs.  Nontaxable individual recurs.  Under 1 (est.)	Total, taxable individual returns.  Nontaxable individual returns.  Nontaxable individual returns.  104,759   1490,000,230   27,802,457   349,842   21,104,758,524   66,135,787   395,278   12,211,976,866   76,679,696   133,341   356,332,242   16,854,037    104,670   20,000,130

Table 8. (Tables 9 and 9-A, Statistics of Income for 1939, Part 1.)—Individual returns with net income, 1940, by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; also aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income and for taxable fiduciary returns with net income, by States and Territories: Number of returns, net income, deficit, and total tax; also totals for prior years 41—Con.

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-7 and 8-9]

Net income classes		Mississippi			Missouri			Montana			Nebraska		Γ
(Thousands of dollars)	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax ?	Num- ber of returus	Net income	Total tax 1	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax 2	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total	
Taxable individual returns:  With net income:  1	6, 222 2, 157 2, 421 3, 749 1, 581 1, 581 347 208 347 191 100 92 61 16 60 185 83 34 41 18 10 44 4			3 2 2	\$16,099,722 74,325,030 49,668,480 65,895,005 61,173,085 29,074,570 29,218,736 20,204,711 15,605,814 12,125,780 10,465,993 8,944,697 8,488,431 6,992,942 5,831,261 5,799,778 21,145,539 4,171,681 8,963,645 4,579,977 3,1145,539 4,579,97 4,171,681 8,963,645 2,174,143 8,793,459 4,559,963 4,579,963 8,963,645 2,763,661 8,763,661 8,763,661 8,763,661 8,763,661 8,772 8,772 8,773 8	\$49, 150 980, 515 381, 879 481, 401 764, 557 540, 605, 396 572, 021 514, 514 510, 815 523, 783 473, 978 423, 803 470, 434 420, 699, 330 470, 434 470, 978 421, 893, 855 1, 531, 032 2, 829, 936 2, 301, 244 11, 349, 121 11, 176, 939 11, 176, 939 11, 014, 673 966, 284 2, 461, 880 2, 461, 880 389, 643 389, 643 389, 643 389, 643 389, 643 389, 643 389, 645 389, 645		\$1,476,150 20,221,917 7,997,370 10,149,239 15,137,464 7,712,407 4,394,893 2,934,502 2,275,609 1,925,733 1,343,505 1,085,578 781,551 798,202 605,275 603,104 2,013,509 332,150,448 259,409 332,150,448 259,409 332,150,133,493 71,059 833,351 92,035 833,131,823					17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

												••		
37 38 39 40	2,000 under 3,000													37 38 39 40
41 42	Total With no net income 6	20, 747	69, 772, 845	2,827,537	156, 928	500, 797, 497	30, 865, 649	31,736	84, 845, 074	2, 436, 640	43, 291 1	125, 496, 995 11 324	4, 737, 504 7, 194	41 42
43	Total, taxable individual returns.	20, 747	69, 772, 845	2, 827, 537	156, 928	500, 797, 497	30, 865, 649	31, 736	84, 845, 074	2, 436, 640	43, 292	12125, 496, 671	4, 744, 698	43
44 45 46 47 48 49 50	Nontaxable individual returns:     With net income: 10	5, 937 8, 309 8, 958 3, 023 649 24	4, 350, 479 12, 895, 986 19, 771, 697 8, 106, 629 2, 119, 878 102, 508		34,380 64,421 50,464 17,641 3,656 73	25, 831, 779 98, 097, 231 111, 217, 321 47, 380, 277 11, 771, 353 326, 072 21, 113		7, 209 12, 012 10, 152 3, 480 1, 255 34	5, 003, 573 18, 867, 431 22, 527, 596 9, 312, 342 4, 036, 336 140, 626 5, 816		17, 981 21, 542 16, 121 5, 601 1, 272 68 2	12, 620, 523 32, 912, 759 35, 588, 443 15, 959, 132 4, 127, 412 294, 765 10, 271		44 45 46 47 48 -9 50
51 52	Total With no net income 4	26, 900 1, 002	47, 347, 177 11 1, 981, 833		170, 639 2, 827	294, 645, 146 11 7, 024, 434		34, 143 659	59, 893, 740 11 959, 268		62, 587 1, 701	100, 623, 305 11 2, 223, 364		51 52
53	Total, nontaxable indi- vidual returns.	27, 902	12 45, 365, 344		173, 466	12 287, 620, 712		34,802	12 5S, 934, 472		64, 288	12 98, 399, 941		53
54	Grand total individual re- turns (43 plus 53, or 55 plus 56).	48, 649	12 115, 138, 189	2, 827, 537	330, 394	12 788, 418, 209	30, 865, 649	66, 538	12143, 779, 546	2, 436, 640	107, 580	12 223, 896, 612	4, 744, 698	54
55	Individual returns with net income	47, 647	117, 120, 022	2, 827, 537	327, 567	795, 442, 643	30, 865, 649	65, 879	144, 738, 814	2, 436, 640	105, 878	226, 120, 300	1	55
56	(41 plus 51). Individual returns with no net income (42 plus 52).	1,002	11 1, 981, 833		2, 827	11 7, 024, 434		659	11 959, 268		1, 702	11 2, 223, 688	7, 194	56
57	Taxable fiduciary returns with net income.3	85	282, 638	16, 436	1, 771	6, 198, 299	979, 441	106	409, 477	37, 829	333	966, 932	122, 294	57
58	Total, individual returns with net income and taxable fiduciary returns with net income (55 plus 57).	47, 732	117, 402, 660	2, 843, 973	329, 338	801, 640, 942	31, 845, 090	65, 985	145, 148, 291	2, 474, 469	106, 211	227, 087, 232	4, 859, 798	58
59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67	Summary for prior years: 41 1939	24, 269 19, 831 17, 823 16, 296 13, 570 12, 507 10, 868 10, 548 9, 888 12, 147	73. 095, 660 57, 872, 070 55, 867, 577 54, 516, 977 36, 878, 77 32, 578, 332 24, 020, 766 21, 584, 610 27, 146, 285 40, 556, 389	1, 547, 500 1, 138, 139 1, 542, 247 1, 740, 121 870, 027 479, 717 271, 063 133, 566 87, 221 251, 781	168, 793 144, 996 145, 457 130, 521 110, 370 98, 125 93, 303 95, 808 80, 356 85, 507	452, 816, 402 491, 815, 453 462, 884, 942	20, 422, 602 18, 766, 176 23, 083, 037 24, 210, 538 12, 426, 233 9, 353, 651 6, 848, 926 6, 874, 748 4, 747, 522 8, 750, 374	36, 277 28, 037 30, 468 23, 916 19, 924 16, 825 11, 511 10, 037 9, 722 11, 635	94, 462, 635 71, 826, 749 79, 583, 027 68, 737, 896 56, 710, 731 46, 594, 430 29, 877, 422 23, 221, 605 34, 667, 097 45, 495, 235	1, 456, 442 1, 019, 928 1, 228, 334 1, 410, 820 931, 165 636, 102 403, 837 496, 685 209, 809 461, 295	47, 610 39, 393 40, 629 36, 887 31, 253 26, 781 24, 939 25, 503 23, 940 27, 271	134, 125, 986 111, 243, 317 120, 277, 461 115, 137, 721 93, 113, 326 77, 236, 225 65, 022, 543 66, 007, 036 86, 120, 131 113, 934, 843	2, 328, 080 2, 951, 028 3, 222, 455 1, 795, 640 1, 438, 974 1, 133, 297 970, 563 723, 426	59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68

Table 8. (Tables 9 and 9-A, Statistics of Income for 1939, Part 1.)—Individual returns with net income, 1940, by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; also aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income and for taxable fiduciary returns with net income, by States and Territories: Number of returns, net income, deficit, and total tax; also totals for prior years 11—Con.

Net income classes		Nevada			New Hampshi	re		New Jersey			New Mexico	)
(Thousands of dollars)	Num- ber of returns	Net in- come	Total tax 2	Num- ber of returns	Net in- come	Total tax 2	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax 2	Num- ber of returns	Net in- come	Total
Taxable individual returns:  With net income:  Under 1 (est.)	5, 356 1, 377 1, 554 1, 699 545 340 1339 1115 54 325 210 144 49 33 321 225 10 10 8 6 4 4 5 1 1 1 1 1 1	\$593, 052 7, 677, 828 3, 166, 720 4, 231, 010 5, 803, 794 2, 431, 933 1, 853, 447 897, 966 855, 609 714, 006 515, 322 327, 131 286, 503 322, 983 135, 896 203, 551 837, 847 730, 613 565, 858 867, 986 442, 345 430, 061 384, 746 903, 038 416, 388 95, 780 119, 100 633, 663	\$2, 359 104, 745 31, 230 37, 314, 310 55, 962 48, 873 31, 720 30, 936 21, 713 21, 566 22, 713 11, 197 18, 391 100, 933 101, 250 116, 978 130, 828 142, 577 116, 744 165, 169 40, 679 43, 755 370, 476 577 176, 579	4, 434 9, 902 2, 668 2, 607 2, 588 1, 067 681 378 269 141 109 86 64 44 45 42 42 13 13 6 6 39 42 42 43 13 6 6 39 42 42 43 43 44 4 4 6 6 3	\$4, 094, 468 12, 911, 811 6, 141, 413 7, 107, 842 8, 850, 863 4, 741, 339 3, 717, 364 2, 445, 378 2, 016, 719 1, 684, 020 1, 339, 120 1, 140, 071 987, 271 796, 821 795, 758 680, 827 2, 646, 032 1, 474, 916 1, 062, 679 1, 453, 561 576, 481 708, 973 385, 487 380, 326 333, 482 333, 482 333, 487 380, 326 333, 487 380, 326 337, 791 694, 095 516, 772	\$11, 184 158, 296 56, 719 62, 832 120, 008 96, 279 87, 650 72, 003 75, 160 65, 907 62, 342 65, 905 60, 190 52, 595 60, 190 52, 75, 805 52, 805	32, 217 136, 295 55, 012 54, 012 53, 211 19, 35 10, 929 6, 625 4, 462 2, 333 1, 338 1, 338 1, 338 1, 338 1, 395 896 606 606 606 605 11, 190 2, 307 1, 190 604 605 605 605 605 605 605 605 605 605 605	\$29, 239, 271 188, 149, 550 126, 331, 375 143, 200, 63 181, 408, 353 85, 466, 078 85, 466, 078 27, 12, 23 23, 337, 404 27, 048, 253 22, 169, 094 19, 196, 897 15, 916, 551 13, 552, 208 12, 088, 677 10, 559, 545 39, 660, 280 26, 502, 782 22, 036, 879 14, 257, 159 10, 016, 357 6, 529, 366 5, 124, 539 3, 807, 178 2, 645, 360 8, 739, 701 4, 402, S38 2, 715, 942 1, 698, 569 28, 132, 426 962, 132 1, 728, 049 1, 543, 332 5, 444, 455	\$121, 682 2, 481, 413 1, 178, 196 11, 293, 571 1, 519, 301 1, 131, 1030 1, 161, 926 1, 136, 539 1, 105, 393 1, 105, 634 905, 660 855, 776 855, 776 855, 776 855, 776 3, 541, 852 3, 102, 275 2, 242, 801 1, 863, 186 1, 150, 848 1, 152, 689 4, 050, 397 2, 389, 766 1, 465, 107 941, 141 1, 704, 370 647, 583 998, 791 999, 948 3, 465, 799, 948	890 5, 418 1, 847 2, 1507 2, 597 594 263 156 60 71 34 34 34 34 34 37 37 37 37 37 37 37 37 37 37	\$332, 9\$7 7, 680, 547 4, 203, 406 5, 791, 286 8, 559, 801 4, 111, 102 3, 244, 933 1, 690, 461 1, 167, 505 696 405, 686 405, 686 405, 686 405, 686 405, 686 405, 686 417, 330 1, 302, 261 587, 481 387, 763 388, 802 203, 277	\$1, 998 96, 612 44, 828 50, 084 114, 477 83, 301 89, 869 57, 646 49, 172 32, 022 31, 623 42, 631 140, 059 79, 897 43, 933 102, 250 100, 452 118, 539 72, 152 64, 404

38 39 40	3,000 under 4,000 4,000 under 5,000 5,000 and over	1						2	6, 169, 786	4, 767, 025			
. 41 42	Total With no net income 6	12, 487	37, 603, 765	3, 079, 444	25, 654	70, 057, 732	3, 703, 278	389, 295 3	1, 200. 326. 169 11 197, 172	39, 269, 507 32, 000	15, 248	45, 831, 552	2,018.476
43	Total, taxable individual returns.	12, 487	37, 603, 765	3, 079, 444	25, 654	70, 057, 732	3, 703, 278	389, 298	12 1, 200, 128, 997	19, 301, 507	15, 248	45, 831, 552	2, 018, 476
44 45 46 47 48 49 50	Nontaxable individual returns:  With net income; 10  Under 1 (est.)	1, 517 2, 204 3, 119 1, 005 335 5	1, 095, 958 3, 441, 248 6, 888, 963 2, 704, 098 1, 069, 354 23, 033		7, 336 8, 101 8, 456 3, 092 711 28 1	5, 693, 437 12, 011, 117 18, 607, 927 8, 295, 505 2, 334, 383 1,124, 114 5, 368		63, 600 93, 865 125, 466 48, 478 10, 958 340 6	49, 509, 764 143, 821, 595 276, 965, 148 129, 049, 944 35, 325, 995 1, 450, 535 31, 457		2, 516 4, 362 4, 640 1, 910 1, 431 12	1, 763, 078 6, 655, 358 ₹10, 193, 359 ₹5, 143, 903 1, 376, 820 53, 682	
51 52	TotalWith no net income 4	8, 185 208	15, 222, 654 11 453, 137		27, 725 518	47, 071, 851 11 910, 606		342, 713 4, 340	636, 154, 438 11 12, 404, 419		13, 871 548	25, 186, 209 11, 237, 446	
53	Total, nontaxable indi- vidual returns.	8, 393	12 14, 769, 517		28, 243	12 46, 161, 245		147, 053	12 623, 750, 019		14, 419	12 23, 948, 763	
54	Grand total individual returns (43 plus 53, or 55 plus 56).	20,880	12 52, 373, 282	3, 079, 444	53,897	12 116, 218, 977	1, 703, 278	736, 351	12 1, 823, 879, 016	39, 301, 507	29,667	12 69, 780, 315	2,018,476
55	Individual returns with net income (41 plus 51).	20, 672	52, 826, 419	3, 079, 444	53, 379	117, 129, 583	1, 703, 278	732, 008	1, 836, 480, 607	39, 269, 507	29, 119	71, 017, 761	2, 018, 476
56	Individual returns with no net income (42 plus 52).	208	11 453, 137		518	11 910,606		4,343	11 12,601,591	32,000	548	11 1, 237, 446	
57	Taxable fiduciary returns with net income.3	44	413, 415	114, 205	255	655, 222	60, 824	2, 284	14, 123, 455	5, 452, 162	49	132, 337	7, 034
58	Total, individual returns with net income and taxable fiduciary returns with net income (55 plus 57).	20,716	53, 239, 834	3, 193, 649	53, 634	117, 784, 805	3, 764, 102	734, 292	1,850,604,062	74, 721, 669	29, 168	71,150,098	2. 025, 510
59 60 61 62 63 64 55 66 67 68	Summary for prior years: 41 1939 1938 1937 1936 1935 1934 1933 1932 1931 1930	11.089 8,987 8,944 7,554 6,441 5,321 3,692 4,102 3,431 4,006	34, 247, 513 28, 129, 319 31, 635, 125 27, 045, 172 20, 631, 384 15, 236, 981 9, 772, 417 10, 867, 743 14, 041, 657 16, 688, 195	1, 927, 659 1, 718, 719 2, 439, 872 2, 226, 219 1, 363, 651 528, 009 380, 800 362, 378 349, 026 472, 636	26,010 21,118 21,641 19,654 17,687 16,785 15,458 15,738 15,738 12,477 13,927	73, 902, 180 59, 704, 177 68, 046, 171 62, 819, 698 51, 553, 939 48, 267, 423 41, 555, 501 43, 854, 575 49, 243, 306 60, 014, 739	3, 230, 495 3, 059, 299 1, 435, 182	302,957 297,053 260,328 323,489 210,683 202,190 217,812 178,754	928, 770, 742 1, 001, 637, 297 928, 153, 400 737, 154, 952 686, 065, 373 618, 361, 894		17, 178 13, 726 13, 596 11, 222 9, 272 7, 647 5, 577 5, 577 5, 574 5, 389 6, 288	49, 635, 489 39, 485, 826 42, 469, 435 34, 952, 886 25, 399, 852 20, 107, 880 14, 268, 551 14, 666, 467 18, 231, 469 24, 970, 971	1, 360, 595 829, 246 1, 141, 400 799, 507 364, 772 277, 567 165, 971 178, 605 117, 336 222, 459

Table 8. (Tables 9 and 9-A, Statistics of Income for 1939, Part 1.)—Individual returns with net income, 1940, by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; also aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income and for taxable fiduciary returns with net income, by States and Territories: Number of returns, net income, deficit, and total tax; also totals for prior years 11—Con.

		New York			North Caroli	na	:	North Dakots	1		Ohio		ľ
Net income classes (Thousands of dollars)	Number of returns	Net income	Total tax 2	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax 2	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax 2	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax2	
Taxable individual returns:  With net income:  1 Under 1 (est.)	54, 295 36, 166 22, 314 10, 772 8, 394 10, 772 8, 394 4, 956 4, 903 3, 358 2, 894 4, 776 2, 796 3, 019 1, 491 1, 4	\$94, 598, 006 531, 799, 847 313, 639, 899 404, 376, 471 494, 916, 933 240, 722, 817 197, 512, 197 144, 242, 895 111, 434, 172 91, 297, 303 845, 243, 440 41, 879, 551 157, 157, 257 103, 913, 528 66, 442, 442, 442, 442, 442, 442, 442, 4	\$374, 262 7, 030, 864 3, 005, 888 3, 633, 719 6, 187, 367 4, 517, 009 4, 016, 901 3, 903, 310 -3, 816, 217 3, 602 3, 649, 518 3, 502, 752 3, 402, 553 3, 333, 550 3, 387, 178 15, 593, 16, 456 13, 900, 289 17, 811, 913 10, 852, 558 17, 811, 913 10, 852, 558 17, 811, 913 10, 852, 558 17, 811, 913 10, 852, 558 17, 811, 913 10, 852, 558 17, 811, 913 10, 852, 558 17, 911, 191 10, 852, 558 17, 911, 191 10, 852, 558 11, 911, 114 14, 976, 057 7, 941, 393 10, 284, 873, 161 7, 976, 057 7, 941, 393 10, 284, 873, 161 7, 976, 057 7, 941, 393 10, 832, 864 7, 140, 572 7, 941, 393 10, 852, 598 2, 172, 159 3, 120, 094						36, 663 42, 353 42, 353 42, 3661 57, 818 33, 353 31, 105 29, 131 22, 137 24, 142 20, 780 19, 6112 13, 979 20, 374 38, 271 37, 543 32, 122 9, 23, 232	6 2	\$22, 511, 294 269, 619, 934 129, 403, 519 158, 196, 037 206, 259, 301 96, 651, 393 64, 092, 234 46, 510, 330 21, 203, 865 18, 505, 036 15, 431, 451 13, 331, 509 13, 353, 188 48, 779, 494 32, 871, 372 21, 1913, 753 31, 204, 653 22, 151, 151, 200 14, 434, 184 9, 329, 414 6, 667, 923 14, 134, 184 9, 329, 414 16, 667, 923 16, 313, 618 17, 253, 953 18, 204 18, 18, 18, 18, 18, 18, 18, 18, 18, 18,	2, 433, 830 2, 503, 045 1, 642, 324 7, 191, 201 2, 738, 076 2, 769, 746 611, 435 2, 596, 930 862, 343 1, 872, 731	1 2 3 4 4 5 6 6 7 7 8 9 9 0 11 1 12 2 1 13 14 4 15 5 6 17 18 19 20 1 22 2 24 25 26 27 3 29 30 1 32 33 4 35 6 36 37 33 9

													•	
40	5,000 and over												{	4
41 42 43	Total With no net income 6	1, 112, 414 21	3,822,135,771 11 1,853,309	310, 056, 252 194, 869	58, 239	193, 433, 884	13, 706, 265	12,051	32, 180, 337	747, 718	453, 511 4	1, 399, 036, 021 11 102, 837	82, 652, 496 68, 970	
10	Total, taxable in- dividual returns.	1, 112, 435	12 3, 820, 282, 462	310, 251, 121	58, 239	193, 433, 884	13, 706, 265	12, 051	32, 180, 337	747, 718	453, 515	12 1, 398, 963, 184	82, 721, 466	43
	Nontaxable individual re- turns:	·												
44 45 46 47 48 49 50	With net income: 10 Under 1 (est.) 1 under 2 (est.) 2 under 2.5 (est.) 2.5 under 3 (est.) 3 under 4 (est.) 4 under 5 (est.) 5 under 6	370, 022 146, 218 57, 185 1, 040	148, 509, 806 439, 891, 205 815, 955, 632 394, 750, 510 180, 622, 172 4, 439, 479 83, 792			16, 593, 816 29, 076, 128 46, 003, 919 19, 577, 141 5, 653, 932 449, 650 11, 214		7, 444 10, 661 6, 149 2, 118 699 41	4, 594, 088 16, 503, 421 13, 585, 536 5, 681, 154 2, 301, 773 174, 855 5, 436		69, 494 110, 482 187, 643 66, 112 14, 113 426 4	53, 316, 822 170, 139, 806 413, 424, 771 176, 132, 543 45, 604, 179 1, 865, 147 20, 421		4 4 4 4
51 52	Total	1, 054, 193 16, 436	1, 984, 252, 596 11 65, 408, 287		69, 970 882	117, 365, 830 11 2, 028, 531		27, 113 799	42, 951, 263 11 837, 937		448, 274 3, 971	860, 503, 689 11 12, 417, 324		51 52
53	Total, nontaxable individual re- turns,	1, 070, 629	12 1, 918, 844, 309		70, 852	12 115, 337, 299		27, 912	12 42, 013, 326		452, 245	12 S48, 036, 365		53
54	Grand total indi- vidual returns (43 plus 53, or 55 plus 56).	2, 183, 064	12 5, 739, 126, 771	310, 251, 121	129, 091	19 308, 771, 183	13, 706, 265	39, 963	12 74, 193, 663	747, 718	905, 760	12 2, 247, 049, 549	82, 721, 466	5.
55 56	Individual returns with net income (41 plus 51).	2, 166, 607	5, 806, 388, 367	310, 056, 252	128, 209	310, 799, 714	13, 706, 265	39, 164	75, 031, 600	747, 718	901, 785	2, 259, 569, 710	S2, 652, 496	55
	Individual returns with no net income (42 plus 52).	16, 457	11 67, 261, 596	194, 869	882	11 2, 028, 531		799	11 837, 937		3, 975	11 12, 520, 161	68, 970	56
57	Taxable fiduciary returns with net income 3.	14,342	57, 991, 290	12, 098, 368	373	2, 065, 573	315, 691	. 71	163, 719	6, 543	3, 377	18, 340, 874	3, 998, 655	57
58	Total, individual returns with net income and taxable fiduciary returns with net income (55 plus 57).	2, 130, 949	5, 864, 379, 657	323, 154, 620	128, 582	312, 865, 287	14, 021, 956	39, 235	75, 195, 319	754, 231	905, 162	2, 277, 910, 584	86, 651, 151	58
59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68	Summary for prior years: 41 1939	1,065,103	3, 426, 113, 310 3, 875, 605, 654 3, 864, 452, 725 3, 106, 263, 965 2, 811, 720, 784 2, 598, 890, 660 2, 764, 354, 206	215, 922, 746 186, 356, 667 296, 063, 388 348, 687, 146 202, 971, 449 166, 789, 731 137, 414, 061 109, 593, 059 77, 975, 788 163, 508, 893	61, 019 50, 481 48, 645 42, 075 35, 813 32, 305 29, 462 25, 972 22, 625 25, 216	193, 275, 116 163, 555, 414 175, 495, 057 156, 362, 462 124, 880, 237 112, 913, 710 91, 673, 065 76, 959, 708 88, 0+2, 580 103, 624, 484	9, 162, 604 7, 773, 586 10, 582, 369 10, 499, 380 6, 419, 410 6, 281, 451 4, 121, 232 4, 017, 702 2, 030, 395 2, 426, 569	13, 958 11, 457 11, 408 10, 809 10, 039 9, 733 8, 359 8, 889 7, 013 8, 262	27, 446, 660 28, 351, 977 26, 705, 284 23, 077, 405 22, 351, 926 16, 799, 800	342. 058 2S0, 185 358, 874 352, 260 191, 412 183, 955 115, 100 110, 561 42, 519 86, 704	345, 903 334, 077 308, 789 246, 888 209, 589 181, 212 188, 141 164, 809	1, 013, 713, 152 1, 228, 084, 956 1, 078, 986, 270 766, 528, 630 631, 348, 370 511, 694, 014 556, 313, 005	13, 237, 425 12, 296, 627 9, 742, 860	63 64 65 66

Table 8. (Tables 9 and 9-A, Statistics of Income for 1939, Part 1.)—Individual returns with net income, 1940, by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; also aggregates for taxable and nontaxable, individual returns with no net income and for taxable fiduciary returns with net income, by States and Territories: Number of returns, net income, deficit, and total tax; also totals for prior years 41—Continued

_	Net income classes		Oklahoma			Oregon			Pennsylvania			Rhode Islan	đ	
	(Thousands of dollars)	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax 2	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax <sup>2</sup>	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax 2	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax 2	
1 22 3 4 5 6 7 8 8 9 10 11 1 13 14 5 16 17 18 11 9 20 1 22 23 4 25 26 27 28 8 29 9 30 31 32 33 33 33	Taxable individual returns:  With net income:  Under 1 (est.).  1 under 2 (est.).  2 under 2.5 (est.)  2.5 under 3 (est.).  3 under 4 (est.).  4 under 5 (est.).  5 under 6.  6 under 7.  7 under 8.  8 under 9.  9 under 10.  10 under 11.  11 under 12.  12 under 13.  13 under 14.  14 under 15.  15 under 6.  60 under 7.  7 under 8.  8 under 9.  9 under 10.  10 under 11.  11 under 12.  12 under 13.  30 under 40.  40 under 60.  50 under 60.  60 under 70.  70 under 80.  80 under 90.  90 under 100.  100 under 150.  150 under 200.  200 under 250.  250 under 300.  300 under 400.  400 under 500.  500 under 750.  750 under 1,000.  1,000 under 1,500.  1,500 under 2,000.	15, 105 4, 607 5, 999 8, 470 1, 083 762 490 402 238 209 158 129 106 338 185 96 82 82 82 839 106 33 37 20 110 6 33 9 44	\$1, 770, 895 21, 698, 772 10, 535, 5351 16, 529, 489 29, 285, 239 14, 557, 272 9, 887, 009 7, 003, 152 5, 697, 298 4, 150, 391 3, 811, 817 2, 492, 309 2, 401, 400 1, 967, 063 1, 735, 122 4, 120, 658 2, 000, 883 2, 803, 444 1, 714, 807 2, 035, 435 1, 312, 988 742, 457 508, 361 284, 571 1, 045, 672, 176 347, 870	\$11, 558 303, 552 103, 150 151, 117 355, 266 265, 994 227, 012 198, 684 202, 444 178, 499 140, 190 150, 560 136, 635 127, 244 127, 244 127	5, 014 31, 810 7, 646 6, 884 6, 714 2, 742 1, 607 311 238 191 144 104 120 302 148 85 93 38 21 9 7 4 4 3 2 2 2	\$4, 592, 104 43, 401, 993 17, 356, 419 18, 815, 429 22, 899, 076 12, 242, 194 8, 776, 189 6, 366, 61, 61 4, 965, 174 3, 957, 991 2, 956, 965 2, 490, 038 2, 193, 359 1, 799, 344 1, 400, 706 63, 280, 317 2, 295, 703 3, 174, 380 1, 715, 180 1, 715, 180 1, 715, 180 1, 716, 180 1, 716, 180 347, 205 282, 826 230, 753 347, 506 347, 205 282, 826 230, 753 415, 679	\$13, 560 \$13, 283 194, 623 194, 623 294, 615 290, 654 199, 789 177, 353 177, 496 168, 276 143, 918 194, 574 137, 438 496, 379 442, 589 392, 044 465, 163 445, 523 377, 384 182, 817 184, 251 133, 602 134, 918 137, 438 138, 041 121, 418 137, 438 138, 041 121, 418 137, 438 138, 164 137, 438 138, 164 137, 438 148, 158 148, 168 148, 1	22, 616 276, 793 70, 095 65, 434 85, 115 33, 691 15, 384 9, 677 6, 487 4, 671 3, 509 2, 713 2, 138 1, 760 1, 426 1, 228 3, 918 1, 974 1, 177 1, 280 1, 286 148 93 62 155 67 20 14 11	\$20, 377, 387 398, 552, 544 157, 756, 769 179, 780, 678 292, 576, 247 148, 970, 754 48, 137, 321 62, 692, 467 48, 487, 321 62, 692, 467 33, 250, 523 28, 452, 406 24, 685, 085 21, 952, 455 19, 226, 837 17, 793, 269 67, 372, 567 43, 942, 148 32, 132, 280 43, 344, 306 29, 851, 919 18, 300, 109 17, 087, 169 11, 1019, 947 7, 836, 176 5, 875, 601 18, 712, 654 11, 556, 602 4, 369, 840 3, 737, 814 7, 102, 943 5, 959, 709 6, 472, 647	\$96, 709 5, 874, 598 2, 468, 651 2, 468, 657 3, 979, 768 2, 711, 965 1, 769, 419 1, 716, 519 1, 668, 113 1, 632, 288 1, 522, 306 1, 524, 524 1, 444, 425 6, 673, 975 5, 922, 974 5, 503, 890 9, 305, 596 9, 305, 596 1, 501, 124 1, 444, 425 6, 673, 975 5, 922, 974 5, 603, 574 5, 603, 574 5, 603, 574 5, 603, 574 5, 603, 574 5, 603, 574 5, 603, 574 5, 603, 574 5, 603, 574 5, 603, 574 5, 503, 603 5, 524 5, 669, 443 5, 886, 154 5, 420, 464 5, 686, 443 5, 886, 154 5, 420, 467 5, 633, 528 3, 647, 039 3, 625, 991	3, 252 23, 352 5, 658 5, 689 2, 571 1, 186 424 319 224 1199 129 129 129 129 129 129 129 129 12	\$2, 951, 596 32, 913, 771 12, 801, 948 13, 929, 145 19, 458, 051 11, 363, 545 6, 505, 076 5, 176, 255 4, 054, 980 3, 603, 606 3, 027, 137 2, 526, 055 2, 284, 979 2, 103, 335 1, 671, 506 6, 016, 072 3, 933, 326 2, 890, 595 4, 559, 162 3, 751, 623 1, 484, 561 1, 219, 669 1, 620, 673 750, 042 659, 654 2, 555, 701 1, 196, 158 1, 196, 697 1, 196, 158 1, 196, 363 2, 363	\$10, 500 469, 985 186, 700 156, 163 273, 479 219, 818 157, 742 146, 197 144, 899 156, 542 153, 957 139, 591 142, 955 124, 780 538, 583 518, 793 981, 536 538, 583 518, 793 981, 536 607, 624 297, 604 423, 726 607, 624 297, 604 297, 935 1, 212, 133 652, 396 505, 831 228, 905 631, 181	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 6 17 7 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 29 30 31 32 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33
34 35 36	750 under 1,000 1,000 under 1,500 1,500 under 2,000							2	3, 311, 038 2, 518, 344	1, 589, 787 1, 194, 929				34 35 36

37 38	2,000 under 3,000						ļ	2	4, 207, 191	3, 127, 210				37 38
39 40	4,000 under 5,000 5,000 and over							2	8, 090, 442	6, 281, 572				39 40
41 42	Total With no net income 6	45, 730	159, 226, 142	8, 261, 558	66, 356	175, 437, 202	6, 775, 119	612, 952 2	1, 930, 873, 353 11 23, 934	133, 525, 734 15, 294	50, 704	159, 722, 935	12, 254, 305	41 42
43	Total, taxable indi- vidual returns.	45, 730	159, 226, 142	8, 261, 558	66, 356	175, 437, 202	6, 775, 119	612, 954	12 1, 930, 849, 419	133, 541, 028	50, 704	159, 722, 935	12, 254, 305	43
	Nontaxable individual re- turns:													
44 45 46 47 48 49 50	With net income: 10 Under 1 (est.) 1 under 2 (est.) 2 under 2.5 (est.) 2.5 under 3 (est.) 3 under 4 (est.) 4 under 5 (est.) 5 under 6	11, 585 26, 022 20, 717 6, 303 1, 614 45 8	7, 752, 856 40, 577, 122 45, 526, 014 16, 897, 332 5, 275, 544 190, 507 43, 246		10, 829 20, 096 20, 214 4, 842 978 4 2	7, 978, 807 31, 028, 503 44, 244, 230 12, 933, 900 3, 159, 452 17, 032 10, 676		117, 611 162, 647 253, 643 58, 962 14, 923 690 14	90, 581, 765 247, 531, 778 556, 244, 926 157, 946, 355 48, 639, 059 2, 955, 275 73, 431		13, 011 15, 540 16, 601 5, 084 1, 393 20 2	10, 434, 827 23, 317, 606 36, 264, 584 13, 621, 597 4, 555, 869 91, 360 10, 767		44 45 46 47 48 49 50
51 52	Total With no net income 4	66, 294 1, 809	116, 262, 621 11 4, 549, 228		56, 965 1, 211	99, 372, 600 11 2, 596, 227		608, 490 6, 739	1, 103, 972, 589		51, 651 559	88, 296, 610 11 2, 625, 866		51 52
53	Total, nontaxable individual returns.	68, 103	12 111, 713, 393		58, 176	12 96, 776, 373		615, 229	<sup>12</sup> 1, 082, 311, 617		52, 210	12 85, 670, 744		53
54	Grand total individ- ual returns (43 plus 53, or 55 plus 56).	113,833	12 270, 939, 535	8,261,558	124, 532	2 272, 213, 575	6, 775, 119	1, 228, 183	12 3, 013, 161, 036	133, 541, 028	102, 914	<sup>12</sup> 245, 393, 679	12, 254, 305	54
<b>5</b> 5		112, 024	275, 488, 763	8, 261, 558	123, 321	274, 809, 802	6, 775, 119	1, 221, 442	3, 034, 845, 942	133, 525, 734	102, 355	248, 019, 545	12, 254, 305	55
<b>5</b> 6	Individual returns with no net income (42 plus 52).	1, 809	11 4, 549, 228		1, 211	11 2, 596, 227		6, 741	11 21, 684, 906	15, 294	559	11 2, 625, 866		56
57	Taxable fiduciary returns with net income.3	393	2, 651, 584	550, 373	314	876, 048	69, 962	5, 801	22, 264, 542	4, 432, 120	916	2,874,257	433, 558	57
58	Total, individual returns with net income and taxable fiduciary returns with net income (55 plus 57).	112, 417	278, 140, 347	8, 811, 931	123, 635	275, 685, 850	6, 845, 081	1, 227, 243	3, 057, 110, 484	137, 957, 854	103, 271	250, 893, 802	12, 687, 863	58
59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68	Summary for prior years: 4 1939 1938 1938 1937 1936 1935 1934 1933 1932 1931 1930	65, 009 56, 083 55, 323 51, 277 44, 909 39, 279 33, 224 31, 832 28, 242 32, 526	190, 524, 308 170, 786, 455 139, 147, 683	5, 267, 186 8, 265, 541 6, 632, 281 3, 433, 003 3, 416, 992 1, 608, 377 1, 203, 868 861, 871	66, 478 53, 807 51, 802 37, 778 33, 273 27, 253 27, 572 25, 845 20, 181 26, 047	135, 376, 385 144, 034, 458 118, 060, 934	3, 252, 522 2, 423, 702 3, 251, 763 3, 213, 027 1, 625, 697 1, 084, 638 795, 893 670, 442 474, 055 1, 073, 686	633, 833 505, 049 576, 291 470, 511 389, 994 342, 308 323, 960 334, 471 267, 848 322, 503	1, 858, 299, 904 1, 562, 159, 923 1, 892, 696, 555 1, 604, 324, 714 1, 273, 383, 247 1, 067, 788, 870 970, 250, 517 1, 023, 234, 341 1, 193, 400, 020 1, 620, 314, 109	85, 926, 395 63, 253, 811 63, 253, 811 90, 290 104, 979, 166 57, 052, 818 44, 423, 725 32, 872, 779 39, 904, 410 24, 854, 558 46, 825, 528	51, 297 41, 590 43, 273 38, 424 33, 009 31, 235 29, 489 30, 581 22, 375 23, 862	156, 470, 599 122, 134, 507 151, 295, 024 141, 967, 609 113, 640, 801 104, 193, 731 92, 589, 659 101, 863, 121 111, 159, 397 136, 571, 363	7, 524, 150 5, 012, 419 10, 066, 754 10, 755, 927 6, 002, 036 5, 232, 124 3, 452, 803 3, 839, 178 2, 598, 619 4, 114, 526	59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68

Table 8. (Tables 9 and 9-A, Statistics of Income for 1939, Part 1.)—Individual returns with net income, 1940, by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; also aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income and for taxable fiduciary returns with net income, by States and Territories: Number of returns, net income, deficit, and total tax; also totals for prior years 1 — Con.

Net income classes		South Carolin	1a		South Dakots	3		Tennessee			Texas		
(Thousands of dollars)	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax 3	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax 3	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax 2	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax 1	
Taxable individual returns:  With net income:  1 Under 1 (est.)  2 1 under 2 (est.)  4 2.5 under 3 (est.)  5 3 under 4 (est.)  6 4 under 5 (est.)  7 5 under 6.  8 6 under 7.  9 7 under 8.  10 8 under 9.  11 9 under 10.  12 10 under 11.  13 11 under 12.  14 12 under 13.  15 13 under 14.  16 14 under 15.  17 15 under 6.  20 under 25.  19 25 under 30.  20 under 25.  19 25 under 30.  20 30 under 40.  21 40 under 50.  22 50 under 60.  23 60 under 70.  24 70 under 80.  25 80 under 90.  26 90 under 100.  27 100 under 150.  28 150 under 250.  30 250 under 250.  30 250 under 250.  30 250 under 250.  31 300 under 400.  22 400 under 250.  33 500 under 250.  34 750 under 1,500.  35 1,000 under 1,500.  35 1,000 under 1,500.  36 1,500 under 2,000.	9, 517 2, 936 3, 497 3, 470 1, 465 917 566 566 339 259 101 101 75 45 177 23 100 3 3 3 4 1 1 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1	\$3, 668, 207 12, 311, 559 6, 706, 669, 651, 226 11, 898, 506 6, 486, 426 5, 003, 021 3, 656, 436 2, 531, 807 2, 204, 219 1, 654, 075 1, 561, 107 1, 161, 603 933, 250 1, 105, 578 654, 928 2, 947, 570 1, 664, 766 1, 239, 395 1, 250, 226 1, 020, 698 519, 874 193, 022 225, 285 341, 710 99, 065 583, 944 353, 613 230, 047	48, 519 275, 095 192, 015 133, 667		13, 332		5, 472 21, 501 7, 390 8, 687 10, 753 4, 400 2, 190 1, 385 470 388 321 321 320 193 180 474 229 180 474 239 180 15 10 7 7 10 3 89 5 5 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	\$4, 940, 739 29, 531, 462 17, 035, 594 23, 833, 917 36, 964, 354 19, 362, 105 11, 956, 287 8, 950, 037 6, 867, 366 5, 547, 577 4, 455, 170 4, 062, 309 3, 682, 852 2, 749, 865 2, 604, 474 2, 608, 657 8, 161, 038 3, 529, 911 6, 493, 000 3, 949, 578 2, 740, 156 1, 557, 699 1, 136, 424 854, 427 671, 935 1, 194, 360 462, 398 296, 229 1, 068, 784 861, 800 645, 054	\$18, 112 389, 886 153, 658 199, 272 428, 519 323, 735 268, 558 249, 169 240, 438 229, 473 2219, 562 188, 097 189, 405 207, 044 789, 864 709, 162 558, 957 1, 390, 019 1, 023, 414 820, 322 407, 033 276, 455 518, 293 210, 164	16, 949 64, 057 28, 936 29, 950 38, 482 17, 002 2, 581 1, 738 1, 324 4, 550 1, 453 1, 411 725 406 519 265 115 80 45 31 166 31 167 31 17 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18	\$15, 890, 692 89, 658, 498 65, 045, 101 82, 442, 948 132, 253, 664 75, 187, 732 48, 754, 986 29, 501, 073 19, 244, 162 14, 701, 008 12, 538, 243 9, 702, 855 7, 547, 264 7, 419, 345 6, 575, 266 24, 285, 796 11, 086, 612 17, 851, 855 11, 717, 644 1, 63, 137, 915 2, 628, 642 1, 535, 334 4, 452, 152 2, 013, 713 2, 035, 612 2, 035, 612 2, 253, 734 390, 237	\$37, 875 1, 143, 581 628, 221 782, 455 1, 941, 524 1, 572, 791 1, 322, 157 1, 021, 464 860, 958 779, 605 753, 032 658, 659 705, 315 598, 600 631, 592 601, 915 2, 663, 278 2, 343, 215 1, 993, 064 3, 921, 484 3, 096, 038 11, 959, 244 1, 708, 980 11, 251, 743 11, 034, 068 654, 968 654, 968 11, 034, 068 654, 968 11, 034, 068 654, 968 12, 076, 131 198, 076 138, 076 1398, 026 1, 026, 131 198, 814 240, 021	11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 9 30

37 38 39 40	2,000 under 3,000 3,000 under 4,000 4,000 under 5,000 5,000 and over				l									37 38 39 40
41 42	Total With no net income 5		81, 927, 816		12, 432	30, 182, 699	806, 920	66, 370	224, 091, 021	13, 174, 462	221, 007	736, 467, 893	39, 695, 308	41 42
43	Total, taxable individual returns.	27, 949	81, 927, 816	3, 625, 017	12, 432	30, 182, 699	806, 920	66, 370	224, 091, 021	13, 174, 462	221, 007	736, 467, 893	39, 695, 308	43
44 45 46 47 48 49 50	Nontaxable individual returns:  With net income: 10  Under 1 (est.)  1 under 2 (est.)  2 under 2.5 (est.)  2.5 under 3 (est.)  3 under 4 (est.)  4 under 5 (est.)  5 under 6	9, 447 11, 284 10, 509 3, 322 507 12 3	7, 278, 990 17, 235, 828 23, 244, 667 8, 982, 126 2, 958, 045 51, 814 15, 637		8, 703 9, 808 5, 364 1, 253 347 19	5, 817, 927 14, 857, 846 11, 745, 655 3, 380, 655 1, 135, 179 89, 880 5, 269		14. 755 19, 689 26, 571 8, 305 2, 399 80 3	11, 806, 265 29, 825, 675 58, 608, 581 22, 349, 861 7, 728, 197 341, 926 15, 525		49, 660 70, 110 80, 509 27, 204 6, 668 186 3	37. 007, 592 107, 606, 948 177, 127, 262 73, 071, 712 21, 583, 765 831, 574 16, 040		44 45 46 47 48 49 50
51 52	Total With no net income 4	35, 484 563	59, 767, 107 11 1, 257, 550		25, 495 833	37, 032, 434 11 979, 701		71, 802 849	130, 676, 030 11 2, 022, 300		234, 340 5, 736	417, 244, 893 11 18, 075, 305		51 52
53	Total, nontaxable indi- vidual returns.	36, 047	12 58, 509, 557		26, 328	12 36, 052, 733		72, 651	12 128, 653, 730		240, 076	12 399, 169, 588		53
54	Grand total individual returns (43 plus 53, or 55 plus 56).	63, 996	12 140, 437, 373	3, 625, 017	38, 760	12 66, 235, 432	806, 920	139, 021	12 352, 744, 751	13, 174, 402	461, 083	12 1, 135, 637, 481	39, 695, 308	54
55	Individual returns with net income (41 plus 51).	63, 433	141, 694, 923	3, 625, 017	37, 927	67, 215, 133	<del>ა</del> 0ნ, 920	138, 172	354, 767, 051	13, 174, 462	455, 347	1, 153, 712, 786	39, 695, 308	55
56	Individual returns with no net in- come (42 plus 52).	563	11 1, 257, 550		833	11 979, 701		849	11 2, 022, 300		5, 736	11 18, 075, 305		56
57	Taxable fiduciary returns with net income. 3	152	700, 011	86, 011	91	210, 041	9, 452	430	2, 997, 735	1, 116, 456	1, 789	8, 565, 007	1, 355, 918	57
58	Total, individual returns with net income and taxable fiduciary returns with net income (55 plus 57).	63, 585	142, 394, 934	3, 711, 028	38, 018	67, 425, 174	816, 372	138, 602	357, 764, 786	14, 290, 918	457, 136	1, 162, 277, 793	41, 051, 226	58
59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68	Summary for prior years: 41 1939	29, 709 24, 097 23, 316 19, 975 16, 826 14, 937 12, 686 11, 902 10, 536 12, 179	83, 913, 503 67, 056, 883 70, 917, 003 61, 786, 752 47, 010, 243 41, 023, 968 32, 131, 067 29, 080, 658 33, 858, 781 42, 714, 132	1, 855, 174 1, 315, 342 2, 001, 311 1, 653, 997 802, 720 735, 471 450, 922 312, 924 197, 943 304, 596	14, 526 11, 801 11, 328 10, 724 9, 582 8, 302 7, 555 8, 356 7, 387 9, 449	27, 870, 379 27, 755, 966 24, 693, 550 20, 105, 511 16, 519, 323 17, 956, 077	331, 776 377, 107 431, 114 345, 333 225, 380 188, 033 137, 503 105, 602	71, 606 58, 132 58, 598 48, 048 42, 341 37, 938 33, 464 31, 543 28, 117 32, 682	229, 797, 922 186, 396, 193 195, 529, 330 173, 317, 393 135, 557, 076 115, 788, 720 93, 395, 213 88, 515, 162 107, 251, 482 140, 422, 521	8, 193, 196 6, 637, 134 7, 567, 645 7, 342, 668 3, 937, 433 3, 596, 105 1, 987, 598 1, 699, 3S1 1, 413, 609 1, 955, 201	237, 742 206, 210 196, 415 156, 855 131, 447 118, 930 105, 950 102, 966 89, 158 105, 058	725, 591, 822 569, 444, 419 439, 162, 958	28, 144, 104 33, 918, 378	59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68

Table 8. (Tables 9 and 9-A, Statistics of Income for 1939, Part 1.)—Individual returns with net income, 1940, by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; also aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income and for taxable fiduciary returns with net income, by States and Territories: Number of returns, net income, deficit, and total tax; also totals for prior years <sup>11</sup>—Con.

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 4-7 and 8-9]

			Utah			Vermont			Virginia			Washington	G.	
	Net income classes (Thousands of dollars)	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax 2	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax ?	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax <sup>2</sup>	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Total tax <sup>2</sup>	
1 2 3 4 5 6 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 6 17 18 119 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 30 31 32 33 33 34 35 36 37	Taxable individual returns:  With net income:  Under 1 (est.).  1 under 2 (est.).  2 under 2.5 (est.).  2.5 under 3 (est.).  3 under 4 (est.).  4 under 5 (est.).  5 under 6.  6 under 7.  7 under 8.  8 under 9.  9 under 10.  10 under 11.  11 under 12.  12 under 13.  13 under 14.  14 under 15.  15 under 20.  20 under 25.  25 under 30.  30 under 40.  40 under 60.  60 under 7.  70 under 80.  80 under 90.  90 under 100.  100 under 150.  150 under 250.  250 under 300.  300 under 400.  400 under 500.  500 under 750.  550 under 750.  550 under 750.  550 under 1,000.  1,000 under 1,500.  1,500 under 2,000.  3,000 under 1,500.  1,500 under 2,000.  3,000 under 2,000.  3,000 under 2,000.  3,000 under 3,000.  3,000 under 4,000.	1, 685 1, 903 2, 304 830 570 338 223 141 122 83 65 57 47 20 103 555 26 222 17 5 2 13	103, 602					1, 041 38, 242 8, 552 10, 949 18, 304 7, 340 7, 340 1, 717 608 477 389 274 222 204 569 274 157 111 18 7 11 18 3 1 1 1 1 2 2 4 4 7 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	\$872, 370 56, 190, 099 19, 129, 089 30, 201, 498 63, 097, 933 32, 403, 937 15, 482, 319 11, 390, 346 8, 340, 977 6, 564, 279 4, 993, 293 4, 462, 549 3, 427, 437 2, 994, 290 2, 956, S38 9, 802, 282 6, 128, 651 4, 315, 408 5, 148, 675 3, 145, 140 2, 551, 859 1, 824, 978 826, 952 1, 517, 347 668, 437 2, 239, 109 513, 952 209, 376 511, 909 1, 233, 913 493, 519 502, 346	\$8, 671 851, 086 327, 027 330, 292 834, 082 564, 699 350, 326 314, 637 301, 628 274, 384 280, 115 271, 470 271, 723 231, 540 220, 957 236, 646 953, 322 831, 742 732, 504 1, 098, 997 778, 714 615, 958 304, 136 593, 929 286, 673 1, 087, 668 117, 729 300, 999 758, 374 324, 816 342, 419		\$10, 574, 051 88, 239, 889 39, 550, 753 45, 558, 146 55, 223, 666 55, 223, 666 56, 233, 666 6853, 590 4, 989, 914 4, 119, 696 3, 922, 125 2, 790, 702 2, 331, 827 2, 033, 115 1, 646, 901 8, 407, 618 4, 739, 329 2, 505, 032 3, 177, 450 3, 127 1, 048, 139 617, 863 857, 885 565, 177 1, 027, 729 1, 033, 341 275, 542		1 2 3 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 3 14 15 16 17 18 19 22 1 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 36 37
38	3,000 under 4,000													38

39 40	4,000 under 5,000 5,000 and over								5, 074, 832	3, 093, 783				39 40
41 42	Total	16, 257		1, 914, 712	14, 826	41, 639, 958	2, 120, 454	94, 455	317, 057, 967	20, 508, 019	140, 299	353, 394, 068	12, 319, 355	41 42
43	Total, taxable individual returns.	16, 257	49,029,880	1,914,712	14,826	41,639,958	2, 120, 454	94,455	317, 057, 967	20, 508, 019	140, 299	353, 394, 068	12,319.355	43
44 45 46 47 48 40 50	Nontaxable individual returns:  With net income: 10  Under 1 (est.)	7,319 8,446 3,469 1,005	1, 955, 829 11, 431, 955 18, 571, 171 9, 300, 331 3, 297, 509 64, 771			3, 904, 460 8, 653, 513 13, 191, 631 4, 959, 820 1, 394, 049 131, 582		17, 663 26, 853 29, 725 10, 810 2, 955 59 2	13, 827, 725 40, 705, 078 65, 479, 970 29, 118, 978 9, 523, 542 266, 591 10, 297		31.205 39,450	15, 413, 479 47, 901, 765 86, 562, 839 30, 409, 884 8, 727, 360 263, 105		44 45 46 47 48 49 50
51 52	Total	23, 053 236	44, 621, 566 11 489, 353		19, 465 364	32, 235, 055 11 666, 220		88, 067 1, 081	158, 932, 181 11 2, 568, 807		105, 027 2, 022	189, 278, 432 11 4, 079, 579		51 52
53	Total, nontaxable individ- ual returns.	23, 289	12 44, 132, 213		19, 829	12 31, 568, 835		89, 148	<sup>12</sup> 156, 363, 374		108, 049	<sup>12</sup> 185, 198, 853		53
54	Grand total individual re- turns (43 plus 53, 55 plus 56).	39, 546	<sup>12</sup> 93, 162, 093	1, 914, 712	34, 655	<sup>12</sup> 73, 208, 793	2, 120, 454	183, 603	<sup>12</sup> 473, 421, 341	20, 508, 019	248, 348	<sup>12</sup> 538, 592, 921	12, 319, 355	54
55	Individual returns with net income	39, 310	93, 651, 446	1, 914, 712	34, 291	73, 875, 013	2, 120, 454	182, 522	475, 990, 148	20, 508, 019	246, 326	542, 672, 500	12, 319, 355	55
56	(41 plus 51). Individual returns with no net in- come (42 plus 52).	236	11 489, 353		364	11 666, 220		1, 081	11 2, 568, 807		2, 022	11 4, 079, 579		56
57	Taxable fiduciary returns with net income.3	150	583, 192	97, 697	163	601, 217	160, 802	767	1, 928, 298	196, 346	808	3, 021, 194	502, 090	57
58	Total, individual returns with net income and taxable fiduciary returns with net income (55 plus 57).	39, 460	94, 234, 638	2, 012, 409	34, 454	74, 476, 230	2, 281, 256	183, 289	477, 918, 446	20, 704, 365	247, 134	545, 693, 694	12, 821, 445	58
59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68	Summary for prior years: 4 1939. 1938. 1937. 1936. 1935. 1934. 1933. 1932. 1931.	23, 573 19, 278 19, 892 16, 262 14, 088 11, 458 10, 807 10, 624 9, 785 11, 777	53, 219, 070	1, 180, 014 1, 059, 037 1, 619, 567 1, 458, 140 686, 084 468, 653 349, 519 366, 273 196, 095 447, 953	15. 893 13, 683 13, 874 12, 193 10, 903 9, 824 9, 375 10, 439 7, 803 8, 635	44, 833, 737 36, 660, 627 40, 647, 118 37, 146, 202 30, 293, 579 26, 565, 697 23, 937, 326 27, 542, 982 29, 853, 410 39, 259, 341	1, 264. 806 777, 312 1, 231, 377 1, 195. 886 503. 958 435, 666 339, 220 406, 645 264, 753 626, 874	90, 413 72, 625 71, 645 62, 449 54, 835 47, 814 42, 920 43, 136 34, 689 37, 915	228, 428, 434 245, 434, 150	11, 040, 284 7, 828, 571 12, 378, 744 11, 790, 832 5, 268, 764 3, 665, 810 2, 399, 380 2, 220, 452 1, 323, 722 2, 050, 554	126, 577 106, 982 104, 386 88, 640 69, 919 60, 151 54, 539 56, 434 51, 781 63, 129	323, 346, 938 276, 900, 100 295, 685, 148 259, 649, 969 197, 923, 554 153, 639, 057 131, 639, 579 133, 697, 243 174, 858, 452 238, 857, 983	6, 357, 209 5, 167, 854 8, 315, 210 7, 875, 628 3, 868, 053 2, 551, 738 1, 646, 568 1, 557, 558 1, 238, 044 2, 750, 143	59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68

TABLE 8. (Tables 9 and 9-A, Statistics of Income for 1939, Part 1.)—Individual returns with net income, 1949, by taxable and nontaxable returns, and by net income classes; also aggregates for taxable and nontaxable individual returns with no net income and for taxable fiduciary returns with net income, by States and Territories: Number of returns, net income, deficit, and total tax; also totals for prior years 41—Con.

		West Virginia		Wisconsin			Wyoming			
Net tncome classes (Thousands of dollars)	Number of returns	Net income	Total tax 2	Number of returns	Net income	Total tax 2	Number of returns	Net income	Total tax 2	
Taxable individual returns:  With net income:  1	5, 615 6, 373 11, 603 4, 888 1, 337 864 430 341 227 194 144 139 106 308 152 90 102 31 11 6 2 6			1	\$17, 813, 921 91, 252, 725 40, 230, 985 45, 624, 121 59, 030, 074 33, 671, 757 19, 256, 523 13, 817, 636 10, 481, 352 8, 159, 695 7, 414, 504 5, 627, 1216 5, 223, 584 3, 901, 491 3, 432, 205 3, 416, 831 13, 216, 792 8, 632, 334 5, 755, 176 0, 983, 712 4, 482, 910 2, 375, 232 1, 616, 850 1, 702, 731 1, 811, 693 819, 099 3, 185, 537 1, 539, 215 1, 331, 610 232, 039 312, 444	\$61, 713 1, 180, 678 378, 151 416, 325 725, 337 577, 687 440, 483 338, 546 358, 525 313, 382 355, 366 312, 836 267, 656 249, 784 273, 371 1, 289, 910 1, 148, 469 930, 022 1, 522, 757 1, 179, 235 710, 099 503, 176 671, 974 701, 564 351, 822 1, 599, 851 359, 851 359, 852 359, 852 359, 853 359	1		291, 252	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 7 28 30 31 32 33 34

				•							
35 36 37	1,000 under 1,500 1,500 under 2,000 2,000 under 3,000								ļ		35
38	3,000 under 4,000	1									37
39	4,000 under 5,000 5,000 and over									·	38
40	5,000 and over	i-									39
41 42	Total	59, 564	183, 296, 758	7, 292, 559	159, 139 1	422, 825, 096 11 42, 746	19, 259, 644 15, 025	13, 407	38, 743, 215	1, 567, 263	41 42
43	Total, taxable individual returns	59, 564	183, 296, 758	7, 292, 559	159, 140	12 422, 782, 350	19, 274, 669	13, 407	38, 743, 215	1, 567, 263	43
44	Nontaxable individual returns: With net income: 10 Under 1 (est.)	10, 984	9,459,000								
45	1 Under 2 (est.)	20, 638	8, 458, 209 30, 204, 887		36, 716 57, 022	26, 865, 351 91, 485, 067		2, 859 4, 630	1, 993, 735		44
46 47	1 2 Under 2.5 (est.)	23, 251	51, 235, 851		60, 720	133, 076, 848		5, 285	11, 648, 856		45 46
48	2.5 under 3 (est.) 3 under 4 (est.)	8, 412	22, 626, 615		13, 979	37, 347, 778		1, 779			47
49	4 under 5 (est.)	1, 774 93	5, 788, 081 412, 593		3, 357 59	10, 843, 612		537	1, 751, 751		48
50	5 under 6.	2	10, 990		59	276, 285		19	83, 078	<b>-</b>	49
51 52	Total	65, 154 686	118, 737, 226 11 1, 909, 035		171, 853 2, 504	299, 894, 941 11 4, 174, 770		15, 109 420	27, 427, 4S9 11 690, 4S0		50 51
53	Total, nontaxable individual returns	65, 840	12 116, 828, 191		174, 357	12 295, 720, 171		15, 529	12 26, 737, 009	<b> </b>	52
54	Grand total individual returns (43 plus						<del></del>	10, 525	25, 737, 009		53
٠.	53, or 55 plus 56).	125, 404	12 300, 124, 949	7, 292, 559	333, 497	<sup>12</sup> 718, 502, 521	19, 274, 669	28, 936	12 65, 480, 224	1, 567, 263	54
55 56	Individual returns with net income (41 plus 51) Individual returns with no net income (42 plus 52)	124, 718 686	302, 033, 984 11 1, 909, 035	7, 292, 559	330, 992 2, 505	722, 720, 037 11 4, 217, 516	19, 259. 644 15, 025	28, 516 420	66, 170, 704 11 690, 480	1, 567, 263	55 56
57	Taxable fiduciary returns with net income 3	359	1, 686, 780	286, 050	1, 390	4, 752, 095	579, 263	80	269, 077	16, 833	57
58	Total, individual returns with net income and tax- able fiduciary returns with net income (55 plus 57).	125, 077	303, 720, 764	7, 578, 609	332, 382	727, 472, 132	19, 838, 907	28, 596	66, 439, 781	1, 584, 096	58
59	Summary for prior years: 41	67, 914	183, 744, 030	4, 060, 827	175, 523	443, 387, 838	11, 533, 017	13, 735	38, 025, 545	1 161 480	<b>FO</b>
60	1938 1937	54, 014	146, 991, 478	3, 481, 769	147, 609	355, 240, 809	9, 033, 882	11, 769	31, 563, 520	1, 161, 482 476, 480	59 60
62	1936	59, 323 47, 527	173, 671, 357 145, 745, 636	5, 203, 949	151, 820	403, 656, 499	13, 592, 844	12, 247	35, 287, 480	1.061,482	61
63	1935	37, 224	106, 920, 022	5, 160, 600 2, 276, 187	124, 202 105, 785	338, 951, 189 258, 590, 449	13, 615, 062	10, 702	30, 326, 918	1, 128, 801	62
64 65	1934	30, 297	87, 992, 253	1, 674, 942	92, 826	217, 350, 901	5, 577, 366 5, 009, 731	8, 739 7, 182	23, 703, 202 19, 035, 620	646, 357 583, 601	63 64
66	1933 1932	25, 837	69, 425, 751	1, 107, 746	89, 739	184, 154, 155	3, 106, 227	6, 603	16, 095, 689	452, 240	65
67	1931	26, 872   22, 118	73, 659, 579 E0, 333, 944	928, 480	91, 557	203, 833, 124	3, 222, 425	6, 795	16, 139, 839	143.717	66
68	1930	27, 130	110, 726, 146	515.600 1, 238, 711	84, 681 95, 366	251, 988, 008 357, 657, 240	2, 438, 474	5, 891	18, 176, 553	65, 346	67
			-20, 120, 210	-, 200, 111	30, 000	001, 001, 240	5, 892, 638	6, 809	22, 979, 517	141, 440	68

Table 9. (Table 14, Statistics of Income for 1939, Part 1.)—Individual returns with net income of \$5,000 and over, and with wholly and partially tax-exempt Government obligations, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by net income classes, and by type of obligation: Amount owned and interest received

[For description of items and classifications, and methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 8-9 and 41-42]

[Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

,			Amo	ount owner	dat end of y	ear		
		w	holly tax-exe	mpt obligs	ations	Part	ially tax-ex obligations	empt
Net income classes	Total	Total	Obligations of States, Territories, or political subdivi- sions thereof, District of Columbia, and United States possessions	Obliga- tions issued under Foderal Farm Loan Act or such Act as amonded	Treasury notes, Treasury bills, Treasury certificates of indebtedness, and United States obligations issued on or before Sept. 1, 1917	Total	United States savings bonds and Treasury bonds	Obliga- tions of instru- mentali- ties of the United States other than those in column 5
(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)	(8)	(9)
5 under 6 6 under 7 7 under 8 8 under 9 9 under 10 10 under 11 11 under 12 12 under 13 13 under 14 14 under 15 15 under 29 20 under 25 25 under 25 25 under 30 30 under 60 60 under 60 50 under 60 90 under 150 150 under 200 150 under 200 200 under 200 200 under 300 300 under 40 400 under 50 500 under 50 500 under 75 750 under 200 300 under 400 400 under 2.000 300 under 300 300 under 4.000 3000 under 5.000 3000 under 3.000 3000 under 3.000	183, 217 146, 653 139, 774 135, 216 115, 706 103, 349 104, 675 106, 372 102, 175 106, 364 452, 335 311, 824 222, 238 171, 314 133, 580 117, 520 93, 938 176, 487 109, 504 131, 407 138, 676 50, 759 115, 704 48, 832 27, 535 5, 918 7, 883 123, 339	90, 145 86, 328 68, 315 68, 6920 54, 451 54, 886 58, 796 57, 463 51, 859 219, 385 57, 473 332, 117 244, 979 180, 655 44, 108 121, 336 98, 224 98, 223 158, 351 95, 786 126, 244 134, 171 49, 336 144, 178 49, 324 144, 178 49, 324 144, 178 49, 324 144, 178 49, 324 144, 178 49, 324 144, 178 49, 324 145, 178 49, 325 178, 3	69, 161 65, 234 55, 327 55, 761 53, 441 41, 275 44, 966 49, 101 44, 144 41, 509 175, 246 168, 425 141, 254 265, 552 189, 008 141, 028 109, 562 93, 226 109, 562 122, 683 60, 672 224, 762 122, 683 69, 936 92, 631 93, 910 94, 867 48, 87 48, 87	9, 827 11, 528 6, 109 6, 699 6, 915 7, 194 5, 231 5, 925 5, 531 21, 297 18, 518 17, 564 25, 687 19, 942 12, 871 10, 110 10, 107 17, 329 4, 332 4, 332	11. 157 9, 565 6, 887 6, 143 6, 564 5, 931 4, 688 3, 769 22, 841 121, 451 16, 970 40, 879 36, 029 26, 751 21, 690 17, 926 17, 400 17, 134 47, 732 27, 627 21, 370 29, 258 35, 929 51, 064 30, 178 6, 924 1, 080 96, 697 500	115, 942 96, 890 78, 337 71, 172 68, 296 61, 345 45, 712 30, 053 156, 273 107, 970 74, 630 120, 217 66, 845 41, 588 27, 205 17, 244 19, 280 11, 665 38, 115 18, 136 33, 718 5, 124 4, 504 1, 277 3, 395 670 36 6	106, 925 88, 004 72, 936 65, 294 62, 985 56, 935 44, 160 41, 957 35, 730 144, 673 112, 136 63, 414 39, 342 26, 014 16, 035 17, 694 10, 670 36, 764 17, 797 42, 455 36, 661 3, 378 884 3, 378 884 3, 378 884 3, 366 668 668 668	9, 017 7, 885 6, 301 5, 877 5, 311 4, 411 3, 229 3, 517 3, 755 8, 031 4, 649 8, 082 3, 431 2, 246 1, 191 1, 210 1, 597 1, 086 2, 339 1, 233 1, 462 393 1, 462 393 1, 203 1, 203 1, 203 2, 351 2, 246 2, 351 2, 351 2
Total		3, 683, 824	2, 735, 814	281, 126	666, 884	1, 403, 209	1, 300, 660	102, 549

For footnotes, see pp. 190-191.

Table 9. (Table 14, Statistics of Income for 1939, Part 1.)—Individual returns with net income of \$5,000 and over, and with wholly and partially tax-exempt Government obligations, not including fiduciary returns, 1940, by net income classes, and by type of obligation: Amount owned and interest received—Continued

[For description of items and classifications, and method of tabulating data, see pp. 8-9 and 41-42]
[Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

		wi	holly tax-exe		crued during	Parti	ally tax-exc	empt
Net income classes	Total	Total	Obligations of States, Territories, or political subdivi- sions thereof, District of Columbia, and United States possessions	Obliga- tions issued under Federal Farm Loan Act or such Act as amended	Treasury notes, Treasury bills, Treasury certificates of indebted- ness, and United States obligations issued on or before Sept. 1, 1917	Total 43	United States savings bonds and Treasury bonds 43	Obligations of instrumentalities of the United States other than those in column 5 44
(I)	(10)	(11)	(12)	(13)	(14)	(15)	(16)	(17)
5 under 6	8, 874 7, 546 6, 676 6, 566 6, 460 5, 431 12, 489 19, 191 11, 047 7, 749 4, 200 4, 200 4, 200 4, 200 4, 201 5, 831 5, 831 5, 832 4, 200 4, 200 4, 203 5, 203 6, 337 2, 349 16	4, 851 4, 317 3, 760 4, 015 4, 091 3, 214 4, 114 3, 555 13, 148 12, 729 9, 625 17, 517 14, 193 9, 575 6, 750 3, 838 4, 689 3, 889 4, 600 5, 779 1, 789 4, 114 1, 11	4, 068 3, 631 3, 150 3, 511 3, 449 2, 652 3, 142 3, 457 3, 538 2, 635 11, 306 10, 035 8, 344 15, 417 12, 361 15, 769 4, 795 3, 140 12, 926 7, 774 4, 120 4, 120 4, 120 4, 723 2, 455 3, 370 2, 900 1, 192 1, 191 1, 091 1, 191	436 357 363 300 284 322 799 555 250 271 951 1, 267 811 1, 095 588 548 414 410 1, 112 410 189 131 178 178 177 177 299 5 43 81	347 330 256 205 358 240 216 206 650 891 1, 427 470 1, 005 869 606 433 354 561 296 650 891 1, 427 470 1, 005 1, 427 470 1, 005 1, 427 470 1, 298 470 1, 298 470 470 1, 298 470 470 470 470 470 470 470 470 470 470	4, 023 3, 228 2, 910 2, 551 2, 368 2, 217 1, 769 1, 630 1, 630 1, 637 1, 337 6, 042 2, 803 1, 472 999 6, 633 3, 622 1, 470 2, 608 1, 472 999 1, 450 2, 608 1, 472 999 1, 450 1, 450 1, 472 1, 450 1, 472 1, 450 1, 472 1, 450 1, 472 1, 4	3, 570 2, 877 2, 484 2, 300 2, 161 2, 001 1, 581 1, 520 1, 482 1, 198 5, 564 4, 098 4, 098 2, 438 1, 377 953 321 1, 374 500 348 187 110 110 1183 7 110 1183 7	453 351 4202 2505 216 1888 140 1565 133 478 341 194 3555 170 95 46 10 33 48 10 42 42 42 44 44 44 42
Total	241, 799	190, 910	161, 175	14, 018	15, 718	50, 889	46, 375	4, 513

Table 10. (Table 16, Statistics of Income for 1939, Part 1.)—Taxable fiduciary returns with net income, showing balance income of \$5,000 and over and with wholly and partially tax-exempt Government obligations, 1940, by net income classes, and by type of obligation: Amount owned and interest received

[For description of items and classifications, and method of tabulating data, see pp. 8-9 and 41-42]
[Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

			Am	ount owne	d at end of y	ear		
		W	holly tax-exe	mpt obliga	tions	Part	ially tax-e obligation	rempt s
Net income <sup>3</sup> classes	Total	Total	Obligations of States, Territories, or political subdivi- sions thereof, District of Columbia, and United States possessions	Obliga- tions issued under Federal Farm Loan Act	Treasury notes, Treasury bills, Treasury certificates of indebtedness, and United States obligations issued on or before Sept. 1, 1917	Total	United States savings bonds and Treasury bonds	Obligations of instrumentalities of the United States other than those in column[5]
(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)	(8)	(9)
Under 5 5 under 6 6 under 7 7 under 8 8 under 9 9 under 10 10 under 11 11 under 12 12 under 13 13 under 14 14 under 15 15 under 20 20 under 25 25 under 30 30 under 40 40 under 50 50 under 60 60 under 60 60 under 70 70 under 150 150 under 150 150 under 100 under 150 150 under 300 30 under 40 40 under 50 50 under 50 500 under 50	441, 299 42, 092 59, 308 34, 308 36, 487 12, 443 13, 766 14, 850 22, 344 10, 557 7, 462 51, 149 28, 779 21, 976 30, 556 30, 832 31, 869 28, 711 18, 381 1, 124 17, 054 41, 859 15, 957 3, 554 1, 258 2, 414 1, 258 2, 414 10, 983	339, 218 33, 238 50, 360 24, 904 27, 665 7, 352 10, 922 11, 301 17, 574 8, 161 4, 483 37, 860 21, 698 15, 663 24, 439 28, 167 26, 829 17, 635 2, 948 16, 437 38, 518 13, 731 3, 428 1, 038 2, 404 11, 9, 778		29, 093 1, 649 733 835 1, 335 571 1, 445 659 1, 107 1, 072 450 1, 163 1, 345 1, 163 892 630 952 1, 250 680 6, 370 681	48, 316 6, 224 12, 532 1, 564 5, 411 965 2, 135 1, 644 11, 083 2, 585 329 6, 192 4, 544 1, 565 4, 107 5, 133 3, 988 6, 478 1, 205 7, 610 4, 152 3, 117	102, 081 8, 854 8, 948 9, 404 8, 923 5, 091 2, 845 3, 550 4, 770 2, 396 2, 979 13, 289 7, 081 6, 414 6, 116 2, 665 3, 392 7, 617 8, 617 3, 341 2, 225 126 220 10 10, 205	93, 279 8, 111 8, 443 8, 340 8, 538 4, 768 2, 514 4, 610 2, 042 2, 733 11, 985 4, 550 6, 207 5, 280 2, 059 3, 029 1, 870 726 3, 102 466 3, 103 466 3, 103 467 467 468 503 503 503 503 503 503 503 503 503 503	8, 801 743 505 1, 064 385 323 32 245 160 354 246 1, 304 2, 531 206 837 605 363 13 F 20 75 F 151 1, 880
1,000 under 1,500. 1,500 under 2,000. 2,000 under 3,000.			973		75		75	
3,000 under 4,000. 4,000 under 5,000. 5,000 and over	5					5	5	
Total	1, 035, 778	825, 285	630, 615	59, 442	135, 227	210, 492	189, 189	21, 303

For footnotes, see pp. 190-191.

Fable 10. (Table 16, Statistics of Income for 1939, Part 1.)—Taxable fiduciary returns with net income, showing balance income of \$5,000 and over and with wholly and partially tax-exempt Government obligations, 1940, by net income? classes, and by type of obligation: Amount owned and interest received—Con.

[For description of items and classifications, and method of tabulating data, see pp. 8-9 and 41-42]
[Net income classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

		١	Interest re	ceived or a	crued durin	the year				
		w	holly tax-exe	mpt obliga	tions	Part	ially tax-ex obligation	tempt S		
Net income <sup>3</sup> classes	Total	Total	Obligations of States, Territories, or political subdivi- sions thereof, District of Columbia, and United States possessions	Obliga- tions issued under Federal Farm Loan Act or such Act as amended	Treasury notes, Treasury bills. Treasury certificates of indebtedness, and United States obligations issued on or before Sept. 1. 1917	Total 43	United States savings bonds and Treasury bonds <sup>43</sup>	Obligations of instrumentalities of the United States other than those in column 544		
. (1)	(10)	(11)	(12)	(13)	(14)	(15)	(16)	(17)		
Under 5. 5 under 6. 6 under 7. 7 under 8. 8 under 9. 9 under 10. 10 under 11. 11 under 12. 12 under 13. 13 under 14. 14 under 15. 15 under 20. 20 under 25. 25 under 30. 30 under 40. 40 under 60. 50 under 60. 50 under 70. 70 under 80. 90 under 100. 100 under 150. 150 under 200. 200 under 250. 250 under 300. 300 under 400. 400 under 50. 500 under 50. 500 under 50. 500 under 500. 500 under 750. 750 under 750.	20, 474 1, 782 2, 115 1, 310 1, 275 683 646 799 1, 113 401 1, 363 1, 109 1, 210 1, 363 1, 374 1, 320 609 449 616 6, 601 440 138 36 68 68 68 68 68	16, 465 1, 485 1, 804 988 967 495 531 666 928 299 217 2, 869 892 976 1, 152 1, 262 593 209 604 1, 433 413 121 36 67 4 921	14, 152 1, 318 1, 630 916 806 438 439 598 777 247 187 7, 24, 392 749 886 890 863 1, 112 1, 098 851 1, 092 314 82 32 55 2 849	1,130 63 56 26 56 29 54 23 39 17 19 256 51 36 187 45 19 103 49 49 2 2 26 237 26 111 4 (19)	1, 183 104 119 46 105 28 39 45 112 210 92 53 75 87 81 61 30 63 27 194 72 28 69	4,010 297 311 322 308 189 114 133 185 102 109 434 218 234 211 93 3162 57 16 239 116 239 (19) (19) (19) (19)	3, 635 271 293 288 285 177 101 123 172 86 94 151 225 178 87 7 146 239 8 167 24 (19) (19)	374 27 18: 355 24 111 13: 100 13: 16: 16: 17: 10: 10: 11: 15: 11: 11: 15: 11: 11: 15: 11: 11		
2,000 under 3,000 3,000 under 4,000 4,000 under 5,000	459	459	187		271	(19)	(19)			
5,000 and over	47, 157	39, 166	33, 352	2, 569	3, 245	7,991	7, 252	739		

#### Footnotes for basic tables 1-10, pages 72-189

(Facsimiles of Forms 1040, 1040A, and 1041, to which references are made, appear on pages 262-279)

- 1 Table 1 contains data for individual returns with net income and with no net income shown in basic table 1-A and taxable fiduciary returns with net income. Table 2 contains data for individual returns with net income and with no net income shown in basic table 2-A and taxable fiduciary returns with net income shown in basic table 2-B. Table 3 contains data for individual returns with net income and with no net income shown in basic table 3-A and taxable fiduciary returns with net income shown in Part I of basic table 2-B. Table 7 contains data for individual returns with net income and with no net income shown in basic table 7-A and taxable fiduciary returns with net income shown in basic
- 2 Aggregate of normal tax, surtax, alternative tax. and defense tax. For returns with normal tax and surtax, see note 7. For returns with alternative tax, see note 8.
- 3 For taxable fiduciary returns with net income in basic tables 1, 2, 2-B, 3, 7, 7-B, 8, and 10, the net income used for classification and tabulation is the net income taxable to the fiduciary after distribution to beneficiaries (item 17, page 1, Form 1041).
- 4 Total deductions equal or exceed total income.
- For 1940, the personal exemption allowed the head of a family and a married person living with husband or wife for the entire taxable year was reduced from \$2,500 to \$2,000, and that for a single person, a married person not living with husband or wife, and an estate, was reduced from \$1,000 to \$800. Similar to 1939, a trust is allowed, in lieu of the personal exemption, a credit of \$100 against net income.
- returns with no net income due to net long-term capital loss, on which the partial tax computed on net income before the deduction of net long-term capital loss exceeds 30 percent of the net long-term capital loss. The distribution of these 46 returns with alternative tax, by States, is shown in basic
- 7 Returns with normal tax and surtax are (1) returns without net long-term capital gain or loss and (2) returns with net long-term capital gain or loss, which are subject to normal tax and surtax instead of alternative tax (see note 8).
- with net long-term capital gain if such alternative tax is less than the sum of the normal tax and surtax computed on net income including net long-term sum of the normal tax and surtax computed on net income after deducting net long-term capital loss.
- 9 Defense tax is 10 percent of the total income tax before deducting any credit, but not in excess of 10 percent of the amount by which the net income exceeds such income tax.
- 10 Exemptions and credits exceed net income. A negligible number of nontaxable individual returns in net income classes of \$6,000 and over are tabulated with taxable returns.
- <sup>11</sup> Deficit.
- 12 Net income less deficit.
- 13 Not available.
- H In tables 2 and 2-A average total tax not computed. In tables 3 and 3-A percentage not computed
- 16 Data for taxable fiduciary returns include data for estates and trusts with not income, incorrectly filed on Form 1040. An adjustment was made for these incorrectly filed 1940 returns, Form 1040, whereby "Amount distributable to beneficiaries" (if any) was removed from "Other deductions" and from "Total deductions" and tabulated as such in basic tables 7
- 16 Less than one-hundredth of 1 percent.
- 17 See text, pages 12-13.

- 18 An unequal number of separate returns is the result of (1) use of the sample as the basis for estimating data for returns in net income classes under \$5,000, when the net income of one spouse is under \$5.000 and that of the other spouse is \$5,000 or over (see pages 4-5), and (2) certain cases in which incomplete or inaccurate answers to questions 4 and 5 on page 4, Form 1040, and on page 1, Form 1040A, make it impossible to identify the returns as separate
- 19 Less than \$500.
- 20 Excludes dividends received through partnerships and fiduciaries and dividends received on share accounts in Federal savings and loan associa-
- 21 Unlike previous years, "Interest on bank deposits, notes, mortgages, and corporation bonds" excludes interest on partially tax-exempt Government obligations reported on returns with net income under \$5,000
- 22 Interest on partially tax-exempt Government obligations received from United States savings bonds and Treasury bonds owned in excess of \$5,000. and obligations of instrumentalities of the United States other than those issued under the Federal Farm Loan Act or such Act as amended, including amounts received through partnerships and fiduciaries. For the first time, such interest, reported on returns with net income under \$5,000, is included in the amounts shown, and is tabulated by net income classes in tables 7, 7-A, and 7-B.
- 23 Partnership profit or loss, as reported on the An alternative tax is reported on 46 individual income tax return of the partner, excludes (1) interest on partially tax-exempt Government obligations. (2) net gain or loss from sales or exchanges of capital assets, each of which is reported in its respective source of income, and (3) dividends on share accounts in Federal savings and loan associations which are reported in "Other income." Charitable contributions and the net operating loss deduction, not being deductible in computing partnership profit or loss. are reported on the partner's income tax return in 'Contributions" and "Other deductions," respectively.
- 24 Income from fiduciaries, as reported on the The alternative tax is reported on (1) returns return of the beneficiary, excludes (1) interest on partially tax-exempt Government obligations and (2) net gain or loss from sales or exchanges of capital assets received from common trust funds, each of capital gain, and (2) returns with net long-term which is reported in its respective source of income, capital loss if such alternative tax is greater than the and (3) dividends on share accounts in Federal savings and loan associations which are reported in "Other income." The net operating loss deduction, not being deductible in computing income from common trust funds, is reported on the beneficiary's income tax return in "Other deductions," however, the net operating loss deduction is deducted from all other fiduciary income reported on the benefici-
  - 26 Current year business profit or loss. The net operating loss deduction is reported in "Other deductions."
  - 26 The tabulated amounts of "Net short-term capital gain," "Net long-term capital gain," and "Net long-term capital loss" include cach partici-pant's share of net capital gain or loss to be taken into account from partnerships and "Common trust funds." The term "Capital assets" means property held by the taxpayer (whether or not connected with his trade or business), but not (1) stock in trade or other property which would properly be included in inventory if on hand at the close of the taxable year, (2) property held primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of trade or business, and (3) property used in trade or business of a character which is subject to the allowance for depreciation.
  - 27 "Short-term" applies to capital assets held 18 months or less.

Footnotes for basic tables 1-10, pages 72-189-Continued

- 28 Net short-term capital loss of preceding taxable 99 Balance income (item 15, page 1, Form 1041) is year is the amount deducted under the net short-the net income before deduction of amount distributerm loss carry-over provision of the Internal Revenue Code. The amount carried over cannot exceed the net income for the year in which the loss is sustained, and can be deducted only to the extent of the net short-term capital gain of the current year.
- 20 Current year net short-term capital gain before deducting net short-term capital loss of preceding taxable year. This amount would have been reported for computation of net income if the net short-term capital loss of preceding taxable year had not been deductible.
- 30 "Long-term" applies to capital assets held over 18 months. Losses from worthless stocks and bonds which are capital assets are deducted in computing "Net long-term capital gain" and "Net long-term capital loss."
- 31 Net gain or loss from sales of property used in trade or business of a character which is subject to the allowance for depreciation.
- 22 Include each partner's share of the charitable contributions of partnerships.
- <sup>23</sup> Excludes amounts reported in schedule for (1) income from rents and royalties, and (2) profit Part 1, page 31, note 6.
- 24 Losses from fire, storm, shipwreck, or other casualty, or from theft, not compensated for by insurance or otherwise.
- 85 Include net operating loss deduction reported on Form 1040, and losses from fire, storm, etc., and bad debts, reported on Form 1040A.
- 38 For returns with net income under \$5,000, the number of returns on which specific sources of income and deductions are reported is available only for "Salaries and other compensation" (tables 7 and 7-A) and "Dividends from domestic and foreign corporations" (tables 7, 7-A, and 7-B). For returns with net income of \$5,000 and over, the number of returns is available for each specific source of income and deduction and for the information item "Net short-term capital loss of preceding taxable year deducted" (tables 7, 7-A, and 7-B).
- 37 The number of returns with net income under \$5,000, which is not available, is excluded from the total in this column. For "Business profit" and 'Business loss" these figures represent the number of returns on which a net profit or a net loss was reported for the computation of net income. Consequently, for returns on which data for two or more businesses are reported in the business schedule, these figures do not reflect the number of businesses
- 38 Include net operating loss deduction reported on Forms 1040 and 1041, and losses from fire, storm. etc., and bad debts, reported on Forms 1040A and

- table to beneficiaries and is equal to total income less total deductions (items 10 and 14, respectively, page Form 1041).
- 40 Include (1) losses from fire, storm, shipwreck, or other casualty, or from theft not compensated for by insurance or otherwise, not reported in schedules for income from rents and royalties and profit or loss from business, (2) bad debts, and (3) net operating loss deduction.
- 41 These historical data relate to income tax returns for individuals and for estates and trusts with net income. Data for 1931 through 1936 are tabulated from Forms 1040 and 1040A filed for individuals and for estates and trusts. Data for 1937 through 1939 are tabulated from Forms 1040 and 1040A filed for individuals, taxable Forms 1041 filed for estates and trusts, and Forms 1040 incorrectly filed for estates and trusts, except that for 1938 through 1939 there are excluded nontaxable Forms 1040 with net income, incorrectly filed for estates and trusts. Changes in the revenue acts affecting the comparability of statistical data from income tax returns are summarized on pages 242-251.
- 42 Revised. See Statistics of Income for 1935,
- 43 Includes interest on United States savings bonds and Treasury bonds on a principal amount not in excess of \$5,000 which is wholly exempt from normal tax and surtax. (Data in table 9, tabulated from line (e), column 3, schedule B, page 2, Form 1040; data in table 10, tabulated from line (e), columns 3 (a) and (b), schedule B, page 2, Form 1041.) Such interest received on a principal amount in excess of \$5,000, which is subject to surtax only, is reported in item 5, page 1, Form 1040, or in item 4, page 1. Form 1041, and tabulated in the tables of this report showing sources of income as "Interest on partially taxexempt Government obligations."
- 44 Interest on obligations of instrumentalities of the United States other than obligations issued under the Federal Farm Loan Act, or such Act as amended, is subject to surtax only. (Data in table 9, tabulated from line (f), column 3, schedule B, page 2, Form 1040; data in table 10, tabulated from line (f), columns 3 (a) and (b), schedule B, page 2. Form 1041.) Such interest is reported in item 5, page 1, Form 1040, or in item 4, page 1, Form 1041, and tabulated in the tables of this report showing sources of income as "Interest on partially taxexempt Government obligations.
- 46 Includes returns for estates and trusts incorrectly filed on Form 1040, which have net income taxable to the fiduciary and balance income of \$5,000 and over, after an adjustment was made whereby the "Amount distributable to beneficiaries" (if any) was removed from "Other deductions" and from "Total deductions" and the "Balance income" was computed. .

# ESTATE TAX RETURNS

# **ESTATE TAX RETURNS**

SUMMARY DATA

There were 17,122 estate tax returns filed during the calendar year of 1941, on which there is reported total gross estate of \$2,793,439,358, net estate of \$1,575,768,142, and Federal estate tax liability of \$293,398,930. As compared with returns filed during the preceding calendar year, there is an increase of 246 returns, or 1.5 percent; gross estate increase of \$145,240,475, or 5.5 percent; net estate increase of \$82,584,247, or 5.5 percent; and tax liability increase of \$41,843,167, or 16.6 percent.

Of the 17,122 estate tax returns, 15,977 are for estates of citizens and resident aliens and 1,145 are for estates of nonresident aliens (including estates of nonresident citizens who died prior to May 11, 1934). Of the 15,977 returns for estates of citizens and resident aliens, 15,910 are filed under the requirements of the various revenue acts in effect on or after August 31, 1935 (Revenue Act of 1935). The remaining 67 returns include 24 filed under the Revenue Act of 1934, 24 under the Revenue Act of 1932, 12 under the Revenue Act of 1926, and 7 under the Revenue Act of 1924 or prior acts.

The 15,977 returns filed for estates of citizens and resident aliens show gross estate of \$2,777,656,643, of which \$199,342,473 is reported on the 2,641 nontaxable returns. The 13,336 taxable returns show gross estate of \$2,578,314,170, net estate of \$1,115,920,133 subject to basic tax and \$1,560,650,403 subject to additional tax, and total tax liability of \$291,757,956. The total tax liability consists of \$14,506,620 net basic tax, \$267,673,615 net additional tax, and \$9,577,731 defense tax. Tax credits for State inheritance taxes and Federal gift taxes of \$53,965,913 are claimed against basic tax, and a credit for Federal gift taxes of \$382,661 is claimed against additional tax. The combined tax credits represent 16.2 percent of the aggregate basic and additional taxes before credits.

### FILING REQUIREMENTS

The Federal estate tax is imposed upon the transfer of the entire net estate, and not upon any particular legacy, devise, or distributive share. A return is required for the estate of an individual whose gross estate, as defined by statute, exceeds in value the amount specified under the act in effect at date of death. Beginning August 31, 1935, the estate tax return is due 15 months after date of death; however, an extension of time for filing may be granted by the Commissioner. Regardless of when the return is filed, the estate is subject to the statutory provisions in effect at date of death. Approximately 89 percent of the returns filed during 1941 for estates of citizens and resident aliens were filed without extensions of time.

Since August 31, 1935, the effective date of the estate tax provisions of the Revenue Act of 1935, an estate tax return has been required for the estate of a citizen or resident alien if the value of the gross

197

estate at date of death exceeds \$40,000. The Revenue Act of 1934 requires a return if the gross estate exceeds \$50,000. Earlier acts require a return for the estate of a resident citizen and resident alien if the value thereof exceeds \$50,000 under the 1932 act; \$100,000 under the 1926 act; and \$50,000 under the 1924 or prior acts.

STATISTICS OF INCOME FOR 1940-PART 1

An estate tax return is required for the estate of a nonresident alien any part of whose estate, regardless of value, is situated in the United States at date of death. Estates of nonresident citizens were subject

to the same requirements prior to the 1934 act.

The major changes in the Revenue Act of 1941 affecting estate taxes are the repeal of the defense tax, and an increase in the tentative tax rates on estates of individuals who died on or after September 21, 1941. A résumé of Federal tax laws, with rates, credits, and specific exemptions applicable from September 8, 1916, through 1941. is shown on pages 252-255.

#### DATA TABULATED

Data for the estate tax returns are tabulated from each such return filed during the calendar year of 1941, regardless of the date of death or the revenue act under which the estate is taxed.

The statistics are taken from the estate tax returns as filed prior to revisions which may be made as a result of audit by the Bureau of Internal Revenue. The total estate tax liability tabulated does not correspond with the collections of such taxes during 1941 because payment of tax liability reported in 1941 may be deferred until a later period; changes resulting from audit may be made during 1941: and back taxes, interest, and penalties are excluded from the tax liability shown in this report.

## DESCRIPTION OF ITEMS

Gross estate consists of real estate, tangible personal property, and intangible personal property. Under each category there is tabulated the value of jointly owned property, property transferred during the decedent's life, property transferred under powers of appointment, property previously taxed, and all other property. The amounts shown for these items represent only that part of such property which has been reported for estate tax purposes. In the case of "Jointly owned property," it is only the value of the decedent's interest in such property which is reported in gross estate. "Transfers during decedent's life" consist of gifts made in contemplation of death and gifts made to take effect at or after death. "Transfers under powers of appointment" consist of property over which the decedent had received a general power of appointment and not property over which the decedent gave a power of appointment. "Property previously taxed" consists of property subjected to the Federal estate or gift taxes within the five years preceding death of the recipient.

For estates of individuals who died on or after August 31, 1935, the value of gross estate may be determined, at the election of the executor, either as of the date of death or as of the date one year after death (optional value). If the optional value is elected, property distributed. sold, exchanged, or otherwise disposed of within the year following death must be valued as of the date of disposition. For individuals who died prior to August 31, 1935, the value of the gross estate must be determined as of the date of death.

The amount tabulated as total gross estate includes only the taxable life insurance. However, the entire amount of life insurance and the amount tax-exempt (not includible in gross estate) are tabulated as an information item.

Specific exemption tabulated for estates filed under the provisions of the Revenue Act of 1932 and subsequent acts is the specific exemption allowed for computation of the additional tax. The specific exemption thus allowed is \$40,000 under the Revenue Act of 1935, and is \$50,000 under the 1932 act or that act as amended by the 1934 act. A specific exemption of \$100,000 under the provisions of the 1926 act (basic tax) has remained in effect since the effective date of that act. Under the 1924 act or prior acts, the specific exemption is \$50,000. No specific

exemption is authorized for the estates of nonresident aliens.

Property previously taxed, net deduction, tabulated for returns filed under the provisions of the Revenue Act of 1932 and subsequent acts, is the net deduction allowed in computing the additional tax. In order to claim this deduction, a Federal estate tax or gift tax must actually have been paid within five years on the property included in the gross estate. The value of such property is that finally determined in the case of the previous owner, or in the estate of the recipient, whichever is lower. Subject to certain conditions and limitations, this net deduction for property previously taxed is the value thus determined less a proportionate reduction which is that portion of total deductions, except previously taxed property, which the value of property previously taxed bears to gross estate.

Net estate for additional tax is the excess of gross estate over the sum of deductions and specific exemption allowed under the 1932 act or subsequent acts, Net estate for basic tax is the excess of gross estate over the sum of deductions and specific exemption allowed under the 1926 act, or under the basic tax provision of the Internal Revenue Code. For returns subject to both basic tax and additional tax,

each of the two net estates is tabulated.

Basic tax is levied under the 1926 act, or that act as amended, or under the Internal Revenue Code. In computing the basic tax a specific exemption of \$100,000 is allowed in the case of a citizen or

resident of the United States.

Additional tax is levied under the 1932 act, or that act as amended, or under the Internal Revenue Code, and is in addition to the basic tax. The additional tax is the excess of a tentative tax, computed at rates provided in the effective act, over the basic tax. In computing the additional tax a specfic exemption of \$40,000 is allowed under the 1935 and subsequent acts, and \$50,000 is allowed under the 1932 act, or that act as amended by the 1934 act, in the case of a citizen or resident of the United States.

Tax credits are allowable against both the basic tax and the additional tax. The gift tax credit deductible from the basic tax is the total gift tax paid under the Revenue Act of 1924 on property included in gross estate and that portion of the gift tax paid under the Revenue Act of 1932 which does not exceed the proportion of the basic tax that the value of included gifts bears to gross estate. The gift tax credit deductible from the additional tax, for gift tax paid under the Revenue Act of 1932, can not exceed the proportion of additional tax that the value of included gifts bears to gross estate, and can not exceed the balance of the gift tax not already credited

in connection with the basic tax. No credit is allowed against the additional tax for gift tax paid under the 1924 act. The credit for estate, inheritance, legacy, or succession taxes paid to States, Territories, District of Columbia, or (after June 29, 1939) United States possessions is deductible only from the basic tax, and can not exceed 80 percent of the basic tax after deducting the gift tax credit.

Defense tax is imposed by the Revenue Act of 1940, applicable to estates of individuals who died within the period June 25, 1940, through September 20, 1941. The amount of the defense tax is 10 percent

of the net tax otherwise payable.

Total tax liability as tabulated in this report is the sum of net basic tax, net additional tax, and defense tax.

# CLASSIFICATION OF RETURNS

Estate tax returns are classified as returns for the estates of citizens and resident aliens or nonresident aliens. Returns for the estates of citizens and resident aliens are classified (1) as taxable or nontaxable, (2) by the applicable revenue acts, (3) by geographic divisions, and (4) by gross estate classes. The taxable returns are further classified by net estate before specific exemption classes. Data are presented by these classifications in the estate tax tables, but not all tabulated items are available for every classification.

Citizens and resident aliens, or nonresident aliens.—Returns of citizens and resident aliens exclude returns for nonresident citizens who died prior to May 11, 1934, when nonresident citizens were taxed under

provisions applicable to nonresident aliens.

Taxable or nontaxable.—This classification is based on the existence or nonexistence of a tax liability, either for basic tax or additional tax

or for both.

Applicable revenue acts.—Estate tax returns are classified according to the revenue act in effect at date of death, the provisions of which apply to the estate, without regard to the filing date. The revenue acts in effect September 9, 1916, through 1941 are consolidated into five groups for this classification. The act of 1924 and prior acts are combined into one group; the remaining four groups are governed by the predominating acts of 1926, 1932, 1934, and 1935.

Geographic divisions.—This classification consists of 48 States, Alaska, Hawaii, and District of Columbia. The segregation of returns by States and Territories is determined by the location of the collection district in which the return is filed, except for the two divisions, Alaska and District of Columbia, the segregation of which is deter-

mined by the residence of the individual at time of death.

Gross estate classes.—Returns are segregated into 17 gross estate classes. This classification, applied only to returns filed under the Revenue Act of 1935 and subsequent acts, is based on the value of gross estate defined to include tax-exempt insurance, not to exceed in aggregate \$40,000 for any one estate, receivable by beneficiaries other than the estate.

Net estate before specific exemption classes.—Taxable returns are segregated into 30 net estate before specific exemption classes. The basis for this classification, applied only to returns filed under the Revenue Act of 1935 and subsequent acts, is the sum of the net estate for additional tax and the specific exemption of \$40,000 allowed in computing such tax.

#### TABLES

Estate tax tables 1 through 5 present data for estates of citizens and resident aliens. Data for estates of nonresident aliens are shown in aggregate in table 6, which is a historical summary for all estate tax returns filed from September 9, 1916, through 1941.

Data for estates of all citizens and resident aliens are tabulated in table 1, by applicable revenue acts, and by taxable and nontaxable returns; and in table 5 by States and Territories. Data in tables 2 and 3 for taxable returns, and data in table 4 for nontaxable returns, are limited to the returns filed for estates of citizens and resident aliens who died on or after August 31, 1935.

There is no analysis of the total value of real estate reported on returns filed in 1941, corresponding to that tabulated in estate tax table 6, published in Statistics of Income for 1939.

Table 1.—Estate tax returns filed during 1941 for estates of citizens 1 and resident items of gross estate, deduct

[Money in figures in

			All acts	
-				
		•		
		Total	Taxable	Nontax- able
1	Number of returns.	15, 977	13, 336	2, 641
2	Gross estate, total	2, 777, 657	2, 578, 314	199, 342
3	Real estate,3 total	438, 416	370, 122	68, 293
4	Real estate not included in items 5-8.	366, 859 41, 119	398, 215 34, 056	58, 645 7, 063
6 7	Jointly owned Transfers during decedent's life Transfers under power of appointment	14, 828 764	12, 766 750	2,062
8	Previously taxed	14, 844	14, 335	14 509
9	Tangible personal property, total	36, 323	31, 431	4, 892
10	Tangible personal property not included in items 11-14	34, 885	30, 153	4, 732
11 12	Transfers during decedent's life	515 251	444 176	72 75
13 14	Jointly owned. Transfers during decedent's life. Transfers under power of appointment. Previously taxed.	1 671	(13) 658	(13)
15	Intangible personal property, total	2, 302, 918	2, 176, 761	126, 157
16 17	Stocks and bonds, total	1, 645, 300 497, 366	1, 569, 223 478, 484	76, 077 18, 883
18	Federal Government bonds: Wholly tax-exempt 4	52, 107	51, 585	522
19 20	Partially tax-exempt 4. Taxable 4.	108, 557 251	101, 813 240	6, 744 11
21 22	State and municipal bonds	189, 550 146, 901	186, 201 138, 645	3, 349 8, 256
23 24	Capital stock in corporations	1, 147, 934	1,090,740	57, 195
25	Mortgages, notes, and cash <sup>5</sup> .  Taxable insurance (60 less 61) Other intangibles <sup>6</sup>	465, 214 70, 359	434, 194 63, 233	31, 020 7, 126
<b>2</b> 6		122, 044	110, 110	11, 934
27	Deductions, total	1, 275, 618	1, 017, 099	258, 519
28 29	Funeral and administrative expenses Debts of decedent; mortgages and liens	131, 967 269, 178	120, 673 167, 835	11, 294 101, 343
30 31	Net losses during administration	389	252	138
32	Support of dependents <sup>7</sup> .  Charitable, public, and similar bequests, total.  Educational, scientific, or literary institutions:	11, 377 175, 072	10, 183 136, 860	1, 195 38, 212
33	Educational, scientine, or literary institutions: Publicly owned. Privately endowed.	10, 903	7, 405	3, 498
34 35	Religious	25, 653 12, 835	21, 640 7, 712	4.013 5,123
36	Charitable and all other gifts	125, 680	100, 103	25, 578
37 38	Specific exemption •	47, 284 640, 350	47, 156 534, 140	106, 210
	Net estate:			
39 40	Under 1924 act or prior acts.  For basic tax (under 1926 act or Internal Revenue Code, or either, as amended).	1, 115, 920	170 1, 115, 920	
41	For additional tax (under 1932 act or that act as amended or Internal Revenue Code).	1, 560, 650	1: 560, 650	
		<del></del>	<del></del>	

For footnotes, see p. 223.

aliens, by taxable and nontaxable returns under the applicable acts: Number of returns, ions, net estate, and tax

# thousands of dollars]

Applicable acts												
S-  i-  i-  i-	acts (ef- e for es- of indi- als who before a. m.	tive for estates of individuals tates of who died in period 10:25 a.m. died b			for es- individ- ho died od 5 p. m. 6, 1932, h May	tates of uals w	e for es- of indi- ls who n period 11, 1934, th Aug.	amen 1934 a fective tates vidua died i	estates of als who or after	amended and su acts, <sup>2</sup> the Revenu and the amended tive for		
	Nentax able	Taxable	Nontax- able	Taxable	Nontax- able	Taxable	Nontax- able	Taxable	Nontax- able	Taxable		
2	2	5	6	6	7	17	12	12	2, 614	13, 296		
)3	103	473	947	1, 151	489	2, 186	1, 191	1, 016	196, 614	2, 573, 488		
30	60	166	267	316	324	1, 253	615	366	67, 027	368, 022		
30	60	158	252 15	199 75 42	315 9	1, 036 119 17	517 97	254 42 71	57, 500 6, 942 2, 062	306, 569 33, 812 12, 636		
						81			509	750 14, 255		
2	2	14	10	25	5	8	19	10	4, 856	31, 375		
2	2	14	10	25	5	(18)	19	10	4, 696 72 75	30, 097 444 176		
		-,				(13)			(13)	(18) 658		
0	40	293	670	810	159	926	557	640	124, 731	2, 174, 092		
		40 1	349 15	511 59	81 36	144 46	406 51	292 162	75, 241 18, 780	1, 568, 237 478, 217		
		1		1	3	. 38	i	11 15	522 6, 740 11	51, 573 101, 758 240		
 i		40 25	15 334 186	57 452 40	1 32 45 39	4 98 326	22 28 355 119	32 103 130 242	3, 326 8, 181 56, 461 30, 676	186, 165 138, 480 1, 090, 020 433, 562		
ō	40	228	28 107	193 67	30 9	387 69	14 18	33 73	7, 054 11, 759	62, 620 109, 673		
==	120	303	1, 756	756	597	1, 465	1, 428	732	254, 617	1, 013, 843		
	6 10	16 29	36 948	38 115	22 224	88 426	45 778	51 55 (18)	11, 184 99, 383	120, 481 167, 210 251		
1	4	8	1 172	3	(18)	15 76	4 2	22	138 1, 190 38, 035	10, 138 136, 781		
3	3 1		9 119 23 21	(18) (18) 3		(18) 4 71	1 1	1	3, 489 3, 893 5, 097 25, 555	7, 405 21, 640 7, 707 100, 029		
ō	100	250	600	600	350	11 850	600	600	127 104, 560	47, 142 531, 840		
=		170		395		301		13		1, 115, 211		
						721		284		1, 559, 645		

Table 1.—Estate tax returns filed during 1941 for estates of citizens 1 and resident items of gross estate, deductions,

[Money figures in-

			All acts	٠
		Total	Taxable	Nontax- able
42 43 44 45	Basic tax before tax credits (including tax under 1924 act or prior acts).  Tax credit for Federal gift taxes	53,636	68, 473 330 53, 636 14, 507	
46 47 48	Additional tax before tax credit  Tax credit for Federal gift taxes  Net additional tax (46 less 47)	383	268, 056 383 267, 674	
49	Defense tax 11	9, 578	9, 578	
50	Total tax liability (45 plus 48 and 49)	291, 758	291, 758	
51	Information items: Intangible personal property, total	2, 302, 918	2, 176, 761	126, 157
52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59	Intangible personal property not included in items 56-59: Stocks and bonds. Morigages, notes, and cash * Taxable insurance (60 less 61). Other miscellaneous intangibles * Jointly owned. Transfers during decedent's life Transfers under power of appointment. Previously taxed.	63, 243	1, 425, 720 373, 939 63, 233 94, 450 52, 276 83, 542 22, 452 61, 148	71, 653 27, 913 7, 126 11, 315 2, 788 2, 878 388 2, 096
60 61	Gross insurance Tax-exempt insurance <sup>12</sup>	169, 282 98, 922	147, 240 84, 006	22, 042 14, 916

For footnotes, see p. 223.

aliens, by taxable and nontaxable returns under the applicable acts: Number of returns, net estate, and tax—Continued

## thousands of dollars]

	Applicable acts													
and su acts,2 the Revenu and the amended tive for individu	estates of als who or after	tates vidua died i May	led by act 2 (cf- e for es- of indi- ls who n period 11, 1934, th Aug.	tates of	for es- individ- ho died od 5 p. m. 6, 1932, h May	that amende tive for of ind who di riod 10 Feb. through	1926 and act as ed (effector estates iividuals ed in per:25 a. m. 26, 1926, 194:59 p. e 6, 1932)	prior fective tates vidua died 10:25	924, and acts (ef- e for es- of indi- ls who before a. m. 26, 1926)					
Taxable	Nontax- able	Taxable	Nontax- able	Taxable	Nontax- able	Taxable	Nontax- able	Taxable	Nontax- able					
68,458		(13)		5		7		2		42				
330 53, 629 14, 499		(13) (13)		(13) 2 3		4 3		(13) 2		4:				
268, 019 383 267, 637		7		30						4:				
9, 578										41				
291, 713		7		33		3		· 2		50				
2, 174, 092	124, 731	640	557	926	159	810	670	293	40	51				
1, 424, 788 373, 446 62, 620 94, 030 52, 149 83, 499 22, 452 61, 108	70, 849 27, 576 7, 054 11, 146 2, 777 2, 846 388 2, 096	238 191 33 56 39 43	406 112 14 18 7 (13)	144 238 387 69 88	50 39 30 9	511 40 193 67	349 186 28 102 5	228	(13)	52 54 54 56 57 58				
146, 379 83, 759	21, 942 14, 888	86 53	35 21	540 153	31 1	233 40	33 5	1 1		60				

Table 2.—Taxable estate tax returns filed during 1941 for estates of citizens and resident aliens who died on or after August 31, 1935, by net estate before specific exemption classes: A Number of returns, items of gross estate, deductions, net estate, and tax

[Net estate before specific exemption classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

	•			Net estate	(before specif	ic exemption	) classes 14			
		Total	40 under 50	50 under 60	60 under 80	80 under 100	100 under 150	150 under 200	200 under 300	
1	Number of returns.	13, 296	2, 969	2, 023	2, 426	1, 424	1, 730	824	792	1
2	Gross estate, total	2, 573, 488	167, 112	137, 837	209, 751	153, 691	254, 695	174, 200	240, 994	2
3	Real estate, <sup>3</sup> total	368,022	48, 592	38, 449	51, 644	33, 059	48, 355	29, 786	34, 086	3
4 5 6 7 8	Real estate not included in items 5-8 Jointly owned. Transfers during decedent's life. Transfers under power of appointment. Previously taxed	306, 569 33, 812 12, 636 750 14, 255	38, 635 4, 281 1, 669 6 4, 000	31, 685 3, 932 1, 265 23 1, 545	42, 593 5, 198 2, 084 70 1, 698	26, 916 3, 707 1, 241 158 1, 037	40, 374 4, 993 1, 455 61 1, 473	25, 088 2, 844 635 115 1, 104	27, 909 3, 134 1, 590 122 1, 330	4 5 6 7 8
9	Tangible personal property, total.	31, 375	3, 304	2, 591	4, 064	2, 119	3, 749	2, 115	2, 299	9
10 11 12 13 14	Tangible personal property not included in items 11-14 Jointly owned	30, 097 444 176 (13) 658	3, 117 65 27 95	2, 414 38 38 38	3, 905 95 9	2, 055 36 6	3, 567 14 48 (13)	2,071 13 5	2, 188 16 4	10 11 12 13 14
15	Intangible personal property, total	2, 174, 092	115, 216	96, 796	154, 043	118, 514	202, 590	142, 299	204, 609	15
16 17	Stocks and bonds, total Bonds, total Federal Government bonds:	1, 568, 237 478, 217	60, 441 16, 874	54, 199 15, 536	86, 584 24, 909	71, 456 21, 638	129, 327 39, 242	97, 313 27, 730	146, 682 43, 832	16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26	Wholly tax-exempt 4 Partially tax-exempt 4 Taxable 4 State and municipal bonds All other bonds Capital stock in corporations Mortgages, notes, and eash 5 Taxable insurance (60 less 61) Other intangibles 6	433, 562 62, 620 109, 673	398 6, 656 30 2, 127 7, 664 43, 566 43, 397 3, 462 7, 917	405 5, 662 16 2, 270 7, 182 38, 663 32, 210 3, 545 6, 842	681 9, 252 100 3, 558 11, 319 61, 675 48, 636 6, 473 12, 350 139, 825	757 7, 052 55 3, 914 9, 860 49, 818 34, 488 5, 090 7, 480	896 12, 749 4 7, 201 18, 392 90, 085 50, 397 8, 871 14, 086	684 8, 997 25 6, 090 11, 934 69, 583 31, 204 5, 316 8, 466	2, 009 10, 947 8 11, 829 19, 039 102, 850 39, 134 8, 182 10, 612	18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26
28 29	Funeral and administrative expenses Debts of decedent; mortgages and liens	120, 481 167, 210	9, 102 14, 154	7, 112 12, 262	10, 888 16, 369	7, 986 9, 650	12, 757 16, 054	8, 538 11, 538	12, 089 16, 645	28 29

30 31 32	Net losses during administration Support of dependents ? Charitable, public, and similar bequests, total. Educational, scientific, or literary institutions:	10, 138 136, 781	50 891 4, 393	25 746 3, 445	1, 136 8, 883	18 787 5, 218	21 1, <del>41</del> 9 8, 958	3 962 7, 069	13 1, 290 14, 662	30 31 32
33 34 35 36 37 38	Publicly owned Privately endowed Religious Charitable and all other gifts Property previously taxed, net deduction  Specific exemption (\$40,000)	7, 405 21, 640 7, 707 100, 029 47, 142	337 504 803 2, 749 5, 891 118, 760	874 403 495 1, 673 3, 654 80, 920	806 2, 012 945 5, 120 5, 502 97, 040	202 517 605 3, 895 3, 039 56, 960	494 1, 071 1, 201 6, 191 5, 946 69, 200	106 1, 595 763 4, 606 4, 208 32, 960	568 2, 839 671 10, 584 5, 300 31, 680	36 37
39 40 41	Net estate:  Before specific exemption (2 less 27 plus 38)  For basic tax (under 1926 act or Internal Revenue Code, or either as amended).  For additional tax (under 1932 act as amended by 1935 act and subsequent acts, or under the Internal Revenue Code).	2, 091, 485 1, 115, 211 1, 559, 645	132, 630 49 13, 870	110, 594 117 29, 674	166, 966 423 69, 926	126, 992 919 70, 032	209, 510 38, 670 140, 310	141, 832 60, 430 108, 872	190, 994 112, 753 159, 314	39 40 41
42 43 44 45	Basic tax before tax credits. Tax credit for Federal gift taxes. Tax credit for inheritance, etc., taxes 10 Net basic tax (42 less 43 and 44).	68, 458 330 53, 629 14, 499	(13) (13) (13)	1 (13)	3 1	9 7 2	390 1 303 86	798 4 623 171	2, 195 9 1, 708 478	42 43 44 45
46 47 48	Additional tax before tax credit	383	(13) 278 278	783 (13) 783	2,844 1 2,842	4, 219 5 4, 214	11, 748 11 11, 737	11, 612 28 11, 585	19, 344 9 19, 335	46 47 48
49	Defense tax 11	9, 578	16	44	151	222	589	568	850	49
50	Total tax liability (45 plus 48 and 49)	291, 713	294	826	2,994	4, 438	12, 413	12, 323	20, 663	50
51	luformation items: Intangible personal property, total	2, 174, 092	115, 216	96, 796	154, 043	118, 514	202, 590	142, 299	204, 609	51
52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59	Intangible personal property not included in items 56-59: Stocks and bonds. Mortgages, notes, and cash <sup>3</sup> . Taxable insurance (60 less 61). Other miscellaneous intangibles <sup>6</sup> . Jointly owned. Transfers during decedent's life Transfers under power of appointment. Previously taxed.	1, 424, 788 373, 446 62, 620 94, 030 52, 149 83, 499 22, 452 61, 108	49, 725 33, 503 3, 462 6, 135 6, 835 3, 648 367 11, 543	45, 140 25, 764 3, 545, 6, 059 6, 485 3, 072 349 6, 382	75, 550 40, 569 6, 473 10, 302 8, 014 5, 300 264 7, 571	63, 347 28, 419 5, 090 6, 548 5, 876 4, 310 972 3, 952	114, 629 42, 784 8, 871 12, 433 7, 773 7, 932 982 7, 186	86, 093 27, 267 5, 316 7, 769 4, 741 5, 486 949 4, 677	134, 376 33, 349 8, 182 9, 542 4, 836 7, 188 1, 474 5, 662	52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59
60 61	Gross insurance Tax-exempt insurance <sup>12</sup>	146, 379 83, 759	14, 659 11, 197	12, 150 8, 605	19, 774 13, 302	13, 852 8, 762	22, 172 13, 302	12, 995 7, 678	16, 359 8, 177	60 61

Table 2.—Taxable estate tax returns filed during 1941 for estates of citizens and resident aliens who died on or after August 31, 1935, by net estate before specific exemption classes: 14 Number of returns, items of gross estate, deductions, net estate, and tax—Continued

[Net estate before specific exemption classes and m	money figures in thousands of dollars	sl
---	---------------------------------------	----

		Net estate (before specific exemption) classes 4—Continued						Ī		
		300 under 400	400 under 500	500 under • 600	600 under 700	700 under 800	800 under 900	900 under 1,000	1,000 under 1,500	e.
1	Number of returns.		194	129	73	57	48	31	. 80	1
2	Gross estate, total.	147, 358	107, 975	82, 817	58, 306	50, 579	47, 378	33, 823	118, 033	2
3	Real estate,3 total	18, 495	12, 713	6, 985	7, 188	4, 668	2, 394	3, 561	6, 199	3
4 5 6 7 8	Real estate not included in items 5-8 Jointly owned. Transfers during decedent's life Transfers under power of appointment. Previously taxed	1, 587	11, 375 1, 001 102	5, 961 591 132 2 300	6, 078 874 100 105 30	3, 794 213 623 39	1, 728 112 201 13 341	3, 148 330 	5, 506 514 83	
9	Tangible personal property, total.		1,085	704	655	512	650	350	1, 175	9
10 11 12	Tangible personal property not included in items 11-14 Jointly owned. Transfers during decedent's life.	1, 193 11 5	1, 026 1 10	679 13 6	652 I	511	592 1	349	1, 153	
13 14	Transfers under power of appointment. Previously taxed.	16	48	6	2		56	1	5	13 14
15	Intangible personal property, total	127, 639	94, 177	75, 127	50, 463	45, 399	44, 335	29, 912	110, 659	15
16 17	Stocks and bonds, total Bonds, total Federal Government bonds:	94, 606 27, 515	71, 272 20, 550	58, 301 17, 219	38, 904 14, 432	35, 241 10, 335	34, 812 11, 728	22, 840 6, 340	90, 197 25, 358	16 17
18 19 20	Wholly tax-exempt 4 Partially tax-exempt 4 Taxable 4 State and municipal bonds	1, 174 7, 909 3	1. 149 5, 943	1 068 3, 942	1, 633 2, 349	697 1, 622	405 2, 162	581 528	3, 339 4, 312	18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26	Capital stock in corporations.  Mortgages, notes, and cash  Taxable insurance (60 less 61).  Other intangibles 6	11, 193 67, 091 23, 119 4, 286 5, 627	5, 725 7, 734 50, 722 14, 490 3, 038 5, 377	6, 443 5, 766 41, 082 10, 199 2, 416 4, 211	7, 299 3, 150 24, 472 8, 948 773 1, 840	5, 052 2, 965 24, 906 7, 654 1, 044 1, 460	6, 375 2, 786 23, 084 5, 574 717 3, 231	3, 842 1, 388 16, 501 4, 838 647 1, 587	12, 739 4, 967 64, 839 12, 415 3, 242 4, 805	21 22 23 24 25 26
27	Deductions, total		29, 033	17, 806	13, 594	10, 299	8, 648	5, 566	24, 984	27
28 29	Funeral and administrative expenses.  Debts of decedent; mortgages and liens.	6, 888 7, 904	5, 136 9, 177	3, 836 3, 878	2, 497 3, 611	2, 175 3, 051	2, 052 2, 534	I, 627 J. 678	4, 863 7, 651	28 29

30 31 32	Net losses during administration. Support of dependents? Charitable, public, and similar bequests, total Fducational, scientific, or literary institutions:	589 4, 011	- 24 438 5, 474	397 2, 944	15 204 3, 938	167 2, 626	78 1, 197	1 170 328	369 6, 422	30 31 32
33 34 35 36 37 38	Publicly owned Privately endowed Religious Charitable and all other gifts. Property previously taxed, net deduction Specific exemption (\$40,000)	321 348 2, 602	1, 377 417 376 3, 304 1, 024 7, 760	39 1, 599 121 1, 185 1, 589 5, 160	35 2, 617 211 1, 076 410 2, 920	57 491 219 1,859	6 717 151 322 867 1,920	62 52 214 521 1, 240	239 378 163 5, 641 2, 479 3, 200	33 34 35 36 37 38
39 40 41	Net estate:  Before specific exemption (2 less 27 plus 38) For basic tax (under 1926 act or Internal Revenue Code, or either as amended). For additional tax (under 1932 act as amended by 1935 act and subsequent acts, or under the Internal Revenue Code)	126, 123 89, 927 111, 563	86, 702 67, 427 78, 942	70, 171 57, 364 65, 011	47, 632 40, 364 44, 712	42, 560 36, 860 40, 280	40, 650 35, 899 38, 730	29, 498 26, 426 28, 258	96, 250 88, 323 93, 050	39 40 41
42 43 44 45	Basic tax before tax credits_ Tax credit for Federal gift taxes	2, 323 12 1, 839 472	2, 018 4 1, 584 431	1, 901 6 1, 467 428	1, 471 6 1, 109 355	1, 442 7 1, 125 310	1, 506 1, 188 318	1, 183 (13) 940 243	4, 557 2 3, 563 992	42 43 44 45
46 47 48	Additional tax before tax credit. 'Tax credit for Federal gift taxes Net additional tax (46 less 47)	15, 146	11, 267 11 11, 256	9, 775 11 9, 764	7, 001 7 6, 994	6, 557 20 6, 537	6, 503	4, 922	17, 432 6 17, 426	46 47 48
49	Defense tax !!	606	452	389	334	276	242	165	590	49
50	Total tax liability (45 plus 48 and 49)	16, 183	12, 138	10, 581	7, 683	7, 123	7, 063	5, 331	19,008	50
51	Information items: Intangible personal property, total	127, 639	94, 177	75, 127	50, 463	45, 399	44, 335	29, 912	110, 659	51
52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59	Intangible personal property not included in items 56-59: Stocks and bonds. Mortgages, notes, and eash 6. Taxable insurance (60 less 61). Other miscellaneous intangibles 6. Jointly owned. Transfers during decedent's life. Transfers under power of appointment. Previously taxed.  Gross insurance.	86, 076 20, 424 4, 286 4, 998 2, 510 6, 478 1, 001 1, 866	66. 979 13. 197 3. 038 3. 038 870 3. 626 2. 243 1. 142	53, 119 8, 760 2, 416 2, 750 871 5, 535 10 1, 666	35, 801 8, 123 773 1, 768 310 2, 818 435 430	34. 515 7, 245 1, 044 1, 458 205 335 598	30, 437 5, 102 717 2, 915 209 3, 678 708 568	21, 678 4, 488 647 1, 566 55 957 521	81, 710 11, 505 3, 242 3, 895 6, 707 2, 774	52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59
61	Tax-exempt insurance 12	4, 114	2, 012	1,521	751	536	571	438	4, 455 1, 213	61

Table 2.—Taxable estate tax returns filed during 1941 for estates of citizens and resident aliens who died on or after August 31, 1935, by net estate before specific exemption classes: "Number of returns, items of gross estate, deductions, net estate, and tax—Continued"

[Net estate before specific exemption classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

			Ne	t estate (befo	re specific ex	emption) cla	sses 14—Cont	inued		
		1,500 under 2,000	2,000 under 2,500	2,500 under 3,000	3,000 under 3,500	3,500 under 4,000	4,000 under 4,500	4,500 under 5,000	5,000 under 6,000	
1	Number of returns	53	29	13	4	6	4	5	3	1
2	Gross estate, total	112, 966	82, 793	38, 775	14, 604	27, 263	18, 623	35, 190	18, 889	2
3	Real estate,3 total	8, 733	3, 493	588	996	376	1, 148	1, 501	404	3
4 5 6	Real estate not included in items 5-8.  Jointly owned.  Transfers during decedent's life.  Transfers under power of appointment.	8, 316 103 271	2, 709 113	588	941 55	358	803 34 311	1, 377 1 123	219 185	4 5 6
7	Transfers under power of appointment. Previously taxed.	1 42	671			15				8
а	Taugible personal property, total	930	494	330	306	52	505	117	133	9
10 11 12	Tangible personal property not included in items 11-14.  Jointly owned.  Transfers during decedent's life.  Transfers under power of appointment.	918	485 5	330	306	44	505	112 5	132	10 11 12
13 14	Transfers under power of appointment Previously taxed	3	3			8				13 14
15	lutangible personal property, total.	103, 303	78, 806	37, 857	13, 302	26, 835	16, 970	33, 572	18, 351	15
16 17	Stocks and bonds, total Bonds, total Federal Government bonds:	25, 801	68, 161 20, 404	32, 951 8, 348	9, 797 2, 864	22, 198 9, 830	14. 873 5, 686	27, 043 7, 880	13, 173 5, 839	16 17
18 19 20	Wholly tax-exempt 4 Partially tax-exempt 4 Taxable 4		3, 371 1, 998	651 391	50 32	3, 394 1, 891	114 8	1, 669 24	49 22	18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26	State and municipal bonds All other bonds Capital stock in corporations Mortgages, notes, and cash  Taxable insurance (60 less 61) Other intangibles <sup>6</sup>	15, 156 4, 542 58, 790 11, 103 2, 099	13, 041 1, 995 47, 756 8, 523 702 1, 420	6, 604 703 24, 603 3, 901 759 246	2, 525 257 6, 933 3, 245 181 79	3, 337 1, 208 12, 368 4, 200 37 400	5, 356 208 9, 187 814 1, 121 162	5, 847 339 19, 164 5, 847 579 102	5, 050 719 7, 334 5, 064 40 74	21 22 23 24 25 26
27	Deductions, total	23, 495	21, 052	3, 601	1, 684	5, 299	1, 779	11, 637	2, 711	27
28 29	Funeral and administrative expenses Debts of decedent; mortgages and lieus	5,087 7,696	2,899 3,198	1,604 977	969 522	1, 114 1, 184	735 736	1, 620 8, 158	973 467	28 29

30 31 32	Net losses during administration. Support of dependents 7. Charitable, public, and similar bequests, total Educational, scientific, or literary institutions:	71 253 7, 337	121 12, 468	475	33	42 154	8	50 1,609	1, 152	30 31 32
33 34 35 36	Publicly owned	399	234 89 180	57 20 62	1	7 45	5	435 10	78 78	33 34 35
37 38	Charitable and all other gifts	6, 270 933 2, 120	11, 965 1, 206 1, 160	336 25 520	32	102 2, 564 240	141 160	1, 164	995	36 37 38
39 40 41	Net estate:  Before specific exemption (2 less 27 plus 38)  For basic tax (under 1926 act or Internal Revenue Code, or either as amended).  For additional tax (under 1932 act as amended by 1935 act and subsequent acts, or under the Internal Revenue Code).	91, 591 86, 314 89, 471	62, 900 60, 025 61, 740	35, 694 34, 395 35, 174	13, 081 12, 681 12, 921	22, 204 21, 634 21, 964	17, 004 16, 606 16, 844	23, 753 23, 253 23, 553	16, 297 15, 997 16, 177	39 40 41
42 43 44	Basic tax before tax credits.  Tax credit for Federal gift taxes	5, 312 86 4, 084	4, 081 109 3, 145	2, 594 2, 076	1, 036	1, 874	1, 540	2, 273 81	1,660	42 43
45	14et Dasie tax (42 less 45 and 44)	1, 141	827	519	207	375	1, 232 308	1, 746 446	1,004 655	44 45
46 47 48	Additional tax before tax credit.  Tax credit for Federal gift taxes.  Net additional tax (46 less 47).	18, 460 18, 460	13, 514 13, 514	8, 221 8, 221	3, 180 3, 180	5, 615	4, 514	6, 573 234	4, 767	46 47
49	Defense tax 11	491	421	207	3, 180	5, 615	4, 514	6, 339	4, 767	48 49
50	Total tax liability (45 plus 48 and 49)	20,092	14, 762	8, 947	3, 474	6, 296	4,941	7,082	5, 421	50
51	Information items: Intangible personal property, total	103, 303	78, 806	37, 857	13, 302	26, 835	16, 970	33, 572	18, 351	51
52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59	Intangible personal property not included in items 56-59: Stocks and bonds.  Mortgages, notes, and cash 5. Taxable insurance (60 less 61). Other miscellaneous intangibles 6. Jointly owned. Transfers during decedent's life. Transfers under power of appointment. Previously taxed.	78, 277 10, 730 2, 099 5, 229 465 4, 241 1, 249 1, 012	67, 528 7, 683 702 909 823 26 414 630	31, 394 3, 870 759 246 1, 558	9, 797 3, 245 181 79	19, 108 3, 145 37 400 812 3, 333	11, 108 577 1, 121 138 25 3, 838	25, 532 5, 777 579 102 1, 582	10, 570 4, 623 40 36 393 2, 688	52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59
60 61	Gross insurance Tax-exempt insurance 12	2, 706 607	1, 054 352	975 216	258 77	123 86	1, 241 120	659 80	47	60 61

Table 2.—Taxable estate tax returns filed during 1941, for estates of citizens and resident aliens who died on or after August 31, 1935, by net estate before specific exemption classes: 14 Number of returns, items of gross estate, deductions, net estate, and tax—Continued

[Net estate before specific exemption classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

			Net estate	(before speci	fic exemption	ı) classes 14—	Continued	
		6,000 under 7,000	7,000 under 8,000	8,000 under 9,000	9,000 under 10,000	10,000 under 20,000	20,000 under 50,000	50,000 and over
ı	Number of returns	2	2	2	3	4	1	1
2	Gross estate, total	14,042	16, 509	18, 039	36, 648	48, 276	23, 138	83, 18
3	Real estate, <sup>3</sup> total	1, 639	174	904	261	424	279	920
5	Real estate not included in items 5-8.	l	174	710 194	261	424	279	920
	Transfers during decedent's life Transfers under power of appointment Previously taxed							
,	Tangible personal property, total	510	59	61	365	391	21	504
	Tangible personal property not included in items 11-14	390	59	61	365	391	21	504
	Joinfly owned. Transfers during decedent's life. Transfers under power of appointment. Previously taxed.		<b></b>	[ <del>-</del>	l <b></b>	- <b>-</b>		
	Intangible personal property, total	11,893	16, 275	17, 073	36,022	47, 461	22, 838	81, 756
	Stocks and bonds, total	11, 016 4, 429	11, 142 5, 555	15, 052 7, 637	28, 480 13, 940	42, 378 16, 886	17, 217 10, 573	77, 990 9, 307
	Federal Government bonds: Wholly tax-exempt 4. Partially tax-exempt 4. Taxable 4.	1, 223	2, 579 1, 514	152 6	2, 962 55	7, 355 1, 668	9, 245 39	802 6
	State and municipal bonds	3,036 170	510 951	7, 480	10, 513 410	7,018 844	1, 288	7, 704 795
	Capital stock in corporations Mortgages, notes, and cash <sup>5</sup> Taxable insurance (60 less 61)	8 597	5, 588 4, 081	7, 414 1, 751	14, 540 4, 539	25, 492 4, 650	6, 644 5, 607	68, 684 2, 764
	Other intangibles 6.	17	1,052	271	3,002	433	14	1,001

27	Deductions, total.	1, 181	1, 423	874	7,812	6,671	1,026	31,592	27
28 29 30 31	Funeral and administrative expenses Debts of decedent; mortgages and liens Net losses during administration Support of dependents 7	273	537 806	319 121	1, 827 1, 135	2, 463 3, 285	824 163	1, 215 2, 282	28 29 30
32 33	Charitable, public, and similar bequests, total	77		354	-,	1		28, 055	31 32
34 35	Publicly owned. Privately endowed. Religious. Charitable and all other ciffs.	9		30 30		10 130 18		701 4, 910	33 34 35
36 37 38	Charitable and all other gifts Property previously taxed, net deduction <sup>a</sup> Specific exemption (\$40,000)			294	4, 730	605	(13)	22, 444	36 37
00		80	80	80	120	160	40	40	38
39 40 41	Net estate:  Before specific exemption (2 less 27 plus 38)  For basic tax (under 1926 act or Internal Revenue Code, or either as amended).  For additional tax (under 1932 act as amended by 1935 act and subsequent acts, or under the Internal Revenue Code).	12, 940 12, 740 12, 860	15, 166 14, 966 15, 086	17, 245 17, 045 17, 165	28, 955 28, 655 28, 835	41,765 41,365 41,605	22, 151 22, 051 22, 111	51, 633 51, 533 51, 593	39 40 41
42 43 44	Basic tax before tax credits.  Tax credit for Federal gift taxes.		1, 791	2, 155	3,805	5, 688	3, 764	9,660	42 43
45	Tax credit for inheritance, etc., taxes <sup>10</sup> .  Net basic tax (42 less 43 and 44).	1, 140 285	1,357 435	1, 724 431	3,044 761	4, 550 1, 138	3,011 753	7, 728 1, 932	44 45
46 47	Additional tax before tax credit.  Tax credit for Federal gift taxes.		5,016	5, 944	10, 326	15, 239	9, 356	23, 818	46 47
48	Net additional tax (46 less 47)	4,047	5, 016	5, 944	10, 326	15, 239	9, 356	23, 818	48
49	Defense tax 11	212	545			387	1,011		49
<b>5</b> 0	Total tax liability (45 plus 48 and 49):	4, 545	5, 996	6,375	11,087	16, 763	11, 119	25, 750	, 50
51	Information items: Intangible personal property, total	11,893	16, 275	17, 073	36, 022	47, 461	22, 838	81, 756	51
52 53 54	Intangible personal property not included in items 56–59: Stocks and bonds. Mortgages, notes, and cash 5. Taxable insurance (60 less 61)	11, 016 860	11, 142 4, 081	15, 052 1, 751	28, 480 4, 539	31, 957 4, 562	16.662 4,736	77, 990 2, 764	52 53
55 56	Taxable insurance (60 less 61) Other miscellaneous intangibles 6 Jointly owned Transfers during decedent's life	17	1,052	271	2, 969	256 26	14	1,001	54 55 56
57 58 59	Transfers during decedent's life Transfers under power of appointment Previously taxed					222			57 58 59
60 61	Gross insurance. Tax-exempt insurance 12		26				11		60 61

Table 3.—Taxable estate tax returns filed during 1941 for estates of citizens and resident aliens who died on or after August 31, 1935, by gross estate classes: 15 Number of returns, items of gross estate, deductions, net estate, and tax

[Gross estate classes and	money figures in	thousands of dollars)
---------------------------	------------------	-----------------------

					Gros	s estate class	ies 18				
		Total	40 under 50	50 under 60	60 under 70	70 under 80	80 under . 90	90 under 100	100 under 120	120 under 150	
1	Number of returns	13, 296	1, 212	1, 721	1, 396	1, 110	937	772	1, 236	1, 149	1
2	Gross estate, total	2, 573, 488	56, 007	93, 237	87, 966	79, 185	74, 747	67, 557	125, 418	143, 156	2
3	Real estate,¹ total	368, 022	14, 786	24, 592	23, 648	20, 568	18, 572	15, 757	28, 906	30, 065	3
4 5 6 7 8	Real estate not included in items 5-8 Jointly owned Transfers during decedent's life Transfers under power of appointment Previously taxed	306, 569 33, 812 12, 636 750 14, 255	12, 571 1, 313 741 4 157	20, 699 2, 193 1, 122 8 570	19, 320 2, 255 1, 085 52 937	16, 920 2, 042 918 13 674	14, 582 2, 602 563 826	13, 093 1, 645 541 60 417	23, 705 3, 089 679 103 1, 330	24, 742 3, 134 954 5 1, 230	4 5 6 7 8
9	Tangible personal property, total	31, 375	908	1, 608	1, 566	1, 477	1, 188	860	1, 884	2, 015	9
10	Tangible personal property not included in items	30, 097	869	1, 550	1, 457	1, 422	1, 142	779	1,842	1, 886	10
11 12 13	11-14.  Jointly owned.  Transfers during decedent's life.  Transfers under power of appointment	176	12 22	41 4	38 37	22 6	24 6	70 2	14 5	16 29	11 12 13
14	Previously taxed	658	5	13	33	27	16	9	24	84	14
15	Intangible personal property, total	2, 174, 092	40, 313	67, 038	62, 753	57, 141	54, 977	50, 940	94, 628	111, 076	15
16 17	Stocks and bonds, total Bonds, total Federal Government bonds:	1, 568, 237 478, 217	19, 494 6, 171	35, 822 11, 547	34, 818 11, 294	31, 393 9, 655	31, 170 9, 165	29, 819 8, 945	55, 804 15, 935	68, 932 19, 432	16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26	Wholly tax-exempt 4. Partially tax-exempt 4. Partially tax-exempt 4.  State and municipal bonds. All other bonds. Capital stock in corporations. Mortgages, notes, and cash 4. Taxable insurance (60 less 61) Other intangibles 6.	51, 573 101, 758 240 186, 165 138, 480 1, 090, 020 433, 562 62, 620 109, 673	144 2, 503 8 594 2, 921 13, 324 18, 957 490 1, 373	291 4, 589 , 18 1, 390 5, 259 24, 275 26, 905 747 3, 563	317 4, 536 38 1, 186 5, 217 23, 524 23, 514 675 3, 745	177 3, 611 9 1, 517 4, 341 21, 738 20, 368 952 4, 427	317 3, 343 70 1, 040 4, 395 22, 005 18, 715 1, 275 3, 817	188 2, 953 2 1, 542 4, 259 20, 875 15, 307 1, 932 3, 882	538 5, 195 1 2, 750 7, 451 39, 870 27, 763 3, 853 7, 207	391 6, 742 57 3, 241 9, 002 49, 500 28, 660 5, 691 7, 793	18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27	Deductions, total	1, 013, 843	52, 235	77, 225	65, 469	54, 345	47, 818	40, 317	70, 462	69, 303	27
28 29	Funeral and administrative expenses Debts of decedent; mortgages and liens	120, 481 167, 210	2, 711 753	4, 876 2, 401	4, 604 3, 331	4, 202 3, 932	3, 815 4, 135	3, 410 3, 747	6, 318 9, 058	7, 243 9, 726	28 29

	•										
30 31 32	Net losses during administration Support of dependents 7. Charitable, public, and similar bequests, total Educational, scientific, or literary institutions:	251 10, 138 136, 781	1 123 103	4 301 376	3 352 520	19 361 502	6 397 582	9 425 845	10 749 1, 940	21 987 2, 307	30 21 32
33 34 35 36 37 38	Publicly owned Privately endowed Religious Charitable and all other gifts. Property previously taxed, net deduction <sup>8</sup> . Specific exemption (\$40,000)	7, 405 21, 640 7, 707 100, 029 47, 142 531, 840	2 2 61 39 65 48,480	20 29 156 171 427 68, 840	11 19 255 236 821 55,840	8 65 167 262 929 44,400	14 38 191 340 1, 403 37, 480	59 66 224 496 1,000 30,880	129 326 440 1,045 2,946 49,440	105 381 496 1, 325 3, 060 45, 960	33 34 35 36 37 38
39 40	Net estate:  Before specific exemption (2 less 27 plus 38)  For basic tax (under 1926 act or Internal Revenue Code, or either as amended).	2, 091, 485 1, 115, 211	52, 252	84, 853	78, 337	69, 240	64, 399	58, 120	104, 396 1, 950	119, 813 15, 177	39 40
41	For additional tax (under 1932 act as amended by 1935 act and subsequent acts, or under the Internal Revenue Code).	1, 559, 645	3, 772	16, 013	22, 497	24, 840	26, 919	27, 240	54, 956	73, 853	41
42 43 44 45	Basic tax before tax credits.  Tax credit for Federal gift taxes.  Tax credit for inheritance, etc., taxes <sup>10</sup> Net basic tax (42 less 43 and 44).	68, 458 330 53, 629 14, 499							(13) 15 5	152 1 116 35	42 43 44 45
46 47 48	Additional tax before tax credit	268, 019 383 267, 637	76 76	(12) 370	678 1 678	925 1 924	I, 216	1, 444 2 1, 442	3, 438 8 3, 430	5, 682 5 5, 677	46 47 48
49	Defense tax 11.	9, 578	5	22	39	52	70	78	181	302	49
50	Total tax liability (45 plus 48 and 49)	291, 713	80	392	717	977	1, 286	1, 520	3, 616	6, 014	50
51	Information items: Intangible personal property, total:	2, 174, 092	40, 313	67, 038	62, 753	57, 141	54, 977	50, 940	94, 628	111, 076	51
52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59	Intangible personal property not included in items 56-59: Stocks and bonds Mortgages, notes, and cash in taxable insurance (60 less 61). Other miscellaneous intangibles in Jointly owned. Transfers during decedent's life Transfers under power of appointment. Previously taxed.	52, 149 83, 499 22, 452 61, 108	17, 239 15, 337 490 1, 239 3, 524 1, 662 207 615	31, 555 22, 264 747 2, 969 5, 135 2, 536 235 1, 598	30, 354 19, 522 675 3, 173 4, 043 2, 925 129 1, 931	27, 763 17, 042 952 3, 795 3, 416 1, 900 227 2, 044	26, 938 15, 113 1, 275 3, 367 3, 590 2, 029 108 2, 556	26, 666 12, 380 1, 932 3, 438 2, 837 1, 427 448 1, 813	49, 505 22, 459 3, 853 6, 076 4, 479 3, 465 436 4, 354	61, 193 23, 858 5, 691 6, 744 4, 689 4, 401 406 4, 094	52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59
60 61	Gross insurance. Tax-exempt insurance 12.	146, 379 83, 759	731 242	2, 007 1, 260	3, 236 2, 561	4, 974 4, 021	6, 144 4, 869	7, 599 5, 667	13, 738 9, 885	16, 461 10, 770	60 61

Table 3.—Taxable estate tax returns filed during 1941 for estates of citizens and resident aliens who died on or after August 31, 1935, by gross estate classes: 15 Number of returns, items of gross estate, deductions, net estate, and tax—Continued

[Gross estate classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

					Gross esta	te classes 18	-Continued				
	·	150 under 200	200 uuder 300	300 under 500	500 under 1,000	1,000 under 2,000	2,000 under 3,000	3,000 under 5,000	5,000 under 10,000	10,000 and over	
1	Number of returns	1, 162	1, 042	799	473	168	66	27	16	10	1
2	Gross estate, total	187, 257	239, 145	294. 038	316, 337	229, 215	157, 139	102, 568	115, 496	205, 027	2
3	Real estate, a total	36, 533	38, 757	38, 425	36, 799	19, 796	6, 008	8, 001	4, 738	2, 072	1
4 5 6	Real estate not included in items 5-8.  Jointly owned.  Transfers during decedent's life	30, 610 3, 434 1, 322 50	31, 069 4, 698 1, 127 66	31, 440 3, 323 1, 253 85	31, 971 2, 547 642 144	17, 259 936 868 158	5, 264 291 198	7, 062 89 311	4, 216 195 311	2, 046 26	5 6 7
8	Transfers under power of appointment	1, 116	1, 797	2, 324	1. 495	574	253	539	15		٤
9	Tangible personal property, total	2, 906	3, 104	3. 225	3, 017	2, 961	1, 330	1, 134	893	1,300	١
10	Tangible personal property not included in items	2, 860	2, 999	3, 033	2, 884	2,866	1, 324	1, 130	759	1.295	10
11 12	11-14. Jointly ownedTransfers during decedent's life	8 7	27 18	12 7	18 16	9 17	1		126	5	1:
13 14	Transfers under power of appointment Previously taxed	31	60	173	98	69	5	3	8	(13)	i.
15	Intangible personal property, total	147, 818	197, 284	· 252, 388	276, 521	206, 458	149, 802	93, 433	109, 866	201, 655	1
16 17	Stocks and bonds, total	. 94. 878 26, 809	134, 699 38, 221	182. 812 51. 659	213, 341 65, 827	163, 028 51, 037	125, 934 40, 585	79, 044 25, 285	88, 613 35, 170	178, 635 51, 482	1
18 19 20	Wholly tax-exempt 4	766 9, 135 26	1, 082 11, 378 5	2, 309 14, 406 3	4, 536 15, 547 2	5, 347 6, 757	5, 744 3, 910	4, 265 1, 142	4, 798 3, 983	20, 365 2, 027	1 2
21 22 23 24 25 26	State and municipal bonds All other bonds Capital stock in corporations Mortgages, notes, and eash <sup>5</sup> Taxable insurance (60 less 61) Other intengibles <sup>6</sup>	4, 894 11, 988 68, 070 33, 358 8, 125 11, 457	7.861 17,895 96,477 42,490 8,448 11,647	13, 012 21, 929 131, 153 44, 583 11, 562 13, 431	24, 702 21, 040 147, 514 42, 166 7, 763 13, 251	27, 651 11, 282 111, 991 28, 424 6, 259 8, 747	26, 494 4, 437 85, 349 16, 510 2, 672 4, 687	17, 748 2, 130 53, 760 9, 248 1, 424 3, 717	23, 694 2, 694 53, 443 18, 890 654 1, 709	26, 849 2, 241 127, 153 17, 703 99 5, 218	21 25 26 26 26 26
27	Deductions, total.	80, 200	85, 085	88, 851	83, 541	54, 430	27, 666	32, 310	25, 673	58, 911	2
28 29	Funeral and administrative expenses.  Debts of decedent; mortgages and liens	9, 513 15, 238	11, 560 17, 905	14. 493 20, 501	15, 112 22, <b>33</b> 2	10, 167 16, 245	6. 509 8, 238	4, 712 11, 944	4, 707 10, 569	6, 529 7, 154	22

				•							
30 31 32	Net losses during administration Support of dependents 7 Charitable, public, and similar bequests, total Educational, scientific, or literary institutions:	1. 026 3. 577	52 1. 498 6, 974	1, 503 10, 672	25 1, 247 18, 683	724 17, 335	71 267 7.135	92 12, 751	87 7, 650	44.827	30 31 32
33 34 35 36 37 38	Publicly owned Privately endowed Religious. Charitable and all other gifts. Property previously taxed, net deduction s. Specific exemption (\$40,000).	300	806 1, 245 1, 153 3, 770 5, 416 41, 680	707 1.522 1,209 7 235 9,693 31.960	1, 793 3 805 1, 495 11, 590 7, 222 18, 920	1, 941 3, 649 607 11, 138 3, 239 6, 720	613 2, 030 337 4, 155 2, 806 2, 640	108 2, 573 141 9, 929 1, 732 1, 080	78 548 40 6. 983 2, 020 640	711 5, 069 18 39, 029 (13) 400	33 34 35 36 37 38
39 40 41	Net estate:  Before specific exemption (2 less 27 plus 38).  For basic tax (under 1926 act or Internal Revenue Code, or either as amended).  For additional tax (under 1932 act as amended by 1935 act and subsequent acts, or under the Internal Revenue Code).	153, 537 43, 659 107, 057	195, 740 95, 510 154, 060	237, 148 159, 755 205, 188	251, 716 205, 578 232, 796	181, 504 164, 929 174, 784	132, 113 125, 584 129, 473	71, 338 68, 668 70, 258	90. 463 88, 885 89, 823	146, 516 145, 516 146, 116	39 40 41
42, 43 44 45	Basic tax before tax credits  Tax credit for Federal gift taxes  Tax credit for inheritance, etc., taxes <sup>10</sup> Net basic tax (42 less 43 and 44)	501 2 392 106	1, 592 6 1, 244 342	3, 929 17 3, 094 818	7, 141 20 5, 525 1, 596	8, 424 3 6, 578 1, 843	8, 395 196 6, 496 1, 703	5, 580 2 4, 463 1, 116	9, 681 82 7, 273 2, 326	23, 042 18, 434 4, 608	42 43 44 45
46 47 48	Additional tax before tax credit. Tax credit for Federal gift taxes. Net additional tax (46 less 47).	9. 990 14 9, 976	17, 347 1 17, 346	26. 952 62 26, 890	35, 516 39 35, 477	32, 468 11 32, 457	28, 038 28, 038	17, 198 6 17, 192	27, 521 234 27, 287	59, 160 59, 160	46 47 48
49	Defense tax 11	479	832	1,076	1, 536	875	833	743	1,055	1.398	49
<b>5</b> 0	Total tax liability (45 plus 48 and 49)	10, 562	18, 520	28, 784	38, 610	35, 176	30, 575	19, 051	30, 668	65, 166	50
51	Information items: Intangible personal property, total	147, 818	197, 284	252, 388	276, 521	206, 458	149. 802	93, 433	109.866	201. 655	51
52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59	Intangible personal property not included in items 56-59: Stocks and bonds	84, 380 27, 910 8, 125 10, 263 5, 330 5, 548 294 5, 968	121, 004 36, 854 8, 448 10, 523 5, 900 7, 041 1, 092 6, 422	163. 267 38, 797 11. 562 11. 385 4, 228 10. 794 2, 084 10. 272	193, 861 36, 872 7, 763 10, 935 2, 069 14, 063 2, 340 8, 618	149, 450 26, 467 6, 259 8, 010 1, 437 9, 658 1, 369 3, 808	120. 543 15, 595 2, 672 2. 134 903 2, 452 2, 638 2, 865	70, 568 8, 901 1, 424 3, 308 138 7, 647	82, 843 17, 332 654 1, 671 393 4, 271	167, 658 16, 740 99 5, 001 37 1 682 10, 438	52 53 53 55 56 57 58 59
60 61	Gross insurance Tax-exempt insurance <sup>12</sup>	20. 912 12, 787	20, 782 12. 334	21, 614 10, 052	13, 194 5, 431	8, 622 2, 363	3, 615 943	1,824 400	777 123	150 51	60 61

Table 4.—Nontaxable estate tax returns filed during 1941 for estates of citizens and resident aliens who died on or after August 31, 1935, by gross estate classes: 15 Number of returns, items of gross estate, deductions, and net estate (or no net estate) before specific exemption

[Gross estate classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

	-				Gros	s estate class	es ts				
		Total	40 under 50	50 under 60	60 under 70	70 under 80	80 under 90	90 under 100	100 under 120	120 under 150	
1	Number of returns	2, 614	1, 198	403	243	174	153	107	105	90	1
2	Gross estate, total	196, 614	52, 115	20, 647	13, 871	11, 153	9, 914	8, 191	9, 798	10,810	2
3	Real estate,3 total	67, 027	18, 761	8, 500	6, 263	4, 531	4, 153	3, 245	4, 053	4, 543	3
4 5 6	Real estate not included in items 5–8. Jointly owned	57, 500 6, 942 2, 062	16, 322 1, 434 857	7, 431 758 193	5, 277 684 296	3, 534 763 207	3, 253 733 150	2, 724 473 47	3, 098 808 126	4, 105 216 104	4 5 6
7 8	Transfers under power of appointment	14 509	8 140	118	6	28	17	1	21	118	Ŕ
9	Tangible personal property, total	4, 856	1, 383	716	543	342	373	259	264	226	9
10	Tangible personal property not included in items 11-14.	4, 696	1, 373	661	532	339	335	248	260	226	10
11 12 13	Jointly owned. Transfers during decedent's life. Transfers under power of appointment.	72 75	(13)	4 49	5 6	1 3	36 2	3 8	1 3	· (13)	11 12 13
14	Previously taxed	13	2	1				(13)	(13)	(13)	14
15	Intangible personal property, total	124, 731	31, 972	11, 432	7, 064	6, 279	5, 388	4, 686	5, 482	6, 041	15
16 17	Stocks and bonds, total	75, 241 18, 780	15. 472 4, 498	5, 680 1, 490	3, 575 738	3, 525 538	2, 947 586	2, 289 597	2, 677 699	3, 598 856	16 17
18 19	Wholly tax-exempt 4  Partially tax-exempt 4  Taxable 4	522 6, 740 11			23 274	231	19 181	2 135	4 157	12 322	18 19 20
20 21 22 23 24 25 26	State and municipal bonds  All other bonds.  Capital stock in corporations.  Mortgages, notes, and cash <sup>5</sup> Taxable insurance (49 less 50)  Other intangibles <sup>8</sup>	3, 326 8 181	536 2, 067 10, 974 13, 534 641	132 704 4, 190 3, 568 422	362 2, 837 2, 098	40 265 2, 987 1, 640 361 753	50 337 2, 361 1, 075 795 571	63 398 1, 692 1, 058 634 706	88 450 1, 978 1, 120 1, 121 563	185 337 2, 741 1, 373 435 635	21 22 23 24 25 26
27	Deductions, total		61, 144	29, 798	17, 544	14, 168	12, 475	10, 676	12, 764	14, 444	27
28	Funeral and administrative expenses	11, 184	3, 512	1, 377	832	688	614	451	564	515	28

29 30 31 32	Net losses during administration Support of dependents 7 Charitable, public, and similar bequests, total Educational scientific or literary institutions:	138 1, 190 38, 035	6, 956 19 284 2, 436	9, 956 1 165 2, 168	5, 344 7 154 1, 488	5, 186 (13) 95 1, 213	4, 696 2 112 931	4, 805 1 105 1, 034	6, 312 69 1, 619	7, 490 106 2, 659	29 30 31 32
33 34 35 36 37 38	Publicly owned. Privately endowed. Religious. Charitable and all other gifts. Property previously taxed, net deduction \$. Specific exemption (\$46,000).	3, 489 3, 893 5, 097 25, 555 127	86 221 885 1, 244 17 47, 920	144 318 562 1, 144 12 16, 120	109 176 305 897	85 56 252 820 26 6,960	(13) 51 190 690 6, 120	9 81 319 625 4, 280	183 488 948 4, 200	177 338 541 1,603 73 3,600	35 34 35 36 33 38
39	Net estate or no net estate before specific exemption (2 less (27 less 38)).	46, 556	38, 891	6, 969	6, 047	3, 945	3, 559	1, 794	1, 235	18 34	39
40	Information items: Intangible personal property, total Intangible personal property not included in items	124, 731	31, 972	11, 432	7, 064	6, 279	5, 388	4, 686	5, 482	6, 041	40
41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48	45-48: Stocks and bonds. Mortgages, notes, and cash • Taxable insurance (49 less 50). Other miscellaneous intangibles • Jointly owned. Transfers during decedent's life. Transfers under power of appointment. Previously taxed.	70, 849 27, 576 7, 054 11, 146 2, 777 2, 846 388 2, 096	14, 393 12, 155 641 2, 222 1, 365 798 54 344	5, 349 3, 083 422 1, 679 276 335 102 187	3, 438 1, 813 282 983 330 183 6 30	3, 229 1, 460 361 741 111 57 77 244	2, 835 964 795 571 112 77	2, 186 1, 013 634 680 113 12 44 4	2, 338 1, 028 1, 121 425 136 175 31 228	3, 175 1, 256 435 544 93 231 73 234	41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48
49 50	Gross insurance	21, 942 14, 888	1, 337 697	1, 692 1, 271	2, 119 1, 838	2, 119 1, 758	3, 780 2, 985	2, 548 1, 914	2, 787 1, 665	1, 609 1, 173	49 50

For footnotes, see p. 223.

Table 4.—Nontaxable estate tax returns filed during 1941 for estates of citizens and resident aliens who died on or after August 31, 1935, by gross estate classes: 15 Number of returns, items of gross estate, deductions, and net estate (or no net estate) before specific exemption—Continued

[Gross estate classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

Ī					Gross estat	te classes 18—	Continued			
		150 under 200	200 under 300	300 under 500	500 under 1,000	1,000 under 2,000	2,000 under 3,000	3,000 under 5,000	5,000 under 10,000	10,000 and over
-	Number of returns	48	47	21	18	4	2			1
	Gross estate, total	7, 527	10, 941	7, 840	12, 388	5, 677	5, 152			10, 589
	Real estate, s total	2, 917	4, 070	1, 544	665	75	2, 561			1, 145
	Real estate not included in items 5-8	2, 639	3, 502	1, 246	591 50	71	2, 561			1, 145
	Jointly ownedTransfers during decedent's life	247 31	513	263 36	15		<b></b> -			
	Transfers under power of appointment		55		9	4				
	Tangible personal property, total	114	192	127	178	124	8			8
ĺ	Tangible personal property not included in items	114	189	112	172	1	5			8
	11-14.		3	15						
١	Transfers during decedent's life				(13)					
١	Transfers during decedent's life Transfers under power of appointment Previously taxed				5	2				
ļ	Intangible personal property, total		6, 679	6, 169	11, 545	5, 478	<u>-</u>			
l	Stocks and bonds, total	2, 609 771	4, 210 1, 007	3, 372 1, 060	9, 802 1, 987		1, 359			9, 101 89
l	Bonds, total Federal Government bonds:	1	3	20	22	, , , , , ,	36	1	_	
	Wholly tax-exempt 4	297	332		339					
Ì	Taxable 4State and municipal bonds	.] 50			809 816					
	All other bondsCapital stock in corporations	. 1,838	3, 203	2, 313	7, 815	2, 176	343			9, 019 279
	Mortgages, notes, and cash <sup>6</sup> Taxable insurance (49 less 50)	710 719	544	291	815 663	1 5	79			. 64
	Other intangibles 6	458	608	1, 841	266		=		-	1
,	Deductions, total	9, 476	13, 553	9, 981	23, 147	6, 633	8, 201		_	
3	Funeral and administrative expenses	389	499	489	505	192	184	·		37

29 30	Debts of decedent; mortgages and liens. Net losses during administration.	5, 072	8, 075	6, 479 107	17, 418	2, 343	5, 768			3, 486
31 32	Support of dependents.  Charitable, public, and similar bequests, total  Educational, scientific, or literary institutions:	2, 037	33 3, 066	7 2, 060	2 4, 503	3, 938	2, 170			6, 713
33 34	Publicly owned	329 303	253 149	794 2	1, 503 460	1 1, 420	25			110
35 36	ReligiousCharitable and all other gifts	178 1, 227	858 1, 807	311 954	117 2, 423	2, 517	40 2, 105			52 6, 551
8	Property previously taxed, net deduction <sup>3</sup>	1, 920	1, 880	840	720	160	80			40
39	Net estate or no net estate before specific exemption (2 less (27 less 38)).	16 29	16 732	<sup>16</sup> 1, 301	16 10, 039	16 796	18 2, 969			18
40	Information items: Intangible personal property, total. Intangible personal property not included in	4, 496	6, 679	6, 169	11, 545	5, 478	2, 583			9, 436
11 12 13	items 45-48:  Stocks and bonds  Mortgages, notes, and cash  Taxable insurance (49 less 50)  Other miscellaneous intangibles   **Taxable insurance   10 less 50   10 less 50	2, 393 630 719 441	4, 026 1, 270 544 594	3, 235 647 291 1, 841	9, 235 792 663 266	5, 026 396 5 5	890 798 79 107	-3		9, 101 272 64
5 6 7 8	Transfers during decedent's life.  Transfers under power of appointment	1	205 28	10 145	(13) 521					
g	Previously taxed	1, 370	986	593	68 775		710			104
50	Tax-exempt insurance 12	650	442	302	112	١	40		[	104 40

For footnotes, see p. 223.

Table 5.—Estate tax returns filed during 1941 for estates of citizens 1 and resident aliens, classified by States and Territories: Number of returns by taxable status, selected items for taxable returns, and additional items for returns subject to the basic tax

[Money figures i	n	thousands	of	dollars]
------------------	---	-----------	----	----------

								Faxable re	eturns					
						I	(orollida		Subject to basic tax 18					
States and Territories in which	Total number	Number of non-									Ва	its		
returns were filed	of returns	taxable returns	Number of returns	Gross estate	tional	and addi- tional tax before tax				r Net estate		Cr	Credits	
					tax 17	credits	ing defense tax)		of returns	for basic tax	Basic tax before tax credits		State in- heritance, etc., taxes 10	Net basic tax
Alabama Alaska Arizona Arkansas California Colorado Connecticut Delaware District of Columbia Florida Georgia Hawaii Idaho Illinois Indiana Iowa Kansas Kentucky Louisiana Maine Maryland Massachusetts Michigan Minnesota Missouri Missouri Missouri Missouri Missouri Montana	31 25 1,079 306 359 227 209 164 154 323 406 239 59 59 364	17 18 16 248 21 70 10 36 36 33 3 6 175 52 87 42 53 19 12 41 117 64 28 8 8 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 7 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	96 2 22 1, 264 114 377 399 156 245 1300 28 199 904 254 272 185 156 145 142 282 282 281 342 211 51 302	11, 562 253 2, 849 5, 460 216, 912 30, 575 87, 543 7, 543 7, 543 46, 276 25, 941 5, 192 2, 379 149, 762 38, 123 20, 973 19, 088 22, 594 25, 117 43, 347 46, 66 67, 864 41, 386 6, 625 48, 623 2, 930	6, 195 1, 532 2, 543 133, 071 11, 463 50, 878 4, 569 20, 749 28, 282 16, 154 3, 250 977 21, 405 13, 669 10, 640 15, 633 26, 315 109, 652 44, 466 18, 254 3, 292 26, 533 1, 424	722 13 290 217. 26, 252 1, 907 9, 766 752 3, 830 5, 433 3, 071 455 82 16, 005 3, 188 1, 251 1, 518 1, 251 1, 444 2, 570 3, 805 22, 862 10, 116 2, 474 362 3, 949 138	659 13 245 2099 22, 146 1, 642 8, 3099 654 4, 612 2, 615 414 78 13, 582 2, 804 1, 120 1, 292 2, 233 3, 372 19, 583 8, 426 2, 215 33 33, 463 3,	20 1 13 692 41 385 7 112 203 172 155 3 607 155 50 45 80 80 703 168 168 168 168 168 168 168 168	27 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	3, 086 62 1, 110 791 91, 464 7, 666 37, 288 3, 148 15, 142 20, 282 11, 362 57, 557 13, 645 6, 739 5, 870 5, 236 6, 223 10, 550 16, 260 81, 042 32, 818 11, 095 1, 472 16, 260 566	78 1 1 57 11 1 5,053 324 1,521 1 122 697 1,028 570 213 163 195 421 4,495 2,1115 318 36 6066 11	12 1 5 (13) 2 (13) 5 (13) (13) (13) (13) (13) (13) (13) (13)	63 (13) 46 9 4, 029 259 1, 453 820 456 411 4 2, 096 377 144 170 131 150 337 433 3, 264 1, 90 255 29 484	16 11 11 2 1, 011 65 364 24 166 208 114 17 788 94 37 43 33 43 84 109 1, 225 64 7 7

New Mexico	2 1,987 838 838 51 366 2 4 4 4 3 8 79 20 30 27 26 233 96 558 4,625	14, 504 1, 3; 109 109 70, 222 5, 7-5, 985 11, 5022 18, 7140 3, 6-9, 177 9, 177 9, 178 1, 90 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100	3 9 9 90 20, 6 99 1, 7 1 1 7 1 7 1 7 1 7 1 7 1 7 1 7 1 7	2 1 5, 304 71 268 15 5, 304 71 268 1 1, 149 88 46 833 484 106 107 108 108 109 109 109 109 109 109 109 109 109 109
------------	--	---	--	---

For footnotes, see p. 223

Table 6.—Estate tax returns for estates of citizens and aliens filed September 9, 1916, through December 31, 1941; Number of returns, gross estate, net (taxable) estate, and tax 19

STATISTICS OF INCOME FOR 1940-PART 1

#### [Money figures in thousands of dollars]

	Nu	mber of retu	rns		Gross estate	
Filing period		Estates	s of—		Estate	s of—
Philip ported	Total	Citizens <sup>1</sup> and resi- dent aliens	Nonresi- dent aliens 21	Total	Citizens 1 and resi- dent aliens	Nonresi- dent aliens 21
Sept. 9, 1916-Jan. 15, 1922 Jan. 15-Dec. 31, 1922 Jan. 1-Dec. 31:	45, 126 13, 876	42, 230 12, 563	2, 896 1, 313	8, 893, 239 3, 014, 073	8, 785, 642 2, 955, 959	107, 597 58, 113
1923 1924 1925 1926 1927 1928 1929 1930 1931 1932 1932 1933 1934 1935 1936 1937 1937 1938 1939 1940	15, 119 14, 513 16, 019 14, 567 10, 700 10, 236 10, 343 10, 382 9, 889 10, 275 11, 853 12, 724 13, 321 17, 032 17, 642 16, 876 17, 122	13, 963 13, 011 14, 013 13, 142 9, 353 8, 079 8, 582 8, 798 8, 333 7, 113 8, 727 10, 353 11, 110 11, 605 16, 037 15, 932 15, 436 15, 977	1, 156 1, 502 2, 006 1, 425 1, 347 2, 157 1, 761 1, 584 1, 586 1, 394 1, 548 1, 500 1, 614 1, 716 1, 995 1, 710 1, 705 1, 441 1, 145	2, 804, 327 2, 566, 522 3, 001, 089 3, 407, 923 3, 554, 270 3, 554, 270 4, 165, 623 4, 175, 575 2, 830, 388 2, 060, 956 2, 267, 285 2, 459, 892 2, 312, 279 3, 089, 625 2, 767, 888 2, 648, 199 2, 793, 439	2, 774, 741 2, 540, 922 2, 958, 364 3, 386, 267 3, 146, 290 3, 503, 239 3, 843, 514 4, 108, 517 4, 042, 381 2, 795, 818 2, 026, 931 2, 244, 107 2, 435, 282 2, 296, 257 2, 767, 739 3, 046, 977 2, 774, 143 2, 632, 659 2, 777, 657	29, 597 25, 600 42, 725 21, 656 26, 945 51, 032 49, 732 57, 106 33, 195 34, 570 34, 625 23, 178 24, 609 16, 163 26, 019 22, 648 21, 745 15, 540 15, 783
	Net	(taxable) es	tate 20		Tax 20	
Filing period	Total	Citizens and resi-		Total	Citizens 1 and resi-	Nonresi-
		dent alien			dent aliens	aliens 21
Sept. 9, 1916–Jan. 15, 1922 Jan. 15–Dec. 31, 1922 Jan. 1–Dec. 31:	5, 509, 522 1, 704, 974	5, 407, 67 1, 652, 83	4 101, 849 2 52, 142		351, 138 117, 624	5, 378 2, 938
1923 1924 1925 1926 1927 1928 1929 1930 1931 1932 1933 1934 1935 1936 1936 1937	1, 339, 776 1, 260, 022 1, 646, 613 1, 745, 259 1, 558, 322 1, 493, 184	1, 372, 42 1, 621, 00 1, 951, 96 1, 735, 84 1, 735, 84 1, 735, 84 2, 288, 32 2, 288, 32 2, 288, 32 2, 2376, 97 2, 2, 327, 97 2, 327, 97 1, 316, 88 1, 245, 39 8, 1, 622, 61 8, 1, 537, 97 1, 537, 97 1, 537, 97 1, 479, 26	1 23, 396 8 37, 801 9 20, 567 0 25, 77; 3 45, 655 3 50, 481 9 29, 013 9 31, 868 8 30, 056 8 320, 033 8 22, 888 14, 627 14, 627 14, 627 15, 627 16, 627 17, 627 18, 627 18, 627 19, 627	5 71, 939 87, 322 7 101, 805 7 41, 686 41, 959 8 44, 388 44, 388 45, 200 8 45, 200 8 66, 216 6 61, 415 7 196, 370 7 316, 802 278, 938 6 2278, 938	88, 384 71, 451 86, 223 101, 324 40, 931 40, 561 43, 303 39, 003 44, 540 59, 429 95, 228 153, 763 195, 301 305, 784 314, 620 276, 707 250, 360 201, 758	726 488 1,099 481 755 1,398 1,085 2,614 660 1,310 1,986 2,266 2,182 2,231 1,196 1,196

For footnotes, see p. 223.

#### Footnotes for estate tax tables 1-6, pages 200-222

citizens who died prior to May 11, 1934.

2 Returns filed under the Revenue Act of 1932 or subsequent acts are subject also to applicable provisions of the Revenue Act of 1926 (basic tax).

3 Tabulated amounts represent full value of real estate reported in schedule A. Form 706. Outstanding mortgages and liens thereon are included in "Debts of decedent; mortgages and liens," item 29.

4 Classified on the basis of interest income taxable for Federal income tax and corresponds to the classifeation in other sections of this report. The interest on wholly tax-exempt Federal Government bonds is exempt from both the normal tax and surfax of the Federal income tax; the interest on partially tax-exempt Federal Government bonds is exempt only from the normal tax; the interest on taxable Federal Government bonds is subject to both normal tax and surtax. United States savings bonds and Treasury bonds (on which the interest on a principal amount not in excess of \$5,000 is wholly taxexempt) are classified as partially tax-exempt Federal Government bonds. The entire value of bonds in each category is subject to the estate tax when included in the estate of citizens and resident aliens.

5 Cash of all kinds classified as intangible property.

4 Includes such items as: an interest in partnerships. estates, and trust funds; accounts receivable, claims, judgments, leaseholds, trade-marks, rights, royalties: amounts due from retirement funds, pensions. annuities; and interest, dividends, and rents accrued.

7 Amounts allowed by the law of certain States and actually disbursed for the support of the decedent's dependents, during the settlement of the estate.

<sup>8</sup> The basis for the valuation of property previously taxed is the value as finally determined in the case of the prior estate or donor, or the value included in present gross estate, whichever is lower. Subject to certain conditions and limitations, the net deduction for property previously taxed is such value less a proportionate reduction. This proportionate reduction is the proportion of total deductions, except previously taxed property, which previously taxed property bears to gross estate. The net deduction for property previously taxed tabulated for estates of individuals who died on or after 5 p. m. June 6, 1932, is the net deduction computed for purposes of the additional tax, not the net deduction computed for purposes of the basic tax.

<sup>1</sup> Excludes returns filed for estates of nonresident <sup>9</sup> Specific exemption under additional tax provisions of the Internal Revenue Code and under Revenue Act of 1932 as amended by Revenue Act of 1935 nut Act of 1922 as amended by Revenue Act of 1930 is \$40,000; under Revenue Act of 1932, or that act as amended by Revenue Act of 1934, \$50,000; under basic tax provisions of the Internal Revenue Code and under the Revenue Act of 1926, \$100,000; under Revenue Act of 1924, or prior acts, \$50,000.

> 10 Estate, inheritance, legacy, or succession taxes paid to States, Territories, District of Columbia, or (after June 29, 1939) United States possessions.

> 11 On estates of individuals who died in the period June 26, 1940, through September 20, 1941. The defense tax is 10 percent of the tax (after credits) computed without regard to the defense tax.

12 Amount receivable by beneficiaries other than the estate, not to exceed in aggregate \$40,000 for any one estate.

13 Less than \$500.

14 Based on net estate and specific exemption provided under the Revenue Act of 1932 amended by the Revenue Act of 1935 and subsequent acts, or under the additional tax provisions of the Internal Revenue Code. The specific exemption is \$40,000.

15 Based on total gross estate plus tax-exempt insurance.

16 Negative amount.

17 Includes net estate of \$464,872 reported on 11 returns taxable under the Revenue Acts of 1926, 1924, or prior acts.

18 Taxable under provisions of the Revenue Act of 1926 or that act as amended or under the basic tax provisions of the Internal Revenue Code or the Code as amended.

<sup>19</sup> Changes in the revenue acts affecting the com-parability of statistical data from estate tax returns are summarized on pp. 252-255.

10 Beginning 1933, the net (taxable) estate tabulated for individuals who died after 5 p. m. June 6, 1932, is not estate subject to the additional tax. The tax is the sum of: (1) net basic tax (after credits) under the Revenue Act of 1926 or the Internal Revenue Code, or either as amended, (2) the net additional tax (after credit) under the Revenue Act of 1932 or the Internal Revenue Code, or either as amended, and (3) for 1940 and 1941, defense tax.

21 Includes returns for nonresident citizens who died prior to May 11, 1934.

GIFT TAX RETURNS

## **GIFT TAX RETURNS**

#### SUMMARY DATA

The total number of gift tax returns for 1940 is 15,623, of which 4,930 are taxable and 10,693 nontaxable. The taxable returns show total gifts before exclusions of \$346,679,159, net gifts of \$225,971,772. and tax liability of \$34,445,016. Nontaxable returns show total gifts before exclusions of \$223,363,330, and deductions for (1) exclusions, (2) charitable, public, and similar gifts, and (3) specific exemption equal to the amount of total gifts.

As compared with the previous year, the number of returns increased 3,397, or 27.8 percent; total gifts increased \$198,438,529, or 53.4 percent; net gifts increased \$94,394,923, or 71.7 percent; and tax liability increased \$15,743,839, or 84.2 percent.

### FILING REQUIREMENTS

The gift tax, payable by the donor, is imposed upon the transfer of property by gift and attaches to the total taxable transfers made during a calendar year rather than the separate gifts to each donee. A gift tax return is required of any citizen of the United States or resident alien who during the calendar year 1940 transferred to any one donee total gifts of more than \$4,000 in value, or, regardless of value, made gifts in trust or of a future interest in property. A nonresident alien is similarly required to file a gift tax return if the subject of the gift consists of property situated in the United States. A return is required even though because of authorized deductions a tax may not be due.

The gift tax returns, Form 709, for gifts transferred during 1940 are filed under the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code as amended by the Revenue Act of 1940. The major change affecting gifts made during 1940 is the imposition of a 10 percent defense tax, affecting

only the tax on gifts made after June 25, 1940.

The gift tax rates, exclusions, specific exemptions, and deductions provided by the various revenue acts are summarized on pages 256-257.

#### DATA TABULATED

The data for gift tax returns are tabulated from each return as filed by the taxpayer, prior to any revision that may be made as a result of audit by the Bureau of Internal Revenue. The tax liability tabulated in this report does not agree with gift tax collections during 1941. because payment of the tax may be deferred, or the tax liability may be altered when audited by the Bureau. The tax collections include back taxes, interest, and penalties, none of which are tabulated in this report.

#### DESCRIPTION OF ITEMS

Total gifts or "Total gifts before exclusions" means the entire value of all gifts transferred in trust or of a future interest in property and

229

the entire value of all other gifts to any one donee of a total value of more than \$4,000. (Gifts to any one donee totaling \$4,000 or less, other than those in trust or of a future interest in property, are excluded.)

STATISTICS OF INCOME FOR 1940-PART 1

Exclusion of the first \$4,000 of gifts, other than gifts in trust or of future interests in property, made to any one donee during the calendar year is deductible from total gifts for the purpose of com-

puting net gifts and tax.

Total gifts after exclusions means the amount of total gifts in excess of the exclusions and represents "Total included amount of gifts for

year" on the gift tax return.

Specific exemption of \$40,000 is allowed each citizen and resident alien as a deduction from total gifts. At the option of the taxpayer, the entire exemption may be taken in a single year, or may be spread over a period of years; however, when the aggregate of \$40,000 has been taken no further exemption is allowed. Nonresident aliens are denied the specific exemption. Previous to 1936, the corresponding exemption was \$50,000. In case the taxpayer has taken exemption in excess of \$40,000 during the period 1932-1935, the amount of the excess is added to the net gifts for prior years and used in computing the tax liability for the current year.

Net gifts means the amount of total gifts after exclusions, in excess of the deductions for (1) charitable, public, and similar gifts after exclusions, and, (2) in case of a citizen and resident alien, specific

exemption claimed for the current year.

Gift tax liability is the sum of (1) the excess of a tax computed, at current year rates, on the aggregate net gifts made since June 6, 1932, over a tax computed, at the same rates, on the aggregate net gifts exclusive of the current year net gifts, and (2) the defense tax. The tax so computed results in the current year net gifts being taxed at the same or a higher rate than previously applicable. Owing to the cumulation of net gifts, progression of tax rates, and the variations in exclusions, deductions, and specific exemption, individuals making gifts of equal amounts may have entirely different tax liability.

#### CLASSIFICATION OF RETURNS

Gift tax returns are classified as taxable or nontaxable, and identical donors are distinguished from other donors. Taxable returns show net gifts and are further classified by size of net gift and by size of total gift plus tax. Nontaxable returns show no net gifts and are further classified by size of total gifts. The taxable returns of identical donors which are also taxable for prior years are classified by size of the accumulated net gifts for prior years. Not all tabulated items are available for every classification.

Taxable or nontaxable.—This classification is based on the existence or nonexistence of a gift tax liability. Returns are classified as taxable or nontaxable for prior years as well as for the current year. Taxable returns show net gifts; nontaxable returns show no net gifts.

Net gift classes.—Taxable gift tax returns are segregated into 26 net gift classes (i. e., table 1) based on the amount of net gifts, as previously defined.

Total gift plus tax classes.—Taxable gift tax returns are segregated into 26 total gift plus tax classes (i. e., table 2) based on the sum of the total gifts and the gift tax liability, as previously defined.

Total gift classes.—Nontaxable gift tax returns are segregated into 26 total gift classes (i. e., table 2) according to the amount of total gifts. Identical donors.—Individuals who report on their 1940 gift tax

returns gifts other than charitable, public, and similar gifts for both the current year and a prior year subsequent to June 6, 1932, are considered identical donors. (Individuals reporting only charitable

gifts in the current year or in a prior year are excluded.)

Net gift for prior years classes.—Taxable returns of identical donors who were taxable for prior years are segregated into 26 net gift for prior year classes (i. e., table 5) based on the amount of net gifts for prior years (subsequent to June 6, 1932) as adjusted in schedule C of the current year return to include the amount of specific exemption in excess of \$40,000 taken prior to 1936.

Unlike 1939, the taxable gift tax returns are not classified by total gift classes, therefore, there is no table corresponding to table 2-A.

Statistics of Income for 1939, Part 1.

The principal types of property transferred by gift are real estate, stocks and bonds, cash, and insurance (including premiums paid) As in previous reports, the largest group is that of stocks and bonds. Of the \$570,042,489 total gifts for 1940, stocks and bonds comprise 56.2 percent; cash, 18.2 percent; real estate, 9.6 percent; insurance, 3.9 percent; and miscellaneous, 11.8 percent. The miscellaneous group includes such items as jewelry, objects of art, copyrights, forgiveness of debts, interest in a business, assignment of judgments, etc. In table 1, the five types of property are tabulated by taxable and nontaxable returns and for taxable returns by net gift classes.

Gifts transferred to charitable, public, and similar donees amount to \$80,248,759, or 14.1 percent of the total gifts before exclusions. Such gifts are entirely deductible (if given by a citizen or resident alien) in computing tax, since an exclusion is granted of the first \$4,000 given each donee and the remainder is allowed as a deduction in computing net gifts subject to tax.

Gifts made by transfers in trust amount to \$160,498,560, or 28.2 percent of the total gifts. Stocks and bonds comprise 74.8 percent of the gifts transferred in this manner. Values of the five types of

property transferred in trust are shown in table 3.

#### IDENTICAL DONORS

There are 6,425 identical donors, that is, individuals who made gifts not exclusively for charitable, public, or similar purposes in 1940 and also in prior years. Of these identical donors, 2,693 are nontaxable for 1940, although 50 have previously paid a gift tax; 3,732 are taxable for 1940, of whom 892 are taxable for the first time. The gift tax liability for the 892 identical donors is \$2,482,317, while the tax liability for the 2,840 who have previously paid gift tax is \$27,944,066, or 81:1 percent of the total tax liability on all returns filed for 1940 gifts. The effective tax rate for the 2,840 identical donors who previously paid gift tax is 18.9 percent and indicates the effect of the progressive tax method when compared with the 8.2 percent effective rate for the 892 identical donors not previously taxed. Table 4 presents data regarding these identical donors. In

231

table 5, the number of taxable returns for identical donors who were previously taxed is classified by size of net gift for the current year and by size of net gift for prior years.

STATISTICS OF INCOME FOR 1940-PART 1

Tables 1, 2, and 3 contain data from all gift tax returns filed for gifts made during 1940. Taxable returns and nontaxable returns are presented separately in tables 1 and 2, while in table 3 data are in aggregate. The data for taxable returns are tabulated by net gift classes in table 1 and by total gift plus tax classes in table 2. The data for nontaxable returns are distributed by total gift classes in table 2.

Tables 4 and 5 present data for identical donors' returns. Certain information for these returns is classified by taxable status for the current year and for prior years in table 4. The number of returns taxable both for the current year and for prior years is tabulated by size of net gifts for 1940 and by size of net gifts for prior years, in table 5.

Historical data for 1932 through 1940, for number of returns, total gifts, net gifts, and tax, are given in table 6.

Table 1.—Gift tax returns for 1940, nontaxable in aggregate, and taxable by net gift classes: 1 Number of returns, total gifts by type of property, exclusions, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, net gifts, and tax

[Net gift classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

	,	Total gifts before exclusions, by type of property									
Net gift classes <sup>1</sup>	Number of returns			Cash	Insur- ance	Miscel- laneous					
Nontaxable returns:							-				
No net gifts	10, 693	223, 363	35, 318	109, 664	41, 691	9, 746	26, 945				
Taxable returns:											
Under 5	1, 409	27, 237	2, 568	12.180	6, 530	1.743	4, 217				
5 under 10	755	19, 104	1,865	8, 158	5, 176	1, 396	2, 508				
10 under 20	804	27, 219	3, 054	13, 208	6, 224	1, 277	3, 456				
20 under 30	478	24, 029	1.920	13, 710	4, 971	1,310	2, 119				
30 under 40	309	17, 281	1, 111	9, 250	3, 841	1,065	2, 014				
40 under 50	219	15, 062	1, 405	8. 234	3, 037	7,783	1,603				
50 under 100	484	48, 944	2, 695	31, 380	8.814	1, 789	4, 267				
100 under 200	267	54, 198	1, 481	29, 851	7, 438	2, 510	12, 918				
200 under 400	129	37, 869	1, 168	27, 348	5, 402	142	3,808				
400 under 600	34	17, 757	245	14, 149	1, 507	231	1,626				
600 under 800	15	11, 451		8, 355	2, 616	İ	480				
800 under 1,000	10	9, 710	46	7,715	1,948						
1,000 under 1,500	10	12, 438	1, 183	9, 488	1,509	94	164				
1,500 under 2,000	2	3, 439		3, 229	29		181				
2,000 under 2,500											
2,500 under 3,000	1	2, 576			2, 510	66					
3,000 under 3,500	1	3, 150		2, 425			725				
3,500 under 4,000	1	5, 731	525	4, 536	632	27	10				
4,000 under 4,500	1	4, 248		4, 248							
4,500 under 5,000											
5,000 under 6,000	1	5, 237		5, 086	126		25				
Total	4, 930	346, 679	19, 267	212, 549	62, 311	12, 432	40, 121				
. Grand total	15, 623	570, 042	54, 585	322, 212	104, 002	22, 178	67, 066				

For footnotes, see p. 237.

Table 1.—Gift tax returns for 1940, nontaxable in aggregate, and taxable by net gift classes: 1 Number of returns, total gifts by type of property, exclusions, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, net gifts, and tax-Continued

#### [Net gift classes and money figures in thousands of dollars]

		of the first de to any o			1	Deductions	
Net gift classes <sup>1</sup>	Total	Charita- ble, pub- lic, and similar gifts	Gifts, other than charita- ble	Total gifts after exclu- sions	Total	Charita- ble, pub- lic, and similar gifts after exclu- sions <sup>3</sup>	Specific exemp- tion claimed for 1940 gifts 4
Nontaxable returns: No net gifts	54, 489	4, 044	50, 445	168, 874	168, 874	39, 893	128, 98
Taxable returns:	7 700	716	7.070	10 445	16, 529	5 162	11.9/
Under 5. 5 under 10. 10 under 20. 20 under 30. 30 under 40. 40 under 50. 50 under 100.	7, 792 5, 084 5, 284 3, 688 2, 224 1, 648 3, 744	296 272 216 172 152 376	7, 076 4, 788 5, 012 3, 472 2, 052 1, 496 3, 368	19, 445 14, 020 21, 935 20, 341 15, 057 13, 414 45, 200	8, 566 10, 511 8, 827 4, 394 3, 593 11, 761	5, 163 1, 050 1, 297 2, 882 329 637 4, 608	11, 36 7, 51 9, 21 5, 94 4, 06 2, 98 7, 18
100 under 200 200 under 400 400 under 600 600 under 800 800 under 1.000	2, 664 1, 020 332 232 160	468 160 52 104 88	2, 196 860 280 128 72	51, 534 36, 849 17, 425 11, 219 9, 550	15, 154 2, 189 1, 414 591 514	12, 143 534 1, 081 471 474	3, 01 1, 68 33 15
1,000 under 1,500	132 16	68 12	64 4	9, 550 12, 306 3, 423	588 73	468 73	15
2,500 under 3,000 3,000 under 3,500 3,500 under 4,000 4,000 under 4,500	12 4 136	124	8 4 12	2, 564 3, 146 5, 595 4, 248	1, 676	1,676	
4,500 under 5,000 5,000 under 6,000	32	24	, 8	5, 205	123	123	
Total	34, 204	3,304	30, 900	312, 475	86, 503	33, 008	53, 4
Grand total	88, 693	7,348	81, 345	481, 349	255, 378	72,901	182, 4
			Net gifts			Тах	
Net gift classes		Aggre- gate	Prior years 5	1940	Aggre- gate	Prior years 6	1940 7
Nontaxable returns: No net gifts		8 128, 425	8 128, 425		<sup>8</sup> 27, 654	8 27, 654	
Taxable returns: Under 5 5 under 10		121, 139 60, 457	118, 222 55, 003	2, 917 5, 454	18, 712 8, 628	18, 553 8, 338	18 21
10 under 20	·	57, 540 46, 261 38, 151 32, 200	46, 116 34, 747 27, 489 22, 378	11, 423 11, 514 10, 663 9, 821	6, 080 5, 309 4, 651 4, 418	5, 435 4, 551 3, 824 3, 580	64 72 83 83 3, 21
50 under 100		77, 377 182, 800 68, 214 23, 483 23, 092	43, 938 146, 420 33, 555 7, 473 12, 464	33, 439 36, 380 34, 660 16, 011 10, 627	9, 042 64, 036 12, 915 3, 811 5, 156	5, 824 59, 378 7, 758 1, 099 2, 789	4, 6, 5, 1, 2, 7 2, 7 2, 3
1,000 under 1,500 1,500 under 2,000 2,000 under 2,500		18, 107 4, 847	10, 691 6, 389 1, 497	9, 036 11, 719 3, 350	4, 763 4, 143 1, 180	2, 526 1, 468 286	2, 2 2, 6 8
2,500 under 3,000 3,000 under 3,500 3,500 under 4,000 4,000 under 4,500 4,500 under 5,000		6, 040 3, 300 6, 374 6, 989	3, 477 154 2, 455 2, 741	2, 563 3, 146 3, 919 4, 248	1, 881 813 2, 047 2, 466	872 14 548 635	1.0 7 1,4 1,8
5,000 under 6,000		6, 227	1, 145	5, 082	2,073	202	1,8
Total		802, 324	576, 353	225, 972	162, 124	127, 679	34, 4

For footnotes, see p. 237.

Table 2.—Gift tax returns for 1940; taxable returns by total gift plus tax classes and nontaxable returns by total gift classes: 10 Number of returns, total gifts before exclusions, exclusions, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, net gifts, and tax

[Total gift plus tax classes, total gift classes, and money figures in thousands of dollars]

		Taxable returns										
Total gift plus tax classes 9	Total num-		Total	\$4,00	ion of t 0 of gifts y one dor	Total	Deduc- tions					
	ber of returns	Num- ber of returns	gifts before exclu- sions	Total	Charitable, public, and similar gifts	Gifts other than chari- table	gifts after exclu- sions	Total				
Under 5. 5 under 10. 10 under 20. 20 under 30. 30 under 40. 40 under 50. 50 under 100. 100 under 200. 200 under 400. 400 under 600. 600 under 600. 600 under 1,000. 1,000 under 1,500. 1,500 under 2,000. 2,500 under 2,000. 2,500 under 3,500. 3,500 under 3,000. 3,500 under 4,000. 4,500 under 4,000. 4,000 under 4,000. 4,000 under 5,000. 5,000 under 7,000. 7,000 under 7,000.	1, 455 3, 292 3, 802 2, 107 1, 550 1, 239 1, 356 491 200 9 3 1 3 3 1 1 3	328 549 807 512 354 461 1, 152 462 196 19 3 1 1 2 1 2	1, 033 3, 821 11, 311 12, 123 11, 711 20, 154 75, 527 57, 609 48, 402 18, 173 10, 050 9, 342 18, 173 10, 524 5, 714 2, 483 5, 726	516 2, 048 4, 600 3, 796 2, 804 3, 064 9, 012 4, 476 2, 008 288 204 256 164 56 20	32 180 184 200 144 624 532 496 160 104 96 144 104 48 86 16	516 2, 016 4, 420 3, 612 2, 604 2, 920 8, 388 3, 944 1, 512 448 108 112 60 8 8 4	517 1, 773 6, 711 8, 327 8, 907 17, 090 66, 515 53, 133 46, 394 17, 562 9, 762 9, 138 18, 688 9, 360 5, 658 5, 463 5, 710	155 1255 1252 1, 641 2, 268 9, 574 29, 708 10, 768 6, 414 2, 037 7555 1, 762 2, 773 1, 757 2, 279 2, 367				
9,000 under 10,000	1 15, 623	4, 930	9, 819 346, 679	34, 204	3, 304	30, 900	9, 719	9, 577 86, 503				

For footnotes, see p. 237.

Table 2.—Gift tax returns for 1940; taxable returns by total gift plus tax classes and nontaxable returns by total gift classes: 10 Number of returns, total gifts before exclusions, exclusions, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, net gifts, and tax—Continued

[Total gift plus tax classes, total gift classes, and money figures in thousands of dollars]

			Taxal	ole returns	-Contin	ned		
	Deduction	ns—Con.		Net gifts			Tax	
Total gift plus tax classes <sup>5</sup>	Charitable, public, and similar gifts after exclusions 3	Specific exemp- tion claimed for 1940 gifts	Aggre- gate	Prior years <sup>6</sup>	1940	Aggregate	Prior years 6	1940 7
Under 5. 5 under 10. 10 under 20. 20 under 30. 30 under 40. 40 under 50. 50 under 100. 100 under 200. 200 under 400. 400 under 200. 200 under 400. 400 under 800. 800 under 1,000. 1,000 under 1,500. 1,500 under 2,000. 2,500 under 2,500. 2,500 under 3,500. 3,500 under 3,500. 3,500 under 4,500. 4,000 under 4,500. 5,000 under 6,000. 5,000 under 6,000. 5,000 under 6,000. 5,000 under 6,000. 5,000 under 7,000. 7,000 under 8,000. 8,000 under 9,000.	2, 279 2, 367 1	14 115 733 1, 425 1, 958 9, 370 28, 088 8, 183 2, 733 365 200 120 73	20, 460 37, 815 83, 496 49, 229 34, 140 38, 799 90, 128 21, 573 10, 960 14, 480 27, 966 18, 513 4, 882 769 9, 339 12, 601	10, 958 36, 168 77, 667 42, 543 27, 502 31, 246 52, 664 50, 148 50, 148 50, 148 50, 190 12, 052 10, 910 673 3, 630 2, 741 3, 600	502 1. 647 5, 829 6, 686 6, 639 7, 515 36, 807 42, 364 39, 980 15, 528 9, 007 7, 375 15, 915 7, 603 3, 379 96 5, 709	2, 159 4, 350 12, 890 6, 126 3, 820 5, 121 14, 251 12, 295 16, 790 3, 145 4, 023 3, 030 5, 910 5, 064 1, 181 119 2, 694 4, 120 52, 568	2, 131 4, 251 12, 528 5, 664 3, 314 4, 524 11, 396 11, 140 0, 478 2, 310 3, 054 286 09 886 635 750	28 99 361 4622 506 597 2, 856 4, 608 5, 651 2, 397 1, 713 1, 552 3, 599 2, 010 895 21 1, 808
Total	33, 008	53, 495	802, 324	576, 353	225, 972	162, 124	127, 679	34, 445

For footnotes, see p. 237.

Table 2.—Gift tax returns for 1940; taxable returns by total gift plus tax classes and nontaxable returns by total gift classes: 10 Number of returns, total gifts before exclusions, exclusions, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, net gifts, and tax—

[Total gift plus tax classes, total	gift classes	, and mone	ey figures	in thousan	ds of dolla	rs]
			Nontaxal	ole returns		
Total gift classes <sup>10</sup>		Total		n of the fire	st \$4,000 of one donce	
Total gill (lasses 1	Number of returns	gifts be- fore exclu- sions	Total	Chari- table, public, and simi- lar gifts	Gifts other than char- itable	Total gifts after exclusions
Under 5. 5 under 10. 5 under 20. 20 under 30. 30 under 40. 40 under 55. 50 under 100. 100 under 200. 200 under 200. 200 under 400. 400 under 600. 500 under 600. 500 under 800. 500 under 800. 500 under 900. 1,600 under 1,600. 1,600 under 2,600. 2,500 under 2,600. 2,500 under 3,000. 3,500 under 3,000. 3,500 under 3,000. 3,500 under 4,000. 4,000 under 4,000.	2, 996 1, 595 1, 196 778 204 29 13 4 1 2 1 2	3, 684 19, 331 42, 012 38, 354 41, 682 33, 552 11, 963 3, 627 1, 769 700 1, 858 1, 089 3, 740 3, 701	2, 068 10, 505 15, 492 9, 524 7, 264 5, 736 3, 244 264 156 48 4 128 20 8	96 596 932 540 360 296 612 232 156 36 4 128 20 8	1, 972 9, 909 14, 560 8, 984 6, 904 2, 632 32	1, 616 8, 826 26, 526 28, 833 34, 418 27, 796 8, 719 3, 586 3, 471 1, 721 696 1, 733 1, 069 3, 732
5,000 under 6,000 6,000 under 7,000 7,000 under 8,000		7,822	20	20		7, 80
Total	10, 693	223, 363	54, 489	4, 044	50, 445	168, 874
		]	Nontaxabl	e returns—	Continued	
•		1	Deductions		-	
Total gift classes 10			Chari- table.	Specific	Net gifts	Tax for

		Nontaxab	e returns-	-Continued	l .
		Deduction	s	-	
Total gift classes 10	Total	Charitable, public, and similar gifts after exclusions 3	Specific exemp- tion claimed for 1940 gifts 4	Net gifts for prior years * 8	Tax for prior years 6 8
Under 5 5 under 10 10 under 20 20 under 30 30 under 40 40 under 50 50 under 100 100 under 200 200 under 400 400 under 600 600 under 600 600 under 800 800 under 1,000 1,000 under 1,000 1,000 under 2,000 2,000 under 2,000	1,721 696 1,730 1,069 3,732	16 380 1, 093 1, 216 970 813 3, 356 3, 499 3, 471 1, 710 696 1, 730 1, 069 3, 732	1, 600 8, 446 25, 427 27, 614 33, 447 26, 984 5, 363 89	2, 079 18, 771 26, 560 24, 726 8, 101 5, 423 27, 989 11, 825 2, 482	223 3, 298 4, 506 6, 921 1, 407 952 7, 015 2, 771 510
2.500 under 3,000. 3,000 under 3,500. 3,500 under 4,000. 4,000 under 4,600. 4,500 under 5,000.	3, 697 4, 643	3, 697 4, 643		256	28
6,000 under 7,000	7, 802	7, 802 39, 893	128, 982	128, 425	

For footnotes, see p. 237.

Table 3.—Gift tax returns for 1940; gifts by type of property transferred: Total value, value of gifts transferred in trust, and value of gifts otherwise transferred

		Value of	property tra	insferred
F	Property transferred	Total	ln trust	Other than in trust
Stocks and bonds Cash		54, 585 322, 212 104, 002 22, 178 67, 066	5, 810 120, 031 18, 452 5, 218 10, 988	48, 775 202, 181 85, 550 16, 960 56, 078
		570, 042	160, 499	409, 544

Table 4.—Gift tax returns for 1940, of identical donors, by taxable status for current year and for prior years: Number of returns, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, net gifts and tax [Money figures in thousands of dollars]

			Dedu	ctions	Net gifts
Taxable status	Number of returns for 1940	Total gifts after exclu- sions, 1940	Charitable, public, and similar gifts after exclusions	Specific exemption claimed for 1940 gifts 4	Aggregate
Taxable for both 1940 and prior years	2, 840	180, 454	30, 956	1,329	724, 509
Taxable for 1940 and nontaxable for prior	892	43, 958	1,773	11,917	30, 267
Nontaxable for 1940 and taxable for prior years	50 2, 643	686 20, 449	130. 1,018	556 19, 431	2, 391
Total	6, 425	245, 547	33, 877	33, 234	757, 167
	Net gifts-	-Continued			
Taxable status	Prior years	1940	Aggregate	Prior years 6	1940 7
Taxable for both 1940 and prior years Taxable for 1940 and nontaxable for prior	576, 339	148, 169	155, 623	127, 679	27, 944
WOORS		30, 267	2,482		2, 482
Nontaxable for 1940 and taxable for prior years	2, 391		253	253	
Total	578, 730	178, 437	158, 358	127, 931	30, 426

For footnotes, see p. 237.

Table 5.— Taxable gift tax returns for 1940, of identical donors " who filed taxable returns for prior years, by net gift classes and by net gift for prior years classes: Number of returns

[Net gift classes and net gifts for prior years classes in thousands of dollars]

	Net gift for prior years classes 12									
Net gift classes <sup>1</sup>	Total	Under 5	5 under 10	10 under 20	20 under 30	30 under 40	40 under 50	50 under 100		
Under 5. 5 under 10. 10 under 20. 20 under 30. 30 under 40. 40 under 50. 50 under 100. 100 under 200. 200 under 400. 400 under 200. 200 under 600. 800 under 1,000. 1,000 under 2,000. 2,500 under 2,000. 2,500 under 2,000. 3,500 under 3,000. 3,500 under 3,000. 3,500 under 4,000. 4,000 under 4,000. 4,000 under 6,000. 5,000 under 6,000.	433 444 253 164 127 254 164 78 24 12 9 8 1					46 38 38 18 10 6 14 13 2 1 2				
Total	2, 840	287	253	378	221	188	152	483		

•			Net gift	for prior	years cla	sses 12—C	ontinue	1	
Net gift classes 1	100 under 200	200 under 400	400 under 600	600 under 800	800 under 1,000	1,000 under 1,500	1,500 under 2,000	2,000 under 2,500	2,500 and over
Under 5	46 54 32 33 14 54 34 14 2	50 20 26 23 22 17 33 9 14 7	27 11 14 9 6 9 7 14 4 2	11 4 3 3 3 1 8 9 5	2 4 2 2 1 1 4 4 1	13 5 5 2 1 1 4 1 1	2 1 1 1	1 1 2 2 2 1 1 1	1 1 1 3 2
1,000 under 1,500 1,500 under 2,000 2,000 under 2,500	2	1!	1			1	1		i
2,500 under 3,000 3,000 under 3,500 3,500 under 4,000	1							1	1
4,000 under 4,500 4,500 under 5,000 5,000 under 6,000						1			1
Total	388	229	106	50	22	36	15	11	21

For footnotes, see p. 237.

Table 6.—Gift tax returns, 1932-1940: Number of returns by taxable status, total gifts before exclusions, net gifts, and tax

#### [Money figures in thousands of dollars]

	Nu	nber of ret	urns	Total gifts		Tax	
Calendar year in which gifts were made	Total	Taxable	Nontax- able	before ex- clusions	Net gifts		
1932 (June 7-December 31)	1, 747 3, 683 9, 270 22, 563 13, 420 13, 695 11, 042 12, 226 15, 623	245 878 2, 528 8, 718 3, 770 4, 128 3, 515 3, 929 4, 930	1, 502 2, 805 6, 742 13, 845 9, 650 9, 567 7, 527 8, 297 10, 693	81, 389 241, 008 888, 753 2, 130, 514 482, 783 568, 109 399, 773 371, 604 570, 042	17, 879 101, 793 537, 083 1, 196, 001 134, 979 180, 939 138, 801 131, 577 225, 972	1, 111 8, 943 68, 383 162, 798 15, 664 22, 758 17, 839 18, 701 34, 445	

## Footnotes for gift tax tables 1-5, pages 230-236

- 1 Based on the current year net gifts.
- <sup>2</sup> Except gifts in trust or of future interest in property.
- <sup>3</sup> The exclusions for charitable, public, and similar gifts are tabulated under "Exclusion of the first \$4,000 of gifts made to any one donce."
- 4 Specific exemption of \$40,000 is allowed each resident or citizen donor (section 1004(a)(1), Internal Revenue Code). At the option of the donor, this amount may be taken in one year or spread over a period of years.
- period of years.

  § Tabulated from schedule C, 1940 return, Form 709. Net gitts for prior years (subsequent to June 6, 1932) reported in schedule C may exceed net gitts actually reported in prior years, for the reason that when a specific exemption of over \$40,000 has been taken for years prior to 1936 (when \$50,000 exemption was allowed), the net gifts for prior years reported in this schedule are increased by the amount taken in excess of \$40,000 (section 1004(a)(1), Internal Revenue Code).
- 6 Tabulated from item 5, schedule for computation of tax; page 1, 1940 return, Form 709. The tax on net gifts for prior years (subsequent to June 6, 1932) may

not be the actual tax liability reported in those years because it is a tax computed at current rates, on the total not gifts for prior years to which has been added any exemption in excess of \$40,000 taken prior to 1936 (section 1004(a)(1), Internal Revenue Code).

- 7 Includes defense tax.
- <sup>8</sup> These amounts, computed as indicated in notes 5 and 6, are probably understated, since sufficient information for their computation is not always shown on the current year return.
- Based on current year total gifts before exclusions plus the current year tax.
- 10 Based on current year total gifts before exclusions.
- <sup>11</sup> Identical donors are individuals who reported for both 1940 and prior years (subsequent to June 6, 1932) gifts other than charitable, public, and similar gifts.
- <sup>13</sup> Based on amount of net gifts for prior years (subsequent to June 6, 1932) as adjusted in schedule C, 1940 return, Form 709, to include the amount in excess of \$40,000 specific exemption taken prior to 1936 (see note 5).

## SYNOPSIS OF

# FEDERAL TAX LAWS

AFFECTING THE COMPARABILITY OF HISTORICAL DATA IN STATISTICS OF INCOME

INDIVIDUAL INCOME AND PROFITS TAXES
FIDUCIARY INCOME TAX
ESTATE TAX, AND
GIFT TAX
RATES, CREDITS, EXEMPTIONS
AND OTHER PROVISIONS

# SYNOPSIS OF FEDERAL TAX LAWS AFFECTING THE COMPARABILITY OF HISTORICAL DATA IN STATISTICS OF INCOME

### INDIVIDUALS AND FIDUCIARIES

A. Requirements for filing income tax returns, personal exemption, credit for dependents, and normal tax rates, under the Federal tax laws for the income years 1913 through 1940.

B. Surtax rates and total surtax, under the Federal tax laws for

the income years 1913 through 1940.

C. Supplemental income and profits tax rates and credits, under the Federal tax laws for the income years 1917 through 1940.

#### **ESTATES**

D. Tax rates, total estate tax, specific exemption, and credits against estate tax, under the Federal tax laws applicable to estates of citizens and aliens who died in the period September 9, 1916, through December 31, 1941.

## **GIFTS**

E. Tax rates, total gift tax, specific exemption, exclusions, and deductions, under the Federal tax laws affecting gifts made during the calendar years 1924 through 1940.

A.—Individuals and fiduciaries, requirements for filing income tax returns, personal for the income years

		1							
			Ci	tizens and re United		the			
			Requirements for filing returns 2						
	Federal tax law (Date of enactment)	Income year		and living nusband or	Single; married and not living with husband or wife; fiduciaries <sup>2</sup> (e)				
			Net income 5	Gross income regardless of amount of net income	Not in- come 5	Gross income regardless of amount of net income			
1	Act of: Oct. 3, 1913 (Income tax)	Mar. 1, 1913 through Dec. 31, 1915.	\$3,000		\$3,000				
2	Revenue Act of: 1916 (Sept. 8, 1916)	1916	3, 000		3, 000				
3	1917 (Oct. 3, 1917)	}1917	2, 000		1,000				
4	1918 (Feb. 24, 1919)	[1918	2,000		1,000				
		[1919, 1920	2,000		1,000				
5	1921 (Nov. 23, 1921)	1921, 1922, 1923	2, 000	\$5,000	1,000	\$5,000			
6	1924 (June 2, 1924)	1924	2, 500	5,000	1,000	5, 000			
7	1926 (Feb. 26, 1926)	1925, 1926, 1927	3, 500	5, 000	1,500	5, 000			
		1928	)						
8	1928 (May 29, 1928)	(1929	3, 500	5, 000	1, 500	5, 000			
		1930, 1931							
9	1932 (June 6, 1932)	1932, 1933	2, 500	5, 000	1,000	5, 000			
10	National Industrial Recovery Act (June 16, 1933).16	1933							
11	Revenue Act of: {	1934, 1935 1936, 1937	} 2, 500	5, 000	1,000	5, 000			
12	1937 (Aug. 26, 1937) 18 1938 (May 28, 1938)	1937 {1938 1939	2, 500	5, 000	1,000	5, 000			
13	(Feb. 10, 1939). 19 Internal Revenue Code as	11939	f 2,000	5, 000	1,000	3, WAU			
14	amended by: Public Salary Tax Act (Apr. 12, 1939). <sup>20</sup>								
15 16	Revenue Act of: 1939 (June 29, 1939) 1940 (June 25, 1940) <sup>22</sup>	(21) 1940	2, 000	2, 000	800	800			

Footnotes

[References to notes mean

exemption, credit for dependents, and normal tax rates, under the Federal tax laws 1913 through 1940

Citize	ns and resid	lents of	the United States—Contin	ued	1	Vonresiden	t aliens 1	
Personal e	xemption 3				Personal	exemption		
Married and living with husband or wife; head of family	Single; married and not living with husband or wife; not head of family; fiduci- aries o	Credit for each de- pend- ent 7	Net income subject to normal tax <sup>8</sup>	Nor- mal tax rate (per- cent)	Married and living with husband or wife; head of family	Single; married and not living with husband or wife; not head of family	Credit for each de- pend- ent	Nor- mal tax rate <sup>6</sup> (per- cent)
° \$4, 000	<b>9</b> \$3, 000		All	1				1
4, 000	3, 000		All	2	\$4,000	\$3,000		. 2
2,000	1, 000	\$200	First \$2,000 Balance over \$2,000	2	}			2
2, 000	1,000	200	First \$4,000 Balance over \$4,000	6 12	} (10)	(10)	(10)	12
2,000	1,000	200	First \$4,000 Balance over \$4,000	4 8	(10)	(10)	(10)	8
11 2, 500	1,000	400	Balance over \$4,000	12 4 12 8	1,000	1,000	(13)	14 12 8
2, 500	1,000	400	First \$4,000 Second \$4,000 Balance over \$8,000	2 4 6	1,000	1,000	(13)	14 6
3, 500	1, 500	400	First \$4,000 Second \$4,000 Balance over \$8,000	1½ 3 5	} 1,500	1, 500	(13)	14 5
3, 500	1, 500	400	First \$4,000 Second \$4,000 Balance over \$8,000	1½ 3 5 18½ 18 2 18 4 1½	1, 500	1, 500 1, 500	(13)	14 5 14 15 <u>4</u>
			Second \$4,000	3 5	1, 500	1, 500	(13)	14 5
2, 500	1, 000	400	{First \$4,000 Balance over \$4,000	4 8	) 1,000	1, 000	(13)	14 8
2, 500	1,000	400	All	4	1,000 17 1,000 17 1,000	1, 000 17 1, 000 17 1, 000	(13) (13 17) (17)	14 4 17 10 17 10
2, 500	6 1, 000	400	All	4	17 1, 000	17 1, 000	(17)	17 10
2,000	800	400	Ali	23 4	800	800	(24)	24 15

for table A

the footnotes of this table]

(d) For 1925 and subsequent years, American citizens who are nonresidents of the United States for more than six months of the year are not required to report earned income from sources without the United States, and are not required to file returns unless their gross income, exclusive of earned income, from sources without the United States, and are not required to file returns unless their gross income, exclusive of earned income, from sources without the United States equals or exceeds \$5,000; or unless their net income, exclusive of earned income, from sources without the United States equals or exceeds the amount indicated in this table under "Requirements for filing returns."

For 1932 and subsequent years, the exclusion from gross income of earned income from sources without the United States or any agency thereof. The compensation of resident alien employees of foreign governments is excluded from gross income under certain conditions. See sec. 116(h), Revenue Act of 1934, by Public, No. 374, Seventy-fourth Congress, and which is retroactive, subject to the statutory period of limitation.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> In general, nonresident aliens are required to file ! income tax returns for all taxable income from sources within the United States regardless of amount, unless total tax has been paid at source. For exceptions, see Treasury Decision 4791—Regulations 94, amended to accord with the Revenue Act of 1937. (See note 17.)

<sup>\*\*(</sup>a) For 1913 through 1917, individuals were required to file returns on a calendar year basis, while for 1918 and subsequent years returns are permitted for a fiscal year other than that ending December 31.

<sup>(</sup>b) For 1913 through 1915, a citizen or resident of the United States whose net income was less than \$20,000 and for whom a full return was made by withholding agent was not required to file a return.

<sup>(</sup>c) For 1921 and subsequent years, citizens deriving a large portion of their gross income from sources within a possession of the United States are required

## STATISTICS OF INCOME FOR 1940-PART 1 Footnotes for table A-Continued

[References to notes mean the footnotes of this table]

- (c) For 1936 and prior years, income from an estate | incurred by the partnership through sales or exor trust taxable to the fiduciary is required to be changes of stocks or bonds other than capital assets. reported on the individual income tax return, Form 1040, while income from an estate or trust not taxable to the fiduciary is required to be reported on the fiduciary return of income, Form 1041, the requirements for filing being the same as for a single person, except that a return is required for every estate or trust of which any beneficiary is a nonresident alien. Beginning with 1937, all income from an estate or trust is required to be reported on the fiduciary income tax return, Form 1041, the requirements for filing being the same as in prior years except that for 1938 and subsequent years returns are required for every trust having a net income of \$100 or more.
- For 1921 and subsequent years, citizens deriving a large portion of their gross income from sources within a possession of the United States are allowed the same exemption as nonresident aliens.
- · Husband and wife each to file a return unless combined income is included in joint return.
- 4 Net income means the excess of gross income over deductions as defined in the various revenue acts. Net income of fiduciary income tax returns, 1937 and subsequent years, means net income taxable to the fiduciary. Certain variations in the deductions allowed follow:
- (a) Amortization of buildings, machinery, equipment, or other facilities constructed or acquired on or after Apr. 6, 1917, for the production of articles contributing to the prosecution of the war is included to a reasonable amount in business deductions. 1918 through 1921.
- (b) Contributions or gifts actually made by individuals within the year to corporations, associations or societies, organized and operated exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific, or educational purposes, to an amount not in excess of 15 percent of the taxable net income before deducting the contributions, are, in general, deductible for 1917 and sub-sequent years. For 1938 and thereafter (1) such contributions are deductible only if paid during the taxable year, and (2) contributions of a partnership are deductible by the partners in their individual returns, not by the partnership. The deduction for the combined amount of the pro rata share of the partnership contributions plus contributions made by the individual cannot exceed 15 percent of the net income reported on the individual return before deducting the contributions. For 1938 and 1939, such contributions are deductible only if paid to cr for the use of domestic organizations, and for 1940, only if paid to or for the use of organizations created in the United States or in any possession thereof For unlimited deduction of contributions, see the Revenue Act of 1924 and subsequent acts.
- (c) Losses sustained during a taxable year, incurred in trade or business, or arising from fire, storm, shipwreck, etc., and not compensated for by insurance or otherwise, are entirely deductible, with the following exceptions:

For 1916 and 1917, losses sustained during the year in transactions entered into for profit but not connected with business or trade are allowable only to the extent of the gains from such transactions; for 1918 through 1931, such losses are entirely deduct-

For 1921 and subsequent years, losses resulting from the sale of securities after November 23, 1921 are not deductible when substantially identical securities are acquired or reacquired within 30 days before or after such transaction.

For 1932 and 1933, losses from sales or exchanges of stocks or bonds other than capital assets held more than two years and other than honds issued by a government or political subdivision thereof are allowed only to the extent of the gain from such sales or exchanges. (The Revenue Act of 1932 allowed the excess of such losses to be carried forward and applied against such gains of the next succeeding year, but this carry-over was nullified by sec. 318 (b), National Industrial Recovery Act.)

For 1933, individual members of a partnership

For 1934 and subsequent years: Losses from wagering transactions are allowed, but only to the extent of the gains from such transactions; losses are not deductible when resulting from sales or exchanges of property, directly or indirectly, between members of a family (except in case of distributions in liquidation) and between an individual and a corporation in which such individual owns, directly or indirectly, more than 50 percent in value of the outstanding stock of the corporation.

For 1937 and subsequent years, losses are not deductible when resulting from sales or exchanges of property between (1) a grantor and a fiduciary of any trust, (2) a fiduciary of a trust and a fiduciary of another trust, if the same person is a grantor with respect to each trust, and (3) a fiduciary of a trust and a beneficiary of such trust.

(d) Net loss for prior year (excess of deductions over gross income) resulting from the operation of any trade or business regularly carried on by the

A net loss for any taxable year beginning after Oct. 31, 1918, and ending prior to Jan. 1, 1920, may be deducted from the net income of the preceding year. a redetermination of taxes for the preceding year being made. When the net loss exceeds the net income for the preceding year, the amount of such excess is to be deducted from the net income of the succeeding taxable year.

There was no "net loss" relief provision for 1920. For 1921 through 1929, a net loss for any year beginning after Dec. 31, 1920, may be deducted from the net income of the succeeding taxable year, and if such loss exceeds the net income of the first succeeding year, the amount of such excess is to be allowed in the second succeeding year.

A net loss for 1930 may be carried forward and deducted from the net income of the first succeeding year only. There is no provision for deduction of a prior year net loss in the period 1931 through 1938.
The Revenue Act of 1932 provides for a net loss carry-over to the first succeeding year only, but this carry-over is nullified by sec. 218(a), National Industrial Recovery Act.

The Internal Revenue Code, as amended by the Revenue Act of 1939, provides that individuals engaged in trade or business, incurring a net operating loss in any taxable year beginning on or after Jan. 1, 1939, may carry such loss forward and apply it with certain adjustments and limitations, as a deduction against the net income of the first succeeding year. The excess loss, if any, that is not absorbed by the net income of the first succeeding year, may be carried forward and deducted from the net income of the second succeeding year. (See sec. 211, Revenue Act of 1939.)

- (e) For provisions concerning capital gains and losses, including the net short-term capital loss carry-over provided by the Revenue Act of 1938, see table C, pp. 248-249.
- <sup>6</sup> For 1937, certain trusts which permitted accumulation of income were not allowed the exemption and for 1938 and subsequent years, a credit of \$100 against the net income of a trust was substituted for the exemption.
- 7 Credit allowed individuals for each dependent under 18 years of age or incapable of self-support because mentally or physically defective. This credit is not applicable to citizens deriving a large portion of their gross income from sources within a possession of the United States, 1921 and subsequent
- 6 Net income subject to normal tax is all net income after deducting the sum of:
- (a) Personal exemption.
- (b) Credit allowed individuals for dependents. 1917 and subsequent years.
- (c) Dividends on stock of domestic corporations. 1913 through 1935 (other than (1) corporations dewere not permitted to reduce their individual net income by their proportionate share of a net loss sources within a possession of the United States,

Footnotes for table A-Continued [References to notes mean the footnotes of this table]

stock of foreign corporations receiving a certain amount of income from sources within the United States, 1913 through 1933. For 1936 and subsequent years, no dividends are deductible.

- (d) Income upon which the tax has been paid or withheld for payment at the source, 1913 through
- (e) Interest on United States obligations issued after September 1, 1917, which is required to be included in gross income; and for 1934 and subsequent years, interest on obligations of instrumentalities of the United States, which under sec. 25 (a) (3) Revenue Act of 1934, is exempt from normal tax.
- (f) Credit allowed individuals of 10 percent of the amount of the carned net income, or 10 percent of the entire net income, whichever amount is smaller, 1934 and subsequent years. The earned net income recognized cannot exceed \$14,000. (For 1924 through 1931, the earned income credit was a tax credit. See table C, p. 250.)
- 9 No provision for head of family in Revenue Act of 1913. Exemption prorated for period Mar. through Dec. 31, 1913
- 10 For 1918 through 1920, nonresident aliens are allowed the personal exemption (\$1,000 if single; \$2,000 if married) and the credit for each dependent (\$200), only when the country of which the nonresident alien is a citizen either imposes no income tax or allows similar credit to citizens of the United States not residing within such foreign country. (See notes 13, 14, and 17.)
- 11 For net incomes in excess of \$5,000, personal exemption is \$2,000.
- 12 Tax for 1923, computed at these rates, was reduced 25 percent by credit or refund under sec. 1200 (a), Revenue Act of 1924.
- 13 For 1921 through 1935, if nonresident alien is resident of Canada or Mexico, \$400 credit is allowed for each dependent. For limitation applicable to 1936 and subsequent years, see note 17.
- 14 For 1922 through 1933, alien residents of Canada or Mexico, on net income attributable to compensation for labor or personal services actually performed in the United States, receive benefit of normal tax rate provided for United States citizens. For 1934 and 1935, the rate of normal tax is the same for all individuals, both resident and nonresident. (See note 17.)
- <sup>18</sup> These reduced rates for 1929 are provided by Joint Resolution of Congress, No. 133, approved by the President December 16, 1929.
- 16 The National Industrial Recovery Act is not a complete taxing statute in itself, but consists of amendments to certain provisions of the Revenue Act of 1932. (See note 5 (c), par. 4, and 5 (d), par. 5.)
- 17 (a) For 1936 through 1939, nonresident alien individuals who at any time within the taxable year are engaged in trade or business within the United States or have an office or place of business therein, are allowed the deductions and credits and are subject to the same tax rates upon their net income from all sources within the United States as are provided for citizens of the United States.
- (b) For 1936 through 1939, nonresident alien individuals not engaged in trade or business within the United States and not having an office or place of business therein at any time within the taxable year are not allowed any deductions or credits but are taxed upon the gross amount of fixed or determinable annual or periodical income from sources within the United States at the rate of 10 percent, except (1) that this rate shall be reduced, in the case of a resident Form 1040NB, are not included in this report. See of Canada or Mexico, to such rate (not less than 5 percent) as may be provided by treaty with such | tions, p. 43.

1921 through 1935, and (2) China Trade Act corporations, 1922 through 1935, and (3) corporations extract was reduced to 5 percent, retroactive to Jan. 1, empt from tax, 1932 through 1935), and dividends on 1936); and (2) for 1937 through 1939, such nonresident aliens other than those affected by treaty, if they report gross income of more than \$21,600, are liable to the same tax rates as those imposed upon citizens of the United States; after allowance of deductions and credits allocable to income from sources within the United States; but the total tax so computed shall not be less than 10 percent of the gross income. (For 1940, see note 24.)

- 16 The Revenue Act of 1937 is not a complete taxing statute in itself, but consists of amendments and additions to certain provisions of the Revenue Act of 1936. (See notes 1; 5 (c), par. 7; and 17 (b).)
- 19 The Internal Revenue Code, approved Feb. 10, 1939, which was enacted as law, codified certain general laws of the United States and parts of such aws relating exclusively to internal revenue, in force on Jan. 2, 1939, and repealed all such laws and parts of laws codified therein to the extent that they related exclusively to internal revenue, as of the effective dates of the respective corresponding provisions of the Code.
- 20 By the Public Salary Tax Act of 1939, the Federal income tax is applicable to compensation for personal service, received after December 31, 1938 as (1) an officer or employee of a State, or any political subdivision thereof, or any agency or instrumentality of any one or more of the foregoing, and (2) a judge of a United States court who took office on or before June 6, 1932. (The compensation of a judge who took office after June 6, 1932, is taxable under the Revenue Act of 1932.)

21 The Revenue Act of 1939 is not a complete taxing statute in itself, but consists of amendments of certain sections of the Internal Revenue Code and of the 1938 Act and prior laws. There is no one effective date for the Revenue Act of 1939; some of the provisions are retroactive to years prior to 1939, others apply to the current tax period, while still others are prospective in their application, being effective only for taxable years beginning after Dec. 31, 1939. One of the provisions of this Act affecting the data in Statistics of Income is:

For any taxable year beginning after Dec. 31, 1938, in the case of compensation (a) received from personal services rendered by an individual in his individual capacity, or as a member of a partnership, and covering a period of five calendar years or more from the beginning to the completion of such services, (b) paid (or not less than 95 percent of which is paid) only on the completion of such services, and (c) required to be included in gross income of such individuals, the tax attributable to such compensation shall not be greater than the aggregate of taxes which would have been paid had the income been received in equal portions in each of the years in the period.

- 12 The Revenue Act of 1940 is not a complete taxing statute in itself, but consists of amendments to the Internal Revenue Code.
- <sup>23</sup> For 1940 there is superimposed upon the total tax the defense tax which is 10 percent of the total tax. The defense tax is computed on the total tax before applying any credits, and is limited to an amount not more than 10 percent of the net income in excess of the total tax computed without regard to the defense tax.
- 24 The exceptions in note 17(b)(2) obtain for 1940 with the following modifications: limitation on gross income is \$24,000; the total of the normal tax and surtax is not to be less than 15 percent of the gross income, except that in the case of residents of Sweden the tax with respect to dividends is 10 percent; and the defense tax, as described in note 23, is applicable. However, the returns of these aliens, who file on basic differences between tax liability and collec-

B.—Individuals and fiduciaries, surtax rates and total surtax under

]	Net in subje surt	come ct to ax 2	19	Act of Oct. 3, 1913 (In- come tax)				Revenue Act of—					
	cced- ing	Equal- ing	Inco Mar th	me years . 1, 1913, irough . 31, 1915	Inco	1916 me year 1916	Inco	1917 ome year 1917	1918, Act	1918 me years 1919, 1920; t of 1921 ome year 1921	1920; 921 year 1922, 1923		
Т	housa doll	nds of ars	Rate (per- cent)	Total surtax	Rate (per- cent)	Total surtax	Rate 6 (per- cent)	Total surtax	Rate (per- cent)	Total surtax	Rate (per- cent)	Total surtax	
8 8 9 9 111 12 133 134 151 151 151 151 151 151 151 151 151 15	00 1	4 5 6 7. 5 8 10 112 24 113 114 15 16 18 222 24 16 28 33 38 42 22 24 16 25 24 16 25 25 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26 26	111111111111111111111111111111111111111	\$20 .40 .60 .80 .100 .100 .200 .240 .240 .240 .240 .240 .240 .2	11111111111111111111111111111111111111	\$20 40 60 100 1120 1120 1120 1120 1120 1120 1	1 1 2 2 3 3 3 4 4 4 5 5 5 5 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	\$10 25 35 135 170 250 300 400 560 660 820 940 1, 460 1, 460 1, 780 1, 780 2, 180 2, 580 2, 580 4, 260 4, 500 4, 500 4, 500 6, 880 6, 880 6, 880 6, 880 7, 050 8, 340 8, 3	1 2 2 2 2 3 4 4 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 7 8 8 9 10 1 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 1	\$10  \$10  \$10  \$10  \$10  \$10  \$10  \$10	1 1 1 2 2 3 3 3 3 4 4 4 5 5 6 8 8 9 9 10 11 12 13 3 16 5 6 8 8 9 9 10 11 12 13 3 16 5 6 8 8 9 9 10 11 12 13 3 16 6 6 8 9 10 11 12 13 3 16 6 6 8 9 10 11 12 13 3 16 6 6 8 9 10 11 12 13 16 6 6 8 9 10 11 12 13 16 6 6 8 9 10 11 12 13 16 6 6 8 9 10 11 12 13 16 6 6 8 9 10 11 12 13 16 6 6 9 10 12 12 13 16 6 6 9 10 12 12 13 16 6 6 9 10 12 12 13 16 6 6 9 10 12 12 13 16 6 6 9 10 12 12 13 16 6 6 9 10 12 12 13 16 6 6 9 10 12 12 13 16 6 6 9 10 12 12 13 16 6 9 10 12 12 12 13 16 6 9 10 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12	\$15, 200 \$10 110 180 \$220 \$220 \$320 \$40 \$600 \$780 \$9, 200 \$1, 440 \$1, 700 \$2, 000 \$2, 200 \$3, 320 \$4, 100 \$4, 100 \$4, 100 \$5, 420 \$6, 400 \$6, 400 \$7, 146 \$8, 600 \$9, 200 \$11, 120 \$11,	

1 The Act of Oct. 3, 1913, the Revenue Acts of 1916 as a credit; prior to 1934 the entire net income was through 1938, the Internal Revenue Code, and the Code as amended by the Revenue Act of 1940.

1 In arriving at the net income subject to surtax. (For 1913 through 1916, the surtax was called "additional tax.")

2 Tax for 1923, computed at these rates, was refor 1934 and subsequent years, the sum of the personal exemption and credit for dependents is allowed 1200(a), Revenue Act of 1924.

the Federal tax laws 1 for the income years 1913 through 1940

	1924	1	Revenue		of— 1932		1934	1936 a	nue Acts of and 1938 one years 1937, 1938; ternal	enue amer Rever	nal Rev- Code as aded by one Act of
Incom	me year 1924	1925, 1 Act of come y	ne years 926, 1927; 1928 In- ears 1928, 1930, 1931	Inco: 193	me years 32, 1933	Incom 193	ne years 4, 1935	Inco	ternal nue Code me year 1939	of 1940 s Income year · 1940	
Rate (per- cent)	Total surtax	Rate (per- cent)	Total surtax	Rate (per- cent)	Total surtax	Rate (per- cent)	Total surtax	Rate (per- cent)	Total surtax	Rate (per- cent)	Total surtax
				i	\$15	4 4 5	\$40 80 155	4 4 5	\$40 80 155	4 4 6	\$40 80 170
				1	20 40	5 6	180 300	5 6	180 300	6 8	200 360
1	\$20	<u>i</u>	\$20	1 2	80	17	440	8	440	10	560
1 1	25 30	1	25 30	3 3	95 110	8	480 520	8	480 520	12 12	620 .680
1	40		40	3	140	8	600	8	600	12	800
2	60 80	1 2 2 3	60 80	4	180 220	9	690 780	9	690 780	15 15	950 1,100
3	140	3.	140	5	320	11	1,000 1,260	11	1,000 1,260	18	1, 460 1, 880
4 5	220 320	4 5	220 320	6 8	440 600	13 15	1, 560	13 15 17	1, 560	21 24	2, 360 2, 900
6 7	440 580	6	440 580	9 10	780 980	17 17	1,900 2,240	17 17	1, 900 2, 240	27 27	2, 900 3, 440
8	740	6 7 7 8 8 9	720	11	1, 200	19	2,620	19	2,620	30	4,040
9 10	920 1, 120	8 8	880 1,040	12 13	1,440 1,700	19 19	3, 000 3, 380	19 19	3, 000 3, 380	30 30	4, 640 5, 240
10	1,320	9	1, 220	15	1,700 2,000	21 21	3, 800 4, 220	21 21	3,800 4,220	33	5, 900 6, 560
11 12	1, 540 1, 780	9 10	1, 400 1, 600	15 16	2,300 2,620	21	4, 640	21	4.640	33 33	7 220
13 13	2,040 2,300	10 11	1,800 2,020	17 18	2, 960 3, 320	24 24	5, 120 5, 600	24 24	5, 120 5, 600	36 36	7, 940 8, 660
14	2,580	11	2 240	19	3,700	24	6,080	24	6,080	36	9, 380
15 16	2,880 3,200	12 12	2, 480 2, 720	20 21	4, 100 4, 520	24 27 27	6, 620 7, 160	24 27 27	6, 620 7, 160	40 40	10, 180 10, 980
17	3, 540 3, 900	13	2,980 3,240	22 23	4.960 5,420	27 30	7,700 8,300	27 31	7,700 8,320	40	11,780
18 19	4, 280	13 14	3,520	24 25	5, 900	30	8,900	31	8,940	44	12, 660 13, 540
19 20	4, 660 5, 060	14 15	3,800 4,100	25 26	6, 400 6, 920	30 33	9, 500 10, 160	31 35	9, 560 10, 260	44	14, 420 15, 300
21	5, 480	15	4, 400	26 27	7, 460	33	10,820	35	10,960 11,660	44	16, 180 17, 120
21 22 23	5,900 6,340	16 16	4,720 5,040	28 29	8,020 8,600	33 36	11,480 12,200	35 39	12,440	47	18,060
23 24	6, 800 7, 280	17 17	5, 380 5, 720	30 31	9. 200	36 36	12, 920 13, 640	39 39	13, 220 14, 000	47	19,000 19,940
25*	7, 780	17	6,060	32 33	9.820 10,460	39	14, 420	43	14.860	47	20,880
26 26	8,300 8,820	18 18	6, 420 6, 780	33 34	11, 120 11, 800	39 39	15, 200 15, 980	43 43	15,720 16,580	50 50	21, 880 22, 880
26 27	9,090	18	6, 960	35	12, 150	42	16,400	47	17, 050 17, 520	50	22,880 23,380
27 28	9, 360 9, 920	18 18	7, 140 7, 500	35 36	12, 500 13, 220	42 42	16.820 17,660	47 47	18,460	50 50	23, 880 24, 880
28 29	10, 480 11, 060	18 19	7, 860 8, 240	37 38	13, 960 14, 720	42 45	18, 500 19, 400	47 51	19, 400 20, 420	50 53	25, 880 26, 940
30	11,660	19	8.620	39	15,500	45	20 300	51	21 440	53	28,000
31 31	12, 280 12, 900	19 19	9, 000 9, 380	40 41	16,300 17,120	45 45	21, 200 22, 100	51 51	22, 460 23, 480	53 53	29, 060 30, 120
32	13, 540	19 19	9, 760	42 43	17, 960	45 50	23, 000 24, 000	51 55	24, 500 25, 600	53 56	31, 180 32, 300
33 34	14. 200 14. 880	19	10, 140 10, 520	44	18,820 19,700	50	25,000	55	26, 700 27, 800	56	33, 420 34, 540
35 36	15, 580 16, 300	19 19	10, 900 11, 280	45 46	20, 600 21, 520	50 50	26,000 27,000	55 55	27, 800 28, 900	56 56	1 35, 660
36	17, 020	19	11,660	47	22, 460 46, 460	50	28,000	55	30,000	56	36,780
37 37	35, 520 54, 020	20 20	21, 660 31, 660	48 49	46, 460 70, 960	52 53	54, 000 80, 500	58 60	59, 000 89, 000	58 60	65, 780 95, 780
38	73,020	20	41,660	50	95, 960	54 54	107, 500 134, 500	62 64	120,000 152,000	62 64	95, 780 126, 780 158, 780
38 39	92, 020 131, 020	20 20	51, 660 71, 660	50 51	120, 960 171, 960	55	189, 500	66	218, 000 286, 000	66	224 780
39 40	170, 020 270, 020	20 20	91, 660 141, 660	52 53	223, 960 356, 460	56 57	245, 500 388, 000	68	286,000 461,000	68 70	292, 780 467, 780 647, 780
40	370, 020 570, 020	20	191, 660 291, 660	54	491, 460 766, 460	58	533, 000	70 72	641,000	1 72	647, 780
40 40	570,020 770,020	20 20	291,000 391,660	55 55	766, 460 1, 041, 460	59 59	828,000 1,123,000	73 73	1,006,000 1,371,000	73 73	1,012,780 1,377,780
	1, 970, 020	20	991, 660	55	2, 691, 460	59	2, 893, 000	74 75	3, 591, 000	74 75	3, 597, 780

The surtax rates for 1936 and subsequent years are not applicable to all nonresident alien individuates. (See notes 17 and 24, p. 245.)

For 1940 there is superimposed upon the total tax the defense tax which is 10 percent of the total tax. The defense tax is computed on the total tax. The defense tax is computed on the total tax.

C.—Individuals and fiduciaries, supplemental income and profits tax rates

		. Capit	al gains and losses 1	
Federal tax law	Income year	Definition of capital assets	Tax on capital net gain 2	Tax credit for capital net
Revenuc Actof: 1921	, 1922, 1923	Property held for profit or investment for more than two years (whether or not connected with trade or business) but does not include property held for the personal use or consumption of the taxpayer or his family, stock in trade or other	Taxpayer may elect to be taxed at 12½ percent on capital net gain, provided that the total tax, including the tax on capital net gain, is not less than 12½ percent of the total net income. (Loss in ordinary net income cannot be deducted from capital net gain.)	None. (There is no provision for "capital net loss" in the Revenue Act of 1921. What is called "capital net loss" in later acts is treated as ordinary loss under the 1921 Act and is deductible from ordinary income.)
1928	1925, 1926, 1927 1928, 1929, 1930, 1931 1932, 1933 1934, 1935, 1936, 1937	property which would be included in inventory. 3 Same as 1922 exclusive of property held primarily for sale in ordinary course of trade or business.  Same as 1924  Same as 1924  Same as 1924  All property, whether or not connected with trade or business, regardless of period held, except (1) stock in trade or other property which would be included in inventory, and (2) property held primarily for sale inordinary course of trade or business.	Taxpayer may elect to be taxed at 12½ percent of the capital net gain, if the tax would be greater than 12½ percent by including capital net gain in ordinary net income. (Loss in ordinary net income may be deducted from capital net gain and the balance taxed at 12½ percent.)  Same as 1924.  Same as 1924.  Same as 1924.  Capital gains and losses are computed on basis of certain percentages and income and of the assets involved.  Capital net gains (after the percentages are applied) are included in net income and are subject to normal tax and surtax.  Deduction for capital net loss (after the percentages are applied), and after subtracting the amount of capital net loss, whichever is less.	Capital net loss may be reported apart from ordinary net income, and a tax credit of 12½ percent of the capital net loss taken, if tax thus produced is not less than the tax would be if the capital net loss were deducted from ordinary income. Same as 1924.  Same as 1924.  Same as 1924.  None. (See preceding column for deduction of capital net loss.)

For footnotes, see p. 251.

and credits under the Federal tax laws \(^1\) for the income years 1917 through 1940

		Capi	tal gains and losses 2	
Federal tax law	Income year	Definition of capital assets	Tax on capital net gain 2	Tax credit for capital net loss <sup>2</sup>
Revenue Act of: 1938	1938	All property, whether or not connected with trade or business, regardless of period held, except. (1) stock in trade or other property which would be included in inventory, (2) property, (2) property held primarily for sale in ordinary course of trade or business, and (3) property used in trade or business of a character which is subject to allowance for depreciation.	Capital gains and losses are divided into two classes: (a) Shortterm capital gains and losses resulting from sales or exchanges of capital assets held 18 months or less; (b) long-term capital gains and losses resulting from sales or exchanges of capital assets held more than 18 months. A net short-term capital gain is fully taxable; a net short-term capital loss may not be deducted from any income for the taxable year, but may be carried forward to the succeeding taxable year (in amount not in excess of the net income for the year in which the loss is sustained) and applied against the short-term capital gains not already offset by short-term capital losses in such succeeding year. Any excess, of the prior year short-term capital gain of the succeeding year, is not deductible. Only certain percentages of the recognized long-term capital gains or losses are taken into account in computing net income. A long-term capital loss is deductible without limitation, except for the application of the alternative tax.  Alternative methods for computation of tax are provided in the case of net long-term capital gain and loss. In case of net long-term capital gain, can be alternative tax and surtax on net income without regard to long-term capital gain, plus 30 percent of the net long-term capital gain, plus 30 percent of the net long-term capital gain, plus 30 percent of the net long-term capital loss, or (b) normal tax and surtax on net income after deducting net long-term capital loss, (after percentages are applied), the tax is either (a) normal tax and surtax on net income after deducting net long-term capital loss, (after percentages are applied), the tax is either (a) normal tax and surtax on net income after deducting net long-term capital loss, minus 30 percent of the net long-term capital loss, minus 30 percent of net long-term capital loss, minus 30 percent of net long-term capital loss, minus 30 percent of net long-term capital loss, minus 30 percent of net long-term capital loss, minus 30 percent of net long-te	30 percent of uet long term capital loss, i such credit produces the greater amount of tax. (See preceding column.)
Internal Revenue Code.	1939, 1946	Same as 1938	gard to net long-term capital loss, minus 30 percent of net	Same as 1938.

#### C.—Individuals and fiduciaries, supplemental income and profits tax rates and credits under the Federal tax laws i for the income years 1917 through 1940-Continued .

	E	Excess-profits tax	Tax credit for foreign cour	or income an atries or Uni	d profits taxes paid to ted States possessions	
Federal tax law	In- come year	Income subject to excess- profits tax	Rate (per- cent)	Federal tax	Income year	Amount of credit
Revenue Actof: 1917	1917	Salaries in excess of \$6,000 7 and income in excess of \$6,000 7 from business having no invested capital.  Net income from business having invested capital.  Net income equal to 15 percent of invested capital less deduction.  Net income in excess of 15 percent of invested capital but not in excess of 20 percent of invested capital.  Net income in excess of 20 opercent of invested capital but not in excess of 25 percent of invested capital.  Net income in excess of 25 percent of invested capital but not in excess of 25 percent of invested capital.  Net income in excess of 25 percent of invested capital but not in excess of 33 percent of invested capital.  Net income in excess of 33 percent of invested capital.  Net income in excess of 33 percent of invested capital.	20 25 35 45	Revenue Act of: 1917  1918 1921 1924 1926 1932 1934 1936 1 ternal Revenue Code.	1917 1918 1919, 1920, 1921 1922, 1923 u 1924 1925, 1926, 1927 1928, 1929, 1930, 1931 1932, 1933 1934, 1935 1938 1939, 1940	Income and profits taxes paid to foreign countries or United States possessions were not allowed as a tax credit but were included in general deductions from gross income, except that taxes paid to foreign countries were not allowed to non-resident aliens.  Amount paid or accrued. <sup>10</sup> Do. <sup>11</sup> Do. <sup>11</sup> Do. <sup>12</sup> Do. <sup>13</sup> Do. <sup>13</sup> Do. <sup>13</sup> Do. <sup>13</sup> Do. <sup>13</sup> Do. <sup>14</sup> Do. <sup>15</sup> Do. <sup>15</sup> Do. <sup>15</sup> Do. <sup>16</sup> Do. <sup>17</sup> Do. <sup>18</sup> Do. <sup>18</sup> Do. <sup>19</sup> Do. <sup>10</sup>

#### EARNED INCOME CREDIT

Federal tax law	Income year	Kind of credit	Earned net income recognized for computation of credit	Limit of credit
Revenue Act of: 1924	1924	Against tax	All net income up to \$5,000 whether carned or not, and up to \$10,000, if carned	25 percent of normal tax of earned net income. (Cannot exceed 25 percent of normal tax of the earned percent of normal tax of the earned t
1926	1925, 1926, 1927	do	All net income up to \$5,000 whether carned or not, and up to \$20,000, if carned.	tax on ordinary net income.) 25 percent of total tax on earned net income. (Cannot exceed the sum of 25 percent of normal tax on ordinary net income and 25 percent of surtax on earned net income.)
1928	1928, 1929, 1930, 1931 1932, 1933	None 14	All net income up to \$5,000 whether earned or not, and up to \$30,000, if carned.	Same as 1926.
1934 1936	1934, 1935 1936, 1937	Against net income.	All net income up to \$3,000 whether earned or not, and up to \$14,000, if earned.	10 percent of the earned net income, but not in excess of 10 percent of the entire net in- come.
1938 Internal Revenue Code.	1938 1939, 1940	do	dodo	Do. Do.

For footnotes, see p. 251.

#### Foctnotes for table C

- Internal Revenue Code.
- 2 Prior to 1922 there was no distinction made be tween annual income and periodic income. By the Revenue Act of 1921, the profit or loss from the sale or exchange of assets held for more than 2 years, consummated after Dec. 31, 1921, was designated "capital gain" or "capital loss." For definitions. see section 206, Revenue Act of 1921; 208, Revenue Acts of 1924 and 1926: 101. Revenue Acts of 1928 and 1932; 117, Revenue Acts of 1934, 1936, 1938, and the Internal Revenue Code.
- <sup>3</sup> Losses resulting from the sale or exchange of securities consummated after Nov. 23, 1921, are not deductible when substantially identical securities are acquired or reacquired within 30 days before or after such transaction.
- 4 The Revenue Act of 1937 is not a complete taxing statute in itself, but consists of amendments and additions to the provisions of the Revenue Act of
- 1936.

  <sup>5</sup> The following percentages of gains or losses recognized are taken into account in computing net income, 1934 through 1937;

Assets held	Percent
l year or less.  Over 1 year, not over 2 years.  Over 2 years, not over 5 years.  Over 5 years, not over 10 years.  Over 10 years.	100 81 64 40 30

6 The following percentages of gains or losses recognized are taken into account in computing net income, 1938 and subsequent years:

Assets held	Percent
18 months or less.  More than 18 months but not more than	100
24 months More than 24 months	66 <b>3</b> 4 50

- 7 In excess of \$3,000 for nonresident aliens.
- \* A nonresident alien having business with invested capital, reported only that proportion of invested capital which net income from sources in the Revenue Act of 1932.

- 1 The Revenue Acts of 1917 through 1938, and the 1 within the United States was of the entire net income.
  - Deduction (not allowable to nonresident aliens), \$6,000 plus an amount equal to the same percentage of invested capital for taxable year as the average annual pre-war income was of pre-war invested annual pre-war income was of pre-war invested capital (not less than 7 percent nor more than 9 percent). If not established during at lenst one whole year of the pre-war period. 8 percent. If, during the pre-war period, the individual had a deficit or a very small income from business, or if invested capital cannot be determined, same percent as that of representative businesses. (See pag. 210. as that of representative businesses. (See sec. 210, Revenue Act of 1917.)
  - 10 Nonresident aliens were not allowed to deduct income taxes paid to foreign countries, either as a tax credit or in general deductions for the years 1918, 1919, and 1920.
  - <sup>11</sup> Beginning with 1921, the credit cannot exceed the proportion of the total tax against which the credit is taken, that the taxpayer's net income from sources without the United States bears to the entire net income. This credit does not apply to nonresident aliens nor to citizens deriving a large portion of their gross income from sources within a possession of the United States, but to such persons these taxes are allowable as a deduction from gross income, if imposed upon income from sources within the In imposed upon income from sources within the United States. For the years 1921 through 1931, the amount of income and profits taxes paid to foreign countries or United States possessions, in excess of that deducted as a tax credit, is permitted to be included in deductions against gross income. (See note 14 below.)
  - 12 Tax, as computed at the rates for 1923, was reduced 25 percent by credit or refund under sec. 1200(a), Revenue Act-of 1924.
  - 18 For 1932 and subsequent years, the taxpayer may elect to credit the income and profits taxes paid to foreign countries or United States possessions (with certain limitations) against the income tax liability to the United States, or to include the entire amount of such taxes in deductions against gross income, except that nonresident aliens and citizens deriving a large portion of their gross income from sources within a possession of the United States are not entitled to claim the tax credit but may include the amount of such foreign taxes, if imposed upon income from sources within the United States, in deductions against gross income. (See sees. 131 and 23(c)(2), Revenue Act of 1932 and subsequent acts.)
  - 14 There was no provision for earned income credit

D.—Estate tax rates, total estate tax, specific exemption, and credits against estate in the period Sept. 9,

	Net es	state 3				Revenue	Act of					
				1916	by	samended Act of 3, 1917		1917	1918, 1921, and 1924 as amended by 1926			
	Ex- ceed- ing	Equal- ing	In effect Sept. 9, 1916, through Mar. 2, 1917		Mar th	effect . 3, 1917, rough . 3, 1917	Oct. through	effect 4, 1917, 16:54 p. m. 24, 1919	In effect 6:55 p. n Feb. 24, 1919, through 10:24 a. n Feb. 26, 1926			
	Thousa dol		Rate (per- cent)	Total es- tate tax	Rate (per- cent)	Total es- tate tax	Rate (per- cent)	Total es- tate tax	Rate (per- cent)	Total estate tax		
1 2 3 4 4 5 6 6 7 8 9 10 111 12 13 14 15 16 7 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 2 33 33 34 35 5 36	50 100 200 300 400 500 600 700 1000 1550 2000 2250 4000 6000 7500 1, 2500 1, 2500 2, 5000 4, 5000 4, 5000 4, 5000 4, 5000 6, 6000 7, 7, 7, 7, 7, 7, 7, 7, 7, 7, 7, 7, 7, 7	5 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 100 150 200 400 450 500 600 750 800 1, 250 1, 500 2, 500 4, 500 5, 600 7, 600 7, 600 8, 600 7, 600 1, 200 1, 200	1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 4 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 6 7 7 7 8 8 8 9 9 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	\$100 200 300 400 500 700 900 1,500 2,500 11,500 21,000 21,000 21,000 21,000 31,000 41,000 55,000 171,000 171,000 211,000 211,000 41,000 41,000 41,41,000 41,41,000 41,000 41,000 41,000 41,000 41,000 41,000 41,000 41,000 41,000 44,000	11/22 11/22 11/23 3 3 3 44/2 6 77/22/22 9 9 9/22 112 12/22 13/22 15 15 15 15 15	\$150 300 450 600 750 1, 050 1, 350 17, 250 17, 250 20, 250 24, 000 31, 500 46, 500 106, 500 106, 500 106, 500 204, 000 256, 500 316, 500 317, 500 40, 500 106, 500 111, 500 61, 500 111, 500	2 2 2 2 2 4 4 4 4 4 4 6 6 6 8 8 100 100 100 112 112 112 112 114 114 116 116 116 116 116 116 116 116	\$200 400 800 1, 000 1, 400 1, 400 1, 800 1, 800 1, 800 2, 000 23, 000 242, 000 57, 000 62, 000 62, 000 62, 000 62, 000 62, 000 62, 000 142, 000 572, 000 142, 000 1502, 000 1, 082, 000 1, 082, 000 1, 082, 000 1, 082, 000 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1	1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 4 4 6 6 6 8 8 10 10 12 14 14 16 16 16 16 18 18 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20	\$100 200 300 400 500 700 900 1,500 1,500 11,500 11,500 11,500 11,500 31,500 35,500 35,500 35,500 35,500 35,500 31,500		

For footnotes, see p. 254°

tax; under the Federal tax laws 1 applicable to estates of citizens and aliens who died 1916,2 through Dec. 31, 1941

		1	ie Act of—	1932 4 by 19	ic Act of as amended 35; Internal	Cod	al Revenue e as amend- y Revenue			
(B:	(Basic tax) (Tentative tax)		1932 <sup>4</sup> tative tax)		as amended 934 (Tenta- tax)	and amen enue	nue Code, Code as ded by Rev- Acts of 1939 940 (Tenta- ax)	Act	of 1941 4 itative tax)	
Feb	et.10:25.a. m. o. 26, 1926 thereafter	Jun tl	ect 5 p. m. e 6, 1932, arough y 10, 1934	May t)	1 effect 7 11, 1934 brough . 30, 1935	Aug.	effect 31, 1935, trough 20, 1941 \$ \$	lt Sept and		
Rate (per- cent)	Total (basic) tax	Rate (percent) Tentative tax		Rate (per- cent)	Tentative tax	Rate (per cent)	Tentative tax	Rate (per- cent)	Tentative tax	
1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 3 3 4 4 5 5 5 6 6 7 8 8 9 10 11 12 12 12 12 13 14 14 15 16 17 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18	\$100 200 300 400 500 900 1,500 9,500 1,500 1,500 15,000 16,3000 183,500 183,500 183,500 183,500 183,500 183,500 183,500 183,500 983,500 983,500 983,500	1 2 3 4 5 7 7 7 7 9 9 9 11 11 15 15 15 15 25 27 27 31 33 35 35 35 35 44 3 45 45 45	\$100 300 600 1,000 1,500 2,200 2,900 5,000 19,500 41,000 19,500 42,500 42,500 42,500 42,500 43,500 62,000 62,000 62,000 62,000 62,000 62,000 126,000 173,500 126,000 173,500 126,000 173,500 126,000 1,166,000 7,166,000 1,166,000	1 2 3 4 5 7 7 7 7 7 9 9 12 12 12 16 16 16 19 19 19 19 19 22 22 5 28 31 34 46 48 45 50 52 54 56 60 60 60 60	\$100 300 600 1, 500 2, 200 2, 200 5, 600 11, 600 25, 600 49, 600 87, 600 87, 600 120, 600 131, 600 251, 600 476, 600 321, 600 476, 600 476, 600 22, 236, 600 331, 600 476, 600 331, 600 476, 600 2, 278, 600 3, 276, 600 3, 276, 600 3, 276, 600 4, 416, 600 28, 416, 600	2 4 6 6 8 10 112 12 12 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 15 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16	\$200 600 1, 200 3, 000 4, 200 5, 400 9, 600 18, 100 26, 600 66, 600 78, 100 89, 600 112, 600 151, 600 151, 600 151, 600 172, 600 177, 600 952, 600 1, 407, 600 1, 407, 600 1, 677, 600 1, 102, 600 1, 602, 600 1, 602, 600	3 7 7 11 14 122 25 5 28 28 28 30 30 32 35 5 37 39 63 65 67 77 77 77 77	\$150 500 3, 000 4, 800 7, 000 9, 500 20, 700 50, 700 112, 300 20, 700 150, 700 113, 700 129, 700 145, 700 145, 700 145, 700 143, 200 231, 200 258, 200 753, 200 1, 233, 200 2, 153, 200 1, 233, 200 2, 153, 200 3, 338, 200 3, 338, 200 3, 338, 200 4, 568, 200 5, 288, 200 5, 288, 200 6, 888, 200 13, 788, 200 14, 568, 200 15, 788, 200 16, 888, 200 16, 888, 200 16, 888, 200 16, 888, 200	201 201 201 201 201 201 201 201 201 201

D.—Estate tax rates, total estate tax, specific exemption, and credits against estate in the period Sept. 9, 1916,2

		Rev	enue Act of-	_
Specific exemption, and credits against estate tax	1916	1916 as amended by Act of Mar. 3, 1917	1917	1918, 1921, and 1924 as amended by 1926
,	In effect Sept. 9, 1916, through Mar. 2, 1917	In effect Mar. 3, 1917, through Oct. 3, 1917	In effect Oct. 4, 1917, through 6:54 p. m. Feb. 24, 1919	In effect 6:55 p. m. Feb. 24, 1919, through 10:24 a. m. Feb. 26, 1926
Specific exemption, estate of: Resident. Nonresident citizen Nonresident allien	\$50,000	\$50,000	\$50,000	\$50,000
Credits against estate tax: Credit for gift tax paid in respect of property included in gross estate.				Total amount paid under Revenue Act of 1924, as amended.
Credit for estate, inheritance, legacy, or succession taxes, actually paid to any State or Territory, or the District of Columbia,8 in respect of any property included in gross estate for Federal estate tax purposes.				Not to exceed 25 percent of tax (from 4:01 p. m., June 2, 1924, through 10:24 a. m., Feb. 26, 1926).

<sup>1</sup> The Revenue Acts of 1916 through 1938, the Internal Revenue Code, and the Code as amended by the Revenue Acts of 1939, 1940, and 1941.

tax, under the Federal tax laws 1 applicable to estates of citizens and aliens who died through Dec. 31, 1941-Continued

	Revenue Act of-		Revenue Act of	Internal Reve-
1926 (Basic tax)	1932 4 (Tentative tax)	1932 as amended by 1934 (Tentative tax)	by 1935; Inter- nal Revenue Code, and Code as amended by Revenue Acts of 1939 and 1940 ( (Tentative tax)	nue Code as amended by
In effect 10:25 a. m. Feb. 26, 1926, and thereafter	In effect 5 p. m. June 6,1932, through May 10, 1934	In effect May 11, 1934, through Aug. 30, 1935	In effect Aug. 31, 1935, through Sept. 20, 1941 <sup>5</sup>	In effect Sept. 21, 1941, and t bereafter
\$100,000	\$50,000	\$50,000 \$50,000	\$40,000 \$40,000	\$40,000. \$40,000.
Total amount paid under Revenue Act of 1924, as amended. Credit for amount paid under Revenue Act of 1932 not to exceed the proportion of the estate tax computed under the Revenue Act of 1926 that the value of the included gift bears to the entire gross estate.	None, for amount paid under Revenue Act of 1924, as a mended. Credit for amount paid under Revenue Act of 1932 not to exceed the proportion of the additional estate tax that the value of the included gift bears to the entire gross estate, and not to exceed the difference between the total amount of the gift tax and the gift tax credit therefor allowed against the tax computed under the Revenue Act of 1926,	Same as 1932	Same as 1932	Same as 1932,
Not to exceed 80 percent of the difference be- tween the basic tax and any credit for glit tax (10:25 a. m. Feb. 26, 1926, and thereafter).	Agventie Act of 1920,		·	•

The Revenue Act of 1932 as amended by 1935 was in effect Jan. 1, 1936, through Feb. 10, 1939; the Internal Revenue Code, Feb. 11, 1939, through June 25, 1940; and the Code as amended by the Revenue Act. Act of 1940, June 26, 1940, through Sept. 20, 1941. See note 8.

<sup>2</sup> After Sept. 8, 1916, an estate tax return is required for the estate of every resident (after May 10, 1934, for every citizen regardless of place of residence) whose gross estate as defined in the statutes, exceeds whose gross estate as defined in the statutes, exceeds the specific exemption allowed. A return is also computed at the rates provided by the Revenue Act required for the estate of every nonresident (after May 10, 1934, for every nonresident alien) any part of whose estate, regardless of value, was situated at tax in the Internal Revenue Code. The additional tax is the excess of the tentative tax computed at the act of death in the United States, within the meaning of the statute. The returns are required to be filed within 1 year after date of death, except that for estates of persons who died after Aug. 30, 1935, returns are due 15 months after date of death.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> "Net estate" is the amount of gross estate in excess of the deductions and specific exemption allowed under the statutory provisions in effect at date of death.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> The estate of an individual who died after 5 p. m., June 6, 1932, is subject to two Federal estate taxes— a basic tax and an additional tax. The basic tax is computed at the rates provided by the Revenue Act

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> Estates of individuals who died within the period June 26, 1940, through Sept. 20, 1941, are subject also to the "Defense Tax" which is 10 percent of the sum of the basic and additional taxes after application of

<sup>7</sup> Specific exemption of \$100,000 is allowed the estate of a nonresident citizen who died on or after May 11, 1934, under 1926 Act as amended by 1934

<sup>8</sup> Section 813(b) of the Code is amended by the Revenue Act of 1939, which adds "or any possassion of the United States," with respect to estates of individuals who died on or after June 36, 1939.

E.—Gift tax rates, total gift tax, specific exemption, exclusions, and deductions, under the Federal tax laws affecting gifts made-during the calendar years 1924 through 19402

STATISTICS OF INCOME FOR 1940-PART 1

			•		Revenu	e Act of	_			
Net gi	fts <sup>a</sup>	h; Iu Jun t)	is amended y 1926 4 n effect te 2, 1924, hrough c. 3, 1925	Jun ti	1932 <sup>‡</sup> n effect e 7, 1932, <sup>6</sup> trough : 31, 1934	I	as amended by 1934 n effect ar year 1935	1932 & as amended by 1935; the Internal Revenue Code, and the Code as amended by Revenue Act of 1940  In effect. Jan. 1, 1936, through Dec. 31, 1940		
Exceeding	Equaling	Rate (per- cent)	Total gift tax	Rate (per- cent)	Total gift	Rate (per- cent)	Total gift tax	Rate (per- cent)	Total gift	
\$10,000 20,000 30,000 40,000 50,000 100,000 150,000 200,000 250,000 400,000 450,000 450,000 450,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 2,500,000 1,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 3,500,000 4,500,000 5,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000	\$10, 000 20, 000 30, 000 40, 000 50, 000 100, 000 100, 000 100, 000 250, 000 450, 000 450, 000 450, 000 450, 000 450, 000 450, 000 450, 000 450, 000 450, 000 450, 000 450, 000 450, 000 600, 000 1, 500, 000 3, 500, 000 3, 500, 000 4, 000, 000 4, 000, 000 5, 000, 000 6, 000, 000 6, 000, 000 6, 000, 000	1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 3 3 3 4 4 4 6 6 8 8 8 10 11 4 11 4 11 6 11 6 11 6 11 6 11 6 1	\$100 200 300 400 500 900 1, 500 22, 500 11, 500 13, 500 22, 500 31, 500 31, 500 31, 500 31, 500 31, 500 40, 500 40, 500 40, 500 40, 500 40, 500 40, 500 40, 500 41, 50	33.4 11.21.4 3.3.4 5.5 61.2.2 8.8 91.2.2 11.1 121.2 17.1 181.2 20.1 21.4 23.1 241.2 271.2 29.3 20.1 20.3 20.1 20.3 20.3 20.3 20.3 20.3 20.3 20.3 20.3	\$75 225 450 750 1, 125 2, 125 3, 625 6, 875 10, 125 26, 125 26, 125 30, 875 45, 128 61, 625 67, 125 92, 125 239, 625 324, 625 324, 625 417, 125 624, 625 517, 125 624, 625 73, 625 1, 397, 123 1, 397, 123 1, 397, 123 1, 687, 125 5, 662, 125 1, 92, 125 5, 662, 125 1, 92, 125 5, 662, 125	21/4 21/4 3 3 4 4 5 6 3 4 9 9 12 12 14 14 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16	\$75 225 450 750 1, 125 2, 175 4, 200 8, 700 13, 200 19, 200 37, 200 44, 325 65, 700 90, 450 98, 700 241, 200 357, 450 98, 700 934, 950 623, 700 934, 950 1, 107, 450 934, 950 1, 107, 450 2, 457, 450 2, 457, 450 2, 457, 450 2, 457, 450 2, 457, 450 2, 457, 450 2, 457, 450 2, 457, 450 2, 457, 450 2, 457, 450 2, 451, 450 2, 451, 450 2, 451, 450 2, 451, 450 2, 451, 450 2, 451, 450 2, 451, 450 2, 451, 450 2, 451, 450 2, 451, 450 2, 451, 450	11/2 3 41/2 6 71/4 9 101/2 123/4 15 15 17/4 19/12 213/4 26/12 28/2 303/4 28/3 303/4 28/3 303/4 28/3 303/4 37/4 47/4 47/3 44/4 47/3 47/3 47/3 4	\$150 450 900 1,500 2,250 4,050 7,200 13,575 19,950 27,450 49,950 123,450 166,950 166,950 166,950 174,450 286,950 418,200 714,450 879,450 1,055,700 1,243,200 1,441,950 1,861,950 2,761,950 3,234,450 2,761,950 3,721,950 8,746,950 24,271,950	
Revenue	Act of—		Sj	pecific e	xemption, ex	rclusions	, and deduct	ions		
1924 as amendin effect Ji through Dec 1932, and 1932 by 1934, in c 1932.5 throu 1935. 1932 as amendin effect Ji through Dec 1932 as amendin effect Ji through Fe and Interna Code, in effi	une 2, 1924 c. 31, 1925. as amended ffeet June 7 gh Dec. 31 ded by 1938 an. 1, 1938. led by 1938 an. 1, 1939, b. 9, 1939	Girt Pred Spect Spect Cha Cha Cha Cha Cha Cha Cha Cha Cha Cha	year or ove Nouresident lusion of \$5,00 ritable, publ iffic exemptic Hesident or year or ove Nonresident lusion of \$5,00 ritable, publ iffic exemptic Resident or year or ove Nouresident	0,000 eac . None als not i properi properi properi r a peri alien: N 00 for ea citizen: r a peri calien: N 00 for ea ce, and s m: citizen: r a peri calien: N 00 for ea calien: N 00 for ea	in excess of \$-y and charit \$50,000, allo d of years a fone, ch donee (ex similar gifts. \$40,000, allo d of years a fone, ch donee (ex similar gifts. \$40,000, allo d of years a fone, ch donee (ex ch donee (ex ch donee (ex ch donee (ex ch donee (ex ch donee (ex	500.° table, et wed but t option copt fut wed but t option copt fut t option copt fut	once; may of donor.  once; may of donor.  once; may of donor.  once interest i	in prope be taker in prope be taker	rty).  a all in one  rty).  a all in one	

Footnotes for table E

<sup>2</sup> The amount of "Not gifts" for the current year is the excess of the total gifts for the current year over the sum of the following for such year: (1) total exclusions for dones; (2) deductions for charitable, public, and similar gifts; and (3) the specific exemption claimed.

emption claimed.

4 The first gift tax was levied under the Revenue Act of 1924; but lower rates were provided in the amendment by the 1926 Act. Any tax paid under the provisions of the 1924 Act, which was in excess of the tax imposed by the 1926 Act, was refunded of the tax imposed by the 1926 Act, was refunded with the tax computed at these rates that the amount of the 1940 gifts made on or after June 26, 1940, bears to the total amount of 1940 gifts.

Allowable to nonresident aliens.

1 The Revenue Acts of 1924 as amended by 1926; 1932; 1932 as amended by 1934, 1935, and 1938; the Internal Revenue Code, and the Code as amended by the Revenue Act of 1940.

2 Gift tax returns are required to be filed for the Code as amended for the Code as amended for the Code as amended by the Revenue Act of 1940.

3 Gift tax returns are required to be filed for the Code as amended for

No gift tax in effect Jan. 1, 1925, through June 6, 1932.
† The Revenue Act of 1932 as amended by 1935 was in effect Jan. 1, 1936, through Feb. 10, 1939; the Internal Revenue Code, Feb. 11, 1939, through June 25, 1940; and the Code as amended by the Revenue Act of 1940, June 26, 1940, through Dec. 31, 1940.
§ For the calendar year 1940, there is added to the tax computed at the rates in this schedule, the defense tax, which is that portion of 10 percent of the tax computed at the rates that the august of the state of t



# FACSIMILES OF INDIVIDUAL AND FIDUCIARY INCOME AND DEFENSE TAX RETURNS, AND PARTNERSHIP RETURNS OF INCOME FOR 1940

Form 1040. Individual income and defense tax return for gross incomes of more than \$5,000 from salaries, wages, dividends, interest, annuities, and incomes from other sources regardless of amounts.

annuities, and incomes from other sources regardless of amounts.

Form 1040A. Individual income and defense tax return for gross incomes of not more than \$5,000 derived from salaries, wages, dividends, interest, and annuities.

Form 1041. Fiduciary income and defense tax return (for estates and trusts).

Form 1065. Partnership return of income (filed also by syndicates, pools, joint ventures, etc.).

Treasury Department attenual Revenue Service PRIN				STATES			4.0	A A∧
IND	IVIDUAL I	NCOME	ANI	d defense ta	X RET	URN	194	10
(Auditor's Stamp)	DIVIDENDS,	INTEREST, A	NNUIT	IAN \$5,000 FROM SALARI FIES, AND FOR INCOMES ARDLESS OF AMOUNTS	ES, WAGES, 5 FROM		o not use these spa	ces)
	L			r Year 1940		File Code Serial		
	ſ			, 1940, and ended	. 1941	Serial No.		
		Collector of Internal Re	cresue fo	r your district not later than the 15th d		District	(Cashier's Stamp)	
	PRINT NA	ME AND ADD	RESS	PLAINLY. (See Instruct	ion C)			
	(Name			hand and wife, if this is a jeint return)				_
		(Street	and new	er, or rutal couts)			First Fayment	)
	(1	'aut effice)		(Cormte)	State)	\$		
hern and Instruction No.	INC	OME.			1		T	T
1. Salaries and other compe	nsation for persona	l services. Gra	m Schedu	(الم عا	_ s		.]	1
2. Dividends		***********		·			.	j
<ol><li>Interest on bank deposits</li></ol>	, notes, mortgages	, etc						}
4. Interest on corporation b	onds	********		************************			-1	i
<ol> <li>Taxable interest on Gove</li> <li>Incom: (or loss) from par (Furnish names and addresses);</li> </ol>	rnment obligations tnerships, syndicat	s, etc. (From Schr es, pools, etc. (d	duin 13) other th	nan capital gains or losses).				
7. Income from fiduciaries.							-	
8. Rents and royalties. (Fr	nu Schedule C)							
9. Income (or loss) from but	sinces or profession	(From Schedule D	)	·····			.]	1
10. (a) Net short-term gain i	rom sale or exchar	ige of capital as:	scts.	(From Schedule F)	_[		.	
				Scts. (From Schedule F)			.	ĺ
(c) Net gain (or loss) from	sale or exchange of	property other t	than ca	pital assets. (From Schedule C).				1
11. Other income (including							: _	
<ol> <li>Total income in it.</li> </ol>			Kirodule I	)	·····		<b>\$</b>	
		CTIONS			1.	- 1		
13. Contributions paid. (Em	lain in Schmiule H)			******				1
<ol> <li>Interest. (Explain in Schodule</li> <li>Taxes. (Explain in Schodule II)</li> </ol>	H)						·[	ľ
16. Losses from fire, storm, sl	sinwreck, or other	esqualty or the	t <i>a</i> .	rainin in Salanda UN	-		1	
17. Bad debts. (Explain in School								ł
<ol><li>Other deductions authoris</li></ol>	zed by law. (Explai	n in Schedule H)		·····			]	i
<ol> <li>Total deductions in</li> </ol>	n items 13 to 18						ļ	ļ
20. Not income Gtem	12 minus item 19).			***************************************			\$	
		COMPU	TAT	ON OF TAX				
21. Net income (item 20 abov	ve)	\$		28. Normal tax (4% of it	tem 27)		\$	
			1	29. Surtax on item 24. (				
2. Less: Personal exemption	m. [	1		30. Total (item 28 plus it				
(From Schedule J-1)	\$	.{						
<ol> <li>Credit for dependent</li> <li>(From Schoolule J-2)</li> </ol>				31. Total income tax (item	iter line 16, Schedul	f)	\$	
			$\sqcap$	32. Less: Income ter paid at set 33. Income ter paid to a				!
24. Balance (surtax net incon		\$		DD. Income tax paid to a country or U, S. po. (Attach Form 1116)	memina,		******************************	
5. Less: Interest on Government obj	1821- 1251 S			34. Balance of income tax	(item 31 minus iten	as 32 and		ļ
<ol><li>Earned income cree</li></ol>	lit_			35 D. (100% (1			9	
Groen, Schechule K-1 or K	-7)			35. Defense tax (10% of i			AMELINIAN	
		j .	1	36 Total income and				

ANI	OTHE	HER COMPENSATION FOR PERSONAL SERVICES. (See Instruction 1)										ons,	BONG					
Name and address of complayer - If a trigether "Cockest." "Stare	Povernmental	unit, imänte		2. Aug.	nst				h-i	3. E.	aprace (	itenite)				4.	Anne	
			١,													2		l
	***********															*		1
***************************************		**********																
			Ì				*****			· •								
Total of column 2 minus total															لتتنين	.*	: 222	<u> </u>
Schedu	ie B.—17	VIELEST	CN C	OVER	INM	ENT.	OBL	GAT	ON	5, F.	TC.	(See le	IISLTV	CLiran   4. Am				
1. Oldigotia	an or socuritie	u			7. Aus 74.10 (	murten Propert Print le	rand et et innatr el e esimbe e esimbe	nd of you lett of au lituats e, trust f	r inclus eti obli partue uudi	dang gra-	3. Integral servived or account during the year				epai. er on drin t from	5. Interest on Am current di Manua		ant in
(a) Obligations of a State, Territory District of Columbia, or Unit (b) Obligations issued under Feders as amended.	ed States o	MERCASINOS			1						\$			All.		A 5 2 1	* * * * *	x :
(c) Obligations of United States iss (d) Treasury Notes, Treasury Bille,	and on or be and Treasu	riore Septemb ry Certificates	er 1. 1! of Ind	17 ebted-							•••••			All_			***	* *
(e) United States Savings Bonds as (f) Obligations of instrumentalities obligations to be reported in	nd Treasury	Bonds	(ather	than		 	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				••••• •••••	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		All \$5,6 None	ec	\$	****	7 7
(e) Total (inter as item 5, p.	ze 1)															\$		
		INCOM	E FF	OM. I	ENT	rs A	ND R	OYA	LTII	:S.	(Sec	Instru	ction	8)		7		
1. Kind of prayerty		2. Ame	wit	3. 1	Depteri in Sci	stion (	replain E)	(1	4. i4 e taplain	pairs below		5. (n	ber espe mire beli	P*0	6. N	rt perein ( et column uter us the	orum is 2 t no 1, 4, an no 5, page	1) (1 5) (1 5)
			1				П							1				
		V						*				*			,			,
				1														
Explanation of deductions claimed in Schreciule			LOSS	) FRO	M B	บรท	NESS	OR I	PRO	FES	SION	. (See	Inst	ructi	on 9)			
(State (i) nature of business										: (2)	numbe	uf place	er of lv	usiness		; (3)	businer	t transe
and address if different from	name and a	qquess or bas	e I					•••••					• • • • • •					
I. Total receipts											•••••	•••••				\$		
COST OF GOODS SOLI	)											UCTION			Ï			1
(Fo be used where inventories are an incoming factor)	e-determining			11				rea not rael()		led se	"l.ate	er" (do n	ot dedi	uct con	pen-			ŀ
2. Inventory at beginning of year,		. \$						ess in		hose						*		
3. Merchandite bought for sale			-					o and i										
4. Labor			}-					xdow)_										
5. Material and supplies		·						g from					••					
6. Other costs (itemize below)			-									(explai					••••	
7. Total of lines 2 to 6		\$	-									below or	on sep	arate și	. (-			
8. Less inventory at end of year				· 18	•			ines II							-1-	·		
<ol> <li>Net cost of goods sold (line 7 mir</li> <li>Gross profit (line 1 minus line 9)</li> </ol>	•	\$		"		profr age 1)		lin) (عد	ela	inus	lines 9	and 18)	(enter	s ite	ın 9.			
If the production, manufacture, indicate whether inventories are value Explanation of deductions claim	purchase an	ed tale of mere	handis ket, wi	e is an in	ncome	-prods		ctor, in	vente	ories a	are req	aired. E	Enter "	'C." or	"C or N	1," on li	nes 2 ati	al 8 to
Schedulo EEXPLA	NATION	OF DEDU	CTIC	N FO	R D	EPR	ECIA	1014	CL/	MIA	ED J	V SCH	EDU	LFS (	. D,	F. AN	D C	
(If buildings, state noticeal of which constructed)	2. Date sequired	3. Cant or other (Do not included or other mand circle proper	busi- k land hpar- rty)	4. Aprel cisted a	s fully o s use at d year	deper-	9. The lower	provietio (or allon arise yea	n si- rabir)	6. 34	transinir iler basi receve	g cost or to be	life us accure ine di cies	rolei-	Estemat remaining life from beginning of year	;   <sup>9</sup> .	Depresia Isosoble d year	Ligan late
									-	1.			-					_
		*		•			*			•		-			••••••	•		
										1		+						
			·							·			·					

1. L'ind of property (if	1	i	/ 6	ms seles		5.	Coster		6 Fa	pense o	f sch	7, Den	reciati (er all	ov-	0. G	Ain o	r less (c	oluma minus	Cai	n or Ivan to h	
eletails not shown below)	Ma. Dag Year	Ma. Day Yes	, ,	rice)	İ	,	ner bism		tion	nt le se er Man 1913	ch!,	tion or 1913 (c	March	in.	the	NIMO 4	at colum	ne 5	9. Per	10. An	nount
	SHOR	-TERM: CA	PITAL G	AINS AI	ND 1	.085	F3A5	SET					THA	N I	IS M	OIN	THS		3 452	·	
*************			\$						š			5			s			T	100	s	
	Comparison of the property o				100																
								ļ										ļ	100		
								[]										ļ	103		
Total net short-ten	n cepital gain	or loss (coto	in line I,	column :	3. ef :	umn	ary Lili	ω)											· 	\$	
LONG-TERM (	APITAL GAR	IS AND LO	SSESA	8827.7	131	) F0	R MO	RE T	HAN	18 A	1011	iis ai	πN	СT	FO7	М	ORE 1	HAN	1 24 B	ютиз	
					\$													T	66%		I
																			6675		
		<b></b>						_					_ .					_	6635	ļ	_ _
								il					İ-					<u> </u>	663/3		_
	SHORT-TERM CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—ASSETS HELD FOR MORE THAN 24 MONTHS   LONG-TERM CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—ASSETS HELD FOR MORE THAN 24 MONTHS   LONG-TERM CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—ASSETS HELD FOR MORE THAN 24 MONTHS   LONG-TERM CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—ASSETS HELD FOR MORE THAN 24 MONTHS   LONG-TERM CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—ASSETS HELD FOR MORE THAN 24 MONTHS   LONG-TERM CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—ASSETS HELD FOR MORE THAN 24 MONTHS   LONG-TERM CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—ASSETS HELD FOR MORE THAN 24 MONTHS   LONG-TERM CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—ASSETS HELD FOR MORE THAN 24 MONTHS   LONG-TERM CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—ASSETS HELD FOR MORE THAN 24 MONTHS   LONG-TERM CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—ASSETS HELD FOR MORE THAN 24 MONTHS   LONG-TERM CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—ASSETS HELD FOR MORE THAN 24 MONTHS   LONG-TERM CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—ASSETS HELD FOR MORE THAN 24 MONTHS   LONG-TERM CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—ASSETS HELD FOR MORE THAN 24 MONTHS   LONG-TERM CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—ASSETS HELD FOR MORE THAN 24 MONTHS   LONG-TERM CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—ASSETS HELD FOR MORE THAN 24 MONTHS   LONG-TERM CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—ASSETS HELD FOR MORE THAN 24 MONTHS   LONG-TERM CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—ASSETS HELD FOR MORE THAN 24 MONTHS   LONG-TERM CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—ASSETS HELD FOR MORE THAN 24 MONTHS   LONG-TERM CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—ASSETS HELD FOR MORE THAN 24 MONTHS		,																		
			. \$		\$.				Ŧ			ţ			\$				50		-
	·																		50		
	do javocerty (cf. a)  do javocerty (cf. a)  do javocerty (cf. a)  do javocerty (cf. a)  do javocerty (cf. a)  SHOAL-TERNY CAPITAL GAINS AND  SHOAL-TERNY CAPITAL GAINS AND  LONG-TERNY CAPITAL GAINS AND  LONG-TERNY CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—ASSET; HES  LONG-TERNY CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—FROM SALES  COLUMN CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—FROM SALES  LONG-TERNY CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—FROM SALES  LONG-TERNY CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—FROM SALES  LONG-TERNY CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—FROM SALES  LONG-TERNY CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—FROM SALES  LONG-TERNY CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—FROM SALES  LONG-TERNY CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—FROM SALES  LONG-TERNY CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—FROM SALES  LONG-TERNY CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—FROM SALES  LONG-TERNY CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—ASSET  LONG-TERNY CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES—ASSET  LONG-TERNY CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSE											·			·			ļ	50		
Total not language	canital cain o		-l		محادد. در کم		5 -1-	- 				······		}				.	50		
The trace and the trace and the trace and the trace and the trace and the trace and the trace and trace an	Capital gall C								SAI	NS C	) S (	OSSE	S		*					3	
		2. Net	short-term	1						4.	Het a	ain or los	e to be	t tak	en fal	_	5.70	otal n	et gains	er loss to be	talten
8. Chapific	stinn	proced	ne tasable	ACC	ount i	turn co	lumo (0,	above evode		#ccon	nt íro	m parene frust l	und.	and		mo:	inta	actour	this su		ad 4 at
		of net	ncorne for	C	isin		1				Gair			L	ocs			Cain		Lou	
(enter as item 10 (a	I. Clasification  If net short-term capital gain or loss there is item 10 (a), page 1, amount [gain shown in column 5)					Γ			Γ			T				-			Т	No net allowable Instructi	icra (Hre
		<u>  S</u> : (enter as it		ł		==	<u> </u>		=	\$			\$				Ş			Instructs	1110)
page 1, amount of g	nin or less she	own in colu	on 5)	s		<u> </u>	\$			3			\$		<u>l</u>		\$			3	
Use or	ıly (1) If yo	u had a s	et long-	term c	upi	tal j	gain, :	and	iten	24.	peg	o 1. e:	KS60	da :	\$22,0	000					
	(2) 11 10	u had a r	et long-	term (	apt	tel i	oss, a	nd s	uch	loca	plu	s iten	24,	, pa	ago i	ا, د	rceed	s \$22	2,000		<del></del>
			,	\$			[0	. No	mal :	tas (4	% of	line 9).									
			••••••				n	. Suri	ax o	line f	j. (	See Ins	tructi	ioa.	27)			****			
3. Ordinary net income (	ine I minus !!	ne 2 (a) or b	ne i plus	•			12	. Par	ial t	u (lin	e 10 p	dus line	11)_								
Less: Personal exeroption	m. (From Scho	chile		*			13	(a)	30 %	of net	long	-term c	apital	l gai	in (30	%	of line 2	(a)).			
<ol> <li>Credit for dependent</li> </ol>	mts. (brem Se	hed-				- 1		(6)	30.57	of net	long	-term c	spital	ice	(30	% el	line 2	(4))			
	 			*			14	. Aite	τnai	ve taz	(line	12 plus	line 1	3 (.	or l	ine	12 minu	is line			
Less Interest on Coxes	rammt chiesti	ions,		*			15.	Tota	ປ ກດເ	mal t	ax Ru	d surta:	x (ite	m 3	0. nac	e i	)		1		
). Exraed income en	elit. (Fran S.	led-				- 1	16.	I DX	liabi	hty (it	a ne	t long-te	erm c	• pit	al ga	in, c	m line	2 (a),	-		7
				۹			=	lo 19	ng-tə	m ca	pital	loss, on	line i	2 (6	), ent	er li	ne 14 e	r line			
					C	RE	KCHA	NCT	3 (	F P	RO	PERT	Y 0	T	ER	T	IAN (	CAP	ITAL	ASSET	<del>sda.</del> S
		_		T	(50	e in	struct	ion	10)	le r						-		T			
1. Kind of pro	perty	2. De	basispae s	3. Groot	seles	price ice)	4. Co	et er vi	her	of ic	pense upvar	er tale at Omerts s	ubse-	a R	owable or N	ristic District	กร allowe เช ลิต (เกิร ไ. 1913	ition	7. Cai	n er losz (rok okunn 6 min i celumne 4 s	umn) with
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		_				÷			_		Marc	h 1, 1913	-	1	explain	in S	chedule	Ð	PUM 6	celumne 4	and >)
************	•			\$		·	\$			\$			-	\$.					\$		
																					-
Tables -1 (-1			15		*****	ا	l		.l	l			-!					l			:-
i oth) not gain (or li into the family, fiductory, o														==					<u></u>		<u>-l</u>

	Schedule H.—EXPLAN	IATION C	F DEDUC	TIONS	CLAIME	D IN ITEMS 13, 14, 15, 1	6, 17, A	ND 13	P	age 4
I. Itan No.	2. Explanation	T	3. Amount	Ţ	I. Item No. (Continued)	2. Explanation (Con	tinued)		3. Amour. (Continue	t ()
					<u>-</u>				\$	Ī
	***************************************									
										.
	redule I.—NONTAXABLE INC	ONE OT	ICD TUTAN	1.5500	DESC EZ	POPTUD IN SCHEDULE	D (C.		1	
Sei	1, Source of income	OME OT	TER THAT	11()(	NI ST KE	2. Nature of income	o instra	truction C()		
	1, 00011 11 12411								-1	<del>-</del>
									-	
									-	├
	Schodulo J.—EXPLANATIO	ON OF C	PEDITS C	T.AIM	ED IN IT	EMS 22 AND 23. (See	Instruct	ions 22	and 23)	
	(1) Eursonal Exemp		TELOTIO C		1	(2) Credit for	Depen	dente		
		Number of					Nember	of months	1	
	Status	months during the year in each	Cecdit cla	Lorent	Neme	e of dependent and relationship	Under 18	Over 10	Cradit clair	ne.
		status			J		yters old	years old		
	narried and not living with hus- wife		3	1	1		1		\$	
	nd living with husband or wife		4				Ţ		***************************************	
Head of fa	mily (explain below)				1					
icad or in	(a.p.a 5)					······································	<u> </u>	<u> </u>		<u>\</u>
						for support over 18 years old				
						TE CREDIT. (See Instr				
					D INCOM	your net income is more	than 43	.000 ser	only this p	ort
(1) 11	your net incomo is \$3,000 or le of schedula	35, USS ON	ny tare par	·		of sc!	teriulo			
Net incom	e (item 20, page 1)	. Is			Earned	net income (not more th	an \$14,0	00)\$		
	come credit (10% of net inc					ome (iten 20, page 1) income credit (10% of each				
					Earned i	income credit (10% of emn	ed not in	come		
					or 10%	% of net income, above, which iller, but do not enter less t	han \$300	)		1
			<del></del> ;	MIEC	TIONS	,				
I C	our principal occupation or profe	ereion		ساں		Personal exemption, if	anv. cla	imed the	ercon	
2. Check	whether you are a citizen [ ] or	a resident	alien 🔲.		(6	Collector's office to wh	ich it w	as sent		
3. Did yo	u file a return for any prior ye the latest year? To wi	car?	If so	, what	6. Chec	k whether this return	was prej	pared of	n the cash	
was f	the latest year? lowi	n;ch Colle	ctor's office	was it	7. Did	cerual [] basis. you at any time during	vour ta:	able vo	ar own dire	cilv
4 Are ite:	ns of income or deductions of I	both husb	and and w	ife in-	inc	directly any stock of a for	ciun corr	soration	or a persona	ıl ho
clude	ed in this return?				. ing	company as defined by	ection 5	91 of the	c Internal R	CACE
5. State (	(a) Name of husband or wife if	scparate	return was	made	is to	de? (Answer "yes" or "yes," atiach statement r	no )	by Instr	uction I.)	#1124
			AFFIDAV	T. (5	ion Instru	ction E)				
I/we s	swear (or affirm) that this return	Cincludia	g any acco	mnany	ing schedu	iles and statements) has b	жен еха	mined by	y mc/us, and	to 1
best of ms	/our knowledge and belief is a t	rue, corre	ct, and com	ipicte i	eturn, ma	de in good faith, for the t	azabie y	car state	ed, parsuant	to
Internal B	Revenue Code and the regulation	is issued t	inder autho	nty tr	ereci.		•			
Subscribe	d and sworn to by					(Sign	nature) (Se	* Instruction	• E.)	
hefore r	ne this day of			94						
Derore 1						(If this is a joint ret	(Signa		ent) it must	ha eie
	(Signature end title of offi	icer administer	ing oath)			by both bushand and v	rife. It m	sust be av	vern to before	a Dr
	A return made by an agent must attorney. (See Instruction E.)	pe eccounts	unied by pow	er of		officer by the spouse pro pase the return, it must	be sworn	a return. to by boti	is neither or h spouses.)	peun
	stories. (see minimum 2)		AFFIDAV		Eng Instant			-		
	(If this return t	was propered	for you by a	ome oth	er person, th	e following affidavit must be ex	ccuted)			
1 James	/ / / \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \		utum for t	ha ner	on or ner	one named bezein and the	at the re	turn (in	cluding any	acco
aaniina e	chedules and statements) is a tri	ue, correct	and come	dete st	atement o	t all the information respi	ecting th	e tax lia	bility of the	per
or persons	for whom this return has been	prepared	of which I/	we har	e any kno	owledge.				
					_					
	d and sworn to before me this		day	6		(Signatu	re of person	preparage th	in Literal	
of	194			(8)	(经制		re of person		se return)	
				la		(Jagmin	an prosecution	,		
				``						

1940

#### INSTRUCTIONS FOR FORM 1040. UNITED STATES INDIVIDUAL INCOME AND DEFENSE TAX RETURN

(References are to the Internal Rovenue Code, unless otherwise noted)

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

A. WHO MIST MAKE A RETURN—Every clitical and resident and united States having during the farable year grees income (income account of the United States having during the farable year grees income (income cliving from any course whatever, unless exempt from lax very looks are not kept on account basis, or if no books are kept, report all law) in an amount specified below, reportless of the amount of net thrown. whall make a return if:

hall make a return it:

(1) Single, or married and not living with husband or wife for any part
the tazable year. It having a gross income of \$500 or over.

(2) Married and living with husband or wife for the entire tazable year.

(2) Morricd and living with husband or wift for the entire tamble year. If each has income and their combined greas income is 2,000 or over, they must each make a return or file a joint return. If only one has income and this greas income is \$2,000 or over, only that one is required to make a return. If wing with husband or wife for only yout of the incode year. If each has income and their combined greas income is \$2,000 or over, or equal to, or in excess of, their total personal examption (not including retelf as head of a family or for dependents). Here must each make a return or file a joint return. If only one has income and his press income is \$2,000 or over, or equal to, or in excess of, like personal examption is \$2,000 or over, or equal to, or in excess of, like personal examption, and that one is required to make a clear. (See Specific instruction only that one is required to make a return. (See Specific instructions) 22 as to personal execution.)

22 as to personne examption.

Joint return.—May be filed by husband and wife only if they are

(1) both citizens or residents of the United States and (2) living together
at the end of the taxable year. A joint return is permissible even
though one has no gross income.

though one has no gross income.

Deceased individuals—Neturn required on Form 10:00 or 10:40A if grass income to date of death is \$500 or over, if single, or married and not living with squase for any part of the taxella year, or equal to, or in excess of, credit for personal excupption (not including credit as heat of a family or for dependents). If married and living with spouse for all or annily or for dependents, if married the first more and declaration accurately up to the date of death, regardless of the fact that the deceatest may have kept in books on a ceath senior of with polaries. enab basis or kept no books.

cash basis or kept no books.

E. FORM OF RETURN.—Individuals (1) whose gross income exceeds \$5,000, or (2) who have any income or losses from rental or exceeds \$5,000, or (2) which returns a cerual basis, or (4) make returns for a fixed year, or (5) conduct their own business or profession, or are members of a parincrishly, use Form 1040. Nonrealdent allens use Form 10401. If their individuals use Form 10401. All other individuals use Form 1050.

individuals use Form 1640A.

C. PILING OF REPURNS AND PAYMENT OF TAX.—File on or before 15th day of. 3d month following close of taxable year with close 15th day of. 3d month following close of taxable year with close of principal place of business the taxable year with a longer residence or principal place of business fisher that the with collector at Battimore, Mc. The taxtayer's home address the with was and a permanent business and close of the collector of

15th day of the 2d, 6th, 9th, and 12th month from close of taxable year.

D. PENATITES.—Sovere penalties are imposed for not filling a return, for filling a false or fraudulent return, or falling to file on time.

E. AFFIDAVITS.—Reburn must be seven to by tanpager or bis agent. Return may be made by agent if taxpager (1) is too ill to make it or (2) is absent from United States for 60 days before due data. Power of attorney on Form 935 or 935 (husband and wife) must accompany return made by agent. Person preparing return must execute affidavit on page 4. Return may be sworn to before any collector, deputy collector, or internal revenue agent. (without charge), or other person authorized by law to administer online for the property of the collector of the property of the property of the collector.

P. RECEIVED OR ACCRUED INCOME.—If books are kept on

1940

G. ITEMS EXEMPT FROM TAX.—Explain items claimed to be exempt in Schedule I, except interest to be reported in Schedule B.

exempt in Schedule 1, except interest to be reported in Schedule B.

1. Interest on povernmental obligations

(a) Entirely exempt.—The interest on (1) obligations of a State, Territory, or political subdivisions thereof, or the District of Columbia, or United Staten possessions; (2) obligations issued under Federal Farm Loan Act, or under such Act as memodel, (3) obligations of the United States issued on or before September 1, 1917; and (4) Treasury notes, Treasury obligations, adjusted cervice bonds, and certain other obligations of the United States.

(b) Partially exempt.—The interest on (1) United States savings bonds and Treasury bonds owned in excess of \$5,000 and (2) obligations of instrumentalities of the United States is subject only to surtax.

tions of instrumentalities of the United States is subject only to surfax.

2. Proceeds of insurance policies.—The proceeds of life insurance policies, paid by reason of the death of the insured, are exempt. If any part of the proceeds is held by the insurer under an agreement to pay interest, the interest is taxable. Attenuals received under a life insurance or endowment policy, not payable by reason of the death of the insured, are not taxable until the aggregate of the amounts received exceeds the premiuma or consideration paid for the policy. See Specific Instruction 11 as to taxable of annuities.

3. Foderal savings and loan associations.—Dividends on share accounts in Federal savings and loan associations are subject only to

4. Miscolianeous items wholly exempt from tax:
(a) Gilts (not received as a consideration for service rendered) and
money and property acquired by bequest, devise, or inheritance (but
income therefrom is taxable);
(b) Amounts received through accident or health insurance or under

(b) Amounts received through accident or health insurance or under workmen's compensation acts, se compensation acts, se control into proceed and injuries or sickness, plus the amount of any damages received, whether by suit or agreement, on account of such injuries or sickness;
(c) The rental value of a dwelling house and appurtenances thereof furnished to a minister of the gorget as part of his compensation;
(d) Pennious and compensation received by vectorals from the United Vectoral in the suit of the suit of the vectoral interval of the suit of the vectoral interval in the suit of the suit of the vectoral interva

against amounts so oxcluded).

17. DEPRICATION AND DEPLICATION.—A reasonable allowance for exhaustion, west and test, including solutionscope, of property used in twice or humans; may be declared, and the property used in twice the humans; may be declared, and the solution of the property of the prope

and person or taken or make to a married period shall make a return on Forus (60% and 100).

1. STOCK OWNED IN POLICIENC OCERPORATIONS AND PERSONAL HOLDING COMPANIES.—It at any time during the year you owned directly ser indirectly noted of a roots companied, or a parent builded remouvey (seefice (61), stated a statement above in the statement of the statement

#### SPECIFIC INSTRUCTIONS (Numbered to correspond with item numbers on page I of return)

(Numbered to correspond with list m numbers on page 1 of return)

1. SALARIES, ETC.—Include compensation received as an officer or employee of a State or political subdivision or any agency or instrumentality thereof. For treatment of compensation for a period of 5 years or more, see section 107.

2. DIVIDENDS.—Enter total of all taxable dividends. Enter in Rechedule 1 all dividends chaimed to be nontaxable. Enter in item 11 dividends on share accounts in Federal savings and loan associations.

5. 7. INCOME FROM PAITMERSHIPS, FIDUCARIES, ETC.
WHOSE TAXABLE YEAR ENDS WITHIN THE TAXABLE YEAR COVERED BY THIS RITURN.—Enter as Item 6 your share of profits (whether received or ice) or losses of a partnership (including spins and losses). Store of the partnership of the partnership of the partnership of the partnership of the partnership of the partnership of the partnership of the partnership of the partnership of any contribution of the United States, Ca, overed by partnership, seed, or trust. Include in item 13, and capitain in Schedule II, your share of any contribution of the United States, Ca, owered by partnership of the partnership of any contribution of the United States, Ca, owered by partnership of the partnership of any contribution of the United States, Ca, owered by partnership of the partnership of any contribution of the United States, Ca, owered by partnership of the partnership of any contribution of the United States, Ca, owered by partnership of the partnership of the partnership of any contribution of the United States, Ca, owered by partnership of the partnership of t

the taxable year, or properly held by the taxpayer primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of his trade or business, or property used in the trade or business of a character which is subject to the allowance for depreciation provided in section 23 (f).

Description of property—State following facts: (a) For real estate, location and description of land and improvements; (b) for bonds or other evidences of indebtedness, name of sessing corporation, particular issue, denomination and amount; and (c) for specific, name of corporation, descondination and amount; and (c) for specific and capital changes affecting the state of stock, number of shares, and capital changes affecting the state of the stat

quired after February 28, 1913, use cost, except as otherwise provious in section 113.

Losses on securities beroming worthless.—If (1) shares of stock become worthless during the year or (2) copprate securities with interest coupons or in registered form are uscertained to be worthless and charged off during the year, and are capital assock, the loss therefrom shall be considered as from the sale or exchange of capital assock and the results of such the sale or exchange of capital assocks.

from shall be considered as from the sale or exchange of capital assues as of the last day of such taxable year.

Classification of capital gains and lessos.—The phrase "short-term" applies to gains and lossos from the sale or exchange of capital assets held for 18 months or less; the phrase "long-term" to capital assets held for more than 18 months.

held for 18 months or less; the phrase "jung-term" to capital assets held for more than 18 months.

Limitation on short-term capital losses.—Short-term capital losses shall be allowed only to the extent of short-term capital losses shall be allowed only to the extent of short-term capital gains. However, any net short-term capital loss (not in excess of the net income for the year involved) may be carried over in the succeeding year and applied against see in each year. The carry-ever is restricted to 1 year.

Alternative tax.—In the case of a net long-term capital gain or loss, an alternative tax is imposed upon net income. (See Computation of Alternative Tax. Shedule F.) In calculating the alternative tax in the case of a long-term capital loss, the hase (1) for computing the 15 percent limitation with respect to the deduction for charitable contributions is the "ordinary net income" as shown in lim 5. Capital gains of 30 capital gains and losses of husband and wife.—A husband and wife, eacher a joint or separate return is made, are separate taxpayers

Capital gains and losses of the standard and wife.—A husband and wife, Capital gains and losses of the standard and wife, Capital gains and losses are concerned. Hence, we spandard taxpayers insofar as abort-form capital gains and losses are concerned. Hence, such gains and losses of one spoutse may not be offers against the gains and losses of the other. In a joint return, such limitation does not apply to long-term capital gains and losses, but capital transactions of each must be shown in separate schedules.

"Wash sake" seem—less from as see outlet glosses, but capital transactions of seem of the seem—less from as see outlet glosses, but capital transactions of seem of the seem

11. OTHER INCOME.—Enter any other taxable income, including 11. O'NTRIBUTIONS PAID.—Enter any other taxable income, including taxable income from annuities and insurance proceeds, dividende on share accounts in Federal swips and one settled thereto. Announts of minor children with the same and the same accounts in Federal swips and one settled thereto. Announts of the same and the same and the same accounts to the cate of the same account of the same account of the same account of the same accounts and the amounts received and excluded from gross income counterform of the same accounts and account of the same accounts and account of the same accounts and the same acco

rentibutions or efficient and the second of

Page 2 taxes claimed as a credit in item 23. Federal social scentify and employment taxes paid by or for an employee are not deductible by the

niployee.
16. LOSSES.—Enter property losses (not claimed in Schedule D).

employee.

18. LOSSES.—Enter property losser (not claimed in Schedule D), from fire, storm, shipwreck, or other casualty, or from their, not compensated for by insurance or otherwise. Explain in Schedule or explaint in Schedule of the property of the storm of the s

22. CREDIT FOR PRISONAL EXECUTION AND DEPEND-ENTS.—A single person, or a married person not living with spouse, is allowed a personal exemption of \$300. A person who, during the entire taxable year, was the head of a family or was married and living with spouse, is allowed an exemption of \$2,000. On separate returns, the personal exemption may be taken by either humband or wite or divided between them.

A "head of a family" is one who supports in one household can or more dependent individuals closely connected with him by blood relationship, relationship by marriage, or plantage of the person of the execution of \$400 is allowed for each person (other than humband or wite) under 18 years of age, or incapable of self-support because men-tally or physically defective, whose chief support was received from the taxpayer.

wife) under 18 years of age, or measure of securoprocess that ye physically defective, whose of the mapper was received from the tarpayer.

the tarpayer was received from the temperature of temperature of the temperature o the "carried income deductions," which are the ordinary and necessary expenses properly chargoable against arnod income. In a joint return each spouse is allowed the same carned income credit allowable in separate returns. They must show separately the earned income, carned income deductions, carned net income, and net income of each

Doubs.

23. SURTAX.—The computation of the surtax, shown in the table below, is illustrated as follows: If your surtax net income (item 24) is 50,261.84, the surtax on 8,000 is \$200 and the curtax on the excess of \$1,261.84 is 8 percent of that amount, or \$100.05, making a total surtax of \$300.05 to be entered as item 26.

#### SURTAX RATES

income ount surtax		cent	murtax
B	A.	В	- 0
The 14.100   1   280   1   1   1   1   1   1   1   1   1	\$50,000 to \$70,000	47 SEE 55 65 65 77 17 75	\$21, 899 24, 840 25, 850 65, 780 65, 780 124, 780 124, 780 212, 780 447, 780 447, 780 1, 577, 780

22. INCOME TAX PAID AT SOURCE.—Cher 2 percent of interest on bonds on which Federal income tax was paid by debtor corporation. 23. FOREIGN TAX CREDIT—If end is claimed for taxon paid to a foreign country or possession of United States, submit Form 1110 and receipts for such paid to the state of the country or possession of United States, submit Form 1110 and receipts for such paid to the country or possession of United States, submit Form 1110 and receipts for such paid to the country of the coun

FORM 1040 A TREASURY DEPARTMENT EXTRACTAL EXTRACTS SERVICE (Auditor's Starry)	INDIVIDUAL	united states INCOME AND RETURN		ζ	194	40				
	FOR GROSS INCOM	IES OF NOT MORE T	HAN 45 OOO DEDIVE	, [ <u>-</u>	Do not write in these space					
	FROM SALARIES, W/	GES, DIVIDENDS, INTE	REST, AND ANNUITIES	' l	Seriat No.					
	(NOTE.—If you are engaged in a partnership, or had income	a profession or business (includ e or losses from the renting or a	ing farming), or are a member	of	Ansount Paid, S					
	To be aled with the Collecte	er of Internal Revenue for your distric	t on or before March 15, 1941	_	(Cashier's Stamp	p)				
	PIUNT NAME AND H	OME OR RESIDENTIAL ADDI	RESS PLAINLY BELOW	- 1						
!	(Name) (Use gir	ven names of both bushand and wife, if	this is a joint ceturn)	-						
		(Street and number, or rural route)		-						
<del></del>	(Fest office)	(County)	(State)	<u>"   </u>	Cash-Check-M.	. 0.				
4 ten		QUESTIONS								
			of income or deductions of be	th husb	and and wife inclu	ded in				
2. Check whether you are a ci	_		m?							
	prior year? If so, what nich Collector's office was it sent?		e of husband or wife if a separat							
7	acti Concettor a titulce was it Believe.		any, claimed thereon, and the C	ollector	s office to which it wa	as sent:				
item and instruction No.	INCOM mpensation for personal ser-	E		T	1	1				
					-	l				
					1	1				
A I-towest on Dank dep	osits, notes, mortgages, etc.			-	-					
. Interest on corporati	on bonds				-	İ				
	ling income from annuities,				=	]				
6. Total income in	items 1 to 5				\$					
7. Contributions paid.	(From Schodule C)		ss		1					
8. Interest paid. (Frem:	Schedule D)			-						
9. Taxes paid. (From Sch	edule E)				1					
	horized by law. (From Schedule									
	in items 7 to 10									
	COMPUTATION ninus item 11)	OF TAX	•		\$					
13. Less: Earned income	credit, either (a) or (b).	(See Instruction 13)	1	1						
(a) If item	12 is \$3,000 or less, enter 10	0% of such item	\$							
which	2 is more than \$3,000, ente ever is smaller, but not less	than \$300								
<ol><li>Personal exemp</li></ol>	otion. (From Schedule H-1)			.	!	1				
	ndents. (From Schedule H-2)									
	e taxable (item 12 minus ite:				\$					
	em 16)				\$					
	d at source on tax-free cover									
	to a foreign country or Uni									
	x (item 17 minus items 18 ar				\$	*****				
21. Defense tax (10% of										

NOTE.—In order that this return may be accepted as meeting the requirements of the internal Revenue Code, the data called for herein must be set forth FULLY and CLEARLY.

Total income and defense taxes due (item 20 plus item 21). (See Instruction E es to payment of tax)

<ol> <li>Name and Address of Employer. If a novernment indicate whether "Forters!," "State," or "Loca</li> </ol>	tal unit.	2	Amount	ļ	3. Espenses Paid (Itemi	ze)	4. Amount			
							-	ī		
		3					\$	1-		
								- -		
			1	- 1				L		
								T		
			<u>-</u>					: =		
Total of column 2 minus total o							\$	<u>. -</u>		
Schedula B.—OTHER INCO	ME (IN	CLUDING II	COME F	ROM ANN	JITIES, FIDUCIARIES, ET	C.). (See Instructi	on 5)			
1. From Whom Received and Nature of Incom	ne	2.	Amouz.t	1. Fr	om Whom Received and Nature of	Income (Continued)	2. Appount (Cont.	inu		
				ŀ			•	İ		
		\$				*********	\$	ŀ		
								١.		
Schedule C.—CONTRIBUTIONS PA	ID. (S	ico Instructio	10 7)		Schedule D.—INTERES	T PAID. (See In	truction C)	_		
1. Name and Address of Organization		2	Amount		1. To Whom Paid					
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				ii			2 Amount	T		
		\$					\$	1		
			- 1	H			l	1		
						************		1		
			<u>l</u>			••		+		
Schedule E.—TAKES PAID.	(See In	atruction 5)			Schedule F.—OTHER DE	DUCTIONS. (See	Instruction 10)	_		
1. Nature of Tax	1. Nature of Tax				1. Description		2. Amount	Ξ		
			1					ī		
		\$					\$			
								_!		
								T		
		dule G.—NO			E. (See Instruction 6)	***************************************		!		
					<del></del>	<del></del>		=		
1. Government Obligations or Securities	2.	Amount Owned End of Year	3	. Interest Rectived	4. Other Ezemp (State nat	it Income ure)	5. Amous Receives			
	-		-		·			ī		
	\$		\$			<del></del>	\$	[		
					<u> </u>			[		
Schedule H.—EXPLA	COLLTRA	OF CREDI	TS CLAS	MED IN IT	EMS 14 AND 15. (See Inst	ructions 14 and 15	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Ť		
(3) Personal Exempt				TI TI	(2) Credit fur			-		
	motor of Months					1 Number of Months	4	_		
	During	Credit Cla	imed	Nama	of Dependent and Relationship	During the Year	Credit Clair	<b></b>		
	Year in Each Status			1		Under 18 Over 18 Years Old Years Old	ا			
de, or married and not living	Status	i		1			1	٦		
rith husband or wife		S		1			. \$			
rried and living with husband							1	ł		
r wife		ļ		·			-]			
nd of family (explain below)							.	_		
or remain (column peros)				1						
				Bassan	for support	<u> </u>		==		
					er 18 years old					
								_		
					nstruction D)					
I/we swear (or affirm) that this	rcturn	has been	xamine	d by me/u	s, and, to the best of my	/our knowledge	and belief, is	a		
	annd.	faith, for th	ne taxah	le vear sta	ted, pursuant to the Int	ernal Kevenue C	ode and regu	la		
rect, and complete return, made ir	1 5000	7 1		, , , , , , , , , , , ,						
rect, and complete return, made in ed under authority thereof; and t	hat I/	we had no	income	from sour	ces other than stated he	ercon.				

S. S. GOVERNMENT PRINTING DEFICE

(Signature and title of officer administrating eath)

A RETURN MADE BY AN AGENT MUST BE ACCOMPANIED BY POWER
OF ATTORNET. (See funtration D)

15-10-

#### INSTRUCTIONS FOR FORM 1040A

STATISTICS OF INCOME FOR 1940-PART 1

## UNITED STATES INDIVIDUAL INCOME AND DEFENSE TAX RETURN

#### GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

#### (A) WHO MUST MAKE A RETURN

Every citizen and resident of the United States having during the taxable year gross income (income derived from any source whatever, unless exempt from tax by law) in an amount specified below, regardless of the amount of net income, shall make a return it: (1) Single, or married and not living with husband or wife for any

Single, or married and not living with husband or wife for any
part of the texable year. If having a gross income of \$800 or over.
 Married and living with husband or wife for the entire texable
year. If each has income and their combined gross income is
\$2,000 or over, they must each make a return or file a joint return.
 If only one has income and their commiss \$2,000 or over, only

that one is required to make a return,

that one is required to make a return.

(3) Married and living with hubband or wife for only part of the taxable year. If each has income and their combined gross income is \$2,000 or over, or equal to, or in excess of, their total personal exemptions (not including credit as head of a family or for dependents), they must each make a return or file a joint return. If only one has income and his gross income is \$2,000 or over, or equal to, or in excess of, his personal exemption (not including credit as head of a family or for dependents), only that one is required to make a return. (See Specific Instruction 14 as to personal exemption.) onal exemption.)

personal exemption.)

Joint return.—May be filed by husband and wife only if they are (1) both citizens or residents of the United States and (2) living together at the end of the taxable year. A joint return is permissible oven though one has no gross income.

missible even though one has no gross income. Returns of income of decedents.—If the gross income of a decedent to the date of his death was \$800 or over, if single, or married and not living with spouse for any part of the taxable year, or equal to, or in excess of, his credit for personal exemption (not including credit as head of a family or for dependents, if married and living wish spouse for all or any part of the taxable year, the executor or administrator shall make a return for him on Form 1040 or 1040A. The return for a decedent shall include all items of income and deductions accreted up to the date of each regardless of the fact that the decedent may have kept his books on a cash basis or kept no books. a cash basis or kept no books.

Returns for estates and trusts must be made on Form 1041.

#### (B) WHO MUST USE FORM 1040A

Form 1040A must be used by all individuals whose gross income is not more than \$5,000, whose income is derived from salaries, wages, foes, commissions, bonuses, or other compensation received from others for personal services, dividends, interest, taxable income from sanutides, income from fritudaries, and who make returns on the eash basis and for the calendar year.

NOTE—Perm 1000 and not Perm 1000 a most be more than the perm 1000 and not Perm 1000 and not Perm 1000 and not Perm 1000 and not Perm 1000 and not Perm 1000 and not Perm 1000 and not Perm 1000 and not Perm 1000 and not permit perm 1000 and not perm 1000 and not perm 1000 and not perm 1000 and not permit perm

#### (C) WHEN AND WHERE THE RETURN MUST BE FILED

The return must be sent to the collector of internal revenue for The return must be sent to the collector of internal revenue for the district in which the taxpayer has his legal residence, so as to reach the collector's office on or before March 15, 1941. In case the taxpayer has no legal residence in the United States, the return should be forwarded to the Collector of Internal Revenue,

#### (D) AFFIDAVIT

(D) AFFIDAVIT

The affidavit must be executed by the person whose income is reported or by his legal representative or agent. The return may be made by an agent (1) if, by reason of illness, the person liable for the making of the return is unable to make it, or (2) if the tarapayer is unable to make the return by reason of entitious absence from the United States for a period of at least 60 days prior to the date prescribed by law for making the return. Whenever a return is made by an agent it must be accompanied by a power of a triumy on From 383, or, in the case of husband or processing the control of the other, on Form 936 (copies of which may be obtained from any collector).

#### (E) WHEN AND TO WHOM THE TAX MUST BE PAID

The tax should be paid to the collector of internal revenue in full when the return is filed, or in four equal installments as follows: The first installment on or before March 15, 1941; the econd installment on or before June 15, 1941; the third installment on or before September 15, 1942; and the fourth installment on or before December 15, 1941; and the fourth installment on or before December 15, 1941.

If any installment is not paid on or before the date fixed for payment, the whole amount of tax unpaid shall be paid upon notice and demand by the collector.

MAKE CHECK OR MONEY ORDER PAYABLE TO COLLECTOR OF INTERNAL REVENUE."

#### (F) PENALTIES

The law imposes severe penalties for failing to make a return, or for making a false or fraudulent return. Penalties are also imposed for failing to file a return on time.

(G) ITEMS WHOLLY OR PARTIALLY EXEMPT FROM TAX.—All items of income received and claimed to be wholly or partially exempt should be explained in Schedulc G.

#### 1. Interest on governmental obligations:

(a) Entirely exempt,-The interest on (1) obligations of a State. Territory, or political subdivision thereof, or the District of Columbia, or United States possessions; (2) obligations issued under Federal Farm Loan Act, or under such Act as amended; under Federal Farm Loan Act, or under such Act as amended; (3) obligations of the United States issued on or before September 1, 1917; and (4) Treasury notes, Treasury bills, Treasury certifi-cates of indebtedness, postal savinge obligations, adjusted service bouts, and certain other obligations of the United States.

- (b) Partially exempt.—The interest on (1) United States savings bonds and Treasury bonds and (2) obligations of instrumentalities of the United States is exempt from the normal tax of 4 percent.
- 2. Proceeds of insurance policies.—The proceeds of life insurance policies, paid by reason of the death of the insured, are exempt. If any part of the proceeds is held by the insurer under an agreement to pay interest, the interest is taxable. Amounts received under a life insurance or endowment policy, not payable by reason of the death of the insured, are not taxable until the proceeding of the death of the insured, are not taxable until the proceeding of the death of the insured, are not taxable until the process. the aggregate of the amounts received exceeds the premiums or consideration paid for the policy. See Specific Instruction 5 as to taxation of annuities.
- Federal savings and loan associations.—Dividends on share accounts in Federal savings and loan associations are exempt from the normal tax of 4 percent,

#### 4. Miscellaneous items wholly exempt from tax;

- (a) Gifts (not received as a consideration for service rendered) and money and property acquired by bequest, devise, or inheritance (but the income derived from such property is taxable and must be reported);
- (b) Amounts received through accident or health insurance or under workmen's compensation acts, as compensation for personal injuries or sickness, plus the amount of any damages received, whether by suit or agreement, on account of such injuries or sick-
- (c) The rental value of a dwelling house and appurtenances thereof furnished to a minister of the gospel as part of his com-
- (d) Pensions and compensation received by veterans from the United States and pensions received from the United States by the family of a veteran for services rendered by the veteran in
- time of war; and
  (c) Anounts received as earned income from sources without
  the United States (except amounts unid by the United States or
  any agency thereof) by an individual citizen of the United States
  who is a bona fide nonresident for more than 0 months during the
  taxable year (no deduction may be taken for any amount properly
  allocable to or chargeable against amounts so excluded).

SPECIFIC INSTRUCTIONS

#### The following instructions are numbered to correspond with item numbers on the first page of return

#### INCOME

- 1. Salaries and other compensation for personal serviceather as item 1 the total income received from others consisting of salaries, wages, fees, commissions, bonuses, and other compensation for personal services, less ordinary and necessary expenses, as reported in Schedule A. Any amount claimed as a deduction for ordinary and necessary expenses against salaries, etc., such as traveling expenses while away from home in connection with your occupation, should be fully explained in Schedule A or in an attached statement. Traveling expenses ordinarily interest of the services of the compense of the services of the services of the services. If a joint return is made, enter as separate items in Schedule A the carmings of each success. 1 Salarian and other compensation for necessal services. cornings of each spouse.
- 2. Dividends.—Enter as item 2 the total of all taxable dividends received from domestic and foreign corporations. Enter in Schedule G all dividends received which are claimed to be
- 3. Interest on bank deposits, etc.—Enter as item 3 the total of all interest on bank deposits, notes, mortgages, etc. Interest on savings bank deposits is considered income to the depositor when credited, even though not entered on the pass book.
- 4. Interest on corporation bonds.—Enter as item 4 the total of all interest received on bonds, mortgages, and similar obligations of corporations. Include bond interest received upon which a 2 percent Federal income tax was paid at the source; such tax may be claimed as a crudit in item 18 of the return.
- 5. Other income.—Enter as item 5 other income reported in Schedule B. including amounts received as an annuity under an Schedule B, including amounts received as an annuity under an annuity or endowment contract to the extent of 3 percent of the aggregate premiums or consideration paid for such annuity. If the aggregate premiums or consideration paid for such annuity. If the aggregate of the annuous received and excluded from gross incommon received must be the translic year equals the aggregate premiums received must be included in gross income. Include also income from an estate or trust and earnings of minor children, if parent is legally entitled thereto.
- parent is regary entitied unergo.

  6. Total income.—Enter as item 6 the total amount of items
  1 to 5. Schedule G should be filled in if you received any non-taxable income or if you owned any of the obligations described in paragraph 1 ((a) and (b)) of General lastruction (G).

#### DEDUCTIONS

- 7. Contributions paid.—Enter as item 7 the contributions or gifts reported in Schedule C, payment of which was made within the year to or for the use of:
- (a) The United States, any State, Territory, or any political subdivision thereof, or the District of Columbia, or any possession of the United States, for exclusively public purposes;
- sion of the United States, for exclusively public purposes;
  (b) A corporation, trust, or community chest, fund, or foundation, created or organized in the United States or in any possession
  thereof or under the law of the United States or of any State or
  Territory or of any possession of the United States, organized and
  operated exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific, literary, or
  educational purposes, or for the prevention of crueity to children
  or animals, no part of the net carnings of which inures to the benefit of any private shareholder or individual, and no substantial part
  of the activities of which is carrying on propaganda, or otherwise
  attempting, to influence legislation;
  (c) The special fund for vocational rehabilitation sufforized
- (c) The special fund for vocational rehabilitation authorized by section 12 of the World War Veterans' Act, 1924;
- by section 12 of the World war veterans, acc, 1924, (d) Posts or organizations of war veterans, or auxiliary units or societies of any such posts or organizations, if such posts, organizations, units, or societies are organized in the United States-rany of its possessions, and if no part of their net earnings increato the benefit of any private shareholder or individual; or
- (c) A domestic fractoral society, order, or association, operating under the lodge system, but only if such contributions or gifts are to be used exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific, literary, or educational purposes, or for the prevention of cruelty to children or animals

The total amount claimed shall not exceed 15 percent of your not income computed without the benefit of this deduction.

not meome computed without the better to into accuracy.

8. Interest paid.—Enter as item 8 the amount reported in Schedule D as interest paid on personal indubtedness. Do not include interest on indebtedness incurred or continued to purchase or carry obligations (other than obligations of the United States issued after September 24, 1917, and originally subscribed for by the Laxpayer) the interest upon which is wholly exempt from # A ADVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE 16-10458

ond with item numbers on the first page of return

9. Targe paid.—Eater as item 9 the amounts reported in
Schedule E as taxes imposed upon and paid by you during the
part. Do not include sales taxes unless such taxes were directly
imposed upon you by law. Do not include taxes assessed against
local benefits of a kind tending to increase the value of the property assessed, nor Federal income taxes, nor estate, inheritance,
legacy, succession, or gift taxes, nor taxes imposed upon your
interest as a sharcholder of a corporation which are paid by the
corporation without reimbursement from you. Federal social
security and employment taxes paid by or for an employee are
not deductible by the employee. No deduction is allewable for
any portion of foreign income taxes if a credit is claimed in item 10.

271

any portion of foreign medine taxes it a credit's claimed in 10cm 19.

10. Other deductions.—Euter as item 10 the total amount itemized in Schedule F. In the case of less by fire, storm, ship-wreek, or other cusualty, or from theft, set forth in Schedule F a description of the property, date acquired, cost, subsequent improvements, depreciation allowable since acquisition, insurance and salvage value, and deductible loss. In the case of bad debts (other than securities) ascertained to be workhess and charged off within the taxable year, state in Schedule F, (a) of what the debts consisted, (b) name and family relationship, if any of the charged off within the taxable year, state in Schedule F, (a) of what the debte consisted, (b) name and family relationship, if any, of the debtor, (c) when the debts were created, (d) when they became due, (e) what efforts were made to collect, and (f) how they were actually determined to be worthless. Losses from worthlessness of recurities, including bonds and stocks, are considered as losses from the sale or exchange of securities. If you sustained such a loss, you should not make your return on Form 1940A but should use Form 1040 and report the loss in Schedule F of that form.

Losses from wagering transactions are allowable only to the extent of the gains during the year from such transactions.

No deduction is allowable for the amount of any item of expense or part thereof allocable to a class of exempt income other than

#### COMPUTATION OF TAX

- COMPUTATION OF TAX

  13. Earned income credit applicable to Form 1040A returns.—
  The carned income credit allowable to each spouse in a joint return is the same as is allowable to each spouse in separate returns; however, the carned income, carned income deductions, carned not income, and not income of each spouse must be shown separately in the joint return. For the purpose of determining the 10 percent limitation, there should be added to the not income shown as item 12 on page 1 the interest received by you, if any, on an aggregate in excess of \$5,000 principal amount of United States savings bonds and Trassury bonds, and the interest on obligations of instrumentalities of the United States (other than obligations is sized under the Federal Ferm Loan Act, or under such Act as amended), and dividends on share accounts in Federal savings and loan associations, reported in Schedule G.
- 14. 15. Personal exemption and credit for dependents .- A sin-13, 10. Personal exemption and retain to appearance. A single person, or a married person not living with husband or wife, is entitled to a personal exemption of \$800. A person who, during the entire year, was the head of a family or was married and living with husband or wife is entitled to an exemption of \$2,000. If husband and wife file separate returns, the personal exemption may be taken by either or divided between them.
- cemption may be taken by stand of third to be determined as A "head of a family" is an individual who actually supports and maintains in one bousehold one or more individuals who are closely connected with him by blood relationship, relationship by marriage, or by adoption, and whose right to exercise family control and provide for these dependent individuals is based upon some moral or legal obligation.
- In addition to the personal exemption, a credit of \$400 may be claimed for each person (other than husband or wife) under 18 years of age, or incapable of self-support because mentally or physically defective, who received his or her chief support from the taxpaver. This credit may be allowed only to the person who furnishes the chief support, and may not be divided between
- If the status of the taxpayer, insofar as it affects the personal If the status of the taxpayer, insofar as it affects the personial exemption or credit for dependents, changes during the taxable year, the personal exemption and credit shall be apportioned in accordance with the number of months before and after such change. For the purpose of such apportionment a fractional part of a month shall be disregarded unless it amounts to more than half a month, in which case it shall be considered as a month. For example, if a child became 18 years of age on June 18, 1840, the taxpayer will be allowed a credit of \$200 for such

FORM 1041 Treasury Department

UNITED STATES

STATISTICS OF INCOME FOR 1940-PART 1

1940

# FIDUCIARY INCOME AND DEFENSE TAX RETURN

	_	(EOR E	ESTATES AND TRUSTS)							
(Auditar's Steam)		(1011)	DIAILD AND INCOIS,			(Do Not Use These	ipeczı)			
•	i	For C	Calendar Year 1940			<del></del>				
				1941	File Code					
	,									
	Serial N	10								
	١., .	(PHINT N	District							
	Name of Estate or Tra	unt	(Cashier's Stamp)							
					i					
	1	1			ŀ					
	Name and	l			Cash	Check .	M. O.			
	Address of Fiduciary				<u> </u>	FIRST PAYME				
	PAUCIALY				١,					
ltem and		\			1 9					
Item and Instruction No. 1. Dividends	INC	COME			i		l			
				ş		<u> </u>	. ]			
			except interest to be reported in item 3).			-	]			
			ral income tax was paid at source				- 1			
4. Interest on Government oblig						<del></del>	- 1			
			etc., and income from other fiduciaries		- 1	i	1			
6. Rents and royalties (from Sche							l i			
7. (a) Net short-term gain from										
(b) Net long-term gain (or lo										
(c) Net gain (or loss) from sa										
8. Net profit (or loss) from trad	•									
9. Other income (state nature of i							į			
	•		ne in Schedules B and H)		·]					
		CTIONS								
II. Interest (explain in Schedule C)_				e	- 1	j	{			
12. Taxes (explain in Schedule G)				*		_	- 1			
			)							
			7				i			
						\$				
16. Less amount distributable to	beneficiaries (	from Schedule	A, columns Z, 7b, 6b, and 9)							
17. Net income (taxable to	o fiduciary) (it	em 15 minu	s item 16)			S				
			PUTATION OF TAX				· ·			
18. Net income (item 17 above)			26 T-41:	, ,		. 1				
19. Less: Personal exemption (S	ice In-		26. Total income tax (item 25, or if ye capital gain or loss; enter line 14							
struction 19)			27. Less: Fiduciary's share of income			<del>                                      </del>	ĺ			
21. Less: Interest on Governmen	t obli-		28. Fiduciary's share of income	tay noid	Ş	- <del>  </del>	1			
gations (Schedule B. line			toaforeign country or Unite	dStates			- 1			
etc. (See Instruction 21) 22. Balance subject to normal ta:			possession (Attach Form I	116)		<u> </u>				
23. Normal tax (4% of item 22).	\$		29. Balance of income tax (item 26 min	ius items 2	7 and 28	\$				
24. Surtax on item 20 (See Instr	uction		30. Defense tax (10% of item 26) (See	e Instructi	ion 30)					
24) 25. Total (item 23 plus item 24)			31. Total income and defense taxes due							
27. 1 com (100m 25 prus 100m 24)			socal nicome and desense taxes due	(item 29	pius iten	1 201				

10 - CLEARLY AND COMMING OF PARTIES IN CREATING THE COMMING OF CHARGE IN COMMING OF THE PARTIES OF THE CAMBRIDGE OF THE COMMING OF THE COMMIN

Page 2
Schedule A.—BENEFICIARIES' SHARES OF INCOME AND CREDITS. (include as beneficiaries persons to whom amounts were paid
on tot saids for religious charitable, etc., purposes). (See Instructions 4 and 16)

	or se	L aside for re	ligiou	s, char	itable,	otc.,	purp	ones)	(500	0 100	ruction	5 4 AT	10 10	<u>'</u>				
	Name and add     (designate as	ress of each benefician operaidant aliens)	y				Taxable interest of pations as accounts and lean	an Gove ad divid of Fer	rends or teral	sive of a obli- n share savings	3. Fedres source seinus i	1 interm (2% of tem 2/, p	e tax p item ), p icgo I)	aid at page 1.	4. Iz	come and profits to a foreign country e ates possession	ace paid P United	
(a)						s					\$				\$			
(b)																		
(c)						_									ļ			
(d)											<u> </u>							
(e)						_								ļ				
( <u>)</u>											ļ			ļ			.1	
(4)										ļ	l <u></u>				يسيرإ		عدد اد	
Total of beneficiaries' shares											\$				\$			
	CONTINUA	TION OF SCI	IEDU	LE A	-BENE	FICE	ARIES	' SH	ARE	S OF	INCO	ME A	ND C	RED	TS			
-	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			<u> </u>							ixlly tax-ra							
5. Use letter correspond- ing to above to identify LeneScieny	5. Use letter corresponding to above to identify sum of lines (a), (b), (c), and (d) of Schedule II)				l States S ls (shares e lule (3)	Savings of line (	ngs Bonds and Treatury ne (2), columns 2 and 3e,			a. Ohli Uni	estions of c red States ( 3a, Selie iu	ertain in hares of le (3)	line (f	talities : ), colur	d the ins 2	9. Dividends on counts of Feder	al anning	
	a. Principal	h, Inter	est	•	Principal		6. Interest			s, Principal				. Inture	ıL	and josn association		
	s	\$	Ī	\$		J	\$			\$			\$			\$		
			1										ļ					
												.					.	
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,			.			.						.					-	
******************			.					-				.]						
	]	<u></u>	<u>.\</u>				<u> </u>					<u></u> .						
Totals	\$	S	.	\$		.	\$			\$			\$	ja (1+n, 1		\$		
	California I	B.—INTERE	STO	N CO	FRNV	EN'S		CAT		S. E3	C. (3e	o ins						
	J.,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,				anjarana		<del></del>						14.7	i beige	's share	of 5. Fickeristy's	slave of	
	1. Obligations or was	glišes			of Aort	d at enc					n.ed during		i	Taral	inpt tro	eccus of exe	notion	
						ĺ	a. D	eneficiar	des ess	arms	h, Fiductor	s's share	-			1		
(a) Obligations of	a State, Territ ereof, or the L	tory, or politic District of Coli	al sub umbia	]			1		-	į			1				1	
or United S	tates possession	OS					\$	•	-	Þ.			Al	II			x   x x	
(b) Obligations is	sucd under the	rederal Faru	Loai	١.			İ						A	ı			x   x x	
Act, or und (c) Obligations of	the United St	ates issued on	or be	-		-	1						1	,			1	
fore Septem	iber 1, 1917	Pille and Te											A	11	******	::xxxxx	x X X	
fore Septem (d) Treasury No Certificates	of Indebtedn	CS5											A	11		XXXXXX	x   % >	
				L.		1			-	Ì		1						
(e) United States (f) Obligations	Savings Bonds of instrumenta	lities of the	Unite	a		7			1				;; 	- ••••				
States (other	er than obligati	ons to be repo	rted o	n		1	1			- 1			1	ione			1	
line (b) abo	veJ			)		;											-	
(g) Total (	Include in item															\$		
,	Scl	hedule Ć.—li	COM	E FRO	M REI	NTS A	AND I	ROYA	LTI	ES.	(See In	struct	ion 6	)				
1.	Kind of property		2.	America	,	Departing	ristian (s chedulo D	iphin )	•	. Repair	(caplain low)	5. 4	White es	pennes ( cless)	ermire	6. Net prost (r stren it, pag	oler se	
		s			\$				\$			\\$				s		
								ļ	ļ					<b></b>	ļ			
								ļ									[	
									ļ				•			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	-	
									<u> </u>		<u> </u>	<u>.  </u>	,		l	1	<u>'</u>	
2 1 (1																		

), Kind of property (if buildings, state material of w countracted)	hich 2 D	ete se-	3. Cost or oth (do not inclus or other conde property	preciali		4. As deprecia at one	ets fully ited in us I of year	•	3.	Depreis allowed (c Borreble) prior year	ios r ip	4	6. Remai r other be recov	sis to be	use	Esti- ed life ed in nulst- lepro- tion	mate remain life for beginn of yo		9. Deprecis ellowable i year	tion this
			\$						·			. \$								
											ļ	.								
												.]			ļ					ļ
				<u>-l</u>	-		<u></u>	••••				.]			<u> </u>					ļ
Schedule E	GAII	IS A	ND LOSSE	S FR	OM	SAL	ES O	RE	хсн	ANGE	S OF	CA	PITA	L ASSE	TS.	(See	Instr	uctio	n 7)	
I. Kind of preperty (if premary, attach, state- ment of descriptive	2.Date see	uired	3. Date sold		Croca	me nike				6. Exp	ense of est of i	sale im-	7. D	eprodution of (or allow- ince sequis	6.	6. Gain or loss		Gai	iain or loss to be take into account	
ment of descriptive details not chown below)	Ma. Gay	Year 1	Ma, Day Year	pric	laice)	l) Act	oth	Cost or iss	er sis	prove scarco tion o	to sc. Marc 1913	hisi-		ince sequia or March I, (explain in redule D)	-	omen 4 pla 7 minus n of colu	the unne 5	2. Per-	10. Ame	est.
	SH	ORT-T	ERM CAPIT	AL GA	nys	AND	LOSSES	_	SSET						ONTH			*57	<u>!</u>	
		1		•						1.	1	1110	i.	A14 10 11	1.		T	1	I.	i
	*******			·	•		3			3			å		\$	•••••	-	100	3	
									1			•						100		
															-			100		
Total net short-term o	apital gai	or ins	a (enter in lin	e 1, co	lumn	3, of 1	ummar	v bei	low)					*****						<del> </del>
LONG-TERM C										IAN 18	MON	THS	BUT I	OT FOR	MOR	E TH	IN 24 7	THON	HS	(
		T		٠					1					$\overline{}$	7.		1			Γ
		-		····	••		*			٠			ž		3			662/3	3	
								••••							-			663/3		
															-			662/3		
ı	ONG-TE	M CA	PITAL GAIN	S ANI	) LO	SSFS-	-ASSE	rs i	HELD	FOR M	ORE '	THAT	N ZA M	ONTHS				0075		
			T.					-			T			1	l.		1	50		
							*			*					-			50		
							*******											50		
																		50		
Total net long-term ea	pital gain	or loss (	enter in line	2, colur	nn 3,	of aun	ımary b	clow	)										\$	
			SUN	<b>I</b> MAI	RY	OF C	APIT.	AL	NET	GAIN	s or	R L	OSSES	3						
1. Clauificat	-		2. Net she capital for reding tax (not in exc income for	ort term as of pre- able yes too of p		3. Net	gain or k	ser to	be take no 10, al	n into	4.	Nei g	trust	u to be take raleps and lunds	n into	n 5	. Total s	et cain et in cel this se	or loss to be to seems 2, 3, and constry	ten 4 si
Total net abort-term ca	nital main	or los		T	- -	Cı	in	T	ما	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,		Gei	a	j L			Gain		Los	
(enter as item 7 (a) of gain shown in colur	page I.	emoun	ī.		١.			1.					T		1			Τ,	No net k aliswable Instruction	See
Total net long-term capi	tal gain o	r loss i	(enter as iten	n 7 (b)				1			*			3				╁	Instructio	7)
page I, amount of pain o							!	_!\$		<del></del>	3			15		!3			<u> \$</u>	2/22
its the family, fiducian														n:						
any of the above items	were ac	uirec	by you oth																	
Use on	y (1) If (2) If	you i you i	had a net l	long-	tern	n cap	ital ge	iin,	and	RNAT item 2 such i	0, pa	go 1	l, excu	eds \$22, 20, page	000 1, ex	ceed	\$22,0	00		
Vet income (item 17, page	D			١,	-		1	Ī	£ N	most s	140	of 1:-	71							
e) Net long-term capital (		7 (6), a	aze ()	)-						rmal ta: rtax on l				on 24)				•		
<li>b) Net long-term capital l</li>	oss (item ?	(6), pa	ige 1)							rtial tax								\$		
Ordinary net income (line	l minus l	ine 2 (a	) or line I pl	lus			1	l						tal gain (						··
line 2(b))	item 10 -			3.	•				12. Al	ernative	tax (i	ine li	J plus li	ital loss ( ne II (a) c	30% of Fline	line 2 10 min	(b))		·····	
Salance (aurtax net income		.gc 1)_						-		11 (6))								š		-
Less: Interest on Govern		vations	(Schedule 1	в. [				(i	13. To	tal norm	al tax	anda	iurtan (i	tem 25, pa	ge [)		7/-1	Ş		

STATISTICS OF INCOME FOR 1940-PART 1

1. Kind of property		2. Date acquired	3. Gross sales (contract pri	taice	4. Cont or at)	ez 1 ali	pense of sale of reprovements nt to acquisit March 1, 19	mahaa-	n Descrictation allowable) sinc or Murch (Explain in S	nationed (or recruisition 1, 1913 ichedule D)	7. Gain or loss plus column to sum of column	(colum minu) to 4 An
			\$			\$			\$		\$	
	<i>:</i>			-				.	<u> </u>			
Total net gain (or los												
ate the family, fidue	iary, or business	relationship t	o you, if any	, of pu	rchaser of a	my of the	above ites	ns:				
any of the above ite												
Schedule G.	—EXPLANATI	ON OF DEDU	CTIONS C	LAIME			2, and 13	. (S	oo Instruc	tions 11,	12, and 13	)
1. Item No.	2. Explanatio	ь	3. Anus	ent	I. Sten I Continue	d)	2.0	نسمطود	ion (centinued)		3. Am (contin	ount ued)
					1						-	_
			<b>}</b>		1							
			ļ		1						··	
			j		1							
				-	1							
					1							
Schedule H	NONTAXAB	LE INCOME	OTHER TH	AN IN	TEREST I	REPORT	ED IN S	HED	ULE B.	(See Inst	ruction 10	)
	I, Source of its			<del></del>		2.5	ature of incom				3. Amous	
										\$		
								·				
<del></del>												
Was a return of in	scome filed for t	he meeting			STIONS		to or true		any timo e	dueine th	o tavable s	
	or's office was it										n conpunat	
n	st was created.										n 501 of the	
	trust instrume		ent require	d unde	[] R	evenue C	ode? (A	nswe	r "Yes" or	''No'') _		f ar
If copy of will or							ìtach sch	edulc	as required			
If copy of will or Instruction I h	ave been previ	ously furnishe	ed, state wh									
If copy of will or Instruction I h where filed	ave been previ	ously furnishe	ed, state wh		. 6. If re		or a trust,				of grantor	
If copy of will or Instruction I h where filed	ave been previ	ously furnishe	ed, state wh		. 6. If re		or a trust					
If copy of will or Instruction I has where filedCheck whether th	ave been previ	ously furnished	cash [] or	accrua AVI	6. If ro	turn is fo	F)	state	name and	l address	of grantor .	
If copy of will or Instruction I h where filed	n) that this return, is a true, corre	repared on the	cash or	AVI	6. If ro	turn is for	F) nents) has	state	e name and	by me. ar	of grantor .	st o
If copy of will or Instruction I In where filed	is return was properties of the corrections issued there awarn to before	repared on the repared on the rn (including sect, and comple cunder.	AFFID	AVI'	f (See Inschedules as good faith	struction and staten	F) nents) has	state	e name and	by me. ar	of grantor .	st o
If copy of will or Instruction I In where filed	n) that this return, is a true, corre	repared on the repared on the rn (including sect, and comple cunder.	AFFID	AVI nying a	f (See Inschedules as good faith	struction and staten	F) nents) has	state	e name and	by me. ar	of grantor .	st o
If copy of will or Instruction I is where filed	n) that this return, is a true, corre- tions issued ther sworm to before day of	ously furnished the pared on the repared on the rect, and completender.	AFFID	AVI nying a	6. If re	struction and staten	F) nents) has	state	examined ated, pursu	by me, ar	of grantor	st o
If copy of will or Instruction I h where filed	n) that this return was properties is return was properties. It is a true, corrections issued there awarn to before day of	ously furnished repared on the repared on the reference of the repared on the rest, and compleunder.	AFFID	AVI' nying anade in	6. If re	struction and staten a for the	F) nents) has taxable y	been been car st	examined ated, pursu	by me, ar uant to the	of grantor	st o
If copy of will or Instruction I in where filled	n) that this return was properties is return was properties is a true, corn close issued there were no before day of	repared on the repared on the reference on the rest, and comple cunder, me this	AFID  or you by so AFFID	AVI nying anade in	C (See Insuchedules au good faith	struction and staten for the	F) nents) has taxable y owing af	been car st	examined ated, pursuance of following (Address it must be	by me, ar	of grantor	st o Rev
If copy of will or Instruction I have the first in where filed in where filed in the first in th	no been previous return was properties is a true, correctors issued there were the day of	repared on the repared on the repared on the repared on the ren (including a cet, and complete, and complete state) as prepared for prepared this and complete state of the repared this and the repar	cash or cash o	AVI nying a nade in	f (See Inschedules as good faith  194	struction and staten for the felt struction rein and	P) ents) has taxable y owing at F) that the r	been ar st	examined atcd, pursu (Adress to must be (including	by me, are and to the control of federate of executed any accounter	of grantor	st o
If copy of will or Instruction I h where filed	n) that this return was properties a true, corrections issued there awarn to before day of	repared on the repared on the rect, and compleunder. The this recting with as prepared for prepared this re any knowles are any knowles at the any knowles at the any knowles.	cash or cash o	AVI nying a nade in	f (See Inschedules as good faith  194	struction and staten for the felt struction rein and	P) ents) has taxable y owing at F) that the r	been ar st	examined ated, pursu (Address it must be (including dity of the	by me, are continuous of federicary or educate or executed any accomperson for	of grantor and to the best internal arrangement of the second of the sec	st o Rev
If copy of will or Instruction I h where filed	n) that this return was properties a true, corrections issued there awarn to before day of	ously furnishe repared on the rn (including etcl., and comple etcl., and comple euclider in this same of the prepared for prepared this a d complete st ce any knowle me this	ecash or cash or AFFID and acteretum, respectively a compact of the compact of th	AVI nying a nade in me of the AVI c person all the i	F (See Installation 194	truction and statem for the	P) ents) has taxable y owing at F) that the r	been ar st	examined ated, pursu (Address to must be (including dity of the	by me, are continuous of federicary or educate or executed any accomperson for	of grantor	st o Rev

1940

#### INSTRUCTIONS FOR FORM 1041 UNITED STATES FIDUCIARY INCOME AND DEFENSE TAX RETURN

Page 1 1940

Taxpayers will find it helpful to read General Instructions A to N before commencing to fill in their returns, and to read Specific Instructions in connection with filling in the items to which they refer. (References are to the Internal Revenue Code, unless otherwise noted.)

As a second of over tegenous or the forms of the meaner, or (c) as a second of over the second listence on Norm 1040 and Form 1040A. (f) An B. Fiduciary returns on Porm 1040 and Form 1040A. (f) An accustor or administrator must make a return, on Form 1040 or Form 1040A, if the gross income of a decedent to the date of his death was \$500 or more; if the decedient was single, or married and not living with sponse for any part of the taxable year, or equal to the second of the credit for personal examption (not including credit as head one of this credit for personal examption (not including credit as the of the control of the second of the control of the control of the second of the credit of the second of the control of the second of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the income of an estate or trust, any beneficiary of which is not of the income of an estate or trust, any beneficiary of which is not of the income of an estate or trust, any beneficiary of which is not of the income of an estate or trust, any beneficiary of which is the harden of the income of an estate or trust, any beneficiary of which is the control of the income of an estate or trust, any beneficiary of which is the control of the income of an estate of trust, any beneficiary of which is the control of the income of an estate of trust, any beneficiary of which is the control of the income of an estate of trust, any beneficiary of which is not place of bankness therein at any time within the income of an estate of trust with a few control of the nonresident files and play any tax shown thereon to to due. The such as a control of the nonresident files and the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control

the fluids among the control of the rate shall be former.

D. Period to be covered by retorn.—Returns shall be filed for the selection of the rate shall be former.

D. Period to be covered by retorn.—Returns shall be filed for the selection of the retorn

A. Who must use Form 1041.—Every fidurinty, or at least one of joint fiduribative (except a revoicer appointed by authority of law in Dissession of part only of the property of an individual), must make under outh ro income tax return on Form 1041 for:

(1) Every detat for which he nests, if (a) the gross income of such extract for the faxable year is \$500 or over, or (b) any beneficiary is a nonresident atien.

(2) Every trust for which he nests, if (a) the not income for such trust for the taxable year is \$500 or over, or (b) the gross income for trust for the taxable year is \$100 or over, or (b) the gross income for such trust for the taxable year is \$100 or over, or (b) the gross income of the taxable year is \$100 or over, or (b) the gross income of the taxable year is \$100 or over, or (b) the gross income of the taxable year is \$100 or over, or (b) the gross income of the trust of the taxable year is \$100 or over, or (b) the gross income of the trust of the taxable year is \$100 or over, or (b) the gross income of the trust of the taxable year is \$100 or over, or (b) the gross income of the trust of the taxable year is \$100 or over, or (b) the gross income of the trust of the taxable year is \$100 or over, or (b) the gross income of the trust of the taxable year is \$100 or over, or (b) the gross income of the trust of t receive under a not available, in return should be seven to before a resson authorized to administer onthe for general purposes to the law of the United States or of any State, Territory, or passession of the United States, or of the District of Columbia, wherein such author affirmation is administered, except an atterney or agone employed to represent the taxpayer before the Department in commention with his

tax liability.

G. When and to when the tax must be paid.—The tax much be paid, in full when the return is fitted, or in four equal installments, as followed on or before the 15th day of the third month, on or before the 15th day of the wisth month, on or before the 15th day of the wisth month, on or before the 15th day of the wisth month, on all one before the 15th day of the wisth month, from the close of the taxable year. If any installment is not paid on or before the data breed for payment, the whole amount of tax unputs dault be paid to the payment, the whole amount of tax unputs dault be paid to the payment, the whole amount of tax unputs dault be paid on or before the taxable year.

The tax into be paid by wereing reflected or for the return to whome? Do not send east by mail, nor pay it in person except at the collector's office.

office.

II. Penuldies.—For follow to make and file return on time.—Five percent to 25 percent of the amount of the lax, unless such failure is due to reasonable cause, and, in addition, where failure is wiffed, a fine of not more than \$10,000 or imprisonment for not more than one year, or both, together with the costs of presention.

For willfully attempting to create or defeat perment of the lax.—Not more than \$10,000 or imprisonment for not more than \$10,000 or imprisonment for not more than \$10,000 or imprisonment for not more than \$10,000 or imprisonment for not more than \$10,000 or imprisonment for not more than \$10,000 or imprisonment for not more than \$10,000 or imprisonment for inclusive percent of the name of the deficiency if due to needlepore or intentional discrepant of rules and regulations without intent to defraud, or 50 percent of the amount of the deficiency if due to fraid.

of the deficiency if due to needigenee or intentional disregard of rules and regulations without intent to defauld, or 50 percent of the amount of the deliciency if due to fraud.

If Copy of will ar trust instrument—A copy of the will or trust. If Copy of will are trust instrument—A copy of the will or trust as the control of the cont

this numeriment was made.

J. Received or necrond income.—If this books of account of the estate or trust are kept on the accrual basis, report all income accrued, even though it has not been entually received or entered on the books, and expenses incurred instead of expenses paid. As to disallowance of deductions for unpaid expenses and interest due to certain persons, see Spécific Instruction 11. If the books are not kept on the accrual basis, or if no books are kept, made the return on the each basis and report all income received or constructively received, such as lank interest construction of the settle of return at and compon bond interest construction of the settle or trust and compon bond interest construction.

matured, and report expenses actually paid.

K. Rems exempt from tax.—Explain items claimed to be exempt in Schedule II, except interest to be reported in Schedule B. 1. Interest on governmental obligations:

1. Interest on governmental obligations: (a) Entirely exempt.—The interest on (1) obligations of a State, Territory, or political autofivision thereof, or the District of Columbia, or United States possessions; (2) obligations issued under Federal to the Columbia of the Columbia of the Columbia of the United States, and the Columbia of the United States of the Columbia of the Columbia of the United States of the Columbia of the Columbia of the United States of the Columbia of the Columbia of the savings obligations, adjusted service bonds, and certain other obliga-tions of the United States.

tions of the United States.

(b) Partially ezempt.—The interest on (1) United States savings bonds and Treasury bonds owned in excess of \$5,000 and (2) obligations of instrumentalities of the United States is subject only to

Page 2

2. Proceeds of insurance policies.—The proceeds of life insurance policies, until by reason of the death of the insured, are exempt. It among that the proceeds is held by the insured may nart of the proceeds is held by the insured under an agreement to any interest, the interest is examine. Amounts received under a life starter, wages, interest, rents, commissions, or other lived or determined. may interest, the interest is taxable. Amounts received inter a life insurance or endowment policy, not payable by reason of the death of the insured, are not taxable until the aggregate of the amounts received acceeds the premiums or consideration paid for the policy.

3. Federal savings and loan associations.—Dividents on sharm accounts in Federal savings and loan associations. The policy of the policy

2. Proceeds of insurance policies.—The proceeds of the insurance volicies, paid by reason of the death of the insured, are exampled to the proceeds is held by the insured, are exampled to the proceeds in the death of the insured, are exampled to any interest, the interest is taxable. Amounts received under a life may interest, the interest is taxable. Amounts received under a life may interest, the interest is taxable. Amounts received under a life may interest, the interest is taxable. Amounts received under a life may be a consideration or consideration paid for the policy, and the interest of the amounts of the death of the insured, are not taxable until the aggregate of the amounts of the insured and none associations—and the proceeds in the property of the consideration and explicit on a consideration paid for the policy, and the insurance or under the constant of the property and the magnet of the constant of the property and the property was purchased to be received as a consideration for personal injuries or sickness.

I. Treatment of depreciation and depletion—A reasonable allowance for the eximustion, wear and tax, and obsolescence of property and in the major of the property and the probable of the property was purchased to be received to a feet of the property was purchased to be received to a feet the property was purchased to a feet the property was purchased to the company) or a personal holding company, as defined in section is explained by the property was purchased to the property was purchased to the property and the probable of the property was purchased to the property was purchased to the property and the probable of the property was purchased to the property was processed to the property was purchased to the property was because of the property was purchased to the property was because of the property was purchased to the property was because of the property was purchased to the property was because of the property was purchased to the property was because of the property was purchased to 3. Fearnt sowings and toon associations.—Dividents on stars accounts in Federal savings and toon associations are subject only to 4. Miscellament items wholly exemptifyon (nz: 4. Miscellament items wholly exemptifyon (nz: 4. Miscellament) and mency and property acquired by bequest, devise, or inheritance (but lie income derived thereion is translely; health insurance or under or schemes, plus the amount of any damages received, whether by suit or agreement, on account of much injuries or sickness, plus the memoral of my damages received, whether by suit or agreement, on account of much injuries or sickness.

L. Treatment of depreciation and depletion.—A reasonable allowance for the extansion, wear and ear, and obsolescence of properly seal in the trade or business may be detucted. All defunctions to its claimed, explain why the useful file is less than the actual life. The amount of depreciation on property acquired by purchase should be determined upon the basis of the original cost (not replacement only of the property and the probable number of years remaining of its expected useful life, except if the property was purchased of such property as of that date or its original that in market while of such property as of that date or its original that in market while calculated and the property as a count of that of the property is greater. If the property as a count of that of the property are acquired in any other namer than by purchases, so excellent 14.

See sections 23(m) and 114 and Regulations 103 with respect to

SPECIFIC INSTRUCTIONS

include in item 9 dividends on share accounts in Federal savings and loan associations.

2. Interest on bank deposits, notes, corporation bonds, etc.—Interest composs falling due within-the classable year will be emisdated as income for such year where the books are kept on a cash 'mass. If the books are knot on an accrual basis, report the neutral amounts of interest accruad on the obligations owned during the taxable year. Where obligations are purchased between interest dates and the parablese price includes accruat interest, such part of the purchase claimed as a deduction of the contract of the obligations of the obligations of the obligations are produced to the post of the obligations obligations of the obligations of the obligations obligations obligations obligations obligations obligations obligations obligat

the obligations but abouth the treated as an offset against the interest received or accuract at a later date.

4. Tarable interest on Governanat obligations, etc.—If the catalo or trust owns may of the obligations or securities enhanced in lines (a) to (f), inclusive, cotumn 1, Schodulu B, enter in cotumn 2 the zamount covered at the end of the year on such obligations or securities. Interest on an agreement of the control of the properties. Interest on an agreement amount of the obligations described in line (a) is exempt true surface amount of the obligations described in line (a) is exempt true surface about the control of t

stated for the benefit of imborn or unascertained persons, the treat, as owner or like bomble held in treat, is entitled to the exemption on appropriate properties of the properties of the large of the properties of the large of the properties of the large of the properties of the

The following instructions are numbered to correspond with item numbers on the first page of the return The following instructions are numbered to correspond with item numbers on the first page of the return.

1. Dividends,—Enter as item 1 the total of all taxicish dividends received from domestic and foreign corporations. Enter in Schedule II and not consider received which are chained to be nontaxable, and include in item 9 dividends on share accounts in Federal savings and include in item 9 dividends on share accounts in Federal savings and leaded in the particular of the pa

If the taxable your on the basis of which the estate's or trust's return If the taxable year on the mass of which the examte a or trust a resurral is filled does not coincide, with the annual accounting period of the partnership or other fulnciary, include in the return the distributive share of the statue or trust of the net predict for such accounting period of the partnership or other fulnciary conting within your taxable year.

6. Reads and royalties—Pill in Schedule C giving the information

If the estate or trust received property or crops in lieu of each roats, neget the income as though the roat tack been received in each. Crops received as rent on crop-stare basis should be reported as income for the year in which disposal of (unless the return is or the accusal basis).

T. Gains and losses from sales or exchanges of capital assets and other property—lioport sales or exchanges of capital assets in Rehed-ule E and sakes or exchanges of other property in Schedulte F, and sakes or exchanges of other property in Schedulte F, and and enter the not amount of gain or loss to be taken into account in com-puting net income as item?

the the file afforms or pain or nose to be taken into necessars in compatible, sets income as from 7.

The term 'emplification' or private and the property of the term 'emplification' or private and the property of the term of the ter the dapayer in the artifle or business at the time of the sells of ex-change. It has no application to gains or lesses arising from the salo of real property used to the trade or business to the extent that such gain or less is allocable to the land, as distinguished from depreciable improvements upon the land.

improvements upon the land.

Description of property.—Every sale or exchange of property, even though no gain or toos may be indicated, must be reported in detail.

Enter full description of each item of property sold or exchanged. Such description should include the following facts: (a) For real estate, toeaton, and description of land, description of improvements, doubline exchanting depreciation (edium 7, Schechite E; column 6, Schechile F); (b) for loads or other evidences of individences, among of issuing corresponding to the exception of the particular basis, denomination, and amount; and exception of the particular basis, denomination, and amount; of the exception of the particular basis, denomination, and amount; of the exception of the particular basis, denomination and evidence, others are desired to the content of the evidence of the exception of the

Basis.—If the property was acquired before March 1, 1913, the masts for the property is not subject to the same rule for reporting is the cast of the property is not subject to the same rule for reporting is the cast of the first of the property of the cast of the first of the cast of the first of the cast of the first of the cast of the first of the cast of the first of the cast of the first of the cast of the first of the cast of the cast of the first of the cast of t

section 113 provides the basis that shall be used. If the amount shown as the basis is other than actual cash cost of the property sold or exchanged, full details must be furnished regarding the acquisition of the column of the property sold or exchanged, full details must be furnished regarding the acquisition. But no column 7, which the property was explicitly the property which the best and lowed (but not loss than the amount allowable) in respect of such property since date of acquisition, or since February 28, 1918, if the property was acquired on or before that date. In addition, if the property was acquired before the property was acquired before the column of the property was acquired before the column of the property was acquired before the property of the property was acquired before the property was acquired before the property of the property was acquired before the property of the property was acquired before the property of property of the property of the property of the property of the property of property of the property of property of the property of property of property of property of the property of property of the property of property of the property of property of property of the property of property of property of the property of proper

or exchange, on the last day of such taxable year, of capital assets.

the loss resulting therefrom shall be considered as a loss from the sale or exchange, on the last day of such taxable year, of cupital assets. (Bos section 23(g/2).)

Classification of cepital gains and lostes,—Section 117(a)(2) to (9), inclusive, defines "short-term capital gain," "short-term capital loss," "one term capital gain," "short-term capital loss," "and long-term capital gain," he short-term capital gain, "he short-term capital gain, "he short-term capital loss," "and long-term capital gain, "he short-term capital loss," "and long-term capital gain, "he short-term capital loss," "and long-term capital pain, "he category of gains and losses arising round the category of gains and losses arising from the sale or exchange of capital assets held for nore than 18 months. Gains and losses from the sale or exchange of agains and losses arising from the sale or exchange of agains and losses arising from the sale or exchange of agains and losses arising from the sale or exchange of agains and losses arising from the sale or exchange of agains and losses arising from the sale or exchange of agains and losses arising from the sale or exchange of agains and losses arising from the sale or exchange of agains and losses arising from the sale or exchange of agains and losses arising from the sale or exchange of a sale pains and losses arising from the sale or exchange of as a capital asset held for more than 18 months;

\*\*Precent gain and the sale of exchange of a capital asset shall be taken into account in computing net income:

100 percent if the capital asset has been held for nore than 18 months;

18 months; 66% percent if the capital asset has been held for more than 18 months and not more than 21 months; 50 percent if the capital asset has been held for more from 21 months.

56 persont if the capital asset has been held for more time 21
Limitation on distriction reginal lower,—Section 117(1) provides a limitation of distriction for short-term capital lowers, that is, loses from sake or exchanges of expital assets held for 18 months or less. However, subsection (e) provides that a not short-term capital less may be carried over in an amount not in excess of the not is surveying task. However, in the control over in a maintain to in excess of the not is surveying task. Insect in the control over in a nament in the control over in the control over in a nament in the control over in the control over in a nament in the control over in the control over in a nament in the control over in the control over in a nament of the control over in the control over in a nament of the control over in the control over in the control over in the control over in the control over in the control over in the control over in the control over in the control over in the control over in the control over in the control over in the control over in the control over in the control over the contro

memoure in in come of no imperou copina pain or inst.—In the case of a not long-term capital gain of a lapayer other than a corporation, subsection (cit1) of section 117 imposes an alternative tax in lieu of the normal tax and surtax imposed upon not lineous, if and only if such alternative tax is less than the tax otherwise imposed. This alternative tax is the sum of (1) a partial tax, computed at the

was acquired by the taxpayer but from a prior date, as provided in section 117(h).

Losser not allowable.—Wash sales.—In the case of any loss claimed to have been sustained from any sale or other disposition of shares of slock or securities where it appears that, within a period beginning 30 days before the date of such sale or disposition and ending 30 days effects the date of such sale or disposition and ending 30 days change upon the sale of t

sisters (whether by the winne or man brood), appears, understand lineal descendants;

B. Except in the case of distributions in liquidation, between an individual and a couperation more than 50 percent in value of the outstanding stock of which is owned, directly or indirectly,

the outstanding stock of which is owned, directly or indirectly, by or for such individual: C. Between a grantor and a fiduciary of any trust; D. Between this fiducitry of a trust and this fiduciary of another trust, if the same person is a grantor with respect to each trust; or E. Detween a fiduciary of a trust and a benelicary of such

For the purposes of determining ownership of stock in applying this

E. Between a liduciary of a trust and a beneficiary of such trust. For the purposes of determining ownership of stock in applying this paragraph, see section 24(b)(2).

One hundred percent of the gain resulting to the distributes from the comparison of the property of the section 12(b)(2).

One hundred percent of the gain resulting to the distributes from the comparison of the comparison

or depletion.

Bod debts.—Bad debts may be treated in either of two ways—(1) by
a deduction from income in respect to debts necertained to be worth-less in whole or in part, or (2) by a deduction from income of a reason-able addition to a reserve for ind debts.

"Inappears were given an option for 1921 to select, either of these methods and the method used in the return for the year 1921 must be

used in returns for all subsequent years unless permission is granted by the Commissioner to change to the other method. Application for permission to change the method shall be made in writing at least 30 days prior to the close of the taxable year for which it is desired to

Pogo 4

the change.

A taxpayer filing a first return of income may select either of the two methods mentioned above subject to approval by the Commissioner upon examination of the return. If the method settled is approved, it must be followed in roturns for subsequent years, except as permission may be granted by the Commissioner to change to the

other method. If the reserve method is used, you should attach to your return the statement required by section 10.23(k)-5 of Regulations 10.3. Worthless cloths arising from unpaid warge, stairles, reats, and similar items of taxable income will not be allowed as a deduction unless the income such items represent has been included in the return of income for the year for which the deduction as a had debt is sought to the control of the return of the same for the year for which the deduction as a had debt is sought to

income for the year for which the deduction as a bad debt is sought to be made or for a previous year.

An amount recovered upon a debt previously charged off and allowed as a deduction for Federal income tax purposes constitutes taxable income for the year of recevery regardless of whether the prior allowance of the deduction resulted in a tax benefit to the tax payer.

Installment sales.—If the installment method is used, attach to the return a schedule showing separately for the years 1617, 1928, 1934, and 1916 the following: (c) Cross sales; (b) cost of goods select; (c) pended and (f) gross profit on amount collected. (See section 41.)

Other income.—If the estates or trust had any taxable income, space for reporting which is not provided on page 1, aret if as item vand explain its nature, using a separate sheet if necessary for that purpose.

purposé. Include elso in item 9 dividends on share accounts in Federal savings

and loan associations.

10. Total income. -- Enter and explain in Schedule H all income,

10. Telal treeme.—Lotter and explain in Schedule II all income, accept interact, debined as exempt, into anot include as part of tirm except interact, debined as Covernment obligations, etc., sheed to entered in Schedule B. II. Interest.—Bater as item 11 all interest paid or accrued, other than on business indebtedness (which about be deducted in computing income under item 0 or S). Do not include interest, on indebtedness where the contraction of the contraction of the contraction of the contraction. edness incurred or continued to purchase or carry obligations (other than obligations of the United States issued after September 24, 1917. than obligations of the United States issued after September 24, 1917, and originally subscribed for by the taxyaper) the intacest upon which is wholly exempt from taxation. Any deductions on account of interest should be explained and itemized in Schedulo G.

Attention is called to the following limitations on deductions for unpaid expenses and interest provided in section 24(c):

(a) Unpaid expenses and interest.—In computing not income no deduction shall be allowed under section 23(a), relating to expenses incurred, or under section 23(b), relating to interest accound—

(1) If such expenses or interest are not paid within the taxable

(1) If such expenses or interest are not paid within the taxable year or within two and one hall months after the close thereof; and (2) If, by reason of the method of accounting of the person to whom the payment its be made, the nanount thereof is not, tunless paid, includible in the grees income of such pressor for the taxable paid, including in the grees income of such pressor for the taxable or with which the taxable year of the taxpayer end; and any time within two end one half months thereafter, both the taxpayer and the person to whom the payment is to be made are persons between whom to sees would be disallowed under section persons between whom to sees would be disallowed under section.

12. Taxes.—Enter as item 12 taxes imposed upon the estate or 12. Taxes.—Enter as hem 12 taxes imposed upon the estate or rust and paid or accruic during the taxable year, not including taxes on property used in the trade or business of the estate or trust and those assessed against bond busefits of a kind tending to increase the value of the property assessed. Do not include Federal income taxes, nor estate, inheritance, legacy, succession, gift taxes, taxes imposed upon the laterest of the estate or trust as shareholder of a corporation which

and indicate the constant of trust has institutioner on a corporation which or trust. Do not include a safe taxes unless the tax was imposed directly upon the entate or trust by law. No deduction is allowable for any portion of foreign incense and profits taxes if a credit is elittude in Item 28.

Any defluction on account of taxes should be itemized and explained.

other deductions in item 13, but the less resulting therefrom shall be considered as a less from the sale or exchange, on the tast day of such taxable year, of capital essets and should be reported in Schedule E. In case the estate or trust incurred expenses in connection with exempt income other than interest) or owned any property the income from which is exempt, see seation 24(6) and leganitations 103. The same interest of property not connected with the backets of the same interest of the same interest of the same interest in a single from the same interest of property not connected with the backets of interest of the same interest of a same interest of the same interest of the same interest in a single from fire, storm, shipwrede, for other essault; of from theft, and if not compensated for by inserance or otherwise.

Explain and itemize losses chained in Schedule G, setting forth a description of the property, data acquired, cost, subsequent improvements, depreciation allowable nince acquisition, insurance, salvage value, and deductible loss.

Exter also as item 13 bad debta. State in Schedule G, (a) of what the debts consisted; (b) mare and family relationship, if any, of what efforts were made to collect; and (f) how they were actually determined to be worthless. Bonds which are assertained to be worthless and charged off within the texable year, and which are capital assets, are not to be treated as bad debts, but the loss resulting therefrom shall be considered as a kas from the sale or exchange, on the inst day of such texable year, of capital assets and should be reported in Schedule distributable to beneficiaries.—Enter as item 18 the Islandson distributable to beneficiaries—Sterte as item 18 the Islandson distributable to beneficiaries—Sterte as item 18 the Islandson distributable to beneficiaries—Sterte as item 18 the Islandson distributable to be defined in columns 2,

inchinome.

21. Crodit for interest, etc.—Enter as item 21 the sum of (1) the fiduciary's balance of interest on Government obligations, etc., from Schedule B, line (2), and (2) the fiduciary's balance of the divisions on since accounts in Federal savings and loan associations included

in item 9.

24. Surfux.—The surfax is computed at the graduated rates shown in the table below. Its application may be illustrated by the following example: If surfax not income (item 20) is 59,201.84, the surfax on 32,000 is \$209 and the surfax on the excess of \$1,201.84 is 8 percent of that amount, or \$100.95, making a total surfax of \$300.95 to be catered. ns item 24.

#### SURTAX RATES

Amount of surfax net income	ltato per- cent	Total surtax	Amount of surfac net income	Bate per- cent	Total surtex
λ			Λ	- 11	- C
30 to \$1,070 4,070 to \$1,070 6,070 to \$1,000 8,000 to \$1,000 8,000 to \$1,000 12,000 to \$1,000 10,000 to \$1,000 10,000 to \$1,000 10,000 to \$1,000 10,000 to \$2,000 20,000 to \$2,000 20,000 to \$2,000 20,000 to \$2,000 20,000 to \$2,000 20,000 to \$2,000 20,000 to \$2,000 20,000 to \$2,000 20,000 to \$2,000	4 6 8 80 12 15 15 15 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 21	\$50 270 390 590 800 1, 600 1, 600 1, 880 2, 231 2, 410 5, 210 7, 231	\$70,050 to \$70,050 to \$70,050 to \$70,050 to \$70,050 to \$80,050 to	4202 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	\$20, 580 25, 890 34, 180 53, 780 53, 780 125, 780 126, 780 226, 780 226, 780 467, 780 647, 780
41,000 to 44,600	40	9,5%n 11,7%	1,000,000 to 5,000,000	71	1, 377, 78u 3, 597, 7(x)
60,000 to 60,000	41	16, 180 (	5,000,000 pp	15	

27. Income tax paid at source.—Enter as item 27 the fiduciary's abave of that pertion of the 2 person Federal income tax on band interest which was paid at the router by the deblor corporation.

28. Income and profits taxes paid to a foreign country or United States possession.—If, in accordance with section 131(a), a credit is claimed in item 28 for income, war-profits, and excess-profits taxes paid to a foreign country or a passession of the United States, submit Form 1116 with the return, tegether with the receipts for such payments. In case credit is sought for taxes accrued, the form must have attached to it a certified copy of the return on which the tax was based, and the Commissioner may require a bond on Form 1117 for the payment of any tax found due if the tax when paid differs from the credit claimed. Any deduction on account of taxes should be itemized and explained in Schedule G.

13. Other deductions authorized by law.—Enter as item 13 any other authorized deductions for which no space is provided on page 1, including not operating loss deduction allowed by section 23(a). Every taxpayer claiming a deduction allowed by section 23(a). Every taxpayer claiming a deduction dute to a not operating loss for the preceding taxable year shall file with his return the statement required by section 19,122-1 of Regulations 103.

Do not deduct losses ineutred in transactions which were neither conceted with the trade or business of the cetate or trust nor entered into for profit. Defuctions should be explained in Schedule C.

Slock and stock rights which become worthless during the taxable year, and which are capital assets, should not be included among leaves the constitution of the tax to the entered as them 30 shall not exceed 10 percent of this amount by which the constitutions and the tax do be entered as them 30 shall not exceed 10 percent of this amount by which the constitutions are also as the state of the amount of the tax to be entered as them 30 shall not exceed 10 percent of this amount by which the constitutions are also as a shall not exceed 10 percent of the amount by which the constitutions are also as a shall not exceed 10 percent of the amount by which the entered as the same are also as a shall not exceed 10 percent of the amount by which the entered as the same are also as a shall not exceed 10 percent of the amount by which the entered as the same are also as a shall not exceed 10 percent of the amount by which the entered as the same are also as a shall not exceed 10 percent of the amount by which the entered as the same are also as a shall not exceed 10 percent of the amount by which the entered as the same are also as a shall not exceed 10 percent of the amount by which the entered as the same are also as a shall not exceed 10 percent of the amount by which the entered as the same are also as a

PORM 1063 Treamy Department eternal Revenue Service

LINITED STATES

O.VI.	LU SIAIES			
PARTNERSHIP	RETURN	<b>OF</b>	INCOME	194
(To be Filed Also by S	yndicates, Pools, Joint Ve	ntures, Es	E.) Do Not Us	у Тъм Брасса

Do Not Use This Space	(To be Filed Also by Syndicates, Pools, Joint Ventures, Etc.)	_		Not Use These Spaces	
(Auditor's Steam)		- 1—			
	For Calendar Year 1940	- 1			
			Code		<u></u> .
	or fiscal year beginning				
	(File this return not later than the 15th day of the 3d month following the close of the tarable p	eer) Seri	ial No		
	(PRINT PLANELY NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS OF THE ORGANIZATION)				
		Die	trict		
	***************************************			(Date Required)	
	(Name)				
·					
'	(Street and stateber)				
	(Pest effec) (Commy) (Cassa)				
		- 1			
	Business or Profession	l			
Item and Instruction No.	GROSS INCOME			1	П
			- 1	}	1
2. Less cost of goods sold:	r profession\$			1	1
			1	1	i
	ng of year			l	1
(a) ivierchanduse bought i	for pale		i	1	1
(c) Cost of labor, supplie	3, etc		Į.		ľ
(d) lotal of lines (a), (b),	, and (c)		1	l	1
(e) Less inventory at end	of year.	***		j	
3. Gross profit (or loss) from but	siness or profession (item 1 minus item 2)			}	1
4. Income (or loss) from other pa	rtnerships, syndicates, pools, etc. (state separately name, address, and amount):		- 1	1	1:
				i	Į.
	otes, corporation bonds, etc. (except interest to be reported in		- 1	{	1
item 6)			t	'	1
6. Interest on tax-free covenant	bonds upon which a Federal income tax was paid at source			1	1
7. Interest on Government oblig	ations, etc. (from line (y), Scholuk A)			,	1.
				1	
9. Royalties					ł
	exchange of property other than capital assets (from Schools B)			1	1
				ł	1
12. Other income (state nature of income)	) <sub>1</sub>			į	
<ol> <li>Total income in items 3</li> </ol>	3 to 12 (enter neutronble income in Schedules A and C).			s	L
	DEDUCTIONS		1	1	Γ.
14 Salarian and searce (do not inc	lude compensation for partners)\$		- 1	ŀ	ł
	and companion for pathers)		+		1
					1
	s in Schedule F)				1
18. Taxes (explain in Schools C)					
	k, or other casualty, or theft (wheat whodate, are lastraction 19)				l
	·				
21. Depreciation (mphis in Schoole E)_					Ī
	s wells, timber, etc. (submit schedule, ore Instruction 27)		-}		1
	y law (coplain is Schedule F)		_		1
	ms 14 to 23			<u></u>	
	tem 13 minus item 24)			\$	
	T 1085) (from line I, column 4, Summery, Schedule H)			\$,	=
27. Net long-term capital gain (or	lOSS) (from line 2, column 4, Summery, Schedule H)			s	

(a) Obligations of a State, Territory, or political subdivision thereof, or the District of Columbia, or (a) Obligations or a state. Jernitory, or pointed subdivision unreten, or the District of OctuUnited States possessions.

(b) Obligations issued under the Federal Farm Loan Act, or under such Act as amended.

(c) Obligations of the United States issued on or before September 1, 1917.

(d) Treasury Notes, Treasury Bills, and Treasury Certificates of Indebtedness. (c) United States Savings Bonds and Treasury Bonds.
(f) Obligations of instrumentalities of the United States (other than obligations to be reported on line (b) above).
(g) Total of lines (c) and (f), column 3 (enter as item 7, page 1). Schedule B .- GAINS AND LOSSES FROM SALES OR EXCHANGES OF PROPERTY OTHER THAN CAPITAL ASSETS. (See Instruction 10) 4. Cost or other basis Total net gain (or loss) (enter as item 10, page 1) .. State the family, fiduciary, or business relationship to you, if any, of purchaser of any of the above items: If any of the above items were acquired by you other than by purchase, explain fully how acquired: Schedule C.-TAXES. (See Instruction 18) Total (enter as item 18, page 1)... Schedule D.-BAD DEBTS. (See Instruction 20) 1937 1038 NOTE-Check whether deduction claimed represents worthless debts charged off [], or is an addition to a reserve []. Schedule E .- DEPRECIATION. (See Instruction 21) Total (enter as item 21, page 1). Schedule F.-EXPLANATION OF DEDUCTIONS CLAIMED IN ITEMS 17 AND 23 2. Explanation f. Hom No. Schedule G .- NONTAXABLE INCOME OTHER THAN INTEREST REPORTED IN SCHEDULE A. (See Instruction 13) 2. Nature of income

Kind of property (if necessary	2. Date experiend	3. Date sold	4. Gross sein price (Legitrac price)	:	5. Cent or othe	-	6. Expense and cost of	ماده کم - دونونه جمعونونه	7. Depres allowed (ne able) since	allow-	E. Gair	n or low (o plus column as the sum ans > and (	oL no	Gain	or her to be to	ken i
Kind of projectly (if necessary tach statement of description details not shown below)	Mo. Day Year	Ma. Day Yes	bree)		) hasia		6. Expense and cost of provements corest to so tion or Mar 1923	ch I.	i913. (F detail	ach I. armah a)	7 nans	as the sum and > end (	aí b)	9. Per- cent-	12. Am	ount
	SHORT-	TERM CAPIT	AL CAINS A	VD.	LOSSES—ASSI	TS	<u></u>		<del></del>		<u></u>	THS				
				Γ		-	[.	T	1.	7			_	100		
			<b></b>		·		3	<b></b> -	\$		Ş		•••	100	,»	
								ļ	i	· ·				100		
										1				100		
								1						100		
				ļ		ļ			<u> </u>	.		l		100	; 	
			***********							.ļ	ļ			100		
	·	[							!	.ļ				100		
Total net short-	erm capital	gain or loss	(enter in li	ne I	, echimin 2, c	xf s	ımmary l	elo	v:)				===		<u> \$</u>	
LONG-TERM CA	PITAL GAINS	AND LOSSE	SASSETS 1	ŒL	FOR MORE	n	AN 18 M	ONT	is but i	TO	FOR M	ORE TI	IAN	24 7	MONTHS	
	į.		4		•		le	1	e	1	le .	- 1		6633		ĺ
			<b>7</b> —		ľ <u></u>			1	T		~			6634		
														66%		
			***************************************											66%		
						ļ	ļ	ļ	ļ	.ļ				66%		
				ļ				-	ļ					66%		
	ļ	ļ									·			66%		
	·			í	·	ļ. <b></b> .	ļ	·ļ						66%		
	LONG-TI	ERM CAPITA	L GAINS AND	L	SSES—ASSET	SI	ELD FOR	MC	RE THAP	24	MONT	AS				
	1	) I	•		<b>k</b> /		e	1	e	1	e	- 1		50	1	- 1
			·		¥		*	-			V			50		
									1	-				50		
	ļ	<u> </u>												50		]
				ļ. <b></b> .				ļ		-				50		
<b></b>									ļ	-				50		[
						ļ		¦			ļ			50		
T. 1 1		[		١		ļ	i	·	[					50		إت
Total net long-t	erm capitai														P	
		30	MMAKI O		APITAL NE	1 (							_			
			2. Net gain or	kun I	to be taken into acc ms 10, above	cunt	3. Net gain from ot	n er k	ns to be take Pinerships an Drust funds	d "cota	account amon	4 Ton	l net unt	gain or	loss to be tak non 2 and 3 nonery	of the
i, Ch	miscation						-		trust funds -							
			Gain		Long		C.	<b>.</b>	- 1	Loca	۱ ا		مند		Lou	
ed not short tone	tal gain or loss	(enter in column 3,		Ī		Γ.		1	_ _		$\top$			Т		T
ent mer etter freite cabi	al goin or loss	(opter in calumn f.	· S			=	· <del>  5</del>		\$			<u> </u>		-	1	<u> -</u>
Schedulo I, ameant of gain or	las sbann in col	umo ()	.ls				. 3		<u> \$</u>			\$		<u>.l</u>	\$	
cat tret unore-term cap: Schedulo I, amount of gain or stal net long-term capit Schedulo I, amount of gain o							anu of the		J.m.							
Schedule I, amount of gain or real met long-term capit			ip to you, if	any	, of purchase	roj	any of an	c av	DEE BEARS.							
Schedulo I, amount of gain or tal net long-term capit Schedulo I, amount of gain or	ry, or busine	ess relationsh														
chedulo I, amend of gain or tal net long-term capit chedulo I, amount of gain or the family, fiducia	ry, or busine s were acqui	ess relationsh red by you o	ther than by p	our		fu	ly how ac	quir	ed:		28)					
khedalo I, ameast of gain or tal net long-term capit khedalo I, amoust of gain or the family, fiducia	ry, or busine s were acqui	ess relationsh red by you o	ther than by p	TIC	hase, explain	fu	ly how ac	quir	ed:		28)			7	Amount	
khedalo I, ameast of gain or tal net long-term capit khedalo I, amoust of gain or the family, fiducia	ry, or busine s were acqui	ess relationsh red by you o	ther than by p	TIC	chase, explain	fu	ly how ac	quir	ed:		28)				Amount	<del></del>
Schedulo I, amount of gain or tal net long-term capit Schedulo I, amount of gain or o the family, fiducia	ry, or busine s were acqui	ess relationsh red by you o	ther than by p	TIC	chase, explain	fu	ly how ac	quir	ed:		28)			-   s	Amount	Ţ
khedalo I, ameast of gain or tal net long-term capit khedalo I, amoust of gain or the family, fiducia	ry, or busine s were acqui	ess relationsh red by you o	ther than by p	TIC	chase, explain	fu	ly how ac	quir	ed:		28)			\$	Amount	<u> </u>
khedalo I, ameast of gain or tal net long-term capit khedalo I, amoust of gain or the family, fiducia	ry, or busine s were acqui	ess relationsh red by you o	ther than by p	TIC	chase, explain	fu	ly how ac	quir	ed:		28)			\$	Argount	
khedalo I, ameast of gain or tal net long-term capit khedalo I, amoust of gain or the family, fiducia	ry, or busine s were acqui	ess relationsh red by you o	ther than by p	TIC	chase, explain	fu	ly how ac	quir	ed:		28)			<b>s</b> .	Account	
khedalo I, ameast of gain or tal net long-term capit khedalo I, amoust of gain or the family, fiducia	ry, or busine s were acqui	ess relationsh red by you o	ther than by p	TIC	chase, explain	fu	ly how ac	quir	ed:		28)			\$	Argount	
khedalo I, ameast of gain or tal net long-term capit khedalo I, amoust of gain or the family, fiducia	ry, or busine s were acqui	ess relationsh red by you o	ther than by p	TIC	chase, explain	fu	ly how ac	quir	ed:		28)			\$	Assount	
chedulo I, amend of gain er al net long-term capit chedulo I, amount of gain or the family, fiducia	ry, or busine s were acqui	ess relationsh red by you o	ther than by p	TIC	chase, explain	fu	ly how ac	quir	ed:		28)			\$	Assount	
chedulo I, amend of gain or tal net long-term capit chedulo I, amount of gain or the family, fiducia	ry, or busine s were acqui Sc	ess relationsh red by you o cheduln I.—	ther than by j	TIC	chase, explain	fu	ly how ac	quir	ed:		28)			<b>S</b>	Apount	

						Sci	hed	ule.	<u>J.—</u> 1	PAR	TNER	ĽS'	SH	ARE	s o	F II	NC	OME .	AND	CR	EDIT	s.	(See	inst	ructi	on 2	8)			
•	rha-a	V d	of s	ertn ull ti	i. ) ( er or si man of a percent	Designations of the control of the c	and ac mate o is file reper time	Idress ionresi id in a trus n deves	of each ident a another sot devi	h parte diene) r collect ot ed to	ion dist	ic.	appenilly , the	ربوته ر	ia		2.	Ordinary terest o gations I, min and di item 12			ess in- c abli- i, page age 1, ded in	3.8	from capital	t-ttras sale er l aserta Summo	gain (e eacha (from ary, lus	or loss ngu ol Sched I . col	4. Net	nen est	m gain (o or excha acts (from mmary, list	rage of School
)	_	<u>.</u>	_	_													\$					\$				<u> </u>	\$			<u></u>
`	_																•••			•••••										
/																									·					
)																											.			
) —.	Tab	als							•								<u></u>												·····	
	101	A13										CC	NTI	INU.	ATK	ON	OF	SCH	EDU	LE J	ļ	<b></b>								1
	Т		_				_	(					والمناء			_	_		_	<u> </u>				T				_		
t Use letter corre- conding above identify	•	Wholly (km Sch	y (	), (i	enwerk 6), (r).	obliga and (a	tions d) d	7. U	Inited S Treas Sched	States S	Savings i Bonds (	Bond		_	hliest	ions of (/). S	the	tain instra United ( dule A)	race- states	,	. Earne	d iens	<b></b>	-	Charite pribatio a School I)	-	II. Federate to all source cent of a page	paid (2 per-	12. Incomprehite paid a fore countr	to to
		Princi	ipel			METER	_		Princip		l»	LOTES			Princip	m)	T	Intere	ıt					_		_				_
	\$				\$	[		\$			\$			\$		ļ	. \$		ļ	\$				\$			\$		\$	
	·		+											···			-		ļ				}	}					}	-}
			_													_	1							1						
			}-		.:											ļ	-[													
			+	••••						ļ							-		ļ	ļ		•••••								
tals.	\$				\$			\$			\$	****	*****	\$			- 5			\$				3	*****		\$	1	\$	
							_							_	_	_	_	ONS	<u> </u>				_							,
Nata	пe		gaı	zati nizz	ion _	(pau	rtne	rshi	p, <b>sy</b>	ndic	ate, p	ool	, joir		-		 	If ar	y ot	rhyυ	esis	is us ind t	ed, a he d	ttacl ate i	stai nven	teme	nt dese was la	ribin st re	g basis onciled	fully, with
Was Chec State	ar llec kv ba ba	tor's wheth sis. heth	off her er	inv	was is ret entor	it s turn	ent? wa: at t	pre	eparo	ed or	and or ma	cas	h 🗂	or i	acen	ual ble		Did dir pe In If . Was	rectly rsom terns ansv retu	organ or al ho al Re ver is rn of	indir iding venu "Ye info	ectly cor e Co s." r	any npan de? ttacl	story, a (Ar h sch	ek of a de iswer iedule orms	finec "Y rec 109	oreign lin se es" or puired l 6 and	corp ction 'No by In	oration 501 of 501 of 501 of 501 of 511 of	ora f the n I.
- 101	wer											Α!		ID	AV	m	_	(See In				407	(Se	e In	truc	tion	<u>H)</u>		*********	
/ kno	wle	dge t	and	Ьι	elief i	is a l	truc	. co	rrect	, aux	ing a com er aut	ny ple	acco	omp	anyii	ng s	che	édules	and:	state	ment	s) ha coun	s be	en ex perio	umin d sta	ed { ted,	y me, pursu	and t	o the b	est of ternal
Sul	bsc	ribed	l aı	nd 1	worr	ı to	befo	re n	ne th	is		d	lay o	xf				., 194_	-						(Pe	rtner (	и пашра	)		
								ierna tu	es and	title of	allion i	d-i	nietoria	er est	ь)												toer or so			
				rif ·	thie :	ret							_			he-	_	rson,	• • •	falle		- ec								
												AJ	FFI	ID/	٩V	T	(	See Ins	tructio	n Dì										
um h	:5 a 185	na si been	tat pi	repa	ents)	of w	hic	ue, c h 1/	we h	ct, a ave	d this	ret	urn lete	for t	the o	reat	niz	ation n	ame	d her	ein a on re	nd ti	nat ti ting (	he re the is	turn ncom	(incl e of	uding the per	ıny a son fe	ccompa or whom	nying this
20				2			J-11	I	11															(Signal	ture of	регвор	beabering	the reta	<u></u>	
•	_					day	of							19	<b>34</b> .		(							(Signa	tors of	person	bedrains	the ret	-n)	

## INSTRUCTIONS FOR FORM 1065 UNITED STATES PARTNERSHIP RETURN OF INCOME

It will be helpful to read General Instructions A to I before commencing to fill in returns, and

It will be helpful to read General Instructions A to I before commencing to full in returns, and to read Specific Instructions in cannection with filling in the items to which they refor.

The term "partnership" as used herein includes a syndicate, group, pool, joint venture, or other unincorporated organization, through or by means of which any business, financial operation, or venture is carried on, and which is not, within the meaning of the Internal Revenue Code, a trust or estate or a corporation; and the term "partner" as used herein includes a member in such a syndicate, group, pool, light venture are exemination. joint venture, or organization.

### GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

A. Who must use Form 1065 .- Every domestic partnership (includ-A. Who must use Form 1065.— Every domestic partnership (incutating syndicates, groups, pools, joint ventures, etc.) and every foreign partnership, syndicate, pool, elet, doing business within the United States or having an office or place of business therein shall make a return of income on Form 1065. (See sections 181 to 183, inclusive, and 3797 (a) (2) and (5).) If the return is filed on behalf of a syndicate, pool, joint venture, or similar group, a copy of the operating agreement should be attached to the return, unless a copy has been previously filed, together with all amendments thereto.

The return for a foreign partnership shall be filed for the control to the color the color to the color the color the color to the color to the color to the color to the color to the color to the color to the color to the color to the color to the color all years, unless permission is received from the Commissioner to make a change. An application for a change in the accounting period must be adhered to for all years, unless permission is received from the Commissioner to make a change. An application for a change in the accounting period shall be made on Form 1128 and forwarded to the collector prior to the expiration of 30 days from the class of the proposed taxabaly ear.

C. When and where the return must be filed.—The return must be finded to the collector of internal revenue for the district in which the color of the collector of internal revenue for the district in which the color of the color of the partnership.

The return for a foreign partnership shall be filed on or before the 15th day of the sixth month following the class of the taxable year, and if such foreign partnership does not have any principal place of susiness or principal office or agency in the United States, the return shall be filed with the Collector of Internal Revenue, Baltimora, Md. D. Affidavilks.—The return shall be sown to by any one of the

shall be filed with the Collector of Internal Revenue, Baltimore, Md. D. Affidavils.—The return shall be sworn to by any one of the partners. If receivers, trustees in bankruptcy, or assignees are inscontrol of the property or business of the oranization, such receivers, trustees, or assignees shall execute the return under outh. Where the return is actually prepared by some person or persons other than a member or comployee of the partnership, such person or persons of the return of the return is actually prepared by some person or persons other than a member or comployee of the partnership, such person or persons of the return of the re

as any mainty.

E. Pendities. For willful failure to make and file return on time.—
Not more than \$10,000 or impresonment for not more than one year.

For willfully altempting to ceader or depth upwared of the tar.—Not more than \$10,000 or imprisonment for not more than \$10,000 or imprisonment for not more than two years, or both, together with the cests of proceedure.

both, together with the costs of procedution.

P. Basis of return—If the books of account of the partnership are kept on the accrual basis, report all income accrued, even though it has not been actually received or entered on the books, and expenses incurred instead of expenses paid. If the books are kept on the cash receipts and disbursements basis, or if the partnership kept no books, make the return on the cash basis and report all income received or constructively received, such as bank interest cradited to the partnership's account and coupon bond interest natured, and report expenses actually paid.

Attention called to the following limitations on deductions for hasis provided a socious 24 (c):

(a) Unprid Expenses and Interest.—In computing not income no deduction abulb be allowed under section 23 (a), relating to expenses incurred, or under section 23 (b), relating to interest accrued—

paid, includible in the gross income of such person for the taxable year in which or with which the taxable year of the taxaberends; and

cing; and

(3) If, at the close of the taxable year of the taxpayer or at any
time within two and one-half months thereafter, both the taxpayer
and the person to whom the payment is to be made are persons
between whom losses would be disallowed under section 24 (b).

G. Hems exempt from tax.—Explain items claimed to be exempt in Schedule G, except interest to be reported in Schedule A.

i. Interest on Governmental obligations:

. Interest on Governmental obligations:

(a) Entirely exampt.—The interest on (1) obligations of a State,
Territory, or political subdivision thereof, or the District of
Columbia, or United States possessions; (2) obligations issued
under Federal Farm Loan Act, or under such Act as amended;
(3) obligations of the United States issued on or before Suptember
1, 1917; and (4) Treasury notea, Treasury bills, Treasury estimates of indetvedness, postal savings obligations, adjusted
service bonds, and certain other obligations of the United States savings
bonds and control of the Columbia of the Columbia of Sciolog and (2)
obligations of instrumentalities of the United States as subject
only to surfas.

only to suriax

only to surtax.

2. Proceeds of insurance policies.—The proceeds of life insurance policies, paid by reason of the death of the insured, are exempt. If any part of the proceeds is held by the insurer under an agreement to any part of the proceeds is held by the insurer under an agreement to insurance or endowment policy, not payable by reason of the death of the insured, are not taxable out that has greated to the amounts received exceeds the premiums or consideration paid for the policy. See Specific Instruction 12 as to taxation of annutices.

3. Federal savings and loan associations.—Dividends on share accounts in Federal savings and loan associations are subject only to surtax.

surfax.

4. Wholly crempt from tax.—Amounts received as earned income from sources without the United States (except amounts pa'd by the United States or any agency thereof) by an individual citizen of the United States who is a bona fide nonreadent for more than 6 months during the taxable year (on education may be taken for any amount properly allucable to or chargeable against amounts so excluded).

properly allocable to or chargeable against amounts so excluded).

H. Information at source.—Every person making payments of salaries, wages, interest, repts, commissions, or other face of determinable income of \$500 or more during the calendar year 1940, to an individual, a partnership, or a fabricary, is required to make a return individual, a partnership, or a fabricary, is required to make a return the name and address of each recipient, except that a rule of the make for payments of salaries or other compensation for personal services aggregating less than \$2,000 made to a married individual. These forms will be furnished by any collector of internal revenue upon request and must be forwarded to the Commissioner of Internal lievenue, Returns Distribution Section, Washington, D. C., in time to be received not later than February 15, 1941.

1 Stock awond in foreign carenarations and personal holding com-

no the accrual basis, report all income accrued, even though it not been actually received or entered on the books, and expenses urred instead of expenses paid. If the books are kept on the cash just and disbursements basis, or if the partnership kept no books, at the partnership kept no books, at the partnership kept no books, at the partnership kept no books, at the partnership kept no books, at the partnership kept no books, at the partnership kept no books, at the partnership which was a book of the partnership kept no books, at the partnership which was a book of the partnership which was a boo

#### SPECIFIC INSTRUCTIONS

The following instructions are numbered to correspond with item numbers on the first page of the return.

Page 2

From sale price or service charge.

2. Cast of goeds seld—If the production, manufacture, purchase and also of necessiciate is an income-producing factor in the trade or nations, in extensiciae is an income-producing factor in the trade or nations, in extensiciae is an income-producing factor in the trade or nations, in extensiciate in the remarkation on hand about he taken at this beginning and end of the taxable year, which may be valued at (a) cost, or (b) cost or market, whichever is lower. Taxapayers were given an option to adopt the basis of either (a) cost, or (b) cost or market, whichever is lower, for their 1920 inventories. The basis properly adopted for that year, or any subsequent year, is controlling, and a change can now be made only after permission to change the basis of valuing inventories shall be made in writing and filed with the Commissioner within 00 days after the beginning of the taxable year in "G or M," immediately before the antenut column, if the inventories are valued at either cost, or cost or market, whichever is lower, and explain fully in answer to question 5 on page 4 of the return the method used.

See Regulations 103 with respect to inventories by dealers in

See Regulations 103 with respect to inventories by dealers in securities.

If the partnership elects to use the inventory method provided in section 22 (d), there should be filed an election on Form 970.

section 22 (d), there should be filed an election on Form 970.

Installment state.—If the installment method is used, attach to the return a schedule showing separately for the years 1937, 1938, 1939, and 1940 the followiner: (a) Gross sales; (b) cost of goods sold; (c) gross profits; (d) percentage of profits to gross selses; (e) amount coliected; and (f) gross profit on amount colineted; and (f) gross profit on amount colineted. (See section 44.) and keeps no books of account, or keeps books on a cash basis, obtain from the collector and attach to the return, Form 1940 F, Schiculto of Parm Insome and Expenses, and enter the net farm income as item 3 on page 1 of the return. If the farm books of account are kept on an accrual basis, the filing of Form 1940 F is optional.

Our page 1 of the return in from the Commondity Credit Corporation should file with its return a statement showing the details of such lonns. (See section 123.)

loans. (See section 123.)

4. Income for bass) from other partnerships, syndicates, pools' etc.—Enter as item 4 the partnership's share of the profits (whether received or not) or of the losses of another partnership's capital gains or losses, which should be reported in Schoulder II and included in item 26 or 27. The partnership's share of interest on obligations of the United States, etc., owned by another partnership or an estate or trust should be included in Schoelite A. If the taxable year on the basis of which the partnership's return is filted does not coincide with the automatic partnership ending is filted does not coincide with the automatic partnership ending the coincide with the partnership's return is filted does not coincide with the automatic partnership ending the profit of such partnership ending within the period of such partnership ending within the period of such partnership ending within the period for which the return is filed.

which the return is filed.

5. Interest on bank deposits, notes, corporation bonds, etc.—
Interest coupous failing due within the fuxable year will be considered as income for such year where the books are kept on a cash basis. If the books are kept on a carenal basis, report the actual amount of interest necessed on the obligations owned during the taxble year. Where obligations are purchased between interest dates and the purchase price includes accrued interest, such part of the purchase price includes accrued interest, such part of the purchase price includes accrued interest, such part of the purchase price includes accrued interest, such part of the purchase price includes accrued interest, such part of the purchase price includes accrued interest, such part of the purchase price includes accrued interest, such part of the purchase of the obligations but should be treated as an offset against the interest received or accrued at a later date. or accrued at a later date.

- 6. Interest on tax-free revenant benda.—Enter as item 6 interest on bonds upon which a Federal income tax was paid at the source by the detter corporation, if an ownership certificate on Form 1000 was filled with the interest coupons. The tax of 2 percent paid at the source on such interest should be allocated to the partners in column 11, Schedule 3.
- 7. Taxable interest on Government obligations, etc.-Enter in 7. Taxable interest on Government obligations, elc.—Enter in Schedule A the principal amount owned, and interest received. The proportionate share of each partner's interest from obligations described in lines (e) and (f), Schedule A, should be considered with his individual holdings for the purpose of ascertaining his tax liability with respect to such income. An individual partner is entitled for the purpose of the normal tax to a credit against his not income of his proportionate share of such amounts (and in excess of the not income of the partnership of interest as are received by the partnership from obligations described in lines (e) and (f), Schedule A.

- 1. Gross receipts from business or profession.—Enter as item 1 the gross receipts from sales or services, less any discounts or allowances from sales or services, less any discounts or allowances from allowances from allowances from allowances from allowances from allowances from the from t
  - respectively.

    If property or crops were received in lieu of, cash rent, report the income as though the rent had been received in cash. Crops received as rent on a crop-share basis should be reported as income for the year in which disposed of, unless the return relicets income accrued.
  - 9. Reyalties.—Enter as item 9 the gross amount received or accrued as royalties. If a deduction is claimed on account of depletion, it should be included in item 22. (See sections 23 (m) and 114.)
  - 10. Net gain (or loss) from sale or exchange of property other than capital assets.—Hoport sales or exchanges of such property in Schodulo B, and enter the gain or loss shown in column 7, Scheddie B, as itum 10, For definition of "capital assets," see Specific Instruction 26–27.
  - 11. Dividends.—Enter as item 11 the total of all taxable dividends received from domestic and foreign corporations. Enter in Schedule G all dividends received which are claimed to be nontaxable, and include in item 12 dividends on share accounts in Federal savings and loan
  - associations.

    12. Other income.—If the partnership had any taxable income, space for reporting which is not provided elsewhere on page I, enter it as item I2, and explain its nature, using a separate sheet if necessary for that purpose. Include in this item taxable income from annuties and insurance proceeds. Amounts received as an annutity under an annutity or endowment centract shall be included in gross income to the extent of 3 percent of the aggregate premiums or consideration excluded from gross income in years previous to the taxable year equals the aggregate premiums or consideration paid for seuch namity, the entire amount received must be included in gross income. (Section 22 (b) (22)) 22 (b) (2).)
  - 13. Total income.—Enter and explain in Schedule G all income claimed as exempt (except interest which should be explained in Schedule A), but do not include as part of item 13.
  - 14. Salaries and wages.—Enter as item 14 all salaries and wages not included as a deduction in line (c), item 2, except compensation for partners, which shall not be chained as a deduction in this item or elsewhere on the return.
  - 15. Rent.—Enter as item 15 rent on business property in which the partnership has no equity. Do not include rent for a dwelling occupied by any partner for residential purposes.
  - 16. Repairs.-Enter as item 16 the cost of incidental repairs, includ-16. Repairs.—Enter as item 16 the cost of incidental repairs, including labors, applies, and other items, which do not add to the value or appreciably prolong the life of the property. Expenditures for new local content of the property of the property are not betterment which increase the value of the property are chargeable to explical account. Expenditures for restoring or replacing property are not deductible, as such expenditures are dargeable to explail account or to depreciation reserve, depending on how depreciation is charged on the books of the partnership.
  - on the books of the partnership.

    17. Interest on indebtedness.—Ender as item 17 interest on business indebtodness to others. Do not include interest on capital invested in the business by any partner, our interest on indebtedness incurred or continued to purchase or carry obligations (other than obligations of the United States issued after September 24, 1917, and originally subscribed for by the partnership) the interest upon which is wholly exempt from taxation. See also General instruction F with reference to deductions for accrued interest and expenses.
  - tions for accrued interest and expenses.

    18. Tares.—Enter as tien 18 taxes on business property or for carrying on business. Do not include taxes assessed against local benefits tending to increase the value of the property assessed, as for paving, etc., Federal income taxes, nor extate, inheritance, legacy, succession, and gift taxes, nor taxes entered in column 12, Schedulei J. Do not include taxes imposed on the interest of the partnership as stockholder of a corporation without reimbursement from the partnership. Do not include sales taxes unless the tax was imposed directly upon the partnership by law. List in Schedule C each class of taxes deducted.
  - 19. Losses by fire, storm, shipwreck, or other casualty, or theft— Enter as item 19 losses sustained during the year, if arising by fire, storm, shipwreck, or other casualty, or from theft, and not compen-sated for by insurance or otherwise. (See section 23 (c.).) Attach a schedule setting forth a description of the property, data acquired, cost, subsequent improvements, depreciation allowable since acquisition, insurance, salvenge value, and deductible loss.

20. Bad debts.—Bad debts may be treated in either of two ways—

(1) By a deduction from income in respect of debts accertained to be worthless in whole or in part; or

(2) By a deduction from income of a reasonable addition to a re-

Tamperson the second of the se

80 days prior to the close of the taxable year not which is a considered effect the change.

A partnership filing its first return of income may select either of the two methods mentioned above subject to approval by the Commissioner upon examination of the return. If the method selected is approved, it must be followed in returns for subsequent years, except as permission may be granted by the Commissioner to change to the other method.

as permission may be granted by the Commissioner to change to the other method.

21. Depredation.—The amount deductible on account of depreciation in item 21 is an amount reasonably measuring the portion of the investment in depreciable property used in the trade or business by reason of crabaustion, were and tear, including a reasonable allowance reasonable and the second of the property was acquired by purchase on or after March 1, 1913, the amount of depreciation should be determined upon the basis of the original cost (not replacement cost) of the property, and the probable number of years remaining of its erpected useful life. In case the original cost (not replacement cost) of the property, and the probable number of years remaining of its erpected useful life. In case the computed on its original cost, loss depreciation sustained prior to March 1, 1913, or its fair market value as of that date, whichever is greater. The capital sum to be recovered should be charged off of apportionment is adopted must be reasonable and should be described in the return. Stocks, bonds, and like securities are not subject to depreciation within the meaning of the law.

If a deduction is claimed on account of depreciation, fill in Schedule and basis upon which it is computed. Londy-rankely amount claimand basis upon which it is computed. Londy-rankely amount claimand be established. The adjusted property accounts and the accumulated depreciation without in the schedule should be reconciled with be excluded in this schedule, and where land and buildings were purchased for a lump sum, the cost of the building subject to depreciation must be established. The adjusted property accounts and the accumulated depreciation after the cost of the building subject to depreciation without it has schedule and where land and buildings were purchased for a lump sum, the cost of the building subject to depreciation fills cost of the property accounts and the accumulated depreciation without it has schedule abould be reconciled with leavest

22. Depletion of mines, oil and gas wells, timber, etc.-If a deduc-22. Depletion of mines, oil and gas wells, timber, etc.—If a deduction is claimed on account of depletion, procure from the collector Form D (minerals), Form E (coal), Form F (miscellaneous nonmetals), Form O (oil and gas), or Form T (timber), illi in and file with return. If complete valuation data have been filed with questionnaire in previous years, then file with return information necessary to bring depletion sciedule up to date, acting forth in full statement of all transactions bearing on decluctions from or addition to value of transactions bearing on declucions from or addition to value of the depletion deduction for the taxable year with explanation of how depletion deduction for the taxable year rans been determined. (See sections 23 mm and 11st the taxable year rans been determined. 23 (m) and 114.)

23 (m) and 114.)

23. Other deductions authorized by law.—Enter as item 23 any other authorized deductions for which no space is provided classwhere on the first page of the return. Do not deduct losses incurred in the first page of the return. Do not deduct losses incurred in our cateroal time for profit. No deduction with the trade or business mor entered into for profit. No deduction with the trade or business other than intended profit the second control time of any item or part thereof allocable to a class of exempt income shall be allocated the such taxable income, I as a item is directly attributable to any class of taxable income shall be allocated to such taxable income. If an item is directly attributable both to taxable income and exempt income, a reasonable proportion thereof, determined in the light of all the facts and circumstances in each case, shall be allocated to each. Apportionments must in all cases be reasonable. A partnership receiving any instances and exempt income, and all the facts and circumstances in each case, shall be allocated to each. Apportionments must in all cases be reasonable. A partnership receiving any instances are all called the statement, in detail, thowing its return as a part thereof an itemized statement, in detail, thowing (1) the amount of each class of exempt income, and (2) the amount of expense items allocated to each such class (the amount allocated by apportionment being shown separately). Deductions for charitable contributions are not allowable to the partnership. (See Specific Instruction 28.)

Jastruction 28.). Net short-term and not long-term capital gains and losses.—
Report sales or exchanges of capital assets in Schodule II, and enter
the net short-term capital gain or loss as item 20, and the net long-term capital gain or loss as item 27. The term "capital assets" means
Definition of "capital assets."—The term "capital assets" means
property beld by the taxpayer (whether or not connected with his
trade or business), but does not include stock in trade of the taxpayer.

or other property of a kind which would properly be included in the inventory of the taxpayer if on hand at the close of the taxable year, or property held by the taxpayer primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of his trade or business, or property, used in the trade or business, at the time of the sale or exchange, of a character which is subject to the allowance for depreciation. The exclusion from the term 'capital assents' of property used of in the trade or business of a taxpayer of a character which is subject to allowance of depreciation provided in section 20 (i) is limited to property used by the taxpayer no application to gains or losse a rising from the sale of not property used by the taxpayer used in the trade or business to the extent that such gain or loss is allocable to the land, as distinguished from depreciable improvements upon the land. upon the land.

upon the land.

Description of property.—Every sale or exchange of property, even though no gain or loss may be indicated, must be reported in detail. Enter full description of each item of property sold or exchanged. Such descriptions aboud include the following facts: (a) For real estate, location and description of land, description of improvements, details explaining depreciation (column 7 of Schedule H1); (b) for bonds or other evidences of indebtedenes, name of sissing corporation, description of the particular issue, denomination, and amount; and (c) for explaint changes affecting basis (nontantile stock dividends, other nontaxable dividends, stock rights, etc.).

taxable dividends, stock rights, etc.).

Bazis.—If the property was acquired before March 1, 1913, the "basis" for the property is not subject to the same rule for reporting gains as for losses. In seuch cases, the basis for determining GA1N is the cost or the fair market value as of March 1, 1913, adjusted as provided in section 113 (b), whichever is greater, but in determining harden to the section 113 (b), whichever is greater, but in determining after February 28, 1913, basis for both I the property was acquired after February 28, 1913, basis for both I the property was acquired by gift, bequest, tax-free schange, involuntary conversion, was acquired by gift, bequest, tax-free schange, frowlountary conversion, was said of stock; and in such cases section 113 provides the basis tint thall be used. If the amount shown exchanged, full dictails must be furnished regarding the acquisition of the property.

Enter in column 7 of Schedule R, the amount of democration exceptions.

Enter in column 7 of Schedule H, the amount of depreciation, ex-haustion, wear and tear, obsolescence, or depletion which has been allowed (but not less than the amount dilowable) in respect of such property since date of acquisition, or since February 28, 1013, if the proporty was acquired on or before that date. In addition, if the property was acquired before March 1, 1013, the cost shall be reduced by the terperciation, depletion, etc., actually austiance before that date.

Subsequent improvements include expenditures for additions, improvements, and renowals and replacements made to restore the property or prolong its useful life. Do not deduct ordinary repairs, interest, or taxes in computing gain or loss.

or taxes in computing gain or loss.

Lesses on excurring becoming worthless.—If any securities (as defined below) are ascertained to be worthless and charged off within the taxalle year and are capital assets, the loss resulting therefrom shall, in the case of a taxpayer other than a bank, as defined in section 104, be considered as a loss from the sale or exchange, on the last day of such taxable year, of capital assets. (See section 23 (k) (2).)

Definition of securities—As used for this purpose, the term "securities" means bonds, debentures, notes, or certificates, or other evidences of indobtedness, issued by any corporation (including those issued by a government or political subdivision thereof), with interest coupons or in registered form.

or in registered orner stock rights becoming worthless.—If any shares of stock in a corporation or rights to subscribe for or to receive such shares become worthless during the taxable year, and are capital assets, the loss resulting therefrom shall be considered as a less from the sale or exchange, on the last day of such taxable year, of capital assets. (See section 23 (g) (2).)

assets. (eee section 20 (g/ (2/))

Classification of capital gains and leases.—Section 117 (a) (2) to (9), inclusive, defines "short-term capital pain," "short-term capital loss," "long-term capital gain," "one that short-term capital gain," and the short-term capital loss," "net bong-term capital gain," and "uet long-term capital loss," The phrase "short-term capital loss." The phrase "short-term applies to the category of gains and losses arising from the sale or term, "but phila sasets had for 18 months or less; the phrase "long-term," and phila sasets had for list months or less; the phrase "long-term," and phila sasets had for more than 18 months.

In the case of individuals, gains and losses from the sale or exchange of capital assets held for not more than 18 months (described as short-term capital pairs and short-term capital losses) shall be segregated from gains and losse arising from the sale or exchange of such assets held for more than 18 months (described as long-term capital gains and long-term capital losses).

Percentage of capital gain or loss taken into account.—In somputing the net income, the following percentages of the gain or loss recognized

Page 3

Page 4

upon the sale or exchange of a capital asset shall be taken into account computing net inc

100 percent if the capital asset has been held for not more than 18 months; 66% percent if the capital asset has been held for more than

50 percent if the capital asset has been held for more than 24

Limitation on short-term capital losses.—Section 117 (d) provides a limitation on detactions for short-term capital losses, that is, losses the short of the sh with respect to pet short-term canital losses.

with respect to not short-term capital issess.

Determination of period for which capital assets are held.—If property

Determination of period for which capital assets are held.—If property

112, 113. was acquired in certain transactions described in sections 112 was acquired in certain transactions described in sections 112, 113, and 118, the period for which such property is considered to have been held by the taxpayer is not computed from the date such property was acquired by the taxpayer but from a prior date, as provided in section 117 (h).

As to gains and losses from short sales, see section 117 (g). As to gains and losses from distributions in liquidation of corporations, see section 115 (c).

Losses not allowable... Wash sales ... In the case of any loss claimed Losse not allowable—Wash sales.—In the case of any loss claimed to have been austained from any sale or other disposition of silares of stock or securities where it appears that, within a period beginning 30 days before the date of such sale or deposition and ending 30 days after such date, the taxpayer has acquired (by purchase or by an exchange upon which the entire amount of gain or loss was recognized by law), or has entered into a contract or option so to acquire, substantially identical stock or securities, then no deduction for the loss shall be allowed unless the claim is made in connection with the taxpayer's trade or business. (See section 118.)

Losses in transactions between certain persons.—No deduction shall be allowed in respect of losses from sales or exchanges of property, directly or indirectly-

- A. Between members of a family, which is defined for the pur-pose of this paragraph to include only the taxpayer's brothers and sisters (whether by the whole or half blood), spouse, nacestors, and lineal descendants;
- and mean descendants;

  B. Except in the case of distributions in liquidation, between an individual and a corporation more than 50 percent in value of the outstanding stock of which is owned, directly or indirectly, by or for such individual;
  - C. Between a grantor and a fiduciary of any trust; or
- D. Between a fiduciary of a trust and a beneficiary of such

For the purposes of determining ownership of stock in applying this paragraph, see section 24 (b) (2).

28. Partners' shares of income and credits.-Enter the names and 28. Partners' sharies of income and credits.—Enter the names and addrasses of the partners on lines (a), (b), (c), etc., in column 1, Schedule J, and extend in the proper columns each partners's share of income, whether distributed or not, and credits. Schedule J should show complete information with respect to all the persons who were members of the partnership, syndicate, group, etc., during any pertion of the taxonic states of the partnership, and the persons who were members of the partnership, syndicate, group, etc., during any pertion of the taxonic states of the partnership in the percentage of time devoted to the business must be shown in Schedule J. Although the partnership in tot subject to income tax, the members thereof are liable for income tax in their individual capacity and are taxable upon their distributed or not, and each is required to include his proportionate share in his individual return. Each partner should be advised on the partner ship with the distributed or not, and each is required to include his proportionate share in his individual return. Each partner should be advised on the partner ship with the proper person of any dividends included in item 12 (see Specific Instruction 11).

Earned income.— Enter in column 9, Schedule J, the proper part of

imm 12 (see Specific Instruction 11).

Earned income.—Enter in column 9, Schedule 1, the proper part of
each partner's or member's distributive share of the partnership's net
income which consists of earned income. Such part cannot exceed a
reasonable allowance as compensation for personal services actually
rendered by the partner in connection with the partnership's business.
In the case of a partnership which is engaged in a trade or business in
which capital is a material income-producing factor and in the trade or business of which the partner renders personal services which are material to the earning of the partnership's income, the carned in-come of the partner ship's income, the carned in-come of the partner from the partnership is a reasonable allowance as

compensation for the personal services actually rendered by him, but not in excess of 20 percent of his share of the net profits of the partnership (computed without deduction for so-called salaries to partners or

nemously.

Example: A partnership composed of A, B, and C is engaged in the retail men's clothing business. Each partner is entitled to one-third of the net profits, after deduction of se-called salaries to members. A devoter most of his time to the business and is paid a salary of \$10,000, It devotes fail of his time to the business and is paid a slary of \$50,000. It devotes find of his time to the luminess and is paid a rainty of \$5,000. Citevotes mone of his time to the business and receives no salary. The net profits of the partnership for the taxable year, computed without deduction for so-called salarizes to members, are \$24,000. The carned income of the partners from the partnership is as follows: Although A received a salary of \$1,000 and B a salary of \$5,000, since the partnership is engaged in a business in which capital is a material income-producing factor, the carned income of each from the partnership is engaged in a business in which capital is a material income-producing factor, the carned income of each from the partnership is finited to \$20,000 is \$2,000 and \$3,000 is \$2,000, to which amount A's carned income from the partnership is limited. Since B's share of the net profits is \$3,000 (\$5,000+\$3,000), 20 percent thereof, or \$1,600, is B's carned income from the partnership. C has no carned income from the partnership. C has no carned income from the partnership. C has no carned income from the partnership on personal services in connection with the partnership business.

ship. C has no carrued income from the partnership, since he readers no personal services in connection with the partnership positions.

Charitable contributions.—No deduction for charitable contributions is allowable in computing the net income of a partnership, but each partner shall be considered as having made payment, within his taxable year, of his distributive portion of any contribution or gift of the partnership within its taxable year. Early in the partnership within its taxable year. Early in Schedule I contributions or gifts apprend of which was made within the taxable year to or for the use of: (a) The United States, any State, Territory, or any political suddivision thereof or the Dattict of Columbia, or any possession of the United States, or exclusively public purposes; (b) or organized in the United States or in any possession of the United States or in any possession thereof or under the law of the United States or in any possession of the United States or in any possession of the United States or in any possession of the United States or in any possession of the United States or in any possession of the United States or in any possession of the United States or in any possession of the United States or in any possession of the United States or in any state or Territory or of any possession of the United States or in any State or Territory or of any possession of the United States or in any State or Territory or of any possession of the United States or in any State or Territory or of any possession of the United States or in any State or Territory or of any possession of the United States or in any State or Territory or of any possession of the United States or in any State or Territory or of any possession of the United States or in any State or Territory or of any possession of the United States or in any State or Territory or of any possession of the United States or any State or Territory or of any possession of the United States or any State or Territory or of any possession of the Unite

Credit for tazes.—If interest was received on tax-free covenant bonds n connection with which an ownership certificate on Form 1000 was itled, the Federal income tax of 2 percent paid at the source on authorizers should be allocated to the partners in column 11, Schedulo J.

interest should be allocated to the partners in countin 11, Sciencius J. II income and profils taxe spaid to a foreign country or a possession of the United States are entered in column 12, Schedulo J, submit Form 1116 with the partnership return with a receipt for each such tax payment. In case the amount entered in column 12 includes foreign taxes acreued but not paid, attach to the form a certified copy of the return on which the taxes were based. The Commissioner may require the partners or members to give a bond on Form 1117 for the payment of any additional tax found due if the foreign tax when paid differs from the amount claimed.

differs from the amount claimed.

Not operating loss deduction.—The benefit of the deduction for not operating losses provided by section 23 (s) for transle years beginning after December 31, 1938, shall not be allowed to a partnership. In computing his own not operating loss or his own not income (where required to be computed in accordance with the exceptions and limitations provided in section 122 (d) (1) to (4), inclusive) for any transle year for the purposes of the computations required by section 122, lowever, each partner shall take into account the income and losses of the partnership in accordance with sections 182 to 188, inclusive, with certain exceptions and limitations. (See section 19.189-1 of Regulations 103).

# INDEX

(Unless otherwise indicated, reference pertains to individual and/or fiduciary returns)

A	gΘ
Accounting period, change of 195, 197, 202-215, 220-22 195, 197, 202-215, 220-22	4
Additional tax (Estate tax returns) 195, 197, 202–215, 220–22	1
Computation and rates 252-25	5
Administration, net losses during (Estate tax returns) 200-201, 205-21.  Administrative expenses, funeral and (Estate tax returns) 200-201, 204-21.	y
Administrative expenses, funeral and (Escate tax returns) 200-201, 204-21.  Alabama:	0
Estate tax returns 22	n.
Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118–120, 126–132, 160–16	
Alaska:	_
Estate tax returns 22	
Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118–120, 126–132, 160–16	1
Data included in Washington prior to 1939182–18	3
Aliens:	
Estate tax returns 195-196, 199-222, 252-25	
Gift tax returns 227–228, 25	6
Individual and/or fiduciary returns 4, 43-44, 243, 245 (notes 17, 24	2
Form 1040B included	ა ე
Form 1040NB excluded 4.	
Alternative tax:	2
Aggregate Computation, average, and effective rate by net income classes 84-85	5.
88-89, 98-99, 102-103, 108-11	ï
88-89, 98-99, 102-103, 108-11 Description 6-	8
Historical data, 1938–1940 4	8
Historical data, 1938–1940 4: Net income classes 78–79, 82–85, 88–89, 92–99, 102–105, 108–11	1
On returns with no net income 2, 9, 11-12, 53, 72-75, 78-79, 82-83	š
88-93, 96-97, 102-103, 114, 117, 162-167, 170-179, 184-18; Computation	5
Computation 88–89, 102–10	
Deficit classes 1: Historical data, 1938–1940 5:	_
States and Territories	
Amended returns, not included	
Arizona:	U
Estate tax returns 220	
Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118-120, 126-132, 160-16.	1
Community property 12–13, 119	9
Arkansas:	_
Estate tax returns 220	0
Estate tax returns 221 Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118-120, 126-132, 160-16 Assets, capital, description 44-44 Average total tax 2, 78-79, 81, 92-93, 95, 104-10	ĭ
Assets, capital, description 44-44	0
Average total tax 2, 75-79, 81, 92-93, 93, 104-10	6
В	
Back taxes	9
Bad debts 15, 17, 21, 24, 60, 65, 132, 142-143, 152-15	3
Balance income (Fiduciary returns):	^
	9
Definition 191 (note 39 Net income classes 15	"
ATOV AMOUNIC GRADDED	J

Basic ta	BDIES:	Page
1.	States and Territories (Individual and fiduciary returns)	72 - 73
Ja.	States and Territories (Individual returns)	74-75
2.	Net income classes (Individual and fiduciary returns)	76-89
2a.	States and Territories (Individual and fiduciary returns)  States and Territories (Individual returns)  Net income classes (Individual and fiduciary returns)  Net income classes (Individual returns)  Net income classes (Fiduciary returns)	0-103
20.	Net income classes (Fiduciary returns) 10 Simple and cumulative distribution (Individual and fiduciary	4-111
<b>ა</b> .	Simple and cumulative distribution (Individual and fiduciary	
n-	returns) 11 Simple and cumulative distribution (Individual and fiduciary returns) 11 Say and family relationship by States 14	2-114
3a.	Simple and cumulative distribution (Individual returns) 11	5 - 117
4.		
<b></b>	returns) 11.	8-120
5.	returns) 11. Sex and family relationship by net income classes (Individual returns)	
6.	returns)	1 - 125
0.	Sources of income and deductions by States and Territories (In-	
7.		6-132
7.	Sources of income and deductions by net income classes (Individual and fiduciary returns) 133	
70	Courses of increase returns) 133	3-143
ra.	Sources of income and deductions by net income classes (In-	
7h	dividual returns) 144 Sources of income and deductions by net income classes (Fiduci-	4-153
70.	Sources of income and deductions by net income classes (Fiduci-	
8.	ary returns)154	4-159
٥,	States and Territories by net income classes (Individual and	
		)-185
9.	Summary for prior years 160	-185
9.	Summary for prior years 166 Government obligations by net income classes (Individual	
	100ding with her income waller and over) 10t	5-187
. 10.	Wovernment Ophyshions by net meeme elected (Fiducions	
	16001118 WIGH DELETICE INCOME SECTION and Over) 190	-189
Foo	CHDUUI	4 00
Porio to	tnotes	)-191
Dasic ta	x (Estate tax returns) 195, 197, 202-215, 220	-221
Danagaia	nputation and rates 254	-255
Denencia	nputation and rates 254 aries, amount distributable to (Fiduciary returns)	5,
Bonds:	s, charitable, public, and similar (Estate tax returns) 200-201, 205	-219
Donus.		
Corl	poration:	
Con	Interest received 15, 18, 22, 126, 133-135, 144-145	, 154
GOV	erument, rederal, State, etc.:	
	Gross estate (Estate tax returns) 200-201, 204	-218
	Gross estate (Estate tax returns) 200-201, 204 Amount owned and interest received (Individual and/or fidu-	
	clary returns) 42, 186	-189
Bonds ar	nd stocks:	
Esta	ate tax returns200	-219
Gift	tax returns 230	, 235
Business	profit and loss 15-16, 19-20, 23, 25-26, 33-35, 41 (notes 36,	39),
~ -	profit and loss 15-16, 19-20, 23, 25-26, 33-35, 41 (notes 36, 54-65, 127, 130, 136-137, 140-141, 146-147, 150-151, 155	, 157
Sole	proprietorships	4-25
Una	liowable deductions 41 (note	36)
Businesse	es, two or more on one return41 (note	e <b>35</b> )
~	C	
Californi:	a:	
Esta	te tax returns	220
Indi	vidual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118-120, 126-132, 162	-163
	Community property	Hu
Capital a	assets, description4	4-46
a sanital o	raine and locade.	
Com	nmon trust funds1	6, 46
Curr	nmon trust funds1 rent year net short-term capital gain (before deduction for carry-	
ov	ver) 15-16. 19. 23	. 26.
	41 (note 23), 128, 138-139, 148-149, 156, 191 (note	29)
	Caption change	14
Freq	quency distribution3	6-40

Capital gains and losses—Continued.	
Tistorical data:	age
All returns 55-60, 67 (note 3	31)
Net income \$5,000 and over 62- Text 44-	-65
Long-term definition	-40 45
Long-term, definitionNet income classes 19-20, 82-89, 96-103, 108-111, 138-141, 148-151, 156-1	158
Net long-term capital gain or loss	2,
6, 11–12, 15, 20, 23, 26, 128, 130, 138–141, 148–151, 157–1	158
On returns with alternative tax  Net short-term capital gain included in total income and net income	7–8
(after deduction for carry-over) 15, 19, 23, 128, 138-139, 148-149, 1	156
(after deduction for carry-over) 15, 19, 23, 128, 138-139, 148-149, 18 Net short-term capital loss of preceding taxable year deducted 15-	16,
19, 23, 26, 128, 138–139, 148–149, 1	156
Caption change	14
Partnership income 16, Percentage distribution by net income classes	23
Short-term, definition	45
States and Territories 128.	
Tax credit for capital net loss, 1924–1933	48
Tax on capital net gain, 1922–1933	48
Capital stock in corporations (Estate tax returns) 200-201, 204-2	235
Cash (Gift tax returns) 230, 2 Cash, mortgages, notes, and (Estate tax returns) 200-219, 223 (note	5)
Changes:	
Balance income classes	9
Industrial classificationInternal Revenue Code as amended:	9
Estate tax returns	196
	227
Individual and/or fiduciary returns 3,	, 43
Nontaxable fiduciary returns	3
Charitable, public, and similar:	010
Bequests (Estate tax returns) 200-201, 205-2	719
Gifts (Gift tax returns) 231–235, 237 (note Cities, counties, and towns, number of returns 42-	-43
Citizens, resident and nonresident:	
Estate tax returns 195-	
Gift tax returnsClassification of returns:	227
	198
Gift tax 228-2	
Individual and/or fiduciary 8-9, 12-	-13
Colorado:	000
Estate tax returns	220
Community property returns:	103
Classification 12-	-13
Net income classes	123
Sex and family relationship 119,	
StatesComparability with previous reports and with tax collections:	119
Estate tax returns 195-1	196
	227
Individual and/or fiduciary returns 43-	-44
Comparison with 1939, summary data:	00=
Gift tax returns	$227 \\ 2-3$
	2-3 195
Compensation for personal services. (See Salaries.)	
Composite data (Individual and fiduciary returns):	
	8-9
	2-4 2-5
2/ 00/01/p/01/011/11/11/11/11/11/11/11/11/11/11/11	- 0

Composite data—Continued. Page 47–65
Net income classes 76–89, 133–143
Net income classes 76–89, 133–143 Simple and cumulative distribution 112–114
States and Territories 72–73, 160–185
Connecticut:
Estate tax returns 220 Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118-120, 126-132, 162-163
Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118-120, 126-132, 162-163 Contributions 15, 17, 21, 23, 54-65, 131, 140-141, 150-151
Partners' shares 40 (note 17)
Counties, cities, towns, number of returns 42-43
Credit for:
Capital net loss from sale of assets held more than two years, historical
summary, 1924–1933
Carned income 5 7-8 48 76-77 80 84-87 90-91 94 98-101
Estate, inneritance, legacy, or succession taxes (Estate tax returns) 195.
100,000,000,000,000,000
Gift taxes (Estate tax returns) 195, 197–198, 202–203, 205–215, 220–221
Credits against basic and additional tax (Estate tax returns)197, 202-203, 205-215
Credits, tax. (See Tax credits.)
Cumulative distribution, simple and 9-11, 112-117 Current year net short-term capital gain. (See Capital gains and losses.)
Ourient your not brist torm outstant gain. (600 Outstan gains and 105505.)
Data tabulated: D
Estate tax returns 196, 199
Gift tay returns 227
Individual and/or fiduciary returns 4-5 Debts, bad 15, 17, 21, 24, 60, 64-65, 132, 142-143, 152-153
Debts of decedent, mortgages and liens (Estate tax returns) _ 200-201, 204-219
Decedents, returns to date of death.
Decoders, results to date of deather results and results are results and resul
Deductions:
Estate tax returns 200-201, 204-218
Estate tax returns 200-201, 204-218 Gift tax returns 231-235
Estate tax returns 200-201, 204-218 Gift tax returns 231-235 Individual and/or fiduciary returns (see also Sources of income and
Estate tax returns 200-201, 204-218  Gift tax returns 231-235  Individual and/or fiduciary returns (see also Sources of income and deductions) 12, 15, 22, 24, 54-65, 132, 142-143, 152-153, 159
Estate tax returns 200–201, 204–218 Gift tax returns 231–235 Individual and/or fiduciary returns (see also Sources of income and deductions) 12, 15, 22, 24, 54–65, 132, 142–143, 152–153, 159 Negative amounts reported under income 5, 14
Estate tax returns
Estate tax returns 200-201, 204-218 Gift tax returns 231-235 Individual and/or fiduciary returns (see also Sources of income and deductions) 12, 15, 22, 24, 54-65, 132, 142-143, 152-153, 159 Negative amounts reported under income 5, 14 Other deductions, description 16-17 Defense tax: Estate tax returns 195-196, 198, 202-203, 205-215, 220-221, 255 (note 6)
Estate tax returns 200–201, 204–218  Gift tax returns 231–235  Individual and/or fiduciary returns (see also Sources of income and deductions) 12, 15, 22, 24, 54–65, 132, 142–143, 152–153, 159  Negative amounts reported under income 5, 14  Other deductions, description 16–17  Defense tax:  Estate tax returns 195–196, 198, 202–203, 205–215, 220–221, 255 (note 6)  Gift tax returns 227, 257 (note 8)
Estate tax returns 200–201, 204–218  Gift tax returns 231–235  Individual and/or fiduciary returns (see also Sources of income and deductions) 12, 15, 22, 24, 54–65, 132, 142–143, 152–153, 159  Negative amounts reported under income 5, 14  Other deductions, description 16–17  Defense tax:  Estate tax returns 195–196, 198, 202–203, 205–215, 220–221, 255 (note 6)  Gift tax returns 227, 257 (note 8)
Estate tax returns 200-201, 204-218  Gift tax returns 231-235  Individual and/or fiduciary returns (see also Sources of income and deductions) 12, 15, 22, 24, 54-65, 132, 142-143, 152-153, 159  Negative amounts reported under income 5, 14  Other deductions, description 16-17  Defense tax:  Estate tax returns 195-196, 198, 202-203, 205-215, 220-221, 255 (note 6)  Gift tax returns 227, 257 (note 8)  Individual and/or fiduciary returns 27, 78-79, 81, 84-85, 88-89, 92-93, 95, 98-99, 102-111, 245 (note 23)
Estate tax returns 200–201, 204–218 Gift tax returns (see also Sources of income and deductions) 12, 15, 22, 24, 54–65, 132, 142–143, 152–153, 159 Negative amounts reported under income 5, 14 Other deductions, description 16–17 Defense tax: Estate tax returns 195–196, 198, 202–203, 205–215, 220–221, 255 (note 6) Gift tax returns 227, 257 (note 8) Individual and/or fiduciary returns 27, 7, 78–79, 81, 84–85, 88–89, 92–93, 95, 98–99, 102–111, 245 (note 23) Deficit (See No pet income)
Estate tax returns 200–201, 204–218  Gift tax returns 231–235  Individual and/or fiduciary returns (see also Sources of income and deductions) 12, 15, 22, 24, 54–65, 132, 142–143, 152–153, 159  Negative amounts reported under income 5, 14  Other deductions, description 16–17  Defense tax:  Estate tax returns 195–196, 198, 202–203, 205–215, 220–221, 255 (note 6)  Gift tax returns 227, 257 (note 8)  Individual and/or fiduciary returns 227, 257 (note 8)  Individual and/or fiduciary returns 27, 78–79, 81, 84–85, 88–89, 92–93, 95, 98–99, 102–111, 245 (note 23)  Deficit. (See No net income.)  Deficit classes 4, 8–9, 11–12
Estate tax returns 200–201, 204–218  Gift tax returns 231–235  Individual and/or fiduciary returns (see also Sources of income and deductions) 12, 15, 22, 24, 54–65, 132, 142–143, 152–153, 159  Negative amounts reported under income 5, 14  Other deductions, description 16–17  Defense tax:  Estate tax returns 195–196, 198, 202–203, 205–215, 220–221, 255 (note 6)  Gift tax returns 227, 257 (note 8)  Individual and/or fiduciary returns 27, 78–79, 81, 84–85, 88–89, 92–93, 95, 98–99, 102–111, 245 (note 23)  Deficit. (See No net income.)  Deficit classes 4, 8–9, 11–12  Delaware:  Estate tax returns 220
Estate tax returns 200–201, 204–218  Gift tax returns 231–235  Individual and/or fiduciary returns (see also Sources of income and deductions) 12, 15, 22, 24, 54–65, 132, 142–143, 152–153, 159  Negative amounts reported under income 5, 14  Other deductions, description 16–17  Defense tax:  Estate tax returns 195–196, 198, 202–203, 205–215, 220–221, 255 (note 6)  Gift tax returns 227, 257 (note 8)  Individual and/or fiduciary returns 27, 78–79, 81, 84–85, 88–89, 92–93, 95, 98–99, 102–111, 245 (note 23)  Deficit. (See No net income.)  Deficit classes 4, 8–9, 11–12  Delaware:  Estate tax returns 220
Estate tax returns 200-201, 204-218 Gift tax returns 231-235 Individual and/or fiduciary returns (see also Sources of income and deductions) 12, 15, 22, 24, 54-65, 132, 142-143, 152-153, 159 Negative amounts reported under income 5, 14 Other deductions, description 16-17 Defense tax: Estate tax returns 195-196, 198, 202-203, 205-215, 220-221, 255 (note 6) Gift tax returns 227, 257 (note 8) Individual and/or fiduciary returns 227, 257 (note 23) Deficit. (See No net income.) Deficit classes 4, 8-9, 11-12 Delaware: Estate tax returns 220 Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118-120, 126-132, 162-163 Dependents credit for 5 7-9 72-77 80 84-87 90-91 94 98-101 121-125 243
Estate tax returns 200-201, 204-218 Gift tax returns 231-235 Individual and/or fiduciary returns (see also Sources of income and deductions) 12, 15, 22, 24, 54-65, 132, 142-143, 152-153, 159 Negative amounts reported under income 5, 14 Other deductions, description 16-17 Defense tax: Estate tax returns 195-196, 198, 202-203, 205-215, 220-221, 255 (note 6) Gift tax returns 227, 257 (note 8) Individual and/or fiduciary returns 227, 257 (note 23) Deficit. (See No net income.) Deficit classes 4, 8-9, 11-12 Delaware: Estate tax returns 220 Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118-120, 126-132, 162-163 Dependents credit for 5 7-9 72-77 80 84-87 90-91 94 98-101 121-125 243
Estate tax returns
Estate tax returns 200-201, 204-218 Gift tax returns 231-235 Individual and/or fiduciary returns (see also Sources of income and deductions) 12, 15, 22, 24, 54-65, 132, 142-143, 152-153, 159 Negative amounts reported under income 5, 14 Other deductions, description 16-17 Defense tax: Estate tax returns 195-196, 198, 202-203, 205-215, 220-221, 255 (note 6) Gift tax returns 227, 257 (note 8) Individual and/or fiduciary returns 227, 257 (note 23) Deficit. (See No net income.) Deficit classes 4, 8-9, 11-12 Delaware: Estate tax returns 220 Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118-120, 126-132, 162-163 Dependents credit for 5 7-9 72-77 80 84-87 90-91 94 98-101 121-125 243
Estate tax returns
Estate tax returns 200-201, 204-218 Gift tax returns 231-235 Individual and/or fiduciary returns (see also Sources of income and deductions) 12, 15, 22, 24, 54-65, 132, 142-143, 152-153, 159 Negative amounts reported under income 5, 14 Other deductions, description 16-17 Defense tax: Estate tax returns 195-196, 198, 202-203, 205-215, 220-221, 255 (note 6) Gift tax returns 227, 257 (note 8) Individual and/or fiduciary returns 227, 257 (note 23) Deficit. (See No net income.) Deficit classes 4, 8-9, 11-12 Delaware: Estate tax returns 220 Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118-120, 126-132, 162-163 Dependents, credit for 5, 7-9, 72-77, 80, 84-87, 90-91, 94, 98-101, 121-125, 243 Dependents, support of (Estate tax returns) 200-201, 205-219 Distribution, simple and cumulative, number of returns, net income, and tax, by net income classes 9-11, 112-117 District of Columbia: Estate tax returns 220 Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118-120, 126-132, 164-165 Dividends received: From domestic and foreign corporations 15-18, 22, 41 (note 31), 66 (note 23), 126 133-135, 144-145, 154
Estate tax returns
Estate tax returns 200-201, 204-218 Gift tax returns 231-235 Individual and/or fiduciary returns (see also Sources of income and deductions) 12, 15, 22, 24, 54-65, 132, 142-143, 152-153, 159 Negative amounts reported under income 5, 14 Other deductions, description 16-17 Defense tax: Estate tax returns 195-196, 198, 202-203, 205-215, 220-221, 255 (note 6) Gift tax returns 227, 257 (note 8) Individual and/or fiduciary returns 227, 257 (note 23) Deficit. (See No net income.) Deficit classes 4, 8-9, 11-12 Delaware: Estate tax returns 220 Individual and/or fiduciary returns 220 Individual and/or fiduciary returns 220 Individual and/or fiduciary returns 220 Estate tax returns 220 Individual and/or fiduciary returns 200-201, 205-219 Distribution, simple and cumulative, number of returns, net income, and tax, by net income classes 9-11, 112-117 District of Columbia: Estate tax returns 220 Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118-120, 126-132, 164-165 Dividends received: From domestic and foreign corporations 15-18, 22, 41 (note 31), 66 (note 23), 126 133-135, 144-145, 154 Estimated number of returns 5, 14 Frequency distribution by dividend classes and by net income classes 28-29
Estate tax returns

Page
Donors, identical (Gift tax returns) 229-230, 235-236 Duplication in reporting by fiduciaries and beneficiaries 14, 26
Duplication in reporting by fiduciaries and beneficiaries
${f E}$
Earned income credit 5 7-8 48 76-77 80 84-87 90-91 94 98-101
Earned income credit
Effective tax rate (percent)2, 53-54, 78-79, 81, 84-85, 88-89, 92-93, 95, 98-99, 102-111, 229
Estate tax returns:
Data tabulated 196
Gross estate:
Applicable revenue acts and taxable status, all acts 200–203
Description196-198
Gross estate classes 198, 212–219 Historical data, 1916–1941 222
Historical data, 1916–1941
Net estate classes, taxable returns 204–207
Net estate classes, taxable returns       204–207         States and Territories       220–221         Total       200–201, 204–218
Net estate for basic tax and for additional tax:
Applicable revenue acts and taxable status 197, 200–201
Before specific exemption 198
Gross estate classes 213–215
Gross estate classes 213–215 Historical data, 1916–1941. 222
Net estate classes 204–211
Net estate classes         204-211           States and Territories         220-221
Optional value 196
Requirements for filing 195–196, 254 (note 2)
States and Territories 220–221
Summary data
Synopsis of Federal tax laws affecting data 252-255
Tables:
1. Applicable revenue acts       200–203         2. Net estate (before specific exemption) classes       204–211         3. Gross estate classes, taxable returns       212–215
2. Net estate (before specific exemption) classes 204–211
3. Gross estate classes, taxable returns212-215
4. Gross estate classes, nontaxable returns
4. Gross estate classes, nontaxable returns 216–219 5. States and Territories 220–221 6. Historical data, 1916–1941 222
6. Historical data, 1916–1941 222
Description 199
Footnotes 223
Tax:
Rates 252–255
Toy credits 105 107-108 202-203 205-215 220-221
Tax credits 195, 197–198, 202–203, 205–215, 220–221 Estates and trusts 3-4, 7
Returns incorrectly filed on Form 10404
Returns incorrectly filed on Form 1040 4 Estimated data, returns with net income under \$5,000 4-5
Exclusion of the first \$4,000 of gifts made to any one done (Gift tax)
returns) 227–228, 231–232, 234
returns) 227-228, 231-232, 234 Exemption, personal 3, 7-9, 72-77, 80, 82-83, 86-87, 90-91, 94, 96-97, 100-101, 104-110, 121-125
Exemption, specific:
Estate tax returns 197, 200–201, 205–219
Gift tax returns 228
Claim for 1940 gifts231, 233–235 Expenses, funeral and administrative (Estate tax returns) 200–201, 204–218
<b>F</b>
Facsimiles. (See Forms.) Family relationship, sex and 9, 12–13, 118–125
Family relationship, sex and 9, 12–13, 118–125
Federal:
Estate tax (Estate tax returns) 195 Farm Loan Act, obligations issued under 42, 186–189 Gift taxes, credit for (Estate tax returns) 202–203, 205–215, 220–221
Cift tayon aredit for (Figure tay returns) 200 202 205 215 220 221
Girt taxes, treum for (Estate tax resultis) 202-205, 200-215, 220-221

Federal—Continued.	,
Government bonds: (See Government obligations.)	
Savings and loan associations, dividends received from subject	
to surtax6-7, 17 Tax laws, synopsis of (Estate, Fiduciary, Gift, Individual)239-257	
Tax laws, synopsis of (Estate, Fiduciary, Gift, Individual) 239-257 Fiduciaries:	7
Income from (Individual returns) 15-16, 19, 22, 26, 41 (note 18), 54-65, 67 (note 24), 127, 136-137, 146-147, 155	?
Net income taxable to (Fiduciary returns) 159, 190 (note 3)	
Fiduciary returns:	
Incorrectly filed on Form 1040 4, 66 (note 2), 191 (note 45)	į
Nontaxable not included 3 Tables exclusively for 104-111, 154-159, 188-189	Š
Tables exclusively for 104-111, 154-159, 188-189	ŧ
Filing requirements: Estate tax returns 195-196, 254 (note 2)	
Gift tax returns 227	
Individual and/or fiduciary returns 3, 242–244	
Fiscal year returns 3, 43, 68	,
Florida:	
Estate tax returns	)
Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118–120, 126–132, 164–165	1
Footnotes:	
Estate tax tables 223 Gift tax tables 237	
Gift tax tables 237 Individual and/or fiduciary tables:	
Basic	
Historical 66-67	,
Text40-41	
Foreign countries, income and profits taxes paid to7, 43	i
Forms: Excluded from tabulation 43-44	
Facsimiles of:	
1040—Individual income tax return, gross income over \$5,000 262-267	
1040A—Individual income tax return, gross income not over	
\$5,000 268-271	
1041—Fiduciary income tax return (for estates and trusts) 272-279 1065—Partnership return of income (syndicates, pools, etc.) 280-287	_
1065—Partnership return of income (syndicates, pools, etc.) 280-287	
Included in tabulation 3	
Fragmentary schedule D. 24-25 Frequency distribution of selected sources of income and loss by net	
income classes and by size of the selected source 26-40	
Funeral and administrative expenses (Estate tax returns) 200-201, 204-218	
G	
Gain or loss, net, from sale of property other than capital assets15,	
17, 20-21, 23, 45, 59-60, 65, 129-130, 138-141, 148-151, 157-158	
Gains, capital. (See Capital gains and losses.)	
Geographic distribution:	
Counties, cities, and towns, number of returns 42-43 States and Territories:	
States and Territories: Estate tax returns	
Individual and/or fiduciary returns 8-9.	
Individual and/or fiduciary returns 8-9, 72-75, 118-120, 126-132, 160-185	
Georgia:	
Estate tax returns 220 Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118-120, 126-132, 164-165	
Individual and/or inductary returns 72, 74, 118-120, 126-132, 164-165 Gift tax returns:	
Classification 228–220	
Data tabulated and description of items 227–228	
Data tabulated and description of items 227–228 Exclusions 227–228, 231–232, 234	
Exemption, specific 228, 231, 233-235	
Filing requirements 227	
Gifts, net. 228, 231, 233, 235, 237	
Gifts, total227-228	

Gift tax returns—Continued.	Page
Gifts type of	229-
Historical data 1932–1940	237
Identical donors 229-230, 235	-236
Requirements for filing	227
Summary dataSynopsis of Federal tax laws affecting data	227
Synopsis of Federal tax laws affecting data	256
Tables:	
1 Net gift classes 230-231	. 236
(Total gift plus tay classes 239	-233
2. Total gift classes (nontaxable returns)	234
3 Property transferred.	235
4. Taxable status  5. Net gift classes by net gift for prior years classes	235
5 Net gift classes by net gift for prior years classes	236
6. Historical summary, 1932–1940	237
Footpotes	237
Tax228, 231, 233	3-235
Rates	256
Gift taxes paid credit for (Estate tax returns) _ 195, 202-203, 205-215, 220	)-221
Community abligations	
Description 41–42, 190 (not	e 22)
Description 41-42, 190 (not Partners' and/or beneficiaries' shares included	16
States Territories political subdivisions 126.18	3-189
States, Territories, political subdivisions 126, 186 Taxable interest 7-8, 14-16, 18, 22, 26, 54-65, 126, 133-135, 146-14	7. 155
Wholly or partially tax exempt:	,
Amount owned (Estate tax returns) 200–201, 20	1-218
Amount owned and interest received:	
Fiduciary returns with balance income of \$5,000 and over_ 18	3-189
Individual returns with net income of \$5,000 and over 18	3-187
Gross estate classes. (See Estate tax returns.)	,
Gross income required for filing returns	3-4
Gross insurance (Estate tax returns) 202–203, 20	5-219
Gross matranec (1250abc bax returns) 111111111111111111111111111111111111	,
H	
**	
Hawaii: *	220
Hawaii: *	220 4–165
Hawaii: *	220 4–165 0. 124
Hawaii: * Estate tax returns	220 4–165 0, 124
Hawaii:  Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118–120, 126–132, 16 Heads of families, returns of 3, 13, 12 Historical data:	
Hawaii:  Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns	2-223
Hawaii:  Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns	2-223
Hawaii: * Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns	2–223 237
Hawaii:  Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns	2-223 237 47-48
Hawaii:  Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns	2-223 237 47-48 44-46
Hawaii:  Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns	2-223 237 47-48 44-46 66-67
Hawaii:  Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns	2-223 237 47-48 44-46 66-67
Hawaii:  Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns	2-223 237 47-48 44-46 66-67 48-54
Hawaii:  Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns	2-223 237 47-48 44-46 66-67 48-54 54-60
Hawaii:  Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns	2-223 237 47-48 44-46 66-67 48-54 54-60 61-65 1-185
Hawaii:  Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns	2-223 237 47-48 44-46 66-67 48-54 54-60 61-65 1-185
Hawaii:  Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns	2-223 237 47-48 44-46 66-67 48-54 54-60 61-65 1-185
Hawaii:  Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns	2-223 237 47-48 44-46 66-67 48-54 54-60 61-65 1-185
Hawaii:  Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns	2-223 237 47-48 44-46 66-67 48-54 54-60 61-65 1-185 56-60
Hawaii:  Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns	2-223 237 47-48 44-46 66-67 48-54 54-60 61-65 1-185 56-60
Hawaii:  Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns	2-223 237 47-48 44-46 66-67 48-54 54-60 61-65 1-185 56-60
Hawaii:  Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns	2-223 237 47-48 44-46 66-67 48-54 54-60 61-65 1-185 56-60
Hawaii:  Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns	2-223 237 47-48 44-46 66-67 48-54 54-60 61-65 1-185 56-60
Hawaii:  Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns	2-223 237 47-48 44-46 66-67 48-54 54-60 61-65 1-185 56-60
Hawaii:  Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns	2-223 237 47-48 44-46 66-67 48-54 54-60 61-65 51-185 56-60 220 6-167 3, 119 5-236
Hawaii:  Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns	2-223 237 47-48 44-46 66-67 48-54 54-60 61-65 51-185 56-60 220 6-167 3, 119 5-236
Hawaii:  Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns	2-223 237 47-48 44-46 66-67 48-54 54-60 61-65 51-185 56-60 220 6-167 3, 119 5-236
Hawaii: Estate tax returns	2-223 237 47-48 44-46 66-67 48-54 54-60 61-65 51-185 56-60 220 6-167 3, 119 5-236 220 6-167
Hawaii: Estate tax returns	2-223 237 47-48 44-46 66-67 48-54 54-60 61-65 51-185 56-60 220 6-167 3, 119 5-236 220 6-167
Hawaii:	2-223 237 47-48 44-46 66-67 48-54 54-60 61-65 51-185 56-60 220 6-167 3, 119 5-236 220 6-167

Income—Continued.
Net. (See Net income.) Page Crdinary net 6-7, 11, 82-83, 86-87, 96-97, 100-101, 109-110
Other, description
Sources of. (See Sources of income and deduction, Sources of income and loss.)
Total5, 12, 14, 15, 20, 23, 54-65, 129, 138-139, 148-149, 157
Income and profits taxes paid to foreign countries or possessions of the United States 7, 43
Indiana:
Estate tax returns 220 Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118-120, 126-132, 166-167
Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118-120, 126-132, 166-167 Individual returns not including fiduciary returns, tables (see also Basic
and Teyt) 8, 10-13, 15, 18-25, 27-40, 74-75, 90-103, 115-132, 144-153, 186-197
Industrial classification, not included 9, 25 Information items (Estate tax returns) 202-203, 205-219
Information items (Estate tax returns) 202-203, 205-219
Inheritance taxes, credit for (Estate tax returns) 195, 198, 202-203, 205-215, 220-221, 223 (note 10)
Institutions, educational, scientific, etc., bequests to (Estate tax returns) 200–
201, 205–219
Instrumentalities of the United States, obligations of. (See Government
obligations.) Insurance:
Estate tax returns 202-219
Gift tax returns 230 235
Intangible personal property (Estate tax returns) 200–219
Interest and other income 54-65 Interest paid 15, 17, 21, 24, 57-60, 63-65, 131, 140-141, 150-151, 159
Interest received or accrued on Government obligations.
Interest received, taxable:
Bank deposits, notes, mortgages, corporation bonds 15,
18, 22, 40 (note 15), 126, 133-135, 144-145, 154 Partially tax exempt. (See Government obligations.)
Internal Revenue Code, changes:
Estate tax returns 196
Gift tax returns 227 Individual and/or fiduciary returns 3, 43
Towa:
Estate tax returns 220
Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118-120, 126-132, 166-167
J
Joint returns of husbands and wives, or of either husband or wife when no
other return is filed
Jointly owned property (Estate tax returns) 196, 200–219
Kansas:
Estate tax returns 220
Estate tax returns 220 Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118-120, 126-132, 168-169
Kentucky
Estate tax returns 220 Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118-120, 126-132, 168-169
Individual and/of fiddelary feduris 72, 74, 116–120, 120–132, 168–169
· L
Laws, Federal tax, synopsis of (Estate, Fiduciary, Gift, Individual) 239-257
Liens, debts of decedent, mortgages and (Estate tax returns) 200-201, 204-219 Literary or scientific institutions, etc., bequests to (Estate tax returns) 200-201,
Long-term capital gains and losses. (See Capital gains and losses.)
Loss:
Business profit or 15-16, 19-20, 23, 25-26, 33-35, 41 (notes 36, 39)
54-65, 127, 130, 136-137, 140-141, 146-147, 150-151, 155, 157
Capital. (See Capital gains and losses.)
·

	age
Fire, storm, etc	เออ
Gain or, net, from sale of property other than capital assets. 15, 17, 20-21, 45, 59-60, 65, 129-130, 138-141, 148-151, 157-	40, 150
40, 09-00, 00, 123-100, 100-141, 140-101, 101-	26
Net operating, deduction	.16
19, 23, 26, 67, (note 31), 128, 138–139, 148–149, Partnership profit or 15–16, 18, 20, 22–23, 26, 30–32, 54–65, 127, 1	156
Paythorship profit or 15-16, 18, 20, 22-23, 26, 30-32, 54-65, 127, 1	30.
136-137, 140-141, 146-147, 150-151, 155, 157, 190 (note	23)
Reported under income	. 14
Reported under income5 Losses, net, during, administration (Estate tax returns) 200-201, 205-	219
Louisiana:	-
Estate tax returns	220
Estate tax returns	169
Community property12-13,	119
Maine: M	
Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns To, 74, 118-120, 126-132, 168- Married persons, returns of 3, 4, 7	220
Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118-120, 126-132, 168-	169
Married persons, returns of 3, 4, 7	, 13
Maryland:	
Estate tax returns	220
Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118–120, 126–132, 170–	171
Massachusetts:	000
Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118–120, 126–132, 170– Men, returns of 12–13, 119, 122–	220
Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118–120, 120–132, 170–	171
Men, returns of 12-13, 119, 122-	123
Michigan:	990
Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118–120, 126–132, 170–	171
	.111
Minnesota:	220
Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118-120, 126-132, 170-	171
Mississippi:	
* Fetate tay refilms	220
Estate tax returns	-173
Missouri:	
Estate tax returns 72, 74, 118-120, 126-132, 172-Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118-120, 126-132, 172-	220
Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118-120, 126-132, 172-	-173
Montana	
Estate tax returns 72, 74, 118-120, 126-132, 172-Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118-120, 126-132, 172-Mortgages and liens, debts of decedent (Estate tax returns) 200-201, 204-Mortgages, notes, and cash (Estate tax returns) 200-219, 223 (notes)	220
Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118-120, 126-132, 172-	173
Mortgages and liens, debts of decedent (Estate tax returns) 201–201, 204–20	-219
Mortgages, notes, and cash (Estate tax returns) 200-219, 223 (not	e 5)
Nebraska: N	001
Estate tax returns	221
Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118-120, 126-132, 172- Net capital gain or loss. (See Capital gains and losses.)	-1/3
Net capital gain or loss. (See Capital gains and losses.)	
Net estate. (See Estate tax returns.)  Net gain or loss from sale of property other than capital assets	17
20-21, 23, 45, 59-60, 65, 129-130, 138-141, 148-151, 157	158
Net gifts for prior years classes (Gift tax returns)229,	236
Net income:	
	10.
76-77, 80, 82-83, 86-87, 90-91, 94, 96-97, 100-101, 104-108,	110
Exempt from normal tax, amount and percent of net income	7–8
\$5,000 and over 4, 14, 24-40, 42, 61-65, 186	-187
Historical:	
All returns, 1913-1940, aggregate  All returns, 1916-1940 by net income classes  \$5,000 and over, 1916-1940, sources of income and deductions  6	47
All returns, 1916-1940 by net income classes	U-51
\$5,000 and over, 1916-1940, sources of income and deductions 6	1-09
Less than \$1,000	110
Returns with net income and returns with no net income, classification.	-110
results with her income and results with no resting theorie, classification.	o

Net Income—Continued.         Page           Sex and family relationship         13, 118-125           Simple and cumulative distribution         10, 113, 116           Sources of income         14-15, 22, 24, 54-65, 132, 142-143, 152-153           States and Territories         72-75, 132, 160-185           Subject to normal tax         6, 8           Subject to surtax         6, 8           Summary and comparison with 1939         2           Tayphly to 6 degree         2
Under \$5,000
Classification
Community property returns 12-13 Frequency distribution of selected sources of income and loss by size of selected source 26-40 Government obligations 186-189
Historical data, 1914–1940
States and Territories 18–24, 133–159
Type of tax liability 76–111  Net long-term capital gain or loss. (See Capital gains and losses.)  Net loss from sale of property other than capital assets 15, 17, 21, 22, 42, 45, 46, 46, 46, 47, 48, 48, 48, 48, 48, 48, 48, 48, 48, 48
17, 21, 23, 45, 59-60, 65, 130, 140-141, 150-151, 158  Net losses during administration (Estate tax returns) 200-201, 205-219  Net operating loss deduction 3, 16-17, 26  Net profit or loss from sale of real estate, stocks, bonds, etc 54-57, 61-63  Net short-term capital gain or loss. (See Capital gains and losses.)
Revada: Estate tax returns 221 Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72 74 118-120 126-132 174-175
New Hampshire:
New Jersey: 72, 74, 118–120, 126–132, 174–175
Estate tax returns 221 Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118-120, 126-132, 174-175 New Mexico: Estate tax returns 221
Individual and/or fiduciary returns 72, 74, 118–120, 126–132, 174–175  Community property 12–13, 119  New York:
Estate tax returns 221
No net income, returns with:  Alternative tax  88-93, 96-97, 102-103, 114, 117, 162-167, 170-179, 184-185  Deficit classes
Description 6, 8 Historical data:
Aggregate, 1928–1940 48–51 Sources of income and deductions, 1928–1940 56–60 With alternative tax, 1938–1940 53 Say and family relationship by 15
Sole proprietors 25 Sources of income and deductions 14-15 18-24 186 152
States and Territories 22–24 3
Summary
Gift tax returns 227-228, 230-231, 234-235, 237

Nontaxable returns—Continued.         Individual and/or fiduciary returns:       Page         Classification and description       8, 11         Deficit classes       12         Historical data, 1916—1940       47-48         Income exempt from normal tax, amount and percent       8         Net income classes       76-77, 90-91         Sex and family relationship       121-125         Sources of income and deductions       14, 134-153         States and Territories       160-185         Summary       2         Normal tax:
Comparison with 1939 2 Description 6 Historical data, 1913–1940 47 Net income classes 78–79, 81, 84–85, 88–89, 92–93, 95, 98–101, 104–107, 109–110 Net income exempt from and subject to 6–8. Rates, 1913–1940 242–243
Summary       2         North Carolina:       221         Estate tax returns       221         Individual and/or fiduciary returns       73-74, 118-120, 126-132, 176-177
North Dakota:  Estate tax returns
0
Obligations, Government. (See Government obligations.) Ohio:
Estate tax returns 221 Individual and/or fiduciary returns 73, 75, 118–120, 126–132, 176–177 Oklahoma:
Estate tax returns 221 Individual and/or fiduciary returns 73, 75, 118-120, 126-132, 178-179 Community property 12-13, 119 Operating loss deduction, net 3, 16-17, 26 Optional value (Estate tax returns) 196 Ordinary net income 6-7, 11, 82-83, 86-87, 96-97, 100-101, 109-110
Oregon: - 221  Individual and/or fiduciary returns 73, 75, 118-120, 126-132, 178-179
P Part year returns 3-4, 68 Partially tax exempt Government obligations, interest on 186-189 Partnership:
Profit or loss reported on individual and/or fiduciary returns
Pennsylvania: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns 73, 75, 118-120, 126-132, 178-179
Estate tax returns, summary 195 Gift tax returns, summary 227, 229
Individual and/or fiduciary returns:  Capital gains and losses
4989084320

Percentages—Continued.	
Individual and/or fiduciary returns—Continued	Page
ropulation filing returns	
Sources of income and deductions 17, 2	2-24
Personal exemption	7-9
72-77, 80, 82-83, 86-87, 90-91, 94, 96-97, 100-101, 104-110, 121	-125
Personal property (Estate tax returns) 200	-219
Population by States and Territories, and percentage filing returns 7	2-73
Possessions of the United States:	
Obligations of. (See Government obligations.)	
Taxes paid to	43
Community (Individual returns) 12-13, 119	123
Previously taxed (Estate tax returns) 197, 200- Real estate:	-219
Estate tay returns	
Estate tax returns 200–218, 223 (not	e 3)
Gift tax returns 230, 223 (not 230, 223 (not 230, 223 (not 230, 230, 230, 230))	235
Estate tax returns 200-	010
	219
I TOPOLOY COMO CHAIL CADICAL ASSELS. DEL GAID OF LOSS FROM CALC OF	235
17, 20-21, 23, 45, 59-60, 65, 120-120, 120, 141, 140, 151, 155	15,
Public Salary Tax Act242-	
#ID	240
$\cdot$ R	
Parts offertive town 2 52 54 70 70 01 01 07 00 01	
Rate, effective tax 2, 53-54, 78-79, 81, 84-85, 88-89, 92-93, 95, 98-99, 102-	111
Rates of tax, historical (Estate, Fiduciary, Gift, Individual) 242- Real estate, total:	
	257
Estate tax returns 200-218, 223 (note	e <b>3</b> )
Estate tax returns 200-218, 223 (note	e <b>3</b> )
Estate tax returns 200-218, 223 (note	e <b>3</b> )
Estate tax returns 200-218, 223 (note Gift tax returns 230, Receipts, business, sole proprietorships 24 Rents and royalties 15-16, 19, 23, 54-65, 127, 136-137, 146-147, Returns:	e <b>3</b> )
Estate tax returns 200-218, 223 (note Gift tax returns 230, Receipts, business, sole proprietorships 24 Rents and royalties 15-16, 19, 23, 54-65, 127, 136-137, 146-147, Returns:	e 3) 235 -25 155
Estate tax returns 200-218, 223 (note Gift tax returns 230, Receipts, business, sole proprietorships 24 Rents and royalties 15-16, 19, 23, 54-65, 127, 136-137, 146-147, Returns:  Included Requirements for filing:	e 3) 235 -25 155
Estate tax returns 200-218, 223 (note Gift tax returns 230, Receipts, business, sole proprietorships 24 Rents and royalties 15-16, 19, 23, 54-65, 127, 136-137, 146-147, Returns:  Included Requirements for filing: Estate tax returns 105	e 3) 235 -25 155
Estate tax returns	e 3) 235 -25 155 3-4
Estate tax returns	e 3) 235 -25 155 3-4 196 227
Estate tax returns 200–218, 223 (not Gift tax returns 15–16, 19, 23, 54–65, 127, 136–137, 146–147, Returns: Included Requirements for filing: Estate tax returns 195–Gift tax returns 195–Individual and fiduciary returns Revenue acts:	e 3) 235 -25 155 3-4 196 227 3
Estate tax returns 200–218, 223 (not Gift tax returns 15–16, 19, 23, 54–65, 127, 136–137, 146–147, Returns: 15–16, 19, 23, 54–65, 127, 136–137, 146–147, Returns: 11cluded Requirements for filing: 195–195–195–195–195–195–195–195–195–195–	e 3) 235 -25 155 3-4 196 227 3
Estate tax returns 200–218, 223 (not Gift tax returns 230, Receipts, business, sole proprietorships 24 Rents and royalties 15–16, 19, 23, 54–65, 127, 136–137, 146–147, Returns:  Included Requirements for filing: Estate tax returns 195–Gift tax returns 195–Gift tax returns 195–Revenue acts: Applicable to estate tax returns 198, 200–Historical synopsis of provisions affecting data	e 3) 235 -25 155 3-4 196 227 3
Estate tax returns	e 3) 235 -25 155 3-4 196 227 3
Estate tax returns 200–218, 223 (note Gift tax returns 230, Receipts, business, sole proprietorships 24 Rents and royalties 15–16, 19, 23, 54–65, 127, 136–137, 146–147, Returns: Included Requirements for filing: Estate tax returns 195– Gift tax returns 195– Gift tax returns 195– Hidvidual and fiduciary returns 198, 200– Historical synopsis of provisions affecting data 242– Rhode Island: Estate tax returns 2200–218, 223 (note Gift tax returns 240, 240–240, 24	235 -25 155 3-4 196 227 3 203 257
Estate tax returns 200–218, 223 (note Gift tax returns 230, Receipts, business, sole proprietorships 24 Rents and royalties 15–16, 19, 23, 54–65, 127, 136–137, 146–147, Returns:  Included Requirements for filing: Estate tax returns 195–Gift tax returns 195–Gift tax returns 195–Gift tax returns 195–Hadividual and fiduciary returus 198, 200–Revenue acts: Applicable to estate tax returns 198, 200–Rhode Island: 242–Rhode Islan	235 -25 155 3-4 196 227 3 203 257
Estate tax returns 200–218, 223 (note Gift tax returns 230, Receipts, business, sole proprietorships 24 Rents and royalties 15–16, 19, 23, 54–65, 127, 136–137, 146–147, Returns:  Included Requirements for filing: Estate tax returns 195–Gift tax returns 195–Gift tax returns 195–Gift tax returns 195–Hadividual and fiduciary returus 198, 200–Revenue acts: Applicable to estate tax returns 198, 200–Rhode Island: 242–Rhode Islan	235 -25 155 3-4 196 227 3 203 257
Estate tax returns 200–218, 223 (note Gift tax returns 230, Receipts, business, sole proprietorships 24 Rents and royalties 15–16, 19, 23, 54–65, 127, 136–137, 146–147, Returns:  Included Requirements for filing: Estate tax returns 195–Gift tax returns 195–Gift tax returns 195–Hadividual and fiduciary returns 198, 200–Historical synopsis of provisions affecting data 242–Rhode Island: Estate tax returns 73, 75, 118–120, 126–132, 178–Royalties, rents and 15–16, 19, 23, 54–65, 127, 136–137, 146–147, 18	235 -25 155 3-4 196 227 3 203 257
Estate tax returns 200–218, 223 (note Gift tax returns 15–16, 19, 23, 54–65, 127, 136–137, 146–147, Returns: 15–16, 19, 23, 54–65, 127, 136–137, 146–147, Returns: Included Requirements for filing: Estate tax returns 195–Gift tax returns 195–Gift tax returns 195–Holdidual and fiduciary returns 198, 200–Historical synopsis of provisions affecting data 242–Rhode Island: Estate tax returns 73, 75, 118–120, 126–132, 178–Royalties, rents and 15–16, 19, 23, 54–65, 127, 136–137, 146–147, 18	235 -25 155 3-4 196 227 3 203 257 221 179 155
Estate tax returns	235 -25 155 3-4 196 227 3 203 257 221 179
Estate tax returns	235 -25 155 3-4 196 227 3 203 257 221 179
Estate tax returns 200-218, 223 (note Gift tax returns 230, Receipts, business, sole proprietorships 24 Rents and royalties 15-16, 19, 23, 54-65, 127, 136-137, 146-147, Returns: Included Requirements for filing: Estate tax returns 195-Gift tax returns 195-Gift tax returns 195-Gift tax returns 195-Historical synopsis of provisions affecting data 242-Rhode Island: Estate tax returns 73, 75, 118-120, 126-132, 178-18, and 15-16, 19, 23, 54-65, 127, 136-137, 146-147, 185-16, 19, 23, 24-16, 185-16, 19, 24, 24-16, 185-16, 185-16, 19, 24, 24-16, 185-16, 18	235 -25 155 3-4 196 227 3 203 257 221 179 155
Estate tax returns 200-218, 223 (note Gift tax returns 230, Receipts, business, sole proprietorships 24 Rents and royalties 15-16, 19, 23, 54-65, 127, 136-137, 146-147, Returns:  Included Requirements for filing: Estate tax returns 195-Gift tax returns 195-Gift tax returns 195-Haitorical synopsis of provisions affecting data 242-Rhode Island: Estate tax returns 198, 200-Historical synopsis of provisions affecting data 242-Rhode Island: Estate tax returns 15-16, 19, 23, 54-65, 127, 136-132, 178-Royalties, rents and 15-16, 19, 23, 54-65, 127, 136-137, 146-147, 18  Salaries and other compensation for personal services 15, 18, 133-135, 144-1Estimated number of returns under \$5,000 5, 14, Five years or more, compensation for services rendered for a period of Frequency distribution by salary classes and by not incore electrons.	235 -25 155 3-4 196 227 3 203 257 221 179 155
Estate tax returns 200-218, 223 (note Gift tax returns 15-16, 19, 23, 54-65, 127, 136-137, 146-147, Receipts, business, sole proprietorships 24, Rents and royalties 15-16, 19, 23, 54-65, 127, 136-137, 146-147, Returns:  Included Requirements for filing: Estate tax returns 195-Gift tax returns 195-Gift tax returns 195-Historical synopsis of provisions affecting data 242-Rhode Island: Estate tax returns 198, 200-Historical synopsis of provisions affecting data 242-Rhode Island: Estate tax returns 73, 75, 118-120, 126-132, 178-18, Individual and/or fiduciary returns 73, 75, 118-120, 126-132, 178-18, Individual and/or fiduciary returns 15-16, 19, 23, 54-65, 127, 136-137, 146-147, Individual and of the compensation for personal services 15, 18, 133-135, 144-18.  Salaries and other compensation for personal services 5, 000 5, 14, Five years or more, compensation for services rendered for a period of Frequency distribution by salary classes and by net income classes 27-Historical data, 1916-1940:	233 2235 -25 155 3-4 196 2227 3 203 257 221 179 155 45 17 15 228
Estate tax returns 200-218, 223 (note Gift tax returns 15-16, 19, 23, 54-65, 127, 136-137, 146-147, Returns: 15-16, 19, 23, 54-65, 127, 136-137, 146-147, Returns: 195-Gift tax returns 195-Gift tax r	233 2235 -25 155 3-4 196 227 3 203 257 221 79 155
Estate tax returns 200-218, 223 (note Gift tax returns 15-16, 19, 23, 54-65, 127, 136-137, 146-147, Returns: 15-16, 19, 23, 54-65, 127, 136-137, 146-147, Returns: 195-Gift tax returns 195-Gift tax r	233 2235 -25 155 3-4 196 227 3 203 257 221 79 155
Estate tax returns 200-218, 223 (note Gift tax returns 15-16, 19, 23, 54-65, 127, 136-137, 146-147, Returns: 15-16, 19, 23, 54-65, 127, 136-137, 146-147, Returns: Included Requirements for filing: Estate tax returns 195-Gift tax returns 195-Gift tax returns 195-Historical synopsis of provisions affecting data 242-Rhode Island: Estate tax returns 198, 200-Historical synopsis of provisions affecting data 242-Rhode Island: Estate tax returns 15-16, 19, 23, 54-65, 127, 136-132, 178-Royalties, rents and 15-16, 19, 23, 54-65, 127, 136-137, 146-147, 188  Salaries and other compensation for personal services 15, 18, 133-135, 144-1 Estimated number of returns under \$5,000 5, 14, Five years or more, compensation for services rendered for a period of Frequency distribution by salary classes and by net income classes 27-Historical data, 1916-1940: All returns 55,000 54-Net income over \$5,000 61-Percentage of total income	233 2235 -25 155 3-4 196 227 3 203 257 221 79 155
Estate tax returns	233 2235 -25 155 3-4 196 227 3 203 257 221 179 155 45 17 15 28 60 665 222
Estate tax returns	233 2235 -25 155 3-4 196 227 3 203 257 221 179 155 45 17 15 28 60 665 222
Estate tax returns 200–218, 223 (note Gift tax returns 230, Receipts, business, sole proprietorships 24, Rents and royalties 15–16, 19, 23, 54–65, 127, 136–137, 146–147, Returns:  Included Requirements for filing: Estate tax returns 195–Gift tax returns 195–Gift tax returns 195–Historical synopsis of provisions affecting data 242–Rhode Island: Estate tax returns 15–16, 19, 23, 54–65, 127, 136–132, 178–18, Individual and/or fiduciary returns 73, 75, 118–120, 126–132, 178–18, Individual and/or fiduciary returns 73, 75, 118–120, 126–132, 178–19, Individual and/or fiduciary returns 73, 54–65, 127, 136–137, 146–147, 18  Salaries and other compensation for personal services 15, 18, 133–135, 144–19, Estimated number of returns under \$5,000 5, 14, Five years or more, compensation for services rendered for a period of Frequency distribution by salary classes and by net income classes 27–Historical data, 1916–1940: All returns 54–Net income over \$5,000 61–Percentage of total income States and Territories 15 Salary Tax Act 242–2	233 2235 -25 155 3-4 196 227 3 203 257 221 179 155 45 17 15 28 60 665 222

Page	
Savings bonds and Treasury bonds 186–189 Savings and loan associations, Federal, dividends from 6-7, 17 24-29	<del>)</del>
Savings and loan associations, Federal, dividends from	ί
Schedule D, fragmentary 24-26 Scientific, educational, or literary institutions, bequests to (Estate tax	,
Scientific, educational, or literary institutions, bequests to (Estate tax	O.
returns)	2
Separate returns of husbands and wives	5
Sex and family relationship to the sex (See Capital gains and losses)	•
Simple and cumulative distribution of number of returns, net income and	
the best not income alocaes 9-11, 112-111	7
Circula man and women married men and women not living with spouse.	
heads of families and not heads of families, returns of 3-4, 7, 13, 120, 124-126	5
24-26	
Source Book data 68-69 Source, income tax paid at, not deducted from tax liability as tabulated 7, 49	9
Source, income tax paid at, not deducted from tax liability as tabulated. 7, 4:	3
Description 14-1 Duplication in reporting income by individuals and fiduciaries 25-2	í R
Duplication in reporting income by individuals and nationalies 25-2	U
Historical data, 1916–1940:	n.
All returns 54-6 Net income \$5,000 and over 61-6	5
Net income classes14, 18–24, 133–15	9
Net income classes14, 1 Net income under \$5,00014, 1	7
Percentage distribution	14.
Fercentage distribution	2
States and Territories 126-13 Sources of income and loss, selected, frequency distribution by size of	
selected source and by net income classes	0:
Cl. 11 Cl. 11	
Estate tax returns 73, 75, 118-120, 126-132, 180-18	21
Individual and/or fiduciary returns 73, 75, 118-120, 126-132, 180-18	31
Courth Dokoto:	
Estate tax returns 73, 75, 118-120, 126-132, 180-18	31
Individual and/or fiduciary returns 73, 75, 118-120, 126-132, 180-18	51.
Specific exemption. (See Exemption.)	
State:  Inheritance taxes credit for (Estate tax returns)  19.	5
Inheritance taxes, credit for (Estate tax returns)198_202_203_205_215_220_22	21
Obligations 186-18	39
State and municipal bonds (Estate tax returns) 200-201, 204-21	8
States and Tarritories.	
Estate tax returns 220-22	21
Individual returns:	
Community property 12-13, 11	19
Data estimated	Э
Not income classes	35
Soy and family relationship	20
Sources of income and deductions 14, 126-15	52 75
Summary data74-	13
Individual and fiduciary returns:	72
Population and percent of population filing returns 72-	
Summary data: 160-1	85
Historical, 1930–1939 160–1	85
Stock, capital, in corporations (Estate tax returns) 200-201, 204-2	18
Fetoto toy returns 200-2	18
Gift tax returns 230, 2	35
Summery data:	
Fototo tox returns 195-1	98
Gift tax returns	28
Individual and/or fiduciary returns:	
Current year 2, 5	-/ 11\
Historical, 1930–1939 160–185, 191 (note 4	ET)

Surtax:	1	Pag
111500110a1 ua0a, 1910~1940		4
Net income subject to	, 88–89, 92–93, 95, 98–99, 102–107, 109,	11
Synopsis of Federal tax laws (Estate, I	3, 246–246 Fiduciary, Gift, Individual) 239–3	$\frac{24}{25}$
-	_	
Tables: Estate tay returns	T	
Fiduciary returns only	200- 	22
Gift tax returns		18
individual returns only:		
Basic	74-75, 90-103, 115-132, 144-153, 186-1	1 2'
16x6		-41
THUIVIGUAL AND HONCIATY TERRITOR O	Omnorito:	
Basic	72–73, 76–89, 112–114, 133–143, 160–1	18
Historical data		-64
		2
Income and profits Normal Surtay	erage, Basic, Defense, Estate, Gift,	
Income and profits, Normal, Surtax, Tax collections Tax credits:	Total, etc.)	4.
Estate tax returns	195, 197–198, 202–203, 205–215, 220–2	221
individual and/or nduciary returns	•	141
Capital net loss, 1924–1933		48
rarneo meome		4.0
Tax, effective rate percent	04.05.00.00.00.00	2,
Tax laws, synopsis of (Estate, Fiduciary	, 84–85, 88–89, 92–93, 95, 98–99, 102–1	11
Tax liability and collections, comparison		57
Estate tax returns	105 1	۸e
Giit tax returns	ก	07
individual and/of nudclary regirns	. 12_	11
Tax paid at source, not deducted from t	Otal tay 7	12
1 ax. Drior vears	1001	85
Taxable levalits with no net income (Wil	th alternative fav)	n
117 162-167 170-170 1	-79, 82-83, 88-93, 96-97, 102-103, 11 84-185.	.4,
Taxes:	04-100.	
Back	43, 196, 22	იი
Paid 15, 17, 21, 24, 56-60, 62-68	5 67 (note 30) 131 149_143 159_159 16	48 50
Onconecuble		43
1 chilessee:		
Individual and/on 6 duci	22 73, 75, 118–120, 126–132, 180–18	21
Tentative returns, not included.	73, 75, 118–120, 126–132, 180–18	31
Territories. (See States and Territories.)		3
Texas:		
Estate tax returns	22	21
Individual and/or fiduciary returns	73, 75, 118-120, 126-132, 180-18	21
Community property	12–13, 11	9
Text tables:	•	
Deficit classes		.2
Frequency distribution of selected s	ources of income and loss by net	7
income classes and by size of the s	selected source 97 A	^
Net income subject to and exempt to	rom normal tay	8
Sex and family relationship	1:	3
Simple and cumulative distribution.	10-1	1
Sole proprietorship	24-2	5
Sources of income and deduction:	•	_
Net income elector	10.00	5
Summary and comparison with 1020	18–24	4
J was companion with 1909		4

	age
Estate tax returns195-198, 202-215, 2	222
Gift tax returns 227-228, 233, 235, 2	237
Individual and/or fiduciary returns:	40
After tax credits	48
Average	48
Before tax credits Description	7
Historical:	•
1913-1940 48, 66 (notes 5,	9)
1916–1940	9)
Simple and cumulative distribution 11, 114, 1	17
States and Territories 72–75, 160–1	185
Summary	2
Summary	107
Towns, counties, and cities, number of returns 42-	-43
Transfers:	
Estate tax returns 200-2	219
Gift tax returns	235
Gift tax returns	
obligations.)	
	235
Trusts (included in composite and fiduciary data):	
	5, 7
Requirements for filing 4, 244 (note 2	ze)
Trusts and estates, returns incorrectly filed on Form 1040.	4
Type of tax liability 8, 76-1	III
τ	
U	
United States obligations. (See Government obligations.)	
Utah:	
Estate tax returns 73, 75, 118-120, 126-132, 182-1	221
Individual and/or fiduciary returns 73, 75, 118-120, 126-132, 182-1	183
V	
· ·	
Vermont:	221
Vermont: Estate tax returns	221 183
Vermont: Estate tax returns	221 183
Vermont: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns 73, 75, 118-120, 126-132, 182-1	183
Vermont: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns 73, 75, 118-120, 126-132, 182-1	183
Vermont: Estate tax returns	183
Vermont: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Total re	183
Vermont: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns 73, 75, 118-120, 126-132, 182-1 Virginia: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns 73, 75, 118-120, 126-132, 182-1	183
Vermont: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Estate tax returns Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns  73, 75, 118-120, 126-132, 182-1  W Wages, salaries, and other compensation for personal services. (See	183
Vermont: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Total returns Total returns Total returns Total returns Total returns Total returns Total returns Total returns W Wages, salaries, and other compensation for personal services. (See Salaries.)	183
Vermont: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns  W  Wages, salaries, and other compensation for personal services. (See Salaries.) Washington:	183 221 183
Vermont: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Estate tax returns Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns  W  Wages, salaries, and other compensation for personal services. (See Salaries.) Washington: Estate tax returns	183 221 183
Vermont: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Total returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Total returns Total returns Total returns W  Wages, salaries, and other compensation for personal services. (See Salaries.) Washington: Estate tax returns Total returns	183 221 183 221 183
Vermont: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Total returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Total returns Total returns Total returns W  Wages, salaries, and other compensation for personal services. (See Salaries.) Washington: Estate tax returns Total returns	183 221 183 221 183
Vermont: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Total returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Total returns Total returns Total returns Total returns Total returns W  Wages, salaries, and other compensation for personal services. (See Salaries.) Washington: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Total	183 221 183 221 183
Vermont: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Estate tax returns Estate tax returns Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns  W  Wages, salaries, and other compensation for personal services. (See Salaries.) Washington: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns 73, 75, 118-120, 126-132, 182-1 Community property 12-13, 1 Data for Alaska included prior to 1939  West Virginia:	183 221 183 221 183 119 183
Vermont: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Estate tax returns Estate tax returns Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns  W  Wages, salaries, and other compensation for personal services. (See Salaries.) Washington: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns 73, 75, 118-120, 126-132, 182-1 Community property 12-13, 1 Data for Alaska included prior to 1939  West Virginia:	183 221 183 221 183 119 183
Vermont: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Total returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Total returns	183 221 183 221 183 119 183
Vermont: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Total re	183 221 183 221 183 119 183
Vermont: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Estate tax returns Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns  W  Wages, salaries, and other compensation for personal services. (See Salaries.)  Washington: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns  73, 75, 118-120, 126-132, 182-1  Community property 12-13, 1  Data for Alaska included prior to 1939  West Virginia: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns 73, 75, 118-120, 126-132, 182-1  West Virginia: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns 73, 75, 118-120, 126-132, 184-1  Wholly tax exempt Government obligations. (See Government obligations.)  Wisconsin	183 221 183 221 183 119 183 183
Vermont: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Estate tax returns Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns  W  Wages, salaries, and other compensation for personal services. (See Salaries.)  Washington: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns  73, 75, 118-120, 126-132, 182-1  Community property 12-13, 1  Data for Alaska included prior to 1939  West Virginia: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns 73, 75, 118-120, 126-132, 182-1  West Virginia: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns 73, 75, 118-120, 126-132, 184-1  Wholly tax exempt Government obligations. (See Government obligations.)  Wisconsin	183 221 183 221 183 119 183 183
Vermont: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Estate tax returns Estate tax returns Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns  W  Wages, salaries, and other compensation for personal services. (See Salaries.) Washington: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Individual	183 221 183 119 183 119 183 1221 185
Vermont: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Estate tax returns Estate tax returns Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns  W  Wages, salaries, and other compensation for personal services. (See Salaries.) Washington: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Individual	183 221 183 119 183 119 183 1221 185
Vermont: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Estate tax returns Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns  W  Wages, salaries, and other compensation for personal services. (See Salaries.) Washington: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary re	183 221 183 221 183 119 183 185 221 185
Vermont: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Estate tax returns Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns  W  Wages, salaries, and other compensation for personal services. (See Salaries.) Washington: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary re	183 221 183 221 183 119 183 185 221 185
Vermont: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Estate tax returns Estate tax returns Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns  W  Wages, salaries, and other compensation for personal services. (See Salaries.) Washington: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Individual and Individual and Individual and Individual and Individual and Individual In	183 221 183 221 183 119 183 185 221 185
Vermont: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Estate tax returns Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns  W  Wages, salaries, and other compensation for personal services. (See Salaries.) Washington: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary re	183 221 183 221 183 119 183 185 221 185
Vermont: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Estate tax returns Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns  W  Wages, salaries, and other compensation for personal services. (See Salaries.) Washington: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary re	183 221 183 221 183 119 183 185 221 185
Vermont: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Estate tax returns Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns Individual and/or fiduciary returns  W  Wages, salaries, and other compensation for personal services. (See Salaries.) Washington: Estate tax returns Individual and/or fiduciary re	183 221 183 221 183 119 183 185 221 185